
Page 1 of 8 
 

     
  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE CUDAHY CITY COUNCIL 

And JOINT MEETING Of The 
CITY OF CUDAHY AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

TO THE CUDAHY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
Monday, November 9, 2015 – 6:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
Council / Agency Member Garcia 
Council / Agency Member Guerrero 
Council / Agency Member Sanchez 
Vice Mayor / Vice Chair Hernandez 
Mayor / Chair Markovich 
 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
 

4. PRESENTATIONS – None 

“Members of the Public are Advised that all PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES and any OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES are to be turned off upon entering the City Council Chambers.” If you need to 
have a discussion with someone in the audience, kindly step out into the lobby. 
 
Written materials distributed to the City Council within 72 hours of the City Council meeting are available for 
public inspection immediately upon distribution in the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall located at 5220 Santa Ana 
Street, Cudahy, CA 90201.    
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) if you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, you should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (323) 773-5143 at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting.  
 

CUDAHY CITY  
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

5240 Santa Ana Street 
Cudahy, CA 90201 

Phone: (323) 773-5143 
Fax: (323) 771-2072 

 
REMOTE TELECONFERENCE 

LOCATION: 
Bedwell Hall 

5240 Santa Ana Street 
Cudahy, CA  90201 

Cristian Markovich, Mayor 
Christian Hernandez, Vice Mayor   
Baru Sanchez, Council Member  
Jack Guerrero, Council Member 
Chris Garcia, Council Member  
 



City of Cudahy 
City Council  and Successor Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 Monday, November 9, 2015 at 6:30 PM 
 

 

 Page 2 of 8  
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 

(Mayor:  This is the time set aside for citizens to address the City Council / Agency on matters 
relating only to items on the agenda.  Anyone wishing to speak, please fill out the form located at the 
Council Chambers entrance and submit it to the City Clerk.  Speakers that submitted comment cards 
within the first 20 minutes of the meeting will be permitted to speak. Pursuant to Government Code 
section 54954.3(b), time limits are placed on the public comment period.  The Mayor will announce 
when public comment cards may no longer be submitted to the City Clerk and no public comment 
cards will be accepted after the Mayor’s announcement.  Each person who submits a public 
comment card will be allowed to speak only once and will be limited to three (3) minutes.  When 
addressing the Council / Agency please speak into the microphone and voluntarily state your name 
and address.)   

 
 
6. CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS / REQUESTS FOR AGENDA ITEMS 

 
(This is the time for the City Council / Agency to comment on any topics related to “City Business,” 
including announcements, reflections on city / regional events, response to public comments, 
suggested discussion topics for future council meetings, general concerns about particular city 
matters, questions to the staff, and directives to the staff (subject to approval / consent of the City 
Council majority members present, regarding staff directives).  Each Council / Agency Member will 
be allowed to speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
City Council Members shall not use this comment period for serial discussions or debate between 
members on City business matters not properly agendized.  The City Attorney shall be responsible 
for regulating this aspect of the proceeding.) 
 
 

7. CITY MANAGER REPORT (information only) 
 
 

8. REPORTS REGARDING AD HOC, ADVISORY, STANDING, OR OTHER COMMITTEE 
MEETINGS 
 
A. Nationwide Ad Hoc Committee – Formed October 12, 2015 
 (Council Members Garcia and Sanchez) 
 
B. Ad Hoc to Recommend Appointments to Various City Commissions Committee 

(Vice Mayor Hernandez and Council Member Sanchez) – Formed August 24, 2015 
 

C. Ad Hoc Book Fair Committee 
(Mayor Markovich and Council Member Garcia)  

 
D. Cudahy Youth Leadership Ad Hoc Committee – Reformed June 29, 2015 

(Mayor Markovich and Council Member Garcia)  
 

E. Ad-Hoc Beautification Committee  – Reformed June 29, 2015 
(Mayor Markovich and Council Member Sanchez) 



City of Cudahy 
City Council  and Successor Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 Monday, November 9, 2015 at 6:30 PM 
 

 

 Page 3 of 8  
 

F. Ad-Hoc Clara Park and Lugo Park Expansion Committee – Reformed June 29, 2015 
(Council Member Garcia and Mayor Markovich) 
 

G. MOU Negotiation Ad Hoc Committee 
(Mayor Markovich and Council Member Sanchez) 
 

H. Finance Sub-Committee (meets quarterly) – Formed October 21, 2014 
(Mayor Markovich and Council Member Sanchez)  
 

I. Successor Agency Standing Committee – Reformed June 29, 2015 
(Mayor Markovich and Vice Mayor Hernandez)  
 

J. Casino and Gaming Standing Committee – Reformed June 29, 2015 
(Vice Mayor Hernandez and Council Member Sanchez)  
 

K. Farmers Market/Swap Meet Standing Committee  – Reformed June 29, 2015 
(Council Members Garcia and Sanchez) 
 

L. Contracts Standing Committee 
(Council Members Garcia and Guerrero)  
 

M. Pension Reform Standing Committee – Reformed June 29, 2015 
(Council Member Guerrero and Mayor Markovich)  
 
 

9. WAIVER OF FULL READING OF RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 
 

(Consideration to waive full text reading of all Resolutions and Ordinances by single motion made at 
the start of each meeting, subject to the ability of the City Council / Agency to read the full text of 
selected resolutions and ordinances when the item is addressed by subsequent motion.) (COUNCIL / 
AGENCY) 
 
Recommendation:   Approve the Waiver of Full Reading of Resolutions and Ordinances.  
 
 

10. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
(Items under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. There 
will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council / Agency Member so requests, in which 
event the item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered separately.) 
(COUNCIL / AGENCY) 
 
A. Consideration to Approve the City Demands and Payroll including the Cash and Investment 

Report for the month of September 2015  (page 9) 
 

Presented by Finance Director 
 



City of Cudahy 
City Council  and Successor Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 Monday, November 9, 2015 at 6:30 PM 
 

 

 Page 4 of 8  
 

Recommendation:  The City Council is requested to approve the Demands and Payroll in 
the amount of $706,264.59 including the Cash and Investment Report by 
Fund for the month of September 2015. 

 
B. Consideration to Approve the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Report for the month of 

September 2015  (page 27) 
 
Presented by Finance Director 
 
Recommendation: The City Council is requested to approve the Local Agency Investment 

Fund (LAIF) Report for the month of September 2015 in the amount of 
$5,275,618.75. 

 
C. Consideration to Review and Approve the Draft Minutes of September 28, 2015, for the Regular 

Meeting of the City Council and the Joint Meeting of the City of Cudahy as Successor Agency to 
the Cudahy Development Commission (Agency)  (page 31) 
 
Presented by Interim City Clerk 
 
Recommendation: The City Council is requested to review and approve the City Council / 

Agency draft minutes for September 28, 2015. 
 

D. Consideration to Receive and File Aging and Senior Citizen Commission Minutes; Public Safety 
Commission Minutes; Planning Commission Notice of Cancellation; and Parks and Recreation 
Commission Minutes  (page 45) 

 
Presented by Acting Community Development Director 
 
Recommendation:  The City Council is requested to receive and file the minutes for the: 

 1) Aging and Senior Citizen Commission meeting of September 14, 2015; 
 2) Public Safety Commission meeting of September 8, 2015 

3) Planning Commission Cancellation Notice from their meeting of 
September 21, 2015; and 

4) Parks and Recreation Commission meeting of September 25, 2015. 
 

E. Consideration of First Amendment to Professional Services Agreement with Transtech Engineers, 
Inc. for Preparation of a Traffic Study for Card Club Casino Project  (page 59) 

 
Presented by Acting Community Development Director 
 
Recommendation:  The City Council is requested to authorize the City Manager to execute 

on behalf of the City, the First Amendment to Professional Services 
Agreement with Transtech Engineers, Inc. for the preparation of a traffic 
study to their scope of services of the City’s existing agreement with 
Transtech. 

 
 



City of Cudahy 
City Council  and Successor Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 Monday, November 9, 2015 at 6:30 PM 
 

 

 Page 5 of 8  
 

AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY: 
 
F. Consideration to Adopt a Proposed Resolution Approving a Long-Range Property Management 

Plan (LRPMP) for the Successor Agency to the Former Cudahy Community Development 
Commission (Successor Agency)  (page 139) 

 
Presented by Finance Director 
 
Recommendation:  The Successor Agency is requested to adopt a proposed resolution 

approving the Long-Range Property Plan for the Successor Agency of 
the Former City of Cudahy Community Development Commission. 

 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING  
 
A. Consideration to Adopt a Proposed Ordinance Amending Sections 15.04.030, and 15.12.030 and 

Adding Section 15.16.040 to the Cudahy Municipal Code, the Adoption of a Proposed Resolution 
Repealing Resolution No. 99-34 and the Adoption of New Building and Safety Division Fees  
(page 215) 
 
Presented by Acting Community Development Director          
 
Recommendation:  The City Council is requested to:  

1) Adopt a proposed ordinance amending Sections 15.04.030, 15.08.030 
and 15.12.030, and adding 15.16.040 to the Cudahy Municipal Code; 
and 

2) Adopt a proposed resolution repealing Resolution No. 99-34 and 
adopting new Building and Safety Division Fees. 

 
12. BUSINESS SESSION 

 
A. City Council Appointments to the General Plan Advisory Committee (GPAC)  (page 291) 

 
Presented by Acting Community Development Director 
 
Recommendation: The City Council is requested to appoint up to three individuals to the 

General Plan Advisory Committee (GPAC) per Council Member. 
 

B. Consideration to Review Cudahy Municipal Code (CMC) Chapter 3.16 Regarding the City’s 
Purchasing System and Comparison with Other Cities  (page 293) 
 
Presented by City Attorney and City Manager 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council receive the presentation and consider providing 

direction to City staff for any further action. 



City of Cudahy 
City Council  and Successor Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 Monday, November 9, 2015 at 6:30 PM 
 

 

 Page 6 of 8  
 

C. Authorization to Apply for Grant Funds through the Rivers and Mountains Conservancy, Call 
for Projects and Approve Professional Services Agreement with Avant Garde, Inc., in the 
Amount Not-to-Exceed $8,795 for the Preparation and Submittal of One Grant Application 
(page 301) 
 
Presented by City Attorney and City Manager 
 
Recommendation: The City Council is requested to: 
 

1) Approve a Professional Services Agreement with Avant Garde, Inc. 
in an amount not-to-exceed $8,795 for the submittal of one 
application; and 

 
2) Authorize the City Manager to submit a grant application in 

response to the Rivers and Mountains Conservancy Call for Projects, 
Proposition 1 Funding due by December 16, 2015. 
 

 
13. COUNCIL DISCUSSION  

 
A. Council Member Garcia 

i. Renters Rights 

 

B. Council Member Sanchez 

i. Incentives for Established Non-Profit Organizations in Cudahy 

ii. Organization Structure Retreat 

 

C. Vice Mayor Hernandez 

i. Discussion of the Young Mayor Program 

ii. Discussion to bring forward a Resolution regarding Equal Wages for Gender Equality 

 
 
14. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS (Closed Session) 

 
(Each person will be allowed to speak only once on closed session items and will be limited to three 
(3) minutes.  When addressing the Council please speak into the microphone and voluntarily state 
your name and address.)   

 
 

  



City of Cudahy 
City Council  and Successor Agency 
Regular Meeting Agenda  

 Monday, November 9, 2015 at 6:30 PM 
 

 

 Page 7 of 8  
 

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 

 
This is the time at which the City Council will meet in closed session to go over items of business on the 
closed session agenda.  It should be noted that because Councilman Guerrero will be participating from 
Bedwell Hall via teleconference, he will be patched into the closed session chambers from Bedwell Hall 
via telephone device.  At this time, all persons other than Councilman Guerrero and City personnel 
authorized by either the City Manager or the City Attorney will not be allowed to remain in Bedwell 
Hall.   Once closed session is completed and the City Council returns from closed session into open 
session, members of the public may then reenter the Council Chamber to rejoin the proceedings.  

 
 
CLOSED SESSION  

 
A. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) and 54956.9(e)(1) – Conference with Legal 

Counsel to Discuss a Matter Involving Potential Litigation and/or Significant Exposure to 
Litigation – [Two (2) Matters] - This Matter will be heard jointly by the Cudahy City Council and 
the Cudahy City Council in its capacity as Successor Agency to the Cudahy Redevelopment 
Agency.  

B. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 – Conference with Real Property Negotiator 
Location of Property: 4819 Patata, 8420 S. Atlantic Ave. (APN 622-034-014, 032, 040-41), Cudahy, 
CA 90201 City’s Negotiator(s): City Manager Jose E. Pulido Party Negotiating With: Cudahy LF, 
LLC Under Discussion: Discussion of both price and terms of payment as related to purchase of 
subject property  
 

C. Pursuant to Government Code section 54957(b)(1) – Public Employee Performance Evaluation  

Employee Title: City Manager 
 
 

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 

 
15. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENT  

 
 

16. PUBLIC COMMENT  
 

(Mayor:  This is the time set aside for citizens to address the City Council / Agency on matters under 
the City Council’s jurisdiction.  Anyone wishing to speak, please fill out the form located at the 
Council Chambers entrance and submit it to the City Clerk.  Speakers that submitted comment cards 
within the first 20 minutes of the meeting will be permitted to speak. Pursuant to Government Code 
section 54954.3(b), time limits are placed on the public comment period.  The Mayor will announce 
when public comment cards may no longer be submitted to the City Clerk and no public comment 
cards will be accepted after the Mayor’s announcement.  Each person who submits a public 
comment card will be allowed to speak only once and will be limited to three (3) minutes.  When 





“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/09/2015  Page 1 of 2 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  November 9, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Steven Dobrenen, Finance Director 

Subject: Consideration to Approve the City Demands and Payroll Including Cash and 
Investment Report for the Month of September 2015 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
The City Council is requested to approve the Demands and Payroll in the amount of 
$706,264.59 including Cash and Investment Report by Fund for the month of September 
2015.   
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On September 13, 1993, Ordinance 476 was adopted and codified as Cudahy Municipal 

Code Section 3.04.080 indicating, "Except as otherwise provided, no warrant shall be 
drawn or evidence of indebtedness issued unless there shall be at the time sufficient 
money in the treasury legally applicable to the payment of the same."  

 
2. On September 2015, the following demands and payroll have been audited by the 

Finance Department: 
 
Demands $    521,257.66 (Attachment A) 
Payroll Warrants $    114,036.35 (Attachment B) 
  $      70,970.58 (Attachment B) 
        
Total: $     706,264.59     
 
 
 
 

 

Item Number 

10A 

Page 9 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/09/2015  Page 2 of 2 
    

 
ANALYSIS  
 
The Check Register Report (Attachment A), Payroll Warrants including payroll taxes and 
insurance premiums (Attachment B) and Cash and Investment Report by Fund September 
2015 (Attachment C) indicate that the cash and investment balance was sufficient for 
disbursements for the month of September 2015. 
 
Cudahy Municipal Code Section 3.04.070 indicates, "...Budgeted demands paid by warrant 
prior to audit by the council shall be presented to the council for ratification and approval..." 
 
 
CONCULSION 
 
The Finance Director certifies to the accuracy and availability of funds for payment.  A 
Demand/Warrant Register has been submitted to the City Council for approval in accordance 
with Cudahy Municipal Code Section 3.04.070.   
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The Cash and Investment Report by Fund (Attachment C) indicates how the total 
disbursements of $706,264.59 were distributed between the funds of the City. 
 
 
 ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Check Register Report 
B. Payroll Warrants including payroll taxes and insurance premiums  
C. Cash and Investment Report by Fund September 2015 
 
 

 
 

Page 10 of 385



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 1Page:

 9:24 amTime:

10/05/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

09/02/2015 8022 AMERICAN TRANSPORTATION 38986

COMMUNITY EXCURSION AUG 13THPrinted

 730.69

 0.00

 730.69

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27473 252-4770-6510.000  730.69 730.69  0.00

Check Amount  730.69

09/02/2015 10333 APPLE'S TRACTOR SERVICE 38987

WEED ABATEMENT SUCCESSOR AGCYPrinted

 8,220.00

 0.00

 8,220.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27490 001-4930-6720.000  8,220.00 8,220.00  0.00

Check Amount  8,220.00

09/02/2015 10330 ASYLUM DESIGN & MARKETING, INC 38988

CITY OF CUDAHY SRTS PROGRAMPrinted

 3,634.45

 0.00

 3,634.45

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27493 001-0000-2150.000  3,634.45 3,634.45  0.00

Check Amount  3,634.45

09/02/2015 0057-1 AT & T INTERNET SERVICES 38989

INTERNET LUGO PARKPrinted

 98.00

 0.00

 98.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27484 001-4020-6390.000  44.00 44.00  0.00

 27485 001-4020-6390.000  54.00 54.00  0.00

Check Amount  98.00

09/02/2015 9966 AT & T LONG DISTANCE SERVICE 38990

LONG DISTANCE PHONE SERVICEPrinted

 119.42

 0.00

 119.42

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27483 001-4020-6390.000  119.42 119.42  0.00

Check Amount  119.42

09/02/2015 8021 AT & T MOBILITY 38991

CELLULAR SERVICE JUl 7 -  AUG6Printed

 577.13

 0.00

 577.13

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27477 001-4020-6390.000  504.61 504.61  0.00

 27477 201-4425-6390.000  72.52 72.52  0.00

Check Amount  577.13

09/02/2015 0057-2 AT & T PHONE SERVICE 38992

LANDLINE PHONE SERVICEPrinted

 555.44

 0.00

 555.44

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27482 001-4020-6390.000  555.44 555.44  0.00

Check Amount  555.44

09/02/2015 10331 BUSINESS FILING & REGISTRATION 38993

NOTICE OF COMPLETIONPrinted

 75.00

 0.00

 75.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27492 253-4425-6745.000  75.00 75.00  0.00

Check Amount  75.00

Attachment A

Page 11 of 385



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 2Page:

 9:24 amTime:

10/05/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

09/02/2015 10318 CORONA RAYMUNDO 38994

P90X FITNESS INSTRUCTORPrinted

 105.00

 0.00

 105.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27474 001-4350-6210.000  105.00 105.00  0.00

Check Amount  105.00

09/02/2015 10179 EMPIRE CLEANING SUPPLY 38995

JANITORIAL SUPPLIESPrinted

 2,070.62

 0.00

 2,070.62

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27486 001-4020-6080.000  1,981.22 1,981.22  0.00

 27487 001-4020-6010.000  89.40 89.40  0.00

Check Amount  2,070.62

09/02/2015 10106 HR DYNAMICS & PERFORMANCE MGNT 38996

CONSULTING SERV  AUG 16-AUG28Printed

 5,440.00

 0.00

 5,440.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27469 001-4011-6720.000  4,930.00 4,930.00  0.00

 27469 001-4930-6391.000  510.00 510.00  0.00

Check Amount  5,440.00

09/02/2015 1338-1 METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION 38997

TAP JULY 2015Printed

 4,217.50

 0.00

 4,217.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27476 251-4760-6550.000  4,217.50 4,217.50  0.00

Check Amount  4,217.50

09/02/2015 10081 NEOFUNDS BY NEOPOST 38998

POSTAGEPrinted

 800.00

 0.00

 800.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27488 001-4020-6385.000  800.00 800.00  0.00

Check Amount  800.00

09/02/2015 9717 PCAM, LLC 38999

SHUTTLE SERVICE JULY 2015Printed

 15,241.86

 0.00

 15,241.86

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27475 251-4740-6780.000  15,241.86 15,241.86  0.00

Check Amount  15,241.86

09/02/2015 10332 SEQUEL CONTRACTORS, INC. 39000

CITYWIDE STREET IMPROVEMENT PRPrinted

 301,081.07

 0.00

 301,081.07

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27491 240-7080-6725.000  178,931.57 178,931.57  0.00

 27491 240-7082-6725.000  75,676.05 75,676.05  0.00

 27491 240-7081-6725.000  46,473.45 46,473.45  0.00

Check Amount  301,081.07

09/02/2015 0172 SMART & FINAL FOOD SERVICE 39001

FOOD DISTRIBUTION AUGUST 2015Printed

 3,278.39

 0.00

 3,278.39

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27470 510-4642-6145.000  1,649.98 1,649.98  0.00

 27471 001-4020-6080.000  21.19 21.19  0.00

Attachment A

Page 12 of 385



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 3Page:

 9:24 amTime:

10/05/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

 27489 510-4642-6145.000  1,607.22 1,607.22  0.00

Check Amount  3,278.39

09/02/2015 0070 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON 39002

ELECTRICITY BILLSPrinted

 5,426.21

 0.00

 5,426.21

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27478 001-4020-6318.000  5,127.29 5,127.29  0.00

 27478 201-4420-6318.000  298.92 298.92  0.00

Check Amount  5,426.21

09/02/2015 0071 THE GAS COMPANY 39003

NATURAL GAS - 4835 CLARA STPrinted

 160.14

 0.00

 160.14

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27479 001-4020-6380.000  32.55 32.55  0.00

 27480 001-4020-6380.000  66.24 66.24  0.00

 27481 001-4020-6380.000  61.35 61.35  0.00

Check Amount  160.14

09/02/2015 9991 TRANSTECH 39004

PLAN CHECK SERVICES JULY 2015Printed

 2,544.93

 0.00

 2,544.93

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27472 001-4212-6720.000  2,544.93 2,544.93  0.00

Check Amount  2,544.93

09/02/2015 10326 URENA LUIS G. 39005

REFUND - YOUTH SOCCERPrinted

 45.00

 0.00

 45.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27494 001-0000-4990.000  45.00 45.00  0.00

Check Amount  45.00

09/09/2015 4550 235- PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION INC. 39006

CYLINDER RENTALPrinted

 42.43

 0.00

 42.43

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27529 201-4425-6150.000  42.43 42.43  0.00

Check Amount  42.43

09/09/2015 7995 AMERICAN CITY PEST CONTROL 39007

PEST CONTROL SERVICES AUGUSTPrinted

 484.00

 0.00

 484.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27512 001-4020-6720.000  101.00 101.00  0.00

 27513 001-4020-6720.000  101.00 101.00  0.00

 27514 001-4020-6720.000  117.00 117.00  0.00

 27515 001-4020-6720.000  101.00 101.00  0.00

 27516 001-4020-6720.000  64.00 64.00  0.00

Check Amount  484.00

09/09/2015 10123 B & V GROUP CORPORATION 39008

REPAIR FLAT TIREPrinted

 45.00

 0.00

 45.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27501 001-4530-6394.000  10.00 10.00  0.00

 27502 001-4530-6394.000  25.00 25.00  0.00

 27526 001-4530-6394.000  10.00 10.00  0.00

Attachment A

Page 13 of 385



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 4Page:

 9:24 amTime:

10/05/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

Check Amount  45.00

09/09/2015 0552 BELL PLUMBING & HEATING 39009

SERVICED A/C UNITPrinted

 321.94

 0.00

 321.94

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27517 001-4020-6950.000  321.94 321.94  0.00

Check Amount  321.94

09/09/2015 5189 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMM 39010

CDBG PROGRAM INCOME - BARRAGONPrinted

 500.00

 0.00

 500.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27498 510-0000-4550.000  500.00 500.00  0.00

Check Amount  500.00

09/09/2015 2289 CONSOLIDATED DISPOSAL 39011

REFUSE ASSESSMENT AUGUSTPrinted

 1,478.13

 0.00

 1,478.13

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27499 730-0000-2007.000  1,478.13 1,478.13  0.00

Check Amount  1,478.13

09/09/2015 0186 COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 39012

ANIMAL CARE & CONTROL JULYPrinted

 3,130.53

 0.00

 3,130.53

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27500 001-4510-6703.000  3,130.53 3,130.53  0.00

Check Amount  3,130.53

09/09/2015 5552 CUDAHY AUTO CENTER 39013

RECYCLED TIRESPrinted

 666.37

 0.00

 666.37

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27523 001-4410-6394.000  438.37 438.37  0.00

 27524 001-4410-6394.000  228.00 228.00  0.00

Check Amount  666.37

09/09/2015 10334 DEMETRIOU DEL GUERCIO SPRINGER 39014

ATTORNEY FEESVoid09/09/2015

 0.00

 0.00

 5,057.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

Check Amount  5,057.50

09/09/2015 9734 EARTH CONSULTANTS 39015

CUDAHY DISASTER MITIGATION PLAPrinted

 1,301.60

 0.00

 1,301.60

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27530 001-4020-6742.000  1,301.60 1,301.60  0.00

Check Amount  1,301.60

09/09/2015 10179 EMPIRE CLEANING SUPPLY 39016

SIGNS FOR RESTROOMSPrinted

 187.48

 0.00

 187.48

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27525 001-4410-6140.000  187.48 187.48  0.00

Check Amount  187.48

09/09/2015 0569 FEDERAL EXPRESS SERVICES 39017

FEDEX EXPRESS SHIPMENTPrinted

 20.50

 0.00

 20.50

Attachment A

Page 14 of 385



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 5Page:

 9:24 amTime:

10/05/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27504 001-4020-6385.000  20.50 20.50  0.00

Check Amount  20.50

09/09/2015 0126-1 GOLDEN STATE WATER COMPANY 39018

WATER SERVICE JUL  21 - AUG 20Printed

 67.83

 0.00

 67.83

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27535 001-4020-6395.000  67.83 67.83  0.00

Check Amount  67.83

09/09/2015 0042 HUNTINGTON PARK RUBBER STAMP 39019

RED INK STAMPPrinted

 51.52

 0.00

 51.52

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27528 001-4001-6080.000  51.52 51.52  0.00

Check Amount  51.52

09/09/2015 9723 IT SYSTEMHOUSE, INC. 39020

IT OUTSOURCING SERV AUGUST2015Printed

 3,200.00

 0.00

 3,200.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27522 001-4020-6720.000  3,200.00 3,200.00  0.00

Check Amount  3,200.00

09/09/2015 4553 J. V. PRINTING 39021

BUSINESS CARDS MICHAEL ALLENPrinted

 31.61

 0.00

 31.61

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27510 001-4020-6970.000  31.61 31.61  0.00

Check Amount  31.61

09/09/2015 8057 KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS 39022

MONTHLY SERV DIGITAL JULYPrinted

 351.33

 0.00

 351.33

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27503 001-4020-6014.000  351.33 351.33  0.00

Check Amount  351.33

09/09/2015 9668 KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS 39023

KONICA MINOLTA COPIER LEASEPrinted

 236.38

 0.00

 236.38

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27511 001-4020-6014.000  236.38 236.38  0.00

Check Amount  236.38

09/09/2015 0197 LA COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 39024

LAW ENFORCEMENT MAY 2015Printed

 18,953.83

 0.00

 18,953.83

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27540 270-4501-6763.000  18,953.83 18,953.83  0.00

Check Amount  18,953.83

09/09/2015 9994 LA PRINCESA BAKERY & CAFE 39025

SENIOR'S EVENT -BIRTHDAY CAKEPrinted

 100.00

 0.00

 100.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27536 001-4350-6580.000  50.00 50.00  0.00

 27537 001-4350-6580.000  50.00 50.00  0.00

Attachment A

Page 15 of 385



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 6Page:

 9:24 amTime:

10/05/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

Check Amount  100.00

09/09/2015 1978 OFFICE DEPOT BUSINESS 39026

OFFICE SUPPLIESPrinted

 520.14

 0.00

 520.14

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27505 001-4020-6080.000  94.07 94.07  0.00

 27506 001-4018-6080.000  122.00 122.00  0.00

 27506 001-4151-6080.000  122.01 122.01  0.00

 27507 001-4020-6014.000  71.83 71.83  0.00

 27507 001-4020-6080.000  42.47 42.47  0.00

 27508 001-4020-6080.000  62.77 62.77  0.00

 27509 001-4020-6080.000  4.99 4.99  0.00

Check Amount  520.14

09/09/2015 10218 PACIFICA SERVICES, INC. 39027

LABOR COMPLIANCE SERVICES LUGOPrinted

 1,140.00

 0.00

 1,140.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27496 510-7091-6725.000  570.00 570.00  0.00

 27497 510-7092-6725.000  570.00 570.00  0.00

Check Amount  1,140.00

09/09/2015 5251 SHEPPARD MULLIN RICHTER & 39028

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES JULY2015Printed

 1,865.20

 0.00

 1,865.20

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27495 001-4005-6755.000  1,865.20 1,865.20  0.00

Check Amount  1,865.20

09/09/2015 0069-2 SIEMENS INDUSTRY, INC. 39029

STREET LIGHT MAINT JULYPrinted

 2,213.61

 0.00

 2,213.61

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27532 201-4420-6771.000  674.61 674.61  0.00

 27533 201-4420-6771.000  755.75 755.75  0.00

 27534 350-4430-6775.000  783.25 783.25  0.00

Check Amount  2,213.61

09/09/2015 0070 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON 39030

ELECTRICITY BILLSPrinted

 101.96

 0.00

 101.96

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27531 201-4420-6318.000  35.87 35.87  0.00

 27531 350-4430-6318.000  66.09 66.09  0.00

Check Amount  101.96

09/09/2015 9626 THE BANCORP BANK 39031

FORD FUSION HYBRID 2 VEHPrinted

 1,154.24

 0.00

 1,154.24

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27527 257-4780-6393.000  1,154.24 1,154.24  0.00

Check Amount  1,154.24

09/09/2015 10324 VIRTUAL GRAFFITI 39032

UNITRENDS RECOVERYPrinted

 14,033.93

 0.00

 14,033.93

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27521 001-4020-6910.000  14,033.93 14,033.93  0.00

Attachment A

Page 16 of 385



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 7Page:

 9:24 amTime:

10/05/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

Check Amount  14,033.93

09/09/2015 5631 WELLS LOCK & KEY 39033

KEY DUPLICATESPrinted

 124.04

 0.00

 124.04

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27518 001-4020-6370.000  8.75 8.75  0.00

 27519 001-4020-6370.000  45.00 45.00  0.00

 27520 001-4020-6370.000  70.29 70.29  0.00

Check Amount  124.04

09/09/2015 5573 BEN'S AIRLESS 39034

PARTS FOR STREET STRIPINGPrinted

 143.88

 0.00

 143.88

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27542 201-4425-6770.000  143.88 143.88  0.00

Check Amount  143.88

09/09/2015 4546 CENTRAL BASIN MUNICIPAL WATER 39035

RECYCLED WAER JUNE 2015Printed

 532.47

 0.00

 532.47

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27543 001-4020-6395.000  532.47 532.47  0.00

Check Amount  532.47

09/09/2015 1206-1 COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 39036

CATCH BASIN CLEANOUT 2014Printed

 408.18

 0.00

 408.18

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27541 001-4216-6720.000  408.18 408.18  0.00

Check Amount  408.18

09/09/2015 10334 DEMETRIOU DEL GUERCIO SPRINGER 39037

ATTORNEY FEESPrinted

 4,037.50

 0.00

 4,037.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27544 610-4930-6755.000  1,020.00 1,020.00  0.00

 27545 610-4930-6755.000  3,017.50 3,017.50  0.00

Check Amount  4,037.50

09/15/2015 10106 HR DYNAMICS & PERFORMANCE MGNT 39038

HR CONSULTING AUG 16-SEPT 13Printed

 4,396.15

 0.00

 4,396.15

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27549 001-4015-6720.000  4,396.15 4,396.15  0.00

Check Amount  4,396.15

09/15/2015 9425 JK CONSTRUCTION 39039

8305 ATLANTIC AVE  #9 -WALSHPrinted

 3,487.50

 0.00

 3,487.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27548 510-4620-6767.000  3,487.50 3,487.50  0.00

Check Amount  3,487.50

09/15/2015 9991 TRANSTECH 39040

LUGO PARK SOCCER  PROJ AUGPrinted

 20,415.00

 0.00

 20,415.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27546 510-7091-6725.000  2,665.00 2,665.00  0.00

 27547 510-7092-6725.000  17,750.00 17,750.00  0.00

Attachment A

Page 17 of 385



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 8Page:

 9:24 amTime:

10/05/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

Check Amount  20,415.00

09/23/2015 9965 ALLEN MICHAEL 39041

VEHICLE RENTALPrinted

 89.67

 0.00

 89.67

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27556 001-4215-6720.000  89.67 89.67  0.00

Check Amount  89.67

09/23/2015 1744 AREA E DISASTER MANAGEMENT BRD 39042

MEMBERSHIP FY 2015-2016Printed

 1,207.00

 0.00

 1,207.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27571 001-4020-6312.000  1,207.00 1,207.00  0.00

Check Amount  1,207.00

09/23/2015 9966 AT & T LONG DISTANCE SERVICE 39043

LONG DISTANCE PHONE SERVICEPrinted

 47.19

 0.00

 47.19

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27600 001-4020-6390.000  47.19 47.19  0.00

Check Amount  47.19

09/23/2015 0057-2 AT & T PHONE SERVICE 39044

LANDLINE PHONE SERVICEPrinted

 2,250.97

 0.00

 2,250.97

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27551 001-4020-6390.000  2,250.97 2,250.97  0.00

Check Amount  2,250.97

09/23/2015 5573 BEN'S AIRLESS 39045

REPAIR STRIPING MACHINEPrinted

 373.55

 0.00

 373.55

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27608 201-4425-6770.000  373.55 373.55  0.00

Check Amount  373.55

09/23/2015 7019 BUSINESS CARD 39046

CREDIT CARD AUGUST 2015  GCPrinted

 3,826.27

 0.00

 3,826.27

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27565 001-4216-6080.000  113.00 113.00  0.00

 27565 001-4410-6389.000  59.08 59.08  0.00

 27565 001-4020-6515.000  98.15 98.15  0.00

 27565 001-4020-6910.000  535.08 535.08  0.00

 27565 001-4020-6375.000  126.45 126.45  0.00

 27565 510-4230-6250.000  190.75 190.75  0.00

 27565 001-4020-6396.000  455.00 455.00  0.00

 27565 001-4020-6080.000  303.66 303.66  0.00

 27565 001-4001-6391.000  952.00 952.00  0.00

 27566 201-4425-6770.000  993.10 993.10  0.00

Check Amount  3,826.27

09/23/2015 0136 CITY OF SOUTH GATE 39047

SIGNAL MAINTENANCE SEPT 2015Printed

 75.00

 0.00

 75.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27578 201-4420-6771.000  75.00 75.00  0.00

Check Amount  75.00

Attachment A

Page 18 of 385



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 9Page:

 9:24 amTime:

10/05/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

09/23/2015 5189 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMM 39048

CDBG PROGRAM INCOME -Printed

 500.00

 0.00

 500.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27604 510-0000-4550.000  500.00 500.00  0.00

Check Amount  500.00

09/23/2015 5552 CUDAHY AUTO CENTER 39049

REPLACE FOUR TIRES VEH #15Printed

 775.37

 0.00

 775.37

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27581 001-4410-6394.000  50.13 50.13  0.00

 27582 001-4410-6394.000  725.24 725.24  0.00

Check Amount  775.37

09/23/2015 10005 DAPEER, ROSENBLIT & LITVAK 39050

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AUGUSTPrinted

 5,277.96

 0.00

 5,277.96

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27601 510-4230-6755.000  5,147.96 5,147.96  0.00

 27602 510-4230-6755.000  130.00 130.00  0.00

Check Amount  5,277.96

09/23/2015 8076 DAVE BANG ASSOC., INC 39051

PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENTPrinted

 3,099.68

 0.00

 3,099.68

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27613 280-7093-6389.000  2,418.12 2,418.12  0.00

 27614 280-7093-6389.000  681.56 681.56  0.00

Check Amount  3,099.68

09/23/2015 2304 DAVE'S TROPHIES 39052

RECOGNITION PLAQUE FORPrinted

 45.99

 0.00

 45.99

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27586 001-4001-6085.000  45.99 45.99  0.00

Check Amount  45.99

09/23/2015 9998 DOWNEY SIGN & LIGHTING 39053

REPLACE LIGHT POLE CONTACTORPrinted

 587.10

 0.00

 587.10

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27572 001-4410-6389.000  587.10 587.10  0.00

Check Amount  587.10

09/23/2015 10082 DUNN EDWARDS 39054

RED PAINT FOR STREET CURBSPrinted

 871.85

 0.00

 871.85

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27576 201-4425-6150.000  871.85 871.85  0.00

Check Amount  871.85

09/23/2015 10179 EMPIRE CLEANING SUPPLY 39055

CUSTODIAL SUPPLIESPrinted

 633.18

 0.00

 633.18

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27575 001-4020-6080.000  633.18 633.18  0.00

Check Amount  633.18

Attachment A

Page 19 of 385



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 10Page:

 9:24 amTime:

10/05/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

09/23/2015 6086 EWING 39056

CONCRETE METER BOXES & PIPESPrinted

 786.78

 0.00

 786.78

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27584 001-4410-6389.000  195.48 195.48  0.00

 27585 001-4410-6389.000  25.43 25.43  0.00

 27611 001-4410-6389.000  565.87 565.87  0.00

Check Amount  786.78

09/23/2015 6087 FIRST AMERICAN DATA TREE 39057

SERVICE RENDERED AUGUST 2015Printed

 99.00

 0.00

 99.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27583 001-4215-6080.000  99.00 99.00  0.00

Check Amount  99.00

09/23/2015 0126-1 GOLDEN STATE WATER COMPANY 39058

WATER SERVICE JUL 23 - AUG 24Printed

 3,345.47

 0.00

 3,345.47

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27591 001-4020-6395.000  3,345.47 3,345.47  0.00

Check Amount  3,345.47

09/23/2015 10053 HAULAWAY STORAGE CONTAINERS 39059

21FT STORAGE CONTAINER SEPTPrinted

 74.20

 0.00

 74.20

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27577 001-4020-6970.000  74.20 74.20  0.00

Check Amount  74.20

09/23/2015 2724 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 39060

HARDWARE SUPPLIESPrinted

 1,224.15

 0.00

 1,224.15

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27616 201-4425-6770.000  19.59 19.59  0.00

 27616 001-4410-6770.000  9.10 9.10  0.00

 27616 001-4020-6950.000  20.69 20.69  0.00

 27616 001-4410-6140.000  213.18 213.18  0.00

 27616 001-4020-6370.000  208.96 208.96  0.00

 27616 001-4410-6389.000  553.51 553.51  0.00

 27616 201-4425-6150.000  199.12 199.12  0.00

Check Amount  1,224.15

09/23/2015 2378 ITL, INC. 39061

FUELPrinted

 2,098.56

 0.00

 2,098.56

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27595 001-4530-6040.000  169.29 169.29  0.00

 27595 201-4425-6040.000  99.62 99.62  0.00

 27595 001-4410-6040.000  96.65 96.65  0.00

 27596 001-4530-6040.000  150.23 150.23  0.00

 27596 201-4425-6040.000  43.98 43.98  0.00

 27596 001-4410-6040.000  155.38 155.38  0.00

 27597 001-4530-6040.000  256.08 256.08  0.00

 27597 201-4425-6040.000  103.74 103.74  0.00

 27597 001-4410-6040.000  396.19 396.19  0.00

 27598 001-4530-6040.000  223.22 223.22  0.00

 27598 201-4425-6040.000  217.90 217.90  0.00

 27598 001-4410-6040.000  186.28 186.28  0.00

Attachment A

Page 20 of 385



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 11Page:

 9:24 amTime:

10/05/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

Check Amount  2,098.56

09/23/2015 1824 KNOTT'S BERRY FARM 39062

COMMUNITY EXCURSION OCT 24THPrinted

 1,574.65

 0.00

 1,574.65

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27607 252-4770-6510.000  1,574.65 1,574.65  0.00

Check Amount  1,574.65

09/23/2015 8057 KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS 39063

MONTHLY SERV DIGITAL AUGUSTPrinted

 207.71

 0.00

 207.71

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27574 001-4020-6014.000  207.71 207.71  0.00

Check Amount  207.71

09/23/2015 5779 LA COUNTY FAIR 39064

LA COUNTY FAIR EXCURSIONPrinted

 120.00

 0.00

 120.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27553 001-4350-6510.000  120.00 120.00  0.00

Check Amount  120.00

09/23/2015 0092-7 LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES 39065

ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP DUESPrinted

 950.25

 0.00

 950.25

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27603 001-4001-6312.000  950.25 950.25  0.00

Check Amount  950.25

09/23/2015 5411 LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE 39066

LABOR NEGOTIONS AUGUST2015Printed

 5,577.50

 0.00

 5,577.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27617 001-4015-6720.000  735.00 735.00  0.00

 27618 001-4015-6720.000  4,842.50 4,842.50  0.00

Check Amount  5,577.50

09/23/2015 8247 NETWORK INNOVATION ASSOCIATES 39067

SATELLITE NETWORK OCTOBERPrinted

 278.00

 0.00

 278.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27550 001-4020-6742.000  278.00 278.00  0.00

Check Amount  278.00

09/23/2015 1978 OFFICE DEPOT BUSINESS 39068

OFFICE SUPPLIESPrinted

 131.84

 0.00

 131.84

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27554 001-4020-6080.000  22.57 22.57  0.00

 27554 001-4020-6014.000  8.71 8.71  0.00

 27555 001-4020-6080.000  2.16 2.16  0.00

 27567 001-4020-6080.000  21.79 21.79  0.00

 27568 001-4020-6080.000  6.32 6.32  0.00

 27569 001-4020-6080.000  70.29 70.29  0.00

Check Amount  131.84

09/23/2015 1978-1 OFFICE DEPOT CREDIT PLAN 39069

OFFICE SUPPLIESPrinted

 246.50

 0.00

 246.50

Attachment A

Page 21 of 385



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 12Page:

 9:24 amTime:

10/05/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27570 001-4020-6080.000  246.50 246.50  0.00

Check Amount  246.50

09/23/2015 9717 PCAM, LLC 39070

SHUTTLE SERVICE AUGUST 2015Printed

 14,556.24

 0.00

 14,556.24

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27606 251-4740-6780.000  14,556.24 14,556.24  0.00

Check Amount  14,556.24

09/23/2015 10321 PRECISION CONCRETE CUTTING 39071

CUT CONCRETE @ CUDAHY PARKPrinted

 1,895.48

 0.00

 1,895.48

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27615 252-7094-6725.000  1,895.48 1,895.48  0.00

Check Amount  1,895.48

09/23/2015 5537 PSI  PRINTING SYSTEM INC. 39072

 AP LASER CHECKS  39181-40280Printed

 478.44

 0.00

 478.44

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27587 001-4020-6080.000  176.78 176.78  0.00

 27588 001-4020-6080.000  301.66 301.66  0.00

Check Amount  478.44

09/23/2015 2802 SAM'S CLUB 39073

SNACK FOR CYF & CITY EVENTSPrinted

 127.82

 0.00

 127.82

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27573 001-4020-6080.000  127.82 127.82  0.00

Check Amount  127.82

09/23/2015 8274 SANTOYO VICTOR 39074

UMPIRE AUGUST 2015Printed

 468.00

 0.00

 468.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27593 001-4350-6250.000  468.00 468.00  0.00

Check Amount  468.00

09/23/2015 0172 SMART & FINAL FOOD SERVICE 39075

KITCHEN SUPPLIESPrinted

 37.65

 0.00

 37.65

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27552 001-4020-6080.000  37.65 37.65  0.00

Check Amount  37.65

09/23/2015 0070 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON 39076

ELECTRICITY BILLSPrinted

 6,911.05

 0.00

 6,911.05

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27599 350-4430-6318.000  6,601.65 6,601.65  0.00

 27599 201-4420-6318.000  92.28 92.28  0.00

 27599 001-4020-6318.000  217.12 217.12  0.00

Check Amount  6,911.05

09/23/2015 6096-1 SUPPLY WORKS 39077

CUSTODIAL SUPPLIESPrinted

 1,405.96

 0.00

 1,405.96

Attachment A

Page 22 of 385



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 13Page:

 9:24 amTime:

10/05/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27610 001-4020-6080.000  1,405.96 1,405.96  0.00

Check Amount  1,405.96

09/23/2015 9971 THE CAVANAUGH LAW GROUP, APLC 39078

LEGAL SERVICES JULY 2015Printed

 819.00

 0.00

 819.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27590 001-4930-6391.000  819.00 819.00  0.00

Check Amount  819.00

09/23/2015 7015 THE UPS STORE #5461 39079

LIVE SCAN CITY VOLUNTEERS,Printed

 592.00

 0.00

 592.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27605 001-4015-6320.000  592.00 592.00  0.00

Check Amount  592.00

09/23/2015 10026 TRIMMING LAND COMPANY, INC. 39080

EMERGENCY TREE REMOVAL @Printed

 380.00

 0.00

 380.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27564 201-4425-6785.000  380.00 380.00  0.00

Check Amount  380.00

09/23/2015 2859 UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT-SC 39081

DIG ALERT TICKETSPrinted

 34.50

 0.00

 34.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27579 201-4425-6735.000  34.50 34.50  0.00

Check Amount  34.50

09/23/2015 8292 URBAN FUTURES, INC. 39082

REAL ESTATE ADVISORYPrinted

 5,841.25

 0.00

 5,841.25

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27557 610-4930-6720.000  112.50 112.50  0.00

 27558 610-4930-6720.000  450.00 450.00  0.00

 27559 610-4930-6720.000  2,977.50 2,977.50  0.00

 27560 610-4930-6720.000  4,447.50 4,447.50  0.00

 27561 610-4930-6720.000  1,987.50 1,987.50  0.00

 27562 610-4930-6720.000  866.25 866.25  0.00

 27563 610-4930-6720.000 -5,000.00-5,000.00  0.00

Check Amount  5,841.25

09/23/2015 9707 VELOZ ALBERTO 39083

UMPIRE AUGUST 2015Printed

 394.00

 0.00

 394.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27592 001-4350-6250.000  394.00 394.00  0.00

Check Amount  394.00

09/23/2015 8316 VELOZ RAMIRO 39084

UMPIRE AUGUST 2015Printed

 374.00

 0.00

 374.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27594 001-4350-6250.000  374.00 374.00  0.00

Check Amount  374.00

Attachment A

Page 23 of 385



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 14Page:

 9:24 amTime:

10/05/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

09/23/2015 10324 VIRTUAL GRAFFITI 39085

ESET FILE SECURITY MICROSOFTPrinted

 535.00

 0.00

 535.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27612 001-4020-6910.000  535.00 535.00  0.00

Check Amount  535.00

09/23/2015 0643 ZUMAR INDUSTRIES. INC. 39086

UNISTRUT POLE FOR STREET SIGNSPrinted

 96.30

 0.00

 96.30

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27609 201-4425-6387.000  96.30 96.30  0.00

Check Amount  96.30

09/23/2015 9738 ARENT FOX LLP 39087

LEGAL SERVICES NOVEMBER 2014Printed

 78.00

 0.00

 78.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27620 001-4930-6755.000  78.00 78.00  0.00

Check Amount  78.00

09/23/2015 8292 URBAN FUTURES, INC. 39088

FINANCIAL POLICY AND REPORTINGPrinted

 370.00

 0.00

 370.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27619 001-4020-6720.000  370.00 370.00  0.00

Check Amount  370.00

09/30/2015 10106 HR DYNAMICS & PERFORMANCE MGNT 39089

CONSULTING AUG 31 - SEPT 24Printed

 9,322.45

 0.00

 9,322.45

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27621 001-4015-6720.000  3,967.45 3,967.45  0.00

 27622 001-4011-6720.000  2,890.00 2,890.00  0.00

 27622 001-4930-6391.000  2,465.00 2,465.00  0.00

Check Amount  9,322.45

Total Checks: Bank Total(excluding void checks): 104  521,257.66

Grand Total(excluding void checks):Total Checks:  104  521,257.66

Attachment A

Page 24 of 385



ATTACHMENT B 
 
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 
Payroll Warrants including payroll taxes and insurance premiums: 

 
 

September 3, 2015 September 17, 2015
Issued Warrants Number 20103 - 20165 20166 - 20216
Voided Warrants

7,962.25$                9,121.70$                
Direct Deposits (a) 52,163.26                50,688.39                
CalPERS Direct Deposit (b) 29,429.90                
CalPERS Direct Deposit (c) 12,804.95                
Payroll taxes (d) 11,675.99                11,160.49                

Total Amount 114,036.35$             70,970.58$              

Note (a) - Employess / Council Members / Commissioners
Note (b) - Payments for CalPERS medical insurance
Note (c) - Payments for CalPERS retirement contributions
Note (d) - Federal and State payroll taxes  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 25 of 385



Attachment C

Cash and Investment Report by Fund September 2015

July 1, 2015 Receipts Disbursements September 30, 2015 Receipts Disbursements
YTD YTD September 2015 September 2015

001 General Fund 4,247,904.27     1,042,948.06    2,561,465.57    2,729,386.76         277,503.64        225,393.34        
040 Drug Assets Seizure Fund 28,512.43          1,651.38 1,236.65           28,927.16             
201 State Gas Tax 1,131,489.38     147,898.94 156,495.08       1,122,893.24         81,497.14          33,670.06          
235 Other Grants -                     0.00 14,819.86         (14,819.86)            79.00                
240 Prop 1 B - Local Street Improv. 426,851.03        254.23 314,068.57       113,036.69            301,081.07        
251 Prop C 303,062.72        98,573.73 146,441.29       255,195.16            36,592.02          36,505.22          
252 Prop A 528,808.59        109,744.50 21,670.12         616,882.97            40,903.44          7,212.34           
253 Measure R 674,025.63        43,086.75 95,410.94         621,701.44            6,427.31           
255 TDA 21,297.00          0.00 21,297.00         -                        
257 AQMD 39,132.03          7,881.75 3,463.72           43,550.06             7,859.75            1,154.24           
260 Used Oil 13,582.26          8.09 -                    13,590.35             
261 California Beverage Container 6,723.30            4.00 -                    6,727.30               
265 Recycling Grant 14,223.41          8.47 -                    14,231.88             
270 C.O.P.S 183,838.19        112.88 83,315.07         100,636.00            18,953.83          
280 County Park Bond (148,039.19)       1,064.85 15,885.38         (162,859.72)          3,099.68           
300 CAL Home 73,368.33          5,044.01 400.00              78,012.34             
350 Street Lighting Fund 54,101.62          2,167.87 32,103.24         24,166.25             7,450.99           
510 CDBG (123,218.86)       194,716.56 115,921.08       (44,423.38)            50,174.00          44,799.16          
515 Federal STPL 357,690.30        213.02 -                    357,903.32            
610 Successor Agency 2,376,586.79     10,057.50 2,071,717.23    314,927.06            10,057.50          2,006,333.25     
710 Youth Foundation 29,230.04          11,555.22 2,839.56           37,945.70             152.00               
720 Senior's Account 132.80               0.00 -                    132.80                  
730 Refuse Assessment -                     6,034.07 6,034.07           -                        1,478.13           

10,239,302.07   1,683,025.88    5,664,584.43    6,257,743.52         504,739.49        2,693,637.62     

LAIF- CITY 7,170,945.82     4,672.93 1,900,000.00    5,275,618.75         600,000.00        
Wells Fargo 3,068,356.31     1,678,352.95 3,764,584.43 982,124.83            504,739.49 2,093,637.62
TOTAL 10,239,302.13   1,683,025.88    5,664,584.43    6,257,743.58 504,739.49        2,693,637.62     

Total cash disbursements per September Demand and Payroll Reports
AP disbursements 521,257.66        
Payroll - September 3, 2015 114,036.35        
Payroll - September 17, 2015 70,970.58          
Add:  Total Bank charges in September 2015 976.03              
Add:  Successor Agency - ROPS distributions 1,986,397.00     
Total Cash Disbursements per September Cash & Investment Report 2,693,637.62     

CITY OF CUDAHY

Page 26 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/9/2015  Page 1 of 2 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  November 9, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Steven Dobrenen, Finance Director 

Subject: Consideration to Approve the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) for the  
  Month of September 2015 

 
RECOMMENDATION   
 
The City Council is requested to approve the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Report for 
the month of September 2015 in the amount of $5,275,618.75. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. In 1955, the Pooled Money Investment Account (PMIA) started. LAIF became part of the 

PMIA. The oversight is provided by the Pooled Money Investment Board (PMIB) and an 
in-house Investment Committee. The PMIB members consist of the State Treasurer, 
Director of Finance, and State Controller.  

 
2. In 1977, LAIF was created as a voluntary program by Section 16429.1 et seq. of the 

California Government Code.  The program was intended to be used as an investment 
alternative for California's local governments and special districts.  The LAIF continues 
today under State Treasurer John Chiang's administration.  

 
3. On September 1, 2015, the balance in LAIF was $5,875,618.75 (Attachment A). 
 
4. On September 30, 2015, the balance in LAIF was $5,275,618.75 (Attachment A). 
 
 
 

 

Item Number 
10B 

Page 27 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/9/2015  Page 2 of 2 
    

ANALYSIS 
 
The voluntary program offers local agencies the opportunity to participate in a major 
portfolio, which invests hundreds of millions of dollars, using the investment expertise of the 
State Treasurer’s Office investment staff at no additional cost to the taxpayer. 
 
All securities are purchased under the authority of Government Code Section 16430 and  
16480.4. The State Treasurer's Office takes delivery of all securities purchased on a delivery 
versus payment basis using a third party custodian.   
 
Cudahy Municipal Code Section 3.04.080 indicates, "Except as otherwise provided, no 
warrant shall be drawn or evidence of indebtedness issued unless there shall be at the time 
sufficient money in the treasury legally applicable to the payment of the same." 
 
The report in Attachment A, in conjunction with the Demands and Payroll including the 
Investment Report by Fund for the month of September 2015, demonstrates the sufficiency 
of funds available to pay demands and payroll as required by Cudahy Municipal Code Section 
3.04.080.  
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Once the City Council approves the September 2015 LAIF, the LAIF ending balance may be 
relied upon when determining whether or not there are sufficient funds available to pay 
demands and payroll as required by Cudahy Municipal Code Section 3.04.080.  
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT 
 
A. Local Agency Investment Fund Balance 

 
 
 
 

Page 28 of 385



 
 

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND 
  

General Account - City #98-19-225 
 
 
 
 
Beginning Balance as of: September 01, 2015 $5,875,618.75 
 
  
Ending Balance as of  September 30, 2015   $5,275,618.75 

=========== 
 

Attachment A

Page 29 of 385



 
 

Blank Page 

Page 30 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/9/15  Page 1 of 1 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  November 9, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By: Laura Valdivia, Interim City Clerk 

Subject: Consideration to Review and Approve the Draft Minutes of September 28, 
2015, for the Regular Meeting of the City Council and the Joint Meeting of the 
City of Cudahy as Successor Agency to the Cudahy Development Commission 
(Agency) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to review and approve the City Council / Agency draft minutes 
for September 28, 2015. 
  
 
ATTACHMENT 
 
A. Draft Minutes – September 28, 2015 

 

Item Number 

10C 

Page 31 of 385



MINUTES 
 

CUDAHY CITY COUNCIL REGUAR MEETING and  
CITY OF CUDAHY AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  

CUDAHY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION JOINT MEETING 
 

SEPTEMBER 28, 2015 6:30 P.M. 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor / Chair Markovich at 6:30 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
The following Council Members were in attendance: 
 
Council / Agency Member Guerrero (arrived at 6:35 p.m.) 
Council / Agency Member Sanchez 
Vice Mayor / Vice Chair Hernandez 
Mayor / Chair Markovich 
 
Absent: 
Council / Agency Member Garcia 
 
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Markovich. 
 
4. PRESENTATION 
 
A. Proclamation recognizing Freedom from Workplace Bullies Week October 18-24, 2015 

 
Mayor Markovich presented the proclamation to Jeff Rada, representative from California 
Workplace Advocates. 
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Mayor Markovich announced that public comment is now open on matters relating only to items 
on the agenda and the limit on each speaker is three (3) minutes. 
 
Adelina Garcia spoke against parking ticket fees and the need for sports programs. 
 
Pamela Munguia spoke against increasing fees and the City Manager raise. 
 
Carmen Hernandez spoke on non-agenda items. 
 
Javier Flores spoke in opposition to the increase in parking ticket fees and cutting children’s 
sports programs. 

Attachment A

Page 32 of 385



Cudahy City Council Regular Meeting Minutes  September 28, 2015 
 

Page 2 of 12 
 

 
Gloria Sandoval spoke against parking ticket fees. 
 
Sandra Orozco commented on Council accountability to the residents. 
 
Felix Reyes spoke against closing community programs, increasing rates and lack of parking. 
 
Patricia Covarrubias spoke in opposition to fee increases. 
 
Marcos Covarrubias spoke against fee increases and stated he is resigning from the Park & 
Recreation Commission. 
 
Rosario Pacheco stated she is against the fee increase and closing the ballet classes. 
 
Resident spoke against the parking tickets he’s receiving for parking in front of his house and 
the elimination of sports programs. 
 
Prissilla Carrillo stated she is upset about the elimination of the ballet classes for her daughter. 
 
With no one else wishing to speak, Mayor / Chair Markovich closed Public Comment. 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Mayor Markovich, and seconded by Council Member Sanchez, to 
recess the regular meeting to the following closed session items: 
 
A. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) and 54956.9(e)(1) – Conference with 

Legal Counsel to Discuss a Matter Involving Potential Litigation and/or Significant Exposure 
to Litigation – [Two (2) Matters] - This Matter will be heard jointly by the Cudahy City Council 
and the Cudahy City Council in its capacity as Successor Agency to the Cudahy 
Redevelopment Agency.  

F. Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6(a) – Conference with Labor 
Negotiator Regarding Represented Employees City’s Designated Representative(s) for 
Negotiations: Jose Pulido, City Manager, Rhonda Strout-Garcia, Human Resources 
Consultant, Oliver Yee, Special Counsel Employee Organization: Cudahy Miscellaneous 
Employees Association (CMEA)  
 

The motion carried (3-1-1-0) by the following vote:  
 
AYES:   Sanchez, Hernandez and Markovich 
NOES:  Guerrero 
ABSENT: Garcia  
ABSTAIN:  None.  
 
RECESS 
  
The meeting was recessed to Closed Session in Bedwell Hall at 7:18 p.m. with Council 
Members Garcia and Guerrero absent. 
 
  

Attachment A

Page 33 of 385



Cudahy City Council Regular Meeting Minutes  September 28, 2015 
 

Page 3 of 12 
 

RECONVENE 
 
The meeting was reconvened in Open Session at 8:32 p.m. with all Council Members present 
except Council Member Garcia. 
 
CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENT 
 
City Attorney Olivarez reported that with regard to Item 14A, direction was given but no final 
action was taken; and with regard to Item 14F, direction was given but no final action was taken. 
 
6. CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS / REQUESTS FOR AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Council Member Guerrero commented on 1) the lack of transparency in the budget; 2) disregard 
for public records requests; 3) increasing fees; 4) the firing of park and recreation staff; 5) 
employee contract extension; 6) the City Manager compensation; and 7) unachievable revenue 
estimates. 
 
Council Member Sanchez announced that 1) the monthly bike ride went well on September 
19th; 2) thirty people participated in the first neighborhood watch meeting and the budget now 
includes a Sheriff Deputy dedicated to Cudahy; 3) there will be a health and music festival at 10 
a.m. next Saturday; 4) the Civil Grand Jury is looking for volunteers; 5) the budget includes an 
appropriations for the Lugo Park renovation, the General Plan Update, and a Successor Agency 
loan, and the City is awaiting approval of a $2.1 million grant award from the Board of 
Supervisors; and 6) October 7th is National Walk to School day and he encouraged city staff to 
participate and reach out to the community. 
 
Vice Mayor Hernandez stated that 1) Cudahy is a business friendly city and businesses are 
coming in; 2) CDBG funding update and Council is working towards a resolution; 3) provided 
direction to city staff to collect cell phone numbers and email addresses of meeting participants 
so the City can provide them with updates and information; 4) encouraged the public to contact 
Southern California Edison to encourage them to put an online form to report problems on their 
website; and 5) stated he is working closely with Metro and Gateway Cities on transportation 
issues. 
 
Mayor Markovich reported that 1) he participated in a mayor’s meeting with Senator Lara to 
discuss the Los Angeles River infrastructure and tax incentives for businesses; and 2) directed 
staff to send a letter of support for SB 628 and AB 313 for the expansion of the river project to 
Cudahy and asked that this be a future agenda item.   
 
7. CITY MANAGER REPORT  
 
City Manager Jose Pulido reported that 1) the neighborhood cleanup day was very successful 
and he is looking forward to continuing the program; 2) in response to the public’s request for 
better customer service the City is implementing a three phase customer service training 
program which includes National Customer Service week; and 3) there is now a Public Safety 
section in the City Manager report and he’s received feedback from outside the City that 
Cudahy’s City Manager report is one of the most comprehensive and transparent out there and 
other Cities will be following suit.  
 
  

Attachment A

Page 34 of 385



Cudahy City Council Regular Meeting Minutes  September 28, 2015 
 

Page 4 of 12 
 

8. WAIVER OF FULL READING OF RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 
  
Motion:  It was moved by Vice Mayor Hernandez, and seconded by Council Member Sanchez, 
to waive full text reading of all Resolutions and Ordinances by single motion.  The motion 
carried (3-0-1-1) by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   Sanchez, Hernandez and Markovich 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Garcia  
ABSTAIN:  Guerrero  
 
9. CONSENT CALENDAR (Items A through E) 
 
Council /Agency Member Guerrero pulled Item No. 9A for separate discussion. 
 
A. AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

 
i. Consideration of Successor Agency to Adopt a  Resolution Approving Emergency 

Loan Agreements for Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) No. 15-16B 
for Olivarez Madruga, LLP  

 
Staff report presented by Finance Director Steven Dobrenen. 

 
Staff responded to questions regarding the Oversight Board quorum and discussion ensued 
regarding internal controls deficiency and the RDA audit. 

 
Motion:  It was moved by Chair Markovich, and seconded by Agency Member Sanchez, to 
1) Adopt Resolution No. SA-7 approving Successor Agency Loan Agreement No. 15-16B:4; 
2) Authorize the Executive Director to sign an emergency loan in the amount not to exceed 
$20,000 for Olivarez Madruga, LLP (Olivarez Madruga) for legal services concerning the 
preparation of a Long-Range Property Management Plan for the Successor Agency 
(LRPMP); 3) Adopt Resolution No. SA-8 approving Successor Agency Loan Agreement No. 
15-16B:5; and 4) Authorize the Executive Director to sign an emergency loan in the amount 
not to exceed $82,000 for Olivarez Madruga, LLP (Olivarez Madruga) for legal services 
relating to the filing and defending of a Writ of Mandate filed against the California 
Department of Finance.  The motion carried (4-0-1-0) by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Guerrero, Sanchez, Hernandez and Markovich 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Garcia  
ABSTAIN:  None 
 

ii. Consideration of Successor Agency to Adopt a Resolution Approving an Emergency 
Loan Agreement for Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) 15-16B for 
Demetriou Del Guercio Springer and Francis LLP  

 
Staff report presented by Finance Director Steven Dobrenen. 

 
  

Attachment A

Page 35 of 385



Cudahy City Council Regular Meeting Minutes  September 28, 2015 
 

Page 5 of 12 
 

Motion:  It was moved by Chair Markovich, and seconded by Agency Member Sanchez, to 
1) Adopt Resolution No. SA-9 approving Successor Agency Loan Agreement No. 15-16B:6; 
and 2) Authorize the Executive Director to sign an emergency loan in the amount not to 
exceed $46,500 for Demetriou Del Guercio Springer and Francis LLP (DDSF) for special 
legal services concerning environmental review and analysis of the real properties included 
in the Long Range Property Management Plan (LRPMP).  The motion carried (4-0-1-0) by 
the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Guerrero, Sanchez, Hernandez and Markovich 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Garcia  
ABSTAIN:  None 

 
iii. Consideration of Successor Agency to Adopt a Resolution Approving a Professional 

Services Agreement with Andersen Environmental and Adopt a Resolution Approving 
an Emergency Loan Agreement for Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) 
15-16B for Anderson Environmental 

 
Staff report presented by Finance Director Steven Dobrenen. 

 
Motion:  It was moved by Chair Markovich, and seconded by Agency Member Sanchez, to 
1) Adopt Resolution No. SA-10 approving the Professional Services Agreement with 
Andersen Environmental for the preparation of environmental analysis of the real properties 
to be included in the Long-Range Property Management Plan (LRPMP); 2) Adopt 
Resolution No. SA-11 approving Successor Agency Loan Agreement No. 15-16B:7; and 3) 
Authorize the City Manager to sign an emergency loan in the amount not to exceed $47,950 
for Andersen for environmental analysis of the real properties that are to be included in the 
LRPMP.  The motion carried (4-0-1-0) by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Guerrero, Sanchez, Hernandez and Markovich 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Garcia  
ABSTAIN:  None 

 
iv. Consideration to Adopt a Resolution for Administrative Budget for Six-Month Fiscal 

Period of January 1, 2016 to June 30, 2016 
 

Staff report presented by Finance Director Steven Dobrenen. 
 

Motion:  It was moved by Chair Markovich, and seconded by Agency Member Sanchez, to 
Adopt Resolution No. SA-12 approving the Administrative Budget for the 15-16B 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) six-month fiscal period of January 1, 
2016 to June 30, 2016.  The motion carried (4-0-1-0) by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Guerrero, Sanchez, Hernandez and Markovich 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Garcia  
ABSTAIN:  None 

 
v. Approval of Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for the 15-16B Six-Month Fiscal 

Period of January 1, 2016 to June 30, 2016 (ROPS 15-16B) 

Attachment A

Page 36 of 385



Cudahy City Council Regular Meeting Minutes  September 28, 2015 
 

Page 6 of 12 
 

 
Staff report presented by Finance Director Steven Dobrenen. 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Chair Markovich, and seconded by Agency Member Sanchez, to 
approve the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) 15-16B for the period of 
January 1, 2016 to June 30, 2016, for submission to the City of Cudahy Oversight Board.  
The motion carried (4-0-1-0) by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Guerrero, Sanchez, Hernandez and Markovich 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Garcia  
ABSTAIN:  None 

 
Council /Agency Member Guerrero pulled Item No. 9B for separate discussion. 
 
B. AS CITY COUNCIL 

 
i. Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Approving Emergency Loan Agreements for 

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) 15-16B for Olivarez Madruga, LLP  
 

Staff report presented by Finance Director Steven Dobrenen. 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Mayor Markovich, and seconded by Vice Mayor Hernandez, to 1) 
Adopt Resolution No. 15-45 approving Successor Agency Loan Agreement No. 15-16B:4; 2) 
Authorize the City Manager to sign an emergency loan in the amount not to exceed $20,000 
for Olivarez Madruga, LLP (Olivarez Madruga) for legal services concerning the preparation 
of a Long-Range Property Management Plan for the Successor Agency; 3) Adopt 
Resolution No. 15-46 approving Successor Agency Loan Agreement No. 15-16B:5; and 4) 
Authorize the City Manager to sign an emergency loan (Attachment D) in the amount not to 
exceed $82,000 for Olivarez Madruga, LLP (Olivarez Madruga) for legal services relating to 
the filing and defending of a Writ of Mandate filed against the California Department of 
Finance.  The motion carried (4-0-1-0) by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Guerrero, Sanchez, Hernandez and Markovich 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Garcia  
ABSTAIN:  None 

 
ii. Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Approving an Emergency Loan Agreement for 

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) 15-16B for Demetriou Del Guercio 
Springer and Francis LLP  

 
Staff report presented by Finance Director Steven Dobrenen. 

 
Motion:  It was moved by Mayor Markovich, and seconded by Vice Mayor Hernandez to 1) 
Adopt Resolution No. 15-47 approving Successor Agency Loan Agreement No. 15-16B:6; 
and 2) Authorize the City Manager to sign an emergency loan in the amount not to exceed 
$46,500 for Demetriou Del Guercio Springer and Francis LLP (DDSF) for special legal 
services concerning environmental review and analysis of the real properties included in the 
Long Range Property Management Plan (LRPMP).  The motion carried (4-0-1-0) by the 
following vote: 

Attachment A

Page 37 of 385



Cudahy City Council Regular Meeting Minutes  September 28, 2015 
 

Page 7 of 12 
 

AYES:  Guerrero, Sanchez, Hernandez and Markovich 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Garcia  
ABSTAIN:  None 

 
iii. Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Approving an Emergency Loan Agreement for 

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) 15-16B for Andersen 
Environmental 

 
Staff report presented by Finance Director Dobrenen. 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Mayor Markovich, and seconded by Vice Mayor Hernandez to 1) 
Adopt Resolution No. 15-48 approving Successor Agency Loan Agreement No. 15-16B:7; 
and 2) Authorize the City Manager to sign an emergency loan in the amount not to exceed 
$47,950 for Andersen Environmental (Andersen) for environmental analysis of the real 
properties to be included in the Long-Range Property Management Plan (LRPMP).  The 
motion carried (4-0-1-0) by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Guerrero, Sanchez, Hernandez and Markovich 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Garcia  
ABSTAIN:  None 

 
Council Member Sanchez pulled Item No. 9C for separate discussion. 
 
C. Consideration to Approve a Professional Service Agreement (PSA) with MV Transportation 

to Provide Shuttle Service 
 
Recommendation:  Approve a three year Professional Service Agreement with MV 
Transportation, Inc. for fixed route shuttle services relating to the Cudahy Area Rapid Transit 
(CART). 
 
Updated staff report presented by Finance Director Steven Dobrenen. 

 
Mayor Markovich disclosed receiving a $1,000 campaign contribution from PCAM and stated he 
will be abstaining from voting on this item. . 
 
Discussion ensued regarding providing both parties an opportunity to amend their bids; the 
scoring discrepancy; the cost difference, requesting a third bid; reaching out to at least ten 
companies; and allowing as many bidders as possible to give the City best price. 

 
Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Sanchez, and seconded by Vice Mayor Hernandez, 
to reject the proposal as recommended and direct staff to return to Council with 
recommendations for readdressing the bid process.  The motion carried (3-0-1-1) by the 
following vote: 
 
AYES:  Guerrero, Sanchez and Hernandez 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Garcia  
ABSTAIN:  Markovich 
 

Attachment A

Page 38 of 385



Cudahy City Council Regular Meeting Minutes  September 28, 2015 
 

Page 8 of 12 
 

Council Member Guerrero pulled Item No. 9D for separate discussion. 
 
D. Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Amending the Rules to Place Items on City Council 

Agendas and the Standard Order of Business of City Council Meetings 
 

Staff report presented by City Manager Jose Pulido. 
 
Council discussion ensued regarding public comment coming after closed session and that it’s 
not fair to the residents; opposition to the order of the agenda; point of clarification that this is a 
new item regarding reporting on Ad Hoc and Standing Committees and no changes were made 
to public comment; explanation was provided that the purpose of this item is to inform residents 
of internal and external issues which increases accountability; and that the intention of this item 
is for more transparency. 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Guerrero to move public comment to the beginning 
of the meeting and broaden the scope of public comment period.  The motion failed due to lack 
of a second. 
 
Amended Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Guerrero to move public comment to the 
beginning of the meeting, broaden the scope of public comment period by retaining the 20 
minute deadline for submitting the form but allowing comments on any matter.  The motion 
failed due to lack of a second. 

 
Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Sanchez, and seconded by Vice Mayor Hernandez, 
to adopt Resolution No. 15-49 amending the rules to place items on City Council agendas and 
the Standard Order of Business of City Council meetings.  The motion carried (3-1-1-0) by the 
following vote: 
 
AYES:   Sanchez, Hernandez and Markovich 
NOES:  Guerrero 
ABSENT: Garcia  
ABSTAIN:  None 
 
Council Member Sanchez pulled Item No. 9E for separate discussion. 
 
E. Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Approving the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

Between the City of Cudahy and the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employee’s Association 
(CMEA) (July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2019) 

 
Recommendation:   Adopt a resolution approving the Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) between the City of Cudahy and the Cudahy Miscellaneous Employee’s Association 
(July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2019). 
 

Motion:  By a consensus of the City Council, this item was tabled to the next regular meeting.  
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING  
 
A. Consideration to Adopt Ordinance No. 650, by Second Reading Amending Cudahy 

Municipal Code (CMC) 3.40.040 to 3.40.060, and Adopt an Ordinance by Second Reading 
Amending CMC 5.08.360 

 

Attachment A

Page 39 of 385



Cudahy City Council Regular Meeting Minutes  September 28, 2015 
 

Page 9 of 12 
 

Staff report presented by Finance Director Steven Dobrenen. 
 
Council Member Guerrero stated he is in opposition to raising rates, aggressive code 
enforcement, the current appeals process and increasing fees for sports programs. 
 
Council Member Sanchez referenced the City Manager’s report for accurate parking citation 
numbers and said attendance at strategic planning sessions is important. 
 
Vice Mayor Hernandez stated that the previous reduction in parking fines resulted in a lax 
attitude by the public to obeying parking laws. 
 
Mayor Markovich opened the public hearing and called for public comment. 
 
Pamela Munguia spoke on the increased fees, conflict of interest, and rental units. 
 
Gloria Sandoval stated the parking tickets are being given at 4 a.m. without a reason. 
 
Resident spoke regarding parking tickets being given without a reason to fill quotas. 
 
Dr. Patricia Lyons, retired LAUSD Administrator, stated that kids need recreation and urged the 
Council to do something for children and recreation. 
 
Patricia Covarrubias, spoke against raising fees, parking tickets and children’s sports. 
 
Resident spoke regarding parking tickets and his case. 
 
Resident requested that the Council scrap the parking tickets and consider issuing parking 
permits instead. 
 
Sandra Orozco asked the Council to be sensitive to the elderly and bring public comments up to 
the beginning of the agenda. 
 
Julian Martin spoke on zero based budgeting, engaging the younger generation, and supporting 
Cudahy with health and education by providing no cost services. 
 
With no additional members of the public wishing to comment, Mayor Markovich closed the 
public hearing. 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Sanchez, and seconded by Mayor Markovich to 
Adopt Ordinance No. 650 by second reading, amending Cudahy Municipal Code (CMC) 
Chapter 3.40.040 relating to the City’s cost recovery for services provided for Leisure and 
Cultural (recreational) Activities; and 2) Adopt Ordinance No. 655 second reading, amending 
CMC Chapter 5.08.360 to temporarily suspend (through June 30, 2019) the business license tax 
requirements applicable to Rental Property Managers of rental properties with four or fewer 
units.  The motion carried (3-1-1-0) by the following vote:  
 
AYES:   Sanchez, Hernandez and Markovich 
NOES:  Guerrero 
ABSENT: Garcia 
ABSTAIN:  None 
 

Attachment A

Page 40 of 385



Cudahy City Council Regular Meeting Minutes  September 28, 2015 
 

Page 10 of 12 
 

Council Member Sanchez left the meeting at 10:31 p.m. and returned at 10:33 p.m. 
 
B. Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Approving Development Review Permit (DRP) No. 

41.503, Allowing Construction of a New 1,500 Square Foot Single Family Dwelling Unit 
Located at 4051 Olive Street in the Medium Density Residential (MDR) Zone 

  
Acting Community Development Director Allen introduced Planning Assistant Didier Murillo who 
presented the staff report. 

 
Mayor Markovich opened the public hearing and called for public comment. 
 
With no members of the public wishing to comment, Mayor Markovich closed the public hearing. 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Sanchez, and seconded by Mayor Markovich, to 
adopt Resolution No. 15-50 approving Development Review Permit (DRP) No. 41.503 to allow 
construction of a new 1,500 square foot single family dwelling unit, located at 4051 Olive Street 
in the Medium Density Residential (MDR) Zone.  The motion carried (4-0-1-0) by the following 
vote:  
 
AYES:   Guerrero, Sanchez, Hernandez and Markovich 
NOES:  None  
ABSENT: Garcia 
ABSTAIN:  None  
 

11. BUSINESS SESSION 
 
A. Observance of National Customer Service Week 

  
Acting Human Resources Specialist Jennifer Hernandez introduced Sofia Brooks of GLP, who 
provided a PowerPoint presentation. 

 
Council Member Guerrero departed the meeting at 10:52 p.m. 
 
Mayor Markovich read the National Customer Services Week proclamation. 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Sanchez, and seconded by Mayor Markovich, to 
approve a proclamation in observance of National Customer Service Week from October 5th to 
9th, 2015.  The motion carried (3-0-2-0) by the following vote:  
 
AYES:   Sanchez, Hernandez and Markovich 
NOES:  None  
ABSENT: Garcia and Guerrero 
ABSTAIN:  None  
 
B. Consideration to Co-Sponsor a Music Festival (Fiestas de Octubre) in Partnership with  

Bandachannel.com 
  

Staff report presented by Acting Director of Community Services Michael Allen. 
 
  

Attachment A

Page 41 of 385



Cudahy City Council Regular Meeting Minutes  September 28, 2015 
 

Page 11 of 12 
 

Motion:  It was moved by Mayor Markovich, and seconded by Vice Mayor Hernandez, to 
approve co-sponsorship of a music festival (Fiestas de Octubre) with Bandachannel.com to 
take place on Saturday, October 17, 2015, from 1:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. at Clara Expansion Park 
located at 4835 Clara Street, Cudahy, CA 90201.  The motion carried (3-0-2-0) by the following 
vote:  
 
AYES:   Sanchez, Hernandez and Markovich 
NOES:  None  
ABSENT: Garcia and Guerrero 
ABSTAIN:  None  
 
Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Sanchez, and seconded by Mayor Markovich to hear 
Item 11D, table the remaining items and adjourn thereafter.  The motion carried (3-0-2-0) by the 
following vote: 
 
AYES:   Sanchez, Hernandez and Markovich 
NOES:  None  
ABSENT: Garcia and Guerrero 
ABSTAIN:  None  
 
D. Approval of PS&E Bid Package (Plans, Specifications and Estimates) and Authorization of 

Staff to Issue NIB (Notice Inviting Bids) for the Lugo Park Improvements Project 
  

Staff report presented by Acting Community Development Director Michael Allen. 
 
Discussion ensured regarding schedules, budget, restrooms and project support. 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Sanchez, and seconded by Mayor Markovich, to 1) 
Approve PS&E Bid Package (Plans, Specifications and Estimates); 2) Authorize staff to issue 
NIB (Notice Inviting Bids) for the Lugo Park Improvements Project; and 3) Approve 
Environmental Assessment as follows: the proposed project is categorically exempt from the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to 14 California Code 
of Regulations § 15301 as a Class 1 categorical exemption (Existing Facilities).  The motion 
carried (3-0-2-0) by the following vote:  
 
AYES:   Sanchez, Hernandez and Markovich 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Garcia and Guerrero 
ABSTAIN:  None 

 
12. COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
 
Vice Mayor Hernandez requested that his two items, Discussion of the Young Mayor Program 
and Discussion to bring a Resolution regarding Equal Wages for Gender Equality, be moved to 
the next regular City Council meeting. 
 
16. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Nick Sonora spoke on Cudahy being made a region of AYSO and offered his help to put a 
soccer program together. 
 

Attachment A

Page 42 of 385



Cudahy City Council Regular Meeting Minutes  September 28, 2015 
 

Page 12 of 12 
 

17. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion by Mayor Markovich and seconded by Council Member Sanchez and carried to adjourn 
the City Council / Agency meeting at 11:17 p.m. to the Regular and Joint Meeting as Successor 
Agency to the Cudahy Development Commission on Monday, October 12, 2015 at 6:30 p.m. 
 

 

       
 Cristian Markovich 
 Mayor / Chair 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Laura Valdivia 
Interim City Clerk / Secretary 
 
 

 
 

Attachment A

Page 43 of 385



 
 

Blank Page 

Page 44 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/09/2015  Page 1 of 5 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  November 9, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director 

Subject: Consideration to Receive and File Aging and Senior Citizen Commission 
Minutes; Public Safety Commission Minutes; Planning Commission Notice of 
Cancellation; and Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to receive and file the minutes for the: 
 
1. Aging and Senior Citizen Commission meeting of September 14, 2015; 

 
2. Public Safety Commission meeting of September 8, 2015; 

 
3. Planning Commission Cancellation Notice from their meeting of September 21, 2015; 

and 
 

4. Parks and Recreation Commission meeting of September 25, 2015. 
 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
1. On September 8, 2015, the Public Safety Commission held their regularly scheduled 

meeting. 
 

2. On September 14, 2015, the Aging and Senior Citizen Commission held their regularly 
scheduled meeting.  

 
3. On September 21, 2015, the Planning Commission cancelled their regularly scheduled 

meeting. 
 

 

Item Number 

10D 

Page 45 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/09/2015  Page 2 of 5 
    

4. On September 25, 2015, the Parks and Recreation Commission held their regularly 
scheduled meeting. 
 
 

ANALYSIS 
 
Below are the summaries for various City Commission meetings held in August 2015. 
 
Aging and Senior Citizen Commission: Following is a summary of actions taken at the 
September 14, 2015 meeting: 
 
Members Present: 
 Commissioner Cornejo 
 Chairperson Pro-Tem Pena 
 Chairperson Covarrubias 
 
Absent: 
 Commissioner Gessner 
 
Business Session: 
 
4A.  Bus update.  

Commission Secretary gave an update on the community excursion to the L.A. County 
Fair. 

 Motion to approve by Chairperson Covarrubias, seconded by Commissioner Cornejo. 
Approved by unanimous vote.  

 
4B.  Birthday Celebration Update. 

 Motion to approve by Chairperson Covarrubias, seconded by Commissioner Cornejo. 
Approved by unanimous vote. 

 
4C.  A request to approve the minutes of the Regular Aging and Senior Commission meeting 

held on August 10, 2015. 

  
Motion to approve by Chairperson Covarrubias, seconded by Commissioner Cornejo. 
Approved by unanimous vote. 

 

Page 46 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/09/2015  Page 3 of 5 
    

Public Safety Commission:  Following is a summary of actions taken at the September 8, 2015 
meeting: 
 
Members Present: 
 Commissioner Cardonne 
 Commissioner Cruz 
 Chairperson Pro-Tem Carrera 

 
Members Absent: 

Chairperson Parrish 
 

Business Session: 
 
4A.  August monthly report from the Volunteers on Patrol. 

 Motion to receive and file by Commissioner Cruz, seconded by Commissioner Cardonne. 
Approved by unanimous vote.  

  
4B.  August monthly report from the L.A. County Sheriff’s Department. 

 Motion to receive and file by Commissioner Cruz, seconded by Commissioner Cardonne. 
Approved by unanimous vote. 

 
4C.  August monthly report from Code Enforcement Department. 

 Motion to receive and file by Commissioner Cardonne, seconded by Commissioner Cruz. 
Approved by unanimous vote. 

 
4D.  A request to approve the minutes of the regular Public Safety Commission Meeting held 

on August 11, 2015. 

 Motion to receive and file by Commissioner Cruz, seconded by Commissioner Cardonne.  
Approved by unanimous vote. 
  

Planning Commission:  
 

The regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting was cancelled.  Notice was posted 24 
hours in advanced at the following City facilities located at 5220 Santa Ana Street, 4835 Clara 
Street, and 7810 Otis Avenue. Additionally, notice was posted on the City’s website. 

 
Parks and Recreation Commission:  Following is a summary of actions taken at the September 
25, 2015 meeting: 

Page 47 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/09/2015  Page 4 of 5 
    

Members Present: 
 Chairperson Covarrubias  

Chairperson Pro-Tem Venegas 
Commissioner Rodriguez 

 Commissioner Reyes  
 

Absent: 
Commissioner Ortega 
 

Business Session: 
 
4A.  A request to approve the minutes of the Regular Parks and Recreation Commission 

meeting held on August 28, 2015. 

 Motion to approve item 4A made by Chairperson Covarrubias, seconded by 
Commissioner Reyes, approved by unanimous voice vote.  

 
4B. Discussion Item – Covered California Enrollment & Health Resource Fair Snack Bar. 

 Motion to receive and file item 4B made by Chairperson Covarrubias, seconded by 
Chairperson Pro-Tem Venegas. Approved by unanimous voice vote. 

 
4C.  Discussion Item – October Recreation Events. 

 Motion to receive and file item 4B made by Chairperson Covarrubias, seconded by 
Commissioner Reyes. Approved by unanimous voice vote. 
  
 

 CONCLUSION 
 
The City Council is requested to receive and file this report. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
 

Page 48 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/09/2015  Page 5 of 5 
    

ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Minutes of the Aging and Senior Citizen Commission, September 14, 2015 
B. Minutes of the Public Safety Commission, September 8, 2015 
C. Minutes of the Planning Commission, September 21, 2015 
D. Minutes of the Parks and Recreation Commission, September 25, 2015 

Page 49 of 385



Attachment A

Page 50 of 385



Attachment A

Page 51 of 385



Attachment B

Page 52 of 385



Attachment B

Page 53 of 385



Attachment B

Page 54 of 385



Attachment C 

Page 55 of 385



Attachment D

Page 56 of 385



Attachment D

Page 57 of 385



 
 

Blank Page 

Page 58 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/09/2015  Page 1 of 4 

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Date:   November 9, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

From:   Jose E. Pulido, City Manager 
  By: Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director 
  By: Dave Gondek, City Attorney 

Subject: Consideration of a First Amendment to Professional Services Agreement 
(PSA) with Transtech Engineers, Inc. for Preparation of a Traffic Study for 
Card Club Casino Project 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to authorize the City Manager to execute on behalf of the 
City, the First Amendment to Professional Services Agreement (Master Agreement) with 
Transtech Engineers, Inc. for the preparation of a traffic study to their scope of services 
of the City’s existing agreement with Transtech. 
  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On May 11, 2015, the City Council entered into a Professional Services Agreement 

with Transtech Engineers, Inc. (Transtech) which is a civil engineering consulting 
firm.  The City currently receives services from Transtech through an on-call 
project management and project design services pursuant to a professional 
services agreement (Master Agreement). 

 
2. On July 1, 2015, the City and Cudahy Successor Agency entered into a 

“Confidentiality and Nondisclosure Agreement” with Cudahy LF LLC. to work on 
the development of a new card club casino in the City. 

 
3.  On September 10, 2015, the Acting Community Development Director solicited 

proposals from several traffic engineering firms to conduct the desired traffic 
study for the card club casino project. 

 

Item Number 

10E 

Page 59 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/09/2015  Page 2 of 4 

4. On September 23, 2015, the City received the following four proposals to conduct 
the card club casino traffic study: 

  
a.  Transtech Engineers, Inc. for $87,665;  
b.  Willdan for $187,049;  
c.  LSA Associates for $55,330; and  
d.  MIG/Kunzman Associates for $61,250. 

 
5. On September 28, 2015, staff (i.e., Jose E. Pulido, Michael Allen, Dave Gondek) 

reviewed the various casino traffic study proposals and recommended Transtech 
to conduct the desired card club casino traffic study. 

 
6. On October 5, 2015, the City Attorney (i.e., Dave Gondek) reviewed the various 

proposals with the City Manager and agreed that Transtech Inc. submitted the 
most comprehensive and cost effective traffic study proposal for the card club 
casino project. 

 
7.  At the October 26, 2015, the proposed first amendment to PSA with Transtech 

Engineers, Inc. was postponed to the next regularly scheduled City Council 
meeting. 

 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Consistent with the City Council’s desire of attracting new businesses and property 
investment that create jobs while generating new revenues, the City and the Successor 
Agency entered into a “Confidentiality and Nondisclosure Agreement” with Cudahy LF 
LLC. to potentially develop a new card club casino located at one of the various Successor 
Agency owned properties.  In addition, the City Council also authorized the City Manager 
to begin negotiations with Cudahy LF LLC. with the intent on determining which of the 
Successor Agency properties may be the best fit for a new card club casino.  This selection 
process will entail compliance with appropriate California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) review for the various Successor Agency sites including but not limited to: traffic 
studies, air quality studies, noise impact studies, etc. 
 
The Successor Agency owned properties which are located or centralized on or around 
Atlantic Avenue currently experience average daily traffic (ADT) volumes of 
approximately 34,000 vehicle trips (VT) per day (2015 Cudahy Traffic Survey). This is in 
excess of the roads capacity of 22,000 VT per day.  As a result, special consideration 

Page 60 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/09/2015  Page 3 of 4 

needs to be taken in the potential impacts any new/proposed development will have on 
Atlantic Avenue and surrounding collector streets.  
 
Hence, in light of the City Attorney, City Manager and staff’s recommendation to retain 
Transtech to conduct the desired card club traffic study, the City needs Transtech to 
perform a Traffic Impact Analysis and prepare a written report that will contribute to the 
City’s CEQA review of a proposed card club casino development project. This First 
Amendment to the Master Agreement adds the Traffic Impact Analysis for the card club 
development project to Transtech’s scope of services. 
 
The First Amendment to the Master Agreement has been drafted to give the City 
flexibility in starting and stopping Transtech’s work on this project. If the card club 
development project does not move forward to completion—or for any other reason—
Section 2 of this agreement allows the City to notify Transtech to “Stop Work.” After the 
issuance of such notice, the City is not obligated to compensate Transtech for any further 
traffic study work. Also, in a Stop Work scenario, Transtech must deliver its entire work 
product to the City. 
 
City staff will closely monitor the work to be performed by Transtech under this 
agreement to ensure that the available balance of funds held by the City for this Project 
Study Cost Deposit is always sufficient to pay for the work as authorized by the City.  In 
the event that the deposit does not contain sufficient funds to pay for additional stages of 
the traffic study work, Transtech will be instructed to perform no further work until the 
deposit balance is replenished by Cudahy LF LLC. to cover the cost of such work. 
 
If this project comes to fruition, it would be done through a Development Agreement 
consistent with Ordinance No. 653 Development Agreements, between Cudahy LF, LLC. 
and the City. Currently, City staff is negotiating with Cudahy LF LLC. regarding payment for 
the Traffic Impact Analysis out of the Project Study Cost Deposit described in the 
Development Agreement. 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
City staff recommends approval of the First Amendment to the Master Agreement with 
Transtech to perform the Traffic Impact Study for the card club project.  Transtech has 
provided high quality services to the City through the existing Master Agreement in 
project management and design for the City’s capital improvement projects.  Additionally, 
Transtech has demonstrated through their work and proposal superior knowledge of the 

Page 61 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/09/2015  Page 4 of 4 

City, local traffic patterns and impacts, as well as extensive prior experience conducting 
similar comprehensive traffic studies for like projects.   
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The estimated total fee under this First Amendment is $87,665, however, this 
Amendment will not have an impact on the City’s General Fund budget, because 
Transtech’s fees for the work will be paid from Project Study Cost Deposit funds from 
Cudahy LF, LLC.   
 
 
ATTACHMENT 
 
A. First Amendment to Professional Services Agreement with Transtech Engineers, Inc. 

Page 62 of 385



1 

Attachment A 

 

 

2015 
FIRST AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

(Engagement: On-Call Project Management and Project Design Professional Services) 
(Parties: City of Cudahy – Transtech Engineers, Inc.) 

 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT (the “Amendment”) to Professional Services Agreement 
for on-call project management and project design is made and entered into this _______ 
day of September 2015 by and between City of Cudahy, a municipal corporation (“CITY”) 
and Transtech Engineers, Inc. (“CONSULTANT”).  

RECITALS 

This Amendment is made and entered into with respect to the following facts: 

WHEREAS, on or about May 11, 2015, the parties executed and entered into that 
certain agreement for on-call project management and project design titled, PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT (hereinafter, the “Master Agreement”), which is attached hereto 
as Attachment 1; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to add to the scope of services set forth in the Master 
Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT has represented to CITY that it has the requisite skill 
and experience to safely and competently perform the desired professional services; and 

WHEREAS, Section 6.22 of Master Agreement provides for written amendments and 
modifications if approved by both parties. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein 
and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

1. ADDITIONAL SCOPE OF SERVICES.  

Pursuant to Section 6.22 of the Master Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to 
perform traffic engineering additional services in accordance with CONSULTANT’s 
proposal letter dated September 2, 2015 and attached hereto as Attachment 2.  

Page 63 of 385



2 

2. STOP WORK.  

A. CITY may notify CONSULTANT with instructions to stop further work on the 
services set forth in Attachment 2 (the “Stop Work Notice”). CONSULTANT 
shall immediately, or as promptly as is reasonably practicable, cease work 
in compliance with the Stop Work Notice. CITY shall have no obligation to 
compensate CONSULTANT for any work performed after CONSULTANT 
reasonably should have complied with the Stop Work Notice. Issuance of a 
Stop Work Notice shall be at CITY’s sole and absolute discretion, and in 
doing so CITY may consider only CITY’s interests and not consider any 
effect on CONSULTANT. 

B. Upon issuance of a Stop Work Notice, CONSULTANT shall promptly deliver 
to CITY all data, materials, records and work product prepared or obtained 
by CONSULTANT in the performance of the traffic engineering services, 
regardless of the draft form or state of completion of such data, materials, 
records and work product. 

3. Except as otherwise set forth in this Amendment, the Master Agreement shall remain 
binding, controlling and in full force and effect. This Amendment together with the 
Master Agreement shall constitute the entire, complete, final, and exclusive 
expression of the parties with respect to the matters addressed in both documents. 

4. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between this Amendment and the 
Master Agreement, the provisions of this Amendment shall control, but only to the 
extent necessary to resolve the conflict or inconsistency. 

5. This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, which together shall comprise a 
single instrument. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties enter into this Amendment to the Master 

Agreement as of the date first written above. 

 
CITY OF CUDAHY: 
 
 
By:       
 Jose E. Pulido, City Manager  
 
Date:        
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By       
 Isabel Birrueta, City Attorney 
 
Date:        

TRANSTECH ENGINEERS, INC. 
 
 
By:        
 
Name:        
 
Its:        
 
Date:        

Page 64 of 385



 

Attachment 1 
(Master Agreement) 

Page 65 of 385



Page 66 of 385



Page 67 of 385



Page 68 of 385



Page 69 of 385



Page 70 of 385



Page 71 of 385



Page 72 of 385



Page 73 of 385



Page 74 of 385



Page 75 of 385



Page 76 of 385



Page 77 of 385



Page 78 of 385



Page 79 of 385



Page 80 of 385



Page 81 of 385



Page 82 of 385



Page 83 of 385



Page 84 of 385



Page 85 of 385



Page 86 of 385



Page 87 of 385



Page 88 of 385



Page 89 of 385



Page 90 of 385



Page 91 of 385



Page 92 of 385



Page 93 of 385



Page 94 of 385



Page 95 of 385



Page 96 of 385



Page 97 of 385



Page 98 of 385



Page 99 of 385



Page 100 of 385



Page 101 of 385



Page 102 of 385



Page 103 of 385



Page 104 of 385



Page 105 of 385



Page 106 of 385



Page 107 of 385



Page 108 of 385



Page 109 of 385



 

Attachment 2 
(Additional Scope of Services) 

 

 

Page 110 of 385



 

 
13367 Benson Avenue   |   Chino CA 91710   |   T 909 595 8599   |   F 909 590 8599   |   www.transtech.org 

 
 
September 2, 2015 
 
 
City of Cudahy  
5220 Santa Ana Street  
Cudahy, CA 90201 
Mr. Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director 
 
 
Subject:  PROPOSAL FOR TRAFFIC ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE PREPARATION OF A TRAFFIC IMPACT 

ANALYSIS FOR A PROPOSED CASINO 
 
 
Dear Mr. Allen: 
 
As requested, we are pleased to submit this Proposal for Traffic Engineering Services for the preparation 
of a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) for a proposed casino. 
 
The purpose of a Traffic Impact Analysis is to determine the magnitude of changes in traffic demand and 
circulation associated with the addition of a Casino within the local area.  The study determines if there 
will be any impacts or degradation to operations at surrounding intersections or if project traffic may add 
to traffic congestion and increased travel times and traffic delays along arterials and freeways that will 
reduce the quality of life for neighborhoods surrounding the project site.  LA County and local Cities 
provide guidelines and requirements of what needs to be included in a Traffic Impact Analysis in order to 
provide a thorough understanding of how a new project will affect the surrounding circulation system. If 
the addition of project traffic exceeds significant thresholds than a determination of appropriate 
mitigation measures eliminating or minimizing these impacts are included in the study.  The Traffic Impact 
Analysis will include an assessment of existing roadway conditions by conducting peak hour counts at 
commute times and during peak operating hours for the casino, determining the level of service or 
operating conditions of these facilities and looking at how these facilities will operate in the future with 
the project and with any other projects that may be built.  
 
An important part of the assessment will be determining how much “New” traffic the proposed project 
or Casino will generate.  Standard references used in estimating trip generation for a new development is 
the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual, 9th Edition. However, the Trip 
Generation Manual provides limited information for Casinos with only one rate for PM peak based on 
information from one Casino in South Dakota. As such, tentative estimates of the amount of “New” trips 
generated by the project have been estimated using a combination of data from published reports 
compiled for similar facilities using the number of gaming tables/gaming stations, the number of 
employees and the mode of travel.    Before the start of the project these assumptions can be refined and 
adjusted accordingly.   

 
  

Page 111 of 385



September 2, 2015 
Mr. Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director 
Subject:  PROPOSAL FOR TRAFFIC ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE PREPARATION OF A TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS FOR A 

PROPOSED CASINO 
Page 2 
 

 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

 
It is our understanding that the proposed project will consist of a Casino, offices and restaurant use for a 
total square footage of 72,900 sqf.  The Casino will be open 24 hours a day 7 days a week with the food 
elements and some parts of the office components having regular operating hours.  
 
The following is the sqf areas provided to us for each type of uses:  

 Casino Gaming Floor – 50,000 sqf 

 Administration Offices – 8,000-10,000 sqf  (includes; employee breakroom, restrooms, lockers, 
human resources, payroll office, marketing, conference room, owners suite, mailroom, executive 
offices, accounting department and surveillance room) 

 Casino Main Floor Bar and Deli – 1,000 sqf 

 Restaurant and Sports Bar – 3,600 sqf 

 Kitchen – 7,500 sqf 

 Gift Shop – 800 sqf 
 

Casino Operations: 
All of the uses will be housed in one building similar to the Hustler Casino in Gardena.  For traffic 
considerations, the Casino is comprised of two separate generators; visitors and employees.  Based on 
discussion from management at the Hustler Casino the peak times for the Casino are estimated to be: 

 Friday Evening from 10:00 pm to 12:00 midnight and Saturday evening from 9:00 pm to 11:00 pm 
with less during typical peak weekday commute hours of 7:00 am to 9:00 am and 4:00 pm to 6:00 pm.   

 There is projected to be a total of 750 employees at the facility which is divided among 3 separate 
shifts; Day, Swing and Graveyard with the busiest the Swing Shift. 
o Day Shift: 10:00 am to 6:00 pm  
o Swing Shift: 6:00 pm to 2:00 am 

o Graveyard Shift: 2:00 am to 10:00 am 

 
Restaurant Operations:  
The proposed restaurant/Bar will be a full service sit down restaurant open from 11:00 am to 2:00 am 
with 3,600 sqf.  Since the restaurant can be a destination it is considered as a separate entity in project 
trips generated by the site and is not included in the Casino calculations.   
 
Please see following page for estimated trip generation. 
  

Page 112 of 385



September 2, 2015 
Mr. Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director 
Subject:  PROPOSAL FOR TRAFFIC ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE PREPARATION OF A TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS FOR A 

PROPOSED CASINO 
Page 3 
 

 

  

Ty
pi

ca
l 

W
ee

kd
ay

24
 H

ou
r 

Pe
rio

d

(D
ai

ly
 

To
ta

l3 )

Sa
tu

rd
ay

 

24
 H

ou
r 

pe
rio

d

(D
ai

ly
 

To
ta

l3 )

TO
TA

L
To

ta
l

In
O

ut
To

ta
l

In
O

ut
To

ta
l

In
O

ut
To

ta
l

In
O

ut
TO

TA
L

69
,3

00
SF

 C
as

in
o 

Ra
te

s2
   

   
   

 7
.1

9 
0.

41
53

%
47

%
0.

41
53

%
47

%
0.

46
46

%
54

%
0.

58
48

%
52

%
   

   
   

 9
.0

6 

Ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f V

is
it

or
s 

(#
 o

f P
eo

pl
e)

 @
10

0%
88

0
Es

t. 
Ve

hi
cl

es
 @

 1
00

%
 C

ap
ac

it
y

Ve
hi

cl
e 

Tr
ip

s
   

   
 3

61
 

   
   

 1
91

 
   

   
 1

70
 

   
   

 3
61

 
   

   
 1

91
 

   
   

 1
70

 
   

   
 4

05
 

   
   

 1
86

 
   

   
 2

19
 

   
   

 5
10

 
   

   
 2

45
 

   
   

 2
65

 

Ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f V

is
it

or
s 

(#
 o

f P
eo

pl
e)

 @
70

%
61

6
Es

t. 
Ve

hi
cl

es
 @

 7
0%

 C
ap

ac
it

y
Ve

hi
cl

e 
Tr

ip
s

   
   

 2
53

 
   

   
 1

34
 

   
   

 1
19

 
   

   
 2

53
 

   
   

 1
34

 
   

   
 1

19
 

   
   

 2
83

 
   

   
 1

30
 

   
   

 1
53

 
   

   
 3

57
 

   
   

 1
71

 
   

   
 1

86
 

Ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f V

is
it

or
s 

(#
 o

f P
eo

pl
e)

 @
50

%
44

0
Es

t. 
Ve

hi
cl

es
 @

 5
0%

 C
ap

ac
it

y
Ve

hi
cl

e 
Tr

ip
s

   
   

 1
80

 
   

   
   

96
 

   
   

   
85

 
   

   
 1

80
 

   
   

   
96

 
   

   
   

85
 

   
   

 2
02

 
   

   
   

93
 

   
   

 1
09

 
   

   
 2

55
 

   
   

 1
22

 
   

   
 1

33
 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s:
 7

50
 T

ot
al

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s4

10
0%

75
0

W
al

k
15

%

Sh
if

t 1
 H

ou
rs

: 1
0:

00
-1

8:
00

30
%

22
5

U
se

 T
ra

ns
it

5%

Sh
if

t 2
 H

ou
rs

: 1
8:

00
-2

:0
0

50
%

37
5

Ca
rp

oo
l

25
%

Sh
if

t 3
 H

ou
rs

: 2
:0

0-
10

:0
0

20
%

15
0

Si
ng

le
 O

cc
up

an
t V

eh
ic

le
55

%

7,
84

4
   

   
 2

00
 

   
   

 1
07

 
   

   
   

94
 

   
   

 6
73

 
   

   
 3

57
 

   
   

 3
16

 
   

   
 4

56
 

   
   

 2
09

 
   

   
 2

47
 

   
   

 5
61

 
   

   
 2

69
 

   
   

 2
92

 
9,

49
4

TO
TA

L
To

ta
l

In
O

ut
To

ta
l

In
O

ut
To

ta
l

In
O

ut
To

ta
l

In
O

ut
TO

TA
L

3,
60

0
SF

Re
st

au
ra

nt
 R

at
es

5
89

.9
5

0.
81

50
%

50
%

7.
49

67
%

33
%

9.
02

62
%

38
%

10
.8

2
59

%
41

%
94

.3
6

32
4

3
2

1
27

18
9

32
20

12
39

23
16

34
0

32
4

3
2

1
27

18
9

32
20

12
39

23
16

34
0

   
   

  8
,1

68
 

   
   

 2
03

 
   

   
 1

09
 

   
   

   
95

 
   

   
 7

00
 

   
   

 3
75

 
   

   
 3

25
 

   
   

 4
88

 
   

   
 2

29
 

   
   

 2
59

 
   

   
 6

00
 

   
   

 2
92

 
   

   
 3

08
 

   
   

  9
,8

33
 

6.
40

%

10
00

3.
6

Ra
te

4 Th
e 

to
ta

l n
um

be
r o

f e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

w
er

e 
br

ok
en

 d
ow

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
to

ta
l n

um
be

r o
f e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
pe

r s
hi

ft
, t

hi
s 

w
as

 c
on

ve
rt

ed
 to

 v
eh

ic
le

 tr
ip

s 
as

su
m

in
g 

th
at

 w
it

hi
n 

ea
ch

 s
hi

ft
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 e
st

im
at

io
n 

15
%

 w
al

k,
 5

%
 u

se
 tr

an
si

t, 
25

%
 c

ar
po

ol
, 

55
%

 s
in

gl
e 

oc
cu

pa
nt

 v
eh

ic
le

. 

o 
Sh

if
t 1

: H
ou

rs
: 1

0:
00

 –
 1

8:
00

: 3
0%

 o
f e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
= 

22
5 

(1
5%

 w
al

k,
 5

%
 u

se
 tr

an
si

t, 
25

%
 c

ar
po

ol
, 5

5%
 s

in
gl

e 
oc

cu
pa

nt
 v

eh
ic

le
) =

 1
52

 v
eh

ic
le

s

o 
Sh

if
t 2

: H
ou

rs
: 1

8:
00

 –
 2

:0
0:

 5
0%

 o
f e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
= 

37
5 

(1
5%

 w
al

k,
 5

%
 u

se
 tr

an
si

t, 
25

%
 c

ar
po

ol
, 5

5%
 s

in
gl

e 
oc

cu
pa

nt
 v

eh
ic

le
) =

 2
53

 v
eh

ic
le

s

o 
Sh

if
t 3

: H
ou

rs
: 2

:0
0 

– 
10

:0
0:

 2
0%

 o
f e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
= 

15
0 

(1
5%

 w
al

k,
 5

%
 u

se
 tr

an
si

t, 
25

%
 c

ar
po

ol
, 5

5%
 s

in
gl

e 
oc

cu
pa

nt
 v

eh
ic

le
) =

 1
02

 v
eh

ic
le

s

o 
Fo

r p
ea

k 
ho

ur
 w

or
se

 c
as

e 
– 

it
 is

 a
ss

um
ed

 th
at

 a
ll

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

ar
ri

ve
 1

5 
m

in
 b

ef
or

e 
or

 a
t s

ta
rt

 o
f t

he
ir

 s
hi

ft
 a

nd
 le

av
e 

at
 e

nd
 o

f s
hi

ft
.

o 
Ch

an
gi

ng
 in

 s
hi

ft
s 

do
 n

ot
 c

oi
nc

id
e 

w
it

h 
pe

ak
 u

se
 a

t t
he

 fa
ci

li
ty

 s
o 

it
 w

as
 a

ss
um

ed
 th

at
 2

0%
 o

f e
m

pl
oy

ee
 s

hi
ft

 tr
af

fi
c 

w
ou

ld
 e

nt
er

 a
nd

 le
av

e 
of

f s
hi

ft
 c

ha
ng

e 
ho

ur
s.

 (e
xa

m
pl

e:
 7

-9
 a

m
 is

 w
it

hi
n 

Sh
if

t 3
 s

o 
20

%
 o

f 1
02

 =
 2

0 
ve

hi
cl

es
 w

ou
ld

 

co
m

e 
in

 a
nd

 o
ut

 o
f t

he
 fa

ci
li

ty
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
7-

9 
pe

ak
.  

 

o 
D

ai
ly

 to
ta

ls
 a

re
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 N

um
be

r o
f E

m
pl

oy
ee

 V
eh

ic
le

s 
fo

r a
ll

 s
hi

ft
s 

x 
3.

0 
tr

ip
s 

(5
07

 x
 3

.0
 –

 th
ey

 a
ll

 c
om

e 
in

 a
ll

 le
av

e 
an

d 
so

m
e 

dr
iv

e 
of

f f
or

 a
 b

re
ak

)

RE
ST

AU
RA

N
T 

VI
SI

TO
RS

/V
EH

IC
LE

S 
TR

IP
S

CA
SI

N
O

 V
IS

IT
O

RS
/V

EH
IC

LE
 T

RI
PS

 (V
is

ito
rs

: 8
80

 G
am

in
g 

Po
si

tio
ns

1 )

To
ta

l T
rip

s 
G

en
er

at
ed

N
ot

es

TR
IP

 G
EN

ER
A

TI
O

N
 T

A
BL

E

   
   

  6
,3

25
 

   
   

  7
,9

75
 

Re
st

au
ra

nt
 S

iz
e

Ca
si

no
 S

iz
e 

19
7

51
23

28
51

24
27

1,
51

9

Fr
id

ay
 N

ig
ht

 P
ea

k 
1 

H
ou

r 

22
:0

0-
24

:0
0

To
ta

l P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

Ra
te

 U
se

d 
fo

r D
ai

ly
 T

rip
s

1 G
am

in
g 

po
si

ti
on

s 
in

cl
ud

e 
po

ke
r t

ab
le

s 
(m

ax
. 1

0 
se

at
s 

pe
r t

ab
le

), 
ca

l g
am

e 
ta

bl
es

 (m
ax

. 7
 s

ea
ts

 p
er

 ta
bl

e)
. I

t i
s 

es
ti

m
at

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
ca

si
no

 w
il

l h
av

e 
a 

to
ta

l o
f 1

00
 ta

bl
es

 w
it

h 
(6

0 
po

ke
r t

ab
le

s 
an

d 
40

 c
al

 g
am

e 
ta

bl
es

). 
G

am
in

g 

po
si

ti
on

s 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

at
 fu

ll
 1

00
%

 c
ap

ac
it

y 
du

ri
ng

 th
e 

Fr
id

ay
 a

nd
 S

at
ur

da
y 

pe
ak

s,
 a

nd
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 b
e 

at
 7

0%
 c

ap
ac

it
y 

du
ri

ng
 th

e 
w

ee
kd

ay
 P

M
 p

ea
k 

an
d 

as
su

m
ed

 to
 b

e 
at

 5
0%

 c
ap

ac
it

y 
du

ri
ng

 th
e 

w
ee

kd
ay

 A
M

 p
ea

k.

2 Ca
si

no
 R

at
es

 a
re

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
ca

si
no

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fr
om

 th
e 

H
ol

ly
w

oo
d 

Ca
si

no
 T

ra
ff

ic
 S

tu
dy

 w
hi

ch
 c

om
pa

re
d 

7 
di

ff
er

en
t c

as
in

o 
ga

m
in

g 
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
ts

 in
 v

ar
io

us
 s

ta
te

s.

3 D
ai

ly
 to

ta
ls

 w
er

e 
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

 fo
r c

as
in

o 
vi

si
to

rs
 a

ss
um

in
g 

6.
4%

 o
f d

ai
ly

 tr
ip

s 
at

 th
e 

ca
si

no
 o

cc
ur

re
d 

du
ri

ng
 th

e 
PM

 p
ea

k 
an

d 
Sa

tu
rd

ay
 p

ea
k 

ho
ur

s 
ba

se
d 

on
 s

tu
dy

 "
Tr

ip
 G

en
er

at
io

n 
Ch

ar
ac

te
ri

st
ic

s 
of

 S
m

al
l t

o 
M

ed
iu

m
 S

iz
ed

 C
as

in
os

 "
by

 

M
ic

ha
el

 T
ru

eb
lo

od
)

sq
f

Sa
tu

rd
ay

 N
ig

ht
 P

ea
k 

1 

H
ou

r

21
:0

0-
23

:0
0

Ty
pi

ca
l W

ee
kd

ay
 C

om
m

ut
e 

H
ou

rs
 1

 H
ou

r

7:
00

-9
:0

0

Ty
pi

ca
l W

ee
kd

ay
 C

om
m

ut
e 

H
ou

rs
 1

 H
ou

r

16
:0

0-
18

:0
0

5 Re
st

au
ra

nt
 R

at
es

 a
re

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
IT

E 
Tr

ip
 G

en
er

at
io

n 
M

an
ua

l 9
th

 E
di

ti
on

 (R
es

ta
ur

an
t I

TE
 9

31
) a

nd
 a

re
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

1,
00

0 
sq

f

3,
60

0 
/ 

10
00

 =
 

Ba
se

d 
on

CA
SI

N
O

 V
EH

IC
LE

 T
RI

PS
 S

U
B 

TO
TA

L

RE
ST

AU
RA

N
T 

VE
H

IC
LE

 T
RI

PS
 S

U
B 

TO
TA

L

Ve
hi

cl
e 

Tr
ip

s

1,
51

9
20

11
9

42
0

22
3

Page 113 of 385



September 2, 2015 
Mr. Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director 
Subject:  PROPOSAL FOR TRAFFIC ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE PREPARATION OF A TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS FOR A 

PROPOSED CASINO 
Page 4 
 

 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 
The following provides an outline of the Tasks required to complete a Full Traffic Impact Analysis.  
 

1. Collect all relevant traffic and other project data from the client, including detailed project 
description, background information, parking layout, site plan, operational schedule, 
development agreements, etc.  Review and analyze the data for accuracy, adequacy and validity 
for use in traffic analysis.   
 

2. Collect all relevant traffic and other data from the City and adjacent jurisdictions including, 
proposed roadway improvements, construction plans, related project information and any 
changes to roadway conditions that may have bearing on the surrounding circulation of traffic.   

 
3. Conduct turning movement counts during the following times: 

A. During peak commute hours of 7-9 am and 4-6 pm (a Tues., Weds. or Thurs.)  
B. Weekday peak hours of the Casino: Friday 22:00 to 24:00 
C. Weekend peak hours of the Casino: Saturday 21:00 to 23:00 

 
We have identified a total of 35 key intersection locations. Since the project site is located just 
inside the southern boundary of the City of Cudahy the study area will include locations from the 
Cities of Cudahy, South Gate, Bell Gardens, Huntington Park, Bell, Downey and Lynwood.  All 
locations will be included in the weekday analysis scenarios with a limited list included during late 
Friday and Saturday peak Casino hours. Due to the controversial nature of the proposed project 
the project study area is considered conservative with the study area to include all major 
signalized intersections within an approximate 1.5 mile radius of the project site as well as the 
most logical freeway ramps that will provide regional access to/from the site from the I-710 and 
I-105 freeways.  There are also two (2) CMP intersections that are located within the study area, 
one in the City of South Gate the other in the City of Downey. This task also includes the 
summation of count data, field measurements, lane configuration, phasing at each intersection, 
speed limits and intersection and land use observations including existing roadway conditions as 
well as identification of schools or large shopping centers.    
   
The following intersection counts will be conducted during peak commute times on a weekday. 
Intersections are shown on the attached map.  Limited locations from this list will be counted 
during the Friday late and Saturday late periods as listed below. 

 
Weekday Counts 

City of Huntington Park (HP) 
1. Florence Avenue and California Avenue (Bell/Huntington Park Border) 
2. Santa Ana Street and Otis Street (South Gate/Huntington Park Border) 

 
City of Bell (B) 

3. Gage Avenue and Atlantic Avenue 
4. Florence Avenue and Otis Avenue 
5. Florence Avenue and Atlantic Avenue 

Page 114 of 385



September 2, 2015 
Mr. Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director 
Subject:  PROPOSAL FOR TRAFFIC ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE PREPARATION OF A TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS FOR A 

PROPOSED CASINO 
Page 5 
 

 

 
City of Cudahy (C) 

6. Live Oak Street and Atlantic Avenue 
7. Clara Street and Atlantic Avenue 
8. Elizabeth Street and Atlantic Avenue 
9. Santa Ana Street and Atlantic Avenue 
10. Cecelia Street (WEST) and Atlantic Avenue  
11. Cecelia Street (EAST) and Atlantic Avenue 
12. Patata Street and Atlantic Avenue 

 
City of South Gate (SG) 

13. Firestone Boulevard and Atlantic Avenue 
14. Southern Avenue and Atlantic Avenue 
15. Tweedy Boulevard and Atlantic Avenue 
16. Michigan Avenue and Atlantic Avenue 
17. Firestone Boulevard and California Avenue 
18. Tweedy Boulevard and California Avenue 
19. Tweedy Boulevard and Otis Street 
20. Firestone Boulevard and Otis Street 
21. Independence Avenue/Ardmore Avenue and Otis Street 
22. Firestone Boulevard and Garfield Avenue/Eastern Avenue 

 
City of Lynwood (L) 

23. Abbott Road and Atlantic Avenue 
24. Imperial Highway and Otis Street 
25. Imperial Highway and Atlantic Avenue 

 
City of Bell Gardens (BG) 

26. Florence Avenue and Eastern Avenue  
27. Garfield Avenue and Eastern Avenue (South Gate/Bell Gardens Border) 

 
City of Downey (D) 

28. Old River School Road and Firestone Boulevard 
 
710 Freeway Ramps 

29. 710 SB On/Off Ramp (Florence Avenue – Bell) 
30. 710 NB On/Off Ramp (Florence Avenue – Bell) 
31. 710 SB Off Ramp (Abbot Road – South Gate) 
32. 710 SB On/Off Ramp (Firestone Boulevard – South Gate) 
33. 710 NB On/Off Ramp (Firestone Boulevard – South Gate) 
34. 710 SB On/Off Ramp (Imperial Highway – South Gate/Lynwood Border) 
35. 710 NB On/Off Ramp (Imperial Highway – South Gate/Lynwood Border) 

 
Friday Late Counts 

The following (10) intersections will be counted and included for analysis on a Friday 
22:00 to 24:00 hours: 

Page 115 of 385



September 2, 2015 
Mr. Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director 
Subject:  PROPOSAL FOR TRAFFIC ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE PREPARATION OF A TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS FOR A 

PROPOSED CASINO 
Page 6 
 

 

1. 710 SB On/Off Ramp (Florence Avenue – Bell) 
2. 710 NB On/Off Ramp (Florence Avenue – Bell) 
3. Atlantic Avenue and Florence Avenue 
4. Atlantic Avenue and Patata Street 
5. Atlantic Avenue and Firestone Boulevard 
6. 710 SB On/Off Ramp (Firestone Boulevard – South Gate) 
7. 710 NB On/Off Ramp (Firestone Boulevard – South Gate) 
8. Atlantic Avenue at Imperial Highway 
9. 710 SB On/Off Ramp (Imperial Highway – South Gate/Lynwood Border) 
10. 710 NB On/Off Ramp (Imperial Highway – South Gate/Lynwood Border) 
 

Saturday Late Counts 
The following (10) intersections will be counted and included for analysis on a 
Saturday 21:00 to 23:00 hours: 
1. 710 SB On/Off Ramp (Florence Avenue – Bell) 
2. 710 NB On/Off Ramp (Florence Avenue – Bell) 
3. Atlantic Avenue and Florence Avenue 
4. Atlantic Avenue and Patata Street 
5. Atlantic Avenue and Firestone Boulevard 
6. 710 SB On/Off Ramp (Firestone Boulevard – South Gate) 
7. 710 NB On/Off Ramp (Firestone Boulevard – South Gate) 
8. Atlantic Avenue at Imperial Highway 
9. 710 SB On/Off Ramp (Imperial Highway – South Gate/Lynwood Border) 
10. 710 NB On/Off Ramp (Imperial Highway – South Gate/Lynwood Border) 

 
Roadway 24 hour 3 day Counts 

Roadway Segments: 24-hour bi-directional traffic counts will be conducted (3) 
different time periods: 1 weekday, 1 Friday and 1 Saturday using automatic traffic 
counters at the following locations: 
1. Atlantic Avenue: between Florence Avenue and Live Oak Street  
2. Atlantic Avenue: between Clara Street and Elizabeth Street 
3. Atlantic Avenue: between Cecelia Street and Patata Street 
4. Atlantic Avenue: between Patata Street and Firestone Boulevard 
5. Florence Avenue West of Atlantic Avenue 
6. Florence Avenue East of Atlantic Avenue 
7. Patata  Street/Independence Avenue West of Atlantic Avenue 
8. Firestone Boulevard West of Atlantic Avenue 
9. Firestone Boulevard East of Atlantic Avenue  

 
The proposed driveway locations at the site will be studied to determine whether project related 
traffic will have any circulation impacts and/or create unacceptable on-street queues and delay 
to existing traffic.  This will include a queue analysis at the main driveways off of Atlantic Avenue 
to determine if a left turn pocket or right turn deceleration lane is needed for egress and ingress. 

 

Please see following page for project vicinity and potential study area map.  

Page 116 of 385



September 2, 2015 
Mr. Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director 
Subject:  PROPOSAL FOR TRAFFIC ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE PREPARATION OF A TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS FOR A 

PROPOSED CASINO 
Page 7 
 

 

     

Page 117 of 385



September 2, 2015 
Mr. Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director 
Subject:  PROPOSAL FOR TRAFFIC ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE PREPARATION OF A TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS FOR A 

PROPOSED CASINO 
Page 8 
 

 

4. Estimate the number of new trips to be generated by the proposed Casino and Restaurant during 
each of the study periods; weekday, Friday night and Saturday night. The assumptions used for 
estimating Casino traffic will be approved/refined by discussions with the City and Casino 
Management. Trips generated by the restaurant will be calculated based on the Institute of 
Transportation Engineers Trip Generation Manual (ITE) 9th Edition.  After the amount of trips are 
determined the project related trips will be assigned to various roadway segments and 
intersections with regional trip distribution percentages of car trips established in accordance 
with trip origin-destination assumptions, engineering judgement and in consultation with City 
staff.   This task will also include calculation of trips generated by any occupied existing use at the 
proposed parcel.  Since the proposed Casino will replace existing use, traffic generated by a use 
that is presently occupied will be estimated and will be subtracted from the total proposed trips 
generated by the Casino to arrive at the amount of “New” trips that will be on the roadways due 
to the proposed project.   We have attached a draft project trip generation table.   

 
5. Estimate peak hour and daily trips generated from any approved but not yet constructed projects 

in the vicinity. Trips generated by these projects will be generated by using the standard ITE Trip 
Generation Manual 9th Edition. These trips will then be distributed throughout the study network 
to determine a related project condition.  A list of projects to be included in the study with 
available identifying information will need to be obtained from City staff and from staff at adjacent 
agencies using  any available records such as submitted traffic studies or project applications.  
Distribution percentages will be based on traffic studies, regional distribution assumptions, 
professional judgement and consultation with City staff.      

 
6. Following local guidelines, a level of service (LOS) analysis using the Intersection Capacity 

Utilization (ICU) methodology at signalized intersections or the 2000 Highway Capacity Manual 
method at freeway ramps will be used to determine operating conditions at all study locations.  
All locations will be evaluated using the TRAFFIX 8.0 software program.   A level of service (LOS) 
with and without the project will be compared to identify any project related impacts.  If the 
project exceeds thresholds for determining project impacts than mitigation measures will be 
prepared and a LOS analysis showing before and after conditions will be conducted.   Base future 
traffic conditions will be determined using an ambient growth rate as found in the Congestion 
Management Program Exhibit D-1.    

 
A level of service analysis will be completed for the following scenarios for each time period; 
weekday commute AM and PM, Friday peak hour and Saturday peak hour: 

 Existing Conditions 

 Opening Year Base (Existing + Ambient Growth Factor)  

 Opening Year + Proposed Project Traffic 

 Opening Year + Proposed Project Traffic + Related Projects Traffic 

 Conditions with and without any Mitigation Measures 

 Horizon Year or built out 2035 Base Conditions 

 Horizon Year Cumulative 2035 Conditions with Project Conditions 

 Horizon Year 2035 With and Without Mitigation Measures 
 

Page 118 of 385



September 2, 2015 
Mr. Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director 
Subject:  PROPOSAL FOR TRAFFIC ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE PREPARATION OF A TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS FOR A 

PROPOSED CASINO 
Page 9 
 

 

7. Identify and develop appropriate traffic impact mitigation measures to reduce project-related 
impacts, if any, at the study locations to a level of insignificance (LOS D or above) or to an 
operating level prior to the addition of project traffic.    

 
8. Prepare a Draft Traffic Impact Study (TIS) report summarizing the results of analysis with suitable 

text, figures, tables and exhibits in accordance with City and County traffic study guidelines, and 
submit to the city for review, comments and approval.   

 
9. Prepare the final version of the TIS report incorporating any comments/questions on the study 

from the City that will not require additional technical analysis beyond the scope of work 
proposed.   All data and calculations will be included in a technical appendix. This task includes 
the preparation of the report and response to comments by the City.  The traffic impact study 
report will be stamped and signed by a registered professional engineer.  3 bound copies and 1 
electronic copy will be provided to the City.  

  

Page 119 of 385



September 2, 2015 
Mr. Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director 
Subject:  PROPOSAL FOR TRAFFIC ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE PREPARATION OF A TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS FOR A 

PROPOSED CASINO 
Page 10 
 

 

FEE 

 
The fee breakdown for the scope of services as listed above is provided in the attached table.  The scope 
and thereby the fee could change after discussions with City staff.  The final fee would reflect any changes 
to the scope of services to be provided. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Sr
. E

ng

Sr
. T

ra
ff

ic
 E

ng

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 

An
al

ys
t

St
af

f E
ng

As
so

ci
at

e 
En

g

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

Te
ch

$155 $130 $120 $65

Col lection and Analys is  of Operational  Data from Agencies 2 8 8 8 $2,830

Field Reviews, Data Col lection of Exis ting Field Conditions 8 12 12 12 $5,020

Summary of a l l  Field Count Data, Measurements , Land Use, etc. 2 8 24 8 $4,750

Trip Generation and Dis tribution of Project Traffic and Related 

Projects
8 24 8 0 $5,320

LOS Analys is  for 4 Separate Time Periods  for each s tudy scenario 12 48 16 0 $10,020

Mitigation Measures  and Analys is 12 48 16 0 $10,020

Preparation of Draft Report with a l l  Figures , Tables  and Text 24 56 24 8 $14,400

Preparation of Fina l  Vers ion of Report incorporating Comments 12 24 12 0 $6,420

Meetings  Budget Al location (It i s  anticipated that more than 

usual  number of meeting may be necessary with Ci ty, Publ ic, Ci ty 

Counci l/Planning Commiss ion, Publ ic/Community, etc. due to the 

nature of such projects .  At this  point, a  budget i s  provided as  an 

estimate based on 8 meetings .  It i s  assumed, the meetings  wi l l  

be attended by  Sr. Eng/Traffic Eng and Transportation Analyst, 

and 4 hrs  by each s taff per meeting.  Plus , 4 hrs  for document and 

minute preparations  for each meeting by support s taff.

32 32 32 0 $12,960

Labor Subtotal 112 260 152 36 $71,740

40 $225 $9,000 

14 $175 $2,450 

14 $175 $2,450 

27 $75 $2,025 

$1,000

$87,665

Reproduction Cost Budget Al location Estimate

TOTAL

Staffing and Estimated Budget Allocations Est. Total

Manual  Intersection Peak Hr Counts  by count contractor (Weekday 7:00-9:00, 14:00-

18:00)

Manual  Intersection Peak Hour Counts  by count contractor (Friday 22:00 to 24:00)

Manual  Intersection Peak Hour Counts  by count contractor (Sat 21:00 to 23:00)

24 Hour Tube Counts  by count contractor (3 days : Thurs , Fri  and Sat- 9 loc x 3 

days=27)

Page 120 of 385



September 2, 2015 
Mr. Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director 
Subject:  PROPOSAL FOR TRAFFIC ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE PREPARATION OF A TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS FOR A 

PROPOSED CASINO 
Page 11 
 

 

We look forward to meeting with the City Management Staff to discuss our proposal, and incorporate any 
suggestions City may have, and develop a consolidated services contract for an efficient and cost effective 
full municipal contract services. 
 
Sincerely, 

Ali Cayir 
Ali Cayir, PE 
Principal 
 

Jana Robbins 
Jana Robbins, PTP, Professional Transportation Planner 
 
Attachment: Summary of Qualifications 
 
D:\DROPBOX (TRANSTECH ENGINEERS)\PROPOSALS\2015\P-15.096 CUDAHY CASINO PROPOSAL\PROPOSAL\P-15.096 CUDAHY CASINO PROPOSAL.DOCX 

Page 121 of 385



SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 

 

 

1 

SERVICE CAPABILITIES 
Transtech, established in 1989, is a full service municipal engineering consulting firm.  Our main service 
areas in municipal engineering include contract Building and Safety, City Engineer, City Traffic Engineer, 
Grant Writing, CIP Program Management, Design and Construction Management.   Our service capabilities 
include:  
 Municipal Engineering, City Engineer, City Traffic Engineer, Capital Improvement Projects, Development Review, 

Plan Check.  

 Building and Safety Services, Building Inspection, Plan Check, Building Evaluations, City Building Official, Code 
Enforcement. 

 Housing/Rehabilitation Program Management, CDBG Program Management, Housing/Building 
Improvement/Evaluations.  

 Federally Funded Project Management and Grant Applications Preparation. 

 Planning.  

 Civil Engineering, Freeways and Interchanges, Local Streets and Roads, Sewerage, Water and Storm Drain, 
Pavement Management System, Grading Studies. 

 Program and Construction Management, Owner Representative, Contract Administration, Construction 
Inspection, Labor Compliance. 

 Traffic and Transportation Planning and Engineering. 

 Surveying, Mapping, ALTA, Right-of-way Engineering.  

 Emergency and Disaster Response, Support and Recovery Services. 

 Transtech also serves as Interim Director of Public Works Department for various Cities on as needed basis. 

 Transtech has extensive experience in grant writing and administration.  Our staff works with our client cities to 
find potential funding sources, and to prepare competitive applications for various programs.  Additionally, after 
funds are awarded to a client, our experienced staff provides assistance to ensure compliance with applicable 
funding program requirements, including preparing necessary clearance approvals (environmental, utilities, 
right-of-way), processing E-76 authorizations, and managing the project.  We have facilitated approximately $70 
million in funds for our clients' public works projects and transportation improvements.    

  

Page 122 of 385



SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 

 

 

2 

TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION ENGINEERING/PLANNING: 
Transtech serves as contract traffic engineer for a number of municipalities in Los Angeles County, and are very 
knowledgeable of traffic and transportation issues and trends locally and regionally.  We work and coordinate with 
Los Angeles County, MTA, SCAG and Caltrans on various projects on behalf of our local agency clients.  We advise 
our client cities on actions needed to comply with County, State, and Federal regulations related to city streets, 
traffic regulation and traffic management.  We provide technical expertise and recommendations, and conduct 
necessary surveys and prepare reports on traffic related issues, and present them at Commission and/or Council 
Meetings.  We manage and coordinate with our client’s signal maintenance contractors regarding signal timing and 
coordination, and advise when to improve the signal timing efficiency when necessary.  We prepare traffic safety 
and calming studies, stop and signal warrants/studies, traffic impact studies, respond to City requests, citizen 
complaints and attend Traffic Commission meetings. We review traffic impact studies submitted by developers, 
provide traffic study guidelines to other consultants preparing TIA’s and represent the City at planning commission 
and council meetings when these projects are reviewed and presented. We also assess safety for pedestrians, buses 
and bicycles by reviewing master plans completed for transit and bicycles as well as safe walk to school routes.  
Following are various traffic engineering projects and studies completed by Transtech: 

 
Traffic Safety Review and Recommendations 
 
Client Project Title Brief Summary 

City of Commerce Focused Traffic Impact 
Study  

Preparation Of Traffic Study To Identify And Evaluate The 
Traffic Impacts Of Eliminating The Westbound Left Turn 
Movement At The Intersection Of Washington Blvd And 
Cobb Street  To Improve Traffic Flow Along Washington 
Boulevard. 
 

City of Commerce Focused Traffic Impact 
Study and Safety Review 

Preparation Of A Traffic Study To Identify And Evaluate 
The Traffic Impacts Of Modifying The Median Islands In 
Front Of McDonalds And Costco Facilities And Provide 
Recommendations To Improve Vehicular Safety. 
 

City of Inglewood Crenshaw “S” Curve Safety 
Review 

A Safety Assessment Of Traffic Conditions Along 
Crenshaw Boulevard Between Manchester Boulevard And 
79th Street. The Assessment Was Needed Due To The 
Horizontal Curve, The High Number Of Accidents That 
Occur Annually Along This Roadway.   Staff Later Prepared 
a HSIP Funding Package for Submittal. The HSIP Funding 
was successful. 

 
 
Traffic Calming Review and Recommendations 
 
Client Project Title Brief Summary 

City of Alhambra Pine Street Cut-Thru 
Traffic Assessment 

As Part Of Ongoing Efforts To Improve Safety, Reduce 
Accident Potential And Improve Traffic Conditions On 
Pine Street Between Huntington Drive And Atlantic 
Boulevard, Studies Were Conducted And 
Recommendations Developed For City Council’s 
Consideration. Project Went Thru City Council, Traffic 
Commission Review And Approvals As Well As 
Coordination With South Pasadena. 
 

Page 123 of 385



SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 

 

 

3 

City of Alhambra Norwood Traffic Calming 
Study 

An Initial Review Of The Traffic Patterns And Volume 
Entering And Exiting Norwood Avenue South Of Valley 
Blvd  In Order To Assess The Magnitude Of Traffic 
Currently Using Residential Streets In Order To Bypass 
Congestion On Valley.  
 

City of Inglewood North City Traffic Calming Traffic Calming Study For The Residential Area Bordered 
By Centinela Avenue To The South, La Cienega Blvd To 
The West, La Brea Avenue To The East And Slauson To 
The North. Transtech Prepared An Initial Review Of The 
Traffic Patterns And Volume Entering And Exiting The 
Above Mentioned Neighborhood.    

 
School Site Review 
 
Client Project Title Brief Summary 

City of Alhambra Mark Keppel High School Relocation Of An Existing School Crosswalk In Front Of 
The Mark Keppel High School And The Relocation Of The 
Crosswalk. This Project Went Thru School District And 
Council Review. 
 

City of Alhambra Fremont School Site Assessment Of Current Drop Off And Pick Up Policies 
As Well As Review Of Existing Signage And Striping.  
Recommendations For New Valet Program And Signage 
And Striping. 
 

City of Inglewood John Wilder Academy Comprehensive Review Of Drop-Off And Pick-Up 
Operations And Traffic And Pedestrian Circulation At 
Wilder Academy.  This Project Went Thru Council 
Member, Academy And Council Review. 
 

Pomona Unified School 
District 

School Site Assessments 
and Traffic Circulation for 
(5)  school sites 

Cortez Elementary School, Montvue Elementary, Rio 
Rancho Elementary, Philadelphia Elementary, Dudley 
Elementary 
 

Whittier School District School Site and Traffic 
Circulation Assessment 

Benton Middle School 
 
 

City of Huntington Park School Site Review & 
Assessment of Crosswalks,  
Crossing Guards, & Signage 

Nimitz Middle School, Hope Elementary School, San 
Antonio Elementary, South Region Elementary School 

 
 
Preparation of Warrants for All-Way Stop, Traffic Signals, Beacons and Pedestrian Devices 
  
Client Project Title Brief Summary 

City of Alhambra 
City of Commerce 
City of Inglewood 
City of Huntington Park 

Various Focused Reports 
Prepared for Public Works 
or Traffic Dept. 

Prepared Traffic Review With Existing Conditions Analysis, 
Observations, Counts For The Preparation Of Various 
Warrants Using CAMUTCD and CVC. Went to PW and 
Traffic Commission 

Project Category: Preparation of Data Required for CMP Submittal   

Page 124 of 385



SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 

 

 

4 

Client Project Title Brief Summary 

City of Alhambra 
City of Inglewood 
City of Compton 

Preparation of CMP Data Information Included Peak Hour Count, LOS Analysis And 
Letter Report. 

 
 
Preparation of City-Wide Engineering and Speed Survey 
 
Client Project Title Brief Summary 
Various Cities Citywide Engineering and 

Speed Survey 
Prepared The City-Wide Engineering And Speed Surveys.  
Transtech Staff is radar certified with the Rio Hondo 
College Justice Center.   

 
 
Peer Review of Traffic Studies Prepared by Outside Consultants Submitted to Client Cities   
 
Client Project Title Brief Summary 

City of Alhambra Main Street Master Plan 
Various Small Studies 

Preparation Of Scope And The Review Of Traffic Studies 
For Proposed Development Projects within each City  

City of Commerce Co Development 

City of Inglewood Hollywood Park 

UC Riverside 2nd Phase of West Side 
Campus 

 
 
Full Traffic Impact Reports and Parking Analysis 
 
Client Project Title Brief Summary 

 
Private Developer Restaurant Depot TIA in 

the City of Diamond Bar 
Traffic Impact Analysis Is To Evaluate The Traffic 
Circulation Impacts Of Developing A Project With 
Warehouse Distribution Use Called “Restaurant Depot”.   

Private Developer Big Bear Galleria in City of 
Big Bear 

Full Traffic Impact Analysis For A Commercial And 
Shopping Site In Big Bear Lake.  
 

Private Developer Carl’s Junior in County 
Area of San Bernardino 

Full Traffic Impact Analysis For A Fast Food Restaurant 
 
 

City of San Bernardino City General Plan Update Transtech Prepared The Circulation Element And 
EIR/Traffic Study For The City’s 2005 General Plan Update.  
The Proposed Land Use Plan And Its Impacts Were 
Analyzed. The Study Included Approximately 100 
Intersections And 80 Street Segments.  Future Traffic 
Condition Scenarios Were Developed Using State-Of-The-
Art Transportation Planning Modeling Software.  
 

City of San Juan 
Capistrano 

Master Plan for Downtown 
Area  

Determine The Historic Town Center Master Plan’s 
Potential Impacts On The City Of San Juan Capistrano’s 
Transportation System And To Identify Strategies For 
Improving The Transportation System’s Overall 

Page 125 of 385



SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 

 

 

5 

Effectiveness Through A Multimodal Approach.   

Private Developer Shandin Hills TIA in the 
City of San Bernardino 

Traffic Assessment Of Project Impacts Of The Proposed 
Master Plan Community Which Is Comprised Of Housing, 
Commercial And Schools.  
 

UC Riverside West Campus 
Development  Project 

Determine Potential Impacts On The Surrounding 
Circulation System With The Development Of An 
Expanding Campus, Site And Student Enrollment.  
 

City of Lawndale City-Wide Parking Study The Study Took A Comprehensive Look At The Parking 
Supply And Demand Issues That Explain The Parking 
Deficiencies In The City. The Study Conducted A City-Wide 
Occupancy Survey Of Both On-Site And On-Street Parking 
And Described Options Developed To Address The 
Deficiencies.   
 

City of Industry Grand Central Material 
Recovery Facility 

Prepared comprehensive area wide traffic impact study to 
identify the potential impacts associated with 
development of the proposed Industry Materials 
Recovery Facility (MRF).   
 

City of San Marcos San Elijo Ranch 
Development EIR/Traffic 
Study 

Prepared An EIR/Traffic Impact Study For A 3,200 Unit San 
Elijo Ranch Development Project.  The Study Area 
Encompassed A 5 Mile Radius From The Center Of The 
Development  
 

City of Torrance City-Wide Safe Route to 
School Project 

Evaluated Existing Signage, Striping And Traffic Conditions 
Around 32 Schools In The City Of Torrance.  This Included 
The Preparation Of Safe Route To School Maps And 
Recommendations For Each School. 
 

City of Huntington 
Beach 

Pedestrian Study Produced This Report As Part Of An Effort By The City Of 
Huntington Beach To Evaluate The Impacts Of Main Street 
Two Block And Three Block Street Closures During 
Weeknight Surf City Events And Weekend Events. 

  

Page 126 of 385



SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 

 

 

6 

BUILDING AND SAFETY, AND CITY ENGINEER SERVICES 
Transtech serves as Contract Building Official and City Engineer for a number of agencies.  Currently, we are under 
contract for similar services with the following agencies: 

 Alhambra:  Building Official, Plan Check, Inspection, City Engineer, Traffic Engineer, CIP Program Management, 
Dev Review, Dev Inspection, Map and Plan Check, Permit Processing, Traffic Impact Report Review and Prep. 

 Huntington Park:  Building Official, Plan Check, Inspection, Traffic Engineer, CIP Program Management, Dev 
Review, Dev Inspection, Map and Plan Check, Permit Processing, Traffic Impact Report Review and Prep. 

 Hawaiian Gardens:  Building Official, Plan Check, Inspection, Permit Processing. 

 Commerce: Map and Plan Check, Building Permit Processing Staff Augmentation/Support, Commerce CIP 
Program Management. 

 Cudahy: Building Plan Check, CIP Program Management.  

 South Pasadena:  Building Official, Plan Check, Inspection, Permit Processing. 

 Temple City: Building Official, Plan Check, Inspection, City Engineer, Traffic Engineer, CIP Program Management, 
Dev Review, Dev Inspection, Map and Plan Check, Permit Processing, Traffic Impact Report Review and Prep. 

 San Manuel Indian Reservation and Casino: Building Official, Plan Check, Inspection, Casino Expansion Plan 
Check, Code Inspection. 

 Monterey Park: Building Inspection, Plan Check, City Engineer, Traffic Engineer, CIP Program Management, Dev 
Review, Map and Plan Check, Traffic Impact Report Review and Prep. 

 County of Riverside, EDA, Engineering and Building Evaluation Services. 

 
Transtech also has extensive experience in Plan Check, Inspection and Construction Management of large and 
complex projects, such as: 

 Casino Expansion for at San Manuel Indian Reservation: Transtech recently completed plan check on started 
building inspection services for Casino expansion project for San Manuel India Reservation.  Project Value $40m.  
Transtech is the reservations Building Official, Plan Checker and Inspector.  

 Casino Construction Project for City of Hawaiian Gardens:  Transtech is currently providing building inspection 
services for the project.  Transtech is the City’s Building Official, Plan Checker and Inspector.  Project Value $60m. 

 TACC Cultural Center Development, Lanham, MD:  Transtech provided plan check, inspection, construction 
management and owner representative services for the construction of 310,000 sf cultural center, including 
Olympic Swimming Pool, Indoor Full Basketball Court, Museum, Performance Center, Restaurant, Religious 
Center, Monastery.  Project Value: $100m. 

 City of Alhambra Civic Library Project: Transtech provided plan check, inspection, construction management and 
owner representative services for the construction of 45,000 SF 2 story library with 2 levels of underground 
parking garage.  Project Value: $30m.  Transtech is the City’s Building Official, Plan Checker and Inspector. 

 Riverside County Transportation Commission, Corona Main Street Metrolink Parking Structure and Pedestrian 
Bridge:  Transtech provided inspection and construction management services for the construction of a 6 level, 
approximately 1,000 space parking structure, and a pedestrian bridge over rail road tracks. Project Value: $24m. 

 City of Alhambra Renaissance Plaza Parking Structure and Entertainment Center:  Construction of a 5 level, 
approximately 600 space parking structure, as well as a 10 plex movie theater, and 3 restaurants and retail stores.   
Project Value: $40m.  Transtech is the City’s Building Official, Plan Checker and Inspector. 

 City of Commerce City Hall Addition and Rosewood Community Center.  Construction of 20,000 SF addition to 
existing City Hall, new Community Center.  Project value: $20m. 

 City of San Bernardino Historic Santa Fe Depot Renovation: Transtech provided plan check, inspection and 
construction management services for the renovations adoptive reuse of 60,000 sf historical Santa Fe Train 
Depot.  Project Value: $20m.  Transtech also served as Interim Building Official, Plan Checker and Inspector for 
the City.  

 Alhambra Redevelopment Agency Downtown Revitalization Program:  Transtech provided plan check, inspection, 
construction management and owner representative services for the revitalization program, which involved 
various projects, including Fremont Plaza (modifications/reconstruction of existing buildings for lease by ToysRUs 

Page 127 of 385



SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 

 

 

7 

and Party City, construction of a new 30,000 SF store for PetSmart, and various other retail buildings) and 
Downtown Revitalization (modification/upgrade of existing buildings for Starbucks, 4 Restaurants and various 
retail businesses).   Project Value $50m.  Transtech is the City’s Building Official, Plan Checker and Inspector. 

 
Licenses and Certificates of the Firm and Staff members include: 

 ICC Certified Building Official 

 CASp, California Access Specialist 

 ICC Certified Building, Electrical, Mechanical and 
Plumbing Plans Examiner  

 ICC Certified Fire Plans Examiner 

 Accessibility Plans Examiner 

 CalGreen-California Green Building Plan Examiner   

 ICC Certified Commercial Building, Electrical, 
Mechanical and Plumbing Inspector           

 Accessibility Inspector     

 CalGreen-California Green Building Inspector  

 IAPMO Certified Plumbing, Mechanical Inspector 

  CA Commercial and Res Plumbing Inspector 
Plumbing Inspector UPC  

 CA Residential Mechanical Inspector 

 CACEO Certified Code Enforcement Official 
Professional Licensed Engineer (PE, SE, ME, EE) 

 Professional Licensed Traffic Engineer (TE) 

 Professional Licensed Land Surveyor (PLS) 

 Qualified Storm Water Pollution Prevention 
Plan Developer (QSD) 

 Qualified Storm Water Pollution Prevention 
Plan Practitioner (QSP) 

 Licensed General Contractor A and B 

 
Our Building and Safety staff members have served and/or are currently serving on various ICC and Building 
Official Committees, including: 

 Chair; ICC Sustainability Membership Council 

 Chair; ICC Los Angeles Basin Chapter Inspection Committee 

 Commissioner; ICC Codes & Standards Council 

 Commissioner; CALBO Green Committee 

 ICC Los Angeles Basin Chapter Board of Directors 

 ICC Building Officials Membership Governing Council 

 ICC Code Development Committee Vice Chair 

 ICC Technology/Web Advisory Group 

 IAS Accreditation Committee 
 

 
  

Page 128 of 385



SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 

 

 

8 

CIVIL ENGINEERING/DESIGN: 

 State Route 710 Interim Improvements and Fremont Ave. Widening/Realignment:  Prepared PS&E as well as 
provided construction management and inspection services for 3 federally funded projects in Alhambra.   
Improvements included street, water, sewer, storm drain, landscape, street lighting, traffic signal, and signing 
and striping plans.  The project also involved coordination with Caltrans and encroachment permit 
processing/approval, as portions of the project was in Caltrans jurisdiction.   These projects were all federally 
funded, requiring processing for E-76 through Caltrans Local Assistance.  The total cost for 3 projects was $20M.   

 City of Alhambra Valley Boulevard Widening Project:  Prepared PS&E as well as provided construction 
management and inspection services for Valley Boulevard widening from west to east city limits.  The project 
was funded by a federal grant.  Transtech was responsible for compliance with all requirements as detailed in 
Caltrans Local Program Manual, and Reengineering”  including: completing Preliminary Environmental 
Documents, Right-of-Way Engineering, and certifying PS&E compliance to Caltrans.  Improvements included 
street, water, sewer, storm drain, landscape, street lighting, traffic signal, and signing and striping plans.  Cost 
$6M. 

 Mission Boulevard Widening:  Prepared PS&E as well as provided construction management and inspection 
services for Mission Boulevard widening and reconstruction.  Improvements included street, water, sewer, 
storm drain, landscape, street lighting, traffic signal, and signing and striping plans.  Transtech/Mapco also 
provided construction management and inspection services for the project.    The project involved coordination 
with Caltrans, and was federally funded and required processing for E-76 through Caltrans Local Assistance.  
Cost $3M. 

 City of Commerce, Washington Boulevard Overlay Project:  Prepared PS&E for the rehabilitation of Washington 
Boulevard between the I-5 Freeway and Atlantic Boulevard in the City of Commerce.  The project involved 
coordination with Caltrans, and was federally funded and required processing for E-76 through Caltrans Local 
Assistance.  The total cost $1M. 

 City of Baldwin Park, Francisquito Avenue Overlay Project:  Prepared PS&E for the rehabilitation of Francisquito 
Avenue between west and east city limits in the City of Baldwin Park.  The project involved coordination with 
Caltrans, and was federally funded and required processing for E-76 through Caltrans Local Assistance.  Cost 
$1.4M.  

 CSUSB (Cal State SB University) San Bernardino Campus Access Road:    Prepared PS&E and provided 
construction administration for the project.  Improvements included approximately 1 mile street, water, 
landscape, grading, drainage, street lighting and various other improvements.  Cost $6M. 

 CSUSB (Cal State SB University) Perimeter Road for CSUSB Palm Desert Campus:  Prepared PS&E for the project.  
Improvements included street, water, landscape, grading, drainage, street lighting and various other 
improvements.  Cost $1M. 

 CSUSB (Cal State SB University):  Campus Health Center Expansion: Prepared PS&E for the project for grading, 
utilities and civil engineering.  Cost $8M. 

 University of California, Riverside - West Campus Infrastructure:  Prepared West Campus Infrastructure 
Development Design/Study, which identified utility and surface infrastructure requirements, and how these 
improvements could be phased to accommodate proposed campus growth, for an area of  236.8 acres to 
support approximately 5 million gross square feet of academic, research, support, and student housing facilities.  
Cost $20M. 

 City of San Bernardino Campus Parkway Roadway Design:  Prepared PS&E as well as provided construction 
management and inspection services for the project.  Improvements included street, water, sewer, storm drain, 
landscape, street lighting, traffic signal, and signing and striping.  Cost $6M. 

 Alameda Corridor Agency East (ACE) Rail Grade Crossing Jumpstart Improvement Project:  Prepared PS&E for 
Federally Funded Jump Start Improvement Package #1-Rail Grade Crossing Improvements for Alameda Corridor 
Agency East (ACE).  Project involved 6 agencies and 14 locations in Los Angeles County.  Work involved roadway 
realignment and reconstruction, signalization, traffic control, and construction phasing as well as related 
improvements such as storm drain, water, sewer landscaping, underground utilities, etc.   Cost $8M. 

Page 129 of 385



SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 

 

 

9 

 City of Glendale I-5/Colorado Off-ramp Realignment:  Designed the realignment and reconstruction of the I-
5/Colorado Off-ramp, including roadway, drainage, signal, striping and traffic control under Caltrans 
Encroachment permit. Cost: $1m. 

 City of Torrance Crenshaw and Skypark Reconstruction Projects:  Prepared PS&E for Federally Funded 
reconstruction/rehabilitation of Crenshaw Boulevard and Skypark Avenue (2 separate projects). Transtech also 
provided construction management services for the project.  Cost: $3m. 

 City of Commerce-Street Rehabilitation Program, Tubeway and Yates Reconstruction/Overlay:  Prepared PS&E 
for 2 projects. The projects involved roadway rehabilitation and reconstruction, storm drain, water and sewer 
design.  Transtech also provided construction management services for the project.  Cost: $0.5m. 

 Riverside County Economic Development Agency, Real Estate Division, Engineering and Construction Services 
on various housing, real estate and infrastructure projects. 

 City of San Bernardino, Sewer upgrade project:  Preparation of a project PSE for upgrade of main sewer lines at 
various locations per the City’s Sewer Master Plan.  Cost: $1.2 m 

 City of Commerce - Master Sewer Study Telegraph Corridor re-vitalization project:  Documentation of existing 
system. Design capacity analysis based upon land use designations. Produced master plan study report for the 
project along with cost estimates. 

 Northpark Boulevard Sewer Extension - Half mile gravity sewer main extension for University Park Subdivision 
in the City of San Bernardino:  Project required special structural designs and encroachment permitting for 
crossing 100’ aqueduct right-of-way.  

 University Park Storm Drain Design: Design of storm drain system with pipes ranging in size from 18 to 60 inches 
and trapezoidal channel design for 4500 cfs. 

 Penasquitos Canyon Trunk Sewer:  PS&E for two miles 36-inch gravity sewer including design study reports. City 
of San Diego. 

 Ranch Santa Fe Road Sewer Project:  Relocation and rehabilitation of 1.5 miles of sewer main. City of San Marcos 
(by Transtech’s VP, David Ragland while employed with another firm). 

 Fremont Avenue Water, Storm Drain and Sewer:  Design of water, storm drain and sewer improvements for 
the Fremont Avenue Widening project from Valley to Common Wealth in the City of Alhambra. 

 City of San Bernardino Water Projects:  Design and construction management of 3500 feet of 20 to 36 inch 
ductile iron water transmission main in the City of San Bernardino for the development of University Park. 
Design of over 10,000 feet of 8 thru 12 inch DIP water main for water distribution.  Structural arch design for 
road crossing over the Dept of Water Resources 109-inch Santa Ana pipeline.  

 City of Riverside Water Projects:  Water distribution analysis and computer modeling for University of California 
Riverside West Campus expansion infrastructure project. 

 City of San Marcos Water Projects:  Structural arch and encasement designs for road crossings over various 
SDCWA pipelines up to 108 inches in diameter.   Design of 30-inch CMLC steel water transmission main and 
pressure reducing stations. Included structural designs for hanging the waterline on a bridge (by Transtech’s 
VP, David Ragland while employed with another firm). 

 Rainbow Water District Water Projects:  Design of over 15,000 feet of 8-inch to 16-inch steel water main for 
the Polo Club project in San Diego County (by Transtech’s VP, David Ragland while employed with another 
firm). 

 City of Carlsbad Water Projects:   Design of many thousands of feet of PVC and DIP water lines for multiple 
subdivisions in the City with Carlsbad Municipal Water District and the Olivenhain Water District (by Transtech’s 
VP, David Ragland while employed with another firm). 

 
 
  

Page 130 of 385



SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 

 

 

10 

MASTER PLANS, FEASIBILITY STUDIES, FACILITIES NEEDS ASSESSMENT: 

 San Elijo Hills Specific Plan. Provided planning, engineering, surveying services for the design and development 
of the 2,000 acre 3,500 dwelling unit Specific Plan and Master Tentative Map in the City of San Marcos. 

 Shandin Hills Specific Plan. Provided planning engineering services for the preparation of the Specific Plan and 
Tentative Map.  The project is a proposed 240 acre 1049 dwelling unit community in the City of San Bernardino. 
Drafted the Specific Plan and prepared the master tentative map. 

 Arrowhead Springs Specific Plan (including annexation into the City):  4,000-acre site at the foothills of San 
Bernardino Mountains, and includes 1,500 to 2,000 residential units, 1,000,000 square feet of commercial and 
office space, 199-acre/18-hole public golf course, renovation and reuse of the historic Arrowhead Springs Hotel 
with a new 115 room annex, new 300-room hotel, a conference center, 14-acre corporate office area. 

 Eagle Bice, Muscupiabe Land Area Infrastructure Master Plan (Devore area in San Bernardino) Drainage, Sewer 
and Water Master Plan:  Approximately 500 acre area for future 1,100 unit master planned community. The 
project also included a full infrastructure (roadways, storm drain, water, sewer, parks, utilities) needs and 
assessment and cost analysis for this future development. 

 University Development Master Plan (San Bernardino):  Approximately 200 acre site in association with the City 
of San Bernardino, Watson Development and Cal-State SB for the development of 200 residential, mixed use, 
live-work, retail, office and student housing, educational and training facilities and offices for Cal State SB 
University. 

 Otay Ranch Sub Regional Plan. Member of the development task force for the Land planning, infrastructure 
preliminary design and assessment.  The task force developed project development alternatives based on 
discussions of the planning issues and local concerns, environmental constraints and opportunities and to 
review and make policy recommendations. The initial planning effort was to implement the Board of 
Supervisors’ Policy for the United Enterprise Holdings of approximately 22,000 acres in the County of San Diego 
and City of Chula Vista.  This included the establishment of the planning guidelines and procedures to accomplish 
the staged planning and development of the Otay Ranch “New Town” project (by Transtech’s VP, David Ragland 
while employed with another firm).  

 Kelly Ranch Master Plan. This was a 433 acre 1,600 dwelling unit master plan overlooking the Agua Hedionda 
Lagoon in the City of Carlsbad. VTN provided the planning and engineering for the approval of the Master Plan 
and Master Tentative Map. The project included significant onsite and offsite infrastructure improvements that 
were financed by an assessment district. The project was later sold to Hillman Properties, who subsequently 
developed the last phases of the project.  I was brought on by Hillman Properties to provide in-house consulting 
services relating to the construction, assessment district oversight, sales negotiations, and owners 
representative (by Transtech’s VP, David Ragland while employed with another firm). 

 Aviara Master Plan. Prepared land use planning studies, tentative maps, engineering design, reports, plans and 
specifications for the development of the 1,500 acres 2,000 home golf course and resort community in the City 
of Carlsbad. Prepared one of the first Public Facility Financing Plans for the City of Carlsbad (by Transtech’s VP, 
David Ragland while employed with another firm). 

 Parkway Business Centre:  Design and construction of the 460 Acre industrial park including South Poway 
Parkway for ADI Properties, Inc. Also served as Assessment Engineer for Communities Facilities District (by 
Transtech’s VP, David Ragland while employed with another firm). 

 University of Riverside West Campus Infrastructure Needs Assessment and Master Plan, including sewer, storm 
drain, water. 

 City of Alhambra Fremont Plaza (Old Sears Head Quarters Upgrade and Renovation evaluation for retail use 
(Transtech also served as PM/CM/Owners Representative).  Project Value: $10m.  

 County of Los Angeles Health Center Building Evaluation for City of Alhambra for Community Center Use (After 
initial evaluation, the building was deemed to be not suitable for the proposed use). 

 City of Monterey Park, City Public Works Yard Evaluation and Needs Assessment for new Yard (City is in 
negotiations with a developer to exchange existing PW yard land for a new land at a different location).  

Page 131 of 385



SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 

 

 

11 

 City of Monterey Park City-wide Parks (13 parks) ADA Deficiencies Assessment Study (Transtech also prepared 
improvement plans and the project is currently going into construction phase).  Project Value: $2m. 

 City of Huntington Beach Economic Development Agency, Condition Assessment/Facility Evaluation Report for 
Art Center Building After initial evaluation, the building was deemed to be not suitable for the proposed use). 

 City of Temple City, City-wide ADA and sidewalk master plan, and deficiencies (Currently the City is in the process 
of implementing the improvements using CDBG funds.  Transtech is serving as PM/CM/Owners Representative).  
Project Value: $2.5m. 

 City of Alhambra Street Lighting Master Plan. 

 City of San Marino Master Lighting Plan. 

 TACC Cultural Center Development Master Plan, Lanham, MD (Transtech is also serving as PM/CM/Owners 
Representative).  Project Value: $80m. 

 City of San Bernardino Historic Santa Fe Rail Depot Upgrade and Renovation evaluation for adoptive use 
(Transtech also served as PM/CM/Owners Representative).  Project Value: $20m. 

 Riverside County Economic Development Agency, Real Estate Division, Engineering and Construction Services 
on various housing, real estate and infrastructure projects. 

 
 
  

Page 132 of 385



SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 

 

 

12 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES (INFRASTRUCTURE/ROADWAY-TYPE A PROJECTS):  

 Rosemead Safety and Enhancement and ADA Improvements Project (Federally Funded), City of Temple City.  
Provided CM/Resident Engineer, Inspector, Office Engineer Services.  Project was inspected and managed in 
compliance with Caltrans Local Assistance Procedures Manual. Project involved reconstruction, pavement 
overlay, medians, landscape, curb and gutter, sidewalk, traffic signals, utilities and other misc. improvements.  
Cost $20m. 

 Nason/Cactus Roadway Improvements Project, City of Moreno Valley.  Provided CM/Resident Engineer, 
Inspector, Office Engineer Services.  Project was inspected and managed in compliance with Caltrans Local 
Assistance Procedures Manual. Project involved reconstruction, pavement overlay, medians, landscape, curb 
and gutter, sidewalk, traffic signals, utilities and other misc. improvements.  Project Value: $20m (Transtech 
won 2013 Construction Management Association of America-CMAA, Project Award for this Project). 

 Rte 71/Mission Bl Grade Separation Project (Federally Funded) City of Pomona.  Provided CM/Resident Engineer, 
Inspector, Office Engineer Services.  Project was inspected and managed in compliance with Caltrans Local 
Assistance Procedures Manual. Project involved construction of a grade separation.  Caltrans was the 
oversight/jurisdictional Agency.  Cost $40m. 

 710 Freeway Interim Improvements and Fremont Widening Project (Federally Funded), City of Alhambra.  
Provided CM/Resident Engineer, Inspector, Office Engineer Services.  Project was inspected and managed in 
compliance with Caltrans Local Assistance Procedures Manual. Project involved reconstruction, pavement 
overlay, medians, landscape, curb and gutter, sidewalk, traffic signals, utilities and other misc. improvements.   
Project also involved coordination with Caltrans for work at the 710 Freeway ramps under Caltrans 
Encroachment Permit.   Cost: $15m.  

 Via Duct Boulevard/2nd Street Realignment and Metrolink Parking Facility, City of San Bernardino Project:  
Provided CM/Resident Engineer, Inspector, Office Engineer Services.  Project was inspected and managed in 
compliance with Caltrans Local Assistance Procedures Manual. Project involved reconstruction, pavement 
overlay, medians, landscape, curb and gutter, sidewalk, traffic signals, utilities and other misc. improvements.   
Cost $6m.   

 CSUSB (Cal State SB University) San Bernardino Main Access Road:    Prepared PS&E and provided construction 
administration for the project.  Cost $5m.  

 Valley Boulevard Rehabilitation and ADA Improvements Project (Federally Funded), City of Alhambra:  Provided 
CM/Resident Engineer, Inspector, Office Engineer Services.  Project was inspected and managed in compliance 
with Caltrans Local Assistance Procedures Manual. Project involved reconstruction, pavement overlay, medians, 
landscape, curb and gutter, sidewalk, traffic signals, utilities and other misc. improvements.   Project also 
involved coordination with Caltrans for work at the 710 Freeway ramps under Caltrans Encroachment Permit.  
Cost $3m. 

 New Avenue, from North to South City Limit Rehabilitation and ADA Improvements Project (Federally Funded), 
City of Alhambra:  Provided CM/Resident Engineer, Inspector, Office Engineer Services.  Project was inspected 
and managed in compliance with Caltrans Local Assistance Procedures Manual. Project involved reconstruction, 
pavement overlay, medians, landscape, curb and gutter, sidewalk, traffic signals, utilities and other misc. 
improvements.   Project also involved coordination with Caltrans for work at the I-10 Freeway ramps under 
Caltrans Encroachment Permit.  Cost $2m. 

 Garfield Rehabilitation and ADA Improvements Project (Federally Funded), Alhambra:  Provided CM/Resident 
Engineer, Inspector, Office Engineer Services.  Project was inspected and managed in compliance with Caltrans 
Local Assistance Procedures Manual. Project involved reconstruction, pavement overlay, medians, landscape, 
curb and gutter, sidewalk, traffic signals, utilities and other misc. improvements.  Cost $2m.  

 Main Street Rehabilitation, from West to East City Limit Project, City of Alhambra:  Provided CM/Resident 
Engineer, Inspector, Office Engineer Services.  Project was inspected and managed in compliance with Caltrans 
Local Assistance Procedures Manual. Project involved reconstruction, pavement overlay, medians, landscape, 
curb and gutter, sidewalk, traffic signals, utilities and other misc. improvements.  Cost $3m. 

Page 133 of 385



SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 

 

 

13 

 Transtech also has extensive experience in managing federally funded projects.  In the past few years, our staff 
has managed over 20 federally funded projects through Caltrans Local Assistance in compliance with Local 
Assistance Procedures Manual as required in federally funded projects.  Services included obtaining E-76 
authorization for each project phase as necessary, and prepared all necessary paper work and approval process, 
fund reimbursement, labor compliance and contract administration throughout the project, from PE through 
CE, as well as serving as Resident Engineer and Inspector during construction. Below is a listing of similar 
experience projects, with Federal Project Numbers (in alphabetical order by Agency Name/Project Name): 

o CITY OF ALHAMBRA-ALHAMBRA RD REHABILITATION, WCL TO ECL; Agency Project No: Federal Funded 
Project ESPL-5130(014) 

o CITY OF ALHAMBRA-FREMONT OVERLAY FROM COMMONWEALTH TO NCL, MONTEZUMA TO SCL; Agency 
Project No: Federal Funded Project STPL - 5130 (012) 

o CITY OF ALHAMBRA-GARFIELD AVE REHABILITATION, I-10 FWY TO MAIN ST, ALHAMBRA RD TO ATLANTIC 
BL; Agency Project No: Federal Funded Project STPL-5130(018) 

o CITY OF ALHAMBRA-JOSYLIN CENTER EECBG IMPROVEMENTS; Agency Project No: Federal Funded Project 
EECBG DE-FOA-0000013  

o CITY OF ALHAMBRA-MAIN ST REHABILITATION, HUNTINGTON DR TO ECL; Agency Project No: Project 
N2M11-68  

o CITY OF ALHAMBRA-MISSION BL RECONSTRUCTION FROM GARFIELD TO ECL; Agency Project No: Federal 
Funded Project HP21L-5130(011)  

o CITY OF ALHAMBRA-NEW AVE REHABILITATION, I-10 FWY TO NCL; Agency Project No: Federal Funded 
Project ESPL 5130(016)  

o CITY OF ALHAMBRA-POPLAR OVERLAY; Agency Project No: Federal Funded Project ESPL-5130(015)   

o CITY OF ALHAMBRA-SRTS SAFE ROUTE TO SCHOOL, COMMONWEALTH AVE, CURTIS AVE, ALHAMBRA RD, 
SECOND ST; Agency Project No: Federal Funded Project SRTSL-5130(017)   

o CITY OF ALHAMBRA-VALLEY BL RECONSTRUCTION, WCL TO CAMPBELL AVE; Agency Project No: Federal 
Funded Project HPLUL 5130(013)  

o CITY OF ALHAMBRA-VALLEY/FREMONT WIDENING; Agency Project No: Federal Funded Project FCRL-
5130(005)    

o CITY OF ALHAMBRA-710 INTERIM IMPROVEMENTS, VALLEY FIBEROPTIC; Agency Project No: Federal 
Funded Project RPL-5130(009), 07-LA-710 PM26.5/27.5, EA. 07279 - 187701-A   

o CITY OF BELL-FLORENCE AVENUE OVERLAY PROJECT; Agency Project No: Federal Funded Project STPL-5272 
(007)  

o CITY OF COMMERCE-CDBG FUNDED ADA RAMPS AT VARIOUS LOCATIONS; Agency Project No: CC NO. 0201  

o CITY OF COMMERCE-FLOTILLA ARRA PROJECT; Agency Project No: Federal Funded Project LAES427  

o CITY OF COMMERCE-GARFIELD AVE, TELEGRAPH RD TO MALT AVE OVERLAY; Agency Project No: Federal 
Funded Project LSSTPL045  

o CITY OF COMMERCE-SAFE ROUTE TO SCHOOL; Agency Project No: Federal Funded Project STPLHSR-
5362(009)   

o CITY OF COMMERCE-SLAUSON AVE OVERLAY; Agency Project No: Federal Funded Project STPL-5362(011)  

o CITY OF COMMERCE-SR2S AND FTA BUS SHELTER CONSTRUCTION; Agency Project No: Federal Funded 
Project SR2SL-5362(013)    

o CITY OF COMMERCE-TRAFFIC SIGNAL IMPROVEMENTS; Agency Project No: Federal Funded Project STPLHG-
5362(008)  

o CITY OF COMMERCE-WASHINGTON ST RECONSTRUCTION, 710 FWY TO COBB ST 

o CITY OF COMMERCE-WASHINGTON BL OVERLAY, FIDELIA ST TO ATLANTIC BL; Agency Project No: Federal 
Funded Project DPI-5362(012)  

Page 134 of 385



SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 

 

 

14 

o CITY OF EL MONTE-ADA AND ST IMPROVEMENTS AT VARIOUS LOCATIONS; Agency Project No: Federal 
Funded Project 5210(018)  

o CITY OF MORENO VALLEY-CACTUS & NASON STREET IMPROVEMENTS; Agency Project No: Agreement 08-
33-011-00   

o CITY OF POMONA-STATE RTE 71 AND MISSION BL GRADE SEPARATION; Agency Project No: Federal Funded 
Project STPLN-5070(009)   

o CITY OF POMONA-CONSTRUCTION AND PROJECT MANAGEMENT STAFF EXTENSION CONTRACT 

o RIVERSIDE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION-CORONA MAIN ST METROLINK TRANSPORTATION 
CENTER PARKING STRUCTURE; Agency Project No: 08-33-011-00   

o CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO-VIA DUCT BOULEVARD ALIGNMENT AND RECONSTRUCTION, METROLINK SAN 
BERNARDINO PARKING FACILITY; Agency Project No: Federal Funded Project CML-5033(039) 

o CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO-SANTA FE DEPOT HISTORIC RENOVATION; Agency Project No: Federal Funded 
Project 08-4105584L 

o SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY-PROJECT AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES; Agency Project No: U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Model Contract PC-
662 

o RIVERSIDE COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGENCY-ON-CALL PROJECT AND CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

o CITY OF SAN CLEMENTE-CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION STAFF EXTENSION CONTRACT 

o CITY OF TEMPLE CITY-ROSEMEAD BOULEVARD SAFETY AND ENHANCEMENT PROJECT; Agency Project No: 
Federal Funded Project CML 5365(007) 

 

  

Page 135 of 385



SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 

 

 

15 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT (BUILDING-TYPE B PROJECTS):  

 TACC Cultural Center Development, Lanham, MD:  Construction of 310,000 sf cultural center, including Olympic 
Swimming Pool, Indoor Full Basketball Court, Museum, Performance Center, Restaurant, Religious Center, 
Monastery.  Project Value: $80m. 

 City of Alhambra Civic Library Project: Construction of a 45,000 SF 2 story library with 2 levels of underground 
parking garage.  Project Value: $30m. 

 Riverside County Transportation Commission, Corona Main Street Metrolink Parking Structure and Pedestrian 
Bridge:  Construction of a 6 level, approximately 1,000 space parking structure, and a pedestrian bridge over rail 
road tracks. Project Value: $24m. 

 City of Alhambra Renaissance Plaza Parking Structure and Entertainment Center:  Construction of a 5 level, 
approximately 600 space parking structure, as well as a 10 plex movie theater, and 3 restaurants and retail 
stores.   Project Value: $40m. 

 City of San Bernardino Historic Santa Fe Depot Renovation: Construction of involved hazardous material 
abatement, building renovation, TI improvements, restaurant improvements, seismic and structural upgrade, 
new mechanical, electrical HVAC system and site improvements to renovate and reuse a 60,000 SF existing 
building.  Project Value: $20m. 

 Alhambra Redevelopment Agency Downtown Revitalization Program:  Revitalization program involved various 
projects (modification/upgrade of existing buildings for Starbucks, Restaurants, Retail,).   Project Value $10m. 

 San Bernardino Downtown, 3rd Street mixed-use development:  Transtech developed this mixed-use project in 
partnership with City and Private Institutions. Project Value: $5m. 

 City of Alhambra Fremont Plaza (Old Sears Head Quarters Upgrade and Renovation evaluation for retail use 
(Transtech also served as PM/CM/Owners Representative).  Project Value: $10m.  

 County of Los Angeles Health Center Building Evaluation for City of Alhambra for Community Center Use (After 
initial evaluation, the building was deemed to be not suitable for the proposed use). 

 City of Monterey Park, City Public Works Yard Evaluation and Needs Assessment for new Yard (City is in 
negotiations with a developer to exchange existing PW yard land for a new land at a different location).  

 City of Monterey Park City-wide Parks (13 parks) ADA Deficiencies Assessment Study. Project Value: $2m. 

 City of Huntington Beach Economic Development Agency, Condition Assessment/Facility Evaluation Report for 
Art Center Building After initial evaluation, the building was deemed to be not suitable for the proposed use). 

 Riverside County Economic Development Agency, Real Estate Division, Engineering and Construction Services 
on various housing, real estate and infrastructure projects.  

 City of Temple City, Council Chambers Renovation and ADA Improvements Project:  Complete 
reconstruction/renovation of the Council Chambers with new seating, dais, carpet, lighting, AV system, and new 
ADA compliant bathrooms, new ADA compliant access to the building, new emergency generator, re-design of 
building creating a space for Emergency Operations Center, asbestos removal, and other various improvements. 
Project Value: $1m.  

 City of Alhambra, Josylin Community Center Renovation Project:   Funded by Federal Energy Efficiency and 
Conservation Block Grant.   Complete reconstruction/renovation of the Community Center with new HVAC, 
windows, flooring, electrical, roof, ADA compliant bathrooms, new ADA compliant access to the building, and 
other various improvements. Project Value: $2m. 

  

Page 136 of 385



SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 

 

 

16 

GRANT WRITING: 
Transtech has extensive experience in grant writing and administration.  Our staff works with our client cities to find 
potential funding sources, and to prepare competitive applications for various programs.  In the past few years, The 
Firm has facilitated over $70 million in funds for our clients' public works projects and transportation improvements.   
Additionally, after funds are awarded to a client, our experienced staff provides assistance to ensure compliance 
with applicable funding program requirements, including preparing necessary clearance approvals (environmental, 
utilities, right-of-way), processing E-76 authorizations, and managing the project.     

 

Agency Grant Program Project Amount: 

City of Alhambra MTA Call for Projects 2012 and 
previous cycles 

Valley Boulevard, Fremont $3,000,000 

 Safe Routes to School Commonwealth Boulevard $250,000 
 Safe Routes to School Alhambra High School $320,000 
 Highway Safety Improvement Valley Boulevard $500,000 
 AQMD/CMAQ CNG Refueling $300,000 
 Metro Mini Call for Projects Bus Purchases $400,000 
 Energy CEC LED Signal Upgrade $950,000 
    
City of Arcadia Metro Call for Projects Huntington Drive $1,010,000 
    
City of Azusa Metro Call for Projects Azusa Transit Center $4,200,000 
 Metro Call for Projects Azusa Avenue $800,000 
    
City of Baldwin Park Metro Mini Call for Projects Bus Purchase $400,000 
 Metro Call for Projects Transit Center $4,200,000 
 Metro Call for Projects TDM Project $300,000 
 Metro Call for Projects Baldwin Bikeway $400,000 
 Metro Call for Projects Metrolink Overpass $1,100,000 
    
City of Bellflower Safe Routes to School Palm/Clark $320,000 
 Safe Routes to School Eucalyptus $430,000 
    
City of Carson Metro Call for Projects Avalon Boulevard $6,700,000 
    
City of Commerce MTA Call for Projects 2012 and 

previous cycles 
Highway Safety Improvement 

 
Garfield/Washington 

1,000,000 
$503,400 

 

Page 137 of 385



 
 

Blank Page 

Page 138 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/9/2015  Page 1 of 7 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  November 9, 2015  

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members  

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director  
  By:  Steven Dobrenen, Finance Director  

Subject: Consideration to Adopt a Proposed Resolution Approving a Long-Range 
Property Management Plan (LRPMP) for the Successor Agency to the Former 
Cudahy Community Development Commission (Successor Agency) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Successor Agency is requested to adopt a proposed resolution approving the Long-Range 
Property Plan (LRPMP) for the Successor Agency of the Former City of Cudahy Community 
Development Commission (Successor Agency). 
  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On September 25, 1975, the City Council adopted Ordinance 208 organizing the City of 

Cudahy Redevelopment Agency pursuant to § 33000 et seq. of the California Health and 
Safety Code (HSC) and changed its name to the Cudahy Community Development 
Commission (CDC) in 1977.   
 

2. On July 18, 1977, a Redevelopment Plan for the Downtown Project was adopted and 
subsequently amended in 1981, 1992, 1993, and 1994.  With the exception of 
approximately 77 acres formerly in the City of Bell and annexed into the City, the entire 
City is in the Project Area, consisting of approximately 711 acres. 
 

3. On March 18, 2011, City of Cudahy (City) created the Cudahy Economic Development 
Corporation (EDC), a California public benefit corporation, for the purpose of eliminating 
blight.  The EDC’s Internal Revenue Service Form 1023 states that the EDC “will eliminate 

 

Item Number 

10F 

Page 139 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/9/2015  Page 2 of 7 
    

blight in the City.  The [EDC] . . . will work closely with the City to acquire and construct 
community facilities, low and moderate income housing units and other development 
which will improve the community for the residents of the City… [EDC] is formed to 
eliminate governmental burdens…”. 

 
4. In April 2011, in furtherance of the EDC’s mission to enable community redevelopment in 

the City, the Cudahy Redevelopment Agency/Community Development Commission 
transferred its assets to the EDC prior to the effective date of Assembly Bill x 26 (ABx26).   
 

5. On or about June 26, 2011, the California State Legislature enacted ABx26 and Assembly 
Bill 1484 (AB1484) (collectively referred to as the “Dissolution Act”), to dissolve all 
community redevelopment agencies throughout the State of California.   
 

6. On January 17, 2012, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 12-04 electing to serve as 
the Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community Development Commission. 
 

7. On February 1, 2012, the former Cudahy Community Redevelopment Agency (Agency) 
was dissolved pursuant to ABX1 26 (Stats 2011-12, 1st Ex Sess., Chapter 5), as amended 
by AB 1484 (Stats 2012, Chapter 26) and collectively the State legislation identified in this 
sentence referenced herein as the Dissolution Law. 
 

8. On February 1, 2012, the Successor Agency began performing its functions under the 
Dissolution Law, Parts 1.8 and 1.85 of the HSC, as amended by AB1484 and other 
subsequent legislation (together, the "Dissolution Law"), to administer the enforceable 
obligations and otherwise unwind the former Agency's affairs, all subject to the review 
and approval by the Oversight Board to the Successor Agency (Oversight Board). The 
Oversight Board was created pursuant to the state law that dissolved the Redevelopment 
Agency of the City of Cudahy, along with all 400 redevelopment agencies in California to 
oversee and approve the actions of the Successor Agency. An Oversight Board consisting 
of seven representatives supervises the Successor Agency. The Board is made up of 
members from the City, the County of Los Angeles and local education and special 
districts of the Redevelopment Project Area. 
 

9. On June 27, 2012, the California Governor signed a budget trailer bill AB 1484 into law 
adding provisions to the HSC that requires successor agencies to prepare a LRPMP as a 
prerequisite to the disposition of real property assets that are owned by a successor 
agency. 
 

  

Page 140 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/9/2015  Page 3 of 7 
    

10. On August 1, 2012, the City prepared and the City Housing Department submitted the 
Housing Asset Transfer Schedule (HATS) to DOF, which included all real property 
identified as meeting the definition of Housing Asset.   
 

11.  On October 19, 2013, the California Department of Finance (DOF) issued to the 
Successor Agency a Finding of Completion (FOC) which allowed loans to be placed on the 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) as enforceable obligations and utilize 
proceeds derived from bonds issued.  The FOC also served as notice that the Successor 
Agency was required to submit a LRPMP to DOF. 
 

12. On or about April 14, 2014, the California State Controller’s Office (SCO) ordered the EDC 
to transfer the assets it acquired from the Agency to the Successor Agency. 
 

13. On February 3, 2015, the Successor Agency adopted Resolution No. 15-01, approving an 
asset transfer agreement between the EDC and the Successor Agency to effectuate the 
asset transfer ordered by the SCO. 
 

14. On February 5, 2015, the Board of Directors of the EDC adopted Resolution No. EDC-15-
01, approving the Asset Transfer Agreement. 
 

15. On March 12, 2015, the Oversight Board adopted Resolution No. OB15-07 approving the 
Asset Transfer Agreement.   
 

16. On March 12, 2015, the Successor Agency staff directed consultant Cheryl Murase to 
transmit Resolution No. OB15-07 to DOF for its consideration and approval. 
 

17. On April 23, 2015, the State DOF notified the Successor Agency that it would not be 
taking a position as to whether the Asset Transfer Agreement complies with SCO’s order 
set forth in the Transfer Report.   
 

18. On May 19, 2015, the Successor Agency adopted Resolution No. 15-20, approving an 
amendment to an asset transfer agreement between the EDC and the Successor Agency 
to effectuate the asset transfer ordered by the SCO. 
 

19. On October 19, 2015, to comply with the SCOs order quitclaim deeds were recorded with 
the office of the County of Los Angeles Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk transferring the 
affected real properties from the EDC to the Successor Agency.  
 

 

Page 141 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/9/2015  Page 4 of 7 
    

ANALYSIS 
 

Because of the Dissolution Act, the redevelopment agency that the City had created was 
dissolved effective February 1, 2012.The City initiated the process under the Dissolution Act 
to wind down the affairs of the dissolved Agency.  
 
Consistent with the applicable provisions of the Dissolution Act, the City Council elected to 
serve in the capacity of the Successor Agency to the dissolved Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy. As part of that process, the Dissolution Act 
calls for the Successor Agency, under the direction of the Oversight Board, to dispose of real 
property assets (Property) either for limited public purposes, or for disposition into the 
private market expeditiously and aimed at maximizing value, with the disposition proceeds to 
be made available for distribution to the affected taxing entities.  
 
The Legislature adopted and the Governor signed AB 1484 as part of the FY 2012-2013 state 
budget package.   AB 1484 resulted in procedural and substantive changes to the duties of 
and procedures to be followed by the Successor Agency, the Oversight Board, the Los Angeles 
County Auditor-Controller and the DOF.   
 
AB1414 provides certain flexibility and local benefits in connection with property disposition 
for a successor agency that has received a DOF Finding of Completion (FOC), replacing the 
expeditious and highest value disposition process required under ABX1 26.  The DOF issued a 
FOC to the Successor Agency on October 19, 2013. In the FOC the DOF reminded the 
Successor Agency of the requirement to submit a LRPMP to DOF.  A LRPMP must include an 
inventory (with DOF-specific information) about each Property, and address the use or 
disposition of each Property.  If DOF approves the Oversight Board-adopted LRPMP, the 
successor agency can begin disposing of Property in accordance with the plan. 
 
AB 1484 requires the establishment of a Community Redevelopment Trust Fund (Trust), 
administered by the Successor Agency, to serve as the repository of the former Agency’s 
Property.  The LRPMP must also include specific information on each Property and a proposal 
for use or disposition of each Property.  In order to meet the Successor Agency’s statutory 
obligations to identify and catalog its Property, the Successor Agency implemented an 
exhaustive approach to verify the property ownership, source of funds used to acquire the 
property, and site data.  The process included working with the City and EDC to identify and 
process receipts of properties that had been transferred by the former Agency to EDC and 
identify the properties that had been purchased by the EDC using former Agency funds and 
taking all necessary actions for the Successor Agency to accept the properties by quitclaim. 

Page 142 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/9/2015  Page 5 of 7 
    

Once the DOF-specified information is fully compiled, the data along with further DOF 
guidelines informs the Successor Agency’s recommendations for the disposition of all 
properties in the Trust.  AB 1484 provides the following four categories of disposition: 
 

1. Retention of the property for governmental use; 
2. Retention of the property for future development; 
3. Sale of the property; and 
4. Use of the property to fulfill an enforceable obligation. 
 

In the process of cataloging property in the Trust, the Successor Agency staff utilized various 
factors to determine which properties would fall into the four distinguishing disposition 
categories of the LRPMP.  Properties to be retained for future development need to have one 
or more of the following characteristics: 
 

• Property identified for use or development in a Redevelopment Plan 
• Property identified for use or development in Year Implementation Plans 
• Property identified for use or development in a Community Plan, General Plan, or 

Specific Plan 
• Property is encumbered with obligations related to federal funding 

 
According to the legislation, the only receiving jurisdiction for these properties is the City 
which created the Former Agency.  In this case, the receiving agency is the City of Cudahy. 
 
The Successor Agency has control over 25 parcels grouped into 6 sites (Properties), all of 
which are located within the boundaries of the City and subject to the provisions of the 
Agency’s Project Area Redevelopment Plan and any subsequent amendments, the Agency’s 
Five-Year Implementation Plan 2004-2009, the City’s Municipal Code, and City’s General Plan. 
Accordingly, the Successor Agency recommends that the City retain all of the properties 
identified in the LRPMP for future development.   
 
The City successfully transferred all of the housing assets identified on the HATS to the 
Housing Successor on May 20, 2014.  Upon a review of the funds used to purchase 4854 and 
4848 Live Oak, the Successor Agency determined that it should seek DOF approval to amend 
the HATS to list the property on the HATS because the property was acquired by the former 
Agency using Low and Moderate Income Housing funds.  Accordingly, this property is not 
listed in the LRPMP.  Upon receipt of either cash or title to this property from Paramount 
Villas LLC pursuant to the proposed settlement agreement between Paramount Villas and the 
Successor Agency, the Successor Agency is required to deposit the sale proceeds into the 

Page 143 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/9/2015  Page 6 of 7 
    

housing fund or, if the Successor Agency receives title to the property, develop affordable 
housing on the property. 

 
The Properties have been divided into six (6) sites as summarized in the table below:   

Summary of Successor Agency Properties 
Site 
No. Site Reference (x)1 Address Assessor Parcel No. Zone Lot Size 

(acres) Permissible Use 

1 Elizabeth Street Residential 
Property (2) 

5256 Elizabeth Street 6224-001-014 HDR-G 
 

0.94 
 Future Development 

5260 Elizabeth Street 6224-001-015 

2 Atlantic Avenue / Santa Ana Street 
Commercial Property (5) 

4734 Santa Ana Street 6224-018-008 

CC 
HDR-G 1.02 Future Development 

8110 South Atlantic 
Avenue 6224-018-071 

8100 South Atlantic 
Avenue 6224-018-068 

Santa Ana Street 6224-018-070 
4720 Santa Ana Street 6224-018-069 

3 Santa Ana Street Residential 
Property (1) 4610 Santa Ana Street 6224-019-014 CC 1.35 Future Development 

4 Atlantic Avenue / Cecilia Street 
Commercial Property (5) 

8135 South Atlantic 
Avenue 6224-022-001 

CC 2.47 Future Development 

4629 Cecilia Street 
Way 6224-022-004 

8201 South Atlantic 
Avenue 6224-022-002 

8221 South Atlantic 
Avenue 6224-022-012 

4633 Cecilia Street 6224-022-003 

5 Atlantic Avenue / Patata Street 
Commercial Property (4) 

4819 Patata Street 6224-034-014 

CC 2.1 Future Development 8420 South Atlantic 
Avenue 

6224-034-032                       
6224-034-040 

Patata Street 6224-034-041 

6 Atlantic Avenue / Clara Street 
Commercial Property (8) 

4613 Clara Street 6226-022-002 

CC 1.66 Future Development 

7660 South Atlantic 
Avenue 6226-022-008 

7630 South Atlantic 
Avenue 

6226-022-019                       
6226-022-020 

7638 South Atlantic 
Avenue 6226-022-023 

7644 South Atlantic 
Avenue 6226-022-022 

No Address 6226-022-021                       
6226-022-024 

1 Number of parcels 
CC – Community Commercial 
HDR-G – High Density Residential – Garden Overlay 

 
The LRPMP aligns closely with the Dissolution Act requirements guiding property disposition 
and fiduciary responsibilities of the Agency and Oversight Board to ensure a timely and 
transparent wind down of the Former Agency.   In the future, the City plans to contract with 
one or more commercial brokerage firms to actively market and sell assets. The LRPMP allows 
for the Successor Agency’s use of net sale proceeds to pay enforceable obligations or be 
distributed to the affected taxing entities.  The disposition strategy for the LRPMP requires 
fair market value to be received for all property in the Future Development category. 

Page 144 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/9/2015  Page 7 of 7 
    

Successor Agency staff will provide reports to both the Successor Agency and Oversight Board 
on disposition activities once LRPMP has been approved and will seek approval for any 
dispositions that deviate from the LRPMP approved by the DOF. 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
If approved by the Successor Agency, the LRPMP will be submitted to the Oversight Board 
and DOF for review and approval. The Oversight Board will consider the LRPMP at a special 
meeting on November 12, 2015. Upon approval of the LRPMP by the Oversight Board, the 
LRPMP will be submitted to DOF for review and approval of the LRPMP. HSC section 34191.3 
(a) requires DOF to approve LRPMPs by January 1, 2016. Approval of the LRPMP for the 
Successor Agency will enable the Successor Agency to develop or dispose of the properties in 
a manner that is consistent with the LRPMP.  Properties that are to be sold must receive the 
approval of the Oversight Board and DOF unless such sale is identified in the LRPMP. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
There is no direct fiscal impact from the approval of the LRPMP.  If the LRPMP plan calls for 
use or liquidation (sale to obtain revenues) of a property for a project identified in an 
approved redevelopment plan, that property is to be transferred to the sponsoring 
community for that purpose.  If the LRPMP calls for the liquidation of the property or use of 
revenues from the property for purposes other than a project identified in a redevelopment 
plan or other than to fulfill an enforceable obligation, the proceeds from the sale are to be 
distributed as property taxes to the taxing entities. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Proposed Resolution Adopting the Long-Range Property Management Plan 
B. Long-Range Property Management Plan (LRPMP) 
C. Long-Range Property Management Plan Checklist 
 
 

Page 145 of 385



1  

Attachment A 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. SA - _____ 
 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER 
CUDAHY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION/CUDAHY 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY APPROVING THE LONG-RANGE 
PROPERTY MANAGEMENT PLAN PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE SECTION 34191.5 AND APPROVING 
CERTAIN RELATED ACTIONS 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Cudahy (the “City”) authorized the formation and operation of a 
community redevelopment agency within the territorial jurisdiction of the City pursuant to California 
state law (“State law”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the former Cudahy Community Development Commission/Cudahy 

Redevelopment Agency undertook the redevelopment of certain areas of the City in reliance upon 
the provisions of State law; and 

 
WHEREAS, the State of California (the “State”) has ordered the former Cudahy 

Community Development Commission/Cudahy Redevelopment Agency to be dissolved under the 
provisions of ABX1 26 (Stats 2011-12, 1st Ex. Sess., Chapter 5), as amended by AB 1484 (Stats 
2012, Chapter 26), and collectively the State legislation identified in this sentence is referred to 
herein as the “State Redevelopment Dissolution Law”; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Cudahy as Successor Agency to the former Cudahy Community 

Development Commission/Cudahy Redevelopment Agency (“Successor Agency”) has initiated the 
implementation of the State Redevelopment Dissolution Law; and 
 

WHEREAS, on October 19, 2013, the Successor Agency received its Finding of 
Completion (the “FOC”) from the California Department of Finance (the "DOF") pursuant to HSC 
§34179.7; and 
 

WHEREAS,  HSC §34191.5 requires the Successor Agency to prepare a Long-Range 
Property Management Plan (“LRPMP”) to address the disposition and use of the real property 
assets held by the Successor Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with HSC §34191.5, the Successor Agency has prepared its 

LRPMP, which is attached as Exhibit “A” to this Resolution that identifies the disposition and 
uses of Successor Agency properties; and 

 
WHEREAS, subject to approval by the Oversight Board for the Successor Agency to the 

Former Cudahy Community Development Commission/Cudahy Redevelopment Agency of the 
City of Cudahy, the LRPMP will be submitted to the DOF; and 

 
WHEREAS, once the LRPMP has received approvals from the Oversight Board and the 

DOF, the Successor Agency may act upon its implementation; and 
 
  

Page 146 of 385



2  

WHEREAS, consistent with the applicable provisions of the HSC, it is recommended that 
the Successor Agency approve the attached LRPMP; and  
 

WHEREAS, all of the prerequisites with respect to the approval of this Resolution have 
been met. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER CUDAHY 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION/CUDAHY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY DOES 
RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are true and correct and incorporated 

herein by reference.   

SECTION 2. Approval of Long-Range Property Management Plan.  The Successor 
Agency approves the Long-Range Property Management Plan attached to this Resolution as 
Exhibit “A”. 

SECTION 3. Direction to Successor Agency Staff. Successor Agency staff is hereby 
authorized to transmit the Long-Range property Management Plan to the Oversight Board for their 
review and consideration.  

SECTION 4. Transmission of Long-Range Property Management Plan. The 
Executive Director is authorized and directed to take such other and further action consistent with 
this Resolution and sign any documents, as necessary, in order to implement this Resolution on 
behalf of the Successor Agency.  

SECTION 5. This Resolution shall take effect upon adoption.  The Chair of the Successor 
Agency shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Successor Agency to the former Cudahy Community 

Development Commission/Cudahy Redevelopment Agency at its meeting on this 9th day of 
November 2015. 

 

 

       ______________________________  
       Cristian Markovich 

Chair 
 

ATTEST: 

 

 

     
Laura Valdivia 
Secretary 
 

  

Page 147 of 385



3  

CERTIFICATION 

 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES )  SS: 
CITY OF CUDAHY   ) 
 

I, Laura Valdivia, Secretary to the Successor Agency, do hereby certify that the above 
and foregoing Resolution No. SA-_____ was passed, approved, and adopted by the Successor 
Agency to the former Cudahy Community Development Commission/Cudahy Redevelopment 
Agency of the City of Cudahy, signed by the Chair and attested by the Chair at a meeting of said 
Successor held on this 9th day of November, 2015, and that said Resolution was adopted by the 
following votes to wit: 

 

AYES:  

 NOES:  

 ABSENT: 

 ABSTAIN: 

 

 

   ________________________________ 
   Laura Valdivia 
   Secretary 
 

 

Page 148 of 385



4  

Exhibit “A” 
 
 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  
FORMER CUDAHY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION/CUDAHY 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
LONG-RANGE PROPERTY MANAGEMENT PLAN 

(See Attachment) 

 
 

Page 149 of 385



 
 
 
 
 

	
	

2015	LONG‐RANGE	PROPERTY	
MANAGEMENT	PLAN	

	
	

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared	for	the:
	

SUCCESSOR	AGENCY		
TO	THE	CUDAHY	COMMUNITY	
DEVELOPMENT	COMMISSION	OF	

THE	CITY	OF	CUDAHY	
5220	Santa	Ana	Street	
Cudahy,	Ca	90201	

	
www.cityofcudahy.com	

	
	

October	2015	
	
	
	
	

Prepared	by:

Urban	Futures	Inc.	
Corporate	Office	

3111	North	Tustin	Street,	
Suite	230	

Orange,	CA	92865	
(714)	283‐9334	•	FAX	(714)	283‐5465	

	
	

Attachment B

Page 150 of 385



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
Cristian Markovich, Mayor 
 
Christian Hernandez, Vice Mayor 
 
Chris Garcia, Councilman  
 
Jack Guerro, Councilman 
 
Baru Sanchez, Councilman  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
 
Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director 
 
Steven Dobrenan, Finance Director 

 
 
 
 

 

2015	LONG	RANGE	PROPERTY
MANAGEMENT	PLAN 

	
	
CITY	COUNCIL	/	
SUCCESSOR	
AGENCY	BOARD 

CITY STAFF 

Attachment B

Page 151 of 385



 

 
i 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
I.  Introduction .......................................................................................................................................... 1 

II.  Property Inventory per HSC § 34191.5. (c)(1) ...................................................................................... 4 

III.  Property to be Transferred for Future Development ........................................................................... 6 

Exhibit A – Successor Agency/City Property Disposition Procedures ......................................................... 38 

Exhibit B – Health & Safety Code ................................................................................................................ 41 

Exhibit C – DOF Finding of Completion ....................................................................................................... 46 

Exhibit D – Resolution of the Oversight Board ........................................................................................... 48 

Exhibit E – Resolution of the Successor Agency ......................................................................................... 52 

Exhibit F – Assessor Parcel Maps ................................................................................................................ 56 

Exhibit G – Zoning Information ................................................................................................................... 63 

2015	LONG	RANGE	PROPERTY	
MANAGEMENT	PLAN 

Table	of	Contents

Attachment B

Page 152 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
1 

I.  Introduction 
 

I. Introduction	

 
The City of Cudahy (the “City”) incorporated on November 10, 1960, is 1.23 square miles in size, and has 
one of the highest population densities of any incorporated city in the United States.  The City is located in 
the southeastern portion of Los Angeles County and is bordered by the City of Bell on the north, the City 
of Bell Gardens on the east, the City of South Gate on the south and southwest, and City of Huntington 
Park on the west.  As of January 1, 2015, the California Department of Finance (the “DOF”) reports the 
City’s population to be 24,270. 
 

 
Former Redevelopment Agency 

 
The former Redevelopment Agency was organized pursuant to § 33000 et seq. of the California Health and 
Safety Code (the “HSC”) on September 25, 1975 with the adoption of Ordinance 208, and changed its name 
to the Cudahy Community Development Commission (also known as the “CDC” or the “former RDA” or 
the “Agency”) in 1977.   
 
The Redevelopment Plan for the Downtown Project was adopted on July 18, 1977 and amended in 1981, 
1992, 1993, and 1994.  With the exception of approximately 77 acres formerly in the City of Bell and 
annexed into the City, the entire City is in the Project Area, consisting of approximately 711 acres.  
 
 

Attachment B

Page 153 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
2 

I.  Introduction 
 

 
The Redevelopment Plan is summarized as follows: 

 
 

Dissolution of Redevelopment Agencies 
 
Trailer bills ABx1 26 and ABx1 27 were signed by the Governor of California on June 28, 2011, making 
certain changes to the HSC, including adding Part 1.8 (commencing with § 34161) (“Part 1.8”) and Part 
1.85 (commencing with § 34170) (“Part 1.85”) to Division 24 of the HSC.  The California Redevelopment 
Association and League of California Cities filed a lawsuit in the Supreme Court of California (California 
Redevelopment Association, et al. v. Matosantos, et al. (Case No. S194861)) alleging that ABx1 26 and 
ABx1 27 were unconstitutional.  On December 29, 2011, the Supreme Court issued its opinion in the 
Matosantos case largely upholding ABx1 26, invalidating ABx1 27, and holding that ABx1 26 may be 
severed from ABx1 27 and enforced independently.  The Supreme Court generally revised the effective 
dates and deadlines for performance of obligations under HSC Part 1.85 arising before May 1, 2012 to take 
effect four months later while leaving the effective dates or deadline for performance of obligations under 
HSC Part 1.8 unchanged.  Consistent with the applicable provisions of the HSC, the City Council elected 
to serve in the capacity of the Successor Agency to the dissolved Cudahy Community Development 
Commission of the City of Cudahy, (the “Successor Agency”). 
 
Further, on June 27, 2012, the Governor signed budget trailer bill AB 1484 into law, resulting in further 
procedural and substantive changes to the duties of and procedures to be followed by successor agencies, 
oversight boards, county auditor-controllers and the California Department of Finance (the “DOF”).  This 
includes, but is not limited to, the manner in which the Successor Agency disposes of real property assets.  

Plan Chronology and Time Limits 
City-Wide Redevelopment Project Area 

Plan Adoption 
Amendment No. 

1 2 3 4 5 
Date of Adoption Jul 18, 1977 Sep 8, 1981 Dec 14, 1992 Jul 13, 1993 Dec 5, 1994 Jul 19, 2002 

Ordnance 
Number 

220 275 465 475 449 580 

Acreage  
Added 
acreage 

Added 
acreage 

Added 
acreage 

Total 
acreage: 

276.5  

Added 435 
acres 
Total 

acreage: 
711.5 

Plan expiration 
date 

07/18/2020 09/8/24 

 

07/13/34 

 

07/02/33 

Last day to incur 
new debt 

Eliminated Eliminated 07/13/33 07/2/2022 

Last day to repay 
debt with Tax 

Increment 
07/18/2030 09/8/34 07/13/44 07/02/48 

Cumulative Tax 
Increment Limit 

$55 million 
(with CPI 

adjustment) 

$55 million 
(with CPI 

adjustment) 

$55 million 
(with CPI 

adjustment) 
none 

Limit on Total Tax 
Increment Bond 

Debt 
$27 million $27 million $27 million $51 million 

Attachment B

Page 154 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
3 

I.  Introduction 
 

Specifically, AB 1484 added HSC § 34191.5 that requires the Successor Agency to prepare a Long Range 
Property Management Plan (the “LRPMP”) as a prerequisite to the disposition of real property assets. 
 
 

Long-Range Property Management Plan 
 
Per the applicable provisions of the HSC, no later than six (6) months after a successor agency receives its 
Finding of Completion from the DOF (per HSC § 34179.7), the Successor Agency must submit its LRPMP 
to the Oversight Board and the DOF for approval.  The LRPMP must include an inventory (with specified 
information) about each property, and address the use or disposition of each property.  Permitted uses for 
the property pursuant to AB 1484 include: 
 

1. Retention of the property for governmental use; 
2. Retention of the property for future development; 
3. Sale of the property; and 
4. Use of the property to fulfill an enforceable obligation. 

 
Upon DOF’s approval of the LRPMP, the properties are to be placed in a Community Redevelopment 
Property Trust Fund administered by the Successor Agency in accordance with the approved LRPMP.  If 
the LRPMP plan calls for use or liquidation (sale to obtain revenues) of a property for a project identified 
in an approved redevelopment plan, that property is to be transferred to the sponsoring community for that 
purpose.  If the LRPMP calls for the liquidation of the property or use of revenues from the property for 
purposes other than a project identified in a redevelopment plan or other than to fulfill an enforceable 
obligation, the proceeds from the sale are to be distributed as property taxes to the taxing entities.  A general 
outline of real property disposition procedure is included as Exhibit “A.” 
 
This LRPMP was prepared in compliance with those pertinent sections of the HSC that govern the 
LRPMP’s prerequisites, content, and approval process.  For ease of review, the pertinent sections of the 
HSC are included in Exhibit “B.”  
 
The Successor Agency received its Finding of Completion from the DOF on October 18, 2013 (Exhibit 
“C”).  The LRPMP was approved by Resolution of the Successor Agency on    , 2015 
(Exhibit “D”) and by Resolution of the Oversight Board on    , 2015 (Exhibit “E”). 
 
 
 

Attachment B

Page 155 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
4 

II.  Summary of Successor Agency Properties 
 

II. Property	Inventory	per	HSC	§	34191.5.	(c)(1)	

 
The Successor Agency has control of 25 parcels located within the boundaries of the former RDA’s Project Area and are subject to the provision of the former RDA’s 1977 City-Wide Project Area and its subsequent five (5) amendments, the 
former RDA’s Five-Year Implementation Plan 2004 – 2009, and the City’s Zoning Ordinance, 2010 General Plan and 2013 Housing Element.   
 
The parcels have been divided into six (6) sites as summarized in the table below:   
 

Successor Agency:   Cudahy City  
County:   Los Angeles  

 

LONG RANGE PROPERTY MANAGEMENT PLAN: PROPERTY INVENTORY DATA 
 

Principal Property Data Property Value/Sale Info Other Property Information 

  HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(C) HSC § 34191.5 (c)(2) HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(A)   SALE OF PROPERTY 
(If applicable) 

HSC § 
34191.5 
(c)(1)(B) 

HSC § 34191.5 
(c)(1)(C) 

HSC § 
34191.5 
(c)(1)(D) 

HSC § 34191.5 
(c)(1)(E) 

HSC § 
34191.5 
(c)(1)(F) 

HSC § 34191.5 
(c)(1)(G) 

HSC § 
34191.5 
(c)(1)H) 

Site No. Address APN 1 Prop 
Type 2 

Pe
rm

iss
ib

le 
Us

e 

If 
Sa

le 
of

 
Pr

op
…

Pr
oc

ee
ds

 to
 b

e u
se

d 
fo

r?
 

Pe
rm

iss
ib

le 
Us

e D
et

ail
 

Ac
qu

isi
tio

n 
Da

te
 Value at 

Time of 
Acquisition 

Est’d 
Current 
Value 

Date of 
Est’d 

Current 
Value 

Est’d 
Current 
Value 
Basis Pr

op
os

ed
 

Sa
le 

Va
lu

e 

Pr
op

os
ed

 
Sa

le 
Da

te
 

Pu
rp

os
e f

or
 

wh
ich

 
pr

op
er

ty
 w

as
 

ac
qu

ire
d 

Lot Size 
(acres) 

Current 
Zoning 3 

Est’d of 
Current 
Parcel 
Value An

nu
al 

Es
tim

at
e 

In
co

m
e/R

ev
en

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
ua

l 
us

e o
f i

nc
om

e 
/ r

ev
? 

Hi
st

or
ic 

en
vir

on
m

en
ta

l 
co

nt
am

in
at

io
n 

/ r
ep

or
ts

? Potential 
as a 

TOD? 

Ad
va

nc
em

en
t

s o
f S

A 
ob

jec
tiv

es
? History of 

previous 
development 

proposals and 
activity? 

1 
 Elizabeth Street 

Residential 
Property 

5256 Elizabeth Street 6224-001-014 
Other FD N/A 

See 
LRPMP 

Text 
April 
2011 $792,961 $770,000 Nov 

2014 
Broker’s 
Opinion TBD Alleviate 

blight 0.94 HDR-G $770,000 None N/A Yes No Yes Yes 
5260 Elizabeth Street 6224-001-015 

2 
Atlantic Avenue / 
Santa Ana Street 

Commercial 
Property 

4734 Santa Ana Street 6224-018-008 
Commercial 
Buildings / 

Vacant Land / 
Other 

FD N/A 
See 

LRPMP 
Text 

Oct 
2009 

$2,850,875 $1,975,000 
Oct & 
Nov 
2014 

Broker’s 
Opinion TBD Alleviate 

blight 1.02 CC 
HDR-G $1,975,000 None N/A Yes No Yes  No  

8110 South Atlantic Avenue 6224-018-071  Feb 
2008 

8100 South Atlantic Avenue 6224-018-068 July 
2006 Santa Ana Street 6224-018-070 

4720 Santa Ana Street 6224-018-069 
3 

Santa Ana Street 
Residential 

Property 

4610 Santa Ana Street 6224-019-014 Vacant Land FD N/A 
See 

LRPMP 
Text 

April 
2011 $1,044,679 $1,200,000 Oct 

2014 
Broker’s 
Opinion TBD Alleviate 

blight 1.35 CC $1,200,000 None N/A Yes No Yes  Yes 

1 See Exhibit “F” for Assessor Parcel Maps 
2 Real Property in Fee, unless otherwise noted 
3 See Exhibit “G” for zoning map 
EOs – Enforceable Obligations 
FD – Future Development 
CC – Community Commercial 
HDR-G – High Density Residential – Garden Overlay 
N/A – Not Applicable 
TBD – To Be Determined 
TEs – Taxing Entities 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment B

Page 156 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
5 

II.  Summary of Successor Agency Properties 
 

Principal Property Data Property Value/Sale Info Other Property Information 

  HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(C) HSC § 34191.5 (c)(2) HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(A)   SALE OF PROPERTY 
(If applicable) 

HSC § 
34191.5 
(c)(1)(B) 

HSC § 34191.5 
(c)(1)(C) 

HSC § 
34191.5 
(c)(1)(D) 

HSC § 34191.5 
(c)(1)(E) 

HSC § 
34191.5 
(c)(1)(F) 

HSC § 34191.5 
(c)(1)(G) 

HSC § 
34191.5 
(c)(1)H) 

Site No. Address APN 1 Prop 
Type 2 

Pe
rm

iss
ib

le 
Us

e 

If 
Sa

le 
of

 
Pr

op
…

Pr
oc

ee
ds

 to
 b

e u
se

d 
fo

r?
 

Pe
rm

iss
ib

le 
Us

e D
et

ail
 

Ac
qu

isi
tio

n 
Da

te
 Value at 

Time of 
Acquisition 

Est’d 
Current 
Value 

Date of 
Est’d 

Current 
Value 

Est’d 
Current 
Value 
Basis Pr

op
os

ed
 

Sa
le 

Va
lu

e 

Pr
op

os
ed

 
Sa

le 
Da

te
 

Pu
rp

os
e f

or
 

wh
ich

 
pr

op
er

ty
 w

as
 

ac
qu

ire
d 

Lot Size 
(acres) 

Current 
Zoning 3 

Est’d of 
Current 
Parcel 
Value An

nu
al 

Es
tim

at
e 

In
co

m
e/R

ev
en

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
ua

l 
us

e o
f i

nc
om

e 
/ r

ev
? 

Hi
st

or
ic 

en
vir

on
m

en
ta

l 
co

nt
am

in
at

io
n 

/ r
ep

or
ts

? Potential 
as a 

TOD? 

Ad
va

nc
em

en
t

s o
f S

A 
ob

jec
tiv

es
? History of 

previous 
development 

proposals and 
activity? 

4 
Atlantic Avenue / 

Cecilia Street 
Commercial 

Property 

8135 South Atlantic Avenue 6224-022-001 

Commercial 
Buildings / Other FD N/A 

See 
LRPMP 

Text 
April 
2011 $3,315,954 $2,560,000 Oct 

2014 
Broker’s 
Opinion TBD Alleviate 

blight 2.47 CC $2,560,000 None N/A Yes No Yes Yes 
4629 Cecilia Street 6224-022-004 

8201 South Atlantic Avenue 6224-022-002 
8221 South Atlantic Avenue 6224-022-012 

4633 Cecilia Street 6224-022-003 
5 

Atlantic Avenue / 
Patata Street 
Commercial 

Property 

4819 Patata Street 6224-034-014 
Commercial 

Building / Vacant 
Land 

FD N/A 
See 

LRPMP 
Text 

April 
2011 $2,904,717 $1,960,000 Oct 

2014 
Broker’s 
Opinion TBD Alleviate 

blight 2.1 CC $1,960,000 None N/A Yes No Yes  Yes 8420 South Atlantic Avenue 
6224-034-032 
6224-034-040 

Patata Street 6224-034-041 

6 
Atlantic Avenue / 

Clara Street 
Commercial 

Property 

4613 Clara Street 6226-022-002 

Commercial 
Buildings / 

Vacant Land / 
Other 

FD N/A 
See 

LRPMP 
Text 

April 
2011 

$6,608,296 $5,710,000 Nov 
2014 

Broker’s 
Opinion TBD Alleviate 

blight 1.66 CC $5,710,000 $94,830 No Yes No Yes  Yes 

7660 South Atlantic Avenue 6226-022-008 

7630 South Atlantic Avenue 
6226-022-019 
6226-022-020 

7638 South Atlantic Avenue 6226-022-023 
Nov 
2009 

7644 South Atlantic Avenue 6226-022-022 

No address 
6226-022-021 
6226-022-024 

1 See Exhibit “F” for Assessor Parcel Maps 
2 Real Property in Fee, unless otherwise noted 
3 See Exhibit “G” for zoning map 
EOs – Enforceable Obligations 
FD – Future Development 
CC – Community Commercial 
HDR-G – High Density Residential – Garden Overlay 
N/A – Not Applicable 
TBD – To Be Determined 
TEs – Taxing Entities 
 

 

Attachment B

Page 157 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
6 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
 

III. Property	to	be	Transferred	for	Future	
Development	

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Site No. 6 

Site No. 1

Site No. 2Site No. 3 

Site No. 4 

Site No. 5 

Attachment B

Page 158 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
7 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 1 – Elizabeth Street Residential Property 

 

Site No. 1 
(Site No. #7 on City’s website @ http://www.cityofcudahy.com/economic-development.html) 

Elizabeth Street Residential Property 
APN: 

Address: 
6224-001-014 

5256 Elizabeth Street 
APN: 

Address: 
6224-001-015 

5260 Elizabeth Street 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
A. Permissible Use (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(2)): 

Site No. 1 is the Elizabeth Street Residential Property and is proposed to be transferred to the City 
of Cudahy for future development pursuant to HSC § 34191.5 (c)(2). 
 

B. Acquisition of Property (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(A) and 34191.5 (c)(1)(B)): 
The Elizabeth Street Residential Property was acquired in accordance with the April 1, 2011, 
Project Funding Agreement between the Cudahy Community Development Commission (the 
“CDC”) and the Cudahy Economic Development Corporation (the “CEDC”) and the April 1, 2011, 
Reimbursement and Project Implementation Agreement between the City of Cudahy and the 
CEDC.  The Elizabeth Street Residential Property was acquired with tax-exempt bond proceeds 
and has a total book value of $792,961.  The Property was acquired in order to meet the 
revitalization goals of the City and the former RDA to alleviate the existence and spread of physical 
and economic blight by assembling land and preparing property for future development. 
 
Pursuant to the April 15, 2014, Asset Transfer Review (“ATR”) prepared by the California State 
Controller’s Office (“SCO”), on February 3, 2015, the Successor Agency approved an Asset 
Transfer Agreement with the CEDC.  The purpose of the Asset Transfer Agreement, is to enable 

 

Attachment B

Page 159 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
8 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 1 – Elizabeth Street Residential Property 

 

the Successor Agency to comply with the SCO’s order included within the ATR by recovering the 
redevelopment assets previously transferred to the CEDC (“Recovery Assets”).  In addition, on 
March 12, 2015, the Oversight Board to the Successor Agency to the Former Cudahy Community 
Development Commission/Redevelopment Agency (“Oversight Board”) approved its Resolution 
No. OB15-07, which approved the Asset Transfer Agreement.  On October 19, 2015 a quitclaim 
deed was recorded with the office of the County of Los Angeles Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk 
transferring the affected real property to the Successor Agency, thereby effectuating the transfer of 
the Recovery Assets. 
 
The estimated current value (the “ECV”) of the Elizabeth Street Residential Property is 
approximately $770,000.   
 

C. Site Information (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(C)): 
The Elizabeth Street Residential Property consists of two (2) parcels that total approximately 0.94 
acres (APNs: 6224-001-014 and -015), is located at 5256 and 5260 Elizabeth Street, and is in close 
proximity to the Park Avenue elementary School.  The following table describes the improvements 
located on the Elizabeth Street Residential Property.     
 

Elizabeth Street Residential Property 
APN Address Type of Structure Year Constructed Square Footage 

6224-001-014 5256 Elizabeth Street SFR 1959 1,122 
6224-001-015 5260 Elizabeth Street SFR 1959 936 

 
The Property is zoned High Density Residential Garden Overlay (HDR-G) in the City’s Zoning 
Ordinance,  2010 General Plan, and 2013 Housing Element.  The HDR-G designation permits land 
uses for one-family dwelling units, multiple dwelling units, churches, and private schools.  The 
higher densities are intended to encourage the recycling of existing developments, as well as to 
encourage developers to construct more creative housing.  
 

D. Estimated Current Value (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(D)): 
In November 2014, the ECV for the Elizabeth Street Residential Property was determined by a 
Broker’s Opinion of Value prepared by John Olivas, ACORE Realty, Inc.  Mr. Olivas concluded 
that the ECV of the Elizabeth Street Residential Property is approximately $770,000. 
 
Local and environmental factors were not taken into consideration in determining the ECV of the 
Elizabeth Street Residential Property.  Therefore, the actual value of the property may vary 
significantly from the ECV.  The ECV is only a planning number and should not be relied upon as 
a basis for actual value.  It was not possible to include environmental issues or any other special or 
unique factors into the ECV calculations, as such data was not readily available to Mr. Olivas.  As 
noted in the LRPMP, the real value of the property cannot be determined without an appraisal. 
 
The Successor Agency notes that in the environment of AB 1484, it may not be possible to achieve 
appraised values.  The City will ultimately be responsible for seeking to achieve successful 
marketing of properties, and will act with reasonable diligence.  However, the constraints and 
environment of AB 1484 militate against maximizing prices.  The actual sales prices to be realized 
will be a function of what a willing buyer is willing to pay under circumstances where there will 
be no seller financing.  Therefore, there is no reason to think that book values will be realized.    

Attachment B

Page 160 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
9 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 1 – Elizabeth Street Residential Property 

 

 
E. Site Revenues (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(E)): 

There are no site revenues generated from the Elizabeth Street Residential Property. 
 

F. History of Environmental Contamination (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(F)):  
 
 2003 California Department of Toxic Substance Control Report 
 
The Elizabeth Street Residential Property’s history shows that a portion of the backyard of the 
property may have been used for landfill operations during the 1930’s to 1960’s.  In 2003, the 
California Department of Toxic Substance Control (the “DTSC”) conducted soil sampling to 
determine if the property was impacted by hazardous substances released from past landfill 
operation.  Results of DTSC's sampling showed that soil was contaminated with metals and semi-
volatile hydrocarbon compounds.  Lead was detected ranging from 26 to 8,500 mg/kg.  Most of the 
contamination was determined to be located in the backyard area of the property.  Removal action 
was implemented in 2005, and on April 27, 2007, the DTSC recorded land use covenants on the 
property in Los Angeles County.1, 2 
 
On July 30, 2007, the DTSC executed a Removal Action Certification Form certifying that “the 
Department has determined that all appropriate removal/remedial actions have been completed and 
that all acceptable engineering practices were implemented; however, the site requires ongoing 
operation and maintenance (O&M) and monitoring efforts.  The site will be deleted from the 
‘active’ site list following (1) a trial operation and maintenance period and (2) execution of a formal 
written settlement between the Department and the responsible parties, if appropriate.  However, 
the site will be placed on the Department’s list of sites undergoing O&M to ensure proper 
monitoring of long-term cleanup efforts.”3 
 
Contaminants in inaccessible areas, such as underneath the buildings and fence lines, driveway, 
and sidewalk were not remediated.  While these areas are capped to preclude exposure risk, 
development of the Elizabeth Street Residential Property will require adherence to the April 2007 
recorded land use covenants: 
 
“(a) No activities (e.g., planting, utility line installation, excavation, grading removal, trenching 

and filling) that disturb soil shall be allowed below a depth of 18 inches below ground surface 
in the exposed lawn or soil areas in front or along the sides of the two structures without the 
prior written approval of a soil management plan by the Department. 

 
(b) No activities (e.g., planting, utility line installation, excavation, grading removal, trenching 

and filling) that could disturb soils under improvements on the property serving as cover 
material shall be allowed without the prior written approval of a soil management plan by the 
Department.  Improvements serving as cover material include the structures (including open 
areas under structures), driveways, fences, and other areas covered by either asphalt or 
concrete. 
 

                                                            
1 http://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/profile_report.asp?global_id=19000019, accessed October 2014 
2 http://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/regulators/deliverable_documents/6637013077/Recorded%20LUC%205-15-07.pdf, accessed October 2014 
3 http://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/regulators/deliverable_documents/9468366861/Certification.pdf, accessed October 2014 

Attachment B

Page 161 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
10 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 1 – Elizabeth Street Residential Property 

 

(c) Owner shall maintain the cover material identified in subsection (b) above as necessary to 
ensure that no deterioration occurs that could create an exposure pathway to the contaminants 
that may exist beneath the cover material. 
 

(d) The Owner shall provide the Department written notice at least fourteen (14) days prior to any 
activity prohibited by this Covenant being conducted on the Property.”4 

 
 2015 Phase-I Report - Andersen Environmental, an EFI Global Company 

 
In August 2015, Andersen Environmental, an EFI Global Company, conducted a Phase I 
Environmental Site Assessment Report (the “Phase-I Report”).  The Phase-I Report concluded and 
recommended that: 

 
CONCLUSIONS: 

 
“Controlled Recognized Environmental Condition (CREC) 
Based on the enforcement of a covenant to restrict use of the subject 
property, the residual soil contamination (lead, arsenic, and zinc) 
impacting the eastern, western, and southern property lines and northern 
sidewall of residences from former landfill operations is considered a 
CREC.” 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
“Adherence to DTSC directives as stated in the land use covenant is 
recommended. This includes notifying and obtaining approval from the 
DTSC prior to implementing any activities which may include disturbing 
soil below a depth of 18 inches below ground surface in the exposed lawn 
or soil areas in front of or along the sides of the two structures or disturbing 
soils under improvements on the property serving as cover materials (i.e. 
the structures, open areas under structures, driveways, fences, other areas 
covered with asphalt or concrete). In addition, the property owner shall 
maintain the cover material so no deterioration occurs, shall provide 14 
day notice to the DTSC prior to conducting the aforementioned activities, 
and shall notify the DTSC after change of property owner and prior to 
subsurface work.” 

 
G. Potential for Transit Oriented Development (TOD) and the Advancement of Planning Objectives 

of the Successor Agency (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(G)): 
There is no potential for a TOD in conjunction with The Elizabeth Street Residential Property.   
 
The transfer of the Elizabeth Street Residential Property for future development advances the 
planning objectives of the City and the Successor Agency in accordance with the Five-Year 
implementation Plan 2004-2009 (the “Plan”) goals to actively address the elimination of 
economic/physical blight as it pertains to property that (i) exhibits continued hazardous substances 

                                                            
4 http://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/regulators/deliverable_documents/6637013077/Recorded%20LUC%205-15-07.pdf, accessed October 2014 

Attachment B

Page 162 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
11 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 1 – Elizabeth Street Residential Property 

 

(i.e., contaminants in inaccessible areas, such as underneath the buildings and fence lines, driveway, 
and sidewalk that were not remediated); (ii) requires continued O&M to monitor the presence of 
hazardous substances; (iii) requires adherence to recorded land use covenants that address the 
presence of hazardous substances.  In addition, the transfer of the Property for future development 
will maximize development opportunities to (i) reduce blight through new construction and 
improved infrastructure; (ii) capture appropriate commercial, industrial, and/or housing demand; 
(iii) compliment other land uses; (iv) assure high aesthetic and environmental quality and 
compatibility of development; (v) stimulate the economy through job creation and an increase in 
the City’s tax base; and (vi) encourage private investment in the City. 
   

H. History of Previous Development Proposals and Activity (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(H)): 
The Property’s history shows that a portion of the backyard of the property may have been used for 
landfill operations during the 1930’s to 1960’s.  Google Earth® indicates that the Property has 
contained two single family residences since at least 1994.  
     

I. Implementation of the Long-Range Property Management Plan: 
Following the approval of the LRPMP by the DOF, the Successor Agency will implement the 
LRPMP.  For property to be transferred to the City of Cudahy for future development, 
implementation will include securing an HSC § 34180 (f)(1) compensation agreement (the 
“Compensation Agreement”) with the affected taxing entities prior to the transfer of the property 
to the City.  The City will seek a Compensation Agreement with the affected taxing entities after 
the LRPMP is approved by DOF.  The compensation due the affected taxing entities shall be 
governed by the Compensation Agreement and where applicable take into consideration the other 
funding source restrictions noted below. 
 
For properties that are to be held for future development that are an asset of a tax-exempt bond 
issue and/or LMIHF, the Compensation Agreement with the taxing entities will include provisions 
for the re-use of land sale proceeds that are attributable to a tax-exempt bond issue and/or LMIHF 
consistent with the restrictions, conditions and covenants related thereto.  In addition, the 
use/distribution of any residual land sales proceeds will be governed by the provisions therefor 
within the Compensation Agreement. 
   

 

Attachment B

Page 163 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
12 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 2 – Atlantic Avenue / Santa Ana Street Commercial Property 

 

Site No. 2 
(Site No. #4 on City’s website @ http://www.cityofcudahy.com/economic-development.html) 

Atlantic Avenue / Santa Ana Street Commercial Property 
APN: 

Address: 
6224-018-008 
4734 Santa Ana Street 

APN: 
Address: 

6224-018-070 
Santa Ana Street 

APN: 
Address: 

6224-018-068 
8100 South Atlantic Avenue 

APN: 
Address: 

6224-018-071 
8110 South Atlantic Avenue 

APNs: 
Address: 

6224-018-069 
4720 Santa Ana Street 

  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6224‐018‐071

Attachment B

Page 164 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
13 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 2 – Atlantic Avenue / Santa Ana Street Commercial Property 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A. Permissible Use (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(2)): 
Site No. 2 is the Atlantic Avenue / Santa Ana Street Commercial Property (the “Commercial 
Property”) and is proposed to be transferred to the City of Cudahy for future development pursuant 
to HSC § 34191.5 (c)(2).   
 

B. Acquisition of Property (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(A) and 34191.5 (c)(1)(B)): 
The Commercial Property was acquired by the CDC in several transactions using two (2) different 
restricted funding sources as indicated in the table below: 
 

Commercial Property Acquisition Details 
APN Acquisition Date Book Value Acquisition Funding Source % 

6224-018-008 October 6, 2009 

$2,850,875 
75.4% bond proceeds 

6224-018-068 
July 19, 2006 6224-018-069 

6224-018-070 
6224-018-071 February 8, 2008 24.6% LMIHF 

6224‐018‐068

6224‐018‐069 and ‐070

6224‐018‐008

Attachment B

Page 165 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
14 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 2 – Atlantic Avenue / Santa Ana Street Commercial Property 

 

Once the Commercial Property is sold, the proceeds will be returned to the appropriate funding 
source using the same percentages as received from that funding source for acquisition. 
   
The Commercial Property was transferred to the Cudahy Economic Development Corporation in 
accordance with the April 1, 2011, Project Funding Agreement between the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission (the “CDC”) and the Cudahy Economic Development Corporation (the 
“CEDC”) and the April 1, 2011, Reimbursement and Project Implementation Agreement between 
the City of Cudahy and the CEDC.    The Property was acquired in order to meet the revitalization 
goals of the City and the former RDA to alleviate the existence and spread of physical and economic 
blight by assembling land and preparing property for future development.  As noted above, the 
Commercial Property was acquired, in part, with tax-exempt bond proceeds and LMIHF and has a 
total book of $2,850,212. 
 
Pursuant to the April 15, 2014, Asset Transfer Review (“ATR”) prepared by the California State 
Controller’s Office (“SCO”), on February 3, 2015, the Successor Agency approved an Asset 
Transfer Agreement with the CEDC.  The purpose of the Asset Transfer Agreement, is to enable 
the Successor Agency to comply with the SCO’s order included within the ATR by recovering the 
redevelopment assets previously transferred to the CEDC (“Recovery Assets”).  On October 19, 
2015 a quitclaim deed was recorded with the office of the County of Los Angeles Registrar-
Recorder/County Clerk transferring the affected real property to the Successor Agency, will be 
recorded thereby effectuating the transfer of the Recovery Assets. 
 
The estimated current value (the “ECV”) of the Commercial Property is approximately $1,975,000.   
 

C. Site Information (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(C)): 
The Commercial Property consists of five (5) parcels that total approximately 1.02 acres (APNs: 
6224-018-008, -068, -069, -070, -071) located at 4720 and 4734 Santa Ana Street and 8100 and 
8100 South Atlantic Avenue.  The following table describes the improvements located on the 
Commercial Property: 
 

Atlantic/Santa Ana Commercial Property 

APN Address Type of Structure 
Year 

Constructed 
Square Footage 

6224-018-008 4734 Santa Ana Street Duplex 1954 2,344 
6224-008-068 8100 South Atlantic Avenue Tire Shop 1947 1,772 
6224-008-069 

4720 Santa Ana Street 9 Residential Units 1933 3,236 
6224-008-070 
6224-008-071 8110 South Atlantic Avenue Vacant - - 

 
The Commercial Property  is zoned Community Commercial and High Density Residential Garden 
Overlay (CC and HDR-G) in the City’s Zoning Ordinance and 2010 General Plan.  The CC 
designation permits land uses for retail stores, offices, trailer parks, churches, schools, auto sales, 
banks, markets, restaurants and similar uses.  Mixed use development is also permitted within this 
land use designation at densities of 35 units per acre.   

 
D. Estimated Current Value (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(D)): 

In October 2014, and November 2014, the ECV for the Commercial Property was determined by a 
Broker’s Opinion of Value (the “BOV”) prepared by Douglas E. Wells, Penta Pacific Properties 

Attachment B

Page 166 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
15 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 2 – Atlantic Avenue / Santa Ana Street Commercial Property 

 

and by John Olivas, ACORE Realty, Inc., respectively.  Mr. Wells concluded the ECV for APNs 
6224-018-068 and -071 is approximately $585,000 and Mr. Olivas concluded ECV for APNs 6224-
018-008, -069, and -070 is approximately $1,390,000.  Therefore the total ECV of the Commercial 
Property is equal to the sum of the BOV, which is approximately $1,975,000.  
 
Local and environmental factors were not taken into consideration in determining the ECV of the 
Commercial Property.  Therefore, the actual value of the property may vary significantly from the 
ECV.  The ECV is only a planning number and should not be relied upon as a basis for actual value.  
It was not possible to include environmental issues or any other special or unique factors into the 
ECV calculations, as such data was not readily available to Mr. Wells and Mr. Olivas.  As noted in 
the LRPMP, the real value of the property cannot be determined without an appraisal. 
 
The Successor Agency notes that in the environment of AB 1484, it may not be possible to achieve 
appraised values.  The City will ultimately be responsible for seeking to achieve successful 
marketing of properties, and will act with reasonable diligence.  However, the constraints and 
environment of AB 1484 militate against maximizing prices.  The actual sales prices to be realized 
will be a function of what a willing buyer is willing to pay under circumstances where there will 
be no seller financing.  Therefore, there is no reason to think that book values will be realized.   
 

E. Site Revenues (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(E)): 
There are no site revenues generated from the Commercial Property. 
 

F. History of Environmental Contamination (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(F)):  
 
2015 Phase-I Report - Andersen Environmental, an EFI Global Company 
 
In August 2015, Andersen Environmental, an EFI Global Company, conducted a Phase I 
Environmental Site Assessment Report (the “Phase-I Report”).  The Phase-I Report concluded and 
recommended that: 
 

CONCLUSIONS: 
 

“Recognized Environmental Conditions (REC) 
 The open LUST case associated with the former gas station on-site is 

considered a recognized environmental condition for the subject 
property. 

 The residual petroleum hydrocarbon contamination impacting soil 
vapor on-site associated with the former gas station, which was 
documented in the 2006 soil vapor sampling event, represents a 
potential Vapor Intrusion Condition (pVIC) and recognized 
environmental condition for the subject property. 

 The former auto repair operations on-site for approximately 58 years 
(1947 to 2005) is considered a recognized environmental condition for 
the subject property.” 

 
 
 

Attachment B

Page 167 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
16 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 2 – Atlantic Avenue / Santa Ana Street Commercial Property 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

“Based on the foregoing, a Phase II Environmental Site Assessment is 
recommended to assess the pVIC associated with the former gas station, 
as well as the areas of concern associated with former auto repair 
operations. Adherence to LARWQCB requirements is also recommended 
in order to achieve closure for the open LUST case.” 

 
G. Potential for Transit Oriented Development (TOD) and the Advancement of Planning Objectives 

of the Successor Agency (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(G)): 
There is no potential for a TOD in conjunction with Commercial Property.   
 
The transfer of the Commercial Property for future development advances the planning objectives 
of the City and the Successor Agency in accordance with the Five-Year implementation Plan 2004-
2009 (the “Plan”) goals to (i) provide a sufficient number of affordable housing units to meet the 
needs of the City’s residents; (ii) support adequate residential development sites at appropriate 
densities; (iii) provide a selection of housing type, tenure, and price; and (iv) encourage residential 
uses in commercial areas.  In addition, the transfer of the Property for future development will 
maximize development opportunities to (i) reduce blight through new construction and improved 
infrastructure; (ii) capture appropriate commercial, industrial, and/or housing demand; (iii) 
compliment other land uses; (iv) assure high aesthetic and environmental quality and compatibility 
of development; (v) stimulate the economy through job creation and an increase in the City’s tax 
base; and (vi) encourage private investment in the City. 
   

H. History of Previous Development Proposals and Activity (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(H)): 
Google Earth® indicates that the Commercial Property has remained substantially unchanged from 
its present condition since 1994.  

 
I. Implementation of the Long-Range Property Management Plan: 

Following the approval of the LRPMP by the DOF, the Successor Agency will implement the 
LRPMP.  For property to be transferred to the City of Cudahy for future development, 
implementation will include securing an HSC § 34180 (f)(1) compensation agreement (the 
“Compensation Agreement”) with the affected taxing entities prior to the transfer of the property 
to the City.  The City will seek a Compensation Agreement with the affected taxing entities after 
the LRPMP is approved by DOF.  The compensation due the affected taxing entities shall be 
governed by the Compensation Agreement and where applicable take into consideration the other 
funding source restrictions noted below. 
 
For properties that are to be held for future development that are an asset of a tax-exempt bond 
issue and/or LMIHF, the Compensation Agreement with the taxing entities will include provisions 
for the re-use of land sale proceeds that are attributable to a tax-exempt bond issue and/or LMIHF 
consistent with the restrictions, conditions and covenants related thereto.  In addition, the 
use/distribution of any residual land sales proceeds will be governed by the provisions therefor 
within the Compensation Agreement. 
  

Attachment B

Page 168 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
17 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 3 – Santa Ana Street Residential Property 

 

Site No. 3 
(Site No. #3 on City’s website @ 

http://www.cityofcudahy.com/economic-development.html) 
Santa Ana Street 

Residential Property 
APN: 

Address: 
6224-019-014 

4610 Santa Ana Street 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A. Permissible Use (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(2)): 
Site No. 3 is the Santa Ana Street Residential Property and is proposed to be transferred to the City 
of Cudahy for future development pursuant to HSC § 34191.5 (c)(2).     
 

B. Acquisition of Property (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(A) and 34191.5 (c)(1)(B)): 
The Santa Ana Street Residential Property was acquired in accordance with the April 1, 2011, 
Project Funding Agreement between the Cudahy Community Development Commission (the 
“CDC”) and the Cudahy Economic Development Corporation (the “CEDC”) and the April 1, 2011, 

Attachment B

Page 169 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
18 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 3 – Santa Ana Street Residential Property 

 

Reimbursement and Project Implementation Agreement between the City of Cudahy and the 
CEDC.   The Santa Ana Street Residential Property was acquired with tax-exempt bond proceeds 
and has a book value of $1,044,679.  The Property was acquired in order to meet the revitalization 
goals of the City and the former RDA to alleviate the existence and spread of physical and economic 
blight by assembling land and preparing property for future development. 
 
Pursuant to the April 15, 2014, Asset Transfer Review (“ATR”) prepared by the California State 
Controller’s Office (“SCO”), on February 3, 2015, the Successor Agency approved an Asset 
Transfer Agreement with the CEDC.  The purpose of the Asset Transfer Agreement, is to enable 
the Successor Agency to comply with the SCO’s order included within the ATR by recovering the 
redevelopment assets previously transferred to the CEDC (“Recovery Assets”).  In addition, on 
March 12, 2015, the Oversight Board to the Successor Agency to the Former Cudahy Community 
Development Commission/Redevelopment Agency (“Oversight Board”) approved its Resolution 
No. OB15-07, which approved the Asset Transfer Agreement.  On or before December 31, 2015, 
quitclaim deeds transferring the affected real property will be recorded with the office of the County 
of Los Angeles Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk thereby consummating the transfer of the 
Recovery Assets. 
 
Santa Ana Street Residential Property was previously sold to CUDAHY SA 2012, LLC by the 
CEDC.  The Successor Agency, pursuant to the SCO ATR, is in the process of recovering the 
Property.  CUDAHY SA 2012, LLC has agreed to transfer to Santa Ana Street Residential Property 
to the Successor Agency pursuant an appropriate agreement. 
 
The estimated current value (the “ECV”) of the Santa Ana Street Residential Property is 
approximately $1,200,000.   
 

C. Site Information (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(C)): 
The Santa Ana Street Residential Property consists of one (1) vacant 1.35-acre parcel (APN 6224-
019-014) located at 4610 Santa Ana Street.   
 
Santa Ana Street Residential Property is zoned Community Commercial and High Density 
Residential Garden Overlay (CC and HDR-G) in the City’s Zoning Ordinance and 2010 General 
Plan.  The CC designation permits land uses for retail stores, offices, trailer parks, churches, 
schools, auto sales, banks, markets, restaurants and similar uses.  Mixed use development is also 
permitted within this land use designation at densities of 35 units per acre.    
 

D. Estimated Current Value (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(D)): 
In October 2014, the ECV for the Santa Ana Street Residential Property was determined by a 
Broker’s Opinion of Value prepared by Douglas E. Wells, Penta Pacific Properties.  Mr. Wells 
concluded the ECV of the Santa Ana Street Residential Property is approximately $1,200,000. 
 
Local and environmental factors were not taken into consideration in determining the ECV of the 
Santa Ana Street Residential Property.  Therefore, the actual value of the property may vary 
significantly from the ECV.  The ECV is only a planning number and should not be relied upon as 
a basis for actual value.  It was not possible to include environmental issues or any other special or 
unique factors into the ECV calculations, as such data was not readily available to Mr. Wells.  As 
noted in the LRPMP, the real value of the property cannot be determined without an appraisal. 

Attachment B

Page 170 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
19 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 3 – Santa Ana Street Residential Property 

 

 
The Successor Agency notes that in the environment of AB 1484, it may not be possible to achieve 
appraised values.  The City will ultimately be responsible for seeking to achieve successful 
marketing of properties, and will act with reasonable diligence.  However, the constraints and 
environment of AB 1484 militate against maximizing prices.  The actual sales prices to be realized 
will be a function of what a willing buyer is willing to pay under circumstances where there will 
be no seller financing.  Therefore, there is no reason to think that book values will be realized.  
 

E. Site Revenues (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(E)): 
There are no site revenues generated from the Santa Ana Street Residential Property. 
 

F. History of Environmental Contamination (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(F)):  
 
2012 Closure Report – Underground Storage Tank Removal APN 6224-019-014, December 2012 
- California Environmental Geologists & Engineers, Inc. 
 
A 1966 Sanborn Map indicated the presence of an underground tank on the west side of the 
property, approximately 140 feet south of the north property line.  City building permits indicated 
that one 2,000-gallon gasoline underground storage tank (“UST”) was installed on the west 
property line around 1965 and two additional gasoline USTs beneath the northeast corner of the 
property (5,000 and 7,500 gallon capacity) were installed in 1970.  County of Los Angeles 
Department of Public Works files contained a 1987 tank closure report issued on July 20, 1987 for 
the two larger USTs indicating that no fuel impacts were found in soil associated with those tanks.  
Tank abandonment records were not located for the 2,000-gallon UST. 
 
On April 23, 2012, California Environmental Geologists & Engineers, Inc. (“CE”) evaluated the 
property for buried tanks.  Approximately 4 feet below ground surface, the 2,000-gallon UST was 
located.  Soil gas sampling was conducted in the area of the discovered tank and fuel hydrocarbon 
related VOCs were not detected in soil gas.  On November 14, 2012, the 2,000-gallon UST was 
removed from the property.  In December 2012, a closure report was submitted to the County of 
Los Angeles – Public Works Environmental Program Division (LACDPW File No. 13178-S 7418). 
 

G. Potential for Transit Oriented Development (TOD) and the Advancement of Planning Objectives 
of the Successor Agency (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(G)): 
There is no potential for a TOD in conjunction with Santa Ana Street Residential Property.   
 
The transfer of the Santa Ana Street Residential Property for future development advances the 
planning objectives of the City and the Successor Agency in accordance with the Five-Year 
implementation Plan 2004-2009 (the “Plan”) goals to (i) provide a sufficient number of affordable 
housing units to meet the needs of the City’s residents; (ii) support adequate residential 
development sites at appropriate densities; (iii) provide a selection of housing type, tenure, and 
price; and (iv) encourage residential uses in commercial areas.  In addition, the transfer of the 
Property for future development will maximize development opportunities to (i) reduce blight 
through new construction and improved infrastructure; (ii) capture appropriate commercial, 
industrial, and/or housing demand; (iii) compliment other land uses; (iv) assure high aesthetic and 
environmental quality and compatibility of development; (v) stimulate the economy through job 
creation and an increase in the City’s tax base; and (vi) encourage private investment in the City. 

Attachment B

Page 171 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
20 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 3 – Santa Ana Street Residential Property 

 

   
 

H. History of Previous Development Proposals and Activity (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(H)): 
In the 1960’s a building(s) was located on the northwest portion of the property.  The property was 
cleared of all structures sometime between the 1970’s and the 1990’s.  Google Earth® indicates that 
between 1994 and 2007 the Property was used as truck and vehicular storage/parking.  Between 
2007 and 2009, the Property was used as a contractor’s equipment/materials storage yard.  In 2009, 
the Property was cleared of all storage activity and has since remained vacant. 
      

I. Implementation of the Long-Range Property Management Plan: 
Following the approval of the LRPMP by the DOF, the Successor Agency will implement the 
LRPMP.  For property to be transferred to the City of Cudahy for future development, 
implementation will include securing an HSC § 34180 (f)(1) compensation agreement (the 
“Compensation Agreement”) with the affected taxing entities prior to the transfer of the property 
to the City.  The City will seek a Compensation Agreement with the affected taxing entities after 
the LRPMP is approved by DOF.  The compensation due the affected taxing entities shall be 
governed by the Compensation Agreement and where applicable take into consideration the other 
funding source restrictions noted below. 
 
For properties that are to be held for future development that are an asset of a tax-exempt bond 
issue and/or LMIHF, the Compensation Agreement with the taxing entities will include provisions 
for the re-use of land sale proceeds that are attributable to a tax-exempt bond issue and/or LMIHF 
consistent with the restrictions, conditions and covenants related thereto.  In addition, the 
use/distribution of any residual land sales proceeds will be governed by the provisions therefor 
within the Compensation Agreement.  
 
 

Attachment B

Page 172 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
21 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 4 – Atlantic Avenue / Cecilia Street Commercial Property 

 

Site No. 4 
(Site No. #2 on City’s website @ http://www.cityofcudahy.com/economic-development.html) 

Atlantic Avenue / Cecilia Street Commercial Property 
APN: 

Address: 
6224-022-001 
8135 South Atlantic Avenue 

APN: 
Address: 

6224-022-004 
4629 Cecilia Street 

APN: 
Address: 

6224-022-002 
8201 South Atlantic Avenue 

APN: 
Address: 

6224-022-012 
8221 South Atlantic Avenue 

APN: 
Address: 

6224-022-003 
4633 Cecilia Street 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

6224‐018‐008

Attachment B

Page 173 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
22 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 4 – Atlantic Avenue / Cecilia Street Commercial Property 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
A. Permissible Use (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(2)): 

Site No. 4 is the Atlantic Avenue / Cecilia Street Commercial Property (the “Commercial 
Property”) and is proposed to be transferred to the City of Cudahy for future development pursuant 
to HSC § 34191.5 (c)(2).     
 

B. Acquisition of Property (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(A) and 34191.5 (c)(1)(B)): 
The Atlantic Avenue / Cecilia Street Commercial Property was acquired in accordance with the 
April 1, 2011, Project Funding Agreement between the Cudahy Community Development 
Commission (the “CDC”) and the Cudahy Economic Development Corporation (the “CEDC”) and 
the April 1, 2011, Reimbursement and Project Implementation Agreement between the City of 
Cudahy and the CEDC.  The Commercial Property was acquired with tax-exempt bond proceeds 
and has a total book value of $3,315,954.  The Property was acquired in order to meet the 

6224‐022‐012

6224‐022‐002

6224‐022‐003 and ‐004

Attachment B

Page 174 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
23 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 4 – Atlantic Avenue / Cecilia Street Commercial Property 

 

revitalization goals of the City and the former RDA to alleviate the existence and spread of physical 
and economic blight by assembling land and preparing property for future development.  
 
Pursuant to the April 15, 2014, Asset Transfer Review (“ATR”) prepared by the California State 
Controller’s Office (“SCO”), on February 3, 2015, the Successor Agency approved an Asset 
Transfer Agreement with the CEDC.  The purpose of the Asset Transfer Agreement, is to enable 
the Successor Agency to comply with the SCO’s order included within the ATR by recovering the 
redevelopment assets previously transferred to the CEDC (“Recovery Assets”).  In addition, on 
March 12, 2015, the Oversight Board to the Successor Agency to the Former Cudahy Community 
Development Commission/Redevelopment Agency (“Oversight Board”) approved its Resolution 
No. OB15-07, which approved the Asset Transfer Agreement.  On October 19, 2015 a quitclaim 
deed was recorded with the office of the County of Los Angeles Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk 
transferring the affected real property to the Successor Agency, thereby effectuating the transfer of 
the Recovery Assets. 
 
The estimated current value (the “ECV”) of the Commercial Property is approximately $2,560,000.   
 

C. Site Information (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(C)): 
The Commercial Property consists of five (5) parcels that total approximately 2.47 acres (APNs: 
6224-022-001, -002, -003, -004, -012) located at 8135, 8201, and 8221 South Atlantic Avenue and 
4629 and 4633 Cecilia Street.  The following table describes the improvements located on the 
Commercial Property: 
 

Atlantic/Cecilia Commercial Property 

APN Address Type of Structure 
Year 

Constructed 
Square Footage 

6224-022-001 8135 South Atlantic Avenue Commercial building 1956 8,800 
6224-022-002 8201 South Atlantic Avenue House w/detached garage 1939 476 
6224-022-003 4633 Cecilia Street Trailers - - 
6224-022-004 4629 Cecilia Street Trailers - - 

6224-022-012 8221 South Atlantic Avenue 
2-story stucco office 
building and a metal 

building 
1945 8,140 

 
The Commercial Property is zoned Community Commercial (CC) in the City’s Zoning Ordinance 
and 2010 General Plan.  The CC designation permits land uses for retail stores, offices, trailer parks, 
churches, schools, auto sales, banks, markets, restaurants and similar uses.  Mixed use development 
is also permitted within this land use designation at densities of 35 units per acre.   
 

D. Estimated Current Value (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(D)): 
In October 2014, the ECV for the Commercial Property was determined by a Broker’s Opinion of 
Value prepared by Douglas E. Wells, Penta Pacific Properties.  Mr. Wells concluded the ECV of 
the Commercial Property is approximately $2,560,000. 
 
Local and environmental factors were not taken into consideration in determining the ECV of the 
Commercial Property.  Therefore, the actual value of the property may vary significantly from the 
ECV.  The ECV is only a planning number and should not be relied upon as a basis for actual value.  
It was not possible to include environmental issues or any other special or unique factors into the 

Attachment B

Page 175 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
24 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 4 – Atlantic Avenue / Cecilia Street Commercial Property 

 

ECV calculations, as such data was not readily available to Mr. Wells.  As noted in the LRPMP, 
the real value of the property cannot be determined without an appraisal. 
 
The Successor Agency notes that in the environment of AB 1484, it may not be possible to achieve 
appraised values.  The City will ultimately be responsible for seeking to achieve successful 
marketing of properties, and will act with reasonable diligence.  However, the constraints and 
environment of AB 1484 militate against maximizing prices.  The actual sales prices to be realized 
will be a function of what a willing buyer is willing to pay under circumstances where there will 
be no seller financing.  Therefore, there is no reason to think that book values will be realized.    
 

E. Site Revenues (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(E)): 
There are no site revenues generated from the Commercial Property. 
 

F. History of Environmental Contamination (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(F)):  
 
 2009 / 2012 Phase-I Report - California Environmental Geologists & Engineers, Inc. 
 
8201 and 8221 South Atlantic Avenue (6224-022-002 and -012) 
4629 and 4633 Cecilia Street (6224-022-003 and -004) 
In 2009, the residential and office structures were tested for asbestos and abated as necessary.  
However, the metal buildings were excluded from testing.  It is recommended that prior to the 
demolition of these metal buildings, asbestos testing is conducted. 
 
In April 2012, an Environmental Site Assessment Phase-I Report was prepared by CE and 
concluded that there was no evidence of an existing recognized environmental condition in 
connection with the property.  In addition, with the removal of one 1,000-gallon and one 4,000-
gallon underground fuel storage tanks, a clarifier, and sand/grease trap from the property, Grand 
Vista Steel & Metal Supply was issued a No Further Action letter from the County of Los Angeles 
DPW. 
 
 2012 Phase-I Report - California Environmental Geologists & Engineers, Inc. 
 
8135 South Atlantic Avenue (6224-022-001)  
In November 2012, an Environmental Site Assessment Phase-I Report was prepared by California 
Environmental Geologists & Engineers, Inc. (“CE”) and concluded that there was evidence of a 
recognized environmental concern on the property due to the current practice by Platinum Auto 
Body of allowing wastewater, possibly contaminated, to accumulate in the degraded asphalt 
pavement on the north and south sides of the property.  Additional testing should be conducted on 
shallow soils, with further testing of groundwater beneath the property dependent on the resultant 
soil testing.  
  

Attachment B

Page 176 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
25 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 4 – Atlantic Avenue / Cecilia Street Commercial Property 

 

 2015 Phase-I Report - Andersen Environmental, an EFI Global Company 
 
8135 South Atlantic Avenue (6224-022-001)  
8201 and 8221 South Atlantic Avenue (6224-022-002 and -012) 
4629 and 4633 Cecilia Street (6224-022-003 and -004) 
In August 2015, Andersen Environmental, an EFI Global Company, conducted a Phase I 
Environmental Site Assessment Report (the “Phase-I Report”).  The Phase-I Report concluded and 
recommended that: 
 

CONCLUSIONS 
 
“Recognized Environmental Conditions (REC) 
 The former use of a spray booth on-site in toy manufacturing 

operations for up to 15 years (1968 to 1983) represents a REC. 
 The accumulation of wastewater from auto repair operations on the 

southern side of the parcel with potential subsurface impacts is 
considered a REC. 

 The presence of the below grade hydraulic lift represents a REC. 
 The historical bus repair operations by Western Diesel Electric from 

sometime prior to 1984 to 1991 represent a REC for the subject 
property based on the historical parts washing operations on-site and 
improper disposal of hazardous waste from these operations with 
potential for subsurface impacts. 
 

Historical Recognized Environmental Condition (HREC) 
 The former 4,000-gallon gasoline UST utilized in industrial 

operations on the southern portion of the subject property parcels 
represents a HREC for the subject property. 

 The former wastewater separator/sump utilized in industrial 
operations on the southern portion of the subject property parcels 
represents a HREC for the subject property. 
 

Controlled Recognized Environmental Condition (CREC) 
In our opinion, no CRECs were revealed during the course of our 
assessment.” 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
“Based on the foregoing, a Phase II Environmental Site Assessment is 
recommended.” 

 
G. Potential for Transit Oriented Development (TOD) and the Advancement of Planning Objectives 

of the Successor Agency (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(G)): 
There is no potential for a TOD in conjunction with the Commercial Property.   
 
The transfer of the Commercial Property for future development advances the planning objectives 
of the City and the Successor Agency in accordance with the Five-Year implementation Plan 2004-

Attachment B

Page 177 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
26 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 4 – Atlantic Avenue / Cecilia Street Commercial Property 

 

2009 (the “Plan”) goals to (i) provide a sufficient number of affordable housing units to meet the 
needs of the City’s residents; (ii) support adequate residential development sites at appropriate 
densities; (iii) provide a selection of housing type, tenure, and price; (iv) encourage residential uses 
in commercial areas; (v) actively address the elimination of economic/physical blight as it pertains 
property that contains toxic substances and/or unsafe structures.  In addition, the transfer of the 
Property for future development will maximize development opportunities to (i) reduce blight 
through new construction and improved infrastructure; (ii) capture appropriate commercial, 
industrial, and/or housing demand; (iii) compliment other land uses; (iv) assure high aesthetic and 
environmental quality and compatibility of development; (v) stimulate the economy through job 
creation and an increase in the City’s tax base; and (vi) encourage private investment in the City. 

 
H. History of Previous Development Proposals and Activity (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(H)): 

8135 South Atlantic Avenue (6224-022-001)  
Historical site utilization research indicated that 8135 South Atlantic Avenue was initially 
developed for residential use during the 1940’s.  Building permit records indicate that the current 
structure was constructed in the 1950’s as a bakery good distribution center.  The property was also 
used as a storage warehouse and furniture manufacturer in the 1960’s.  Western Diesel Electric 
occupied the property from the early 1980’s through mid-1990.  The property is currently occupied 
by Platinum Auto Body, which conducts auto frame/body repair work.5   
 
8201 and 8221 South Atlantic Avenue (6224-022-002 and -012) 
4629 and 4633 Cecilia Street (6224-022-003 and -004) 
Historical site utilization research indicated that the property was undeveloped in 1901.  In 1929, 
three dwellings with detached garages were constructed.  Rose Trucking Line occupied the property 
in 1944.  Western Welding Service occupied the property in 1946 and a loading dock was 
constructed in 1947.  Prior to 1950, the property was developed with existing structures.  John 
Stang Yard occupied the property from 1954 through 1964 along with Subgrade Engineering from 
1958 and 1964.  Grand Vista Steel & Metal Supply Co. occupied the property from 1967 through 
2000 and Hobby Heaven occupied the property from 2000 to 2006.  The property is currently 
occupied by a vacant Grand Vista Steel & Metal Supply.6 
       

I. Implementation of the Long-Range Property Management Plan: 
Following the approval of the LRPMP by the DOF, the Successor Agency will implement the 
LRPMP.  For property to be transferred to the City of Cudahy for future development, 
implementation will include securing an HSC § 34180 (f)(1) compensation agreement (the 
“Compensation Agreement”) with the affected taxing entities prior to the transfer of the property 
to the City.  The City will seek a Compensation Agreement with the affected taxing entities after 
the LRPMP is approved by DOF.  The compensation due the affected taxing entities shall be 
governed by the Compensation Agreement and where applicable take into consideration the other 
funding source restrictions noted below. 
 
For properties that are to be held for future development that are an asset of a tax-exempt bond 
issue and/or LMIHF, the Compensation Agreement with the taxing entities will include provisions 

                                                            
5 California Environmental Geologists & Engineers, Inc., Environmental Site Assessment – Phase 1, Commercial Property APN 6224-022-001, 
December 2012, page 23  
6 California Environmental Geologists & Engineers, Inc., Environmental Site Assessment – Phase 1, Grande Vista Steel & Metal Supply Co. 
APNs 6224-022-002, 003, 004, and 012, April 2012, page 29 

Attachment B

Page 178 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
27 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 4 – Atlantic Avenue / Cecilia Street Commercial Property 

 

for the re-use of land sale proceeds that are attributable to a tax-exempt bond issue and/or LMIHF 
consistent with the restrictions, conditions and covenants related thereto.  In addition, the 
use/distribution of any residual land sales proceeds will be governed by the provisions therefor 
within the Compensation Agreement. 

 

Attachment B

Page 179 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
28 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 5 – Atlantic Avenue / Patata Street Commercial Property 

 

Site No. 5 
(Site No. #1 on City’s website @ http://www.cityofcudahy.com/economic-development.html) 

Atlantic Avenue / Patata Street Commercial Property 
APN: 

Address: 
6224-034-014 
4819 Patata Street 

APNs: 
 

Address: 

6224-034-032 
6224-034-040 
8420 South Atlantic Avenue 

APN: 
Address: 

6224-034-041 
Patata Street 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

6224‐034‐014 and 041 

Attachment B

Page 180 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
29 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 5 – Atlantic Avenue / Patata Street Commercial Property 

 

 
 
 

A. Permissible Use (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(2)): 
Site No. 5 is the Atlantic Avenue / Patata Street Commercial Property (the “Commercial Property”) 
and is proposed to be transferred to the City of Cudahy for future development pursuant to HSC § 
34191.5 (c)(2). 
 

B. Acquisition of Property (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(A) and 34191.5 (c)(1)(B)): 
The Commercial Property was acquired in accordance with the April 1, 2011, Project Funding 
Agreement between the Cudahy Community Development Commission (the “CDC”) and the 
Cudahy Economic Development Corporation (the “CEDC”) and the April 1, 2011, Reimbursement 
and Project Implementation Agreement between the City of Cudahy and the CEDC.  The 
Commercial Property was acquired, in part, with tax-exempt bond proceeds and has a total book 
value of $2,904,717.  The Commercial Property was acquired in order to meet the revitalization 
goals of the City and the former RDA to alleviate the existence and spread of physical and economic 
blight by assembling land and preparing property for future development. 
 
Pursuant to the April 15, 2014, Asset Transfer Review (“ATR”) prepared by the California State 
Controller’s Office (“SCO”), on February 3, 2015, the Successor Agency approved an Asset 
Transfer Agreement with the CEDC.  The purpose of the Asset Transfer Agreement, is to enable 
the Successor Agency to comply with the SCO’s order included within the ATR by recovering the 
redevelopment assets previously transferred to the CEDC (“Recovery Assets”).  In addition, on 
March 12, 2015, the Oversight Board to the Successor Agency to the Former Cudahy Community 
Development Commission/Redevelopment Agency (“Oversight Board”) approved its Resolution 
No. OB15-07, which approved the Asset Transfer Agreement.  On October 19, 2015 a quitclaim 
deed was recorded with the office of the County of Los Angeles Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk 
transferring the affected real property to the Successor Agency, thereby effectuating the transfer of 
the Recovery Assets. 
 
The estimated current value (the “ECV”) of the Commercial Property is approximately $1,960,000.   
 

C. Site Information (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(C)): 
The Commercial Property consists of four (4) parcels that total approximately 2.1 acres (APNs: 
6224-031-014, -032, -040, -041) located at 4817 Patata Street and 8420 South Atlantic Avenue.  
One vacant 27,635 sf structure, constructed in 1987, is located at 8420 South Atlantic Avenue.  
4817 Patata Street is a vacant parcel.     
 

6224‐034‐032 and ‐040

Attachment B

Page 181 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
30 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 5 – Atlantic Avenue / Patata Street Commercial Property 

 

The Commercial Property is zoned Community Commercial (CC) in the City’s Zoning Ordinance and 
2010 General Plan.  The CC designation permits land uses for retail stores, offices, trailer parks, 
churches, schools, auto sales, banks, markets, restaurants and similar uses.  Mixed use development is 
also permitted within this land use designation at densities of 35 units per acre. 
 

D. Estimated Current Value (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(D)): 
In October 2014, the ECV for the Commercial Property was determined by a Broker’s Opinion of 
Value prepared by Douglas E. Wells, Penta Pacific Properties.  Mr. Wells concluded the ECV of 
the Commercial Property is approximately $1,960,000. 
 
Local and environmental factors were not taken into consideration in determining the ECV of the 
Commercial Property.  Therefore, the actual value of the property may vary significantly from the 
ECV.  The ECV is only a planning number and should not be relied upon as a basis for actual value.  
It was not possible to include environmental issues or any other special or unique factors into the 
ECV calculations, as such data was not readily available to Mr. Wells.  As noted in the LRPMP, 
the real value of the property cannot be determined without an appraisal. 
 
The Successor Agency notes that in the environment of AB 1484, it may not be possible to achieve 
appraised values.  The City will ultimately be responsible for seeking to achieve successful 
marketing of properties, and will act with reasonable diligence.  However, the constraints and 
environment of AB 1484 militate against maximizing prices.  The actual sales prices to be realized 
will be a function of what a willing buyer is willing to pay under circumstances where there will 
be no seller financing.  Therefore, there is no reason to think that book values will be realized.  
 

E. Site Revenues (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(E)): 
There are no site revenues generated from the Commercial Property. 
 

F. History of Environmental Contamination (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(F)):  
 
 1995 - U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (the “EPA) Toxic Release Inventory (TRI”) 

database  
 

8420 S. Atlantic Avenue (the “M. Stephens Site”) is listed in the TRI database (TRI ID 
90201MSTPH8420S).  The most recent release information provided in the database is from 1995.7   
 
 2007 - California Environmental Protection Agency, Regional Water Quality Control Board 

(RWQCB) 
 

The M. Stephens site is listed in the RWQCB GeoTracker database as M Stephens 
Manufacturing (GeoTracker ID: T0603703809; Case No. 1-11513) at 4839 Patata St.  The 
site is listed as a ‘LUST Cleanup Site’ with a cleanup status as ‘Completed – Case Closed 
as of 9/27/1995.’ The potential contaminant of concern is listed as ‘gasoline’ and the 
potential media affected is ‘soil.’ Between at least 1978 and 1980, the RWQCB, in 
conjunction with the County Sanitation District of Los Angeles County, conducted 
oversight of the operation and monitoring of waste discharges to the on-site clarifier.  In 

                                                            
7 Weston, 2015 

Attachment B

Page 182 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
31 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 5 – Atlantic Avenue / Patata Street Commercial Property 

 

June 2007, the Los Angeles County department of Public Works (LADPW) issued a ‘No 
Further Action’ letter for the M Stephens site in regard to the closure and removal of the 
on-site clarifier.8 
 
 2013 - California Department of Toxic Substances Control’s (“DTSC”) EnviroStor database  

 
The M. Stephens Site is listed in the EnvironStor database as M Stephens Manufacturing 
(EnvironStor ID: 60001790) at 4839 Patata Street.  The site is listed as an ‘Evaluation’ site that was 
referred to EPA on September 17, 2013.  DTSC completed a Site Screening Assessment (the 
“SSA”) for 8420 S. Atlantic Avenue in June 2013. The SSA was prepared for EPA and has a final 
sign-off date of September 30, 2013. DTSC has had no known additional involvement with the 
site.9 
 
 2015 Phase-I Report - Andersen Environmental, an EFI Global Company 
 
In August 2015, Andersen Environmental, an EFI Global Company, conducted a Phase I 
Environmental Site Assessment Report (the “Phase-I Report”).  The Phase-I Report concluded and 
recommended that: 
 

CONCLUSIONS: 
 

“Recognized Environmental Conditions (REC) 
 Based on the volatile organic compound (VOC) contamination 

documented in soil and soil vapor, the former long-term industrial 
operations for approximately 58 years and associated open USEPA 
investigation represent a recognized environmental condition for the 
subject property. 

 The former agricultural use of the subject property for up to 24 years 
represents a recognized environmental condition. 

 The release of VOCs at the two adjoining industrial facilities to the 
west poses a potential Vapor Intrusion Condition for the subject 
property and represents a recognized environmental condition.” 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
“Andersen Environmental recommends adherence to USEPA directives. 
Additionally, a Phase II Environmental Site Assessment is 
recommended.” 
 

 2015 Site Inspection Sampling and Analysis Plan EPA ID No. CAN000909569 – Weston 
Solutions, Inc. 
 

                                                            
8 Weston, 2015 
9 Ibid. 

Attachment B

Page 183 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
32 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 5 – Atlantic Avenue / Patata Street Commercial Property 

 

In September 2015, Weston Solutions, Inc. prepared a Sampling and Analysis Plan (the “SAP”) 
for the M. Stephens Site at the request of the U.S. EPA.  Once implemented, the SAP will 
enable EPA to conclude the Hazardous Ranking for the M. Stephens Site. 

 
G. Potential for Transit Oriented Development (TOD) and the Advancement of Planning Objectives 

of the Successor Agency (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(G)): 
There is no potential for a TOD in conjunction with Commercial Property.   
 
The transfer of the Commercial Property for future development advances the planning objectives 
of the City and the Successor Agency in accordance with the Five-Year implementation Plan 2004-
2009 (the “Plan”) goals to (i) provide a sufficient number of affordable housing units to meet the 
needs of the City’s residents; (ii) support adequate residential development sites at appropriate 
densities; (iii) provide a selection of housing type, tenure, and price; and (iv) encourage residential 
uses in commercial areas.  In addition, the transfer of the Property for future development will 
maximize development opportunities to (i) reduce blight through new construction and improved 
infrastructure; (ii) capture appropriate commercial, industrial, and/or housing demand; (iii) 
compliment other land uses; (iv) assure high aesthetic and environmental quality and compatibility 
of development; (v) stimulate the economy through job creation and an increase in the City’s tax 
base; and (vi) encourage private investment in the City. 
 

H. History of Previous Development Proposals and Activity (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(H)): 
Google Earth® indicates that in 1994, the Commercial Property contained at least three additional 
warehouse/manufacturing structures.  Between July 2008 and June 2009, the three additional 
structures were demolished, leaving the Property in its current state. 
       

I. Implementation of the Long-Range Property Management Plan: 
Following the approval of the LRPMP by the DOF, the Successor Agency will implement the 
LRPMP.  For property to be transferred to the City of Cudahy for future development, 
implementation will include securing an HSC § 34180 (f)(1) compensation agreement (the 
“Compensation Agreement”) with the affected taxing entities prior to the transfer of the property 
to the City.  The City will seek a Compensation Agreement with the affected taxing entities after 
the LRPMP is approved by DOF.  The compensation due the affected taxing entities shall be 
governed by the Compensation Agreement and where applicable take into consideration the other 
funding source restrictions noted below. 

 
For properties that are to be held for future development that are an asset of a tax-exempt bond 
issue and/or LMIHF, the Compensation Agreement with the taxing entities will include provisions 
for the re-use of land sale proceeds that are attributable to a tax-exempt bond issue and/or LMIHF 
consistent with the restrictions, conditions and covenants related thereto.  In addition, the 
use/distribution of any residual land sales proceeds will be governed by the provisions therefor 
within the Compensation Agreement. 

 

Attachment B

Page 184 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
33 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 6 – Atlantic Avenue / Clara Street Commercial Property 

 

Site No. 6 
(Site No. #5 on City’s website @ http://www.cityofcudahy.com/economic-development.html) 

Atlantic Avenue / Clara Street Commercial Property 
APN: 

Address: 
6226-022-002 
4613 and 4615 East Clara Street 

APN: 
Address: 

6226-022-023 
7638 South Atlantic Avenue 

APN: 
Address: 

6226-022-008 
7660 South Atlantic Avenue 

APN: 
Address: 

6226-022-022 
7644 South Atlantic Avenue 

APNs: 
 

Address: 

6226-022-019 
6226-022-020 
7630 South Atlantic Avenue 

APNs: 
 

Address: 

6226-022-021 
6226-022-024 
No Address 

 

 
 
 
 
 

6226‐022‐008  6226‐022‐002 

Attachment B

Page 185 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
34 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 6 – Atlantic Avenue / Clara Street Commercial Property 

 

 

 
A. Permissible Use (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(2)): 

Site No. 6 is the Atlantic Avenue / Clara Street Commercial Property (the “Commercial Property”) 
and is proposed to be transferred to the City of Cudahy for future development pursuant to HSC § 
34191.5 (c)(2).     
 

B. Acquisition of Property (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(A) and 34191.5 (c)(1)(B)): 
APNs 6226-022-021, -022, -023, & -024 were acquired by the CDC on November 11, 2009 and 
were transferred to the Cudahy Economic Development Corporation in accordance with the April 
1, 2011, Project Funding Agreement between the Cudahy Community Development Commission 
(the “CDC”) and the Cudahy Economic Development Corporation (the “CEDC”) and the April 1, 
2011, Reimbursement and Project Implementation Agreement between the City of Cudahy and the 
CEDC.  APNs 6226-022-002, -008, -019, & -020 were acquired in accordance with the April 1, 
2011, Project Funding Agreement between the Cudahy CDC and the CEDC and the April 1, 2011, 
Reimbursement and Project Implementation Agreement between the City of Cudahy and the 
CEDC.  The Commercial Property was acquired with tax-exempt bond proceeds and has a total 
book value of $6,608,296.  The Commercial Property was acquired in order to meet the 
revitalization goals of the City and the former RDA to alleviate the existence and spread of physical 
and economic blight by assembling land and preparing property for future development.   
 
Pursuant to the April 15, 2014, Asset Transfer Review (“ATR”) prepared by the California State 
Controller’s Office (“SCO”), on February 3, 2015, the Successor Agency approved an Asset 
Transfer Agreement with the CEDC.  The purpose of the Asset Transfer Agreement, is to enable 
the Successor Agency to comply with the SCO’s order included within the ATR by recovering the 
redevelopment assets previously transferred to the CEDC (“Recovery Assets”).  In addition, on 
March 12, 2015, the Oversight Board to the Successor Agency to the Former Cudahy Community 
Development Commission/Redevelopment Agency (“Oversight Board”) approved its Resolution 
No. OB15-07, which approved the Asset Transfer Agreement.  On October 19, 2015 a quitclaim 
deed was recorded with the office of the County of Los Angeles Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk 
transferring the affected real property to the Successor Agency, thereby effectuating the transfer of 
the Recovery Assets. 
 
The estimated current value (the “ECV”) of the Commercial Property is approximately $5,710,000.   
 
 
 

6226‐022‐020  6226‐022‐023 

Attachment B

Page 186 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
35 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 6 – Atlantic Avenue / Clara Street Commercial Property 

 

C. Site Information (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(C)): 
The Commercial Property consists of eight (8) parcels that total approximately 1.66 acres (APNs: 
6226-022-002, -008, -019, -020, -021, -022, -023, -024) located at 4613 and 4615 East Clara Street 
and 7660, 7630, 7638, and 7644 South Atlantic Avenue. The following table describes the 
improvements located on the Commercial Property: 
 

Atlantic/Cecilia Commercial Property 

APN Address Type of Structure 
Year 

Constructed 
Square Footage 

6226-022-002 4613 / 4615 East Clara Street Duplex 1946 1,120 
6226-022-008 7660 South Atlantic Avenue Retail Store 1971 4,482 
6226-022-019 

7630 South Atlantic Avenue 
12-unit Motel 

1964 
5,324 

6226-022-020 51-unit Motel 19,566 
6226-022-021 

7638 South Atlantic Avenue 
None --- --- 

6226-022-023 
6226-022-022 

7644 South Atlantic Avenue 
6226-022-024 

 
The Commercial Property is zoned Community Commercial (CC) in the City’s Zoning Ordinance 
and 2010 General Plan.  The CC designation permits land uses for retail stores, offices, trailer parks, 
churches, schools, auto sales, banks, markets, restaurants and similar uses.  Mixed use development 
is also permitted within this land use designation at densities of 35 units per acre. 
 

D. Estimated Current Value (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(D)): 
In November 2014, the ECV for the Commercial Property was determined by a Broker’s Opinion 
of Value prepared by John Olivas, ACORE Realty, Inc.  Mr. Olivas concluded that the ECV of the 
Commercial Property is approximately $5,710,000. 
 
Local and environmental factors were not taken into consideration in determining the ECV of the 
Commercial Property.  Therefore, the actual value of the property may vary significantly from the 
ECV.  The ECV is only a planning number and should not be relied upon as a basis for actual value.  
It was not possible to include environmental issues or any other special or unique factors into the 
ECV calculations, as such data was not readily available to Mr. Olivas.  As noted in the LRPMP, 
the real value of the property cannot be determined without an appraisal. 
 
The Successor Agency notes that in the environment of AB 1484, it may not be possible to achieve 
appraised values.  The City will ultimately be responsible for seeking to achieve successful 
marketing of properties, and will act with reasonable diligence.  However, the constraints and 
environment of AB 1484 militate against maximizing prices.  The actual sales prices to be realized 
will be a function of what a willing buyer is willing to pay under circumstances where there will 
be no seller financing.  Therefore, there is no reason to think that book values will be realized.   
 

E. Site Revenues (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(E)): 
Approximately $94,830 is received annually from three (3) businesses located in the strip mall at 
the Northeast corner of South Atlantic Avenue and Clara Street.  
 
 

 

Attachment B

Page 187 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
36 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 6 – Atlantic Avenue / Clara Street Commercial Property 

 

APN 6226-022-008 
Lease #1 
La Tripa Veloz Restaurant – 4537 Clara Street 
This Lease was first entered into by and between two private parties.  It was transferred to the 
Successor Agency upon the acquisition of the Property.  Annual revenues received from this Lease 
amount to approximately $17,400.  The Lease expires on July 31, 2021.  There is no provision in 
the Lease, or a current Lease Amendment, that will extend the Lease further than July 31, 2019.  
There are no contractual obligations for the use of the collected revenues.  Site revenues are used 
for property maintenance. 
 
Lease #2 
Red Owl Liquor – 7660 South Atlantic Avenue 
This Lease was first entered into on March 1, 2004 by and between two private parties.  It was 
transferred to the Successor Agency upon the acquisition of the Property.  Annual revenues 
received from this Lease amount to approximately $46,200.  The Lease expires on July 31, 2019.  
There is no provision in the Lease, or a current Lease Amendment, that will extend the Lease further 
than January 31, 2019.  There are no contractual obligations for the use of the collected revenues.  
Site revenues are used for property maintenance. 
 
Lease #3 
Coin-Op Laundry – 4533 Clara Street 
This Lease was first entered into on April 30, 2007 by and between two private parties.  It was 
transferred to the Successor Agency upon the acquisition of the Property.  Annual revenues 
received from this Lease amount to approximately $31,230.  The Lease expires on April 30, 2017.  
There is no provision in the Lease, or a current Lease Amendment, that will extend the Lease further 
than April 30, 2017.  There are no contractual obligations for the use of the collected revenues.  
Site revenues are used for property maintenance.   

    
F. History of Environmental Contamination (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(F)):  

 
2015 Phase-I Report - Andersen Environmental, an EFI Global Company 
 
In August 2015, Andersen Environmental, an EFI Global Company, conducted a Phase I 
Environmental Site Assessment Report (the “Phase-I Report”).  The Phase-I Report concluded and 
recommended that: 
 

CONCLUSIONS: 
 
“Recognized Environmental Conditions (REC) 
 The historical gas station identified from at least 1947 to 1966 (19 

years) in the southwest portion of the subject property associated with 
7654 and 7656 South Atlantic Avenue represents a REC. 

 The historical dry cleaner identified in at least 1947 in the west portion 
of the subject property at 7638 South Atlantic Avenue represents a 
REC.” 

 
 

Attachment B

Page 188 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
37 

III.  Propety to be Transferred for Future Development 
Site No. 6 – Atlantic Avenue / Clara Street Commercial Property 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
“Based on the foregoing, a Phase II Environmental Site Assessment is 
recommended.”  

 
G. Potential for Transit Oriented Development (TOD) and the Advancement of Planning Objectives 

of the Successor Agency (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(G)): 
There is no potential for a TOD in conjunction with Commercial Property.   
 
The transfer of the Commercial Property for future development advances the planning objectives 
of the City and the Successor Agency in accordance with the Five-Year implementation Plan 2004-
2009 (the “Plan”) goals to (i) provide a sufficient number of affordable housing units to meet the 
needs of the City’s residents; (ii) support adequate residential development sites at appropriate 
densities; (iii) provide a selection of housing type, tenure, and price; and (iv) encourage residential 
uses in commercial areas.  In addition, the transfer of the Property for future development will 
maximize development opportunities to (i) reduce blight through new construction and improved 
infrastructure; (ii) capture appropriate commercial, industrial, and/or housing demand; (iii) 
compliment other land uses; (iv) assure high aesthetic and environmental quality and compatibility 
of development; (v) stimulate the economy through job creation and an increase in the City’s tax 
base; and (vi) encourage private investment in the City. 
 

H. History of Previous Development Proposals and Activity (HSC § 34191.5 (c)(1)(H)): 
Google Earth® indicates that from May 1994 the Commercial Property has remained in its current 
state. 
 

I. Implementation of the Long-Range Property Management Plan: 
Following the approval of the LRPMP by the DOF, the Successor Agency will implement the 
LRPMP.  For property to be transferred to the City of Cudahy for future development, 
implementation will include securing an HSC § 34180 (f)(1) compensation agreement (the 
“Compensation Agreement”) with the affected taxing entities prior to the transfer of the property 
to the City.  The City will seek a Compensation Agreement with the affected taxing entities after 
the LRPMP is approved by DOF.  The compensation due the affected taxing entities shall be 
governed by the Compensation Agreement and where applicable take into consideration the other 
funding source restrictions noted below. 
 
For properties that are to be held for future development that are an asset of a tax-exempt bond 
issue and/or LMIHF, the Compensation Agreement with the taxing entities will include provisions 
for the re-use of land sale proceeds that are attributable to a tax-exempt bond issue and/or LMIHF 
consistent with the restrictions, conditions and covenants related thereto.  In addition, the 
use/distribution of any residual land sales proceeds will be governed by the provisions therefor 
within the Compensation Agreement. 
  
 

Attachment B

Page 189 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
38 

 

Exhibit	A	–	Successor	Agency/City	Property	
Disposition	Procedures	

The following is only a general outline for the Purchase & Sale and Request for Proposals procedures of the Successor 
Agency for the disposition of real property.  Property to be sold will be in accordance with Successor Agency Policies 
and Procedures and property to be transferred for future development will be developed in accordance with City 
Policies and Procedures.  It is anticipated that the Successor Agency will adopt policies and procedures that are more 
specific during the implementation phase of the LRPMP. 
 

I. PURCHASE AND SALE PROCEDURES 
 
These procedures apply only to those properties for which the Successor Agency will sell.  These procedures 
do not apply to those properties that will be transferred for future development or to fulfill an enforceable 
obligation. 
 
1. Post notice on Successor Agency website: 

 “All persons interested in receiving solicitations for the disposition of Successor Agency property please 
email ‘xyz@cityofthefuture.org’(a newly established email for the disposition of property) with your 
contact information and ‘Purchase and Sale of Successor Agency Property’ in the Subject line.”  

 
2. Successor Agency will provide written solicitations for the sale of its real estate assets, which may be a 

single parcel or a grouping of parcels (the “Property”).  Such formal solicitations will include, but not 
be limited to: 
a. APN(s); 
b. Property location; 
c. Zoning; 
d. Acreage; 
e. Listing Price (The listing price shall either be (i) not less than fair market value under an appraisal 

procured by the Successor Agency or (ii) another amount approved for such purpose by the 
Oversight Board; 

f. Purchase Price shall be all cash at close of escrow, no seller financing; 
g. Deadline to receive offers (prior to selection, offers are confidential); 
h. Offer submittal guidelines: 

i. All offers must be in writing (California Association of Realtor forms are acceptable); 
ii. Successor Agency will provide courtesy to brokers equal to one-half of the customary 

commission if the ultimate buyer is represented by said real estate broker as buyer’s broker at 
the time the original offer is submitted.  

iii. Provided that allowance of brokerage commissions will be subject to Oversight Board approval 
in each case; 

iv. Approval of each sale may be subject to DOF approval; 
v. Type of financing identified (i.e., buyer’s cash, buyer’s loan proceeds, etc.); 

vi. All buyers are to be listed – no silent partners; and 
vii. Offers will be reviewed for conflict of interest between offeror and Successor Agency/City 

officials, staff and consultants. 
i. Some properties for sale consist of multiple parcels.  Only offers that include all parcels identified 

by Successor Agency on a particular site may be accepted, i.e., no less than whole purchases. 
 

3. Method of Solicitations: 
a. Property posting; 
b. Successor Agency website posting; 
c. Local real estate brokers; 

Attachment B

Page 190 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
39 

 

d. All persons requesting solicitations; and 
e. Workshops and/or e-mail notifications 

 
4. All property sales are in an “AS IS, WHERE IS” condition. 

 
5. The Successor Agency will be reimbursed from the sale proceeds of the property for any costs related to 

the appraisal, escrow and title fees (cost of CLTA policy only), and any other costs associated with the 
sale. 

 
6. An offer may be rejected if it does not meet the Successor Agency’s price threshold.  Acceptance of a 

purchase and sale offer is subject to approval of the Successor Agency’s Board of Directors. 
 

II. REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL PROCEDURES 
Costs incurred by the Successor Agency and/or the City in the implementation of these Disposition 
Procedures shall be treated as an Enforceable Obligation for purposes of the Recognized Obligation Payments 
Schedule (“ROPS”) of the Successor Agency to be recovered from land sales proceeds.  The City shall 
provide the Successor Agency an estimate of such costs at such times and in a form sufficient for the 
Successor Agency to include such costs on one or more ROPS, as appropriate.  Included in such costs are: 
staff time in the performance of such duties; costs and fees of consultants, attorneys, appraisers, title insurers 
and escrow; costs and fees in connection with the disposition of property(ies), such as unpaid and outstanding 
tax liens or judgments and other costs incurred in  order to deliver merchantable title.  Where possible, the 
Successor Agency is to recover costs at the time of close of escrow. 
 
A) INTENT AND PURPOSE 

A Request for Proposals (“RFP”) will be prepared by the Successor Agency and posted to the City’s 
website, and/or sent to developers or parties that have requested such RFPs, and other developers or 
parties at the Successor Agency’s discretion.  The number of properties as to which an RFP is requested 
is subject to the discretion of the Successor Agency.   
 

B) PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL 
1. Interested parties may submit a development proposal by the deadline specified in the RFP or other 

announcement. 
 

2. Proposal requirements may include, but not be limited to, the following: 
a. The proposed total consideration for the property(ies) and information  supporting the offer 

price;  
b. Any proposed alterations to the terms and conditions of sale; 
c. Construction and development pro forma, a detailed site plan, a business/operating plan, 

developer qualifications, experience and references, a narrative description of the market 
support for the proposed project, an operating pro forma, as applicable, and an explanation of 
the economic benefits of the proposed project to the City, other affected taxing agencies and 
the community;  

d. The proposed uses are to conform to the requirements, intent, goals, and objectives of the City 
General Plan/Zoning Ordinance, other applicable development standards, and other applicable 
federal, state and local laws, codes and regulations; and 

e. A statement that no financial assistance is being requested from any governmental agency in 
connection with the proposal, or a statement that financial assistance is being requested from a 
governmental agency in connection with the proposal, indicating the amount that will be 
requested, the anticipated timing for consideration of such request, and a description of any 
discretionary process required by the governmental agency from which assistance will be 
requested, together with an acknowledgment that conditioning a proposal upon receipt of 
assistance form a governmental agency may result in the rejection of such proposal.  

 

Attachment B

Page 191 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
40 

 

3. Interested parties to provide such additional information as may be reasonably requested by 
Successor Agency. 
 

4. Subsequent to review, applicants will be advised regarding the development proposals submitted 
complying with the requirements of the RFP or whether additional information is required.  

 
C) PROPOSAL REVIEW 

1. The Successor Agency will review all proposals received and determined by Successor Agency staff 
to be complete.   
 

2. Among other things, the Successor Agency’s review will consider the value of the asset in question 
being maximized as well as the proposal furthering the objectives of the City’s General Plan.  

 
3. Nothing in these Procedures prohibits the Successor Agency or the City from requiring information 

that is in addition to the foregoing or obligate the Successor Agency in selecting any proposal.  
Neither the City nor the Successor Agency will bear any responsibility for the costs associated with 
preparing and submitting a proposal. 
 

D) NEGOTIATING AGREEMENTS 
The City may enter into an Exclusive Right to Negotiate Agreement (“ERNA”) with a selected project 
proponent.  The purpose of the ERNA is to establish a time period during which the chosen applicant 
shall have the right to negotiate with the Successor Agency the terms and conditions of a sales and 
development contract.  Therefore, a Disposition and Development Agreement may follow the ERNA, if 
applicable. 

 
 
 

  	

Attachment B

Page 192 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
41 

 

Exhibit	B	–	Health	&	Safety	Code	
HSC § 34191.1, reads as follows: 
 
The provisions of this chapter shall apply to a City 
upon that agency's receipt of a finding of completion 
by the Department of Finance pursuant to Section 
34179.7. 
 
HSC § 34191.3(a), reads as follows: 
 
Notwithstanding Section 34191.1, the requirements 
specified in subdivision (e) of Section 34177 and 
subdivision (a) of Section 34181 shall be suspended, 
except as those provisions apply to the transfers for 
governmental use, until the Department of Finance has 
approved a long-range property management plan 
pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 34191.5, at 
which point the plan shall govern, and supersede all 
other provisions relating to, the disposition and use of 
the real property assets of the former redevelopment 
agency. If the department has not approved a plan by 
January 1, 2015, subdivision (e) of Section 34177 and 
subdivision (a) of Section 34181 shall be operative 
with respect to that City. 
 
HSC § 34191.4, reads as follows: 
 
The following provisions shall apply to any City that 
has been issued a finding of completion by the 
Department of Finance: 
 
(a) All real property and interests in real property 

identified in subparagraph (C) of paragraph (5) of 
subdivision (c) of Section 34179.5 shall be 
transferred to the Community Redevelopment 
Property Trust Fund of the City upon approval by 
the Department of Finance of the long-range 
property management plan submitted by the City 
pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 34191.7 
unless that property is subject to the requirements 
of any existing enforceable obligation. 

 
(b) (1) Notwithstanding subdivision (d) of Section 

34171, upon application by the successor agency 
and approval by the oversight board, loan 
agreements entered into between the 
redevelopment agency and the city, county, or 
city and county that created by the redevelopment 
agency shall be deemed to be enforceable 
obligations provided that the oversight board 
makes a finding that the loan was for legitimate 
redevelopment purposes. 

(2) For purposes of this section, "loan agreement"  
means any of the following: (A) Loans for money 
entered into between the former redevelopment 
agency and the city, county, or city and county 
that created the former redevelopment agency 
under which the city, county, or city and county 
that created the former redevelopment agency 
transferred money to the former redevelopment 
agency for use by the former redevelopment 
agency for a lawful purpose, and where the former 
redevelopment agency was obligated to repay the 
money it received pursuant to a required 
repayment schedule. (B) An agreement between 
the former redevelopment agency and the city, 
county, or city and county that created the former 
redevelopment agency under which the city, 
county, or city and county that created the former 
redevelopment agency transferred a real property 
interest to the former redevelopment agency for 
use by the former redevelopment agency for a 
lawful purpose and the former redevelopment 
agency was obligated to pay the city, county, or 
city and county that created the former 
redevelopment agency for the real property 
interest. (C) (i) An agreement between the former 
redevelopment agency and the city, county, or 
city and county that created the former 
redevelopment agency under which the city, 
county, or city and county that created the former 
redevelopment agency contracted with a third 
party on behalf of the former redevelopment 
agency for the development of infrastructure in 
connection with a redevelopment project as 
identified in a redevelopment project plan and the 
former redevelopment agency was obligated to 
reimburse the city, county, or city and county that 
created the former redevelopment agency for the 
payments made by the city, county, or city and 
county to the third party. (ii) The total amount of 
loan repayments to a city, county, or city and 
county that created the former redevelopment 
agency for all loan agreements described in clause 
(i) shall not exceed five million dollars 
($5,000,000).  
 
(3) If the oversight board finds that the loan is an 
enforceable obligation, any interest on the 
remaining principal amount of the loan that was 
previously unpaid after the original effective date 
of the loan shall be recalculated from the date of 
origination of the loan as approved by the 

Attachment B

Page 193 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
42 

 

redevelopment agency on a quarterly basis, at a 
simple interest rate of 3 percent. The recalculated 
loan shall be repaid to the city, county, or city and 
county in accordance with a defined schedule 
over a reasonable term of years. Moneys repaid 
shall be applied first to the principal, and second 
to the interest. The annual loan repayments 
provided for in the recognized obligation payment 
schedules shall be subject to all of the following 
limitations:  
 

(A) Loan repayments shall not be made prior 
to the 2013-14 fiscal year.  Beginning in the 
2013-14 fiscal year, the maximum repayment 
amount authorized each fiscal year for 
repayments made pursuant to this subdivision 
and paragraph (7) of subdivision (e) of 
Section 34176 combined shall be equal to 
one-half of the increase between the amount 
distributed to the taxing entities pursuant to 
paragraph (4) of subdivision (a) of Section 
34183 in that fiscal year and the amount 
distributed to taxing entities pursuant to that 
paragraph in the 2012-13 base year,  
provided, however, that calculation of the 
amount distributed to taxing entities during 
the 2012-13 base year shall not include any 
amounts distributed to taxing entities 
pursuant to the due diligence review process 
established in Sections 34179.5 to 34179.8, 
inclusive. Loan or deferral repayments made 
pursuant to this subdivision shall be second 
in priority to amounts to be repaid pursuant 
to paragraph (7) of subdivision (e) of Section 
34176. 

 
 (B) Repayments received by the city, county 

or city and county that formed the 
redevelopment agency shall first be used to 
retire any outstanding amounts borrowed and 
owed to the Low and Moderate Income 
Housing Fund of the former redevelopment 
agency for purposes of the Supplemental 
Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund 
and shall be distributed to the Low and 
Moderate Income Housing Asset Fund 
established by subdivision (d) of Section 
34176. Distributions to the Low and 
Moderate Income Housing Asset Fund are 
subject to the reporting requirements of 
subdivision (f) of Section 34176.1 

 
 (C) Twenty percent of any loan repayment 

shall be deducted from the loan repayment 

amount and shall be transferred to the Low 
and Moderate Income Housing Asset Fund, 
after all outstanding loans from the Low and 
Moderate Income Housing Fund for purposes 
of the Supplemental Educational Revenue 
Augmentation Fund have been paid. 
Transfers to the Low and Moderate Income 
Housing Asset Fund are subject to the 
reporting requirements of subdivision (f) of 
section 34176.1. 

 
(c) (1)    (A) Notwithstanding Section 34177.3 or any 

other conflicting provision of law, bond 
proceeds derived from bonds issued on or 
before December 31, 2010, in excess of the 
amounts needed to satisfy approved 
enforceable obligations shall thereafter be 
expended in a manner consistent with the 
original bond covenants. Enforceable 
obligations may be satisfied by the creation 
of reserves for projects that are the subject of 
the enforceable obligation and that are 
consistent with the contractual obligations for 
those projects, or by expending funds to 
complete the projects. An expenditure made 
pursuant to this paragraph shall constitute the 
creation of excess bond proceeds obligations 
to be paid from the excess proceeds. Excess 
bond proceeds obligations shall be listed 
separately on the Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule submitted by the 
successor agency. The expenditure of bond 
proceeds described in this subparagraph 
pursuant to an excess bond proceeds 
obligation shall only require the approval by 
the oversight board of the successor agency.  

 
(B) If remaining bond proceeds derived from 
bonds issued on or before December 31, 
2010, cannot be spent in a manner consistent 
with the bond covenants pursuant to 
subparagraph (A), the proceeds shall be used 
at the earliest date permissible under the 
applicable bond covenants to defease the 
bonds or to purchase those same outstanding 
bonds on the open market for cancellation. 

 
(2) Bond proceeds derived from bonds issued on or 

after January 1, 2011, in excess of the amounts 
needed to satisfy approved enforceable 
obligations, shall be used in a manner consistent 
with the original bond covenants, subject to the 
following provisions:  
  

Attachment B

Page 194 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
43 

 

(A) No more than 5 percent of the proceeds 
derived from the bonds may be expended, unless 
the successor agency meets the criteria specified 
in subparagraph (B). 

 
(B) If the successor agency has an approved Last 
and Final Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule pursuant to Section 34191.6, the agency 
may expend no more than 20 percent of the 
proceeds derived from the bonds, subject to the 
following adjustments:  
  
 (i) If the bonds were issued during the period 

of January 1, 2011, to January 31, 2011, 
inclusive, the successor agency may expend 
an additional 25 percent of the proceeds 
derived from the bonds, for a total authorized 
expenditure of no more than 45 percent.  

 
 (ii) If the bonds were issued during the period 

of February 1, 2011, to February 28, 2011, 
inclusive, the successor agency may expend 
an additional 20 percent of the proceeds 
derived from the bonds, for a total authorized 
expenditure of no more than 40 percent. 

 
 (iii) If the bonds were issued during the 

period of March 1, 2011, to March 31, 2011, 
inclusive, the successor agency may expend 
an additional 15 percent of the proceeds 
derived from the bonds, for a total authorized 
expenditure of no more than 35 percent. 

  
 (iv) If the bonds were issued during the 

period of April 1, 2011, to April 30, 2011, 
inclusive, the successor agency may expend 
an additional 10 percent of the proceeds 
derived from the bonds, for a total authorized 
expenditure of no more than 30 percent. 

  
 (v) If the bonds were issued during the period 

of May 1, 2011, to May 31, 2011, inclusive, 
the successor agency may expend an 
additional 5 percent of the proceeds derived 
from the bonds, for a total authorized 
expenditure of no more than 25 percent. 

 
(C) Remaining bond proceeds that cannot be 
spent pursuant to subparagraphs (A) and (B) shall 
be used at the at the earliest date permissible under 
the applicable bond covenants to defease the 
bonds or to purchase those same outstanding 
bonds on the open market for cancellation. 

 

(D) The expenditure of bond proceeds described 
in this paragraph shall only require the approval 
by the oversight board of the successor agency. 

 
(3) If a successor agency provides the oversight board 
and the department with documentation that proves, to 
the satisfaction of both entities, that bonds were 
approved by the former redevelopment agency prior to 
January 31, 2011, but the issuance of the bonds was 
delayed by the actions of a third-party metropolitan 
regional transportation authority beyond January 31, 
2011, the successor agency may expend the associated 
bond proceeds in accordance with clause (i) of 
subparagraph (B) of paragraph (2) of this section.  
 
(4) Any proceeds derived from bonds issued by a 
former redevelopment agency after December 31, 
2010, that were issued, in part, to refund or refinance 
tax-exempt bonds issued by the former redevelopment 
agency on or before December 31, 2010, and which 
are in excess of the amount needed to refund or 
refinance the bonds issued on or before December 31, 
2010, may be expended by the successor agency in 
accordance with clause (i) of subparagraph (B) of 
paragraph (2) of this section. The authority provided 
in this paragraph is conditioned on the successor 
agency providing to its oversight board and the 
department the resolution by the former 
redevelopment agency approving the issuance of the 
bonds issued after December 31, 2010. 
 
(d) This section shall apply retroactively to actions 
occurring on or after June 28, 2011. The amendment 
of this section by the act adding this subdivision shall 
not result in the denial of a loan under subdivision (b) 
that has been previously approved by the department 
prior to the effective date of the act adding this 
subdivision. Additionally, the amendment of this 
section by the act adding this subdivision shall not 
impact the judgments, writs of mandate, and orders 
entered by the Sacramento Superior Court in the 
following lawsuits: (1) City of Watsonville v. 
California Department of Finance, et al. (Sac. Superior 
Ct. Case No. 34-2014-80001910); (2) City of Glendale 
v. California Department of Finance, et al. (Sac. 
Superior Ct. Case No. 34-2014-80001924). 
 
HSC § 34191.5, reads as follows: 
 
(a) There is hereby established a Community 
Redevelopment Property Trust Fund, administered by 
the City, to serve as the repository of the former 
redevelopment agency's real properties identified in 

Attachment B

Page 195 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
44 

 

subparagraph (C) of paragraph (5) of subdivision (c) 
of Section 34179.5. 
 
(b) The successor agency shall prepare a long-range 
property management plan that addresses the 
disposition and use of the real properties of the former 
redevelopment agency.   If the former redevelopment 
agency did not have real properties, the successor 
agency shall prepare a long-range property 
management plan certifying that the successor agency 
does not have real properties of the former 
redevelopment agency for disposition or use. The plan 
shall be submitted to the oversight board and the 
Department of Finance for approval no later than six 
months following the issuance to the successor agency 
of the finding of completion. 
 
(c) The long-range property management plan shall do 
all of the following: 
 
 (1) Include an inventory of all properties in the 

trust.  The inventory shall consist of all of the 
following information: 

 
 (A) The date of the acquisition of the property 

and the value of the property at that time, and 
an estimate of the current value of the 
property. 

 
 (B) The purpose for which the property was 

acquired. 
 
 (C) Parcel data, including address, lot size, 

and current zoning in the former agency 
redevelopment plan or specific, community, 
or general plan. 

 
 (D) An estimate of the current value of the 

parcel including, if available, any appraisal 
information. 

 
 (E) An estimate of any lease, rental, or any 

other revenues generated by the property, and 
a description of the contractual requirements 
for the disposition of those funds. 

 
 (F) The history of environmental 

contamination, including designation as a 
brownfield site, any related environmental 
studies, and history of any remediation 
efforts. 

 
 (G) A description of the property's potential 

for transit-oriented development and the 

advancement of the planning objectives of 
the successor agency. 

 
 (H) A brief history of previous development 

proposals and activity, including the rental or 
lease of property. 

 
 (2) Address the use or disposition of all of the 

properties in the trust.  Permissible uses include 
the retention of the property for governmental use 
pursuant to subdivision (a) of Section 34181, the 
retention of the property for future development, 
the sale of the property, or the use of the property 
to fulfill an enforceable obligation.  The plan shall 
separately identify and list properties in the trust 
dedicated to governmental use purposes and 
properties retained for purposes of fulfilling an 
enforceable obligation.  With respect to the use or 
disposition of all other properties, all of the 
following shall apply: 

 
(A) (i) If the plan directs the use or 

liquidation of the property for a 
project identified in an approved 
redevelopment plan, the property shall 
transfer to the city, county, or city and 
county. 
 
(ii) For purposes of this subparagraph, 
the term "identified in an approved 
redevelopment plan" includes 
properties listed in a community plan 
or a five-year implementation plan. 
 
(iii) The department or an oversight 
board may require approval of a 
compensation agreement or 
agreements, as described in 
subdivision (f) of Section 34180, prior 
to any transfer of property pursuant to 
this subparagraph, provided, however, 
that a compensation agreement or 
agreements may be developed and 
executed subsequent to the approval 
process of a long-range property 
management plan. 

 
 (B) If the plan directs the liquidation of the 

property or the use of revenues generated 
from the property, such as lease or parking 
revenues, for any purpose other than to fulfill 
an enforceable obligation or other than that 
specified in subparagraph (A), the proceeds 

Attachment B

Page 196 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
45 

 

from the sale shall be distributed as property 
tax to the taxing entities. 

 
 (C) Property shall not be transferred to a 

Successor Agency, city, county, or city and 
county, unless the long-range property 
management plan has been approved by the 
oversight board and the Department of 
Finance. 

 
 (D) The department shall only consider 

whether the long-range property 
management plan makes a good faith effort 
to address the requirements set forth in 
subdivision (c).  

 
 (E) The department shall approve long-range 

property management plans as expeditiously 
as possible. 

 
 (F) Actions to implement the disposition of 

property pursuant to an approved long-range 
property management plan shall not require 
review by the department. 

 
 Note:  HSC § 34191.2 does not exist and 

therefore is not included above. 
 

  	

Attachment B

Page 197 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
46 

 

Exhibit	C	–	DOF	Finding	of	Completion	

 

Attachment B

Page 198 of 385



Attachment B

Page 199 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
48 

 

Exhibit	D	–	Resolution	of	the	Oversight	Board	

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     

Attachment B

Page 200 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
52 

 

Exhibit	E	–	Resolution	of	the	Successor	Agency	

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     

Attachment B

Page 201 of 385



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
56 

 

Exhibit	F	–	Assessor	Parcel	Maps	

 

Attachment B

Page 202 of 385



Page 1
of 1

9/21/2014
https://w

w
w

.ndcdata.com
/search/m

aps/06037_6224001_0.png

Attachment B

Page 203 of 385

KR
Oval

KR
Oval

KR
Polygonal Line

K
Text Box
SITE NO. 1



Page 1
of 1

9/21/2014
https://w

w
w

.ndcdata.com
/search/m

aps/06037_6224018_0.png

Attachment B

Page 204 of 385

KR
Polygonal Line

KR
Oval

KR
Oval

KR
Polygonal Line

KR
Polygonal Line

KR
Oval

KR
Oval

K
Polygonal Line

KR
Oval

K
Text Box
SITE NO. 2



Page
1 of1

9/23/2014
https://w

w
w

.ndcdata.com
/search/m

aps/06037_6224019_0.png

Attachment B

Page 205 of 385

KR
Polygonal Line

KR
Oval

K
Text Box
SITE NO. 3



Page 1
of 1

9/21/2014
https://w

w
w

.ndcdata.com
/search/m

aps/06037_6224022_0.png

Attachment B

Page 206 of 385

KR
Polygon

KR
Oval

KR
Oval

KR
Oval

KR
Oval

KR
Oval

KR
Polygonal Line

K
Text Box
SITE NO. 4



Page 1
of 1

9/21/2014
https://w

w
w

.ndcdata.com
/search/m

aps/06037_6224034_0.png

Attachment B

Page 207 of 385

KR
Oval

KR
Oval

KR
Oval

KR
Polygonal Line

KR
Oval

KR
Polygonal Line

K
Text Box
SITE NO. 5



Page 1
of 1

9/21/2014
https://w

w
w

.ndcdata.com
/search/m

aps/06037_6226022_0.png

Attachment B

Page 208 of 385

KR
Oval

KR
Oval

KR
Polygonal Line

KR
Oval

KR
Oval

KR
Oval

KR
Oval

KR
Oval

KR
Oval

KR
Polygonal Line

KR
Polygonal Line

KR
Polygonal Line

K
Text Box
SITE NO. 6



Successor Agency to the Cudahy Community 
Development Commission of the City of Cudahy  

Long Range Property Management Plan 
October 2015 

 

 

 
63 

 

Exhibit	G	–	Zoning	Information 

Attachment B

Page 209 of 385



Page 1 of 2

9/26/2014http://www.cityofcudahy.com/media/zoning%20map%201.5.bmp

Attachment B

Page 210 of 385

KR
Highlight

KR
Highlight

KR
Text Box
Site No. 1

KR
Text Box
Site No. 2

KR
Polygonal Line

KR
Polygonal Line

KR
Polygonal Line

KR
Text Box
Site No. 4

KR
Polygonal Line

KR
Text Box
Site No. 3

KR
Polygonal Line

KR
Polygonal Line

KR
Text Box
Site No. 5

KR
Polygonal Line

KR
Text Box
Site No. 6

KR
Polygonal Line



  Attachment C 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
LONG-RANGE PROPERTY MANAGEMENT PLAN CHECKLIST 

 
 
Instructions:  Please use this checklist as a guide to ensure you have completed all the required components 
of your Long-Range Property Management Plan.  Upon completion of your Long-Range Property Management 
Plan, email a PDF version of this document and your plan to:  
 

Redevelopment_Administration@dof.ca.gov 
 
The subject line should state “[Agency Name] Long-Range Property Management Plan”.  The Department of 
Finance (Finance) will contact the requesting agency for any additional information that may be necessary 
during our review of your Long-Range Property Management Plan.  Questions related to the Long-Range 
Property Management Plan process should be directed to (916) 445-1546 or by email to 
Redevelopment_Administration@dof.ca.gov. 
 
 
Pursuant to Health and Safety Code 34191.5, within six months after receiving a Finding of Completion from 
Finance, the Successor Agency is required to submit for approval to the Oversight Board and Finance a Long-
Range Property Management Plan that addresses the disposition and use of the real properties of the former 
redevelopment agency.   
 
GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
Agency Name: Cudahy Successor Agency 
 
Date Finding of Completion Received: 10/19/2013 
 
Date Oversight Board Approved LRPMP: 11/10/2015 
 
 
Long-Range Property Management Plan Requirements 

 
For each property the plan includes the date of acquisition, value of property at time of acquisition, and an estimate 
of the current value. 
 

  Yes            No 
 
For each property the plan includes the purpose for which the property was acquired. 
 

  Yes            No 
 
For each property the plan includes the parcel data, including address, lot size, and current zoning in the former 
agency redevelopment plan or specific, community, or general plan. 
 

  Yes            No 
 
For each property the plan includes an estimate of the current value of the parcel including, if available, any 
appraisal information. 
 

  Yes            No 
 
 
 

Page 211 of 385

mailto:Redevelopment_Administration@dof.ca.gov
mailto:Redevelopment_Administration@dof.ca.gov


  Attachment C 

Page 2 of 3 
 

For each property the plan includes an estimate of any lease, rental, or any other revenues generated by the 
property, and a description of the contractual requirements for the disposition of those funds. 
 

  Yes            No 
 
For each property the plan includes the history of environmental contamination, including designation as a 
brownfield site, any related environmental studies, and history of any remediation efforts. 
 

  Yes            No 
 
For each property the plan includes a description of the property’s potential for transit-oriented development and 
the advancement of the planning objectives of the successor agency. 
 

  Yes            No 
 
For each property the plan includes a brief history of previous development proposals and activity, including the 
rental or lease of the property. 
 

  Yes            No 
 
For each property the plan identifies the use or disposition of the property, which could include 1) the retention of 
the property for governmental use, 2) the retention of the property for future development, 3) the sale of the 
property, or 4) the use of the property to fulfill an enforceable obligation.   
 

  Yes            No 
 
The plan separately identifies and list properties dedicated to governmental use purposes and properties retained 
for purposes of fulfilling an enforceable obligation. 
 

  Yes            No 
 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
  

• If applicable, please provide any additional pertinent information that we should be aware of 
during our review of your Long-Range Property Management Plan. 

       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 212 of 385



  Attachment C 

Page 3 of 3 
 

  
Agency Contact Information      
 
Name:  Jose E. Pulido     Name:  Dave Gondek 
 
Title:  City Manager/Executive Director   Title:  Successor Agency Attorney 
 
Phone:  323-773-5143 x226     Phone:  213-744-0099 
 
Email:  jpulido@cityofcudahyca.gov   Email:  dgondek@omlawyers.com 
 
Date:  11/10/2015      Date:  11/10/2015 
 
Agency Contact Information      
 
Name:  Steven Dobrenen     Name:  Isabel Birrueta 
 
Title:  Finance Director/Finance Officer   Title:  Successor Agency Attorney 
 
Phone:  323-773-5143 x225     Phone:  213-744-0099 
 
Email:  sdobrenen@cityofcudahyca.gov   Email:  ibirrueta@omlawyers.com 
 
Date:  11/10/2015      Date:  11/10/2015 
 
Agency Contact Information      
 
Name:  Cheryl Murase     Name:  Steven H. Dukett 
 
Title:  Consultant - HdL     Title:  Consultant – Urban Futures 
 
Phone:  909-861-4335     Phone:  714-283-9334 x3542 
 
Email:  cmurase@hdlpropertytax.com   Email:         stevend@urbanfuturesinc.com 
 
Date:  11/10/2015      Date:  11/10/2015 
 
Department of Finance Local Government Unit Use Only 
 
DETERMINATION ON LRPMP:    APPROVED            DENIED 
 
APPROVED/DENIED BY:  ___________________________   DATE:  _________________________ 
 
APROVAL OR DENIAL LETTER PROVIDED:       YES DATE AGENCY NOTIFIED: ____________________ 
 
 
Form DF-LRPMP (11/15/12) 

Page 213 of 385



 
 

Blank Page 

Page 214 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/09/2015  Page 1 of 3 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  November 9, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director 

       James M. Guerra, Building Official  

Subject: Consideration to Adopt a Proposed Ordinance Amending Sections 15.04.030, 
15.08.030, and 15.12.030 and Adding Section 15.16.040 to the Cudahy 
Municipal Code, the Adoption of a Proposed Resolution Repealing Resolution 
No. 99-34 and the Adoption of New Building and Safety Division Fees 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to: 
 
1. Adopt a proposed ordinance amending Sections 15.04.030, 15.08.040, and 15.12.030 and 

adding 15.16.040 to the Cudahy Municipal Code; and  
 

2. Adopt a proposed resolution repealing Resolution No. 99-34 and adopting new Building 
and Safety Division Fees. 

 
 
BACKGROUND 

 
1. On August 3, 1999, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 99-34 which reduced the 

County of Los Angeles permit fees that the City of Cudahy uses by 10%. 
 
2. On October 5, 1999, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 551 which adopted the then 

current Los Angeles County permit fees as part of the adoption of the County Building 
laws.  

 
 

 

Item Number 

11A 

 

Page 215 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/09/2015  Page 2 of 3 
    

3. On October 5, 1999, the City Council adopted Municipal Code Sections 15.04.030, 
15.08.030, and 15.12.030 which increased the then current County permit fees by 100%.  

 
4. On October 14, 2014, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 639 which adopted the 

current Los Angeles County permit fees as part of the adoption of the County Building 
laws.  

 
5. On October 30, 2015, the public notice and proposed fees were made available at the City 

Clerk’s office, at the Building and Safety Division public counter, the City’s website, and 
published in the Press Telegram. 

 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Cudahy Municipal Code Sections 15.040.030, 15.08.030 and 15.12.030 as well the proposed 
new section 15.16.040 provide for the complete cost recovery of Building and Safety Division 
operations. The permit fees collected under this section cover the complete cost of the 
Building and Safety Division including staff cost, staff training, the cost of a contract building 
official and third party plan review services, and the cost of administrative supervision and 
over-sight of the staff and consultants.  
 
Resolution No. 99-34 prevented the complete cost recovery intended by Sections 15.040.030, 
15.08.040, and 15.12.030. While Resolution No. 99-34 remains in effect, the General Fund will 
continue to be used augment any Building and Safety Division costs not covered by the 
collection of permit fees. A review of the City’s projected expenditures for Fiscal Year 2015-16 
requires the County Building fees to be increased by only 50% in order to provide for 
complete cost recovery of the projected building and safety division expenditures. Therefore, 
staff is recommending Sections 15.04.030, 15.08.030 and 15.12.030 be amended to increase 
the County Building permits by 50% as well as adding section 15.16.040 with a 50% increase. 
 
Copies of the new permit fees were made available at the City Clerk’s office and at the 
Building and Safety Division public counter for public review ten (10) days prior to this 
hearing. Additionally, the notice and proposed fees were published in the Press Telegram and 
on the City’s website. The new fees will become effective 60 days after the adoption of this 
resolution. 
 
 

Page 216 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/09/2015  Page 3 of 3 
    

CONCLUSION 
 
If the City Council adopts the new ordinance amending Section 15.04.030, 15.08.040, and 
15.12.030 and adding Section 15.16.040 and adopts a resolution repealing Resolution No. 99-
34 and adopts the new Building and Safety Division Fees, all costs of the building and safety 
division will be covered by the permit fees collected. 
 
If the Council does not adopt the ordinance amending Section No. 15.04.040, 15.08.040, 
15.12.030, and add Section 15.16.040 and a resolution repealing Resolution No. 99-34 and 
does not adopt the new Building Permit Fees, any cost for the building and safety division 
beyond the permit fees collected will continue to be paid using General Fund monies. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
Operational department costs average approximately $35,000 (not including propose cost 
incurred due to software/program purchases). Additional permit revenue will be added to the 
General Fund to offset the cost of services provided. As such, there will be no additional cost 
expenditures. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. New Ordinance  
B. Proposed Resolution 
C. Resolution No. 99-34 
D. Municipal Code Sections 15.040.030, 15.08.040 and 15.12.030 
E. Comparison of Current and Proposed Building Division Fees. 
F. Building Permit Fee Adjustment Report 
G. Proof of Publication/Notice 
 

Page 217 of 385



 1 

Attachment A 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CUDAHY 
AMENDING SECTIONS 15-040-030 15.08.030, AND 15.12.030 AND ADDING 
SECTION 15.16.040  TO THE CUDAHY MUNICIPAL CODE REDUCING THE  
MUTIPLIER OF COUNTY BUILDING FEES 
 

 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CUDAHY DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1. Section 15.04.030 of the Cudahy Municipal Code is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 
 
 §15.04.030  Fees 
 

Not withstanding the provisions of the CMC 15.04.010. the building code is hereby 
amended by increasing the amount of each and every fee set forth in the code by 50%.  
 

 Section 2.  Section 15.08.030 of the Cudahy Municipal Code is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 
 
 §15.08.030 Fees 
 
 Not withstanding the provisions of the CMC 15.08.010. the electrical code is hereby 
amended by increasing the amount of each and every fee set forth in the code by 50%. 
 
 Section 3.  Section 15.12.030 of the Cudahy Municipal Code is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 
 
 §15.12.030  Fees 
 
 Not withstanding the provisions of the CMC 15.12.010. the plumbing code is hereby 
amended by increasing the amount of each and every fee set forth in the code by 50%. 
 
 Section 4.  Section 15.16.040 is hereby added to the Cudahy Municipal Code to 
read as follows: 
 
 §15.16.040  Fees . 
 Not withstanding the provisions of the CMC 15.16.010. the mechanical code is hereby 
amended by increasing the amount of each and every fee set forth in the code by 50%. 
 
  
 Section 5. Severability.  Should any section, subsection, clause, or provision of this 
Ordinance for any reason be held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity or 
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of the remaining portions of this 
Ordinance; it being hereby expressly declared that this Ordinance, and each section, 
subsection, sentence, clause, and phrase hereof would have been prepared, proposed, 
approved, and ratified irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, 
sentences, clauses, or phrases be declared invalid or unconstitutional. 

Page 218 of 385



 2 

 
 Section 6. This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) calendar days from its 
adoption, and shall apply to all projects submitted for plan check on or after that date. 
 
 Section 7. This Ordinance has been determined to be exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) in accordance with §15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines 
because this Ordinance merely changes the regulatory framework relating to building and 
safety, is purely administrative in nature, and has no potential for causing a significant effect on 
the environment. 
 
 Section 8. The City Clerk shall cause this Ordinance to be processed according to 
law. 
 
 Section 9. The City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance with the 
California Building Standards Commission. 
 
  
 PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this _______ day of __________ 2015. 
 
 
 
 
    
  Cristian Markovich                   
  Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Interim City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
      
City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 219 of 385



 3 

CERTIFICATION 
 

 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ) SS: 
CITY OF CUDAHY   ) 
 
 

I, Laura Valdivia, Interim City Clerk of the City of Cudahy, hereby certify that the 
foregoing Ordinance No. ________, was passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Cudahy at a meeting held on the ________ day of __________, 2015 by the following vote, to-
wit: 

 
AYES:    

  
NOES:    

 
ABSTAIN:  

 
ABSENT:  

 
 
 
 

____________________________ 
Interim City Clerk 

 

Page 220 of 385



1 
 

 
Attachment B 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CUDAHY REPEALING RESOLUTION NO. 99-34 AND 
ADOPTION OF NEW BUILDING AND SAFETY DIVISION 
PERMIT FEES 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Cudahy through its Municipal Code adopts building and safety 

division permit fees 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cudahy adopts building and safety division permit fees intended 

to provide for the complete cost recovery of the operation of the building and safety division 
 

WHEREAS, Section 15.04.030 of the City of Cudahy Municipal Code provides an 
increase of the current Los Angeles County permit fees to provide for complete cost recovery for 
the operation of the building and safety division 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution No. 99-34 limits the building and safety division permit fees to 

90% of the current Los Angeles County permit fees preventing complete cost recovery for the 
building and safety division operation 

 
WHEREAS, a Resolution repealing Resolution No. 99-34 will allow Section 15.04.030 to 

become effective to recover all costs of building and safety operation 
 
WHEREAS, the City needs to adopt adequate building and safety division permit fees to 

fully recover the cost of service provided by the building and safety division 
 
NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY OF CUDAHY CITY COUNCIL DOES RESOLVE AS 

FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  Resolution No. 99-34 is hereby repealed and new Building and Safety Division 
Permit Fees are hereby adopted. 
 
SECTION  2. The regulations set forth herein are exempt from the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 15301(c), 
because they involve the operation of existing facilities. 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Cudahy at its 
meeting on this ____day of ____, 2015 
 
  
 
             
       Cristian Markovich, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Interim City Clerk 

Page 221 of 385



2 
 

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ) SS: 
CITY OF CUDAHY   ) 
 
 

I, _____________, Interim City Clerk of the City of Cudahy, hereby certify that the 
foregoing Resolution No. ______, was passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Cudahy at a meeting held on the _______ day of ________, 2015 by the following vote, to-wit: 

 
AYES:    

  
NOES:   

 
ABSENT:  

 
ABSTAIN:  

 
 
 

____________________________ 
Interim City Clerk 

 

Page 222 of 385



Attachment C

Page 223 of 385



Attachment C

Page 224 of 385



Attachment D

Page 225 of 385



Attachment D

Page 226 of 385



Attachment D

Page 227 of 385



Attachment D

Page 228 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS
700 75.33 125.55 40.68 67.80 75.33 125.55 42.71 71.19 75.33 125.55 44.75 74.58 75.33 125.55 46.78 77.97 0.50 0.50 1.00

1,000 75.33 125.55 61.02 101.70 75.33 125.55 64.07 106.79 75.33 125.55 67.12 111.87 75.33 125.55 70.17 116.96 0.50 0.50 1.00
2,000 75.33 125.55 76.77 127.95 75.33 125.55 80.61 134.35 75.33 125.55 84.45 140.75 75.33 125.55 88.29 147.14 0.50 0.56 1.00
3,000 78.64 131.07 92.52 154.20 82.57 137.62 97.15 161.91 86.51 144.18 101.77 169.62 90.44 150.73 106.40 177.33 0.50 0.84 1.00
4,000 92.03 153.38 108.27 180.45 96.63 161.05 113.68 189.47 101.23 168.72 119.10 198.50 105.83 176.39 124.51 207.52 0.52 1.12 1.00
5,000 105.42 175.70 124.02 206.70 110.69 184.48 130.22 217.04 115.96 193.26 136.42 227.37 121.23 202.05 142.62 237.71 0.65 1.40 1.00
6,000 118.80 198.01 139.77 232.95 124.74 207.91 146.76 244.60 130.68 217.81 153.75 256.25 136.63 227.71 160.74 267.89 0.78 1.68 1.00
7,000 132.19 220.32 155.52 259.20 138.80 231.34 163.30 272.16 145.41 242.35 171.07 285.12 152.02 253.37 178.85 298.08 0.91 1.96 1.00
8,000 145.58 242.63 171.27 285.45 152.86 254.76 179.83 299.72 160.14 266.90 188.40 314.00 167.42 279.03 196.96 328.27 1.04 2.24 1.00
9,000 158.97 264.95 187.02 311.70 166.92 278.19 196.37 327.29 174.86 291.44 205.72 342.87 182.81 304.69 215.07 358.46 1.17 2.52 1.00

10,000 172.35 287.26 202.77 337.95 180.97 301.62 212.91 354.85 189.59 315.98 223.05 371.75 198.21 330.35 233.19 388.64 1.30 2.80 1.00
11,000 185.74 309.57 218.52 364.20 195.03 325.05 229.45 382.41 204.32 340.53 240.37 400.62 213.60 356.01 251.30 418.83 1.43 3.08 1.00
12,000 199.13 331.88 234.27 390.45 209.09 348.48 245.98 409.97 219.04 365.07 257.70 429.50 229.00 381.66 269.41 449.02 1.56 3.36 1.00
13,000 212.52 354.20 250.02 416.70 223.14 371.90 262.52 437.54 233.77 389.61 275.02 458.37 244.39 407.32 287.52 479.21 1.69 3.64 1.00
14,000 225.90 376.51 265.77 442.95 237.20 395.33 279.06 465.10 248.49 414.16 292.35 487.25 259.79 432.98 305.64 509.39 1.82 3.92 1.00
15,000 239.29 398.82 281.52 469.20 251.26 418.76 295.60 492.66 263.22 438.70 309.67 516.12 275.19 458.64 323.75 539.58 1.95 4.20 1.00
16,000 252.68 421.13 297.27 495.45 265.31 442.19 312.13 520.22 277.95 463.25 327.00 545.00 290.58 484.30 341.86 569.77 2.08 4.48 1.00
17,000 266.07 443.45 313.02 521.70 279.37 465.62 328.67 547.79 292.67 487.79 344.32 573.87 305.98 509.96 359.97 599.96 2.21 4.76 1.00
18,000 279.45 465.76 328.77 547.95 293.43 489.05 345.21 575.35 307.40 512.33 361.65 602.75 321.37 535.62 378.09 630.14 2.34 5.04 1.00
19,000 292.84 488.07 344.52 574.20 307.48 512.47 361.75 602.91 322.13 536.88 378.97 631.62 336.77 561.28 396.20 660.33 2.47 5.32 1.00
20,000 306.23 510.38 360.27 600.45 321.54 535.90 378.28 630.47 336.85 561.42 396.30 660.50 352.16 586.94 414.31 690.52 2.60 5.60 1.00
21,000 319.62 532.70 376.02 626.70 335.60 559.33 394.82 658.04 351.58 585.96 413.62 689.37 367.56 612.60 432.42 720.71 2.73 5.88 1.00
22,000 333.00 555.01 391.77 652.95 349.65 582.76 411.36 685.60 366.30 610.51 430.95 718.25 382.96 638.26 450.54 750.89 2.86 6.16 1.00
23,000 346.39 577.32 407.52 679.20 363.71 606.19 427.90 713.16 381.03 635.05 448.27 747.12 398.35 663.92 468.65 781.08 2.99 6.44 1.00
24,000 359.78 599.63 423.27 705.45 377.77 629.61 444.43 740.72 395.76 659.60 465.60 776.00 413.75 689.58 486.76 811.27 3.12 6.72 1.00
25,000 373.17 621.95 439.02 731.70 391.83 653.04 460.97 768.29 410.48 684.14 482.92 804.87 429.14 715.24 504.87 841.46 3.25 7.00 1.00
26,000 384.11 640.18 451.89 753.15 403.31 672.19 474.48 790.81 422.52 704.20 497.08 828.47 441.72 736.20 519.67 866.12 3.38 7.28 2.00
27,000 394.43 657.39 464.04 773.40 414.16 690.26 487.24 812.07 433.88 723.13 510.44 850.74 453.60 756.00 533.65 889.41 3.51 7.56 2.00
28,000 404.76 674.60 476.19 793.65 425.00 708.33 500.00 833.33 445.24 742.06 523.81 873.02 465.48 775.79 547.62 912.70 3.64 7.84 2.00
29,000 415.09 691.82 488.34 813.90 435.84 726.41 512.76 854.60 456.60 761.00 537.17 895.29 477.35 795.59 561.59 935.99 3.77 8.12 2.00
30,000 425.42 709.03 500.49 834.15 446.69 744.48 525.51 875.86 467.96 779.93 550.54 917.57 489.23 815.38 575.56 959.27 3.90 8.40 2.00
31,000 435.74 726.24 512.64 854.40 457.53 762.55 538.27 897.12 479.32 798.86 563.90 939.84 501.11 835.18 589.54 982.56 4.03 8.68 2.00
32,000 446.07 743.45 524.79 874.65 468.38 780.63 551.03 918.38 490.68 817.80 577.27 962.12 512.98 854.97 603.51 1,005.85 4.16 8.96 2.00
33,000 456.40 760.67 536.94 894.90 479.22 798.70 563.79 939.65 502.04 836.73 590.63 984.39 524.86 874.76 617.48 1,029.14 4.29 9.24 2.00
34,000 466.73 777.88 549.09 915.15 490.06 816.77 576.54 960.91 513.40 855.67 604.00 1,006.67 536.74 894.56 631.45 1,052.42 4.42 9.52 2.00
35,000 477.05 795.09 561.24 935.40 500.91 834.84 589.30 982.17 524.76 874.60 617.36 1,028.94 548.61 914.35 645.43 1,075.71 4.55 9.80 2.00
36,000 487.38 812.30 573.39 955.65 511.75 852.92 602.06 1,003.43 536.12 893.53 630.73 1,051.22 560.49 934.15 659.40 1,099.00 4.68 10.08 2.00
37,000 497.71 829.52 585.54 975.90 522.59 870.99 614.82 1,024.70 547.48 912.47 644.09 1,073.49 572.37 953.94 673.37 1,122.29 4.81 10.36 2.00
38,000 508.04 846.73 597.69 996.15 533.44 889.06 627.57 1,045.96 558.84 931.40 657.46 1,095.77 584.24 973.74 687.34 1,145.57 4.94 10.64 2.00
39,000 518.36 863.94 609.84 1,016.40 544.28 907.14 640.33 1,067.22 570.20 950.33 670.82 1,118.04 596.12 993.53 701.32 1,168.86 5.07 10.92 2.00
40,000 528.69 881.15 621.99 1,036.65 555.13 925.21 653.09 1,088.48 581.56 969.27 684.19 1,140.32 608.00 1,013.33 715.29 1,192.15 5.20 11.20 2.00

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

Attachment E.1

Page 229 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

41,000 539.02 898.37 634.14 1,056.90 565.97 943.28 665.85 1,109.75 592.92 988.20 697.55 1,162.59 619.87 1,033.12 729.26 1,215.44 5.33 11.48 2.00
42,000 549.35 915.58 646.29 1,077.15 576.81 961.36 678.60 1,131.01 604.28 1,007.14 710.92 1,184.87 631.75 1,052.91 743.23 1,238.72 5.46 11.76 2.00
43,000 559.67 932.79 658.44 1,097.40 587.66 979.43 691.36 1,152.27 615.64 1,026.07 724.28 1,207.14 643.63 1,072.71 757.21 1,262.01 5.59 12.04 2.00
44,000 570.00 950.00 670.59 1,117.65 598.50 997.50 704.12 1,173.53 627.00 1,045.00 737.65 1,229.42 655.50 1,092.50 771.18 1,285.30 5.72 12.32 2.00
45,000 580.33 967.22 682.74 1,137.90 609.35 1,015.58 716.88 1,194.80 638.36 1,063.94 751.01 1,251.69 667.38 1,112.30 785.15 1,308.59 5.85 12.60 2.00
46,000 590.66 984.43 694.89 1,158.15 620.19 1,033.65 729.63 1,216.06 649.72 1,082.87 764.38 1,273.97 679.25 1,132.09 799.12 1,331.87 5.98 12.88 2.00
47,000 600.98 1,001.64 707.04 1,178.40 631.03 1,051.72 742.39 1,237.32 661.08 1,101.80 777.74 1,296.24 691.13 1,151.89 813.10 1,355.16 6.11 13.16 2.00
48,000 611.31 1,018.85 719.19 1,198.65 641.88 1,069.80 755.15 1,258.58 672.44 1,120.74 791.11 1,318.52 703.01 1,171.68 827.07 1,378.45 6.24 13.44 2.00
49,000 621.64 1,036.07 731.34 1,218.90 652.72 1,087.87 767.91 1,279.85 683.80 1,139.67 804.47 1,340.79 714.88 1,191.47 841.04 1,401.74 6.37 13.72 2.00
50,000 631.97 1,053.28 743.49 1,239.15 663.56 1,105.94 780.66 1,301.11 695.16 1,158.61 817.84 1,363.07 726.76 1,211.27 855.01 1,425.02 6.50 14.00 2.00
51,000 642.52 1,070.87 755.91 1,259.85 674.65 1,124.42 793.71 1,322.84 706.78 1,177.96 831.50 1,385.84 738.90 1,231.50 869.30 1,448.83 6.63 14.28 3.00
52,000 650.25 1,083.75 765.00 1,275.00 682.76 1,137.94 803.25 1,338.75 715.28 1,192.13 841.50 1,402.50 747.79 1,246.31 879.75 1,466.25 6.76 14.56 3.00
53,000 657.98 1,096.63 774.09 1,290.15 690.88 1,151.46 812.79 1,354.66 723.77 1,206.29 851.50 1,419.17 756.67 1,261.12 890.20 1,483.67 6.89 14.84 3.00
54,000 665.70 1,109.51 783.18 1,305.30 698.99 1,164.98 822.34 1,370.57 732.27 1,220.46 861.50 1,435.83 765.56 1,275.93 900.66 1,501.10 7.02 15.12 3.00
55,000 673.43 1,122.38 792.27 1,320.45 707.10 1,178.50 831.88 1,386.47 740.77 1,234.62 871.50 1,452.50 774.44 1,290.74 911.11 1,518.52 7.15 15.40 3.00
56,000 681.16 1,135.26 801.36 1,335.60 715.21 1,192.02 841.43 1,402.38 749.27 1,248.79 881.50 1,469.16 783.33 1,305.55 921.56 1,535.94 7.28 15.68 3.00
57,000 688.88 1,148.14 810.45 1,350.75 723.33 1,205.54 850.97 1,418.29 757.77 1,262.95 891.50 1,485.83 792.21 1,320.36 932.02 1,553.36 7.41 15.96 3.00
58,000 696.61 1,161.02 819.54 1,365.90 731.44 1,219.07 860.52 1,434.20 766.27 1,277.12 901.49 1,502.49 801.10 1,335.17 942.47 1,570.79 7.54 16.24 3.00
59,000 704.34 1,173.89 828.63 1,381.05 739.55 1,232.59 870.06 1,450.10 774.77 1,291.28 911.49 1,519.16 809.99 1,349.98 952.92 1,588.21 7.67 16.52 3.00
60,000 712.06 1,186.77 837.72 1,396.20 747.67 1,246.11 879.61 1,466.01 783.27 1,305.45 921.49 1,535.82 818.87 1,364.79 963.38 1,605.63 7.80 16.80 3.00
61,000 719.79 1,199.65 846.81 1,411.35 755.78 1,259.63 889.15 1,481.92 791.77 1,319.61 931.49 1,552.49 827.76 1,379.59 973.83 1,623.05 7.93 17.08 3.00
62,000 727.52 1,212.53 855.90 1,426.50 763.89 1,273.15 898.70 1,497.83 800.27 1,333.78 941.49 1,569.15 836.64 1,394.40 984.29 1,640.48 8.06 17.36 3.00
63,000 735.24 1,225.40 864.99 1,441.65 772.00 1,286.67 908.24 1,513.73 808.77 1,347.94 951.49 1,585.82 845.53 1,409.21 994.74 1,657.90 8.19 17.64 3.00
64,000 742.97 1,238.28 874.08 1,456.80 780.12 1,300.19 917.78 1,529.64 817.26 1,362.11 961.49 1,602.48 854.41 1,424.02 1,005.19 1,675.32 8.32 17.92 3.00
65,000 750.69 1,251.16 883.17 1,471.95 788.23 1,313.72 927.33 1,545.55 825.76 1,376.27 971.49 1,619.15 863.30 1,438.83 1,015.65 1,692.74 8.45 18.20 3.00
66,000 758.42 1,264.04 892.26 1,487.10 796.34 1,327.24 936.87 1,561.46 834.26 1,390.44 981.49 1,635.81 872.18 1,453.64 1,026.10 1,710.17 8.58 18.48 3.00
67,000 766.15 1,276.91 901.35 1,502.25 804.45 1,340.76 946.42 1,577.36 842.76 1,404.60 991.49 1,652.48 881.07 1,468.45 1,036.55 1,727.59 8.71 18.76 3.00
68,000 773.87 1,289.79 910.44 1,517.40 812.57 1,354.28 955.96 1,593.27 851.26 1,418.77 1,001.48 1,669.14 889.96 1,483.26 1,047.01 1,745.01 8.84 19.04 3.00
69,000 781.60 1,302.67 919.53 1,532.55 820.68 1,367.80 965.51 1,609.18 859.76 1,432.93 1,011.48 1,685.81 898.84 1,498.07 1,057.46 1,762.43 8.97 19.32 3.00
70,000 789.33 1,315.55 928.62 1,547.70 828.79 1,381.32 975.05 1,625.09 868.26 1,447.10 1,021.48 1,702.47 907.73 1,512.88 1,067.91 1,779.86 9.10 19.60 3.00
71,000 797.05 1,328.42 937.71 1,562.85 836.91 1,394.84 984.60 1,640.99 876.76 1,461.26 1,031.48 1,719.14 916.61 1,527.69 1,078.37 1,797.28 9.23 19.88 3.00
72,000 804.78 1,341.30 946.80 1,578.00 845.02 1,408.37 994.14 1,656.90 885.26 1,475.43 1,041.48 1,735.80 925.50 1,542.50 1,088.82 1,814.70 9.36 20.16 3.00
73,000 812.51 1,354.18 955.89 1,593.15 853.13 1,421.89 1,003.68 1,672.81 893.76 1,489.60 1,051.48 1,752.47 934.38 1,557.30 1,099.27 1,832.12 9.49 20.44 3.00
74,000 820.23 1,367.06 964.98 1,608.30 861.24 1,435.41 1,013.23 1,688.72 902.26 1,503.76 1,061.48 1,769.13 943.27 1,572.11 1,109.73 1,849.55 9.62 20.72 3.00
75,000 827.96 1,379.93 974.07 1,623.45 869.36 1,448.93 1,022.77 1,704.62 910.76 1,517.93 1,071.48 1,785.80 952.15 1,586.92 1,120.18 1,866.97 9.75 21.00 3.00
76,000 835.69 1,392.81 983.16 1,638.60 877.47 1,462.45 1,032.32 1,720.53 919.25 1,532.09 1,081.48 1,802.46 961.04 1,601.73 1,130.63 1,884.39 9.88 21.28 4.00
77,000 843.41 1,405.69 992.25 1,653.75 885.58 1,475.97 1,041.86 1,736.44 927.75 1,546.26 1,091.48 1,819.13 969.92 1,616.54 1,141.09 1,901.81 10.01 21.56 4.00
78,000 851.14 1,418.57 1,001.34 1,668.90 893.70 1,489.49 1,051.41 1,752.35 936.25 1,560.42 1,101.47 1,835.79 978.81 1,631.35 1,151.54 1,919.24 10.14 21.84 4.00
79,000 858.87 1,431.44 1,010.43 1,684.05 901.81 1,503.01 1,060.95 1,768.25 944.75 1,574.59 1,111.47 1,852.46 987.70 1,646.16 1,161.99 1,936.66 10.27 22.12 4.00
80,000 866.59 1,444.32 1,019.52 1,699.20 909.92 1,516.54 1,070.50 1,784.16 953.25 1,588.75 1,121.47 1,869.12 996.58 1,660.97 1,172.45 1,954.08 10.40 22.40 4.00
81,000 874.32 1,457.20 1,028.61 1,714.35 918.03 1,530.06 1,080.04 1,800.07 961.75 1,602.92 1,131.47 1,885.79 1,005.47 1,675.78 1,182.90 1,971.50 10.53 22.68 4.00

Attachment E.1

Page 230 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

82,000 882.05 1,470.08 1,037.70 1,729.50 926.15 1,543.58 1,089.59 1,815.98 970.25 1,617.08 1,141.47 1,902.45 1,014.35 1,690.59 1,193.36 1,988.93 10.66 22.96 4.00
83,000 889.77 1,482.95 1,046.79 1,744.65 934.26 1,557.10 1,099.13 1,831.88 978.75 1,631.25 1,151.47 1,919.12 1,023.24 1,705.40 1,203.81 2,006.35 10.79 23.24 4.00
84,000 897.50 1,495.83 1,055.88 1,759.80 942.37 1,570.62 1,108.67 1,847.79 987.25 1,645.41 1,161.47 1,935.78 1,032.12 1,720.20 1,214.26 2,023.77 10.92 23.52 4.00
85,000 905.22 1,508.71 1,064.97 1,774.95 950.49 1,584.14 1,118.22 1,863.70 995.75 1,659.58 1,171.47 1,952.45 1,041.01 1,735.01 1,224.72 2,041.19 11.05 23.80 4.00
86,000 912.95 1,521.59 1,074.06 1,790.10 958.60 1,597.66 1,127.76 1,879.61 1,004.25 1,673.74 1,181.47 1,969.11 1,049.89 1,749.82 1,235.17 2,058.62 11.18 24.08 4.00
87,000 920.68 1,534.46 1,083.15 1,805.25 966.71 1,611.19 1,137.31 1,895.51 1,012.75 1,687.91 1,191.47 1,985.78 1,058.78 1,764.63 1,245.62 2,076.04 11.31 24.36 4.00
88,000 928.40 1,547.34 1,092.24 1,820.40 974.82 1,624.71 1,146.85 1,911.42 1,021.24 1,702.07 1,201.46 2,002.44 1,067.66 1,779.44 1,256.08 2,093.46 11.44 24.64 4.00
89,000 936.13 1,560.22 1,101.33 1,835.55 982.94 1,638.23 1,156.40 1,927.33 1,029.74 1,716.24 1,211.46 2,019.11 1,076.55 1,794.25 1,266.53 2,110.88 11.57 24.92 4.00
90,000 943.86 1,573.10 1,110.42 1,850.70 991.05 1,651.75 1,165.94 1,943.24 1,038.24 1,730.40 1,221.46 2,035.77 1,085.44 1,809.06 1,276.98 2,128.31 11.70 25.20 4.00
91,000 951.58 1,585.97 1,119.51 1,865.85 999.16 1,665.27 1,175.49 1,959.14 1,046.74 1,744.57 1,231.46 2,052.44 1,094.32 1,823.87 1,287.44 2,145.73 11.83 25.48 4.00
92,000 959.31 1,598.85 1,128.60 1,881.00 1,007.28 1,678.79 1,185.03 1,975.05 1,055.24 1,758.74 1,241.46 2,069.10 1,103.21 1,838.68 1,297.89 2,163.15 11.96 25.76 4.00
93,000 967.04 1,611.73 1,137.69 1,896.15 1,015.39 1,692.31 1,194.57 1,990.96 1,063.74 1,772.90 1,251.46 2,085.77 1,112.09 1,853.49 1,308.34 2,180.57 12.09 26.04 4.00
94,000 974.76 1,624.61 1,146.78 1,911.30 1,023.50 1,705.84 1,204.12 2,006.87 1,072.24 1,787.07 1,261.46 2,102.43 1,120.98 1,868.30 1,318.80 2,198.00 12.22 26.32 4.00
95,000 982.49 1,637.48 1,155.87 1,926.45 1,031.61 1,719.36 1,213.66 2,022.77 1,080.74 1,801.23 1,271.46 2,119.10 1,129.86 1,883.10 1,329.25 2,215.42 12.35 26.60 4.00
96,000 990.22 1,650.36 1,164.96 1,941.60 1,039.73 1,732.88 1,223.21 2,038.68 1,089.24 1,815.40 1,281.46 2,135.76 1,138.75 1,897.91 1,339.70 2,232.84 12.48 26.88 4.00
97,000 997.94 1,663.24 1,174.05 1,956.75 1,047.84 1,746.40 1,232.75 2,054.59 1,097.74 1,829.56 1,291.46 2,152.43 1,147.63 1,912.72 1,350.16 2,250.26 12.61 27.16 4.00
98,000 1,005.67 1,676.12 1,183.14 1,971.90 1,055.95 1,759.92 1,242.30 2,070.50 1,106.24 1,843.73 1,301.45 2,169.09 1,156.52 1,927.53 1,360.61 2,267.69 12.74 27.44 4.00
99,000 1,013.40 1,688.99 1,192.23 1,987.05 1,064.07 1,773.44 1,251.84 2,086.40 1,114.74 1,857.89 1,311.45 2,185.76 1,165.40 1,942.34 1,371.06 2,285.11 12.87 27.72 4.00

100,000 1,021.12 1,701.87 1,201.32 2,002.20 1,072.18 1,786.96 1,261.39 2,102.31 1,123.23 1,872.06 1,321.45 2,202.42 1,174.29 1,957.15 1,381.52 2,302.53 13.00 28.00 4.00
101,000 1,027.40 1,712.33 1,208.70 2,014.50 1,078.76 1,797.94 1,269.14 2,115.23 1,130.13 1,883.56 1,329.57 2,215.95 1,181.50 1,969.17 1,390.01 2,316.68 13.13 28.28 5.00
102,000 1,032.67 1,721.12 1,214.91 2,024.85 1,084.31 1,807.18 1,275.66 2,126.09 1,135.94 1,893.23 1,336.40 2,227.34 1,187.57 1,979.29 1,397.15 2,328.58 13.26 28.56 5.00
103,000 1,037.95 1,729.92 1,221.12 2,035.20 1,089.85 1,816.42 1,282.18 2,136.96 1,141.75 1,902.91 1,343.23 2,238.72 1,193.64 1,989.41 1,404.29 2,340.48 13.39 28.84 5.00
104,000 1,043.23 1,738.72 1,227.33 2,045.55 1,095.39 1,825.65 1,288.70 2,147.83 1,147.55 1,912.59 1,350.06 2,250.11 1,199.72 1,999.53 1,411.43 2,352.38 13.52 29.12 5.00
105,000 1,048.51 1,747.52 1,233.54 2,055.90 1,100.93 1,834.89 1,295.22 2,158.70 1,153.36 1,922.27 1,356.89 2,261.49 1,205.79 2,009.64 1,418.57 2,364.29 13.65 29.40 5.00
106,000 1,053.79 1,756.31 1,239.75 2,066.25 1,106.48 1,844.13 1,301.74 2,169.56 1,159.17 1,931.94 1,363.73 2,272.88 1,211.86 2,019.76 1,425.71 2,376.19 13.78 29.68 5.00
107,000 1,059.07 1,765.11 1,245.96 2,076.60 1,112.02 1,853.37 1,308.26 2,180.43 1,164.97 1,941.62 1,370.56 2,284.26 1,217.93 2,029.88 1,432.85 2,388.09 13.91 29.96 5.00
108,000 1,064.34 1,773.91 1,252.17 2,086.95 1,117.56 1,862.60 1,314.78 2,191.30 1,170.78 1,951.30 1,377.39 2,295.65 1,224.00 2,039.99 1,440.00 2,399.99 14.04 30.24 5.00
109,000 1,069.62 1,782.71 1,258.38 2,097.30 1,123.10 1,871.84 1,321.30 2,202.17 1,176.59 1,960.98 1,384.22 2,307.03 1,230.07 2,050.11 1,447.14 2,411.90 14.17 30.52 5.00
110,000 1,074.90 1,791.50 1,264.59 2,107.65 1,128.65 1,881.08 1,327.82 2,213.03 1,182.39 1,970.65 1,391.05 2,318.42 1,236.14 2,060.23 1,454.28 2,423.80 14.30 30.80 5.00
111,000 1,080.18 1,800.30 1,270.80 2,118.00 1,134.19 1,890.32 1,334.34 2,223.90 1,188.20 1,980.33 1,397.88 2,329.80 1,242.21 2,070.35 1,461.42 2,435.70 14.43 31.08 5.00
112,000 1,085.46 1,809.10 1,277.01 2,128.35 1,139.73 1,899.55 1,340.86 2,234.77 1,194.00 1,990.01 1,404.71 2,341.19 1,248.28 2,080.46 1,468.56 2,447.60 14.56 31.36 5.00
113,000 1,090.74 1,817.90 1,283.22 2,138.70 1,145.27 1,908.79 1,347.38 2,245.64 1,199.81 1,999.68 1,411.54 2,352.57 1,254.35 2,090.58 1,475.70 2,459.51 14.69 31.64 5.00
114,000 1,096.02 1,826.69 1,289.43 2,149.05 1,150.82 1,918.03 1,353.90 2,256.50 1,205.62 2,009.36 1,418.37 2,363.96 1,260.42 2,100.70 1,482.84 2,471.41 14.82 31.92 5.00
115,000 1,101.29 1,835.49 1,295.64 2,159.40 1,156.36 1,927.26 1,360.42 2,267.37 1,211.42 2,019.04 1,425.20 2,375.34 1,266.49 2,110.81 1,489.99 2,483.31 14.95 32.20 5.00
116,000 1,106.57 1,844.29 1,301.85 2,169.75 1,161.90 1,936.50 1,366.94 2,278.24 1,217.23 2,028.72 1,432.04 2,386.73 1,272.56 2,120.93 1,497.13 2,495.21 15.08 32.48 5.00
117,000 1,111.85 1,853.09 1,308.06 2,180.10 1,167.44 1,945.74 1,373.46 2,289.11 1,223.04 2,038.39 1,438.87 2,398.11 1,278.63 2,131.05 1,504.27 2,507.12 15.21 32.76 5.00
118,000 1,117.13 1,861.88 1,314.27 2,190.45 1,172.99 1,954.98 1,379.98 2,299.97 1,228.84 2,048.07 1,445.70 2,409.50 1,284.70 2,141.16 1,511.41 2,519.02 15.34 33.04 5.00
119,000 1,122.41 1,870.68 1,320.48 2,200.80 1,178.53 1,964.21 1,386.50 2,310.84 1,234.65 2,057.75 1,452.53 2,420.88 1,290.77 2,151.28 1,518.55 2,530.92 15.47 33.32 5.00
120,000 1,127.69 1,879.48 1,326.69 2,211.15 1,184.07 1,973.45 1,393.02 2,321.71 1,240.46 2,067.43 1,459.36 2,432.27 1,296.84 2,161.40 1,525.69 2,542.82 15.60 33.60 5.00
121,000 1,132.97 1,888.28 1,332.90 2,221.50 1,189.61 1,982.69 1,399.55 2,332.58 1,246.26 2,077.10 1,466.19 2,443.65 1,302.91 2,171.52 1,532.84 2,554.73 15.73 33.88 5.00
122,000 1,138.24 1,897.07 1,339.11 2,231.85 1,195.16 1,991.93 1,406.07 2,343.44 1,252.07 2,086.78 1,473.02 2,455.04 1,308.98 2,181.63 1,539.98 2,566.63 15.86 34.16 5.00

Attachment E.1

Page 231 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

123,000 1,143.52 1,905.87 1,345.32 2,242.20 1,200.70 2,001.16 1,412.59 2,354.31 1,257.87 2,096.46 1,479.85 2,466.42 1,315.05 2,191.75 1,547.12 2,578.53 15.99 34.44 5.00
124,000 1,148.80 1,914.67 1,351.53 2,252.55 1,206.24 2,010.40 1,419.11 2,365.18 1,263.68 2,106.13 1,486.68 2,477.81 1,321.12 2,201.87 1,554.26 2,590.43 16.12 34.72 5.00
125,000 1,154.08 1,923.47 1,357.74 2,262.90 1,211.78 2,019.64 1,425.63 2,376.05 1,269.49 2,115.81 1,493.51 2,489.19 1,327.19 2,211.98 1,561.40 2,602.34 16.25 35.00 5.00
126,000 1,159.36 1,932.26 1,363.95 2,273.25 1,217.33 2,028.88 1,432.15 2,386.91 1,275.29 2,125.49 1,500.35 2,500.58 1,333.26 2,222.10 1,568.54 2,614.24 16.38 35.28 6.00
127,000 1,164.64 1,941.06 1,370.16 2,283.60 1,222.87 2,038.11 1,438.67 2,397.78 1,281.10 2,135.17 1,507.18 2,511.96 1,339.33 2,232.22 1,575.68 2,626.14 16.51 35.56 6.00
128,000 1,169.91 1,949.86 1,376.37 2,293.95 1,228.41 2,047.35 1,445.19 2,408.65 1,286.91 2,144.84 1,514.01 2,523.35 1,345.40 2,242.34 1,582.83 2,638.04 16.64 35.84 6.00
129,000 1,175.19 1,958.66 1,382.58 2,304.30 1,233.95 2,056.59 1,451.71 2,419.52 1,292.71 2,154.52 1,520.84 2,534.73 1,351.47 2,252.45 1,589.97 2,649.95 16.77 36.12 6.00
130,000 1,180.47 1,967.45 1,388.79 2,314.65 1,239.50 2,065.83 1,458.23 2,430.38 1,298.52 2,164.20 1,527.67 2,546.12 1,357.54 2,262.57 1,597.11 2,661.85 16.90 36.40 6.00
131,000 1,185.75 1,976.25 1,395.00 2,325.00 1,245.04 2,075.06 1,464.75 2,441.25 1,304.33 2,173.88 1,534.50 2,557.50 1,363.61 2,272.69 1,604.25 2,673.75 17.03 36.68 6.00
132,000 1,191.03 1,985.05 1,401.21 2,335.35 1,250.58 2,084.30 1,471.27 2,452.12 1,310.13 2,183.55 1,541.33 2,568.89 1,369.68 2,282.80 1,611.39 2,685.65 17.16 36.96 6.00
133,000 1,196.31 1,993.85 1,407.42 2,345.70 1,256.12 2,093.54 1,477.79 2,462.99 1,315.94 2,193.23 1,548.16 2,580.27 1,375.75 2,292.92 1,618.53 2,697.56 17.29 37.24 6.00
134,000 1,201.59 2,002.64 1,413.63 2,356.05 1,261.66 2,102.77 1,484.31 2,473.85 1,321.74 2,202.91 1,554.99 2,591.66 1,381.82 2,303.04 1,625.67 2,709.46 17.42 37.52 6.00
135,000 1,206.86 2,011.44 1,419.84 2,366.40 1,267.21 2,112.01 1,490.83 2,484.72 1,327.55 2,212.58 1,561.82 2,603.04 1,387.89 2,313.16 1,632.82 2,721.36 17.55 37.80 6.00
136,000 1,212.14 2,020.24 1,426.05 2,376.75 1,272.75 2,121.25 1,497.35 2,495.59 1,333.36 2,222.26 1,568.66 2,614.43 1,393.96 2,323.27 1,639.96 2,733.26 17.68 38.08 6.00
137,000 1,217.42 2,029.04 1,432.26 2,387.10 1,278.29 2,130.49 1,503.87 2,506.46 1,339.16 2,231.94 1,575.49 2,625.81 1,400.03 2,333.39 1,647.10 2,745.17 17.81 38.36 6.00
138,000 1,222.70 2,037.83 1,438.47 2,397.45 1,283.83 2,139.72 1,510.39 2,517.32 1,344.97 2,241.62 1,582.32 2,637.20 1,406.10 2,343.51 1,654.24 2,757.07 17.94 38.64 6.00
139,000 1,227.98 2,046.63 1,444.68 2,407.80 1,289.38 2,148.96 1,516.91 2,528.19 1,350.78 2,251.29 1,589.15 2,648.58 1,412.17 2,353.62 1,661.38 2,768.97 18.07 38.92 6.00
140,000 1,233.26 2,055.43 1,450.89 2,418.15 1,294.92 2,158.20 1,523.43 2,539.06 1,356.58 2,260.97 1,595.98 2,659.97 1,418.24 2,363.74 1,668.52 2,780.87 18.20 39.20 6.00
141,000 1,238.54 2,064.23 1,457.10 2,428.50 1,300.46 2,167.44 1,529.96 2,549.93 1,362.39 2,270.65 1,602.81 2,671.35 1,424.32 2,373.86 1,675.67 2,792.78 18.33 39.48 6.00
142,000 1,243.81 2,073.02 1,463.31 2,438.85 1,306.00 2,176.67 1,536.48 2,560.79 1,368.19 2,280.32 1,609.64 2,682.74 1,430.39 2,383.98 1,682.81 2,804.68 18.46 39.76 6.00
143,000 1,249.09 2,081.82 1,469.52 2,449.20 1,311.55 2,185.91 1,543.00 2,571.66 1,374.00 2,290.00 1,616.47 2,694.12 1,436.46 2,394.09 1,689.95 2,816.58 18.59 40.04 6.00
144,000 1,254.37 2,090.62 1,475.73 2,459.55 1,317.09 2,195.15 1,549.52 2,582.53 1,379.81 2,299.68 1,623.30 2,705.51 1,442.53 2,404.21 1,697.09 2,828.48 18.72 40.32 6.00
145,000 1,259.65 2,099.42 1,481.94 2,469.90 1,322.63 2,204.39 1,556.04 2,593.40 1,385.61 2,309.36 1,630.13 2,716.89 1,448.60 2,414.33 1,704.23 2,840.39 18.85 40.60 6.00
146,000 1,264.93 2,108.21 1,488.15 2,480.25 1,328.17 2,213.62 1,562.56 2,604.26 1,391.42 2,319.03 1,636.97 2,728.28 1,454.67 2,424.44 1,711.37 2,852.29 18.98 40.88 6.00
147,000 1,270.21 2,117.01 1,494.36 2,490.60 1,333.72 2,222.86 1,569.08 2,615.13 1,397.23 2,328.71 1,643.80 2,739.66 1,460.74 2,434.56 1,718.51 2,864.19 19.11 41.16 6.00
148,000 1,275.48 2,125.81 1,500.57 2,500.95 1,339.26 2,232.10 1,575.60 2,626.00 1,403.03 2,338.39 1,650.63 2,751.05 1,466.81 2,444.68 1,725.66 2,876.09 19.24 41.44 6.00
149,000 1,280.76 2,134.61 1,506.78 2,511.30 1,344.80 2,241.34 1,582.12 2,636.87 1,408.84 2,348.07 1,657.46 2,762.43 1,472.88 2,454.80 1,732.80 2,888.00 19.37 41.72 6.00
150,000 1,286.04 2,143.40 1,512.99 2,521.65 1,350.34 2,250.57 1,588.64 2,647.73 1,414.65 2,357.74 1,664.29 2,773.82 1,478.95 2,464.91 1,739.94 2,899.90 19.50 42.00 6.00
151,000 1,291.32 2,152.20 1,519.20 2,532.00 1,355.89 2,259.81 1,595.16 2,658.60 1,420.45 2,367.42 1,671.12 2,785.20 1,485.02 2,475.03 1,747.08 2,911.80 19.63 42.28 7.00
152,000 1,296.60 2,161.00 1,525.41 2,542.35 1,361.43 2,269.05 1,601.68 2,669.47 1,426.26 2,377.10 1,677.95 2,796.59 1,491.09 2,485.15 1,754.22 2,923.70 19.76 42.56 7.00
153,000 1,301.88 2,169.80 1,531.62 2,552.70 1,366.97 2,278.28 1,608.20 2,680.34 1,432.06 2,386.77 1,684.78 2,807.97 1,497.16 2,495.26 1,761.36 2,935.61 19.89 42.84 7.00
154,000 1,307.16 2,178.59 1,537.83 2,563.05 1,372.51 2,287.52 1,614.72 2,691.20 1,437.87 2,396.45 1,691.61 2,819.36 1,503.23 2,505.38 1,768.50 2,947.51 20.02 43.12 7.00
155,000 1,312.43 2,187.39 1,544.04 2,573.40 1,378.06 2,296.76 1,621.24 2,702.07 1,443.68 2,406.13 1,698.44 2,830.74 1,509.30 2,515.50 1,775.65 2,959.41 20.15 43.40 7.00
156,000 1,317.71 2,196.19 1,550.25 2,583.75 1,383.60 2,306.00 1,627.76 2,712.94 1,449.48 2,415.81 1,705.28 2,842.13 1,515.37 2,525.62 1,782.79 2,971.31 20.28 43.68 7.00
157,000 1,322.99 2,204.99 1,556.46 2,594.10 1,389.14 2,315.23 1,634.28 2,723.81 1,455.29 2,425.48 1,712.11 2,853.51 1,521.44 2,535.73 1,789.93 2,983.22 20.41 43.96 7.00
158,000 1,328.27 2,213.78 1,562.67 2,604.45 1,394.68 2,324.47 1,640.80 2,734.67 1,461.10 2,435.16 1,718.94 2,864.90 1,527.51 2,545.85 1,797.07 2,995.12 20.54 44.24 7.00
159,000 1,333.55 2,222.58 1,568.88 2,614.80 1,400.23 2,333.71 1,647.32 2,745.54 1,466.90 2,444.84 1,725.77 2,876.28 1,533.58 2,555.97 1,804.21 3,007.02 20.67 44.52 7.00
160,000 1,338.83 2,231.38 1,575.09 2,625.15 1,405.77 2,342.95 1,653.84 2,756.41 1,472.71 2,454.52 1,732.60 2,887.67 1,539.65 2,566.08 1,811.35 3,018.92 20.80 44.80 7.00
161,000 1,344.11 2,240.18 1,581.30 2,635.50 1,411.31 2,352.18 1,660.37 2,767.28 1,478.52 2,464.19 1,739.43 2,899.05 1,545.72 2,576.20 1,818.50 3,030.83 20.93 45.08 7.00
162,000 1,349.38 2,248.97 1,587.51 2,645.85 1,416.85 2,361.42 1,666.89 2,778.14 1,484.32 2,473.87 1,746.26 2,910.44 1,551.79 2,586.32 1,825.64 3,042.73 21.06 45.36 7.00
163,000 1,354.66 2,257.77 1,593.72 2,656.20 1,422.40 2,370.66 1,673.41 2,789.01 1,490.13 2,483.55 1,753.09 2,921.82 1,557.86 2,596.44 1,832.78 3,054.63 21.19 45.64 7.00

Attachment E.1

Page 232 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

164,000 1,359.94 2,266.57 1,599.93 2,666.55 1,427.94 2,379.90 1,679.93 2,799.88 1,495.93 2,493.22 1,759.92 2,933.21 1,563.93 2,606.55 1,839.92 3,066.53 21.32 45.92 7.00
165,000 1,365.22 2,275.37 1,606.14 2,676.90 1,433.48 2,389.13 1,686.45 2,810.75 1,501.74 2,502.90 1,766.75 2,944.59 1,570.00 2,616.67 1,847.06 3,078.44 21.45 46.20 7.00
166,000 1,370.50 2,284.16 1,612.35 2,687.25 1,439.02 2,398.37 1,692.97 2,821.61 1,507.55 2,512.58 1,773.59 2,955.98 1,576.07 2,626.79 1,854.20 3,090.34 21.58 46.48 7.00
167,000 1,375.78 2,292.96 1,618.56 2,697.60 1,444.56 2,407.61 1,699.49 2,832.48 1,513.35 2,522.26 1,780.42 2,967.36 1,582.14 2,636.90 1,861.34 3,102.24 21.71 46.76 7.00
168,000 1,381.05 2,301.76 1,624.77 2,707.95 1,450.11 2,416.85 1,706.01 2,843.35 1,519.16 2,531.93 1,787.25 2,978.75 1,588.21 2,647.02 1,868.49 3,114.14 21.84 47.04 7.00
169,000 1,386.33 2,310.56 1,630.98 2,718.30 1,455.65 2,426.08 1,712.53 2,854.22 1,524.97 2,541.61 1,794.08 2,990.13 1,594.28 2,657.14 1,875.63 3,126.05 21.97 47.32 7.00
170,000 1,391.61 2,319.35 1,637.19 2,728.65 1,461.19 2,435.32 1,719.05 2,865.08 1,530.77 2,551.29 1,800.91 3,001.52 1,600.35 2,667.26 1,882.77 3,137.95 22.10 47.60 7.00
171,000 1,396.89 2,328.15 1,643.40 2,739.00 1,466.73 2,444.56 1,725.57 2,875.95 1,536.58 2,560.97 1,807.74 3,012.90 1,606.42 2,677.37 1,889.91 3,149.85 22.23 47.88 7.00
172,000 1,402.17 2,336.95 1,649.61 2,749.35 1,472.28 2,453.79 1,732.09 2,886.82 1,542.39 2,570.64 1,814.57 3,024.29 1,612.49 2,687.49 1,897.05 3,161.75 22.36 48.16 7.00
173,000 1,407.45 2,345.75 1,655.82 2,759.70 1,477.82 2,463.03 1,738.61 2,897.69 1,548.19 2,580.32 1,821.40 3,035.67 1,618.56 2,697.61 1,904.19 3,173.66 22.49 48.44 7.00
174,000 1,412.73 2,354.54 1,662.03 2,770.05 1,483.36 2,472.27 1,745.13 2,908.55 1,554.00 2,590.00 1,828.23 3,047.06 1,624.63 2,707.72 1,911.33 3,185.56 22.62 48.72 7.00
175,000 1,418.00 2,363.34 1,668.24 2,780.40 1,488.90 2,481.51 1,751.65 2,919.42 1,559.80 2,599.67 1,835.06 3,058.44 1,630.70 2,717.84 1,918.48 3,197.46 22.75 49.00 7.00
176,000 1,423.28 2,372.14 1,674.45 2,790.75 1,494.45 2,490.74 1,758.17 2,930.29 1,565.61 2,609.35 1,841.90 3,069.83 1,636.77 2,727.96 1,925.62 3,209.36 22.88 49.28 8.00
177,000 1,428.56 2,380.94 1,680.66 2,801.10 1,499.99 2,499.98 1,764.69 2,941.16 1,571.42 2,619.03 1,848.73 3,081.21 1,642.85 2,738.08 1,932.76 3,221.27 23.01 49.56 8.00
178,000 1,433.84 2,389.73 1,686.87 2,811.45 1,505.53 2,509.22 1,771.21 2,952.02 1,577.22 2,628.71 1,855.56 3,092.60 1,648.92 2,748.19 1,939.90 3,233.17 23.14 49.84 8.00
179,000 1,439.12 2,398.53 1,693.08 2,821.80 1,511.07 2,518.46 1,777.73 2,962.89 1,583.03 2,638.38 1,862.39 3,103.98 1,654.99 2,758.31 1,947.04 3,245.07 23.27 50.12 8.00
180,000 1,444.40 2,407.33 1,699.29 2,832.15 1,516.62 2,527.69 1,784.25 2,973.76 1,588.84 2,648.06 1,869.22 3,115.37 1,661.06 2,768.43 1,954.18 3,256.97 23.40 50.40 8.00
181,000 1,449.68 2,416.13 1,705.50 2,842.50 1,522.16 2,536.93 1,790.78 2,984.63 1,594.64 2,657.74 1,876.05 3,126.75 1,667.13 2,778.54 1,961.33 3,268.88 23.53 50.68 8.00
182,000 1,454.95 2,424.92 1,711.71 2,852.85 1,527.70 2,546.17 1,797.30 2,995.49 1,600.45 2,667.41 1,882.88 3,138.14 1,673.20 2,788.66 1,968.47 3,280.78 23.66 50.96 8.00
183,000 1,460.23 2,433.72 1,717.92 2,863.20 1,533.24 2,555.41 1,803.82 3,006.36 1,606.26 2,677.09 1,889.71 3,149.52 1,679.27 2,798.78 1,975.61 3,292.68 23.79 51.24 8.00
184,000 1,465.51 2,442.52 1,724.13 2,873.55 1,538.79 2,564.64 1,810.34 3,017.23 1,612.06 2,686.77 1,896.54 3,160.91 1,685.34 2,808.90 1,982.75 3,304.58 23.92 51.52 8.00
185,000 1,470.79 2,451.32 1,730.34 2,883.90 1,544.33 2,573.88 1,816.86 3,028.10 1,617.87 2,696.45 1,903.37 3,172.29 1,691.41 2,819.01 1,989.89 3,316.49 24.05 51.80 8.00
186,000 1,476.07 2,460.11 1,736.55 2,894.25 1,549.87 2,583.12 1,823.38 3,038.96 1,623.67 2,706.12 1,910.21 3,183.68 1,697.48 2,829.13 1,997.03 3,328.39 24.18 52.08 8.00
187,000 1,481.35 2,468.91 1,742.76 2,904.60 1,555.41 2,592.36 1,829.90 3,049.83 1,629.48 2,715.80 1,917.04 3,195.06 1,703.55 2,839.25 2,004.17 3,340.29 24.31 52.36 8.00
188,000 1,486.62 2,477.71 1,748.97 2,914.95 1,560.96 2,601.59 1,836.42 3,060.70 1,635.29 2,725.48 1,923.87 3,206.45 1,709.62 2,849.36 2,011.32 3,352.19 24.44 52.64 8.00
189,000 1,491.90 2,486.51 1,755.18 2,925.30 1,566.50 2,610.83 1,842.94 3,071.57 1,641.09 2,735.16 1,930.70 3,217.83 1,715.69 2,859.48 2,018.46 3,364.10 24.57 52.92 8.00
190,000 1,497.18 2,495.30 1,761.39 2,935.65 1,572.04 2,620.07 1,849.46 3,082.43 1,646.90 2,744.83 1,937.53 3,229.22 1,721.76 2,869.60 2,025.60 3,376.00 24.70 53.20 8.00
191,000 1,502.46 2,504.10 1,767.60 2,946.00 1,577.58 2,629.31 1,855.98 3,093.30 1,652.71 2,754.51 1,944.36 3,240.60 1,727.83 2,879.72 2,032.74 3,387.90 24.83 53.48 8.00
192,000 1,507.74 2,512.90 1,773.81 2,956.35 1,583.13 2,638.54 1,862.50 3,104.17 1,658.51 2,764.19 1,951.19 3,251.99 1,733.90 2,889.83 2,039.88 3,399.80 24.96 53.76 8.00
193,000 1,513.02 2,521.70 1,780.02 2,966.70 1,588.67 2,647.78 1,869.02 3,115.04 1,664.32 2,773.86 1,958.02 3,263.37 1,739.97 2,899.95 2,047.02 3,411.71 25.09 54.04 8.00
194,000 1,518.30 2,530.49 1,786.23 2,977.05 1,594.21 2,657.02 1,875.54 3,125.90 1,670.13 2,783.54 1,964.85 3,274.76 1,746.04 2,910.07 2,054.16 3,423.61 25.22 54.32 8.00
195,000 1,523.57 2,539.29 1,792.44 2,987.40 1,599.75 2,666.25 1,882.06 3,136.77 1,675.93 2,793.22 1,971.68 3,286.14 1,752.11 2,920.18 2,061.31 3,435.51 25.35 54.60 8.00
196,000 1,528.85 2,548.09 1,798.65 2,997.75 1,605.30 2,675.49 1,888.58 3,147.64 1,681.74 2,802.90 1,978.52 3,297.53 1,758.18 2,930.30 2,068.45 3,447.41 25.48 54.88 8.00
197,000 1,534.13 2,556.89 1,804.86 3,008.10 1,610.84 2,684.73 1,895.10 3,158.51 1,687.54 2,812.57 1,985.35 3,308.91 1,764.25 2,940.42 2,075.59 3,459.32 25.61 55.16 8.00
198,000 1,539.41 2,565.68 1,811.07 3,018.45 1,616.38 2,693.97 1,901.62 3,169.37 1,693.35 2,822.25 1,992.18 3,320.30 1,770.32 2,950.53 2,082.73 3,471.22 25.74 55.44 8.00
199,000 1,544.69 2,574.48 1,817.28 3,028.80 1,621.92 2,703.20 1,908.14 3,180.24 1,699.16 2,831.93 1,999.01 3,331.68 1,776.39 2,960.65 2,089.87 3,483.12 25.87 55.72 8.00
200,000 1,549.97 2,583.28 1,823.49 3,039.15 1,627.46 2,712.44 1,914.66 3,191.11 1,704.96 2,841.61 2,005.84 3,343.07 1,782.46 2,970.77 2,097.01 3,495.02 26.00 56.00 8.00
201,000 1,555.25 2,592.08 1,829.70 3,049.50 1,633.01 2,721.68 1,921.19 3,201.98 1,710.77 2,851.28 2,012.67 3,354.45 1,788.53 2,980.89 2,104.16 3,506.93 26.13 56.28 9.00
202,000 1,560.52 2,600.87 1,835.91 3,059.85 1,638.55 2,730.92 1,927.71 3,212.84 1,716.58 2,860.96 2,019.50 3,365.84 1,794.60 2,991.00 2,111.30 3,518.83 26.26 56.56 9.00
203,000 1,565.80 2,609.67 1,842.12 3,070.20 1,644.09 2,740.15 1,934.23 3,223.71 1,722.38 2,870.64 2,026.33 3,377.22 1,800.67 3,001.12 2,118.44 3,530.73 26.39 56.84 9.00
204,000 1,571.08 2,618.47 1,848.33 3,080.55 1,649.63 2,749.39 1,940.75 3,234.58 1,728.19 2,880.31 2,033.16 3,388.61 1,806.74 3,011.24 2,125.58 3,542.63 26.52 57.12 9.00

Attachment E.1

Page 233 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

205,000 1,576.36 2,627.27 1,854.54 3,090.90 1,655.18 2,758.63 1,947.27 3,245.45 1,733.99 2,889.99 2,039.99 3,399.99 1,812.81 3,021.35 2,132.72 3,554.54 26.65 57.40 9.00
206,000 1,581.64 2,636.06 1,860.75 3,101.25 1,660.72 2,767.87 1,953.79 3,256.31 1,739.80 2,899.67 2,046.83 3,411.38 1,818.88 3,031.47 2,139.86 3,566.44 26.78 57.68 9.00
207,000 1,586.92 2,644.86 1,866.96 3,111.60 1,666.26 2,777.10 1,960.31 3,267.18 1,745.61 2,909.35 2,053.66 3,422.76 1,824.95 3,041.59 2,147.00 3,578.34 26.91 57.96 9.00
208,000 1,592.19 2,653.66 1,873.17 3,121.95 1,671.80 2,786.34 1,966.83 3,278.05 1,751.41 2,919.02 2,060.49 3,434.15 1,831.02 3,051.71 2,154.15 3,590.24 27.04 58.24 9.00
209,000 1,597.47 2,662.46 1,879.38 3,132.30 1,677.35 2,795.58 1,973.35 3,288.92 1,757.22 2,928.70 2,067.32 3,445.53 1,837.09 3,061.82 2,161.29 3,602.15 27.17 58.52 9.00
210,000 1,602.75 2,671.25 1,885.59 3,142.65 1,682.89 2,804.82 1,979.87 3,299.78 1,763.03 2,938.38 2,074.15 3,456.92 1,843.16 3,071.94 2,168.43 3,614.05 27.30 58.80 9.00
211,000 1,608.03 2,680.05 1,891.80 3,153.00 1,688.43 2,814.05 1,986.39 3,310.65 1,768.83 2,948.06 2,080.98 3,468.30 1,849.23 3,082.06 2,175.57 3,625.95 27.43 59.08 9.00
212,000 1,613.31 2,688.85 1,898.01 3,163.35 1,693.97 2,823.29 1,992.91 3,321.52 1,774.64 2,957.73 2,087.81 3,479.69 1,855.30 3,092.17 2,182.71 3,637.85 27.56 59.36 9.00
213,000 1,618.59 2,697.65 1,904.22 3,173.70 1,699.52 2,832.53 1,999.43 3,332.39 1,780.45 2,967.41 2,094.64 3,491.07 1,861.38 3,102.29 2,189.85 3,649.76 27.69 59.64 9.00
214,000 1,623.87 2,706.44 1,910.43 3,184.05 1,705.06 2,841.76 2,005.95 3,343.25 1,786.25 2,977.09 2,101.47 3,502.46 1,867.45 3,112.41 2,196.99 3,661.66 27.82 59.92 9.00
215,000 1,629.14 2,715.24 1,916.64 3,194.40 1,710.60 2,851.00 2,012.47 3,354.12 1,792.06 2,986.76 2,108.30 3,513.84 1,873.52 3,122.53 2,204.14 3,673.56 27.95 60.20 9.00
216,000 1,634.42 2,724.04 1,922.85 3,204.75 1,716.14 2,860.24 2,018.99 3,364.99 1,797.86 2,996.44 2,115.14 3,525.23 1,879.59 3,132.64 2,211.28 3,685.46 28.08 60.48 9.00
217,000 1,639.70 2,732.84 1,929.06 3,215.10 1,721.69 2,869.48 2,025.51 3,375.86 1,803.67 3,006.12 2,121.97 3,536.61 1,885.66 3,142.76 2,218.42 3,697.37 28.21 60.76 9.00
218,000 1,644.98 2,741.63 1,935.27 3,225.45 1,727.23 2,878.71 2,032.03 3,386.72 1,809.48 3,015.80 2,128.80 3,548.00 1,891.73 3,152.88 2,225.56 3,709.27 28.34 61.04 9.00
219,000 1,650.26 2,750.43 1,941.48 3,235.80 1,732.77 2,887.95 2,038.55 3,397.59 1,815.28 3,025.47 2,135.63 3,559.38 1,897.80 3,162.99 2,232.70 3,721.17 28.47 61.32 9.00
220,000 1,655.54 2,759.23 1,947.69 3,246.15 1,738.31 2,897.19 2,045.07 3,408.46 1,821.09 3,035.15 2,142.46 3,570.77 1,903.87 3,173.11 2,239.84 3,733.07 28.60 61.60 9.00
221,000 1,660.82 2,768.03 1,953.90 3,256.50 1,743.86 2,906.43 2,051.60 3,419.33 1,826.90 3,044.83 2,149.29 3,582.15 1,909.94 3,183.23 2,246.99 3,744.98 28.73 61.88 9.00
222,000 1,666.09 2,776.82 1,960.11 3,266.85 1,749.40 2,915.66 2,058.12 3,430.19 1,832.70 3,054.50 2,156.12 3,593.54 1,916.01 3,193.35 2,254.13 3,756.88 28.86 62.16 9.00
223,000 1,671.37 2,785.62 1,966.32 3,277.20 1,754.94 2,924.90 2,064.64 3,441.06 1,838.51 3,064.18 2,162.95 3,604.92 1,922.08 3,203.46 2,261.27 3,768.78 28.99 62.44 9.00
224,000 1,676.65 2,794.42 1,972.53 3,287.55 1,760.48 2,934.14 2,071.16 3,451.93 1,844.32 3,073.86 2,169.78 3,616.31 1,928.15 3,213.58 2,268.41 3,780.68 29.12 62.72 9.00
225,000 1,681.93 2,803.22 1,978.74 3,297.90 1,766.03 2,943.38 2,077.68 3,462.80 1,850.12 3,083.54 2,176.61 3,627.69 1,934.22 3,223.70 2,275.55 3,792.59 29.25 63.00 9.00
226,000 1,687.21 2,812.01 1,984.95 3,308.25 1,771.57 2,952.61 2,084.20 3,473.66 1,855.93 3,093.21 2,183.45 3,639.08 1,940.29 3,233.81 2,282.69 3,804.49 29.38 63.28 10.00
227,000 1,692.49 2,820.81 1,991.16 3,318.60 1,777.11 2,961.85 2,090.72 3,484.53 1,861.73 3,102.89 2,190.28 3,650.46 1,946.36 3,243.93 2,289.83 3,816.39 29.51 63.56 10.00
228,000 1,697.76 2,829.61 1,997.37 3,328.95 1,782.65 2,971.09 2,097.24 3,495.40 1,867.54 3,112.57 2,197.11 3,661.85 1,952.43 3,254.05 2,296.98 3,828.29 29.64 63.84 10.00
229,000 1,703.04 2,838.41 2,003.58 3,339.30 1,788.20 2,980.33 2,103.76 3,506.27 1,873.35 3,122.25 2,203.94 3,673.23 1,958.50 3,264.17 2,304.12 3,840.20 29.77 64.12 10.00
230,000 1,708.32 2,847.20 2,009.79 3,349.65 1,793.74 2,989.56 2,110.28 3,517.13 1,879.15 3,131.92 2,210.77 3,684.62 1,964.57 3,274.28 2,311.26 3,852.10 29.90 64.40 10.00
231,000 1,713.60 2,856.00 2,016.00 3,360.00 1,799.28 2,998.80 2,116.80 3,528.00 1,884.96 3,141.60 2,217.60 3,696.00 1,970.64 3,284.40 2,318.40 3,864.00 30.03 64.68 10.00
232,000 1,718.88 2,864.80 2,022.21 3,370.35 1,804.82 3,008.04 2,123.32 3,538.87 1,890.77 3,151.28 2,224.43 3,707.39 1,976.71 3,294.52 2,325.54 3,875.90 30.16 64.96 10.00
233,000 1,724.16 2,873.60 2,028.42 3,380.70 1,810.36 3,017.27 2,129.84 3,549.74 1,896.57 3,160.95 2,231.26 3,718.77 1,982.78 3,304.63 2,332.68 3,887.81 30.29 65.24 10.00
234,000 1,729.44 2,882.39 2,034.63 3,391.05 1,815.91 3,026.51 2,136.36 3,560.60 1,902.38 3,170.63 2,238.09 3,730.16 1,988.85 3,314.75 2,339.82 3,899.71 30.42 65.52 10.00
235,000 1,734.71 2,891.19 2,040.84 3,401.40 1,821.45 3,035.75 2,142.88 3,571.47 1,908.19 3,180.31 2,244.92 3,741.54 1,994.92 3,324.87 2,346.97 3,911.61 30.55 65.80 10.00
236,000 1,739.99 2,899.99 2,047.05 3,411.75 1,826.99 3,044.99 2,149.40 3,582.34 1,913.99 3,189.99 2,251.76 3,752.93 2,000.99 3,334.99 2,354.11 3,923.51 30.68 66.08 10.00
237,000 1,745.27 2,908.79 2,053.26 3,422.10 1,832.53 3,054.22 2,155.92 3,593.21 1,919.80 3,199.66 2,258.59 3,764.31 2,007.06 3,345.10 2,361.25 3,935.42 30.81 66.36 10.00
238,000 1,750.55 2,917.58 2,059.47 3,432.45 1,838.08 3,063.46 2,162.44 3,604.07 1,925.60 3,209.34 2,265.42 3,775.70 2,013.13 3,355.22 2,368.39 3,947.32 30.94 66.64 10.00
239,000 1,755.83 2,926.38 2,065.68 3,442.80 1,843.62 3,072.70 2,168.96 3,614.94 1,931.41 3,219.02 2,272.25 3,787.08 2,019.20 3,365.34 2,375.53 3,959.22 31.07 66.92 10.00
240,000 1,761.11 2,935.18 2,071.89 3,453.15 1,849.16 3,081.94 2,175.48 3,625.81 1,937.22 3,228.70 2,279.08 3,798.47 2,025.27 3,375.45 2,382.67 3,971.12 31.20 67.20 10.00
241,000 1,766.39 2,943.98 2,078.10 3,463.50 1,854.70 3,091.17 2,182.01 3,636.68 1,943.02 3,238.37 2,285.91 3,809.85 2,031.34 3,385.57 2,389.82 3,983.03 31.33 67.48 10.00
242,000 1,771.66 2,952.77 2,084.31 3,473.85 1,860.25 3,100.41 2,188.53 3,647.54 1,948.83 3,248.05 2,292.74 3,821.24 2,037.41 3,395.69 2,396.96 3,994.93 31.46 67.76 10.00
243,000 1,776.94 2,961.57 2,090.52 3,484.20 1,865.79 3,109.65 2,195.05 3,658.41 1,954.64 3,257.73 2,299.57 3,832.62 2,043.48 3,405.81 2,404.10 4,006.83 31.59 68.04 10.00
244,000 1,782.22 2,970.37 2,096.73 3,494.55 1,871.33 3,118.89 2,201.57 3,669.28 1,960.44 3,267.40 2,306.40 3,844.01 2,049.55 3,415.92 2,411.24 4,018.73 31.72 68.32 10.00
245,000 1,787.50 2,979.17 2,102.94 3,504.90 1,876.87 3,128.12 2,208.09 3,680.15 1,966.25 3,277.08 2,313.23 3,855.39 2,055.62 3,426.04 2,418.38 4,030.64 31.85 68.60 10.00

Attachment E.1

Page 234 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

246,000 1,792.78 2,987.96 2,109.15 3,515.25 1,882.42 3,137.36 2,214.61 3,691.01 1,972.06 3,286.76 2,320.07 3,866.78 2,061.69 3,436.16 2,425.52 4,042.54 31.98 68.88 10.00
247,000 1,798.06 2,996.76 2,115.36 3,525.60 1,887.96 3,146.60 2,221.13 3,701.88 1,977.86 3,296.44 2,326.90 3,878.16 2,067.76 3,446.27 2,432.66 4,054.44 32.11 69.16 10.00
248,000 1,803.33 3,005.56 2,121.57 3,535.95 1,893.50 3,155.84 2,227.65 3,712.75 1,983.67 3,306.11 2,333.73 3,889.55 2,073.83 3,456.39 2,439.81 4,066.34 32.24 69.44 10.00
249,000 1,808.61 3,014.36 2,127.78 3,546.30 1,899.04 3,165.07 2,234.17 3,723.62 1,989.47 3,315.79 2,340.56 3,900.93 2,079.90 3,466.51 2,446.95 4,078.25 32.37 69.72 10.00
250,000 1,813.89 3,023.15 2,133.99 3,556.65 1,904.59 3,174.31 2,240.69 3,734.48 1,995.28 3,325.47 2,347.39 3,912.32 2,085.98 3,476.63 2,454.09 4,090.15 32.50 70.00 10.00
251,000 1,819.17 3,031.95 2,140.20 3,567.00 1,910.13 3,183.55 2,247.21 3,745.35 2,001.09 3,335.15 2,354.22 3,923.70 2,092.05 3,486.74 2,461.23 4,102.05 32.63 70.28 11.00
252,000 1,824.45 3,040.75 2,146.41 3,577.35 1,915.67 3,192.78 2,253.73 3,756.22 2,006.89 3,344.82 2,361.05 3,935.09 2,098.12 3,496.86 2,468.37 4,113.95 32.76 70.56 11.00
253,000 1,829.73 3,049.55 2,152.62 3,587.70 1,921.21 3,202.02 2,260.25 3,767.09 2,012.70 3,354.50 2,367.88 3,946.47 2,104.19 3,506.98 2,475.51 4,125.86 32.89 70.84 11.00
254,000 1,835.01 3,058.34 2,158.83 3,598.05 1,926.76 3,211.26 2,266.77 3,777.95 2,018.51 3,364.18 2,374.71 3,957.86 2,110.26 3,517.09 2,482.65 4,137.76 33.02 71.12 11.00
255,000 1,840.28 3,067.14 2,165.04 3,608.40 1,932.30 3,220.50 2,273.29 3,788.82 2,024.31 3,373.85 2,381.54 3,969.24 2,116.33 3,527.21 2,489.80 4,149.66 33.15 71.40 11.00
256,000 1,845.56 3,075.94 2,171.25 3,618.75 1,937.84 3,229.73 2,279.81 3,799.69 2,030.12 3,383.53 2,388.38 3,980.63 2,122.40 3,537.33 2,496.94 4,161.56 33.28 71.68 11.00
257,000 1,850.84 3,084.74 2,177.46 3,629.10 1,943.38 3,238.97 2,286.33 3,810.56 2,035.93 3,393.21 2,395.21 3,992.01 2,128.47 3,547.45 2,504.08 4,173.47 33.41 71.96 11.00
258,000 1,856.12 3,093.53 2,183.67 3,639.45 1,948.93 3,248.21 2,292.85 3,821.42 2,041.73 3,402.89 2,402.04 4,003.40 2,134.54 3,557.56 2,511.22 4,185.37 33.54 72.24 11.00
259,000 1,861.40 3,102.33 2,189.88 3,649.80 1,954.47 3,257.45 2,299.37 3,832.29 2,047.54 3,412.56 2,408.87 4,014.78 2,140.61 3,567.68 2,518.36 4,197.27 33.67 72.52 11.00
260,000 1,866.68 3,111.13 2,196.09 3,660.15 1,960.01 3,266.68 2,305.89 3,843.16 2,053.34 3,422.24 2,415.70 4,026.17 2,146.68 3,577.80 2,525.50 4,209.17 33.80 72.80 11.00
261,000 1,871.96 3,119.93 2,202.30 3,670.50 1,965.55 3,275.92 2,312.42 3,854.03 2,059.15 3,431.92 2,422.53 4,037.55 2,152.75 3,587.91 2,532.65 4,221.08 33.93 73.08 11.00
262,000 1,877.23 3,128.72 2,208.51 3,680.85 1,971.10 3,285.16 2,318.94 3,864.89 2,064.96 3,441.59 2,429.36 4,048.94 2,158.82 3,598.03 2,539.79 4,232.98 34.06 73.36 11.00
263,000 1,882.51 3,137.52 2,214.72 3,691.20 1,976.64 3,294.40 2,325.46 3,875.76 2,070.76 3,451.27 2,436.19 4,060.32 2,164.89 3,608.15 2,546.93 4,244.88 34.19 73.64 11.00
264,000 1,887.79 3,146.32 2,220.93 3,701.55 1,982.18 3,303.63 2,331.98 3,886.63 2,076.57 3,460.95 2,443.02 4,071.71 2,170.96 3,618.27 2,554.07 4,256.78 34.32 73.92 11.00
265,000 1,893.07 3,155.12 2,227.14 3,711.90 1,987.72 3,312.87 2,338.50 3,897.50 2,082.38 3,470.63 2,449.85 4,083.09 2,177.03 3,628.38 2,561.21 4,268.69 34.45 74.20 11.00
266,000 1,898.35 3,163.91 2,233.35 3,722.25 1,993.26 3,322.11 2,345.02 3,908.36 2,088.18 3,480.30 2,456.69 4,094.48 2,183.10 3,638.50 2,568.35 4,280.59 34.58 74.48 11.00
267,000 1,903.63 3,172.71 2,239.56 3,732.60 1,998.81 3,331.35 2,351.54 3,919.23 2,093.99 3,489.98 2,463.52 4,105.86 2,189.17 3,648.62 2,575.49 4,292.49 34.71 74.76 11.00
268,000 1,908.90 3,181.51 2,245.77 3,742.95 2,004.35 3,340.58 2,358.06 3,930.10 2,099.79 3,499.66 2,470.35 4,117.25 2,195.24 3,658.73 2,582.64 4,304.39 34.84 75.04 11.00
269,000 1,914.18 3,190.31 2,251.98 3,753.30 2,009.89 3,349.82 2,364.58 3,940.97 2,105.60 3,509.34 2,477.18 4,128.63 2,201.31 3,668.85 2,589.78 4,316.30 34.97 75.32 11.00
270,000 1,919.46 3,199.10 2,258.19 3,763.65 2,015.43 3,359.06 2,371.10 3,951.83 2,111.41 3,519.01 2,484.01 4,140.02 2,207.38 3,678.97 2,596.92 4,328.20 35.10 75.60 11.00
271,000 1,924.74 3,207.90 2,264.40 3,774.00 2,020.98 3,368.30 2,377.62 3,962.70 2,117.21 3,528.69 2,490.84 4,151.40 2,213.45 3,689.09 2,604.06 4,340.10 35.23 75.88 11.00
272,000 1,930.02 3,216.70 2,270.61 3,784.35 2,026.52 3,377.53 2,384.14 3,973.57 2,123.02 3,538.37 2,497.67 4,162.79 2,219.52 3,699.20 2,611.20 4,352.00 35.36 76.16 11.00
273,000 1,935.30 3,225.50 2,276.82 3,794.70 2,032.06 3,386.77 2,390.66 3,984.44 2,128.83 3,548.04 2,504.50 4,174.17 2,225.59 3,709.32 2,618.34 4,363.91 35.49 76.44 11.00
274,000 1,940.58 3,234.29 2,283.03 3,805.05 2,037.60 3,396.01 2,397.18 3,995.30 2,134.63 3,557.72 2,511.33 4,185.56 2,231.66 3,719.44 2,625.48 4,375.81 35.62 76.72 11.00
275,000 1,945.85 3,243.09 2,289.24 3,815.40 2,043.15 3,405.24 2,403.70 4,006.17 2,140.44 3,567.40 2,518.16 4,196.94 2,237.73 3,729.55 2,632.63 4,387.71 35.75 77.00 11.00
276,000 1,951.13 3,251.89 2,295.45 3,825.75 2,048.69 3,414.48 2,410.22 4,017.04 2,146.25 3,577.08 2,525.00 4,208.33 2,243.80 3,739.67 2,639.77 4,399.61 35.88 77.28 12.00
277,000 1,956.41 3,260.69 2,301.66 3,836.10 2,054.23 3,423.72 2,416.74 4,027.91 2,152.05 3,586.75 2,531.83 4,219.71 2,249.87 3,749.79 2,646.91 4,411.52 36.01 77.56 12.00
278,000 1,961.69 3,269.48 2,307.87 3,846.45 2,059.77 3,432.96 2,423.26 4,038.77 2,157.86 3,596.43 2,538.66 4,231.10 2,255.94 3,759.90 2,654.05 4,423.42 36.14 77.84 12.00
279,000 1,966.97 3,278.28 2,314.08 3,856.80 2,065.32 3,442.19 2,429.78 4,049.64 2,163.66 3,606.11 2,545.49 4,242.48 2,262.01 3,770.02 2,661.19 4,435.32 36.27 78.12 12.00
280,000 1,972.25 3,287.08 2,320.29 3,867.15 2,070.86 3,451.43 2,436.30 4,060.51 2,169.47 3,615.79 2,552.32 4,253.87 2,268.08 3,780.14 2,668.33 4,447.22 36.40 78.40 12.00
281,000 1,977.53 3,295.88 2,326.50 3,877.50 2,076.40 3,460.67 2,442.83 4,071.38 2,175.28 3,625.46 2,559.15 4,265.25 2,274.15 3,790.26 2,675.48 4,459.13 36.53 78.68 12.00
282,000 1,982.80 3,304.67 2,332.71 3,887.85 2,081.94 3,469.91 2,449.35 4,082.24 2,181.08 3,635.14 2,565.98 4,276.64 2,280.22 3,800.37 2,682.62 4,471.03 36.66 78.96 12.00
283,000 1,988.08 3,313.47 2,338.92 3,898.20 2,087.49 3,479.14 2,455.87 4,093.11 2,186.89 3,644.82 2,572.81 4,288.02 2,286.29 3,810.49 2,689.76 4,482.93 36.79 79.24 12.00
284,000 1,993.36 3,322.27 2,345.13 3,908.55 2,093.03 3,488.38 2,462.39 4,103.98 2,192.70 3,654.49 2,579.64 4,299.41 2,292.36 3,820.61 2,696.90 4,494.83 36.92 79.52 12.00
285,000 1,998.64 3,331.07 2,351.34 3,918.90 2,098.57 3,497.62 2,468.91 4,114.85 2,198.50 3,664.17 2,586.47 4,310.79 2,298.43 3,830.72 2,704.04 4,506.74 37.05 79.80 12.00
286,000 2,003.92 3,339.86 2,357.55 3,929.25 2,104.11 3,506.86 2,475.43 4,125.71 2,204.31 3,673.85 2,593.31 4,322.18 2,304.51 3,840.84 2,711.18 4,518.64 37.18 80.08 12.00

Attachment E.1

Page 235 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

287,000 2,009.20 3,348.66 2,363.76 3,939.60 2,109.66 3,516.09 2,481.95 4,136.58 2,210.12 3,683.53 2,600.14 4,333.56 2,310.58 3,850.96 2,718.32 4,530.54 37.31 80.36 12.00
288,000 2,014.47 3,357.46 2,369.97 3,949.95 2,115.20 3,525.33 2,488.47 4,147.45 2,215.92 3,693.20 2,606.97 4,344.95 2,316.65 3,861.08 2,725.47 4,542.44 37.44 80.64 12.00
289,000 2,019.75 3,366.26 2,376.18 3,960.30 2,120.74 3,534.57 2,494.99 4,158.32 2,221.73 3,702.88 2,613.80 4,356.33 2,322.72 3,871.19 2,732.61 4,554.35 37.57 80.92 12.00
290,000 2,025.03 3,375.05 2,382.39 3,970.65 2,126.28 3,543.81 2,501.51 4,169.18 2,227.53 3,712.56 2,620.63 4,367.72 2,328.79 3,881.31 2,739.75 4,566.25 37.70 81.20 12.00
291,000 2,030.31 3,383.85 2,388.60 3,981.00 2,131.83 3,553.04 2,508.03 4,180.05 2,233.34 3,722.24 2,627.46 4,379.10 2,334.86 3,891.43 2,746.89 4,578.15 37.83 81.48 12.00
292,000 2,035.59 3,392.65 2,394.81 3,991.35 2,137.37 3,562.28 2,514.55 4,190.92 2,239.15 3,731.91 2,634.29 4,390.49 2,340.93 3,901.54 2,754.03 4,590.05 37.96 81.76 12.00
293,000 2,040.87 3,401.45 2,401.02 4,001.70 2,142.91 3,571.52 2,521.07 4,201.79 2,244.95 3,741.59 2,641.12 4,401.87 2,347.00 3,911.66 2,761.17 4,601.96 38.09 82.04 12.00
294,000 2,046.15 3,410.24 2,407.23 4,012.05 2,148.45 3,580.75 2,527.59 4,212.65 2,250.76 3,751.27 2,647.95 4,413.26 2,353.07 3,921.78 2,768.31 4,613.86 38.22 82.32 12.00
295,000 2,051.42 3,419.04 2,413.44 4,022.40 2,154.00 3,589.99 2,534.11 4,223.52 2,256.57 3,760.94 2,654.78 4,424.64 2,359.14 3,931.90 2,775.46 4,625.76 38.35 82.60 12.00
296,000 2,056.70 3,427.84 2,419.65 4,032.75 2,159.54 3,599.23 2,540.63 4,234.39 2,262.37 3,770.62 2,661.62 4,436.03 2,365.21 3,942.01 2,782.60 4,637.66 38.48 82.88 12.00
297,000 2,061.98 3,436.64 2,425.86 4,043.10 2,165.08 3,608.47 2,547.15 4,245.26 2,268.18 3,780.30 2,668.45 4,447.41 2,371.28 3,952.13 2,789.74 4,649.57 38.61 83.16 12.00
298,000 2,067.26 3,445.43 2,432.07 4,053.45 2,170.62 3,617.70 2,553.67 4,256.12 2,273.99 3,789.98 2,675.28 4,458.80 2,377.35 3,962.25 2,796.88 4,661.47 38.74 83.44 12.00
299,000 2,072.54 3,454.23 2,438.28 4,063.80 2,176.16 3,626.94 2,560.19 4,266.99 2,279.79 3,799.65 2,682.11 4,470.18 2,383.42 3,972.36 2,804.02 4,673.37 38.87 83.72 12.00
300,000 2,077.82 3,463.03 2,444.49 4,074.15 2,181.71 3,636.18 2,566.71 4,277.86 2,285.60 3,809.33 2,688.94 4,481.57 2,389.49 3,982.48 2,811.16 4,685.27 39.00 84.00 12.00
301,000 2,083.10 3,471.83 2,450.70 4,084.50 2,187.25 3,645.42 2,573.24 4,288.73 2,291.40 3,819.01 2,695.77 4,492.95 2,395.56 3,992.60 2,818.31 4,697.18 39.13 84.28 13.00
302,000 2,088.37 3,480.62 2,456.91 4,094.85 2,192.79 3,654.65 2,579.76 4,299.59 2,297.21 3,828.68 2,702.60 4,504.34 2,401.63 4,002.72 2,825.45 4,709.08 39.26 84.56 13.00
303,000 2,093.65 3,489.42 2,463.12 4,105.20 2,198.33 3,663.89 2,586.28 4,310.46 2,303.02 3,838.36 2,709.43 4,515.72 2,407.70 4,012.83 2,832.59 4,720.98 39.39 84.84 13.00
304,000 2,098.93 3,498.22 2,469.33 4,115.55 2,203.88 3,673.13 2,592.80 4,321.33 2,308.82 3,848.04 2,716.26 4,527.11 2,413.77 4,022.95 2,839.73 4,732.88 39.52 85.12 13.00
305,000 2,104.21 3,507.02 2,475.54 4,125.90 2,209.42 3,682.37 2,599.32 4,332.20 2,314.63 3,857.72 2,723.09 4,538.49 2,419.84 4,033.07 2,846.87 4,744.79 39.65 85.40 13.00
306,000 2,109.49 3,515.81 2,481.75 4,136.25 2,214.96 3,691.60 2,605.84 4,343.06 2,320.44 3,867.39 2,729.93 4,549.88 2,425.91 4,043.18 2,854.01 4,756.69 39.78 85.68 13.00
307,000 2,114.77 3,524.61 2,487.96 4,146.60 2,220.50 3,700.84 2,612.36 4,353.93 2,326.24 3,877.07 2,736.76 4,561.26 2,431.98 4,053.30 2,861.15 4,768.59 39.91 85.96 13.00
308,000 2,120.04 3,533.41 2,494.17 4,156.95 2,226.05 3,710.08 2,618.88 4,364.80 2,332.05 3,886.75 2,743.59 4,572.65 2,438.05 4,063.42 2,868.30 4,780.49 40.04 86.24 13.00
309,000 2,125.32 3,542.21 2,500.38 4,167.30 2,231.59 3,719.32 2,625.40 4,375.67 2,337.86 3,896.43 2,750.42 4,584.03 2,444.12 4,073.54 2,875.44 4,792.40 40.17 86.52 13.00
310,000 2,130.60 3,551.00 2,506.59 4,177.65 2,237.13 3,728.55 2,631.92 4,386.53 2,343.66 3,906.10 2,757.25 4,595.42 2,450.19 4,083.65 2,882.58 4,804.30 40.30 86.80 13.00
311,000 2,135.88 3,559.80 2,512.80 4,188.00 2,242.67 3,737.79 2,638.44 4,397.40 2,349.47 3,915.78 2,764.08 4,606.80 2,456.26 4,093.77 2,889.72 4,816.20 40.43 87.08 13.00
312,000 2,141.16 3,568.60 2,519.01 4,198.35 2,248.22 3,747.03 2,644.96 4,408.27 2,355.27 3,925.46 2,770.91 4,618.19 2,462.33 4,103.89 2,896.86 4,828.10 40.56 87.36 13.00
313,000 2,146.44 3,577.40 2,525.22 4,208.70 2,253.76 3,756.26 2,651.48 4,419.14 2,361.08 3,935.13 2,777.74 4,629.57 2,468.40 4,114.00 2,904.00 4,840.01 40.69 87.64 13.00
314,000 2,151.72 3,586.19 2,531.43 4,219.05 2,259.30 3,765.50 2,658.00 4,430.00 2,366.89 3,944.81 2,784.57 4,640.96 2,474.47 4,124.12 2,911.14 4,851.91 40.82 87.92 13.00
315,000 2,156.99 3,594.99 2,537.64 4,229.40 2,264.84 3,774.74 2,664.52 4,440.87 2,372.69 3,954.49 2,791.40 4,652.34 2,480.54 4,134.24 2,918.29 4,863.81 40.95 88.20 13.00
316,000 2,162.27 3,603.79 2,543.85 4,239.75 2,270.39 3,783.98 2,671.04 4,451.74 2,378.50 3,964.17 2,798.24 4,663.73 2,486.61 4,144.36 2,925.43 4,875.71 41.08 88.48 13.00
317,000 2,167.55 3,612.59 2,550.06 4,250.10 2,275.93 3,793.21 2,677.56 4,462.61 2,384.31 3,973.84 2,805.07 4,675.11 2,492.68 4,154.47 2,932.57 4,887.62 41.21 88.76 13.00
318,000 2,172.83 3,621.38 2,556.27 4,260.45 2,281.47 3,802.45 2,684.08 4,473.47 2,390.11 3,983.52 2,811.90 4,686.50 2,498.75 4,164.59 2,939.71 4,899.52 41.34 89.04 13.00
319,000 2,178.11 3,630.18 2,562.48 4,270.80 2,287.01 3,811.69 2,690.60 4,484.34 2,395.92 3,993.20 2,818.73 4,697.88 2,504.82 4,174.71 2,946.85 4,911.42 41.47 89.32 13.00
320,000 2,183.39 3,638.98 2,568.69 4,281.15 2,292.56 3,820.93 2,697.12 4,495.21 2,401.73 4,002.88 2,825.56 4,709.27 2,510.89 4,184.82 2,953.99 4,923.32 41.60 89.60 13.00
321,000 2,188.67 3,647.78 2,574.90 4,291.50 2,298.10 3,830.16 2,703.65 4,506.08 2,407.53 4,012.55 2,832.39 4,720.65 2,516.96 4,194.94 2,961.14 4,935.23 41.73 89.88 13.00
322,000 2,193.94 3,656.57 2,581.11 4,301.85 2,303.64 3,839.40 2,710.17 4,516.94 2,413.34 4,022.23 2,839.22 4,732.04 2,523.04 4,205.06 2,968.28 4,947.13 41.86 90.16 13.00
323,000 2,199.22 3,665.37 2,587.32 4,312.20 2,309.18 3,848.64 2,716.69 4,527.81 2,419.14 4,031.91 2,846.05 4,743.42 2,529.11 4,215.18 2,975.42 4,959.03 41.99 90.44 13.00
324,000 2,204.50 3,674.17 2,593.53 4,322.55 2,314.73 3,857.88 2,723.21 4,538.68 2,424.95 4,041.58 2,852.88 4,754.81 2,535.18 4,225.29 2,982.56 4,970.93 42.12 90.72 13.00
325,000 2,209.78 3,682.97 2,599.74 4,332.90 2,320.27 3,867.11 2,729.73 4,549.55 2,430.76 4,051.26 2,859.71 4,766.19 2,541.25 4,235.41 2,989.70 4,982.84 42.25 91.00 13.00
326,000 2,215.06 3,691.76 2,605.95 4,343.25 2,325.81 3,876.35 2,736.25 4,560.41 2,436.56 4,060.94 2,866.55 4,777.58 2,547.32 4,245.53 2,996.84 4,994.74 42.38 91.28 14.00
327,000 2,220.34 3,700.56 2,612.16 4,353.60 2,331.35 3,885.59 2,742.77 4,571.28 2,442.37 4,070.62 2,873.38 4,788.96 2,553.39 4,255.64 3,003.98 5,006.64 42.51 91.56 14.00

Attachment E.1

Page 236 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

328,000 2,225.61 3,709.36 2,618.37 4,363.95 2,336.90 3,894.83 2,749.29 4,582.15 2,448.18 4,080.29 2,880.21 4,800.35 2,559.46 4,265.76 3,011.13 5,018.54 42.64 91.84 14.00
329,000 2,230.89 3,718.16 2,624.58 4,374.30 2,342.44 3,904.06 2,755.81 4,593.02 2,453.98 4,089.97 2,887.04 4,811.73 2,565.53 4,275.88 3,018.27 5,030.45 42.77 92.12 14.00
330,000 2,236.17 3,726.95 2,630.79 4,384.65 2,347.98 3,913.30 2,762.33 4,603.88 2,459.79 4,099.65 2,893.87 4,823.12 2,571.60 4,286.00 3,025.41 5,042.35 42.90 92.40 14.00
331,000 2,241.45 3,735.75 2,637.00 4,395.00 2,353.52 3,922.54 2,768.85 4,614.75 2,465.60 4,109.33 2,900.70 4,834.50 2,577.67 4,296.11 3,032.55 5,054.25 43.03 92.68 14.00
332,000 2,246.73 3,744.55 2,643.21 4,405.35 2,359.06 3,931.77 2,775.37 4,625.62 2,471.40 4,119.00 2,907.53 4,845.89 2,583.74 4,306.23 3,039.69 5,066.15 43.16 92.96 14.00
333,000 2,252.01 3,753.35 2,649.42 4,415.70 2,364.61 3,941.01 2,781.89 4,636.49 2,477.21 4,128.68 2,914.36 4,857.27 2,589.81 4,316.35 3,046.83 5,078.06 43.29 93.24 14.00
334,000 2,257.29 3,762.14 2,655.63 4,426.05 2,370.15 3,950.25 2,788.41 4,647.35 2,483.01 4,138.36 2,921.19 4,868.66 2,595.88 4,326.46 3,053.97 5,089.96 43.42 93.52 14.00
335,000 2,262.56 3,770.94 2,661.84 4,436.40 2,375.69 3,959.49 2,794.93 4,658.22 2,488.82 4,148.03 2,928.02 4,880.04 2,601.95 4,336.58 3,061.12 5,101.86 43.55 93.80 14.00
336,000 2,267.84 3,779.74 2,668.05 4,446.75 2,381.23 3,968.72 2,801.45 4,669.09 2,494.63 4,157.71 2,934.86 4,891.43 2,608.02 4,346.70 3,068.26 5,113.76 43.68 94.08 14.00
337,000 2,273.12 3,788.54 2,674.26 4,457.10 2,386.78 3,977.96 2,807.97 4,679.96 2,500.43 4,167.39 2,941.69 4,902.81 2,614.09 4,356.82 3,075.40 5,125.67 43.81 94.36 14.00
338,000 2,278.40 3,797.33 2,680.47 4,467.45 2,392.32 3,987.20 2,814.49 4,690.82 2,506.24 4,177.07 2,948.52 4,914.20 2,620.16 4,366.93 3,082.54 5,137.57 43.94 94.64 14.00
339,000 2,283.68 3,806.13 2,686.68 4,477.80 2,397.86 3,996.44 2,821.01 4,701.69 2,512.05 4,186.74 2,955.35 4,925.58 2,626.23 4,377.05 3,089.68 5,149.47 44.07 94.92 14.00
340,000 2,288.96 3,814.93 2,692.89 4,488.15 2,403.40 4,005.67 2,827.53 4,712.56 2,517.85 4,196.42 2,962.18 4,936.97 2,632.30 4,387.17 3,096.82 5,161.37 44.20 95.20 14.00
341,000 2,294.24 3,823.73 2,699.10 4,498.50 2,408.95 4,014.91 2,834.06 4,723.43 2,523.66 4,206.10 2,969.01 4,948.35 2,638.37 4,397.28 3,103.97 5,173.28 44.33 95.48 14.00
342,000 2,299.51 3,832.52 2,705.31 4,508.85 2,414.49 4,024.15 2,840.58 4,734.29 2,529.46 4,215.77 2,975.84 4,959.74 2,644.44 4,407.40 3,111.11 5,185.18 44.46 95.76 14.00
343,000 2,304.79 3,841.32 2,711.52 4,519.20 2,420.03 4,033.39 2,847.10 4,745.16 2,535.27 4,225.45 2,982.67 4,971.12 2,650.51 4,417.52 3,118.25 5,197.08 44.59 96.04 14.00
344,000 2,310.07 3,850.12 2,717.73 4,529.55 2,425.57 4,042.62 2,853.62 4,756.03 2,541.08 4,235.13 2,989.50 4,982.51 2,656.58 4,427.64 3,125.39 5,208.98 44.72 96.32 14.00
345,000 2,315.35 3,858.92 2,723.94 4,539.90 2,431.12 4,051.86 2,860.14 4,766.90 2,546.88 4,244.81 2,996.33 4,993.89 2,662.65 4,437.75 3,132.53 5,220.89 44.85 96.60 14.00
346,000 2,320.63 3,867.71 2,730.15 4,550.25 2,436.66 4,061.10 2,866.66 4,777.76 2,552.69 4,254.48 3,003.17 5,005.28 2,668.72 4,447.87 3,139.67 5,232.79 44.98 96.88 14.00
347,000 2,325.91 3,876.51 2,736.36 4,560.60 2,442.20 4,070.34 2,873.18 4,788.63 2,558.50 4,264.16 3,010.00 5,016.66 2,674.79 4,457.99 3,146.81 5,244.69 45.11 97.16 14.00
348,000 2,331.18 3,885.31 2,742.57 4,570.95 2,447.74 4,079.57 2,879.70 4,799.50 2,564.30 4,273.84 3,016.83 5,028.05 2,680.86 4,468.10 3,153.96 5,256.59 45.24 97.44 14.00
349,000 2,336.46 3,894.11 2,748.78 4,581.30 2,453.29 4,088.81 2,886.22 4,810.37 2,570.11 4,283.52 3,023.66 5,039.43 2,686.93 4,478.22 3,161.10 5,268.50 45.37 97.72 14.00
350,000 2,341.74 3,902.90 2,754.99 4,591.65 2,458.83 4,098.05 2,892.74 4,821.23 2,575.92 4,293.19 3,030.49 5,050.82 2,693.00 4,488.34 3,168.24 5,280.40 45.50 98.00 14.00
351,000 2,347.02 3,911.70 2,761.20 4,602.00 2,464.37 4,107.29 2,899.26 4,832.10 2,581.72 4,302.87 3,037.32 5,062.20 2,699.07 4,498.46 3,175.38 5,292.30 45.63 98.28 15.00
352,000 2,352.30 3,920.50 2,767.41 4,612.35 2,469.91 4,116.52 2,905.78 4,842.97 2,587.53 4,312.55 3,044.15 5,073.59 2,705.14 4,508.57 3,182.52 5,304.20 45.76 98.56 15.00
353,000 2,357.58 3,929.30 2,773.62 4,622.70 2,475.46 4,125.76 2,912.30 4,853.84 2,593.33 4,322.22 3,050.98 5,084.97 2,711.21 4,518.69 3,189.66 5,316.11 45.89 98.84 15.00
354,000 2,362.86 3,938.09 2,779.83 4,633.05 2,481.00 4,135.00 2,918.82 4,864.70 2,599.14 4,331.90 3,057.81 5,096.36 2,717.28 4,528.81 3,196.80 5,328.01 46.02 99.12 15.00
355,000 2,368.13 3,946.89 2,786.04 4,643.40 2,486.54 4,144.23 2,925.34 4,875.57 2,604.95 4,341.58 3,064.64 5,107.74 2,723.35 4,538.92 3,203.95 5,339.91 46.15 99.40 15.00
356,000 2,373.41 3,955.69 2,792.25 4,653.75 2,492.08 4,153.47 2,931.86 4,886.44 2,610.75 4,351.26 3,071.48 5,119.13 2,729.42 4,549.04 3,211.09 5,351.81 46.28 99.68 15.00
357,000 2,378.69 3,964.49 2,798.46 4,664.10 2,497.63 4,162.71 2,938.38 4,897.31 2,616.56 4,360.93 3,078.31 5,130.51 2,735.49 4,559.16 3,218.23 5,363.72 46.41 99.96 15.00
358,000 2,383.97 3,973.28 2,804.67 4,674.45 2,503.17 4,171.95 2,944.90 4,908.17 2,622.37 4,370.61 3,085.14 5,141.90 2,741.56 4,569.27 3,225.37 5,375.62 46.54 100.24 15.00
359,000 2,389.25 3,982.08 2,810.88 4,684.80 2,508.71 4,181.18 2,951.42 4,919.04 2,628.17 4,380.29 3,091.97 5,153.28 2,747.64 4,579.39 3,232.51 5,387.52 46.67 100.52 15.00
360,000 2,394.53 3,990.88 2,817.09 4,695.15 2,514.25 4,190.42 2,957.94 4,929.91 2,633.98 4,389.97 3,098.80 5,164.67 2,753.71 4,589.51 3,239.65 5,399.42 46.80 100.80 15.00
361,000 2,399.81 3,999.68 2,823.30 4,705.50 2,519.80 4,199.66 2,964.47 4,940.78 2,639.79 4,399.64 3,105.63 5,176.05 2,759.78 4,599.63 3,246.80 5,411.33 46.93 101.08 15.00
362,000 2,405.08 4,008.47 2,829.51 4,715.85 2,525.34 4,208.90 2,970.99 4,951.64 2,645.59 4,409.32 3,112.46 5,187.44 2,765.85 4,609.74 3,253.94 5,423.23 47.06 101.36 15.00
363,000 2,410.36 4,017.27 2,835.72 4,726.20 2,530.88 4,218.13 2,977.51 4,962.51 2,651.40 4,419.00 3,119.29 5,198.82 2,771.92 4,619.86 3,261.08 5,435.13 47.19 101.64 15.00
364,000 2,415.64 4,026.07 2,841.93 4,736.55 2,536.42 4,227.37 2,984.03 4,973.38 2,657.20 4,428.67 3,126.12 5,210.21 2,777.99 4,629.98 3,268.22 5,447.03 47.32 101.92 15.00
365,000 2,420.92 4,034.87 2,848.14 4,746.90 2,541.96 4,236.61 2,990.55 4,984.25 2,663.01 4,438.35 3,132.95 5,221.59 2,784.06 4,640.09 3,275.36 5,458.94 47.45 102.20 15.00
366,000 2,426.20 4,043.66 2,854.35 4,757.25 2,547.51 4,245.85 2,997.07 4,995.11 2,668.82 4,448.03 3,139.79 5,232.98 2,790.13 4,650.21 3,282.50 5,470.84 47.58 102.48 15.00
367,000 2,431.48 4,052.46 2,860.56 4,767.60 2,553.05 4,255.08 3,003.59 5,005.98 2,674.62 4,457.71 3,146.62 5,244.36 2,796.20 4,660.33 3,289.64 5,482.74 47.71 102.76 15.00
368,000 2,436.75 4,061.26 2,866.77 4,777.95 2,558.59 4,264.32 3,010.11 5,016.85 2,680.43 4,467.38 3,153.45 5,255.75 2,802.27 4,670.45 3,296.79 5,494.64 47.84 103.04 15.00

Attachment E.1

Page 237 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

369,000 2,442.03 4,070.06 2,872.98 4,788.30 2,564.13 4,273.56 3,016.63 5,027.72 2,686.24 4,477.06 3,160.28 5,267.13 2,808.34 4,680.56 3,303.93 5,506.55 47.97 103.32 15.00
370,000 2,447.31 4,078.85 2,879.19 4,798.65 2,569.68 4,282.80 3,023.15 5,038.58 2,692.04 4,486.74 3,167.11 5,278.52 2,814.41 4,690.68 3,311.07 5,518.45 48.10 103.60 15.00
371,000 2,452.59 4,087.65 2,885.40 4,809.00 2,575.22 4,292.03 3,029.67 5,049.45 2,697.85 4,496.42 3,173.94 5,289.90 2,820.48 4,700.80 3,318.21 5,530.35 48.23 103.88 15.00
372,000 2,457.87 4,096.45 2,891.61 4,819.35 2,580.76 4,301.27 3,036.19 5,060.32 2,703.66 4,506.09 3,180.77 5,301.29 2,826.55 4,710.91 3,325.35 5,542.25 48.36 104.16 15.00
373,000 2,463.15 4,105.25 2,897.82 4,829.70 2,586.30 4,310.51 3,042.71 5,071.19 2,709.46 4,515.77 3,187.60 5,312.67 2,832.62 4,721.03 3,332.49 5,554.16 48.49 104.44 15.00
374,000 2,468.43 4,114.04 2,904.03 4,840.05 2,591.85 4,319.74 3,049.23 5,082.05 2,715.27 4,525.45 3,194.43 5,324.06 2,838.69 4,731.15 3,339.63 5,566.06 48.62 104.72 15.00
375,000 2,473.70 4,122.84 2,910.24 4,850.40 2,597.39 4,328.98 3,055.75 5,092.92 2,721.07 4,535.12 3,201.26 5,335.44 2,844.76 4,741.27 3,346.78 5,577.96 48.75 105.00 15.00
376,000 2,478.98 4,131.64 2,916.45 4,860.75 2,602.93 4,338.22 3,062.27 5,103.79 2,726.88 4,544.80 3,208.10 5,346.83 2,850.83 4,751.38 3,353.92 5,589.86 48.88 105.28 16.00
377,000 2,484.26 4,140.44 2,922.66 4,871.10 2,608.47 4,347.46 3,068.79 5,114.66 2,732.69 4,554.48 3,214.93 5,358.21 2,856.90 4,761.50 3,361.06 5,601.77 49.01 105.56 16.00
378,000 2,489.54 4,149.23 2,928.87 4,881.45 2,614.02 4,356.69 3,075.31 5,125.52 2,738.49 4,564.16 3,221.76 5,369.60 2,862.97 4,771.62 3,368.20 5,613.67 49.14 105.84 16.00
379,000 2,494.82 4,158.03 2,935.08 4,891.80 2,619.56 4,365.93 3,081.83 5,136.39 2,744.30 4,573.83 3,228.59 5,380.98 2,869.04 4,781.73 3,375.34 5,625.57 49.27 106.12 16.00
380,000 2,500.10 4,166.83 2,941.29 4,902.15 2,625.10 4,375.17 3,088.35 5,147.26 2,750.11 4,583.51 3,235.42 5,392.37 2,875.11 4,791.85 3,382.48 5,637.47 49.40 106.40 16.00
381,000 2,505.38 4,175.63 2,947.50 4,912.50 2,630.64 4,384.41 3,094.88 5,158.13 2,755.91 4,593.19 3,242.25 5,403.75 2,881.18 4,801.97 3,389.63 5,649.38 49.53 106.68 16.00
382,000 2,510.65 4,184.42 2,953.71 4,922.85 2,636.19 4,393.64 3,101.40 5,168.99 2,761.72 4,602.86 3,249.08 5,415.14 2,887.25 4,812.09 3,396.77 5,661.28 49.66 106.96 16.00
383,000 2,515.93 4,193.22 2,959.92 4,933.20 2,641.73 4,402.88 3,107.92 5,179.86 2,767.53 4,612.54 3,255.91 5,426.52 2,893.32 4,822.20 3,403.91 5,673.18 49.79 107.24 16.00
384,000 2,521.21 4,202.02 2,966.13 4,943.55 2,647.27 4,412.12 3,114.44 5,190.73 2,773.33 4,622.22 3,262.74 5,437.91 2,899.39 4,832.32 3,411.05 5,685.08 49.92 107.52 16.00
385,000 2,526.49 4,210.82 2,972.34 4,953.90 2,652.81 4,421.36 3,120.96 5,201.60 2,779.14 4,631.90 3,269.57 5,449.29 2,905.46 4,842.44 3,418.19 5,696.99 50.05 107.80 16.00
386,000 2,531.77 4,219.61 2,978.55 4,964.25 2,658.36 4,430.59 3,127.48 5,212.46 2,784.94 4,641.57 3,276.41 5,460.68 2,911.53 4,852.55 3,425.33 5,708.89 50.18 108.08 16.00
387,000 2,537.05 4,228.41 2,984.76 4,974.60 2,663.90 4,439.83 3,134.00 5,223.33 2,790.75 4,651.25 3,283.24 5,472.06 2,917.60 4,862.67 3,432.47 5,720.79 50.31 108.36 16.00
388,000 2,542.32 4,237.21 2,990.97 4,984.95 2,669.44 4,449.07 3,140.52 5,234.20 2,796.56 4,660.93 3,290.07 5,483.45 2,923.67 4,872.79 3,439.62 5,732.69 50.44 108.64 16.00
389,000 2,547.60 4,246.01 2,997.18 4,995.30 2,674.98 4,458.31 3,147.04 5,245.07 2,802.36 4,670.61 3,296.90 5,494.83 2,929.74 4,882.91 3,446.76 5,744.60 50.57 108.92 16.00
390,000 2,552.88 4,254.80 3,003.39 5,005.65 2,680.53 4,467.54 3,153.56 5,255.93 2,808.17 4,680.28 3,303.73 5,506.22 2,935.81 4,893.02 3,453.90 5,756.50 50.70 109.20 16.00
391,000 2,558.16 4,263.60 3,009.60 5,016.00 2,686.07 4,476.78 3,160.08 5,266.80 2,813.98 4,689.96 3,310.56 5,517.60 2,941.88 4,903.14 3,461.04 5,768.40 50.83 109.48 16.00
392,000 2,563.44 4,272.40 3,015.81 5,026.35 2,691.61 4,486.02 3,166.60 5,277.67 2,819.78 4,699.64 3,317.39 5,528.99 2,947.95 4,913.26 3,468.18 5,780.30 50.96 109.76 16.00
393,000 2,568.72 4,281.20 3,022.02 5,036.70 2,697.15 4,495.25 3,173.12 5,288.54 2,825.59 4,709.31 3,324.22 5,540.37 2,954.02 4,923.37 3,475.32 5,792.21 51.09 110.04 16.00
394,000 2,574.00 4,289.99 3,028.23 5,047.05 2,702.70 4,504.49 3,179.64 5,299.40 2,831.40 4,718.99 3,331.05 5,551.76 2,960.09 4,933.49 3,482.46 5,804.11 51.22 110.32 16.00
395,000 2,579.27 4,298.79 3,034.44 5,057.40 2,708.24 4,513.73 3,186.16 5,310.27 2,837.20 4,728.67 3,337.88 5,563.14 2,966.17 4,943.61 3,489.61 5,816.01 51.35 110.60 16.00
396,000 2,584.55 4,307.59 3,040.65 5,067.75 2,713.78 4,522.97 3,192.68 5,321.14 2,843.01 4,738.35 3,344.72 5,574.53 2,972.24 4,953.73 3,496.75 5,827.91 51.48 110.88 16.00
397,000 2,589.83 4,316.39 3,046.86 5,078.10 2,719.32 4,532.20 3,199.20 5,332.01 2,848.81 4,748.02 3,351.55 5,585.91 2,978.31 4,963.84 3,503.89 5,839.82 51.61 111.16 16.00
398,000 2,595.11 4,325.18 3,053.07 5,088.45 2,724.86 4,541.44 3,205.72 5,342.87 2,854.62 4,757.70 3,358.38 5,597.30 2,984.38 4,973.96 3,511.03 5,851.72 51.74 111.44 16.00
399,000 2,600.39 4,333.98 3,059.28 5,098.80 2,730.41 4,550.68 3,212.24 5,353.74 2,860.43 4,767.38 3,365.21 5,608.68 2,990.45 4,984.08 3,518.17 5,863.62 51.87 111.72 16.00
400,000 2,605.67 4,342.78 3,065.49 5,109.15 2,735.95 4,559.92 3,218.76 5,364.61 2,866.23 4,777.06 3,372.04 5,620.07 2,996.52 4,994.19 3,525.31 5,875.52 52.00 112.00 16.00
401,000 2,610.95 4,351.58 3,071.70 5,119.50 2,741.49 4,569.15 3,225.29 5,375.48 2,872.04 4,786.73 3,378.87 5,631.45 3,002.59 5,004.31 3,532.46 5,887.43 52.13 112.28 17.00
402,000 2,616.22 4,360.37 3,077.91 5,129.85 2,747.03 4,578.39 3,231.81 5,386.34 2,877.85 4,796.41 3,385.70 5,642.84 3,008.66 5,014.43 3,539.60 5,899.33 52.26 112.56 17.00
403,000 2,621.50 4,369.17 3,084.12 5,140.20 2,752.58 4,587.63 3,238.33 5,397.21 2,883.65 4,806.09 3,392.53 5,654.22 3,014.73 5,024.55 3,546.74 5,911.23 52.39 112.84 17.00
404,000 2,626.78 4,377.97 3,090.33 5,150.55 2,758.12 4,596.87 3,244.85 5,408.08 2,889.46 4,815.76 3,399.36 5,665.61 3,020.80 5,034.66 3,553.88 5,923.13 52.52 113.12 17.00
405,000 2,632.06 4,386.77 3,096.54 5,160.90 2,763.66 4,606.10 3,251.37 5,418.95 2,895.26 4,825.44 3,406.19 5,676.99 3,026.87 5,044.78 3,561.02 5,935.04 52.65 113.40 17.00
406,000 2,637.34 4,395.56 3,102.75 5,171.25 2,769.20 4,615.34 3,257.89 5,429.81 2,901.07 4,835.12 3,413.03 5,688.38 3,032.94 5,054.90 3,568.16 5,946.94 52.78 113.68 17.00
407,000 2,642.62 4,404.36 3,108.96 5,181.60 2,774.75 4,624.58 3,264.41 5,440.68 2,906.88 4,844.80 3,419.86 5,699.76 3,039.01 5,065.01 3,575.30 5,958.84 52.91 113.96 17.00
408,000 2,647.89 4,413.16 3,115.17 5,191.95 2,780.29 4,633.82 3,270.93 5,451.55 2,912.68 4,854.47 3,426.69 5,711.15 3,045.08 5,075.13 3,582.45 5,970.74 53.04 114.24 17.00
409,000 2,653.17 4,421.96 3,121.38 5,202.30 2,785.83 4,643.05 3,277.45 5,462.42 2,918.49 4,864.15 3,433.52 5,722.53 3,051.15 5,085.25 3,589.59 5,982.65 53.17 114.52 17.00

Attachment E.1

Page 238 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

410,000 2,658.45 4,430.75 3,127.59 5,212.65 2,791.37 4,652.29 3,283.97 5,473.28 2,924.30 4,873.83 3,440.35 5,733.92 3,057.22 5,095.37 3,596.73 5,994.55 53.30 114.80 17.00
411,000 2,663.73 4,439.55 3,133.80 5,223.00 2,796.92 4,661.53 3,290.49 5,484.15 2,930.10 4,883.51 3,447.18 5,745.30 3,063.29 5,105.48 3,603.87 6,006.45 53.43 115.08 17.00
412,000 2,669.01 4,448.35 3,140.01 5,233.35 2,802.46 4,670.76 3,297.01 5,495.02 2,935.91 4,893.18 3,454.01 5,756.69 3,069.36 5,115.60 3,611.01 6,018.35 53.56 115.36 17.00
413,000 2,674.29 4,457.15 3,146.22 5,243.70 2,808.00 4,680.00 3,303.53 5,505.89 2,941.72 4,902.86 3,460.84 5,768.07 3,075.43 5,125.72 3,618.15 6,030.26 53.69 115.64 17.00
414,000 2,679.57 4,465.94 3,152.43 5,254.05 2,813.54 4,689.24 3,310.05 5,516.75 2,947.52 4,912.54 3,467.67 5,779.46 3,081.50 5,135.83 3,625.29 6,042.16 53.82 115.92 17.00
415,000 2,684.84 4,474.74 3,158.64 5,264.40 2,819.09 4,698.48 3,316.57 5,527.62 2,953.33 4,922.21 3,474.50 5,790.84 3,087.57 5,145.95 3,632.44 6,054.06 53.95 116.20 17.00
416,000 2,690.12 4,483.54 3,164.85 5,274.75 2,824.63 4,707.71 3,323.09 5,538.49 2,959.13 4,931.89 3,481.34 5,802.23 3,093.64 5,156.07 3,639.58 6,065.96 54.08 116.48 17.00
417,000 2,695.40 4,492.34 3,171.06 5,285.10 2,830.17 4,716.95 3,329.61 5,549.36 2,964.94 4,941.57 3,488.17 5,813.61 3,099.71 5,166.19 3,646.72 6,077.87 54.21 116.76 17.00
418,000 2,700.68 4,501.13 3,177.27 5,295.45 2,835.71 4,726.19 3,336.13 5,560.22 2,970.75 4,951.25 3,495.00 5,825.00 3,105.78 5,176.30 3,653.86 6,089.77 54.34 117.04 17.00
419,000 2,705.96 4,509.93 3,183.48 5,305.80 2,841.26 4,735.43 3,342.65 5,571.09 2,976.55 4,960.92 3,501.83 5,836.38 3,111.85 5,186.42 3,661.00 6,101.67 54.47 117.32 17.00
420,000 2,711.24 4,518.73 3,189.69 5,316.15 2,846.80 4,744.66 3,349.17 5,581.96 2,982.36 4,970.60 3,508.66 5,847.77 3,117.92 5,196.54 3,668.14 6,113.57 54.60 117.60 17.00
421,000 2,716.52 4,527.53 3,195.90 5,326.50 2,852.34 4,753.90 3,355.70 5,592.83 2,988.17 4,980.28 3,515.49 5,859.15 3,123.99 5,206.65 3,675.29 6,125.48 54.73 117.88 17.00
422,000 2,721.79 4,536.32 3,202.11 5,336.85 2,857.88 4,763.14 3,362.22 5,603.69 2,993.97 4,989.95 3,522.32 5,870.54 3,130.06 5,216.77 3,682.43 6,137.38 54.86 118.16 17.00
423,000 2,727.07 4,545.12 3,208.32 5,347.20 2,863.43 4,772.38 3,368.74 5,614.56 2,999.78 4,999.63 3,529.15 5,881.92 3,136.13 5,226.89 3,689.57 6,149.28 54.99 118.44 17.00
424,000 2,732.35 4,553.92 3,214.53 5,357.55 2,868.97 4,781.61 3,375.26 5,625.43 3,005.59 5,009.31 3,535.98 5,893.31 3,142.20 5,237.01 3,696.71 6,161.18 55.12 118.72 17.00
425,000 2,737.63 4,562.72 3,220.74 5,367.90 2,874.51 4,790.85 3,381.78 5,636.30 3,011.39 5,018.99 3,542.81 5,904.69 3,148.27 5,247.12 3,703.85 6,173.09 55.25 119.00 17.00
426,000 2,742.91 4,571.51 3,226.95 5,378.25 2,880.05 4,800.09 3,388.30 5,647.16 3,017.20 5,028.66 3,549.65 5,916.08 3,154.34 5,257.24 3,710.99 6,184.99 55.38 119.28 18.00
427,000 2,748.19 4,580.31 3,233.16 5,388.60 2,885.60 4,809.33 3,394.82 5,658.03 3,023.00 5,038.34 3,556.48 5,927.46 3,160.41 5,267.36 3,718.13 6,196.89 55.51 119.56 18.00
428,000 2,753.46 4,589.11 3,239.37 5,398.95 2,891.14 4,818.56 3,401.34 5,668.90 3,028.81 5,048.02 3,563.31 5,938.85 3,166.48 5,277.47 3,725.28 6,208.79 55.64 119.84 18.00
429,000 2,758.74 4,597.91 3,245.58 5,409.30 2,896.68 4,827.80 3,407.86 5,679.77 3,034.62 5,057.70 3,570.14 5,950.23 3,172.55 5,287.59 3,732.42 6,220.70 55.77 120.12 18.00
430,000 2,764.02 4,606.70 3,251.79 5,419.65 2,902.22 4,837.04 3,414.38 5,690.63 3,040.42 5,067.37 3,576.97 5,961.62 3,178.62 5,297.71 3,739.56 6,232.60 55.90 120.40 18.00
431,000 2,769.30 4,615.50 3,258.00 5,430.00 2,907.77 4,846.28 3,420.90 5,701.50 3,046.23 5,077.05 3,583.80 5,973.00 3,184.70 5,307.83 3,746.70 6,244.50 56.03 120.68 18.00
432,000 2,774.58 4,624.30 3,264.21 5,440.35 2,913.31 4,855.51 3,427.42 5,712.37 3,052.04 5,086.73 3,590.63 5,984.39 3,190.77 5,317.94 3,753.84 6,256.40 56.16 120.96 18.00
433,000 2,779.86 4,633.10 3,270.42 5,450.70 2,918.85 4,864.75 3,433.94 5,723.24 3,057.84 5,096.40 3,597.46 5,995.77 3,196.84 5,328.06 3,760.98 6,268.31 56.29 121.24 18.00
434,000 2,785.14 4,641.89 3,276.63 5,461.05 2,924.39 4,873.99 3,440.46 5,734.10 3,063.65 5,106.08 3,604.29 6,007.16 3,202.91 5,338.18 3,768.12 6,280.21 56.42 121.52 18.00
435,000 2,790.41 4,650.69 3,282.84 5,471.40 2,929.93 4,883.22 3,446.98 5,744.97 3,069.46 5,115.76 3,611.12 6,018.54 3,208.98 5,348.29 3,775.27 6,292.11 56.55 121.80 18.00
436,000 2,795.69 4,659.49 3,289.05 5,481.75 2,935.48 4,892.46 3,453.50 5,755.84 3,075.26 5,125.44 3,617.96 6,029.93 3,215.05 5,358.41 3,782.41 6,304.01 56.68 122.08 18.00
437,000 2,800.97 4,668.29 3,295.26 5,492.10 2,941.02 4,901.70 3,460.02 5,766.71 3,081.07 5,135.11 3,624.79 6,041.31 3,221.12 5,368.53 3,789.55 6,315.92 56.81 122.36 18.00
438,000 2,806.25 4,677.08 3,301.47 5,502.45 2,946.56 4,910.94 3,466.54 5,777.57 3,086.87 5,144.79 3,631.62 6,052.70 3,227.19 5,378.64 3,796.69 6,327.82 56.94 122.64 18.00
439,000 2,811.53 4,685.88 3,307.68 5,512.80 2,952.10 4,920.17 3,473.06 5,788.44 3,092.68 5,154.47 3,638.45 6,064.08 3,233.26 5,388.76 3,803.83 6,339.72 57.07 122.92 18.00
440,000 2,816.81 4,694.68 3,313.89 5,523.15 2,957.65 4,929.41 3,479.58 5,799.31 3,098.49 5,164.15 3,645.28 6,075.47 3,239.33 5,398.88 3,810.97 6,351.62 57.20 123.20 18.00
441,000 2,822.09 4,703.48 3,320.10 5,533.50 2,963.19 4,938.65 3,486.11 5,810.18 3,104.29 5,173.82 3,652.11 6,086.85 3,245.40 5,409.00 3,818.12 6,363.53 57.33 123.48 18.00
442,000 2,827.36 4,712.27 3,326.31 5,543.85 2,968.73 4,947.89 3,492.63 5,821.04 3,110.10 5,183.50 3,658.94 6,098.24 3,251.47 5,419.11 3,825.26 6,375.43 57.46 123.76 18.00
443,000 2,832.64 4,721.07 3,332.52 5,554.20 2,974.27 4,957.12 3,499.15 5,831.91 3,115.91 5,193.18 3,665.77 6,109.62 3,257.54 5,429.23 3,832.40 6,387.33 57.59 124.04 18.00
444,000 2,837.92 4,729.87 3,338.73 5,564.55 2,979.82 4,966.36 3,505.67 5,842.78 3,121.71 5,202.85 3,672.60 6,121.01 3,263.61 5,439.35 3,839.54 6,399.23 57.72 124.32 18.00
445,000 2,843.20 4,738.67 3,344.94 5,574.90 2,985.36 4,975.60 3,512.19 5,853.65 3,127.52 5,212.53 3,679.43 6,132.39 3,269.68 5,449.46 3,846.68 6,411.14 57.85 124.60 18.00
446,000 2,848.48 4,747.46 3,351.15 5,585.25 2,990.90 4,984.84 3,518.71 5,864.51 3,133.33 5,222.21 3,686.27 6,143.78 3,275.75 5,459.58 3,853.82 6,423.04 57.98 124.88 18.00
447,000 2,853.76 4,756.26 3,357.36 5,595.60 2,996.44 4,994.07 3,525.23 5,875.38 3,139.13 5,231.89 3,693.10 6,155.16 3,281.82 5,469.70 3,860.96 6,434.94 58.11 125.16 18.00
448,000 2,859.03 4,765.06 3,363.57 5,605.95 3,001.99 5,003.31 3,531.75 5,886.25 3,144.94 5,241.56 3,699.93 6,166.55 3,287.89 5,479.82 3,868.11 6,446.84 58.24 125.44 18.00
449,000 2,864.31 4,773.86 3,369.78 5,616.30 3,007.53 5,012.55 3,538.27 5,897.12 3,150.74 5,251.24 3,706.76 6,177.93 3,293.96 5,489.93 3,875.25 6,458.75 58.37 125.72 18.00
450,000 2,869.59 4,782.65 3,375.99 5,626.65 3,013.07 5,021.79 3,544.79 5,907.98 3,156.55 5,260.92 3,713.59 6,189.32 3,300.03 5,500.05 3,882.39 6,470.65 58.50 126.00 18.00

Attachment E.1

Page 239 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

451,000 2,874.87 4,791.45 3,382.20 5,637.00 3,018.61 5,031.02 3,551.31 5,918.85 3,162.36 5,270.60 3,720.42 6,200.70 3,306.10 5,510.17 3,889.53 6,482.55 58.63 126.28 19.00
452,000 2,880.15 4,800.25 3,388.41 5,647.35 3,024.16 5,040.26 3,557.83 5,929.72 3,168.16 5,280.27 3,727.25 6,212.09 3,312.17 5,520.28 3,896.67 6,494.45 58.76 126.56 19.00
453,000 2,885.43 4,809.05 3,394.62 5,657.70 3,029.70 5,049.50 3,564.35 5,940.59 3,173.97 5,289.95 3,734.08 6,223.47 3,318.24 5,530.40 3,903.81 6,506.36 58.89 126.84 19.00
454,000 2,890.71 4,817.84 3,400.83 5,668.05 3,035.24 5,058.73 3,570.87 5,951.45 3,179.78 5,299.63 3,740.91 6,234.86 3,324.31 5,540.52 3,910.95 6,518.26 59.02 127.12 19.00
455,000 2,895.98 4,826.64 3,407.04 5,678.40 3,040.78 5,067.97 3,577.39 5,962.32 3,185.58 5,309.30 3,747.74 6,246.24 3,330.38 5,550.64 3,918.10 6,530.16 59.15 127.40 19.00
456,000 2,901.26 4,835.44 3,413.25 5,688.75 3,046.33 5,077.21 3,583.91 5,973.19 3,191.39 5,318.98 3,754.58 6,257.63 3,336.45 5,560.75 3,925.24 6,542.06 59.28 127.68 19.00
457,000 2,906.54 4,844.24 3,419.46 5,699.10 3,051.87 5,086.45 3,590.43 5,984.06 3,197.20 5,328.66 3,761.41 6,269.01 3,342.52 5,570.87 3,932.38 6,553.97 59.41 127.96 19.00
458,000 2,911.82 4,853.03 3,425.67 5,709.45 3,057.41 5,095.68 3,596.95 5,994.92 3,203.00 5,338.34 3,768.24 6,280.40 3,348.59 5,580.99 3,939.52 6,565.87 59.54 128.24 19.00
459,000 2,917.10 4,861.83 3,431.88 5,719.80 3,062.95 5,104.92 3,603.47 6,005.79 3,208.81 5,348.01 3,775.07 6,291.78 3,354.66 5,591.10 3,946.66 6,577.77 59.67 128.52 19.00
460,000 2,922.38 4,870.63 3,438.09 5,730.15 3,068.50 5,114.16 3,609.99 6,016.66 3,214.61 5,357.69 3,781.90 6,303.17 3,360.73 5,601.22 3,953.80 6,589.67 59.80 128.80 19.00
461,000 2,927.66 4,879.43 3,444.30 5,740.50 3,074.04 5,123.40 3,616.52 6,027.53 3,220.42 5,367.37 3,788.73 6,314.55 3,366.80 5,611.34 3,960.95 6,601.58 59.93 129.08 19.00
462,000 2,932.93 4,888.22 3,450.51 5,750.85 3,079.58 5,132.63 3,623.04 6,038.39 3,226.23 5,377.04 3,795.56 6,325.94 3,372.87 5,621.46 3,968.09 6,613.48 60.06 129.36 19.00
463,000 2,938.21 4,897.02 3,456.72 5,761.20 3,085.12 5,141.87 3,629.56 6,049.26 3,232.03 5,386.72 3,802.39 6,337.32 3,378.94 5,631.57 3,975.23 6,625.38 60.19 129.64 19.00
464,000 2,943.49 4,905.82 3,462.93 5,771.55 3,090.67 5,151.11 3,636.08 6,060.13 3,237.84 5,396.40 3,809.22 6,348.71 3,385.01 5,641.69 3,982.37 6,637.28 60.32 129.92 19.00
465,000 2,948.77 4,914.62 3,469.14 5,781.90 3,096.21 5,160.35 3,642.60 6,071.00 3,243.65 5,406.08 3,816.05 6,360.09 3,391.08 5,651.81 3,989.51 6,649.19 60.45 130.20 19.00
466,000 2,954.05 4,923.41 3,475.35 5,792.25 3,101.75 5,169.58 3,649.12 6,081.86 3,249.45 5,415.75 3,822.89 6,371.48 3,397.15 5,661.92 3,996.65 6,661.09 60.58 130.48 19.00
467,000 2,959.33 4,932.21 3,481.56 5,802.60 3,107.29 5,178.82 3,655.64 6,092.73 3,255.26 5,425.43 3,829.72 6,382.86 3,403.22 5,672.04 4,003.79 6,672.99 60.71 130.76 19.00
468,000 2,964.60 4,941.01 3,487.77 5,812.95 3,112.83 5,188.06 3,662.16 6,103.60 3,261.06 5,435.11 3,836.55 6,394.25 3,409.30 5,682.16 4,010.94 6,684.89 60.84 131.04 19.00
469,000 2,969.88 4,949.81 3,493.98 5,823.30 3,118.38 5,197.30 3,668.68 6,114.47 3,266.87 5,444.79 3,843.38 6,405.63 3,415.37 5,692.28 4,018.08 6,696.80 60.97 131.32 19.00
470,000 2,975.16 4,958.60 3,500.19 5,833.65 3,123.92 5,206.53 3,675.20 6,125.33 3,272.68 5,454.46 3,850.21 6,417.02 3,421.44 5,702.39 4,025.22 6,708.70 61.10 131.60 19.00
471,000 2,980.44 4,967.40 3,506.40 5,844.00 3,129.46 5,215.77 3,681.72 6,136.20 3,278.48 5,464.14 3,857.04 6,428.40 3,427.51 5,712.51 4,032.36 6,720.60 61.23 131.88 19.00
472,000 2,985.72 4,976.20 3,512.61 5,854.35 3,135.00 5,225.01 3,688.24 6,147.07 3,284.29 5,473.82 3,863.87 6,439.79 3,433.58 5,722.63 4,039.50 6,732.50 61.36 132.16 19.00
473,000 2,991.00 4,985.00 3,518.82 5,864.70 3,140.55 5,234.24 3,694.76 6,157.94 3,290.10 5,483.49 3,870.70 6,451.17 3,439.65 5,732.74 4,046.64 6,744.41 61.49 132.44 19.00
474,000 2,996.28 4,993.79 3,525.03 5,875.05 3,146.09 5,243.48 3,701.28 6,168.80 3,295.90 5,493.17 3,877.53 6,462.56 3,445.72 5,742.86 4,053.78 6,756.31 61.62 132.72 19.00
475,000 3,001.55 5,002.59 3,531.24 5,885.40 3,151.63 5,252.72 3,707.80 6,179.67 3,301.71 5,502.85 3,884.36 6,473.94 3,451.79 5,752.98 4,060.93 6,768.21 61.75 133.00 19.00
476,000 3,006.83 5,011.39 3,537.45 5,895.75 3,157.17 5,261.96 3,714.32 6,190.54 3,307.52 5,512.53 3,891.20 6,485.33 3,457.86 5,763.10 4,068.07 6,780.11 61.88 133.28 20.00
477,000 3,012.11 5,020.19 3,543.66 5,906.10 3,162.72 5,271.19 3,720.84 6,201.41 3,313.32 5,522.20 3,898.03 6,496.71 3,463.93 5,773.21 4,075.21 6,792.02 62.01 133.56 20.00
478,000 3,017.39 5,028.98 3,549.87 5,916.45 3,168.26 5,280.43 3,727.36 6,212.27 3,319.13 5,531.88 3,904.86 6,508.10 3,470.00 5,783.33 4,082.35 6,803.92 62.14 133.84 20.00
479,000 3,022.67 5,037.78 3,556.08 5,926.80 3,173.80 5,289.67 3,733.88 6,223.14 3,324.93 5,541.56 3,911.69 6,519.48 3,476.07 5,793.45 4,089.49 6,815.82 62.27 134.12 20.00
480,000 3,027.95 5,046.58 3,562.29 5,937.15 3,179.34 5,298.91 3,740.40 6,234.01 3,330.74 5,551.24 3,918.52 6,530.87 3,482.14 5,803.56 4,096.63 6,827.72 62.40 134.40 20.00
481,000 3,033.23 5,055.38 3,568.50 5,947.50 3,184.89 5,308.14 3,746.93 6,244.88 3,336.55 5,560.91 3,925.35 6,542.25 3,488.21 5,813.68 4,103.78 6,839.63 62.53 134.68 20.00
482,000 3,038.50 5,064.17 3,574.71 5,957.85 3,190.43 5,317.38 3,753.45 6,255.74 3,342.35 5,570.59 3,932.18 6,553.64 3,494.28 5,823.80 4,110.92 6,851.53 62.66 134.96 20.00
483,000 3,043.78 5,072.97 3,580.92 5,968.20 3,195.97 5,326.62 3,759.97 6,266.61 3,348.16 5,580.27 3,939.01 6,565.02 3,500.35 5,833.92 4,118.06 6,863.43 62.79 135.24 20.00
484,000 3,049.06 5,081.77 3,587.13 5,978.55 3,201.51 5,335.86 3,766.49 6,277.48 3,353.97 5,589.94 3,945.84 6,576.41 3,506.42 5,844.03 4,125.20 6,875.33 62.92 135.52 20.00
485,000 3,054.34 5,090.57 3,593.34 5,988.90 3,207.06 5,345.09 3,773.01 6,288.35 3,359.77 5,599.62 3,952.67 6,587.79 3,512.49 5,854.15 4,132.34 6,887.24 63.05 135.80 20.00
486,000 3,059.62 5,099.36 3,599.55 5,999.25 3,212.60 5,354.33 3,779.53 6,299.21 3,365.58 5,609.30 3,959.51 6,599.18 3,518.56 5,864.27 4,139.48 6,899.14 63.18 136.08 20.00
487,000 3,064.90 5,108.16 3,605.76 6,009.60 3,218.14 5,363.57 3,786.05 6,310.08 3,371.39 5,618.98 3,966.34 6,610.56 3,524.63 5,874.38 4,146.62 6,911.04 63.31 136.36 20.00
488,000 3,070.17 5,116.96 3,611.97 6,019.95 3,223.68 5,372.81 3,792.57 6,320.95 3,377.19 5,628.65 3,973.17 6,621.95 3,530.70 5,884.50 4,153.77 6,922.94 63.44 136.64 20.00
489,000 3,075.45 5,125.76 3,618.18 6,030.30 3,229.23 5,382.04 3,799.09 6,331.82 3,383.00 5,638.33 3,980.00 6,633.33 3,536.77 5,894.62 4,160.91 6,934.85 63.57 136.92 20.00
490,000 3,080.73 5,134.55 3,624.39 6,040.65 3,234.77 5,391.28 3,805.61 6,342.68 3,388.80 5,648.01 3,986.83 6,644.72 3,542.84 5,904.74 4,168.05 6,946.75 63.70 137.20 20.00
491,000 3,086.01 5,143.35 3,630.60 6,051.00 3,240.31 5,400.52 3,812.13 6,353.55 3,394.61 5,657.69 3,993.66 6,656.10 3,548.91 5,914.85 4,175.19 6,958.65 63.83 137.48 20.00

Attachment E.1

Page 240 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

492,000 3,091.29 5,152.15 3,636.81 6,061.35 3,245.85 5,409.75 3,818.65 6,364.42 3,400.42 5,667.36 4,000.49 6,667.49 3,554.98 5,924.97 4,182.33 6,970.55 63.96 137.76 20.00
493,000 3,096.57 5,160.95 3,643.02 6,071.70 3,251.40 5,418.99 3,825.17 6,375.29 3,406.22 5,677.04 4,007.32 6,678.87 3,561.05 5,935.09 4,189.47 6,982.46 64.09 138.04 20.00
494,000 3,101.85 5,169.74 3,649.23 6,082.05 3,256.94 5,428.23 3,831.69 6,386.15 3,412.03 5,686.72 4,014.15 6,690.26 3,567.12 5,945.20 4,196.61 6,994.36 64.22 138.32 20.00
495,000 3,107.12 5,178.54 3,655.44 6,092.40 3,262.48 5,437.47 3,838.21 6,397.02 3,417.84 5,696.39 4,020.98 6,701.64 3,573.19 5,955.32 4,203.76 7,006.26 64.35 138.60 20.00
496,000 3,112.40 5,187.34 3,661.65 6,102.75 3,268.02 5,446.70 3,844.73 6,407.89 3,423.64 5,706.07 4,027.82 6,713.03 3,579.26 5,965.44 4,210.90 7,018.16 64.48 138.88 20.00
497,000 3,117.68 5,196.14 3,667.86 6,113.10 3,273.57 5,455.94 3,851.25 6,418.76 3,429.45 5,715.75 4,034.65 6,724.41 3,585.33 5,975.56 4,218.04 7,030.07 64.61 139.16 20.00
498,000 3,122.96 5,204.93 3,674.07 6,123.45 3,279.11 5,465.18 3,857.77 6,429.62 3,435.26 5,725.43 4,041.48 6,735.80 3,591.40 5,985.67 4,225.18 7,041.97 64.74 139.44 20.00
499,000 3,128.24 5,213.73 3,680.28 6,133.80 3,284.65 5,474.42 3,864.29 6,440.49 3,441.06 5,735.10 4,048.31 6,747.18 3,597.47 5,995.79 4,232.32 7,053.87 64.87 139.72 20.00
500,000 3,133.52 5,222.53 3,686.49 6,144.15 3,290.19 5,483.65 3,870.81 6,451.36 3,446.87 5,744.78 4,055.14 6,758.57 3,603.54 6,005.91 4,239.46 7,065.77 65.00 140.00 20.00
501,000 3,138.80 5,231.33 3,692.70 6,154.50 3,295.73 5,492.89 3,877.34 6,462.23 3,452.67 5,754.46 4,061.97 6,769.95 3,609.61 6,016.02 4,246.61 7,077.68 65.13 140.28 21.00
502,000 3,144.07 5,240.12 3,698.91 6,164.85 3,301.28 5,502.13 3,883.86 6,473.09 3,458.48 5,764.13 4,068.80 6,781.34 3,615.68 6,026.14 4,253.75 7,089.58 65.26 140.56 21.00
503,000 3,149.35 5,248.92 3,705.12 6,175.20 3,306.82 5,511.37 3,890.38 6,483.96 3,464.29 5,773.81 4,075.63 6,792.72 3,621.75 6,036.26 4,260.89 7,101.48 65.39 140.84 21.00
504,000 3,154.63 5,257.72 3,711.33 6,185.55 3,312.36 5,520.60 3,896.90 6,494.83 3,470.09 5,783.49 4,082.46 6,804.11 3,627.83 6,046.38 4,268.03 7,113.38 65.52 141.12 21.00
505,000 3,159.91 5,266.52 3,717.54 6,195.90 3,317.90 5,529.84 3,903.42 6,505.70 3,475.90 5,793.17 4,089.29 6,815.49 3,633.90 6,056.49 4,275.17 7,125.29 65.65 141.40 21.00
506,000 3,165.19 5,275.31 3,723.75 6,206.25 3,323.45 5,539.08 3,909.94 6,516.56 3,481.71 5,802.84 4,096.13 6,826.88 3,639.97 6,066.61 4,282.31 7,137.19 65.78 141.68 21.00
507,000 3,170.47 5,284.11 3,729.96 6,216.60 3,328.99 5,548.32 3,916.46 6,527.43 3,487.51 5,812.52 4,102.96 6,838.26 3,646.04 6,076.73 4,289.45 7,149.09 65.91 141.96 21.00
508,000 3,175.74 5,292.91 3,736.17 6,226.95 3,334.53 5,557.55 3,922.98 6,538.30 3,493.32 5,822.20 4,109.79 6,849.65 3,652.11 6,086.84 4,296.60 7,160.99 66.04 142.24 21.00
509,000 3,181.02 5,301.71 3,742.38 6,237.30 3,340.07 5,566.79 3,929.50 6,549.17 3,499.13 5,831.88 4,116.62 6,861.03 3,658.18 6,096.96 4,303.74 7,172.90 66.17 142.52 21.00
510,000 3,186.30 5,310.50 3,748.59 6,247.65 3,345.62 5,576.03 3,936.02 6,560.03 3,504.93 5,841.55 4,123.45 6,872.42 3,664.25 6,107.08 4,310.88 7,184.80 66.30 142.80 21.00
511,000 3,191.58 5,319.30 3,754.80 6,258.00 3,351.16 5,585.27 3,942.54 6,570.90 3,510.74 5,851.23 4,130.28 6,883.80 3,670.32 6,117.20 4,318.02 7,196.70 66.43 143.08 21.00
512,000 3,196.86 5,328.10 3,761.01 6,268.35 3,356.70 5,594.50 3,949.06 6,581.77 3,516.54 5,860.91 4,137.11 6,895.19 3,676.39 6,127.31 4,325.16 7,208.60 66.56 143.36 21.00
513,000 3,202.14 5,336.90 3,767.22 6,278.70 3,362.24 5,603.74 3,955.58 6,592.64 3,522.35 5,870.58 4,143.94 6,906.57 3,682.46 6,137.43 4,332.30 7,220.51 66.69 143.64 21.00
514,000 3,207.42 5,345.69 3,773.43 6,289.05 3,367.79 5,612.98 3,962.10 6,603.50 3,528.16 5,880.26 4,150.77 6,917.96 3,688.53 6,147.55 4,339.44 7,232.41 66.82 143.92 21.00
515,000 3,212.69 5,354.49 3,779.64 6,299.40 3,373.33 5,622.21 3,968.62 6,614.37 3,533.96 5,889.94 4,157.60 6,929.34 3,694.60 6,157.66 4,346.59 7,244.31 66.95 144.20 21.00
516,000 3,217.97 5,363.29 3,785.85 6,309.75 3,378.87 5,631.45 3,975.14 6,625.24 3,539.77 5,899.62 4,164.44 6,940.73 3,700.67 6,167.78 4,353.73 7,256.21 67.08 144.48 21.00
517,000 3,223.25 5,372.09 3,792.06 6,320.10 3,384.41 5,640.69 3,981.66 6,636.11 3,545.58 5,909.29 4,171.27 6,952.11 3,706.74 6,177.90 4,360.87 7,268.12 67.21 144.76 21.00
518,000 3,228.53 5,380.88 3,798.27 6,330.45 3,389.96 5,649.93 3,988.18 6,646.97 3,551.38 5,918.97 4,178.10 6,963.50 3,712.81 6,188.01 4,368.01 7,280.02 67.34 145.04 21.00
519,000 3,233.81 5,389.68 3,804.48 6,340.80 3,395.50 5,659.16 3,994.70 6,657.84 3,557.19 5,928.65 4,184.93 6,974.88 3,718.88 6,198.13 4,375.15 7,291.92 67.47 145.32 21.00
520,000 3,239.09 5,398.48 3,810.69 6,351.15 3,401.04 5,668.40 4,001.22 6,668.71 3,563.00 5,938.33 4,191.76 6,986.27 3,724.95 6,208.25 4,382.29 7,303.82 67.60 145.60 21.00
521,000 3,244.37 5,407.28 3,816.90 6,361.50 3,406.58 5,677.64 4,007.75 6,679.58 3,568.80 5,948.00 4,198.59 6,997.65 3,731.02 6,218.37 4,389.44 7,315.73 67.73 145.88 21.00
522,000 3,249.64 5,416.07 3,823.11 6,371.85 3,412.13 5,686.88 4,014.27 6,690.44 3,574.61 5,957.68 4,205.42 7,009.04 3,737.09 6,228.48 4,396.58 7,327.63 67.86 146.16 21.00
523,000 3,254.92 5,424.87 3,829.32 6,382.20 3,417.67 5,696.11 4,020.79 6,701.31 3,580.41 5,967.36 4,212.25 7,020.42 3,743.16 6,238.60 4,403.72 7,339.53 67.99 146.44 21.00
524,000 3,260.20 5,433.67 3,835.53 6,392.55 3,423.21 5,705.35 4,027.31 6,712.18 3,586.22 5,977.03 4,219.08 7,031.81 3,749.23 6,248.72 4,410.86 7,351.43 68.12 146.72 21.00
525,000 3,265.48 5,442.47 3,841.74 6,402.90 3,428.75 5,714.59 4,033.83 6,723.05 3,592.03 5,986.71 4,225.91 7,043.19 3,755.30 6,258.83 4,418.00 7,363.34 68.25 147.00 21.00
526,000 3,270.76 5,451.26 3,847.95 6,413.25 3,434.30 5,723.83 4,040.35 6,733.91 3,597.83 5,996.39 4,232.75 7,054.58 3,761.37 6,268.95 4,425.14 7,375.24 68.38 147.28 22.00
527,000 3,276.04 5,460.06 3,854.16 6,423.60 3,439.84 5,733.06 4,046.87 6,744.78 3,603.64 6,006.07 4,239.58 7,065.96 3,767.44 6,279.07 4,432.28 7,387.14 68.51 147.56 22.00
528,000 3,281.31 5,468.86 3,860.37 6,433.95 3,445.38 5,742.30 4,053.39 6,755.65 3,609.45 6,015.74 4,246.41 7,077.35 3,773.51 6,289.19 4,439.43 7,399.04 68.64 147.84 22.00
529,000 3,286.59 5,477.66 3,866.58 6,444.30 3,450.92 5,751.54 4,059.91 6,766.52 3,615.25 6,025.42 4,253.24 7,088.73 3,779.58 6,299.30 4,446.57 7,410.95 68.77 148.12 22.00
530,000 3,291.87 5,486.45 3,872.79 6,454.65 3,456.47 5,760.78 4,066.43 6,777.38 3,621.06 6,035.10 4,260.07 7,100.12 3,785.65 6,309.42 4,453.71 7,422.85 68.90 148.40 22.00
531,000 3,297.15 5,495.25 3,879.00 6,465.00 3,462.01 5,770.01 4,072.95 6,788.25 3,626.87 6,044.78 4,266.90 7,111.50 3,791.72 6,319.54 4,460.85 7,434.75 69.03 148.68 22.00
532,000 3,302.43 5,504.05 3,885.21 6,475.35 3,467.55 5,779.25 4,079.47 6,799.12 3,632.67 6,054.45 4,273.73 7,122.89 3,797.79 6,329.65 4,467.99 7,446.65 69.16 148.96 22.00

Attachment E.1

Page 241 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

533,000 3,307.71 5,512.85 3,891.42 6,485.70 3,473.09 5,788.49 4,085.99 6,809.99 3,638.48 6,064.13 4,280.56 7,134.27 3,803.86 6,339.77 4,475.13 7,458.56 69.29 149.24 22.00
534,000 3,312.99 5,521.64 3,897.63 6,496.05 3,478.63 5,797.72 4,092.51 6,820.85 3,644.28 6,073.81 4,287.39 7,145.66 3,809.93 6,349.89 4,482.27 7,470.46 69.42 149.52 22.00
535,000 3,318.26 5,530.44 3,903.84 6,506.40 3,484.18 5,806.96 4,099.03 6,831.72 3,650.09 6,083.48 4,294.22 7,157.04 3,816.00 6,360.01 4,489.42 7,482.36 69.55 149.80 22.00
536,000 3,323.54 5,539.24 3,910.05 6,516.75 3,489.72 5,816.20 4,105.55 6,842.59 3,655.90 6,093.16 4,301.06 7,168.43 3,822.07 6,370.12 4,496.56 7,494.26 69.68 150.08 22.00
537,000 3,328.82 5,548.04 3,916.26 6,527.10 3,495.26 5,825.44 4,112.07 6,853.46 3,661.70 6,102.84 4,307.89 7,179.81 3,828.14 6,380.24 4,503.70 7,506.17 69.81 150.36 22.00
538,000 3,334.10 5,556.83 3,922.47 6,537.45 3,500.80 5,834.67 4,118.59 6,864.32 3,667.51 6,112.52 4,314.72 7,191.20 3,834.21 6,390.36 4,510.84 7,518.07 69.94 150.64 22.00
539,000 3,339.38 5,565.63 3,928.68 6,547.80 3,506.35 5,843.91 4,125.11 6,875.19 3,673.32 6,122.19 4,321.55 7,202.58 3,840.28 6,400.47 4,517.98 7,529.97 70.07 150.92 22.00
540,000 3,344.66 5,574.43 3,934.89 6,558.15 3,511.89 5,853.15 4,131.63 6,886.06 3,679.12 6,131.87 4,328.38 7,213.97 3,846.35 6,410.59 4,525.12 7,541.87 70.20 151.20 22.00
541,000 3,349.94 5,583.23 3,941.10 6,568.50 3,517.43 5,862.39 4,138.16 6,896.93 3,684.93 6,141.55 4,335.21 7,225.35 3,852.43 6,420.71 4,532.27 7,553.78 70.33 151.48 22.00
542,000 3,355.21 5,592.02 3,947.31 6,578.85 3,522.97 5,871.62 4,144.68 6,907.79 3,690.73 6,151.22 4,342.04 7,236.74 3,858.50 6,430.83 4,539.41 7,565.68 70.46 151.76 22.00
543,000 3,360.49 5,600.82 3,953.52 6,589.20 3,528.52 5,880.86 4,151.20 6,918.66 3,696.54 6,160.90 4,348.87 7,248.12 3,864.57 6,440.94 4,546.55 7,577.58 70.59 152.04 22.00
544,000 3,365.77 5,609.62 3,959.73 6,599.55 3,534.06 5,890.10 4,157.72 6,929.53 3,702.35 6,170.58 4,355.70 7,259.51 3,870.64 6,451.06 4,553.69 7,589.48 70.72 152.32 22.00
545,000 3,371.05 5,618.42 3,965.94 6,609.90 3,539.60 5,899.34 4,164.24 6,940.40 3,708.15 6,180.26 4,362.53 7,270.89 3,876.71 6,461.18 4,560.83 7,601.39 70.85 152.60 22.00
546,000 3,376.33 5,627.21 3,972.15 6,620.25 3,545.14 5,908.57 4,170.76 6,951.26 3,713.96 6,189.93 4,369.37 7,282.28 3,882.78 6,471.29 4,567.97 7,613.29 70.98 152.88 22.00
547,000 3,381.61 5,636.01 3,978.36 6,630.60 3,550.69 5,917.81 4,177.28 6,962.13 3,719.77 6,199.61 4,376.20 7,293.66 3,888.85 6,481.41 4,575.11 7,625.19 71.11 153.16 22.00
548,000 3,386.88 5,644.81 3,984.57 6,640.95 3,556.23 5,927.05 4,183.80 6,973.00 3,725.57 6,209.29 4,383.03 7,305.05 3,894.92 6,491.53 4,582.26 7,637.09 71.24 153.44 22.00
549,000 3,392.16 5,653.61 3,990.78 6,651.30 3,561.77 5,936.29 4,190.32 6,983.87 3,731.38 6,218.97 4,389.86 7,316.43 3,900.99 6,501.65 4,589.40 7,649.00 71.37 153.72 22.00
550,000 3,397.44 5,662.40 3,996.99 6,661.65 3,567.31 5,945.52 4,196.84 6,994.73 3,737.19 6,228.64 4,396.69 7,327.82 3,907.06 6,511.76 4,596.54 7,660.90 71.50 154.00 22.00
551,000 3,402.72 5,671.20 4,003.20 6,672.00 3,572.86 5,954.76 4,203.36 7,005.60 3,742.99 6,238.32 4,403.52 7,339.20 3,913.13 6,521.88 4,603.68 7,672.80 71.63 154.28 23.00
552,000 3,408.00 5,680.00 4,009.41 6,682.35 3,578.40 5,964.00 4,209.88 7,016.47 3,748.80 6,248.00 4,410.35 7,350.59 3,919.20 6,532.00 4,610.82 7,684.70 71.76 154.56 23.00
553,000 3,413.28 5,688.80 4,015.62 6,692.70 3,583.94 5,973.23 4,216.40 7,027.34 3,754.60 6,257.67 4,417.18 7,361.97 3,925.27 6,542.11 4,617.96 7,696.61 71.89 154.84 23.00
554,000 3,418.56 5,697.59 4,021.83 6,703.05 3,589.48 5,982.47 4,222.92 7,038.20 3,760.41 6,267.35 4,424.01 7,373.36 3,931.34 6,552.23 4,625.10 7,708.51 72.02 155.12 23.00
555,000 3,423.83 5,706.39 4,028.04 6,713.40 3,595.03 5,991.71 4,229.44 7,049.07 3,766.22 6,277.03 4,430.84 7,384.74 3,937.41 6,562.35 4,632.25 7,720.41 72.15 155.40 23.00
556,000 3,429.11 5,715.19 4,034.25 6,723.75 3,600.57 6,000.95 4,235.96 7,059.94 3,772.02 6,286.71 4,437.68 7,396.13 3,943.48 6,572.47 4,639.39 7,732.31 72.28 155.68 23.00
557,000 3,434.39 5,723.99 4,040.46 6,734.10 3,606.11 6,010.18 4,242.48 7,070.81 3,777.83 6,296.38 4,444.51 7,407.51 3,949.55 6,582.58 4,646.53 7,744.22 72.41 155.96 23.00
558,000 3,439.67 5,732.78 4,046.67 6,744.45 3,611.65 6,019.42 4,249.00 7,081.67 3,783.64 6,306.06 4,451.34 7,418.90 3,955.62 6,592.70 4,653.67 7,756.12 72.54 156.24 23.00
559,000 3,444.95 5,741.58 4,052.88 6,754.80 3,617.20 6,028.66 4,255.52 7,092.54 3,789.44 6,315.74 4,458.17 7,430.28 3,961.69 6,602.82 4,660.81 7,768.02 72.67 156.52 23.00
560,000 3,450.23 5,750.38 4,059.09 6,765.15 3,622.74 6,037.90 4,262.04 7,103.41 3,795.25 6,325.42 4,465.00 7,441.67 3,967.76 6,612.93 4,667.95 7,779.92 72.80 156.80 23.00
561,000 3,455.51 5,759.18 4,065.30 6,775.50 3,628.28 6,047.13 4,268.57 7,114.28 3,801.06 6,335.09 4,471.83 7,453.05 3,973.83 6,623.05 4,675.10 7,791.83 72.93 157.08 23.00
562,000 3,460.78 5,767.97 4,071.51 6,785.85 3,633.82 6,056.37 4,275.09 7,125.14 3,806.86 6,344.77 4,478.66 7,464.44 3,979.90 6,633.17 4,682.24 7,803.73 73.06 157.36 23.00
563,000 3,466.06 5,776.77 4,077.72 6,796.20 3,639.37 6,065.61 4,281.61 7,136.01 3,812.67 6,354.45 4,485.49 7,475.82 3,985.97 6,643.29 4,689.38 7,815.63 73.19 157.64 23.00
564,000 3,471.34 5,785.57 4,083.93 6,806.55 3,644.91 6,074.85 4,288.13 7,146.88 3,818.47 6,364.12 4,492.32 7,487.21 3,992.04 6,653.40 4,696.52 7,827.53 73.32 157.92 23.00
565,000 3,476.62 5,794.37 4,090.14 6,816.90 3,650.45 6,084.08 4,294.65 7,157.75 3,824.28 6,373.80 4,499.15 7,498.59 3,998.11 6,663.52 4,703.66 7,839.44 73.45 158.20 23.00
566,000 3,481.90 5,803.16 4,096.35 6,827.25 3,655.99 6,093.32 4,301.17 7,168.61 3,830.09 6,383.48 4,505.99 7,509.98 4,004.18 6,673.64 4,710.80 7,851.34 73.58 158.48 23.00
567,000 3,487.18 5,811.96 4,102.56 6,837.60 3,661.53 6,102.56 4,307.69 7,179.48 3,835.89 6,393.16 4,512.82 7,521.36 4,010.25 6,683.75 4,717.94 7,863.24 73.71 158.76 23.00
568,000 3,492.45 5,820.76 4,108.77 6,847.95 3,667.08 6,111.80 4,314.21 7,190.35 3,841.70 6,402.83 4,519.65 7,532.75 4,016.32 6,693.87 4,725.09 7,875.14 73.84 159.04 23.00
569,000 3,497.73 5,829.56 4,114.98 6,858.30 3,672.62 6,121.03 4,320.73 7,201.22 3,847.51 6,412.51 4,526.48 7,544.13 4,022.39 6,703.99 4,732.23 7,887.05 73.97 159.32 23.00
570,000 3,503.01 5,838.35 4,121.19 6,868.65 3,678.16 6,130.27 4,327.25 7,212.08 3,853.31 6,422.19 4,533.31 7,555.52 4,028.46 6,714.11 4,739.37 7,898.95 74.10 159.60 23.00
571,000 3,508.29 5,847.15 4,127.40 6,879.00 3,683.70 6,139.51 4,333.77 7,222.95 3,859.12 6,431.87 4,540.14 7,566.90 4,034.53 6,724.22 4,746.51 7,910.85 74.23 159.88 23.00
572,000 3,513.57 5,855.95 4,133.61 6,889.35 3,689.25 6,148.74 4,340.29 7,233.82 3,864.93 6,441.54 4,546.97 7,578.29 4,040.60 6,734.34 4,753.65 7,922.75 74.36 160.16 23.00
573,000 3,518.85 5,864.75 4,139.82 6,899.70 3,694.79 6,157.98 4,346.81 7,244.69 3,870.73 6,451.22 4,553.80 7,589.67 4,046.67 6,744.46 4,760.79 7,934.66 74.49 160.44 23.00

Attachment E.1

Page 242 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

574,000 3,524.13 5,873.54 4,146.03 6,910.05 3,700.33 6,167.22 4,353.33 7,255.55 3,876.54 6,460.90 4,560.63 7,601.06 4,052.74 6,754.57 4,767.93 7,946.56 74.62 160.72 23.00
575,000 3,529.40 5,882.34 4,152.24 6,920.40 3,705.87 6,176.46 4,359.85 7,266.42 3,882.34 6,470.57 4,567.46 7,612.44 4,058.81 6,764.69 4,775.08 7,958.46 74.75 161.00 23.00
576,000 3,534.68 5,891.14 4,158.45 6,930.75 3,711.42 6,185.69 4,366.37 7,277.29 3,888.15 6,480.25 4,574.30 7,623.83 4,064.88 6,774.81 4,782.22 7,970.36 74.88 161.28 24.00
577,000 3,539.96 5,899.94 4,164.66 6,941.10 3,716.96 6,194.93 4,372.89 7,288.16 3,893.96 6,489.93 4,581.13 7,635.21 4,070.96 6,784.93 4,789.36 7,982.27 75.01 161.56 24.00
578,000 3,545.24 5,908.73 4,170.87 6,951.45 3,722.50 6,204.17 4,379.41 7,299.02 3,899.76 6,499.61 4,587.96 7,646.60 4,077.03 6,795.04 4,796.50 7,994.17 75.14 161.84 24.00
579,000 3,550.52 5,917.53 4,177.08 6,961.80 3,728.04 6,213.41 4,385.93 7,309.89 3,905.57 6,509.28 4,594.79 7,657.98 4,083.10 6,805.16 4,803.64 8,006.07 75.27 162.12 24.00
580,000 3,555.80 5,926.33 4,183.29 6,972.15 3,733.59 6,222.64 4,392.45 7,320.76 3,911.38 6,518.96 4,601.62 7,669.37 4,089.17 6,815.28 4,810.78 8,017.97 75.40 162.40 24.00
581,000 3,561.08 5,935.13 4,189.50 6,982.50 3,739.13 6,231.88 4,398.98 7,331.63 3,917.18 6,528.64 4,608.45 7,680.75 4,095.24 6,825.39 4,817.93 8,029.88 75.53 162.68 24.00
582,000 3,566.35 5,943.92 4,195.71 6,992.85 3,744.67 6,241.12 4,405.50 7,342.49 3,922.99 6,538.31 4,615.28 7,692.14 4,101.31 6,835.51 4,825.07 8,041.78 75.66 162.96 24.00
583,000 3,571.63 5,952.72 4,201.92 7,003.20 3,750.21 6,250.36 4,412.02 7,353.36 3,928.80 6,547.99 4,622.11 7,703.52 4,107.38 6,845.63 4,832.21 8,053.68 75.79 163.24 24.00
584,000 3,576.91 5,961.52 4,208.13 7,013.55 3,755.76 6,259.59 4,418.54 7,364.23 3,934.60 6,557.67 4,628.94 7,714.91 4,113.45 6,855.75 4,839.35 8,065.58 75.92 163.52 24.00
585,000 3,582.19 5,970.32 4,214.34 7,023.90 3,761.30 6,268.83 4,425.06 7,375.10 3,940.41 6,567.35 4,635.77 7,726.29 4,119.52 6,865.86 4,846.49 8,077.49 76.05 163.80 24.00
586,000 3,587.47 5,979.11 4,220.55 7,034.25 3,766.84 6,278.07 4,431.58 7,385.96 3,946.21 6,577.02 4,642.61 7,737.68 4,125.59 6,875.98 4,853.63 8,089.39 76.18 164.08 24.00
587,000 3,592.75 5,987.91 4,226.76 7,044.60 3,772.38 6,287.31 4,438.10 7,396.83 3,952.02 6,586.70 4,649.44 7,749.06 4,131.66 6,886.10 4,860.77 8,101.29 76.31 164.36 24.00
588,000 3,598.02 5,996.71 4,232.97 7,054.95 3,777.93 6,296.54 4,444.62 7,407.70 3,957.83 6,596.38 4,656.27 7,760.45 4,137.73 6,896.21 4,867.92 8,113.19 76.44 164.64 24.00
589,000 3,603.30 6,005.51 4,239.18 7,065.30 3,783.47 6,305.78 4,451.14 7,418.57 3,963.63 6,606.06 4,663.10 7,771.83 4,143.80 6,906.33 4,875.06 8,125.10 76.57 164.92 24.00
590,000 3,608.58 6,014.30 4,245.39 7,075.65 3,789.01 6,315.02 4,457.66 7,429.43 3,969.44 6,615.73 4,669.93 7,783.22 4,149.87 6,916.45 4,882.20 8,137.00 76.70 165.20 24.00
591,000 3,613.86 6,023.10 4,251.60 7,086.00 3,794.55 6,324.26 4,464.18 7,440.30 3,975.25 6,625.41 4,676.76 7,794.60 4,155.94 6,926.57 4,889.34 8,148.90 76.83 165.48 24.00
592,000 3,619.14 6,031.90 4,257.81 7,096.35 3,800.10 6,333.49 4,470.70 7,451.17 3,981.05 6,635.09 4,683.59 7,805.99 4,162.01 6,936.68 4,896.48 8,160.80 76.96 165.76 24.00
593,000 3,624.42 6,040.70 4,264.02 7,106.70 3,805.64 6,342.73 4,477.22 7,462.04 3,986.86 6,644.76 4,690.42 7,817.37 4,168.08 6,946.80 4,903.62 8,172.71 77.09 166.04 24.00
594,000 3,629.70 6,049.49 4,270.23 7,117.05 3,811.18 6,351.97 4,483.74 7,472.90 3,992.67 6,654.44 4,697.25 7,828.76 4,174.15 6,956.92 4,910.76 8,184.61 77.22 166.32 24.00
595,000 3,634.97 6,058.29 4,276.44 7,127.40 3,816.72 6,361.20 4,490.26 7,483.77 3,998.47 6,664.12 4,704.08 7,840.14 4,180.22 6,967.03 4,917.91 8,196.51 77.35 166.60 24.00
596,000 3,640.25 6,067.09 4,282.65 7,137.75 3,822.27 6,370.44 4,496.78 7,494.64 4,004.28 6,673.80 4,710.92 7,851.53 4,186.29 6,977.15 4,925.05 8,208.41 77.48 166.88 24.00
597,000 3,645.53 6,075.89 4,288.86 7,148.10 3,827.81 6,379.68 4,503.30 7,505.51 4,010.08 6,683.47 4,717.75 7,862.91 4,192.36 6,987.27 4,932.19 8,220.32 77.61 167.16 24.00
598,000 3,650.81 6,084.68 4,295.07 7,158.45 3,833.35 6,388.92 4,509.82 7,516.37 4,015.89 6,693.15 4,724.58 7,874.30 4,198.43 6,997.38 4,939.33 8,232.22 77.74 167.44 24.00
599,000 3,656.09 6,093.48 4,301.28 7,168.80 3,838.89 6,398.15 4,516.34 7,527.24 4,021.70 6,702.83 4,731.41 7,885.68 4,204.50 7,007.50 4,946.47 8,244.12 77.87 167.72 24.00
600,000 3,661.37 6,102.28 4,307.49 7,179.15 3,844.43 6,407.39 4,522.86 7,538.11 4,027.50 6,712.51 4,738.24 7,897.07 4,210.57 7,017.62 4,953.61 8,256.02 78.00 168.00 24.00
601,000 3,666.65 6,111.08 4,313.70 7,189.50 3,849.98 6,416.63 4,529.39 7,548.98 4,033.31 6,722.18 4,745.07 7,908.45 4,216.64 7,027.74 4,960.76 8,267.93 78.13 168.28 25.00
602,000 3,671.92 6,119.87 4,319.91 7,199.85 3,855.52 6,425.87 4,535.91 7,559.84 4,039.12 6,731.86 4,751.90 7,919.84 4,222.71 7,037.85 4,967.90 8,279.83 78.26 168.56 25.00
603,000 3,677.20 6,128.67 4,326.12 7,210.20 3,861.06 6,435.10 4,542.43 7,570.71 4,044.92 6,741.54 4,758.73 7,931.22 4,228.78 7,047.97 4,975.04 8,291.73 78.39 168.84 25.00
604,000 3,682.48 6,137.47 4,332.33 7,220.55 3,866.60 6,444.34 4,548.95 7,581.58 4,050.73 6,751.21 4,765.56 7,942.61 4,234.85 7,058.09 4,982.18 8,303.63 78.52 169.12 25.00
605,000 3,687.76 6,146.27 4,338.54 7,230.90 3,872.15 6,453.58 4,555.47 7,592.45 4,056.53 6,760.89 4,772.39 7,953.99 4,240.92 7,068.20 4,989.32 8,315.54 78.65 169.40 25.00
606,000 3,693.04 6,155.06 4,344.75 7,241.25 3,877.69 6,462.82 4,561.99 7,603.31 4,062.34 6,770.57 4,779.23 7,965.38 4,246.99 7,078.32 4,996.46 8,327.44 78.78 169.68 25.00
607,000 3,698.32 6,163.86 4,350.96 7,251.60 3,883.23 6,472.05 4,568.51 7,614.18 4,068.15 6,780.25 4,786.06 7,976.76 4,253.06 7,088.44 5,003.60 8,339.34 78.91 169.96 25.00
608,000 3,703.59 6,172.66 4,357.17 7,261.95 3,888.77 6,481.29 4,575.03 7,625.05 4,073.95 6,789.92 4,792.89 7,988.15 4,259.13 7,098.56 5,010.75 8,351.24 79.04 170.24 25.00
609,000 3,708.87 6,181.46 4,363.38 7,272.30 3,894.32 6,490.53 4,581.55 7,635.92 4,079.76 6,799.60 4,799.72 7,999.53 4,265.20 7,108.67 5,017.89 8,363.15 79.17 170.52 25.00
610,000 3,714.15 6,190.25 4,369.59 7,282.65 3,899.86 6,499.77 4,588.07 7,646.78 4,085.57 6,809.28 4,806.55 8,010.92 4,271.27 7,118.79 5,025.03 8,375.05 79.30 170.80 25.00
611,000 3,719.43 6,199.05 4,375.80 7,293.00 3,905.40 6,509.00 4,594.59 7,657.65 4,091.37 6,818.96 4,813.38 8,022.30 4,277.34 7,128.91 5,032.17 8,386.95 79.43 171.08 25.00
612,000 3,724.71 6,207.85 4,382.01 7,303.35 3,910.94 6,518.24 4,601.11 7,668.52 4,097.18 6,828.63 4,820.21 8,033.69 4,283.41 7,139.02 5,039.31 8,398.85 79.56 171.36 25.00
613,000 3,729.99 6,216.65 4,388.22 7,313.70 3,916.49 6,527.48 4,607.63 7,679.39 4,102.99 6,838.31 4,827.04 8,045.07 4,289.49 7,149.14 5,046.45 8,410.76 79.69 171.64 25.00
614,000 3,735.27 6,225.44 4,394.43 7,324.05 3,922.03 6,536.71 4,614.15 7,690.25 4,108.79 6,847.99 4,833.87 8,056.46 4,295.56 7,159.26 5,053.59 8,422.66 79.82 171.92 25.00

Attachment E.1

Page 243 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

615,000 3,740.54 6,234.24 4,400.64 7,334.40 3,927.57 6,545.95 4,620.67 7,701.12 4,114.60 6,857.66 4,840.70 8,067.84 4,301.63 7,169.38 5,060.74 8,434.56 79.95 172.20 25.00
616,000 3,745.82 6,243.04 4,406.85 7,344.75 3,933.11 6,555.19 4,627.19 7,711.99 4,120.40 6,867.34 4,847.54 8,079.23 4,307.70 7,179.49 5,067.88 8,446.46 80.08 172.48 25.00
617,000 3,751.10 6,251.84 4,413.06 7,355.10 3,938.66 6,564.43 4,633.71 7,722.86 4,126.21 6,877.02 4,854.37 8,090.61 4,313.77 7,189.61 5,075.02 8,458.37 80.21 172.76 25.00
618,000 3,756.38 6,260.63 4,419.27 7,365.45 3,944.20 6,573.66 4,640.23 7,733.72 4,132.02 6,886.70 4,861.20 8,102.00 4,319.84 7,199.73 5,082.16 8,470.27 80.34 173.04 25.00
619,000 3,761.66 6,269.43 4,425.48 7,375.80 3,949.74 6,582.90 4,646.75 7,744.59 4,137.82 6,896.37 4,868.03 8,113.38 4,325.91 7,209.84 5,089.30 8,482.17 80.47 173.32 25.00
620,000 3,766.94 6,278.23 4,431.69 7,386.15 3,955.28 6,592.14 4,653.27 7,755.46 4,143.63 6,906.05 4,874.86 8,124.77 4,331.98 7,219.96 5,096.44 8,494.07 80.60 173.60 25.00
621,000 3,772.22 6,287.03 4,437.90 7,396.50 3,960.83 6,601.38 4,659.80 7,766.33 4,149.44 6,915.73 4,881.69 8,136.15 4,338.05 7,230.08 5,103.59 8,505.98 80.73 173.88 25.00
622,000 3,777.49 6,295.82 4,444.11 7,406.85 3,966.37 6,610.61 4,666.32 7,777.19 4,155.24 6,925.40 4,888.52 8,147.54 4,344.12 7,240.20 5,110.73 8,517.88 80.86 174.16 25.00
623,000 3,782.77 6,304.62 4,450.32 7,417.20 3,971.91 6,619.85 4,672.84 7,788.06 4,161.05 6,935.08 4,895.35 8,158.92 4,350.19 7,250.31 5,117.87 8,529.78 80.99 174.44 25.00
624,000 3,788.05 6,313.42 4,456.53 7,427.55 3,977.45 6,629.09 4,679.36 7,798.93 4,166.86 6,944.76 4,902.18 8,170.31 4,356.26 7,260.43 5,125.01 8,541.68 81.12 174.72 25.00
625,000 3,793.33 6,322.22 4,462.74 7,437.90 3,983.00 6,638.33 4,685.88 7,809.80 4,172.66 6,954.44 4,909.01 8,181.69 4,362.33 7,270.55 5,132.15 8,553.59 81.25 175.00 25.00
626,000 3,798.61 6,331.01 4,468.95 7,448.25 3,988.54 6,647.56 4,692.40 7,820.66 4,178.47 6,964.11 4,915.85 8,193.08 4,368.40 7,280.66 5,139.29 8,565.49 81.38 175.28 26.00
627,000 3,803.89 6,339.81 4,475.16 7,458.60 3,994.08 6,656.80 4,698.92 7,831.53 4,184.27 6,973.79 4,922.68 8,204.46 4,374.47 7,290.78 5,146.43 8,577.39 81.51 175.56 26.00
628,000 3,809.16 6,348.61 4,481.37 7,468.95 3,999.62 6,666.04 4,705.44 7,842.40 4,190.08 6,983.47 4,929.51 8,215.85 4,380.54 7,300.90 5,153.58 8,589.29 81.64 175.84 26.00
629,000 3,814.44 6,357.41 4,487.58 7,479.30 4,005.17 6,675.28 4,711.96 7,853.27 4,195.89 6,993.15 4,936.34 8,227.23 4,386.61 7,311.02 5,160.72 8,601.20 81.77 176.12 26.00
630,000 3,819.72 6,366.20 4,493.79 7,489.65 4,010.71 6,684.51 4,718.48 7,864.13 4,201.69 7,002.82 4,943.17 8,238.62 4,392.68 7,321.13 5,167.86 8,613.10 81.90 176.40 26.00
631,000 3,825.00 6,375.00 4,500.00 7,500.00 4,016.25 6,693.75 4,725.00 7,875.00 4,207.50 7,012.50 4,950.00 8,250.00 4,398.75 7,331.25 5,175.00 8,625.00 82.03 176.68 26.00
632,000 3,830.28 6,383.80 4,506.21 7,510.35 4,021.79 6,702.99 4,731.52 7,885.87 4,213.31 7,022.18 4,956.83 8,261.39 4,404.82 7,341.37 5,182.14 8,636.90 82.16 176.96 26.00
633,000 3,835.56 6,392.60 4,512.42 7,520.70 4,027.33 6,712.22 4,738.04 7,896.74 4,219.11 7,031.85 4,963.66 8,272.77 4,410.89 7,351.48 5,189.28 8,648.81 82.29 177.24 26.00
634,000 3,840.84 6,401.39 4,518.63 7,531.05 4,032.88 6,721.46 4,744.56 7,907.60 4,224.92 7,041.53 4,970.49 8,284.16 4,416.96 7,361.60 5,196.42 8,660.71 82.42 177.52 26.00
635,000 3,846.11 6,410.19 4,524.84 7,541.40 4,038.42 6,730.70 4,751.08 7,918.47 4,230.73 7,051.21 4,977.32 8,295.54 4,423.03 7,371.72 5,203.57 8,672.61 82.55 177.80 26.00
636,000 3,851.39 6,418.99 4,531.05 7,551.75 4,043.96 6,739.94 4,757.60 7,929.34 4,236.53 7,060.89 4,984.16 8,306.93 4,429.10 7,381.84 5,210.71 8,684.51 82.68 178.08 26.00
637,000 3,856.67 6,427.79 4,537.26 7,562.10 4,049.50 6,749.17 4,764.12 7,940.21 4,242.34 7,070.56 4,990.99 8,318.31 4,435.17 7,391.95 5,217.85 8,696.42 82.81 178.36 26.00
638,000 3,861.95 6,436.58 4,543.47 7,572.45 4,055.05 6,758.41 4,770.64 7,951.07 4,248.14 7,080.24 4,997.82 8,329.70 4,441.24 7,402.07 5,224.99 8,708.32 82.94 178.64 26.00
639,000 3,867.23 6,445.38 4,549.68 7,582.80 4,060.59 6,767.65 4,777.16 7,961.94 4,253.95 7,089.92 5,004.65 8,341.08 4,447.31 7,412.19 5,232.13 8,720.22 83.07 178.92 26.00
640,000 3,872.51 6,454.18 4,555.89 7,593.15 4,066.13 6,776.89 4,783.68 7,972.81 4,259.76 7,099.60 5,011.48 8,352.47 4,453.38 7,422.30 5,239.27 8,732.12 83.20 179.20 26.00
641,000 3,877.79 6,462.98 4,562.10 7,603.50 4,071.67 6,786.12 4,790.21 7,983.68 4,265.56 7,109.27 5,018.31 8,363.85 4,459.45 7,432.42 5,246.42 8,744.03 83.33 179.48 26.00
642,000 3,883.06 6,471.77 4,568.31 7,613.85 4,077.22 6,795.36 4,796.73 7,994.54 4,271.37 7,118.95 5,025.14 8,375.24 4,465.52 7,442.54 5,253.56 8,755.93 83.46 179.76 26.00
643,000 3,888.34 6,480.57 4,574.52 7,624.20 4,082.76 6,804.60 4,803.25 8,005.41 4,277.18 7,128.63 5,031.97 8,386.62 4,471.59 7,452.66 5,260.70 8,767.83 83.59 180.04 26.00
644,000 3,893.62 6,489.37 4,580.73 7,634.55 4,088.30 6,813.84 4,809.77 8,016.28 4,282.98 7,138.30 5,038.80 8,398.01 4,477.66 7,462.77 5,267.84 8,779.73 83.72 180.32 26.00
645,000 3,898.90 6,498.17 4,586.94 7,644.90 4,093.84 6,823.07 4,816.29 8,027.15 4,288.79 7,147.98 5,045.63 8,409.39 4,483.73 7,472.89 5,274.98 8,791.64 83.85 180.60 26.00
646,000 3,904.18 6,506.96 4,593.15 7,655.25 4,099.39 6,832.31 4,822.81 8,038.01 4,294.60 7,157.66 5,052.47 8,420.78 4,489.80 7,483.01 5,282.12 8,803.54 83.98 180.88 26.00
647,000 3,909.46 6,515.76 4,599.36 7,665.60 4,104.93 6,841.55 4,829.33 8,048.88 4,300.40 7,167.34 5,059.30 8,432.16 4,495.87 7,493.12 5,289.26 8,815.44 84.11 181.16 26.00
648,000 3,914.73 6,524.56 4,605.57 7,675.95 4,110.47 6,850.79 4,835.85 8,059.75 4,306.21 7,177.01 5,066.13 8,443.55 4,501.94 7,503.24 5,296.41 8,827.34 84.24 181.44 26.00
649,000 3,920.01 6,533.36 4,611.78 7,686.30 4,116.01 6,860.02 4,842.37 8,070.62 4,312.01 7,186.69 5,072.96 8,454.93 4,508.01 7,513.36 5,303.55 8,839.25 84.37 181.72 26.00
650,000 3,925.29 6,542.15 4,617.99 7,696.65 4,121.56 6,869.26 4,848.89 8,081.48 4,317.82 7,196.37 5,079.79 8,466.32 4,514.09 7,523.48 5,310.69 8,851.15 84.50 182.00 26.00
651,000 3,930.57 6,550.95 4,624.20 7,707.00 4,127.10 6,878.50 4,855.41 8,092.35 4,323.63 7,206.05 5,086.62 8,477.70 4,520.16 7,533.59 5,317.83 8,863.05 84.63 182.28 27.00
652,000 3,935.85 6,559.75 4,630.41 7,717.35 4,132.64 6,887.73 4,861.93 8,103.22 4,329.43 7,215.72 5,093.45 8,489.09 4,526.23 7,543.71 5,324.97 8,874.95 84.76 182.56 27.00
653,000 3,941.13 6,568.55 4,636.62 7,727.70 4,138.18 6,896.97 4,868.45 8,114.09 4,335.24 7,225.40 5,100.28 8,500.47 4,532.30 7,553.83 5,332.11 8,886.86 84.89 182.84 27.00
654,000 3,946.41 6,577.34 4,642.83 7,738.05 4,143.73 6,906.21 4,874.97 8,124.95 4,341.05 7,235.08 5,107.11 8,511.86 4,538.37 7,563.94 5,339.25 8,898.76 85.02 183.12 27.00
655,000 3,951.68 6,586.14 4,649.04 7,748.40 4,149.27 6,915.45 4,881.49 8,135.82 4,346.85 7,244.75 5,113.94 8,523.24 4,544.44 7,574.06 5,346.40 8,910.66 85.15 183.40 27.00

Attachment E.1

Page 244 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

656,000 3,956.96 6,594.94 4,655.25 7,758.75 4,154.81 6,924.68 4,888.01 8,146.69 4,352.66 7,254.43 5,120.78 8,534.63 4,550.51 7,584.18 5,353.54 8,922.56 85.28 183.68 27.00
657,000 3,962.24 6,603.74 4,661.46 7,769.10 4,160.35 6,933.92 4,894.53 8,157.56 4,358.47 7,264.11 5,127.61 8,546.01 4,556.58 7,594.30 5,360.68 8,934.47 85.41 183.96 27.00
658,000 3,967.52 6,612.53 4,667.67 7,779.45 4,165.90 6,943.16 4,901.05 8,168.42 4,364.27 7,273.79 5,134.44 8,557.40 4,562.65 7,604.41 5,367.82 8,946.37 85.54 184.24 27.00
659,000 3,972.80 6,621.33 4,673.88 7,789.80 4,171.44 6,952.40 4,907.57 8,179.29 4,370.08 7,283.46 5,141.27 8,568.78 4,568.72 7,614.53 5,374.96 8,958.27 85.67 184.52 27.00
660,000 3,978.08 6,630.13 4,680.09 7,800.15 4,176.98 6,961.63 4,914.09 8,190.16 4,375.88 7,293.14 5,148.10 8,580.17 4,574.79 7,624.65 5,382.10 8,970.17 85.80 184.80 27.00
661,000 3,983.36 6,638.93 4,686.30 7,810.50 4,182.52 6,970.87 4,920.62 8,201.03 4,381.69 7,302.82 5,154.93 8,591.55 4,580.86 7,634.76 5,389.25 8,982.08 85.93 185.08 27.00
662,000 3,988.63 6,647.72 4,692.51 7,820.85 4,188.07 6,980.11 4,927.14 8,211.89 4,387.50 7,312.49 5,161.76 8,602.94 4,586.93 7,644.88 5,396.39 8,993.98 86.06 185.36 27.00
663,000 3,993.91 6,656.52 4,698.72 7,831.20 4,193.61 6,989.35 4,933.66 8,222.76 4,393.30 7,322.17 5,168.59 8,614.32 4,593.00 7,655.00 5,403.53 9,005.88 86.19 185.64 27.00
664,000 3,999.19 6,665.32 4,704.93 7,841.55 4,199.15 6,998.58 4,940.18 8,233.63 4,399.11 7,331.85 5,175.42 8,625.71 4,599.07 7,665.12 5,410.67 9,017.78 86.32 185.92 27.00
665,000 4,004.47 6,674.12 4,711.14 7,851.90 4,204.69 7,007.82 4,946.70 8,244.50 4,404.92 7,341.53 5,182.25 8,637.09 4,605.14 7,675.23 5,417.81 9,029.69 86.45 186.20 27.00
666,000 4,009.75 6,682.91 4,717.35 7,862.25 4,210.23 7,017.06 4,953.22 8,255.36 4,410.72 7,351.20 5,189.09 8,648.48 4,611.21 7,685.35 5,424.95 9,041.59 86.58 186.48 27.00
667,000 4,015.03 6,691.71 4,723.56 7,872.60 4,215.78 7,026.30 4,959.74 8,266.23 4,416.53 7,360.88 5,195.92 8,659.86 4,617.28 7,695.47 5,432.09 9,053.49 86.71 186.76 27.00
668,000 4,020.30 6,700.51 4,729.77 7,882.95 4,221.32 7,035.53 4,966.26 8,277.10 4,422.33 7,370.56 5,202.75 8,671.25 4,623.35 7,705.58 5,439.24 9,065.39 86.84 187.04 27.00
669,000 4,025.58 6,709.31 4,735.98 7,893.30 4,226.86 7,044.77 4,972.78 8,287.97 4,428.14 7,380.24 5,209.58 8,682.63 4,629.42 7,715.70 5,446.38 9,077.30 86.97 187.32 27.00
670,000 4,030.86 6,718.10 4,742.19 7,903.65 4,232.40 7,054.01 4,979.30 8,298.83 4,433.95 7,389.91 5,216.41 8,694.02 4,635.49 7,725.82 5,453.52 9,089.20 87.10 187.60 27.00
671,000 4,036.14 6,726.90 4,748.40 7,914.00 4,237.95 7,063.25 4,985.82 8,309.70 4,439.75 7,399.59 5,223.24 8,705.40 4,641.56 7,735.94 5,460.66 9,101.10 87.23 187.88 27.00
672,000 4,041.42 6,735.70 4,754.61 7,924.35 4,243.49 7,072.48 4,992.34 8,320.57 4,445.56 7,409.27 5,230.07 8,716.79 4,647.63 7,746.05 5,467.80 9,113.00 87.36 188.16 27.00
673,000 4,046.70 6,744.50 4,760.82 7,934.70 4,249.03 7,081.72 4,998.86 8,331.44 4,451.37 7,418.94 5,236.90 8,728.17 4,653.70 7,756.17 5,474.94 9,124.91 87.49 188.44 27.00
674,000 4,051.98 6,753.29 4,767.03 7,945.05 4,254.57 7,090.96 5,005.38 8,342.30 4,457.17 7,428.62 5,243.73 8,739.56 4,659.77 7,766.29 5,482.08 9,136.81 87.62 188.72 27.00
675,000 4,057.25 6,762.09 4,773.24 7,955.40 4,260.12 7,100.19 5,011.90 8,353.17 4,462.98 7,438.30 5,250.56 8,750.94 4,665.84 7,776.40 5,489.23 9,148.71 87.75 189.00 27.00
676,000 4,062.53 6,770.89 4,779.45 7,965.75 4,265.66 7,109.43 5,018.42 8,364.04 4,468.79 7,447.98 5,257.40 8,762.33 4,671.91 7,786.52 5,496.37 9,160.61 87.88 189.28 28.00
677,000 4,067.81 6,779.69 4,785.66 7,976.10 4,271.20 7,118.67 5,024.94 8,374.91 4,474.59 7,457.65 5,264.23 8,773.71 4,677.98 7,796.64 5,503.51 9,172.52 88.01 189.56 28.00
678,000 4,073.09 6,788.48 4,791.87 7,986.45 4,276.74 7,127.91 5,031.46 8,385.77 4,480.40 7,467.33 5,271.06 8,785.10 4,684.05 7,806.75 5,510.65 9,184.42 88.14 189.84 28.00
679,000 4,078.37 6,797.28 4,798.08 7,996.80 4,282.29 7,137.14 5,037.98 8,396.64 4,486.20 7,477.01 5,277.89 8,796.48 4,690.12 7,816.87 5,517.79 9,196.32 88.27 190.12 28.00
680,000 4,083.65 6,806.08 4,804.29 8,007.15 4,287.83 7,146.38 5,044.50 8,407.51 4,492.01 7,486.69 5,284.72 8,807.87 4,696.19 7,826.99 5,524.93 9,208.22 88.40 190.40 28.00
681,000 4,088.93 6,814.88 4,810.50 8,017.50 4,293.37 7,155.62 5,051.03 8,418.38 4,497.82 7,496.36 5,291.55 8,819.25 4,702.26 7,837.11 5,532.08 9,220.13 88.53 190.68 28.00
682,000 4,094.20 6,823.67 4,816.71 8,027.85 4,298.91 7,164.86 5,057.55 8,429.24 4,503.62 7,506.04 5,298.38 8,830.64 4,708.33 7,847.22 5,539.22 9,232.03 88.66 190.96 28.00
683,000 4,099.48 6,832.47 4,822.92 8,038.20 4,304.46 7,174.09 5,064.07 8,440.11 4,509.43 7,515.72 5,305.21 8,842.02 4,714.40 7,857.34 5,546.36 9,243.93 88.79 191.24 28.00
684,000 4,104.76 6,841.27 4,829.13 8,048.55 4,310.00 7,183.33 5,070.59 8,450.98 4,515.24 7,525.39 5,312.04 8,853.41 4,720.47 7,867.46 5,553.50 9,255.83 88.92 191.52 28.00
685,000 4,110.04 6,850.07 4,835.34 8,058.90 4,315.54 7,192.57 5,077.11 8,461.85 4,521.04 7,535.07 5,318.87 8,864.79 4,726.54 7,877.57 5,560.64 9,267.74 89.05 191.80 28.00
686,000 4,115.32 6,858.86 4,841.55 8,069.25 4,321.08 7,201.81 5,083.63 8,472.71 4,526.85 7,544.75 5,325.71 8,876.18 4,732.62 7,887.69 5,567.78 9,279.64 89.18 192.08 28.00
687,000 4,120.60 6,867.66 4,847.76 8,079.60 4,326.63 7,211.04 5,090.15 8,483.58 4,532.66 7,554.43 5,332.54 8,887.56 4,738.69 7,897.81 5,574.92 9,291.54 89.31 192.36 28.00
688,000 4,125.87 6,876.46 4,853.97 8,089.95 4,332.17 7,220.28 5,096.67 8,494.45 4,538.46 7,564.10 5,339.37 8,898.95 4,744.76 7,907.93 5,582.07 9,303.44 89.44 192.64 28.00
689,000 4,131.15 6,885.26 4,860.18 8,100.30 4,337.71 7,229.52 5,103.19 8,505.32 4,544.27 7,573.78 5,346.20 8,910.33 4,750.83 7,918.04 5,589.21 9,315.35 89.57 192.92 28.00
690,000 4,136.43 6,894.05 4,866.39 8,110.65 4,343.25 7,238.76 5,109.71 8,516.18 4,550.07 7,583.46 5,353.03 8,921.72 4,756.90 7,928.16 5,596.35 9,327.25 89.70 193.20 28.00
691,000 4,141.71 6,902.85 4,872.60 8,121.00 4,348.80 7,247.99 5,116.23 8,527.05 4,555.88 7,593.14 5,359.86 8,933.10 4,762.97 7,938.28 5,603.49 9,339.15 89.83 193.48 28.00
692,000 4,146.99 6,911.65 4,878.81 8,131.35 4,354.34 7,257.23 5,122.75 8,537.92 4,561.69 7,602.81 5,366.69 8,944.49 4,769.04 7,948.39 5,610.63 9,351.05 89.96 193.76 28.00
693,000 4,152.27 6,920.45 4,885.02 8,141.70 4,359.88 7,266.47 5,129.27 8,548.79 4,567.49 7,612.49 5,373.52 8,955.87 4,775.11 7,958.51 5,617.77 9,362.96 90.09 194.04 28.00
694,000 4,157.55 6,929.24 4,891.23 8,152.05 4,365.42 7,275.70 5,135.79 8,559.65 4,573.30 7,622.17 5,380.35 8,967.26 4,781.18 7,968.63 5,624.91 9,374.86 90.22 194.32 28.00
695,000 4,162.82 6,938.04 4,897.44 8,162.40 4,370.97 7,284.94 5,142.31 8,570.52 4,579.11 7,631.84 5,387.18 8,978.64 4,787.25 7,978.75 5,632.06 9,386.76 90.35 194.60 28.00
696,000 4,168.10 6,946.84 4,903.65 8,172.75 4,376.51 7,294.18 5,148.83 8,581.39 4,584.91 7,641.52 5,394.02 8,990.03 4,793.32 7,988.86 5,639.20 9,398.66 90.48 194.88 28.00

Attachment E.1

Page 245 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

697,000 4,173.38 6,955.64 4,909.86 8,183.10 4,382.05 7,303.42 5,155.35 8,592.26 4,590.72 7,651.20 5,400.85 9,001.41 4,799.39 7,998.98 5,646.34 9,410.57 90.61 195.16 28.00
698,000 4,178.66 6,964.43 4,916.07 8,193.45 4,387.59 7,312.65 5,161.87 8,603.12 4,596.53 7,660.88 5,407.68 9,012.80 4,805.46 8,009.10 5,653.48 9,422.47 90.74 195.44 28.00
699,000 4,183.94 6,973.23 4,922.28 8,203.80 4,393.13 7,321.89 5,168.39 8,613.99 4,602.33 7,670.55 5,414.51 9,024.18 4,811.53 8,019.21 5,660.62 9,434.37 90.87 195.72 28.00
700,000 4,189.22 6,982.03 4,928.49 8,214.15 4,398.68 7,331.13 5,174.91 8,624.86 4,608.14 7,680.23 5,421.34 9,035.57 4,817.60 8,029.33 5,667.76 9,446.27 91.00 196.00 28.00
701,000 4,194.50 6,990.83 4,934.70 8,224.50 4,404.22 7,340.37 5,181.44 8,635.73 4,613.94 7,689.91 5,428.17 9,046.95 4,823.67 8,039.45 5,674.91 9,458.18 91.13 196.28 29.00
702,000 4,199.77 6,999.62 4,940.91 8,234.85 4,409.76 7,349.60 5,187.96 8,646.59 4,619.75 7,699.58 5,435.00 9,058.34 4,829.74 8,049.57 5,682.05 9,470.08 91.26 196.56 29.00
703,000 4,205.05 7,008.42 4,947.12 8,245.20 4,415.30 7,358.84 5,194.48 8,657.46 4,625.56 7,709.26 5,441.83 9,069.72 4,835.81 8,059.68 5,689.19 9,481.98 91.39 196.84 29.00
704,000 4,210.33 7,017.22 4,953.33 8,255.55 4,420.85 7,368.08 5,201.00 8,668.33 4,631.36 7,718.94 5,448.66 9,081.11 4,841.88 8,069.80 5,696.33 9,493.88 91.52 197.12 29.00
705,000 4,215.61 7,026.02 4,959.54 8,265.90 4,426.39 7,377.32 5,207.52 8,679.20 4,637.17 7,728.62 5,455.49 9,092.49 4,847.95 8,079.92 5,703.47 9,505.79 91.65 197.40 29.00
706,000 4,220.89 7,034.81 4,965.75 8,276.25 4,431.93 7,386.55 5,214.04 8,690.06 4,642.98 7,738.29 5,462.33 9,103.88 4,854.02 8,090.03 5,710.61 9,517.69 91.78 197.68 29.00
707,000 4,226.17 7,043.61 4,971.96 8,286.60 4,437.47 7,395.79 5,220.56 8,700.93 4,648.78 7,747.97 5,469.16 9,115.26 4,860.09 8,100.15 5,717.75 9,529.59 91.91 197.96 29.00
708,000 4,231.44 7,052.41 4,978.17 8,296.95 4,443.02 7,405.03 5,227.08 8,711.80 4,654.59 7,757.65 5,475.99 9,126.65 4,866.16 8,110.27 5,724.90 9,541.49 92.04 198.24 29.00
709,000 4,236.72 7,061.21 4,984.38 8,307.30 4,448.56 7,414.27 5,233.60 8,722.67 4,660.40 7,767.33 5,482.82 9,138.03 4,872.23 8,120.39 5,732.04 9,553.40 92.17 198.52 29.00
710,000 4,242.00 7,070.00 4,990.59 8,317.65 4,454.10 7,423.50 5,240.12 8,733.53 4,666.20 7,777.00 5,489.65 9,149.42 4,878.30 8,130.50 5,739.18 9,565.30 92.30 198.80 29.00
711,000 4,247.28 7,078.80 4,996.80 8,328.00 4,459.64 7,432.74 5,246.64 8,744.40 4,672.01 7,786.68 5,496.48 9,160.80 4,884.37 8,140.62 5,746.32 9,577.20 92.43 199.08 29.00
712,000 4,252.56 7,087.60 5,003.01 8,338.35 4,465.19 7,441.98 5,253.16 8,755.27 4,677.81 7,796.36 5,503.31 9,172.19 4,890.44 8,150.74 5,753.46 9,589.10 92.56 199.36 29.00
713,000 4,257.84 7,096.40 5,009.22 8,348.70 4,470.73 7,451.21 5,259.68 8,766.14 4,683.62 7,806.03 5,510.14 9,183.57 4,896.51 8,160.85 5,760.60 9,601.01 92.69 199.64 29.00
714,000 4,263.12 7,105.19 5,015.43 8,359.05 4,476.27 7,460.45 5,266.20 8,777.00 4,689.43 7,815.71 5,516.97 9,194.96 4,902.58 8,170.97 5,767.74 9,612.91 92.82 199.92 29.00
715,000 4,268.39 7,113.99 5,021.64 8,369.40 4,481.81 7,469.69 5,272.72 8,787.87 4,695.23 7,825.39 5,523.80 9,206.34 4,908.65 8,181.09 5,774.89 9,624.81 92.95 200.20 29.00
716,000 4,273.67 7,122.79 5,027.85 8,379.75 4,487.36 7,478.93 5,279.24 8,798.74 4,701.04 7,835.07 5,530.64 9,217.73 4,914.72 8,191.21 5,782.03 9,636.71 93.08 200.48 29.00
717,000 4,278.95 7,131.59 5,034.06 8,390.10 4,492.90 7,488.16 5,285.76 8,809.61 4,706.85 7,844.74 5,537.47 9,229.11 4,920.79 8,201.32 5,789.17 9,648.62 93.21 200.76 29.00
718,000 4,284.23 7,140.38 5,040.27 8,400.45 4,498.44 7,497.40 5,292.28 8,820.47 4,712.65 7,854.42 5,544.30 9,240.50 4,926.86 8,211.44 5,796.31 9,660.52 93.34 201.04 29.00
719,000 4,289.51 7,149.18 5,046.48 8,410.80 4,503.98 7,506.64 5,298.80 8,831.34 4,718.46 7,864.10 5,551.13 9,251.88 4,932.93 8,221.56 5,803.45 9,672.42 93.47 201.32 29.00
720,000 4,294.79 7,157.98 5,052.69 8,421.15 4,509.53 7,515.88 5,305.32 8,842.21 4,724.27 7,873.78 5,557.96 9,263.27 4,939.00 8,231.67 5,810.59 9,684.32 93.60 201.60 29.00
721,000 4,300.07 7,166.78 5,058.90 8,431.50 4,515.07 7,525.11 5,311.85 8,853.08 4,730.07 7,883.45 5,564.79 9,274.65 4,945.07 8,241.79 5,817.74 9,696.23 93.73 201.88 29.00
722,000 4,305.34 7,175.57 5,065.11 8,441.85 4,520.61 7,534.35 5,318.37 8,863.94 4,735.88 7,893.13 5,571.62 9,286.04 4,951.15 8,251.91 5,824.88 9,708.13 93.86 202.16 29.00
723,000 4,310.62 7,184.37 5,071.32 8,452.20 4,526.15 7,543.59 5,324.89 8,874.81 4,741.68 7,902.81 5,578.45 9,297.42 4,957.22 8,262.03 5,832.02 9,720.03 93.99 202.44 29.00
724,000 4,315.90 7,193.17 5,077.53 8,462.55 4,531.70 7,552.83 5,331.41 8,885.68 4,747.49 7,912.48 5,585.28 9,308.81 4,963.29 8,272.14 5,839.16 9,731.93 94.12 202.72 29.00
725,000 4,321.18 7,201.97 5,083.74 8,472.90 4,537.24 7,562.06 5,337.93 8,896.55 4,753.30 7,922.16 5,592.11 9,320.19 4,969.36 8,282.26 5,846.30 9,743.84 94.25 203.00 29.00
726,000 4,326.46 7,210.76 5,089.95 8,483.25 4,542.78 7,571.30 5,344.45 8,907.41 4,759.10 7,931.84 5,598.95 9,331.58 4,975.43 8,292.38 5,853.44 9,755.74 94.38 203.28 30.00
727,000 4,331.74 7,219.56 5,096.16 8,493.60 4,548.32 7,580.54 5,350.97 8,918.28 4,764.91 7,941.52 5,605.78 9,342.96 4,981.50 8,302.49 5,860.58 9,767.64 94.51 203.56 30.00
728,000 4,337.01 7,228.36 5,102.37 8,503.95 4,553.87 7,589.78 5,357.49 8,929.15 4,770.72 7,951.19 5,612.61 9,354.35 4,987.57 8,312.61 5,867.73 9,779.54 94.64 203.84 30.00
729,000 4,342.29 7,237.16 5,108.58 8,514.30 4,559.41 7,599.01 5,364.01 8,940.02 4,776.52 7,960.87 5,619.44 9,365.73 4,993.64 8,322.73 5,874.87 9,791.45 94.77 204.12 30.00
730,000 4,347.57 7,245.95 5,114.79 8,524.65 4,564.95 7,608.25 5,370.53 8,950.88 4,782.33 7,970.55 5,626.27 9,377.12 4,999.71 8,332.85 5,882.01 9,803.35 94.90 204.40 30.00
731,000 4,352.85 7,254.75 5,121.00 8,535.00 4,570.49 7,617.49 5,377.05 8,961.75 4,788.14 7,980.23 5,633.10 9,388.50 5,005.78 8,342.96 5,889.15 9,815.25 95.03 204.68 30.00
732,000 4,358.13 7,263.55 5,127.21 8,545.35 4,576.03 7,626.72 5,383.57 8,972.62 4,793.94 7,989.90 5,639.93 9,399.89 5,011.85 8,353.08 5,896.29 9,827.15 95.16 204.96 30.00
733,000 4,363.41 7,272.35 5,133.42 8,555.70 4,581.58 7,635.96 5,390.09 8,983.49 4,799.75 7,999.58 5,646.76 9,411.27 5,017.92 8,363.20 5,903.43 9,839.06 95.29 205.24 30.00
734,000 4,368.69 7,281.14 5,139.63 8,566.05 4,587.12 7,645.20 5,396.61 8,994.35 4,805.55 8,009.26 5,653.59 9,422.66 5,023.99 8,373.31 5,910.57 9,850.96 95.42 205.52 30.00
735,000 4,373.96 7,289.94 5,145.84 8,576.40 4,592.66 7,654.44 5,403.13 9,005.22 4,811.36 8,018.93 5,660.42 9,434.04 5,030.06 8,383.43 5,917.72 9,862.86 95.55 205.80 30.00
736,000 4,379.24 7,298.74 5,152.05 8,586.75 4,598.20 7,663.67 5,409.65 9,016.09 4,817.17 8,028.61 5,667.26 9,445.43 5,036.13 8,393.55 5,924.86 9,874.76 95.68 206.08 30.00
737,000 4,384.52 7,307.54 5,158.26 8,597.10 4,603.75 7,672.91 5,416.17 9,026.96 4,822.97 8,038.29 5,674.09 9,456.81 5,042.20 8,403.67 5,932.00 9,886.67 95.81 206.36 30.00

Attachment E.1

Page 246 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

738,000 4,389.80 7,316.33 5,164.47 8,607.45 4,609.29 7,682.15 5,422.69 9,037.82 4,828.78 8,047.97 5,680.92 9,468.20 5,048.27 8,413.78 5,939.14 9,898.57 95.94 206.64 30.00
739,000 4,395.08 7,325.13 5,170.68 8,617.80 4,614.83 7,691.39 5,429.21 9,048.69 4,834.59 8,057.64 5,687.75 9,479.58 5,054.34 8,423.90 5,946.28 9,910.47 96.07 206.92 30.00
740,000 4,400.36 7,333.93 5,176.89 8,628.15 4,620.37 7,700.62 5,435.73 9,059.56 4,840.39 8,067.32 5,694.58 9,490.97 5,060.41 8,434.02 5,953.42 9,922.37 96.20 207.20 30.00
741,000 4,405.64 7,342.73 5,183.10 8,638.50 4,625.92 7,709.86 5,442.26 9,070.43 4,846.20 8,077.00 5,701.41 9,502.35 5,066.48 8,444.13 5,960.57 9,934.28 96.33 207.48 30.00
742,000 4,410.91 7,351.52 5,189.31 8,648.85 4,631.46 7,719.10 5,448.78 9,081.29 4,852.00 8,086.67 5,708.24 9,513.74 5,072.55 8,454.25 5,967.71 9,946.18 96.46 207.76 30.00
743,000 4,416.19 7,360.32 5,195.52 8,659.20 4,637.00 7,728.34 5,455.30 9,092.16 4,857.81 8,096.35 5,715.07 9,525.12 5,078.62 8,464.37 5,974.85 9,958.08 96.59 208.04 30.00
744,000 4,421.47 7,369.12 5,201.73 8,669.55 4,642.54 7,737.57 5,461.82 9,103.03 4,863.62 8,106.03 5,721.90 9,536.51 5,084.69 8,474.49 5,981.99 9,969.98 96.72 208.32 30.00
745,000 4,426.75 7,377.92 5,207.94 8,679.90 4,648.09 7,746.81 5,468.34 9,113.90 4,869.42 8,115.71 5,728.73 9,547.89 5,090.76 8,484.60 5,989.13 9,981.89 96.85 208.60 30.00
746,000 4,432.03 7,386.71 5,214.15 8,690.25 4,653.63 7,756.05 5,474.86 9,124.76 4,875.23 8,125.38 5,735.57 9,559.28 5,096.83 8,494.72 5,996.27 9,993.79 96.98 208.88 30.00
747,000 4,437.31 7,395.51 5,220.36 8,700.60 4,659.17 7,765.29 5,481.38 9,135.63 4,881.04 8,135.06 5,742.40 9,570.66 5,102.90 8,504.84 6,003.41 10,005.69 97.11 209.16 30.00
748,000 4,442.58 7,404.31 5,226.57 8,710.95 4,664.71 7,774.52 5,487.90 9,146.50 4,886.84 8,144.74 5,749.23 9,582.05 5,108.97 8,514.95 6,010.56 10,017.59 97.24 209.44 30.00
749,000 4,447.86 7,413.11 5,232.78 8,721.30 4,670.26 7,783.76 5,494.42 9,157.37 4,892.65 8,154.42 5,756.06 9,593.43 5,115.04 8,525.07 6,017.70 10,029.50 97.37 209.72 30.00
750,000 4,453.14 7,421.90 5,238.99 8,731.65 4,675.80 7,793.00 5,500.94 9,168.23 4,898.46 8,164.09 5,762.89 9,604.82 5,121.11 8,535.19 6,024.84 10,041.40 97.50 210.00 30.00
751,000 4,458.42 7,430.70 5,245.20 8,742.00 4,681.34 7,802.24 5,507.46 9,179.10 4,904.26 8,173.77 5,769.72 9,616.20 5,127.18 8,545.31 6,031.98 10,053.30 97.63 210.28 31.00
752,000 4,463.70 7,439.50 5,251.41 8,752.35 4,686.88 7,811.47 5,513.98 9,189.97 4,910.07 8,183.45 5,776.55 9,627.59 5,133.25 8,555.42 6,039.12 10,065.20 97.76 210.56 31.00
753,000 4,468.98 7,448.30 5,257.62 8,762.70 4,692.43 7,820.71 5,520.50 9,200.84 4,915.87 8,193.12 5,783.38 9,638.97 5,139.32 8,565.54 6,046.26 10,077.11 97.89 210.84 31.00
754,000 4,474.26 7,457.09 5,263.83 8,773.05 4,697.97 7,829.95 5,527.02 9,211.70 4,921.68 8,202.80 5,790.21 9,650.36 5,145.39 8,575.66 6,053.40 10,089.01 98.02 211.12 31.00
755,000 4,479.53 7,465.89 5,270.04 8,783.40 4,703.51 7,839.18 5,533.54 9,222.57 4,927.49 8,212.48 5,797.04 9,661.74 5,151.46 8,585.77 6,060.55 10,100.91 98.15 211.40 31.00
756,000 4,484.81 7,474.69 5,276.25 8,793.75 4,709.05 7,848.42 5,540.06 9,233.44 4,933.29 8,222.16 5,803.88 9,673.13 5,157.53 8,595.89 6,067.69 10,112.81 98.28 211.68 31.00
757,000 4,490.09 7,483.49 5,282.46 8,804.10 4,714.60 7,857.66 5,546.58 9,244.31 4,939.10 8,231.83 5,810.71 9,684.51 5,163.60 8,606.01 6,074.83 10,124.72 98.41 211.96 31.00
758,000 4,495.37 7,492.28 5,288.67 8,814.45 4,720.14 7,866.90 5,553.10 9,255.17 4,944.91 8,241.51 5,817.54 9,695.90 5,169.67 8,616.12 6,081.97 10,136.62 98.54 212.24 31.00
759,000 4,500.65 7,501.08 5,294.88 8,824.80 4,725.68 7,876.13 5,559.62 9,266.04 4,950.71 8,251.19 5,824.37 9,707.28 5,175.75 8,626.24 6,089.11 10,148.52 98.67 212.52 31.00
760,000 4,505.93 7,509.88 5,301.09 8,835.15 4,731.22 7,885.37 5,566.14 9,276.91 4,956.52 8,260.87 5,831.20 9,718.67 5,181.82 8,636.36 6,096.25 10,160.42 98.80 212.80 31.00
761,000 4,511.21 7,518.68 5,307.30 8,845.50 4,736.77 7,894.61 5,572.67 9,287.78 4,962.33 8,270.54 5,838.03 9,730.05 5,187.89 8,646.48 6,103.40 10,172.33 98.93 213.08 31.00
762,000 4,516.48 7,527.47 5,313.51 8,855.85 4,742.31 7,903.85 5,579.19 9,298.64 4,968.13 8,280.22 5,844.86 9,741.44 5,193.96 8,656.59 6,110.54 10,184.23 99.06 213.36 31.00
763,000 4,521.76 7,536.27 5,319.72 8,866.20 4,747.85 7,913.08 5,585.71 9,309.51 4,973.94 8,289.90 5,851.69 9,752.82 5,200.03 8,666.71 6,117.68 10,196.13 99.19 213.64 31.00
764,000 4,527.04 7,545.07 5,325.93 8,876.55 4,753.39 7,922.32 5,592.23 9,320.38 4,979.74 8,299.57 5,858.52 9,764.21 5,206.10 8,676.83 6,124.82 10,208.03 99.32 213.92 31.00
765,000 4,532.32 7,553.87 5,332.14 8,886.90 4,758.93 7,931.56 5,598.75 9,331.25 4,985.55 8,309.25 5,865.35 9,775.59 5,212.17 8,686.94 6,131.96 10,219.94 99.45 214.20 31.00
766,000 4,537.60 7,562.66 5,338.35 8,897.25 4,764.48 7,940.80 5,605.27 9,342.11 4,991.36 8,318.93 5,872.19 9,786.98 5,218.24 8,697.06 6,139.10 10,231.84 99.58 214.48 31.00
767,000 4,542.88 7,571.46 5,344.56 8,907.60 4,770.02 7,950.03 5,611.79 9,352.98 4,997.16 8,328.61 5,879.02 9,798.36 5,224.31 8,707.18 6,146.24 10,243.74 99.71 214.76 31.00
768,000 4,548.15 7,580.26 5,350.77 8,917.95 4,775.56 7,959.27 5,618.31 9,363.85 5,002.97 8,338.28 5,885.85 9,809.75 5,230.38 8,717.30 6,153.39 10,255.64 99.84 215.04 31.00
769,000 4,553.43 7,589.06 5,356.98 8,928.30 4,781.10 7,968.51 5,624.83 9,374.72 5,008.78 8,347.96 5,892.68 9,821.13 5,236.45 8,727.41 6,160.53 10,267.55 99.97 215.32 31.00
770,000 4,558.71 7,597.85 5,363.19 8,938.65 4,786.65 7,977.75 5,631.35 9,385.58 5,014.58 8,357.64 5,899.51 9,832.52 5,242.52 8,737.53 6,167.67 10,279.45 100.10 215.60 31.00
771,000 4,563.99 7,606.65 5,369.40 8,949.00 4,792.19 7,986.98 5,637.87 9,396.45 5,020.39 8,367.32 5,906.34 9,843.90 5,248.59 8,747.65 6,174.81 10,291.35 100.23 215.88 31.00
772,000 4,569.27 7,615.45 5,375.61 8,959.35 4,797.73 7,996.22 5,644.39 9,407.32 5,026.20 8,376.99 5,913.17 9,855.29 5,254.66 8,757.76 6,181.95 10,303.25 100.36 216.16 31.00
773,000 4,574.55 7,624.25 5,381.82 8,969.70 4,803.27 8,005.46 5,650.91 9,418.19 5,032.00 8,386.67 5,920.00 9,866.67 5,260.73 8,767.88 6,189.09 10,315.16 100.49 216.44 31.00
774,000 4,579.83 7,633.04 5,388.03 8,980.05 4,808.82 8,014.69 5,657.43 9,429.05 5,037.81 8,396.35 5,926.83 9,878.06 5,266.80 8,778.00 6,196.23 10,327.06 100.62 216.72 31.00
775,000 4,585.10 7,641.84 5,394.24 8,990.40 4,814.36 8,023.93 5,663.95 9,439.92 5,043.61 8,406.02 5,933.66 9,889.44 5,272.87 8,788.12 6,203.38 10,338.96 100.75 217.00 31.00
776,000 4,590.38 7,650.64 5,400.45 9,000.75 4,819.90 8,033.17 5,670.47 9,450.79 5,049.42 8,415.70 5,940.50 9,900.83 5,278.94 8,798.23 6,210.52 10,350.86 100.88 217.28 32.00
777,000 4,595.66 7,659.44 5,406.66 9,011.10 4,825.44 8,042.41 5,676.99 9,461.66 5,055.23 8,425.38 5,947.33 9,912.21 5,285.01 8,808.35 6,217.66 10,362.77 101.01 217.56 32.00
778,000 4,600.94 7,668.23 5,412.87 9,021.45 4,830.99 8,051.64 5,683.51 9,472.52 5,061.03 8,435.06 5,954.16 9,923.60 5,291.08 8,818.47 6,224.80 10,374.67 101.14 217.84 32.00

Attachment E.1

Page 247 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

779,000 4,606.22 7,677.03 5,419.08 9,031.80 4,836.53 8,060.88 5,690.03 9,483.39 5,066.84 8,444.73 5,960.99 9,934.98 5,297.15 8,828.58 6,231.94 10,386.57 101.27 218.12 32.00
780,000 4,611.50 7,685.83 5,425.29 9,042.15 4,842.07 8,070.12 5,696.55 9,494.26 5,072.65 8,454.41 5,967.82 9,946.37 5,303.22 8,838.70 6,239.08 10,398.47 101.40 218.40 32.00
781,000 4,616.78 7,694.63 5,431.50 9,052.50 4,847.61 8,079.36 5,703.08 9,505.13 5,078.45 8,464.09 5,974.65 9,957.75 5,309.29 8,848.82 6,246.23 10,410.38 101.53 218.68 32.00
782,000 4,622.05 7,703.42 5,437.71 9,062.85 4,853.16 8,088.59 5,709.60 9,515.99 5,084.26 8,473.76 5,981.48 9,969.14 5,315.36 8,858.94 6,253.37 10,422.28 101.66 218.96 32.00
783,000 4,627.33 7,712.22 5,443.92 9,073.20 4,858.70 8,097.83 5,716.12 9,526.86 5,090.07 8,483.44 5,988.31 9,980.52 5,321.43 8,869.05 6,260.51 10,434.18 101.79 219.24 32.00
784,000 4,632.61 7,721.02 5,450.13 9,083.55 4,864.24 8,107.07 5,722.64 9,537.73 5,095.87 8,493.12 5,995.14 9,991.91 5,327.50 8,879.17 6,267.65 10,446.08 101.92 219.52 32.00
785,000 4,637.89 7,729.82 5,456.34 9,093.90 4,869.78 8,116.31 5,729.16 9,548.60 5,101.68 8,502.80 6,001.97 10,003.29 5,333.57 8,889.29 6,274.79 10,457.99 102.05 219.80 32.00
786,000 4,643.17 7,738.61 5,462.55 9,104.25 4,875.33 8,125.54 5,735.68 9,559.46 5,107.48 8,512.47 6,008.81 10,014.68 5,339.64 8,899.40 6,281.93 10,469.89 102.18 220.08 32.00
787,000 4,648.45 7,747.41 5,468.76 9,114.60 4,880.87 8,134.78 5,742.20 9,570.33 5,113.29 8,522.15 6,015.64 10,026.06 5,345.71 8,909.52 6,289.07 10,481.79 102.31 220.36 32.00
788,000 4,653.72 7,756.21 5,474.97 9,124.95 4,886.41 8,144.02 5,748.72 9,581.20 5,119.10 8,531.83 6,022.47 10,037.45 5,351.78 8,919.64 6,296.22 10,493.69 102.44 220.64 32.00
789,000 4,659.00 7,765.01 5,481.18 9,135.30 4,891.95 8,153.26 5,755.24 9,592.07 5,124.90 8,541.51 6,029.30 10,048.83 5,357.85 8,929.76 6,303.36 10,505.60 102.57 220.92 32.00
790,000 4,664.28 7,773.80 5,487.39 9,145.65 4,897.50 8,162.49 5,761.76 9,602.93 5,130.71 8,551.18 6,036.13 10,060.22 5,363.92 8,939.87 6,310.50 10,517.50 102.70 221.20 32.00
791,000 4,669.56 7,782.60 5,493.60 9,156.00 4,903.04 8,171.73 5,768.28 9,613.80 5,136.52 8,560.86 6,042.96 10,071.60 5,369.99 8,949.99 6,317.64 10,529.40 102.83 221.48 32.00
792,000 4,674.84 7,791.40 5,499.81 9,166.35 4,908.58 8,180.97 5,774.80 9,624.67 5,142.32 8,570.54 6,049.79 10,082.99 5,376.06 8,960.11 6,324.78 10,541.30 102.96 221.76 32.00
793,000 4,680.12 7,800.20 5,506.02 9,176.70 4,914.12 8,190.20 5,781.32 9,635.54 5,148.13 8,580.21 6,056.62 10,094.37 5,382.13 8,970.22 6,331.92 10,553.21 103.09 222.04 32.00
794,000 4,685.40 7,808.99 5,512.23 9,187.05 4,919.67 8,199.44 5,787.84 9,646.40 5,153.94 8,589.89 6,063.45 10,105.76 5,388.20 8,980.34 6,339.06 10,565.11 103.22 222.32 32.00
795,000 4,690.67 7,817.79 5,518.44 9,197.40 4,925.21 8,208.68 5,794.36 9,657.27 5,159.74 8,599.57 6,070.28 10,117.14 5,394.28 8,990.46 6,346.21 10,577.01 103.35 222.60 32.00
796,000 4,695.95 7,826.59 5,524.65 9,207.75 4,930.75 8,217.92 5,800.88 9,668.14 5,165.55 8,609.25 6,077.12 10,128.53 5,400.35 9,000.58 6,353.35 10,588.91 103.48 222.88 32.00
797,000 4,701.23 7,835.39 5,530.86 9,218.10 4,936.29 8,227.15 5,807.40 9,679.01 5,171.35 8,618.92 6,083.95 10,139.91 5,406.42 9,010.69 6,360.49 10,600.82 103.61 223.16 32.00
798,000 4,706.51 7,844.18 5,537.07 9,228.45 4,941.83 8,236.39 5,813.92 9,689.87 5,177.16 8,628.60 6,090.78 10,151.30 5,412.49 9,020.81 6,367.63 10,612.72 103.74 223.44 32.00
799,000 4,711.79 7,852.98 5,543.28 9,238.80 4,947.38 8,245.63 5,820.44 9,700.74 5,182.97 8,638.28 6,097.61 10,162.68 5,418.56 9,030.93 6,374.77 10,624.62 103.87 223.72 32.00
800,000 4,717.07 7,861.78 5,549.49 9,249.15 4,952.92 8,254.87 5,826.96 9,711.61 5,188.77 8,647.96 6,104.44 10,174.07 5,424.63 9,041.04 6,381.91 10,636.52 104.00 224.00 32.00
801,000 4,722.35 7,870.58 5,555.70 9,259.50 4,958.46 8,264.10 5,833.49 9,722.48 5,194.58 8,657.63 6,111.27 10,185.45 5,430.70 9,051.16 6,389.06 10,648.43 104.13 224.28 33.00
802,000 4,727.62 7,879.37 5,561.91 9,269.85 4,964.00 8,273.34 5,840.01 9,733.34 5,200.39 8,667.31 6,118.10 10,196.84 5,436.77 9,061.28 6,396.20 10,660.33 104.26 224.56 33.00
803,000 4,732.90 7,888.17 5,568.12 9,280.20 4,969.55 8,282.58 5,846.53 9,744.21 5,206.19 8,676.99 6,124.93 10,208.22 5,442.84 9,071.40 6,403.34 10,672.23 104.39 224.84 33.00
804,000 4,738.18 7,896.97 5,574.33 9,290.55 4,975.09 8,291.82 5,853.05 9,755.08 5,212.00 8,686.66 6,131.76 10,219.61 5,448.91 9,081.51 6,410.48 10,684.13 104.52 225.12 33.00
805,000 4,743.46 7,905.77 5,580.54 9,300.90 4,980.63 8,301.05 5,859.57 9,765.95 5,217.80 8,696.34 6,138.59 10,230.99 5,454.98 9,091.63 6,417.62 10,696.04 104.65 225.40 33.00
806,000 4,748.74 7,914.56 5,586.75 9,311.25 4,986.17 8,310.29 5,866.09 9,776.81 5,223.61 8,706.02 6,145.43 10,242.38 5,461.05 9,101.75 6,424.76 10,707.94 104.78 225.68 33.00
807,000 4,754.02 7,923.36 5,592.96 9,321.60 4,991.72 8,319.53 5,872.61 9,787.68 5,229.42 8,715.70 6,152.26 10,253.76 5,467.12 9,111.86 6,431.90 10,719.84 104.91 225.96 33.00
808,000 4,759.29 7,932.16 5,599.17 9,331.95 4,997.26 8,328.77 5,879.13 9,798.55 5,235.22 8,725.37 6,159.09 10,265.15 5,473.19 9,121.98 6,439.05 10,731.74 105.04 226.24 33.00
809,000 4,764.57 7,940.96 5,605.38 9,342.30 5,002.80 8,338.00 5,885.65 9,809.42 5,241.03 8,735.05 6,165.92 10,276.53 5,479.26 9,132.10 6,446.19 10,743.65 105.17 226.52 33.00
810,000 4,769.85 7,949.75 5,611.59 9,352.65 5,008.34 8,347.24 5,892.17 9,820.28 5,246.84 8,744.73 6,172.75 10,287.92 5,485.33 9,142.22 6,453.33 10,755.55 105.30 226.80 33.00
811,000 4,775.13 7,958.55 5,617.80 9,363.00 5,013.89 8,356.48 5,898.69 9,831.15 5,252.64 8,754.41 6,179.58 10,299.30 5,491.40 9,152.33 6,460.47 10,767.45 105.43 227.08 33.00
812,000 4,780.41 7,967.35 5,624.01 9,373.35 5,019.43 8,365.71 5,905.21 9,842.02 5,258.45 8,764.08 6,186.41 10,310.69 5,497.47 9,162.45 6,467.61 10,779.35 105.56 227.36 33.00
813,000 4,785.69 7,976.15 5,630.22 9,383.70 5,024.97 8,374.95 5,911.73 9,852.89 5,264.26 8,773.76 6,193.24 10,322.07 5,503.54 9,172.57 6,474.75 10,791.26 105.69 227.64 33.00
814,000 4,790.97 7,984.94 5,636.43 9,394.05 5,030.51 8,384.19 5,918.25 9,863.75 5,270.06 8,783.44 6,200.07 10,333.46 5,509.61 9,182.68 6,481.89 10,803.16 105.82 227.92 33.00
815,000 4,796.24 7,993.74 5,642.64 9,404.40 5,036.06 8,393.43 5,924.77 9,874.62 5,275.87 8,793.11 6,206.90 10,344.84 5,515.68 9,192.80 6,489.04 10,815.06 105.95 228.20 33.00
816,000 4,801.52 8,002.54 5,648.85 9,414.75 5,041.60 8,402.66 5,931.29 9,885.49 5,281.67 8,802.79 6,213.74 10,356.23 5,521.75 9,202.92 6,496.18 10,826.96 106.08 228.48 33.00
817,000 4,806.80 8,011.34 5,655.06 9,425.10 5,047.14 8,411.90 5,937.81 9,896.36 5,287.48 8,812.47 6,220.57 10,367.61 5,527.82 9,213.04 6,503.32 10,838.87 106.21 228.76 33.00
818,000 4,812.08 8,020.13 5,661.27 9,435.45 5,052.68 8,421.14 5,944.33 9,907.22 5,293.29 8,822.15 6,227.40 10,379.00 5,533.89 9,223.15 6,510.46 10,850.77 106.34 229.04 33.00
819,000 4,817.36 8,028.93 5,667.48 9,445.80 5,058.23 8,430.38 5,950.85 9,918.09 5,299.09 8,831.82 6,234.23 10,390.38 5,539.96 9,233.27 6,517.60 10,862.67 106.47 229.32 33.00

Attachment E.1

Page 248 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

820,000 4,822.64 8,037.73 5,673.69 9,456.15 5,063.77 8,439.61 5,957.37 9,928.96 5,304.90 8,841.50 6,241.06 10,401.77 5,546.03 9,243.39 6,524.74 10,874.57 106.60 229.60 33.00
821,000 4,827.92 8,046.53 5,679.90 9,466.50 5,069.31 8,448.85 5,963.90 9,939.83 5,310.71 8,851.18 6,247.89 10,413.15 5,552.10 9,253.50 6,531.89 10,886.48 106.73 229.88 33.00
822,000 4,833.19 8,055.32 5,686.11 9,476.85 5,074.85 8,458.09 5,970.42 9,950.69 5,316.51 8,860.85 6,254.72 10,424.54 5,558.17 9,263.62 6,539.03 10,898.38 106.86 230.16 33.00
823,000 4,838.47 8,064.12 5,692.32 9,487.20 5,080.40 8,467.33 5,976.94 9,961.56 5,322.32 8,870.53 6,261.55 10,435.92 5,564.24 9,273.74 6,546.17 10,910.28 106.99 230.44 33.00
824,000 4,843.75 8,072.92 5,698.53 9,497.55 5,085.94 8,476.56 5,983.46 9,972.43 5,328.13 8,880.21 6,268.38 10,447.31 5,570.31 9,283.86 6,553.31 10,922.18 107.12 230.72 33.00
825,000 4,849.03 8,081.72 5,704.74 9,507.90 5,091.48 8,485.80 5,989.98 9,983.30 5,333.93 8,889.89 6,275.21 10,458.69 5,576.38 9,293.97 6,560.45 10,934.09 107.25 231.00 33.00
826,000 4,854.31 8,090.51 5,710.95 9,518.25 5,097.02 8,495.04 5,996.50 9,994.16 5,339.74 8,899.56 6,282.05 10,470.08 5,582.45 9,304.09 6,567.59 10,945.99 107.38 231.28 34.00
827,000 4,859.59 8,099.31 5,717.16 9,528.60 5,102.57 8,504.28 6,003.02 10,005.03 5,345.54 8,909.24 6,288.88 10,481.46 5,588.52 9,314.21 6,574.73 10,957.89 107.51 231.56 34.00
828,000 4,864.86 8,108.11 5,723.37 9,538.95 5,108.11 8,513.51 6,009.54 10,015.90 5,351.35 8,918.92 6,295.71 10,492.85 5,594.59 9,324.32 6,581.88 10,969.79 107.64 231.84 34.00
829,000 4,870.14 8,116.91 5,729.58 9,549.30 5,113.65 8,522.75 6,016.06 10,026.77 5,357.16 8,928.60 6,302.54 10,504.23 5,600.66 9,334.44 6,589.02 10,981.70 107.77 232.12 34.00
830,000 4,875.42 8,125.70 5,735.79 9,559.65 5,119.19 8,531.99 6,022.58 10,037.63 5,362.96 8,938.27 6,309.37 10,515.62 5,606.73 9,344.56 6,596.16 10,993.60 107.90 232.40 34.00
831,000 4,880.70 8,134.50 5,742.00 9,570.00 5,124.74 8,541.23 6,029.10 10,048.50 5,368.77 8,947.95 6,316.20 10,527.00 5,612.81 9,354.68 6,603.30 11,005.50 108.03 232.68 34.00
832,000 4,885.98 8,143.30 5,748.21 9,580.35 5,130.28 8,550.46 6,035.62 10,059.37 5,374.58 8,957.63 6,323.03 10,538.39 5,618.88 9,364.79 6,610.44 11,017.40 108.16 232.96 34.00
833,000 4,891.26 8,152.10 5,754.42 9,590.70 5,135.82 8,559.70 6,042.14 10,070.24 5,380.38 8,967.30 6,329.86 10,549.77 5,624.95 9,374.91 6,617.58 11,029.31 108.29 233.24 34.00
834,000 4,896.54 8,160.89 5,760.63 9,601.05 5,141.36 8,568.94 6,048.66 10,081.10 5,386.19 8,976.98 6,336.69 10,561.16 5,631.02 9,385.03 6,624.72 11,041.21 108.42 233.52 34.00
835,000 4,901.81 8,169.69 5,766.84 9,611.40 5,146.90 8,578.17 6,055.18 10,091.97 5,392.00 8,986.66 6,343.52 10,572.54 5,637.09 9,395.14 6,631.87 11,053.11 108.55 233.80 34.00
836,000 4,907.09 8,178.49 5,773.05 9,621.75 5,152.45 8,587.41 6,061.70 10,102.84 5,397.80 8,996.34 6,350.36 10,583.93 5,643.16 9,405.26 6,639.01 11,065.01 108.68 234.08 34.00
837,000 4,912.37 8,187.29 5,779.26 9,632.10 5,157.99 8,596.65 6,068.22 10,113.71 5,403.61 9,006.01 6,357.19 10,595.31 5,649.23 9,415.38 6,646.15 11,076.92 108.81 234.36 34.00
838,000 4,917.65 8,196.08 5,785.47 9,642.45 5,163.53 8,605.89 6,074.74 10,124.57 5,409.41 9,015.69 6,364.02 10,606.70 5,655.30 9,425.49 6,653.29 11,088.82 108.94 234.64 34.00
839,000 4,922.93 8,204.88 5,791.68 9,652.80 5,169.07 8,615.12 6,081.26 10,135.44 5,415.22 9,025.37 6,370.85 10,618.08 5,661.37 9,435.61 6,660.43 11,100.72 109.07 234.92 34.00
840,000 4,928.21 8,213.68 5,797.89 9,663.15 5,174.62 8,624.36 6,087.78 10,146.31 5,421.03 9,035.05 6,377.68 10,629.47 5,667.44 9,445.73 6,667.57 11,112.62 109.20 235.20 34.00
841,000 4,933.49 8,222.48 5,804.10 9,673.50 5,180.16 8,633.60 6,094.31 10,157.18 5,426.83 9,044.72 6,384.51 10,640.85 5,673.51 9,455.85 6,674.72 11,124.53 109.33 235.48 34.00
842,000 4,938.76 8,231.27 5,810.31 9,683.85 5,185.70 8,642.84 6,100.83 10,168.04 5,432.64 9,054.40 6,391.34 10,652.24 5,679.58 9,465.96 6,681.86 11,136.43 109.46 235.76 34.00
843,000 4,944.04 8,240.07 5,816.52 9,694.20 5,191.24 8,652.07 6,107.35 10,178.91 5,438.45 9,064.08 6,398.17 10,663.62 5,685.65 9,476.08 6,689.00 11,148.33 109.59 236.04 34.00
844,000 4,949.32 8,248.87 5,822.73 9,704.55 5,196.79 8,661.31 6,113.87 10,189.78 5,444.25 9,073.75 6,405.00 10,675.01 5,691.72 9,486.20 6,696.14 11,160.23 109.72 236.32 34.00
845,000 4,954.60 8,257.67 5,828.94 9,714.90 5,202.33 8,670.55 6,120.39 10,200.65 5,450.06 9,083.43 6,411.83 10,686.39 5,697.79 9,496.31 6,703.28 11,172.14 109.85 236.60 34.00
846,000 4,959.88 8,266.46 5,835.15 9,725.25 5,207.87 8,679.79 6,126.91 10,211.51 5,455.87 9,093.11 6,418.67 10,697.78 5,703.86 9,506.43 6,710.42 11,184.04 109.98 236.88 34.00
847,000 4,965.16 8,275.26 5,841.36 9,735.60 5,213.41 8,689.02 6,133.43 10,222.38 5,461.67 9,102.79 6,425.50 10,709.16 5,709.93 9,516.55 6,717.56 11,195.94 110.11 237.16 34.00
848,000 4,970.43 8,284.06 5,847.57 9,745.95 5,218.96 8,698.26 6,139.95 10,233.25 5,467.48 9,112.46 6,432.33 10,720.55 5,716.00 9,526.67 6,724.71 11,207.84 110.24 237.44 34.00
849,000 4,975.71 8,292.86 5,853.78 9,756.30 5,224.50 8,707.50 6,146.47 10,244.12 5,473.28 9,122.14 6,439.16 10,731.93 5,722.07 9,536.78 6,731.85 11,219.75 110.37 237.72 34.00
850,000 4,980.99 8,301.65 5,859.99 9,766.65 5,230.04 8,716.74 6,152.99 10,254.98 5,479.09 9,131.82 6,445.99 10,743.32 5,728.14 9,546.90 6,738.99 11,231.65 110.50 238.00 34.00
851,000 4,986.27 8,310.45 5,866.20 9,777.00 5,235.58 8,725.97 6,159.51 10,265.85 5,484.90 9,141.50 6,452.82 10,754.70 5,734.21 9,557.02 6,746.13 11,243.55 110.63 238.28 35.00
852,000 4,991.55 8,319.25 5,872.41 9,787.35 5,241.13 8,735.21 6,166.03 10,276.72 5,490.70 9,151.17 6,459.65 10,766.09 5,740.28 9,567.13 6,753.27 11,255.45 110.76 238.56 35.00
853,000 4,996.83 8,328.05 5,878.62 9,797.70 5,246.67 8,744.45 6,172.55 10,287.59 5,496.51 9,160.85 6,466.48 10,777.47 5,746.35 9,577.25 6,760.41 11,267.36 110.89 238.84 35.00
854,000 5,002.11 8,336.84 5,884.83 9,808.05 5,252.21 8,753.68 6,179.07 10,298.45 5,502.32 9,170.53 6,473.31 10,788.86 5,752.42 9,587.37 6,767.55 11,279.26 111.02 239.12 35.00
855,000 5,007.38 8,345.64 5,891.04 9,818.40 5,257.75 8,762.92 6,185.59 10,309.32 5,508.12 9,180.20 6,480.14 10,800.24 5,758.49 9,597.49 6,774.70 11,291.16 111.15 239.40 35.00
856,000 5,012.66 8,354.44 5,897.25 9,828.75 5,263.30 8,772.16 6,192.11 10,320.19 5,513.93 9,189.88 6,486.98 10,811.63 5,764.56 9,607.60 6,781.84 11,303.06 111.28 239.68 35.00
857,000 5,017.94 8,363.24 5,903.46 9,839.10 5,268.84 8,781.40 6,198.63 10,331.06 5,519.74 9,199.56 6,493.81 10,823.01 5,770.63 9,617.72 6,788.98 11,314.97 111.41 239.96 35.00
858,000 5,023.22 8,372.03 5,909.67 9,849.45 5,274.38 8,790.63 6,205.15 10,341.92 5,525.54 9,209.24 6,500.64 10,834.40 5,776.70 9,627.84 6,796.12 11,326.87 111.54 240.24 35.00
859,000 5,028.50 8,380.83 5,915.88 9,859.80 5,279.92 8,799.87 6,211.67 10,352.79 5,531.35 9,218.91 6,507.47 10,845.78 5,782.77 9,637.95 6,803.26 11,338.77 111.67 240.52 35.00
860,000 5,033.78 8,389.63 5,922.09 9,870.15 5,285.47 8,809.11 6,218.19 10,363.66 5,537.15 9,228.59 6,514.30 10,857.17 5,788.84 9,648.07 6,810.40 11,350.67 111.80 240.80 35.00

Attachment E.1

Page 249 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

861,000 5,039.06 8,398.43 5,928.30 9,880.50 5,291.01 8,818.35 6,224.72 10,374.53 5,542.96 9,238.27 6,521.13 10,868.55 5,794.91 9,658.19 6,817.55 11,362.58 111.93 241.08 35.00
862,000 5,044.33 8,407.22 5,934.51 9,890.85 5,296.55 8,827.58 6,231.24 10,385.39 5,548.77 9,247.94 6,527.96 10,879.94 5,800.98 9,668.31 6,824.69 11,374.48 112.06 241.36 35.00
863,000 5,049.61 8,416.02 5,940.72 9,901.20 5,302.09 8,836.82 6,237.76 10,396.26 5,554.57 9,257.62 6,534.79 10,891.32 5,807.05 9,678.42 6,831.83 11,386.38 112.19 241.64 35.00
864,000 5,054.89 8,424.82 5,946.93 9,911.55 5,307.64 8,846.06 6,244.28 10,407.13 5,560.38 9,267.30 6,541.62 10,902.71 5,813.12 9,688.54 6,838.97 11,398.28 112.32 241.92 35.00
865,000 5,060.17 8,433.62 5,953.14 9,921.90 5,313.18 8,855.30 6,250.80 10,418.00 5,566.19 9,276.98 6,548.45 10,914.09 5,819.19 9,698.66 6,846.11 11,410.19 112.45 242.20 35.00
866,000 5,065.45 8,442.41 5,959.35 9,932.25 5,318.72 8,864.53 6,257.32 10,428.86 5,571.99 9,286.65 6,555.29 10,925.48 5,825.26 9,708.77 6,853.25 11,422.09 112.58 242.48 35.00
867,000 5,070.73 8,451.21 5,965.56 9,942.60 5,324.26 8,873.77 6,263.84 10,439.73 5,577.80 9,296.33 6,562.12 10,936.86 5,831.33 9,718.89 6,860.39 11,433.99 112.71 242.76 35.00
868,000 5,076.00 8,460.01 5,971.77 9,952.95 5,329.80 8,883.01 6,270.36 10,450.60 5,583.60 9,306.01 6,568.95 10,948.25 5,837.41 9,729.01 6,867.54 11,445.89 112.84 243.04 35.00
869,000 5,081.28 8,468.81 5,977.98 9,963.30 5,335.35 8,892.25 6,276.88 10,461.47 5,589.41 9,315.69 6,575.78 10,959.63 5,843.48 9,739.13 6,874.68 11,457.80 112.97 243.32 35.00
870,000 5,086.56 8,477.60 5,984.19 9,973.65 5,340.89 8,901.48 6,283.40 10,472.33 5,595.22 9,325.36 6,582.61 10,971.02 5,849.55 9,749.24 6,881.82 11,469.70 113.10 243.60 35.00
871,000 5,091.84 8,486.40 5,990.40 9,984.00 5,346.43 8,910.72 6,289.92 10,483.20 5,601.02 9,335.04 6,589.44 10,982.40 5,855.62 9,759.36 6,888.96 11,481.60 113.23 243.88 35.00
872,000 5,097.12 8,495.20 5,996.61 9,994.35 5,351.97 8,919.96 6,296.44 10,494.07 5,606.83 9,344.72 6,596.27 10,993.79 5,861.69 9,769.48 6,896.10 11,493.50 113.36 244.16 35.00
873,000 5,102.40 8,504.00 6,002.82 10,004.70 5,357.52 8,929.19 6,302.96 10,504.94 5,612.64 9,354.39 6,603.10 11,005.17 5,867.76 9,779.59 6,903.24 11,505.41 113.49 244.44 35.00
874,000 5,107.68 8,512.79 6,009.03 10,015.05 5,363.06 8,938.43 6,309.48 10,515.80 5,618.44 9,364.07 6,609.93 11,016.56 5,873.83 9,789.71 6,910.38 11,517.31 113.62 244.72 35.00
875,000 5,112.95 8,521.59 6,015.24 10,025.40 5,368.60 8,947.67 6,316.00 10,526.67 5,624.25 9,373.75 6,616.76 11,027.94 5,879.90 9,799.83 6,917.53 11,529.21 113.75 245.00 35.00
876,000 5,118.23 8,530.39 6,021.45 10,035.75 5,374.14 8,956.91 6,322.52 10,537.54 5,630.06 9,383.43 6,623.60 11,039.33 5,885.97 9,809.95 6,924.67 11,541.11 113.88 245.28 36.00
877,000 5,123.51 8,539.19 6,027.66 10,046.10 5,379.69 8,966.14 6,329.04 10,548.41 5,635.86 9,393.10 6,630.43 11,050.71 5,892.04 9,820.06 6,931.81 11,553.02 114.01 245.56 36.00
878,000 5,128.79 8,547.98 6,033.87 10,056.45 5,385.23 8,975.38 6,335.56 10,559.27 5,641.67 9,402.78 6,637.26 11,062.10 5,898.11 9,830.18 6,938.95 11,564.92 114.14 245.84 36.00
879,000 5,134.07 8,556.78 6,040.08 10,066.80 5,390.77 8,984.62 6,342.08 10,570.14 5,647.47 9,412.46 6,644.09 11,073.48 5,904.18 9,840.30 6,946.09 11,576.82 114.27 246.12 36.00
880,000 5,139.35 8,565.58 6,046.29 10,077.15 5,396.31 8,993.86 6,348.60 10,581.01 5,653.28 9,422.14 6,650.92 11,084.87 5,910.25 9,850.41 6,953.23 11,588.72 114.40 246.40 36.00
881,000 5,144.63 8,574.38 6,052.50 10,087.50 5,401.86 9,003.09 6,355.13 10,591.88 5,659.09 9,431.81 6,657.75 11,096.25 5,916.32 9,860.53 6,960.38 11,600.63 114.53 246.68 36.00
882,000 5,149.90 8,583.17 6,058.71 10,097.85 5,407.40 9,012.33 6,361.65 10,602.74 5,664.89 9,441.49 6,664.58 11,107.64 5,922.39 9,870.65 6,967.52 11,612.53 114.66 246.96 36.00
883,000 5,155.18 8,591.97 6,064.92 10,108.20 5,412.94 9,021.57 6,368.17 10,613.61 5,670.70 9,451.17 6,671.41 11,119.02 5,928.46 9,880.77 6,974.66 11,624.43 114.79 247.24 36.00
884,000 5,160.46 8,600.77 6,071.13 10,118.55 5,418.48 9,030.81 6,374.69 10,624.48 5,676.51 9,460.84 6,678.24 11,130.41 5,934.53 9,890.88 6,981.80 11,636.33 114.92 247.52 36.00
885,000 5,165.74 8,609.57 6,077.34 10,128.90 5,424.03 9,040.04 6,381.21 10,635.35 5,682.31 9,470.52 6,685.07 11,141.79 5,940.60 9,901.00 6,988.94 11,648.24 115.05 247.80 36.00
886,000 5,171.02 8,618.36 6,083.55 10,139.25 5,429.57 9,049.28 6,387.73 10,646.21 5,688.12 9,480.20 6,691.91 11,153.18 5,946.67 9,911.12 6,996.08 11,660.14 115.18 248.08 36.00
887,000 5,176.30 8,627.16 6,089.76 10,149.60 5,435.11 9,058.52 6,394.25 10,657.08 5,693.93 9,489.88 6,698.74 11,164.56 5,952.74 9,921.23 7,003.22 11,672.04 115.31 248.36 36.00
888,000 5,181.57 8,635.96 6,095.97 10,159.95 5,440.65 9,067.76 6,400.77 10,667.95 5,699.73 9,499.55 6,705.57 11,175.95 5,958.81 9,931.35 7,010.37 11,683.94 115.44 248.64 36.00
889,000 5,186.85 8,644.76 6,102.18 10,170.30 5,446.20 9,076.99 6,407.29 10,678.82 5,705.54 9,509.23 6,712.40 11,187.33 5,964.88 9,941.47 7,017.51 11,695.85 115.57 248.92 36.00
890,000 5,192.13 8,653.55 6,108.39 10,180.65 5,451.74 9,086.23 6,413.81 10,689.68 5,711.34 9,518.91 6,719.23 11,198.72 5,970.95 9,951.59 7,024.65 11,707.75 115.70 249.20 36.00
891,000 5,197.41 8,662.35 6,114.60 10,191.00 5,457.28 9,095.47 6,420.33 10,700.55 5,717.15 9,528.59 6,726.06 11,210.10 5,977.02 9,961.70 7,031.79 11,719.65 115.83 249.48 36.00
892,000 5,202.69 8,671.15 6,120.81 10,201.35 5,462.82 9,104.70 6,426.85 10,711.42 5,722.96 9,538.26 6,732.89 11,221.49 5,983.09 9,971.82 7,038.93 11,731.55 115.96 249.76 36.00
893,000 5,207.97 8,679.95 6,127.02 10,211.70 5,468.37 9,113.94 6,433.37 10,722.29 5,728.76 9,547.94 6,739.72 11,232.87 5,989.16 9,981.94 7,046.07 11,743.46 116.09 250.04 36.00
894,000 5,213.25 8,688.74 6,133.23 10,222.05 5,473.91 9,123.18 6,439.89 10,733.15 5,734.57 9,557.62 6,746.55 11,244.26 5,995.23 9,992.05 7,053.21 11,755.36 116.22 250.32 36.00
895,000 5,218.52 8,697.54 6,139.44 10,232.40 5,479.45 9,132.42 6,446.41 10,744.02 5,740.38 9,567.29 6,753.38 11,255.64 6,001.30 10,002.17 7,060.36 11,767.26 116.35 250.60 36.00
896,000 5,223.80 8,706.34 6,145.65 10,242.75 5,484.99 9,141.65 6,452.93 10,754.89 5,746.18 9,576.97 6,760.22 11,267.03 6,007.37 10,012.29 7,067.50 11,779.16 116.48 250.88 36.00
897,000 5,229.08 8,715.14 6,151.86 10,253.10 5,490.54 9,150.89 6,459.45 10,765.76 5,751.99 9,586.65 6,767.05 11,278.41 6,013.44 10,022.41 7,074.64 11,791.07 116.61 251.16 36.00
898,000 5,234.36 8,723.93 6,158.07 10,263.45 5,496.08 9,160.13 6,465.97 10,776.62 5,757.80 9,596.33 6,773.88 11,289.80 6,019.51 10,032.52 7,081.78 11,802.97 116.74 251.44 36.00
899,000 5,239.64 8,732.73 6,164.28 10,273.80 5,501.62 9,169.37 6,472.49 10,787.49 5,763.60 9,606.00 6,780.71 11,301.18 6,025.58 10,042.64 7,088.92 11,814.87 116.87 251.72 36.00
900,000 5,244.92 8,741.53 6,170.49 10,284.15 5,507.16 9,178.60 6,479.01 10,798.36 5,769.41 9,615.68 6,787.54 11,312.57 6,031.65 10,052.76 7,096.06 11,826.77 117.00 252.00 36.00
901,000 5,250.20 8,750.33 6,176.70 10,294.50 5,512.70 9,187.84 6,485.54 10,809.23 5,775.21 9,625.36 6,794.37 11,323.95 6,037.72 10,062.87 7,103.21 11,838.68 117.13 252.28 37.00

Attachment E.1

Page 250 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

902,000 5,255.47 8,759.12 6,182.91 10,304.85 5,518.25 9,197.08 6,492.06 10,820.09 5,781.02 9,635.03 6,801.20 11,335.34 6,043.79 10,072.99 7,110.35 11,850.58 117.26 252.56 37.00
903,000 5,260.75 8,767.92 6,189.12 10,315.20 5,523.79 9,206.32 6,498.58 10,830.96 5,786.83 9,644.71 6,808.03 11,346.72 6,049.86 10,083.11 7,117.49 11,862.48 117.39 252.84 37.00
904,000 5,266.03 8,776.72 6,195.33 10,325.55 5,529.33 9,215.55 6,505.10 10,841.83 5,792.63 9,654.39 6,814.86 11,358.11 6,055.94 10,093.23 7,124.63 11,874.38 117.52 253.12 37.00
905,000 5,271.31 8,785.52 6,201.54 10,335.90 5,534.87 9,224.79 6,511.62 10,852.70 5,798.44 9,664.07 6,821.69 11,369.49 6,062.01 10,103.34 7,131.77 11,886.29 117.65 253.40 37.00
906,000 5,276.59 8,794.31 6,207.75 10,346.25 5,540.42 9,234.03 6,518.14 10,863.56 5,804.25 9,673.74 6,828.53 11,380.88 6,068.08 10,113.46 7,138.91 11,898.19 117.78 253.68 37.00
907,000 5,281.87 8,803.11 6,213.96 10,356.60 5,545.96 9,243.27 6,524.66 10,874.43 5,810.05 9,683.42 6,835.36 11,392.26 6,074.15 10,123.58 7,146.05 11,910.09 117.91 253.96 37.00
908,000 5,287.14 8,811.91 6,220.17 10,366.95 5,551.50 9,252.50 6,531.18 10,885.30 5,815.86 9,693.10 6,842.19 11,403.65 6,080.22 10,133.69 7,153.20 11,921.99 118.04 254.24 37.00
909,000 5,292.42 8,820.71 6,226.38 10,377.30 5,557.04 9,261.74 6,537.70 10,896.17 5,821.67 9,702.78 6,849.02 11,415.03 6,086.29 10,143.81 7,160.34 11,933.90 118.17 254.52 37.00
910,000 5,297.70 8,829.50 6,232.59 10,387.65 5,562.59 9,270.98 6,544.22 10,907.03 5,827.47 9,712.45 6,855.85 11,426.42 6,092.36 10,153.93 7,167.48 11,945.80 118.30 254.80 37.00
911,000 5,302.98 8,838.30 6,238.80 10,398.00 5,568.13 9,280.22 6,550.74 10,917.90 5,833.28 9,722.13 6,862.68 11,437.80 6,098.43 10,164.05 7,174.62 11,957.70 118.43 255.08 37.00
912,000 5,308.26 8,847.10 6,245.01 10,408.35 5,573.67 9,289.45 6,557.26 10,928.77 5,839.08 9,731.81 6,869.51 11,449.19 6,104.50 10,174.16 7,181.76 11,969.60 118.56 255.36 37.00
913,000 5,313.54 8,855.90 6,251.22 10,418.70 5,579.21 9,298.69 6,563.78 10,939.64 5,844.89 9,741.48 6,876.34 11,460.57 6,110.57 10,184.28 7,188.90 11,981.51 118.69 255.64 37.00
914,000 5,318.82 8,864.69 6,257.43 10,429.05 5,584.76 9,307.93 6,570.30 10,950.50 5,850.70 9,751.16 6,883.17 11,471.96 6,116.64 10,194.40 7,196.04 11,993.41 118.82 255.92 37.00
915,000 5,324.09 8,873.49 6,263.64 10,439.40 5,590.30 9,317.16 6,576.82 10,961.37 5,856.50 9,760.84 6,890.00 11,483.34 6,122.71 10,204.51 7,203.19 12,005.31 118.95 256.20 37.00
916,000 5,329.37 8,882.29 6,269.85 10,449.75 5,595.84 9,326.40 6,583.34 10,972.24 5,862.31 9,770.52 6,896.84 11,494.73 6,128.78 10,214.63 7,210.33 12,017.21 119.08 256.48 37.00
917,000 5,334.65 8,891.09 6,276.06 10,460.10 5,601.38 9,335.64 6,589.86 10,983.11 5,868.12 9,780.19 6,903.67 11,506.11 6,134.85 10,224.75 7,217.47 12,029.12 119.21 256.76 37.00
918,000 5,339.93 8,899.88 6,282.27 10,470.45 5,606.93 9,344.88 6,596.38 10,993.97 5,873.92 9,789.87 6,910.50 11,517.50 6,140.92 10,234.86 7,224.61 12,041.02 119.34 257.04 37.00
919,000 5,345.21 8,908.68 6,288.48 10,480.80 5,612.47 9,354.11 6,602.90 11,004.84 5,879.73 9,799.55 6,917.33 11,528.88 6,146.99 10,244.98 7,231.75 12,052.92 119.47 257.32 37.00
920,000 5,350.49 8,917.48 6,294.69 10,491.15 5,618.01 9,363.35 6,609.42 11,015.71 5,885.54 9,809.23 6,924.16 11,540.27 6,153.06 10,255.10 7,238.89 12,064.82 119.60 257.60 37.00
921,000 5,355.77 8,926.28 6,300.90 10,501.50 5,623.55 9,372.59 6,615.95 11,026.58 5,891.34 9,818.90 6,930.99 11,551.65 6,159.13 10,265.22 7,246.04 12,076.73 119.73 257.88 37.00
922,000 5,361.04 8,935.07 6,307.11 10,511.85 5,629.10 9,381.83 6,622.47 11,037.44 5,897.15 9,828.58 6,937.82 11,563.04 6,165.20 10,275.33 7,253.18 12,088.63 119.86 258.16 37.00
923,000 5,366.32 8,943.87 6,313.32 10,522.20 5,634.64 9,391.06 6,628.99 11,048.31 5,902.95 9,838.26 6,944.65 11,574.42 6,171.27 10,285.45 7,260.32 12,100.53 119.99 258.44 37.00
924,000 5,371.60 8,952.67 6,319.53 10,532.55 5,640.18 9,400.30 6,635.51 11,059.18 5,908.76 9,847.93 6,951.48 11,585.81 6,177.34 10,295.57 7,267.46 12,112.43 120.12 258.72 37.00
925,000 5,376.88 8,961.47 6,325.74 10,542.90 5,645.72 9,409.54 6,642.03 11,070.05 5,914.57 9,857.61 6,958.31 11,597.19 6,183.41 10,305.68 7,274.60 12,124.34 120.25 259.00 37.00
926,000 5,382.16 8,970.26 6,331.95 10,553.25 5,651.27 9,418.78 6,648.55 11,080.91 5,920.37 9,867.29 6,965.15 11,608.58 6,189.48 10,315.80 7,281.74 12,136.24 120.38 259.28 38.00
927,000 5,387.44 8,979.06 6,338.16 10,563.60 5,656.81 9,428.01 6,655.07 11,091.78 5,926.18 9,876.97 6,971.98 11,619.96 6,195.55 10,325.92 7,288.88 12,148.14 120.51 259.56 38.00
928,000 5,392.71 8,987.86 6,344.37 10,573.95 5,662.35 9,437.25 6,661.59 11,102.65 5,931.99 9,886.64 6,978.81 11,631.35 6,201.62 10,336.04 7,296.03 12,160.04 120.64 259.84 38.00
929,000 5,397.99 8,996.66 6,350.58 10,584.30 5,667.89 9,446.49 6,668.11 11,113.52 5,937.79 9,896.32 6,985.64 11,642.73 6,207.69 10,346.15 7,303.17 12,171.95 120.77 260.12 38.00
930,000 5,403.27 9,005.45 6,356.79 10,594.65 5,673.44 9,455.73 6,674.63 11,124.38 5,943.60 9,906.00 6,992.47 11,654.12 6,213.76 10,356.27 7,310.31 12,183.85 120.90 260.40 38.00
931,000 5,408.55 9,014.25 6,363.00 10,605.00 5,678.98 9,464.96 6,681.15 11,135.25 5,949.41 9,915.68 6,999.30 11,665.50 6,219.83 10,366.39 7,317.45 12,195.75 121.03 260.68 38.00
932,000 5,413.83 9,023.05 6,369.21 10,615.35 5,684.52 9,474.20 6,687.67 11,146.12 5,955.21 9,925.35 7,006.13 11,676.89 6,225.90 10,376.50 7,324.59 12,207.65 121.16 260.96 38.00
933,000 5,419.11 9,031.85 6,375.42 10,625.70 5,690.06 9,483.44 6,694.19 11,156.99 5,961.02 9,935.03 7,012.96 11,688.27 6,231.97 10,386.62 7,331.73 12,219.56 121.29 261.24 38.00
934,000 5,424.39 9,040.64 6,381.63 10,636.05 5,695.60 9,492.67 6,700.71 11,167.85 5,966.82 9,944.71 7,019.79 11,699.66 6,238.04 10,396.74 7,338.87 12,231.46 121.42 261.52 38.00
935,000 5,429.66 9,049.44 6,387.84 10,646.40 5,701.15 9,501.91 6,707.23 11,178.72 5,972.63 9,954.38 7,026.62 11,711.04 6,244.11 10,406.86 7,346.02 12,243.36 121.55 261.80 38.00
936,000 5,434.94 9,058.24 6,394.05 10,656.75 5,706.69 9,511.15 6,713.75 11,189.59 5,978.44 9,964.06 7,033.46 11,722.43 6,250.18 10,416.97 7,353.16 12,255.26 121.68 262.08 38.00
937,000 5,440.22 9,067.04 6,400.26 10,667.10 5,712.23 9,520.39 6,720.27 11,200.46 5,984.24 9,973.74 7,040.29 11,733.81 6,256.25 10,427.09 7,360.30 12,267.17 121.81 262.36 38.00
938,000 5,445.50 9,075.83 6,406.47 10,677.45 5,717.77 9,529.62 6,726.79 11,211.32 5,990.05 9,983.42 7,047.12 11,745.20 6,262.32 10,437.21 7,367.44 12,279.07 121.94 262.64 38.00
939,000 5,450.78 9,084.63 6,412.68 10,687.80 5,723.32 9,538.86 6,733.31 11,222.19 5,995.86 9,993.09 7,053.95 11,756.58 6,268.39 10,447.32 7,374.58 12,290.97 122.07 262.92 38.00
940,000 5,456.06 9,093.43 6,418.89 10,698.15 5,728.86 9,548.10 6,739.83 11,233.06 6,001.66 10,002.77 7,060.78 11,767.97 6,274.46 10,457.44 7,381.72 12,302.87 122.20 263.20 38.00
941,000 5,461.34 9,102.23 6,425.10 10,708.50 5,734.40 9,557.34 6,746.36 11,243.93 6,007.47 10,012.45 7,067.61 11,779.35 6,280.54 10,467.56 7,388.87 12,314.78 122.33 263.48 38.00
942,000 5,466.61 9,111.02 6,431.31 10,718.85 5,739.94 9,566.57 6,752.88 11,254.79 6,013.27 10,022.12 7,074.44 11,790.74 6,286.61 10,477.68 7,396.01 12,326.68 122.46 263.76 38.00

Attachment E.1

Page 251 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

943,000 5,471.89 9,119.82 6,437.52 10,729.20 5,745.49 9,575.81 6,759.40 11,265.66 6,019.08 10,031.80 7,081.27 11,802.12 6,292.68 10,487.79 7,403.15 12,338.58 122.59 264.04 38.00
944,000 5,477.17 9,128.62 6,443.73 10,739.55 5,751.03 9,585.05 6,765.92 11,276.53 6,024.89 10,041.48 7,088.10 11,813.51 6,298.75 10,497.91 7,410.29 12,350.48 122.72 264.32 38.00
945,000 5,482.45 9,137.42 6,449.94 10,749.90 5,756.57 9,594.29 6,772.44 11,287.40 6,030.69 10,051.16 7,094.93 11,824.89 6,304.82 10,508.03 7,417.43 12,362.39 122.85 264.60 38.00
946,000 5,487.73 9,146.21 6,456.15 10,760.25 5,762.11 9,603.52 6,778.96 11,298.26 6,036.50 10,060.83 7,101.77 11,836.28 6,310.89 10,518.14 7,424.57 12,374.29 122.98 264.88 38.00
947,000 5,493.01 9,155.01 6,462.36 10,770.60 5,767.66 9,612.76 6,785.48 11,309.13 6,042.31 10,070.51 7,108.60 11,847.66 6,316.96 10,528.26 7,431.71 12,386.19 123.11 265.16 38.00
948,000 5,498.28 9,163.81 6,468.57 10,780.95 5,773.20 9,622.00 6,792.00 11,320.00 6,048.11 10,080.19 7,115.43 11,859.05 6,323.03 10,538.38 7,438.86 12,398.09 123.24 265.44 38.00
949,000 5,503.56 9,172.61 6,474.78 10,791.30 5,778.74 9,631.24 6,798.52 11,330.87 6,053.92 10,089.87 7,122.26 11,870.43 6,329.10 10,548.50 7,446.00 12,410.00 123.37 265.72 38.00
950,000 5,508.84 9,181.40 6,480.99 10,801.65 5,784.28 9,640.47 6,805.04 11,341.73 6,059.73 10,099.54 7,129.09 11,881.82 6,335.17 10,558.61 7,453.14 12,421.90 123.50 266.00 38.00
951,000 5,514.12 9,190.20 6,487.20 10,812.00 5,789.83 9,649.71 6,811.56 11,352.60 6,065.53 10,109.22 7,135.92 11,893.20 6,341.24 10,568.73 7,460.28 12,433.80 123.63 266.28 38.00
952,000 5,519.40 9,199.00 6,493.41 10,822.35 5,795.37 9,658.95 6,818.08 11,363.47 6,071.34 10,118.90 7,142.75 11,904.59 6,347.31 10,578.85 7,467.42 12,445.70 123.76 266.56 39.00
953,000 5,524.68 9,207.80 6,499.62 10,832.70 5,800.91 9,668.18 6,824.60 11,374.34 6,077.14 10,128.57 7,149.58 11,915.97 6,353.38 10,588.96 7,474.56 12,457.61 123.89 266.84 39.00
954,000 5,529.96 9,216.59 6,505.83 10,843.05 5,806.45 9,677.42 6,831.12 11,385.20 6,082.95 10,138.25 7,156.41 11,927.36 6,359.45 10,599.08 7,481.70 12,469.51 124.02 267.12 39.00
955,000 5,535.23 9,225.39 6,512.04 10,853.40 5,812.00 9,686.66 6,837.64 11,396.07 6,088.76 10,147.93 7,163.24 11,938.74 6,365.52 10,609.20 7,488.85 12,481.41 124.15 267.40 39.00
956,000 5,540.51 9,234.19 6,518.25 10,863.75 5,817.54 9,695.90 6,844.16 11,406.94 6,094.56 10,157.61 7,170.08 11,950.13 6,371.59 10,619.32 7,495.99 12,493.31 124.28 267.68 39.00
957,000 5,545.79 9,242.99 6,524.46 10,874.10 5,823.08 9,705.13 6,850.68 11,417.81 6,100.37 10,167.28 7,176.91 11,961.51 6,377.66 10,629.43 7,503.13 12,505.22 124.41 267.96 39.00
958,000 5,551.07 9,251.78 6,530.67 10,884.45 5,828.62 9,714.37 6,857.20 11,428.67 6,106.18 10,176.96 7,183.74 11,972.90 6,383.73 10,639.55 7,510.27 12,517.12 124.54 268.24 39.00
959,000 5,556.35 9,260.58 6,536.88 10,894.80 5,834.17 9,723.61 6,863.72 11,439.54 6,111.98 10,186.64 7,190.57 11,984.28 6,389.80 10,649.67 7,517.41 12,529.02 124.67 268.52 39.00
960,000 5,561.63 9,269.38 6,543.09 10,905.15 5,839.71 9,732.85 6,870.24 11,450.41 6,117.79 10,196.32 7,197.40 11,995.67 6,395.87 10,659.78 7,524.55 12,540.92 124.80 268.80 39.00
961,000 5,566.91 9,278.18 6,549.30 10,915.50 5,845.25 9,742.08 6,876.77 11,461.28 6,123.60 10,205.99 7,204.23 12,007.05 6,401.94 10,669.90 7,531.70 12,552.83 124.93 269.08 39.00
962,000 5,572.18 9,286.97 6,555.51 10,925.85 5,850.79 9,751.32 6,883.29 11,472.14 6,129.40 10,215.67 7,211.06 12,018.44 6,408.01 10,680.02 7,538.84 12,564.73 125.06 269.36 39.00
963,000 5,577.46 9,295.77 6,561.72 10,936.20 5,856.34 9,760.56 6,889.81 11,483.01 6,135.21 10,225.35 7,217.89 12,029.82 6,414.08 10,690.14 7,545.98 12,576.63 125.19 269.64 39.00
964,000 5,582.74 9,304.57 6,567.93 10,946.55 5,861.88 9,769.80 6,896.33 11,493.88 6,141.01 10,235.02 7,224.72 12,041.21 6,420.15 10,700.25 7,553.12 12,588.53 125.32 269.92 39.00
965,000 5,588.02 9,313.37 6,574.14 10,956.90 5,867.42 9,779.03 6,902.85 11,504.75 6,146.82 10,244.70 7,231.55 12,052.59 6,426.22 10,710.37 7,560.26 12,600.44 125.45 270.20 39.00
966,000 5,593.30 9,322.16 6,580.35 10,967.25 5,872.96 9,788.27 6,909.37 11,515.61 6,152.63 10,254.38 7,238.39 12,063.98 6,432.29 10,720.49 7,567.40 12,612.34 125.58 270.48 39.00
967,000 5,598.58 9,330.96 6,586.56 10,977.60 5,878.50 9,797.51 6,915.89 11,526.48 6,158.43 10,264.06 7,245.22 12,075.36 6,438.36 10,730.60 7,574.54 12,624.24 125.71 270.76 39.00
968,000 5,603.85 9,339.76 6,592.77 10,987.95 5,884.05 9,806.75 6,922.41 11,537.35 6,164.24 10,273.73 7,252.05 12,086.75 6,444.43 10,740.72 7,581.69 12,636.14 125.84 271.04 39.00
969,000 5,609.13 9,348.56 6,598.98 10,998.30 5,889.59 9,815.98 6,928.93 11,548.22 6,170.05 10,283.41 7,258.88 12,098.13 6,450.50 10,750.84 7,588.83 12,648.05 125.97 271.32 39.00
970,000 5,614.41 9,357.35 6,605.19 11,008.65 5,895.13 9,825.22 6,935.45 11,559.08 6,175.85 10,293.09 7,265.71 12,109.52 6,456.57 10,760.96 7,595.97 12,659.95 126.10 271.60 39.00
971,000 5,619.69 9,366.15 6,611.40 11,019.00 5,900.67 9,834.46 6,941.97 11,569.95 6,181.66 10,302.77 7,272.54 12,120.90 6,462.64 10,771.07 7,603.11 12,671.85 126.23 271.88 39.00
972,000 5,624.97 9,374.95 6,617.61 11,029.35 5,906.22 9,843.69 6,948.49 11,580.82 6,187.47 10,312.44 7,279.37 12,132.29 6,468.71 10,781.19 7,610.25 12,683.75 126.36 272.16 39.00
973,000 5,630.25 9,383.75 6,623.82 11,039.70 5,911.76 9,852.93 6,955.01 11,591.69 6,193.27 10,322.12 7,286.20 12,143.67 6,474.78 10,791.31 7,617.39 12,695.66 126.49 272.44 39.00
974,000 5,635.53 9,392.54 6,630.03 11,050.05 5,917.30 9,862.17 6,961.53 11,602.55 6,199.08 10,331.80 7,293.03 12,155.06 6,480.85 10,801.42 7,624.53 12,707.56 126.62 272.72 39.00
975,000 5,640.80 9,401.34 6,636.24 11,060.40 5,922.84 9,871.41 6,968.05 11,613.42 6,204.88 10,341.47 7,299.86 12,166.44 6,486.92 10,811.54 7,631.68 12,719.46 126.75 273.00 39.00
976,000 5,646.08 9,410.14 6,642.45 11,070.75 5,928.39 9,880.64 6,974.57 11,624.29 6,210.69 10,351.15 7,306.70 12,177.83 6,492.99 10,821.66 7,638.82 12,731.36 126.88 273.28 40.00
977,000 5,651.36 9,418.94 6,648.66 11,081.10 5,933.93 9,889.88 6,981.09 11,635.16 6,216.50 10,360.83 7,313.53 12,189.21 6,499.07 10,831.78 7,645.96 12,743.27 127.01 273.56 40.00
978,000 5,656.64 9,427.73 6,654.87 11,091.45 5,939.47 9,899.12 6,987.61 11,646.02 6,222.30 10,370.51 7,320.36 12,200.60 6,505.14 10,841.89 7,653.10 12,755.17 127.14 273.84 40.00
979,000 5,661.92 9,436.53 6,661.08 11,101.80 5,945.01 9,908.36 6,994.13 11,656.89 6,228.11 10,380.18 7,327.19 12,211.98 6,511.21 10,852.01 7,660.24 12,767.07 127.27 274.12 40.00
980,000 5,667.20 9,445.33 6,667.29 11,112.15 5,950.56 9,917.59 7,000.65 11,667.76 6,233.92 10,389.86 7,334.02 12,223.37 6,517.28 10,862.13 7,667.38 12,778.97 127.40 274.40 40.00
981,000 5,672.48 9,454.13 6,673.50 11,122.50 5,956.10 9,926.83 7,007.18 11,678.63 6,239.72 10,399.54 7,340.85 12,234.75 6,523.35 10,872.24 7,674.53 12,790.88 127.53 274.68 40.00
982,000 5,677.75 9,462.92 6,679.71 11,132.85 5,961.64 9,936.07 7,013.70 11,689.49 6,245.53 10,409.21 7,347.68 12,246.14 6,529.42 10,882.36 7,681.67 12,802.78 127.66 274.96 40.00
983,000 5,683.03 9,471.72 6,685.92 11,143.20 5,967.18 9,945.31 7,020.22 11,700.36 6,251.34 10,418.89 7,354.51 12,257.52 6,535.49 10,892.48 7,688.81 12,814.68 127.79 275.24 40.00

Attachment E.1

Page 252 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

984,000 5,688.31 9,480.52 6,692.13 11,153.55 5,972.73 9,954.54 7,026.74 11,711.23 6,257.14 10,428.57 7,361.34 12,268.91 6,541.56 10,902.60 7,695.95 12,826.58 127.92 275.52 40.00
985,000 5,693.59 9,489.32 6,698.34 11,163.90 5,978.27 9,963.78 7,033.26 11,722.10 6,262.95 10,438.25 7,368.17 12,280.29 6,547.63 10,912.71 7,703.09 12,838.49 128.05 275.80 40.00
986,000 5,698.87 9,498.11 6,704.55 11,174.25 5,983.81 9,973.02 7,039.78 11,732.96 6,268.75 10,447.92 7,375.01 12,291.68 6,553.70 10,922.83 7,710.23 12,850.39 128.18 276.08 40.00
987,000 5,704.15 9,506.91 6,710.76 11,184.60 5,989.35 9,982.26 7,046.30 11,743.83 6,274.56 10,457.60 7,381.84 12,303.06 6,559.77 10,932.95 7,717.37 12,862.29 128.31 276.36 40.00
988,000 5,709.42 9,515.71 6,716.97 11,194.95 5,994.90 9,991.49 7,052.82 11,754.70 6,280.37 10,467.28 7,388.67 12,314.45 6,565.84 10,943.06 7,724.52 12,874.19 128.44 276.64 40.00
989,000 5,714.70 9,524.51 6,723.18 11,205.30 6,000.44 10,000.73 7,059.34 11,765.57 6,286.17 10,476.96 7,395.50 12,325.83 6,571.91 10,953.18 7,731.66 12,886.10 128.57 276.92 40.00
990,000 5,719.98 9,533.30 6,729.39 11,215.65 6,005.98 10,009.97 7,065.86 11,776.43 6,291.98 10,486.63 7,402.33 12,337.22 6,577.98 10,963.30 7,738.80 12,898.00 128.70 277.20 40.00
991,000 5,725.26 9,542.10 6,735.60 11,226.00 6,011.52 10,019.21 7,072.38 11,787.30 6,297.79 10,496.31 7,409.16 12,348.60 6,584.05 10,973.42 7,745.94 12,909.90 128.83 277.48 40.00
992,000 5,730.54 9,550.90 6,741.81 11,236.35 6,017.07 10,028.44 7,078.90 11,798.17 6,303.59 10,505.99 7,415.99 12,359.99 6,590.12 10,983.53 7,753.08 12,921.80 128.96 277.76 40.00
993,000 5,735.82 9,559.70 6,748.02 11,246.70 6,022.61 10,037.68 7,085.42 11,809.04 6,309.40 10,515.66 7,422.82 12,371.37 6,596.19 10,993.65 7,760.22 12,933.71 129.09 278.04 40.00
994,000 5,741.10 9,568.49 6,754.23 11,257.05 6,028.15 10,046.92 7,091.94 11,819.90 6,315.21 10,525.34 7,429.65 12,382.76 6,602.26 11,003.77 7,767.36 12,945.61 129.22 278.32 40.00
995,000 5,746.37 9,577.29 6,760.44 11,267.40 6,033.69 10,056.15 7,098.46 11,830.77 6,321.01 10,535.02 7,436.48 12,394.14 6,608.33 11,013.88 7,774.51 12,957.51 129.35 278.60 40.00
996,000 5,751.65 9,586.09 6,766.65 11,277.75 6,039.24 10,065.39 7,104.98 11,841.64 6,326.82 10,544.70 7,443.32 12,405.53 6,614.40 11,024.00 7,781.65 12,969.41 129.48 278.88 40.00
997,000 5,756.93 9,594.89 6,772.86 11,288.10 6,044.78 10,074.63 7,111.50 11,852.51 6,332.62 10,554.37 7,450.15 12,416.91 6,620.47 11,034.12 7,788.79 12,981.32 129.61 279.16 40.00
998,000 5,762.21 9,603.68 6,779.07 11,298.45 6,050.32 10,083.87 7,118.02 11,863.37 6,338.43 10,564.05 7,456.98 12,428.30 6,626.54 11,044.23 7,795.93 12,993.22 129.74 279.44 40.00
999,000 5,767.49 9,612.48 6,785.28 11,308.80 6,055.86 10,093.10 7,124.54 11,874.24 6,344.24 10,573.73 7,463.81 12,439.68 6,632.61 11,054.35 7,803.07 13,005.12 129.87 279.72 40.00

1,000,000 5,772.77 9,621.28 6,791.49 11,319.15 6,061.40 10,102.34 7,131.06 11,885.11 6,350.04 10,583.41 7,470.64 12,451.07 6,638.68 11,064.47 7,810.21 13,017.02 130.00 280.00 40.00

STANDARD FEES: Standard Plan Check fee is equal to 85% of the building permit fee with a minimum standard plan check
fee of $125.55.   Permit issuance fee is $43.05.

Standard Building Permit Formulas:
700 - 25,000 valuation-   VALUATION (minus) 1000 (divided by) 1000 (times) 17.5 (plus) 67.8 (times) 1.5
25,001 - 50,000 valuation- VALUATION (minus) 25000 (divided by) 1000 (times) 13.5 (plus) 488.6 (times) 1.5
50,001 - 100,000 valuation- VALUATION (minus) 50000 (divided by) 1000 (times) 10.1 (plus) 829.8 (times) 1.5
100,001 - up valuation- VALUATION (minus) 100000 (divided by) 1000 (times) 6.9 (plus) 1336.1 (times) 1.5

ENERGY FEES: Energy Building Permit fee is equal to 110 % of the standard building permit fee.

Energy Plan Check fee is equal to .9350% of the standard building permit fee.

DISABLE ACCESS: Disable Access Building Permit fee is equal to 105% of the standard building permit fee.

Disable Access Plan Check fee is equal to .8925% of the standard building permit fee.

DISABLE ACCESS Energy and Disable Access Building Permit fee is equal to 115% of the standard building permit fee.

    & ENERGY: Energy and Disable Access Building Plan Check fee is equal to .9775% of the standard building permit fee.

STRONG MOTION: Strong Motion Instrumental Program fee is charged at time of permit issuance:

.013 % of the total valuation of a Group R Occupancy,

.028 % of the total valuation of all other occupancies,

Attachment E.1

Page 253 of 385



Permit Issuance Fee 25.83 New fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT R-OCC. OTHERS

GREEN 
FEES

VALUATION 
NOT OVER

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES

Effective Date: January 9, 2016

STANDARD + DISABLED ACCESS + ENERGY + ENERGY & DISABLED ACCESS SMIP FEES

or $.50, whichever amount is higher.

EXCEPTIONS: 1.  A combined swimming pool permit may be issued for a new swimming pool, spa or hot tub which will 
include all building, electrical, plumbing, heating, and excavation work.  The total permit fee for the combined 
swimming pool permit shall be two times the building permit fee.

2.  A combined building permit for one-family or two-family dwelling and attached garages(s) shall be 
1.6 times the building permit fee.  (Section 106.5.6 & Section 107.1)

Building Permit Fees are pursuant to the California Building Code, Section 107.1 and the County of Los Angeles Building Code Fee Schedule, Table 1-A.
Building Plan Check Fees are pursuant to the California Building Code, Section 107.2 and the County of Los Angeles Building Code Fee Schedule, Table 1-A.

Attachment E.1

Page 254 of 385



FEES FEES
For the issuance of each permit $25.83 $43.05

Note:  The following do not include permit issuing fee.

$50.85 $84.75

$0.13

$0.10

$36.27

For new single and two-family residential buildings not including garages, carports and other minor
accessory buildings constructed at the same time, per square foot.

For garages, carports, and other minor accessory buildings constructed at the same time as the single or two-family

residential buildings a fee will not be required. For other types of residential occupancies and alterations, additions

and modifications to existing residential buildings, use BRANCH CIRCUIT FEE OR UNIT FEE SCHEDULE.

For other types of swimming pools, therapeutic whirlpools, spas, hot tubs and alterations to existing
swimming pools, each

Carnivals and Circuses

For electric generators and electrically driven rides each

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JAN. 9, 2016 - DRAFT

SYSTEM FEE SCHEDULE

Carnivals, circuses or other traveling shows or exhibitions utilizing transportable-type rides, booths, displays
and attractions.

$75.69

ELECTRICAL WORK DESCRIPTION

New Residential Buildings

Private Swimming PoolsFor new private, residential, inground swimming pools for single, or multifamily occupancies, including
a complete system of necessary branch circuit wiring, bonding, grounding, underwater lighting, water
pumping and other similar electrical equipment directly related to the operation of a swimming pool,
each

For new multifamily residential buildings (apartments and condominiums) having three (3) or more
living units not including garages, carports, and other noncommercial automobile storage areas
constructed at the same time, per square foot.

For garages, carports, and other accessory buildings used in conjunction with multi-family residential buildings use

BRANCH CIRCUIT FEE OR UNIT FEE SCHEDULE.

The following fees shall include all wiring and electrical equipment in or on each building, or other electrical
equipment on the same premises constructed at the same time.

$0.21

$0.17

$60.45

$126.15

Attachment E.2

Page 255 of 385



FEES FEES

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JAN. 9, 2016 - DRAFT
ELECTRICAL WORK DESCRIPTION

$15.12 $25.20
$15.12 $25.20

For permanently installed rides, booth, displays, and attractions, use UNIT FEE SCHEDULE

For mechanically driven rides and walk-through attractions or displays having electric lighting, each
For a system of area and booth lighting, each

Attachment E.2

Page 256 of 385



FEES FEES

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JAN. 9, 2016 - DRAFT
ELECTRICAL WORK DESCRIPTION

$19.89 $33.15

Note:

$13.41 $22.35
$12.06 $20.10

For 15 or 20 ampere 208 volt to 277 volt lighting, each $25.47 $42.45

$1.35 $2.25

Lighting Fixtures

$1.35 $2.25

$1.98

$16.20

$40.68

$1.98

41 or more branch circuits, each

For 15 or 20 ampere 120 volt lighting or general use receptacles:
1 to 10 branch circuits inclusive, each

Additional outlets, each

For receptacle, switch, lighting, or other outlets at which current is used or controlled except services, feeders
and meters:

First 20, each

Exception: An individual multiwire circuit supplying one appliance may be counted as one circuit.

Receptacle, Switch, Lighting, or other

Note:  For multi-outlet assemblies, each five feet or fraction thereof may be considered as one outlet.

First 20, each
For lighting fixtures, sockets, or other lamp holding devices:

Additional fixtures, each

UNIT FEE SCHEDULE (Alternate to Branch Circuit Fees)

BRANCH CIRCUIT FEE SCHEDULE (Alternate to Unit Fees)

Branch circuit fees apply to new branch circuit wiring and the lighting fixtures, switches and receptacles which
are supplied by these branch circuits, including their outlets.

Temporary Power Service

11 to 40 branch circuits inclusive, each

For a temporary service power pole or pedestal, including all pole or pedestal mounted receptacle
outlets and appurtenances, each

For a temporary distribution system and temporary lighting and receptacle outlets for construction sites,
decorative lighting, Christmas tree sales lots, firework stands, sales booths, additional pole, etc., each

1.  The following do not include permit issuing fees;

2.  Where appropriate either fee schedule may be used.

$3.30

$27.00

$67.80

$3.30

Attachment E.2

Page 257 of 385



FEES FEES

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JAN. 9, 2016 - DRAFT
ELECTRICAL WORK DESCRIPTION

$2.34 $3.90
$2.34 $3.90For theatrical-type lighting fixtures or assemblies, each

For pole or platform mounted lighting fixtures, each

Attachment E.2

Page 258 of 385



FEES FEES

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JAN. 9, 2016 - DRAFT
ELECTRICAL WORK DESCRIPTION

Note:

Note:

$43.02 $71.70
$80.46 $134.10

$132.84 $221.40
Note:

Note:

$14.49

$9.99

$24.39

$18.63

For other types of air conditioners and other motor-driven appliances having larger electrical ratings, see Power

Apparatus.

Residential Appliances of Three Horsepower or Less
For fixed residential appliances or receptacle outlets for same, including wall-mounted electric ovens,
counter-mounted cooking tops, electric ranges, self-contained room, console, or through-wall air
conditioners, space heaters, food waste grinders, dishwashers, washing machines, water heaters,
clothes dryers, or other motor-operated appliances, not exceeding three (3) horsepower (HP) in rating, 

Other Appliances of Three Horsepower or Less
For any appliance installed in a non-residential occupancy and not exceeding three (3) horsepower
(HP), Kilowatt (KW), or kilovolt-ampere (KVA) in rating, including medical and dental devices, food,
beverage, and ice cream cabinets, illuminated showcases, drinking fountains, vending machines,
laundry machines, or other similar types of equipment, each

1. As used in the above sentence, "non-residential occupancy" includes but is not limited to hotels and motels but

excludes apartments and single-family dwellings.

2. For other types of air conditioners and other motor-driven appliances having larger electrical ratings, see Power

Apparatus.

Power Apparatus
For motors, generators, transformers, rectifiers, synchronous converters, capacitors, industrial heating, air
conditioners and heat pumps, cooking or baking equipment, and other apparatus, with a rating in horsepower
(HP) kilowatts (KW), kilovolt amperes (KVA), or kilovolt-amperes-reactive (KVAR) as follows:

Rating over 3 and not over 10, each
Rating over 10 and not over 50, each
Rating over 50 and not over 100, each
Rating over 100, each

An additional fee will be required for lighting fixtures, motors and other appliances that are connected to trolley and

plug-in type busways. No fee is required for portable tools.

1. For equipment or appliances having more than one motor, transformer, heater, etc., the sum of the combined

ratings may be used.

2. These fees include all switches, circuit breakers, contactors, thermostats, relays and other directly related control

equipment.

Busways
For cable trays, trolley and plug-in type busways each 100 feet or fraction thereof

$24.15

$16.65

$40.65

$31.05

Attachment E.2

Page 259 of 385



FEES FEES

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JAN. 9, 2016 - DRAFT
ELECTRICAL WORK DESCRIPTION

$12.06 $20.10

$36.27For signs, outline lighting systems, or marquees supplied from one branch circuit, each

For additional branch circuits within the same sign, outline lighting system, or marquee, each

Signs, Outline Lighting, and Marquees

$60.45

Attachment E.2

Page 260 of 385



FEES FEES

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JAN. 9, 2016 - DRAFT
ELECTRICAL WORK DESCRIPTION

$71.19 $118.65

$151.47 $252.45

Note:

$30.87 $51.45

$102.24 $170.40

$204.12 $340.20

$102.24 $170.40

$471.42 $785.70

For services, switchboards, switchboard sections, motor control centers and panelboards of 600 volts
or less and not over 399 amperes in rating, each

OTHER ELECTRICAL INSPECTIONS AND FEES

$36.27

For any single hazardous location area larger than 2,000 sq. ft. or an aggregate area consisting of
smaller hazardous location areas totaling over 2,000 sq. ft., a surcharge in addition to any other
applicable fees, each 

For investigation of alternate materials and methods performed by the Chief Electrical Inspector:

For investigation and review of test reports from local testing laboratories, or to comply with Section 83-
3.

For one (1) to ten (10) items
For eleven (11) to twenty (20) items

For services, switchboards, switchboard sections, motor control centers and panelboards of 600 volts
or less, and over 399 amperes to 1,000 amperes in rating, each

For each extra inspection resulting from defective workmanship or materials, each

$235.89

$204.48

$51.12

$60.93

For the first 1/2 hour, or fraction thereof
or, for each hour, or fraction thereof

Services, Switchboards, Switchboard Sections, Motor Control Centers and Panelboards

For each hour or fraction thereof, in excess of two
For the Initial filing fee

For inspection of electrical equipment for which not fee is herein set forth and for emergency
inspections for the time consumed

For services, switchboards, switchboard sections, motor control centers and panelboards over 600
volts, or over 1,000 amperes in rating, each

Miscellaneous Apparatus, Conduits and Conductors

This fee is not applicable when a fee is paid for one or more services, outlets, fixtures, appliances, power apparatus,

busways, signs or other equipment.

For electrical apparatus, conduits and conductors for which a permit is required but for which no fee in
herein set forth

$60.45

$393.15

$340.80

$85.20

$101.55

Attachment E.2

Page 261 of 385



FEES FEES

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JAN. 9, 2016 - DRAFT
ELECTRICAL WORK DESCRIPTION

$707.22 $1,178.70
$785.97 $1,309.95
$471.42 $785.70

For more than fifty (50) items
For twenty-one (21) to fifty (50) items

For high voltage switch gears, transformers or substations, each

Attachment E.2

Page 262 of 385



FEES FEES

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JAN. 9, 2016 - DRAFT
ELECTRICAL WORK DESCRIPTION

$314.19 $523.65
$157.05 $261.75

$188.91 $314.85

$102.24 $170.40

$51.12 $85.20A minimum plan check fee of

For other occupancies

Noncompliance Fee:

The fee shall be equal to seventy percent (70%) of the required electrical permit fee provided, however,
the minimum fee shall be:

The fee for each tenant improvement plan check (installations requiring review to verify compliance
with the State's Electrical Energy Conservation requirements (Title 24), when a building plan check is
not required for that work, the fee shall be as follows:

Per 1,000 sq. ft. or

Investigation fee for work without a permit shall be equal to the permit fee, but not less than
Exception:  One and two family structure, wired by owner-builder

For one and two family dwelling occupancies

ELECTRICAL PLAN CHECKING 

$12.69

$94.32

$21.15

$157.20

Attachment E.2

Page 263 of 385



$25.83 New Fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT
50 267.30 445.50 150.21 250.35 26,000 2,479.50 4,132.50 2,136.06 3,560.10

100 267.30 445.50 224.64 374.40 27,000 2,524.05 4,206.75 2,176.83 3,628.05
200 358.20 597.00 300.69 501.15 28,000 2,568.60 4,281.00 2,217.60 3,696.00
300 449.10 748.50 376.74 627.90 29,000 2,613.15 4,355.25 2,258.37 3,763.95
400 540.00 900.00 452.79 754.65 30,000 2,657.70 4,429.50 2,299.14 3,831.90
500 630.90 1,051.50 528.84 881.40 31,000 2,702.25 4,503.75 2,339.91 3,899.85
600 721.80 1,203.00 604.89 1,008.15 32,000 2,746.80 4,578.00 2,380.68 3,967.80
700 812.70 1,354.50 680.94 1,134.90 33,000 2,791.35 4,652.25 2,421.45 4,035.75
800 903.60 1,506.00 756.99 1,261.65 34,000 2,835.90 4,726.50 2,462.22 4,103.70
900 994.50 1,657.50 833.04 1,388.40 35,000 2,880.45 4,800.75 2,502.99 4,171.65

1,000 1,085.40 1,809.00 909.09 1,515.15 36,000 2,925.00 4,875.00 2,543.76 4,239.60
2,000 1,163.34 1,938.90 973.44 1,622.40 37,000 2,969.55 4,949.25 2,584.53 4,307.55
3,000 1,238.76 2,064.60 1,037.34 1,728.90 38,000 3,014.10 5,023.50 2,625.30 4,375.50
4,000 1,314.18 2,190.30 1,101.24 1,835.40 39,000 3,058.65 5,097.75 2,666.07 4,443.45
5,000 1,389.60 2,316.00 1,165.14 1,941.90 40,000 3,103.20 5,172.00 2,706.84 4,511.40
6,000 1,465.02 2,441.70 1,229.04 2,048.40 41,000 3,147.75 5,246.25 2,747.61 4,579.35
7,000 1,540.44 2,567.40 1,292.94 2,154.90 42,000 3,192.30 5,320.50 2,788.38 4,647.30
8,000 1,615.86 2,693.10 1,356.84 2,261.40 43,000 3,236.85 5,394.75 2,829.15 4,715.25
9,000 1,691.28 2,818.80 1,420.74 2,367.90 44,000 3,281.40 5,469.00 2,869.92 4,783.20

10,000 1,766.70 2,944.50 1,484.64 2,474.40 45,000 3,325.95 5,543.25 2,910.69 4,851.15
11,000 1,811.25 3,018.75 1,524.51 2,540.85 46,000 3,370.50 5,617.50 2,951.46 4,919.10
12,000 1,855.80 3,093.00 1,565.28 2,608.80 47,000 3,415.05 5,691.75 2,992.23 4,987.05
13,000 1,900.35 3,167.25 1,606.05 2,676.75 48,000 3,459.60 5,766.00 3,033.00 5,055.00
14,000 1,944.90 3,241.50 1,646.82 2,744.70 49,000 3,504.15 5,840.25 3,073.77 5,122.95
15,000 1,989.45 3,315.75 1,687.59 2,812.65 50,000 3,548.70 5,914.50 3,114.54 5,190.90
16,000 2,034.00 3,390.00 1,728.36 2,880.60 51,000 3,593.25 5,988.75 3,155.31 5,258.85

CITY OF CUDAHY
GRADING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES - DRAFT

Effective Date: Jan. 9, 2016

VOLUME 
(cu. yds.) 

NOT OVER

GRADING VOLUME 
(cu. yds.) 

NOT OVER

GRADING

Permit Issuance Fee 
TAKE THE HIGHEST CUT/FILL (& ADD any OVEREXCAVATION) FOR PC & PERMIT FEES

Attachment E.3

Page 264 of 385



$25.83 New Fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT

CITY OF CUDAHY
GRADING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES - DRAFT

Effective Date: Jan. 9, 2016

VOLUME 
(cu. yds.) 

NOT OVER

GRADING VOLUME 
(cu. yds.) 

NOT OVER

GRADING

Permit Issuance Fee 
TAKE THE HIGHEST CUT/FILL (& ADD any OVEREXCAVATION) FOR PC & PERMIT FEES

17,000 2,078.55 3,464.25 1,769.13 2,948.55 52,000 3,637.80 6,063.00 3,196.08 5,326.80
18,000 2,123.10 3,538.50 1,809.90 3,016.50 53,000 3,682.35 6,137.25 3,236.85 5,394.75
19,000 2,167.65 3,612.75 1,850.67 3,084.45 54,000 3,726.90 6,211.50 3,277.62 5,462.70
20,000 2,212.20 3,687.00 1,891.44 3,152.40 55,000 3,771.45 6,285.75 3,318.39 5,530.65
21,000 2,256.75 3,761.25 1,932.21 3,220.35 56,000 3,816.00 6,360.00 3,359.16 5,598.60
22,000 2,301.30 3,835.50 1,972.98 3,288.30 57,000 3,860.55 6,434.25 3,399.93 5,666.55
23,000 2,345.85 3,909.75 2,013.75 3,356.25 58,000 3,905.10 6,508.50 3,440.70 5,734.50
24,000 2,390.40 3,984.00 2,054.52 3,424.20 59,000 3,949.65 6,582.75 3,481.47 5,802.45
25,000 2,434.95 4,058.25 2,095.29 3,492.15 60,000 3,994.20 6,657.00 3,522.24 5,870.40

Attachment E.3

Page 265 of 385



$25.83 New Fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT

CITY OF CUDAHY
GRADING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES - DRAFT

Effective Date: Jan. 9, 2016

VOLUME 
(cu. yds.) 

NOT OVER

GRADING VOLUME 
(cu. yds.) 

NOT OVER

GRADING

Permit Issuance Fee 
TAKE THE HIGHEST CUT/FILL (& ADD any OVEREXCAVATION) FOR PC & PERMIT FEES

61,000 4,038.75 6,731.25 3,563.01 5,938.35 96,000 5,598.00 9,330.00 4,989.96 8,316.60
62,000 4,083.30 6,805.50 3,603.78 6,006.30 97,000 5,642.55 9,404.25 5,030.73 8,384.55
63,000 4,127.85 6,879.75 3,644.55 6,074.25 98,000 5,687.10 9,478.50 5,071.50 8,452.50
64,000 4,172.40 6,954.00 3,685.32 6,142.20 99,000 5,731.65 9,552.75 5,112.27 8,520.45
65,000 4,216.95 7,028.25 3,726.09 6,210.15 100,000 5,776.20 9,627.00 5,153.04 8,588.40
66,000 4,261.50 7,102.50 3,766.86 6,278.10 110,000 5,906.16 9,843.60 5,256.81 8,761.35
67,000 4,306.05 7,176.75 3,807.63 6,346.05 120,000 6,029.28 10,048.80 5,358.42 8,930.70
68,000 4,350.60 7,251.00 3,848.40 6,414.00 130,000 6,152.40 10,254.00 5,460.03 9,100.05
69,000 4,395.15 7,325.25 3,889.17 6,481.95 140,000 6,275.52 10,459.20 5,561.64 9,269.40
70,000 4,439.70 7,399.50 3,929.94 6,549.90 150,000 6,398.64 10,664.40 5,663.25 9,438.75
71,000 4,484.25 7,473.75 3,970.71 6,617.85 160,000 6,521.76 10,869.60 5,764.86 9,608.10
72,000 4,528.80 7,548.00 4,011.48 6,685.80 170,000 6,644.88 11,074.80 5,866.47 9,777.45
73,000 4,573.35 7,622.25 4,052.25 6,753.75 180,000 6,768.00 11,280.00 5,968.08 9,946.80
74,000 4,617.90 7,696.50 4,093.02 6,821.70 190,000 6,891.12 11,485.20 6,069.69 10,116.15
75,000 4,662.45 7,770.75 4,133.79 6,889.65 200,000 7,014.24 11,690.40 6,171.30 10,285.50
76,000 4,707.00 7,845.00 4,174.56 6,957.60 210,000 7,137.36 11,895.60 6,272.91 10,454.85
77,000 4,751.55 7,919.25 4,215.33 7,025.55 220,000 7,260.48 12,100.80 6,374.52 10,624.20
78,000 4,796.10 7,993.50 4,256.10 7,093.50 230,000 7,383.60 12,306.00 6,476.13 10,793.55
79,000 4,840.65 8,067.75 4,296.87 7,161.45 240,000 7,506.72 12,511.20 6,577.74 10,962.90
80,000 4,885.20 8,142.00 4,337.64 7,229.40 250,000 7,629.84 12,716.40 6,679.35 11,132.25
81,000 4,929.75 8,216.25 4,378.41 7,297.35 260,000 7,752.96 12,921.60 6,780.96 11,301.60
82,000 4,974.30 8,290.50 4,419.18 7,365.30 270,000 7,876.08 13,126.80 6,882.57 11,470.95
83,000 5,018.85 8,364.75 4,459.95 7,433.25 280,000 7,999.20 13,332.00 6,984.18 11,640.30
84,000 5,063.40 8,439.00 4,500.72 7,501.20 290,000 8,122.32 13,537.20 7,085.79 11,809.65
85,000 5,107.95 8,513.25 4,541.49 7,569.15 300,000 8,245.44 13,742.40 7,187.40 11,979.00
86,000 5,152.50 8,587.50 4,582.26 7,637.10 310,000 8,368.56 13,947.60 7,289.01 12,148.35

Attachment E.3

Page 266 of 385



$25.83 New Fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT

CITY OF CUDAHY
GRADING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES - DRAFT

Effective Date: Jan. 9, 2016

VOLUME 
(cu. yds.) 

NOT OVER

GRADING VOLUME 
(cu. yds.) 

NOT OVER

GRADING

Permit Issuance Fee 
TAKE THE HIGHEST CUT/FILL (& ADD any OVEREXCAVATION) FOR PC & PERMIT FEES

87,000 5,197.05 8,661.75 4,623.03 7,705.05 320,000 8,491.68 14,152.80 7,390.62 12,317.70
88,000 5,241.60 8,736.00 4,663.80 7,773.00 330,000 8,614.80 14,358.00 7,492.23 12,487.05
89,000 5,286.15 8,810.25 4,704.57 7,840.95 340,000 8,737.92 14,563.20 7,593.84 12,656.40
90,000 5,330.70 8,884.50 4,745.34 7,908.90 350,000 8,861.04 14,768.40 7,695.45 12,825.75
91,000 5,375.25 8,958.75 4,786.11 7,976.85 360,000 8,984.16 14,973.60 7,797.06 12,995.10
92,000 5,419.80 9,033.00 4,826.88 8,044.80 370,000 9,107.28 15,178.80 7,898.67 13,164.45
93,000 5,464.35 9,107.25 4,867.65 8,112.75 380,000 9,230.40 15,384.00 8,000.28 13,333.80
94,000 5,508.90 9,181.50 4,908.42 8,180.70 390,000 9,353.52 15,589.20 8,101.89 13,503.15
95,000 5,553.45 9,255.75 4,949.19 8,248.65 400,000 9,476.64 15,794.40 8,203.50 13,672.50

Attachment E.3

Page 267 of 385



$25.83 New Fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT

CITY OF CUDAHY
GRADING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES - DRAFT

Effective Date: Jan. 9, 2016

VOLUME 
(cu. yds.) 

NOT OVER

GRADING VOLUME 
(cu. yds.) 

NOT OVER

GRADING

Permit Issuance Fee 
TAKE THE HIGHEST CUT/FILL (& ADD any OVEREXCAVATION) FOR PC & PERMIT FEES

410,000 9,599.76 15,999.60 8,305.11 13,841.85 710,000 13,054.95 21,758.25 11,353.41 18,922.35
420,000 9,722.88 16,204.80 8,406.72 14,011.20 720,000 13,166.82 21,944.70 11,455.02 19,091.70
430,000 9,846.00 16,410.00 8,508.33 14,180.55 730,000 13,278.69 22,131.15 11,556.63 19,261.05
440,000 9,969.12 16,615.20 8,609.94 14,349.90 740,000 13,390.56 22,317.60 11,658.24 19,430.40
450,000 10,092.24 16,820.40 8,711.55 14,519.25 750,000 13,502.43 22,504.05 11,759.85 19,599.75
460,000 10,215.36 17,025.60 8,813.16 14,688.60 760,000 13,614.30 22,690.50 11,861.46 19,769.10
470,000 10,338.48 17,230.80 8,914.77 14,857.95 770,000 13,726.17 22,876.95 11,963.07 19,938.45
480,000 10,461.60 17,436.00 9,016.38 15,027.30 780,000 13,838.04 23,063.40 12,064.68 20,107.80
490,000 10,584.72 17,641.20 9,117.99 15,196.65 790,000 13,949.91 23,249.85 12,166.29 20,277.15
500,000 10,707.84 17,846.40 9,219.60 15,366.00 800,000 14,061.78 23,436.30 12,267.90 20,446.50
510,000 10,817.55 18,029.25 9,321.21 15,535.35 810,000 14,173.65 23,622.75 12,369.51 20,615.85
520,000 10,929.42 18,215.70 9,422.82 15,704.70 820,000 14,285.52 23,809.20 12,471.12 20,785.20
530,000 11,041.29 18,402.15 9,524.43 15,874.05 830,000 14,397.39 23,995.65 12,572.73 20,954.55
540,000 11,153.16 18,588.60 9,626.04 16,043.40 840,000 14,509.26 24,182.10 12,674.34 21,123.90
550,000 11,265.03 18,775.05 9,727.65 16,212.75 850,000 14,621.13 24,368.55 12,775.95 21,293.25
560,000 11,376.90 18,961.50 9,829.26 16,382.10 860,000 14,733.00 24,555.00 12,877.56 21,462.60
570,000 11,488.77 19,147.95 9,930.87 16,551.45 870,000 14,844.87 24,741.45 12,979.17 21,631.95
580,000 11,600.64 19,334.40 10,032.48 16,720.80 880,000 14,956.74 24,927.90 13,080.78 21,801.30
590,000 11,712.51 19,520.85 10,134.09 16,890.15 890,000 15,068.61 25,114.35 13,182.39 21,970.65
600,000 11,824.38 19,707.30 10,235.70 17,059.50 900,000 15,180.48 25,300.80 13,284.00 22,140.00
610,000 11,936.25 19,893.75 10,337.31 17,228.85 910,000 15,292.35 25,487.25 13,385.61 22,309.35
620,000 12,048.12 20,080.20 10,438.92 17,398.20 920,000 15,404.22 25,673.70 13,487.22 22,478.70
630,000 12,159.99 20,266.65 10,540.53 17,567.55 930,000 15,516.09 25,860.15 13,588.83 22,648.05
640,000 12,271.86 20,453.10 10,642.14 17,736.90 940,000 15,627.96 26,046.60 13,690.44 22,817.40
650,000 12,383.73 20,639.55 10,743.75 17,906.25 950,000 15,739.83 26,233.05 13,792.05 22,986.75
660,000 12,495.60 20,826.00 10,845.36 18,075.60 960,000 15,851.70 26,419.50 13,893.66 23,156.10

Attachment E.3

Page 268 of 385



$25.83 New Fee: $43.05

P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT P.C. FEE NEW P.C. PERMIT FEE NEW PERMIT

CITY OF CUDAHY
GRADING PERMIT AND PLAN CHECKING FEES - DRAFT

Effective Date: Jan. 9, 2016

VOLUME 
(cu. yds.) 

NOT OVER

GRADING VOLUME 
(cu. yds.) 

NOT OVER

GRADING

Permit Issuance Fee 
TAKE THE HIGHEST CUT/FILL (& ADD any OVEREXCAVATION) FOR PC & PERMIT FEES

670,000 12,607.47 21,012.45 10,946.97 18,244.95 970,000 15,963.57 26,605.95 13,995.27 23,325.45
680,000 12,719.34 21,198.90 11,048.58 18,414.30 980,000 16,075.44 26,792.40 14,096.88 23,494.80
690,000 12,831.21 21,385.35 11,150.19 18,583.65 990,000 16,187.31 26,978.85 14,198.49 23,664.15
700,000 12,943.08 21,571.80 11,251.80 18,753.00 1,000,000 16,299.18 27,165.30 14,300.10 23,833.50

PLAN CHECK FEE (Above 1,000,000 Cu Yds):
CUBIC YARDS (subtract) 500,000 (divided by) 10,000 (times) 124.3 (plus) 11,895.2 (times) 1.5

PERMIT FEE (Above 1,000,000 Cu Yds):
CUBIC YARDS (subtract) 100,000 (divided by) 10,000 (times) 112.9 (plus) 5,728 (times) 1.5
Building Permit Fees are pursuant to the California Building Code, Section 107.1 and the County of Los Angeles 
Building Code Fee Schedule, Table 1-B. 
Building Plan Check Fees are pursuant to the California Building Code, Section 107.2 and the County of Los 
Angeles Building Code Fee Schedule, Table 1-C. 

Attachment E.3

Page 269 of 385



CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

FEES FEES
$25.83 $43.05

$48.78 $81.30
$122.13 $203.55

$3.96 $6.60

$34.65 $57.75
NOTE:

$12.06 $20.10

$3.69 $6.15

$61.02 $101.70
NOTE:

$20.43 $34.05

$8.70

$31.59 $52.65

MECHANICAL PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JAN. 9, 2016 - DRAFT

For the installation, relocation or replacement of each appliance vent installed and not included in a
appliance permit.  VAV (variable air volume) Boxes 

$25.29

$12.06

$36.27

$14.85

For the installation or alteration of each air handling unit for air conditioning including ducts attached thereto:

This fee shall not apply to an air handling unit which is a portion of a factory assembled air-conditioning appliance

for which a permit is required elsewhere in this Code.

Up to and including 2,000 CFM

Each unit over 10
More than 2,000 CFM and up to and including

10,000 CFM, each
More than 10,000 CFM, each

Each unit up to 10

An air-conditioned system includes heating and/or cooling.

MECHANICAL WORK DESCRIPTION

Up to and including 100,000 BTU
More than 100,000 BTU and up to and including 500,000 BTU
More than 500,000 BTU

For the installation, alteration, or relocation of each refrigeration compressor or absorption unit, and for each
fuel burning furnace, heater, boiler and vented decorative appliance including vents attached thereto:

For each air inlet and air outlet served by any air-conditioning system

For issuing each permit

Or when the number of air inlets and outlets are unknown, for each 1,000 square feet or fraction thereof of
conditioned area

For each ventilation system which is not a portion of any air-conditioning system for which a permit is
required elsewhere in this Code.

For each evaporative cooler other than portable type
For ventilation fans which serve a single register:

Each fan up to 10
Each fan over 10

$42.15

$20.10

$60.45

$24.75

Attachment E.4

Page 270 of 385



CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

MECHANICAL PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JAN. 9, 2016 - DRAFT

$61.02 $101.70
$16.50

$25.29 $42.15

$157.05 $261.75
NOTE:

$94.32 $157.20
$188.91 $314.85

$314.19

For the installation of each commercial kitchen hood, spray booth or product conveying duct system,
including the fans and ducts attached thereto
For the installation of each fire damper

For the alteration of an existing duct system for which a permit is not required elsewhere in this Code.
Investigation fee for work done without a required permit shall be equal to the permit

fee, but not less than:
Exception:  1 or 2 family dwellings, when work is performed by owner-builder:

These fees are charged in addition to the permit fee work done.

Noncompliance fee for R-3 occupancies:
Noncompliance fee for other occupancies:

$523.65

Attachment E.4

Page 271 of 385



CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

MECHANICAL PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JAN. 9, 2016 - DRAFT
FEES FEES

$204.48 $340.80
$102.24 $170.40

NOTE:

FEES FEES

1.

50% 50%
EXCEPTION:

50% 50%
5% 5%

(I)
(ii) $157.05 $261.75
(iii) $157.05 $261.75
(iv) $157.05 $261.75

$102.24 $170.40
2.

(I)
(ii) $235.89 $393.15
(iii) $235.89 $393.15
(iv) $235.89 $393.15

$157.05

$235.89

The plan check fee of the required mechanical permit fee shall be

MECHANICAL WORK DESCRIPTION (CONT.)

Alternate material fee (Initial Filing Fee)
Per hour

1. For a refrigeration system rating; one horsepower, one ton or 12,000 BTU per hour shall mean the same

quantity.

Stairs pressurization systems

Identical appliances of 100,000 BTU or less, installed in a single building;
Up to and including 10, (shall be 50% of permit fee)
For each appliance over 10, (an additional 5% of its permit fee)

2.  For steam boilers rated in boiler horsepower; one horsepower shall equal 50,000 BTU per hour.

MECHANICAL PLAN CHECK FEES

The Mechanical Code requires plan check fees to be paid at the time of submitting plans and specifications for:

Installations where the aggregate BTU input capacity for either comfort heating or comfort cooling is
more than 500,000 BTU. Plans shall detail all the mechanical systems proposed, including comfort
heating and comfort cooling systems, refrigeration systems and ventilation systems and hoods.

Garage ventilation systems
Stairs pressurization systems
Product conveying systems

Product conveying systems
The minimum plan checking fee (including all surcharges) shall be
Installations of the following individual systems:

A commercial type I or II hood

If any of the following systems is included in the work proposed, a surcharge shall be collected for
each of these systems as follows:

A commercial type I or II hood
Garage ventilation systems

$261.75

$393.15

Attachment E.4

Page 272 of 385



CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

MECHANICAL PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JAN. 9, 2016 - DRAFT
3.

$25.29 $42.15
$51.12 $85.20

$102.24 $170.40

With a minimum fee of

In addition to the aforementioned fees, the Chief Mechanical Inspector may require additional charges for
plan check services beyond the initial and second check when such additional work is due to changes,
omissions, or errors on the part of the plan check applicant.  (Fees shall be charged per hour)
The payment of said charges shall not exempt any person from compliance with other provisions of this
Code.

Tenant improvement installations requiring review to verify compliance with the State's Energy
Regulations, when a building permit is not required for that work, of conditioned space, the fee shall
be per 1,000 sq. ft.

Attachment E.4

Page 273 of 385



FEES FEES
$25.83 $43.05

$393.03 $655.05

$204.03 $340.05

$502.83 $838.05
$605.07 $1,008.45

$1,006.02 $1,676.70
$1,524.87 $2,541.45

$355.23 $592.05

$152.46 $254.10
$204.03 $340.05

$152.46 $254.10
$24.48 $40.80

$406.26 $677.10
$812.70 $1,354.50
$151.02 $251.70

$91.62 $152.70
$91.62 $152.70
$85.95 $143.25

$2.70 $4.50

$32.04 $53.40

$121.41 $202.35

For inspection of the repair or rehabilitation of a building or structure declared substandard by notice, the
fee shall be based on the valuation, but not less than 

For inspection of the demolition (including sewage system termination) of a building or structure

For inspection of structures or devices regulated by Chapter 66, the first inspection of the first structure or
device

For inspection of any use, occupancy or change in use or occupancy 
Group R or U Occupancy
Occupancy groups other than R and U 

Floor Area:  Up to 2,500 square feet

For investigation and/or permit for trailer coaches required by Chapter 69
For inspection outside of normal business hours, per hour
For inspection for which no fee is specifically indicated, per hour

For search of office records and a single copy of a permit
For inspection of barriers for swimming pools, spas and hot tubs

For each hour expended responding to public records requests which do not reasonably describe
identifiable records
For Approval in Concept review pursuant to the 1976 Coastal Act (section 30,000 et seq. Public
Resources Code)

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

OTHER FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JAN. 9, 2016 - DRAFT

Permit Issuance Fee - to be paid in addition to the fees set forth below
OTHER WORK DESCRIPTION

Floor Area: Over 2,500 square feet

Affected floor area of up to 5,000 square feet
Affected floor area of 5,001 to 10,000 square feet
Affected floor area of 10,001 to 100,000 square feet
Affected floor area of above 100,001 square feet

and, for each additional structure or device.

For application and investigation for relocation building permits as required by Chapter 68:

For inspection of reinspection of Group A, Division 4, structures each

For site inspection not otherwise covered herein by a fee and which is regulated by the Building Code.

Attachment E.5

Page 274 of 385



FEES FEES

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

OTHER FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JAN. 9, 2016 - DRAFT

Permit Issuance Fee - to be paid in addition to the fees set forth below
OTHER WORK DESCRIPTION

$384.84 $641.40

$949.59 $1,582.65
$6,121.98 $10,203.30

$157.59 $262.65

For geotechnical site review and processing geology or engineering reports submitted pursuant to
Sections 110, 111, 113, 1804 and Appendix Section 3309:

Geotechnical site review (to determine if geotechnical reports are required)
Geotechnical review of building plans and geotechnical reports

reports)  The fee shall be 0.42% of the valuation of the proposed structure

and the maximum fee shall be
Review of Geotechnical addenda beyond third review  (per hour)

Geotechnical report, site, and plans review (review of initial and two addenda reports)  The fee 

However, the minimum fee shall be

Attachment E.5

Page 275 of 385



FEES FEES

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

OTHER FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JAN. 9, 2016 - DRAFT

Permit Issuance Fee - to be paid in addition to the fees set forth below
OTHER WORK DESCRIPTION

$384.84 $641.40

$762.39 $1,270.65

$628.47 $1,047.45
$840.15 $1,400.25

$1,145.16 $1,908.60
$1,505.43 $2,509.05
$1,505.43 $2,509.05

$94.05 $156.75

$1,317.15 $2,195.25
$1,975.14 $3,291.90
$2,397.87 $3,996.45
$3,291.21 $5,485.35
$3,291.21 $5,485.35

$141.30 $235.50
$157.59 $262.65
$361.71 $602.85

$102.24 $170.40
$28.98 $48.30

$2.70 $4.50
$50.40 $84.00

$102.24 $170.40

$102.24 $170.40
$94.32 $157.20

1 - 1,000 cubic yards

Reproduction of microfilmed plans
plus additional fee for each sheet to be reproduced

10,001 - 100,000 cubic yards
100,001 - 500,000 cubic yards
5001,001 cubic yards and above the fee shall be

5001,001 cubic yards and above the fee shall be

Assignment of house numbers

For additional review required beyond the initial and second check of plans or reports, per hour

1,001 - 10,000 cubic yards

plus/100,000 cubic yards of additional grading 

1 - 1,000 cubic yards
1,001 - 10,000 cubic yards

For additional review required by changes, addition, or revisions of approved or resubmitted plans or
reports, per hour

For processing Coastal Engineering Reports

Geotechnical site inspections and geotechnical report review PRIOR to building      permit application

Geotechnical report and plan review prior to building permit application (per review) 
Geotechnical review of grading plans:

Geotechnical site review (to determine if geotechnical reports are required)

plus/100,000 cubic yards of additional grading

100,001 - 500,000 cubic yards

Geotechnical report and grading plan review (review of initial & two addenda reports):

Review of Geotechnical addenda beyond third review (per hour)

For the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy

10,001 - 100,000 cubic yards

For determining occupant load for purposes of parking requirements pursuant to Title 22 (Zoning
Ordinance)

Attachment E.5

Page 276 of 385



FEES FEES

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

OTHER FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JAN. 9, 2016 - DRAFT

Permit Issuance Fee - to be paid in addition to the fees set forth below
OTHER WORK DESCRIPTION

$141.75 $236.25
$94.32 $157.20

$412.11 $686.85
$327.51 $545.85

$281.79 $469.65

$204.48 $340.80
$102.24 $170.40For each hour or fraction thereof, in excess of two 

For processing and recording a Notice of Violation pursuant to Section 103.4

For processing and recording a Rescission of Notice of Violation pursuant to Section 103.4

For the issuance of a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy
For each extension of a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy

For investigation of alternate materials and methods of construction.  For the initial filing fee

For processing of 45-day notice pursuant to Section 103.4

Attachment E.5

Page 277 of 385



FEES FEES

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

OTHER FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JAN. 9, 2016 - DRAFT

Permit Issuance Fee - to be paid in addition to the fees set forth below
OTHER WORK DESCRIPTION

$204.48 $340.80
$102.24 $170.40

$76.41 $127.35
$140.40 $234.00

$314.19 $523.65

$157.05 $261.75

$94.32 $157.20
$188.91 $314.85
$401.22 $668.70

Fee exemption -- Affordable Housing. Any nonprofit organization shall be exempt from any plan check,
permit and inspection fees if it obtains approval from the Community Development Director that such
dwelling units qualify as housing for lower income or very-low income households.

Preliminary plan review for conceptual approval, code application/interpretation prior to submittal of
permit application (two staff-hour minimum)      (Exception: no fee for 15 minutes or less)

Regarding initial determination as an unreinforced masonry building
(URM)/potentially earthquake hazardous building

Group R-3 occupancy
All other occupancies

Regarding the unsafe conditions of building or structure per Sec. 102.4.1

Request for hearing before Building Board of Appeals

Exception:

Regarding the initial determination as a welded steel moment frame building in a
high earthquake damaged area
Regarding the initial determination as a pre- April 13, 1975 Concrete Tilt-up
Building

Noncompliance fee, when person fails to comply with written order:

Additional fee beyond minimum, per hour or fraction thereof

Minimum plan check fee for plans to be "standardized"

Review of drawings and date which are sufficient to determine nature and scope of work in lieu of
submittal of plans and specifications (including pedestrian protection, underground tanks, etc.)

Investigation fee for work done without a required permit shall be equal to the permit

Exception:  One or two family dwellings, when work is performed by owner-builder

fee, but not less than

Attachment E.5

Page 278 of 385



$25.83 $43.05

$15.12 $25.20
$15.12 $25.20

$8.19 $13.65
$15.12 $25.20
$43.83 $73.05

$15.12 $25.20

$15.12 $25.20

$15.12 $25.20
$3.87 $6.45

$62.64 $104.40
$3.87 $6.45

$15.12 $25.20
$15.12 $25.20
$15.12 $25.20
$15.12 $25.20
$15.12 $25.20
$15.12 $25.20

$15.12 $25.20
$47.34 $78.90

$102.24 $170.40

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

PLUMBING PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JAN. 9, 2016 - DRAFT

Table No. I FEES

For issuing each permit

For each plumbing fixture or trap or set of fixtures on one trap (including drainage, vent, water piping
and backflow prevention devices therefor), (hose bibbs are considered fixtures)

PLUMBING WORK DESCRIPTION

For each permanent-type dishwasher whether individually trapped or not
For future stacks or branches, each waste inlet
For each roof drain
For each drainage or sewer backwater valve
For each industrial waste pretreatment interceptor, including its trap and vent, excepting kitchen-type
grease interceptors functioning as fixture traps
For each swimming pool drainage trap and receptor, whether connected to a building drain or a building
sewer (water supply for pool not included)
For each gas piping system on any one meter or alteration, extension or retest of existing gas piping
system:

Each system
Additional fee for each outlet

5 outlets or less
For each additional outlet over five

Low pressure system:

Medium or high pressure system:

For each gas meter not under control and maintenance of the serving gas supplier
For each gas pressure regulator other than appliance regulators
For each water heater and/or vent
For repair or alteration of drainage and/or vent piping, each fixture
For each piece of water-treating equipment
For each water pressure regulator
For potable water not covered elsewhere in fee schedule:

1-1/2 inch and smaller
2 inches to 3 inches
Over 3 inches

FEES

Attachment E.6

Page 279 of 385



CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

PLUMBING PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JAN. 9, 2016 - DRAFT

FEESPLUMBING WORK DESCRIPTION FEES

$6.30 $10.50
$15.12 $25.20

$15.12 $25.20
$15.12 $25.20
$50.85 $84.75

For replacing water piping in a building (1) each fixture, each water treating device and each piece of
water-using or dispensing equipment, or (2) each branch or riser that has none of the above items
connected thereto

For each solar potable water-heating system, including water heater and vent

For sprinkling systems on any one meter, each backflow prevention device therefor
For each backflow-prevention device on unprotected water supplies, pools, tanks, vats, etc. (including
incidental water piping)
For each trap primer

Attachment E.6

Page 280 of 385



CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

PLUMBING PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JAN. 9, 2016 - DRAFT

FEESPLUMBING WORK DESCRIPTION FEES

$314.19 $523.65
$157.05 $261.75

$94.32 $157.20
$188.91 $314.85
$204.48 $340.80
$102.24 $170.40

$25.83 $43.05

$43.83 $73.05
$43.83 $73.05
$28.26 $47.10
$28.26 $47.10
$28.26 $47.10

$89.82 $149.70
$89.82 $149.70

$43.83 $73.05

$28.26 $47.10

For the connection of a house sewer to a private sewage disposal system

For each private sewage disposal system (septic tank and seepage pits or pits and/or drainfield)
For each grey water system (storage tanks and disposal/irrigation fields)
For each cesspool, overflow seepage pit, percolation test pit, swimming pool drywell, or drainfield
extension or replacement
For disconnection, abandonment, alteration or repair of any house sewer or private sewage disposal
system or part thereof

For each installation of a section of house sewer for future use

For issuing each permit

For the connection of a house sewer to a public sewer, or for the extension of a house lateral onto a lot
for future use (separate permit required for each such connection or extension)
For each house sewer manhole

per hour

R-3 occupancies
Other occupancies

PLUMBING WORK DESCRIPTION

Alternate material fee

Investigation fee for work done without a required permit shall be equal to the permit

For the connection of each additional building or additional work to a house sewer

FEES

FEESFEESTable No. I

FEESTable No. II

fee, but not less than
Exception: 1 or 2 family dwellings, when work is performed by owner-builder

PLUMBING WORK DESCRIPTION (CONT.)

Noncompliance fee:

Attachment E.6

Page 281 of 385



CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

PLUMBING PERMIT FEES - EFFECTIVE DATE: JAN. 9, 2016 - DRAFT

FEESPLUMBING WORK DESCRIPTION FEESFEES FEES
(a)

40% of 
Permit

40% of 
Permit

1.
2.
3.

1. $156.96 $261.60
2. $54.90 $91.50
3. $31.23 $52.05
4. $102.24 $170.40

$102.24 $170.40
(b)

1. Combination waste and vent systems $235.89 $393.15
2. Gas system containing an earthquake actuated shut-off valve $78.39 $130.65
3. Chemical waste system $47.34 $78.90
4. Rainwater system $157.05 $261.75
5. Grey water system $89.82 $149.70

(c)

$102.24 $170.40
The payment of said fees shall not exempt any person from compliance with other provisions of
this Code.

Combination waste and vent system
Gas system containing an earthquake actuated shut-off valve
Chemical waste system
Rainwater system

In addition to the aforementioned fees, the Chief Plumbing Inspector may require additional
charges for plan check services beyond the initial and second check when such additional work
is due to changes, omissions or errors on the part of the plan check applicant. Fees shall be
charged per hour.

The minimum plan checking fee (including all surcharges) shall be

For plan checking individual systems not required to be reviewed under Subsection (a) above:

All plumbing systems proposed shall be submitted for review when a project (building or
premises) taken as a whole has any of the following:

More than 216 waste fixture units;

Fuel gas piping required to be 2" or larger or containing medium or high pressure gas.

PLUMBING PLAN CHECKING

A plan checking fee as indicated shall be paid to the Chief Plumbing Inspector at the time of
submitting plans and specifications for work described in this subsection. Said fee shall be
equal to 40% of the required plumbing permit fee as set forth in Table I of this Article.

If any of the following systems is included in the work proposed, a surcharge shall be collected
for each of these systems as follows:

Potable water supply piping required to be 2" or larger; or

Attachment E.6

Page 282 of 385



FEES FEES

1 $304.02 $506.70
2 $407.07 $678.45
3 $206.64 $344.40
4 $212.22 $353.70
5 $162.54 $270.90
6 $412.11 $686.85
7 $327.51 $545.85
8 $281.79 $469.65
9 $121.41 $202.35
10 $121.41 $202.35
11 $205.92 $343.20

Contract Cancellation
Contract Performance Inspection

NOTE:   Use fees #1 and #5 in addition to actual bill for Notice of Cost
             Use fees #10 and #11 in addition to Notice of Cost fee for Filing of Special Assessment

For processing a 45-day letter
For processing a Notice of Violation
For processing a Rescission of Notice of Violation
Billing
Record special assessment
Filing a special assessment

SERVICE
DESCRIPTION:

Investigation and Processing
Preparation of Job Specifications
City Council approval

CITY OF CUDAHY
BUILDING AND SAFETY DEPARTMENT

TABLE 1-F  CODE ENFORCEMENT FEES
EFFECTIVE DATE: JAN. 9, 2016

Attachment E.7

Page 283 of 385



Attachment F 
 

12 SEPTEMBER 2015 
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 
 

BUILDING PERMIT FEE ADJUSTMENT REPORT 
 
 

 This September 2015 City of Cudahy Building Permit Fee Adjustment Report (the 
“Report”) has been prepared in support of a proposed modification of the City of Cudahy 
(“City”) building permit fee schedule. 
 
 The review of building improvement plans and the issuance of building permits by the 
City is one of the more important and costly life-safety regulatory programs which is 
administered by the City.  The City is authorized under State Law to charge service fees to 
recover some, or all, of the necessary and reasonable costs borne by of the City to administer this 
particular regulatory program.  These fees are payable by persons who seek to construct or install 
improvements to properties. 
 
 The City currently assesses or charges building permit fees in accordance with a 
regulatory fee schedule which uses the Los Angeles County Building Permit Program Fee 
Schedule as a reference rate (See: Cudahy Municipal Code Sections 15.04.030 [Building], 
15.08.030 [Electrical], 15.12.030 [Plumbing] and 15.16.040 [Mechanical]). 
 
 At the present time, the City charges building permit fees at a fraction of the Los Angeles 
County Building Permit Program Fee reference rate (See: Cudahy City Council Resolution No. 
99-34). 
 
 In addition, the City Building Permit Program is not currently collecting fee revenues 
which are equal to the City’s costs of administering the program.  The budgeted cost to the City 
in comparison to the building permit fee revenues collected by the City is presented as follows: 
 
City Fiscal Year   City Building Permit   City Building Permit 
     Program Budget  Program Fee Revenue 
 
2012-13    $ 100,541   $ 71,163 
 
2013-14    $ 112,693   $ 108,216 
 
2014-15    $184,094   $ 115,833 
 
 For City Fiscal Year 2015-16 the budget for the City Building Permit Program has been 
set at $ 193,000  . 
 
 This program cost figure for City Fiscal Year 2014-15 includes the expense of a new City 
Building Permit Program management, time keeping and file archive system will greatly 
enhance the reliability and efficiency of the City Building Permit Program. 
 

Page 284 of 385



 In the past, the City has used general fund revenues to supplement the building permit 
regulatory fees collected by the City Building Department to offset the total cost of administering 
the program. 
 
 However, there are other demands on the City general fund, and State Law authorizes the 
City to charge regulatory fees under the City Building Permit Program which would allow the 
City program to be self-sustaining and not require a subsidy from the City general fund. 
 
 The City staff have prepared an estimate of the potential building permit fee revenue 
which could be collected, beginning in City Fiscal year 2015-16 provided that the Building 
Permit Program fees were adjusted to reflect a rate sufficient to match budgeted expenditures 
with likely revenues: 
 
 Proposed Rate Adjustment      Revenue Estimate 
          (FY 2015-16) 
 
 Increase City building permit fee rates to be at 50% of 
 L.A. County reference rates:      $ 193,000  
 
  
 
 

 

Page 285 of 385



Press-Telegram • The Beach Reporter

Daily Breeze • Palos Verdes Peninsula News
Advertising Order Confirmation Page 1 of 3

11:38:33AM10/28/15

Ad Order Number Customer

0010731351 CITY OF CUDAHY

Payor Customer PO Number

CITY OF CUDAHY

Sales Representative Customer Account Payor Account Ordered By

Tammy Butikofer 5007693 5007693 Laura Valdivia

Order Taker Customer Address Payor Address Customer Fax

Tammy Butikofer 5220 SANTA ANA STREET 5220 SANTA ANA STREET

BELL, CA  90201 BELL, CA  90201

323-773-5143323-773-5143Select Source
Customer EMailPayor PhoneCustomer PhoneOrder Source

Current Queue Invoice Text Ad Order Notes
Ready

Tear Sheets Affidavits Blind Box                              Materials                              Promo Type                       Special Pricing                

 0  0  

Attachment G.1

Page 286 of 385



Press-Telegram • The Beach Reporter

Daily Breeze • Palos Verdes Peninsula News
Advertising Order Confirmation Page 2 of 3

11:38:33AM10/28/15

Ad Number Production NotesProduction MethodAd AttributesProduction ColorColorAd Size

AdBooker0010731351-01 3 X 93 Li

External Ad Number Ad TypePick Up Released for Publication

Legal Liner

Attachment G.1

Page 287 of 385



Press-Telegram • The Beach Reporter

Daily Breeze • Palos Verdes Peninsula News
Advertising Order Confirmation Page 3 of 3

11:38:33AM10/28/15

Product Run Dates # InsertsRequested Placement Requested Position

Press Telegram 10/30/15Legals CLS General - 1076~ 1 

Order Charges:
Amount DuePayment AmountPayment MethodTotal AmountTax AmountNet Amount

 566.59  0.00Invoice 566.59 0.00 $566.59 

If this confirmation includes an advertising proof, please check your proof carefully for errors, spelling, and/or typos. Errors not marked on the returned proof are not subject to credit or refunds.

Please note: To meet our printer’s deadline, we must have your proof returned by the published deadline, and as indicated by your sales rep. If we have not heard from you by that time, we will 

assume that your ad is correct, and it will run as is.

Please note: If you pay by bank card, your card statement will show the merchant as "LA NEWSPAPER GROUP".

D:\NEWSCYCLE Solutions\AdBase Services\AdbaseWebServices\2342f605-0c07-4801-aba2-05b69939ddab_LANG Order Confirmation.rpt r.LP8-10/26/15 Database: LANGProd

Attachment G.1

Page 288 of 385



Attachment G.2 
 

CITY OF CUDAHY  
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 
TO ALL INTERESTED PERSONS 
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the City Council of the City of Cudahy, California, shall 
conduct a public hearing in the City of Cudahy’s City Council Chambers on November 9, 
2015, commencing at 6:30 p.m. to consider the following matters: 
 

 
“FIRST READING OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CUDAHY AMENDING SECTIONS 15-040-030 15.08.030, AND 15.12.030 
AND ADDING SECTION 15.16.040  TO THE CUDAHY MUNICIPAL CODE REDUCING 
THE  MUTIPLIER OF COUNTY BUILDING FEES 

 
 

The public hearing shall be conducted by the City Council as follows: 
 

Date:  11/9/2015 
Time:  6:30 PM 
Place:  City Council Chambers 
  5220 Santa Ana Street 
  Cudahy, CA 90201 
 

Interested persons may contact the Building Division at (323) 773-5143 to obtain further 
information regarding the public hearing as hereby scheduled.  Interested persons may 
submit written or oral objections to the proposed Ordinance at any time prior to the public 
hearing to the City Clerk of the City of Cudahy, either in electronic form addressed to 
mallen@cityofcudahyca.gov or by personal delivery or by United States Mail addressed to: 
 

City Clerk 
City of Cudahy  
5220 Santa Ana Street 
Cudahy, CA 90201 

 
Interested persons may also appear at the time of the public hearing and present comments 
and testimony to the City Council. 
 
 
Notice given:  October 30, 2015      CITY OF CUDAHY 
             
        __________________________ 
         
        City Clerk 
        City of Cudahy 
 
Publish:  October 30, 2015 

Page 289 of 385

mailto:mallen@cityofcudahyca.gov


 
 

Blank Page 

Page 290 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/09/2015  Page 1 of 2 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  November 9, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director  

Subject: City Council Appointments to the General Plan Advisory Committee (GPAC) 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to appoint up to three individuals to the General Plan Advisory 
Committee (GPAC) per Council Member. 

 
 

BACKGROUND 
 

1. On October 17, 2014, the City Council approved the Fiscal Year (FY) 2014 - 2015 Budget 
which included a total of $150,000 to commence the General Plan Update.   

 
2. On June 29, 2015, the City Council approved the FY 2015 - 2016 City Budget which 

included a total of $400,000 to commence the General Plan Update.    
 

3. On August 10, 2015, the City Council awarded a Professional Services Agreement to MIG 
in an amount not to exceed $488,088 ($379,368 for the preparation of the Cudahy 
General Plan Update and $108,720 for the preparation of the optional Development 
Code Update). 
 

4. On September 23, 2015, City staff and the MIG project team met for the General Plan 
Update kick-off meeting, and identified next steps, which includes the Council 
appointment of a GPAC. 

 
5. On October 12, 2015, City staff presented the purpose and intent of the GPAC and 

requested City Council to consider up to three appointments each, to be made at the 
next regularly scheduled City Council meeting. 

         

Item Number 

12A 

Page 291 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/09/2015  Page 2 of 2 
    

ANALYSIS 
 
As part of the City’s 2015 - 2016 Cudahy General Plan Update, City staff and the MIG project 
team met to kick-off the project, exchange data and information, finalize protocols and 
communications, discuss the stakeholder process, and outline overall expectations and 
desired project outcomes.  Additionally, the project team toured the City highlighting 
individual neighborhoods and community areas, key issues and opportunity sites as well as 
where land use changes may be considered in the near future. The focus of the tour was to 
view and understand the neighborhoods, districts, and opportunity areas. Following the 
meeting, the project team will prepare a detailed project schedule, identify stakeholders to 
be interviewed, and solidify the GPAC (General Plan Advisory Committee). 
 
Central to the community engagement program of the General Plan Update will be the GPAC. 
The GPAC can be made up of 10 – 15 community stakeholders, including residents, business 
owners, and representatives from community organizations including student 
representatives. 

 
 

CONCLUSION 
 

This advisory committee will be critical to get feedback representing the community vision, 
and build the foundation of the updated General Plan. Respectively, City Council members 
are requested to appoint up to three individuals to the GPAC. 
 
City Council appointments will stand unless the appointing Council Member chooses to 
modify their appointment. Appointed GPAC members will be treated equally and fairly as 
representatives of the Cudahy community. 

 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
None. 

Page 292 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

 
Staff Report 
10/26/2015  Page 1 of 6 

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Date:  November 9, 2015 

To: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

From:  Rick R. Olivarez, City Attorney 
By: Jose E. Pulido, City Manager 
By: Steven Dobrenen, Finance Director 

Subject: Consideration to Review Cudahy Municipal Code (CMC) Chapter 3.16 
Regarding the City’s Purchasing System and Comparison with Other Cities 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the City Council receive the presentation and consider providing 
direction to City staff for any further action. 
 

BACKGROUND 

1. On June 22, 2015, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 649, which amended the 
purchasing system procedures set forth in Chapter 3.16 of the Cudahy Municipal Code 
(“CMC”).  

Among the changes made by that ordinance was to add a provision for the City to 
participate in cooperative purchasing agreements with federal, state or local 
governments to procure supplies and equipment at a lower price than if the City had 
purchased on its own. The ordinance also increased the threshold for requiring formal 
bid procedures and City Council approval from to $5,000 to $25,000. 

The City Council has requested the City Attorney to further review the City’s 
purchasing system, compare it to those of other cities, and report to the Council on 
any potential areas of improvement. 

 

Item Number 

12B 

Page 293 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

 
Staff Report 
10/26/2015  Page 2 of 6 

2. On October 26, 2015, the Council reviewed this matter and they requested that it be 
brought back at the next City Council meeting in order to allow their colleagues to 
provide input. 

 
 
ANALYSIS 

1. Three Types of Contracts and State Law Requirements: 

A. Goods and Supplies, Equipment, Materials, and Non-Professional Services 

State law does not establish a certain threshold for requiring competitive 
bidding for the purchase of goods and supplies, equipment, materials, and 
nonprofessional services.1 But it does require each city to have its own 
ordinance of policies and procedures, including bidding regulations. (Gov. 
Code § 54202.) 

Cudahy requires the following procedures for contracts for supplies, 
equipment, and non-professional services: 

Above $25,000:   City Council Approval    
Formal bid procedures. 

 
$5,000 – $25,000:  City Manager Authority   
“Whenever possible” award to lowest bidder based on three informal quotes.   

 
Under $5,000:   City Manager Authority  
Open market, no bid procedures. 

 
B. Professional Services 

State law does not require competitive bidding for contracts for “professional 
services” because selection decisions may be based less on price and more on 
special training, experience, and competency.2 Accordingly, Cudahy’s 
ordinance does not require bidding, but specifies the following: 

                                                           
1 See San Diego Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies v. Superior Court (Cubic Communications, 
Inc.) (1988) 198 Cal.App.3d 1466. 
2 “The legislative body of any public or municipal corporation or district may contract with and 
employ any persons for the furnishing to the corporation or district special services and advice in 

Page 294 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

 
Staff Report 
10/26/2015  Page 3 of 6 

Selection may be through negotiation or request for proposals, and City staff 
should “attempt to obtain [pricing] from different sources.” (CMC § 3.16.160-
A.) 

City Council approval required for $25,000 or more. 

C. Public Works Projects 

Contracts for public works projects are governed by the state Local Agency 
Public Construction Act (Pub. Contract Code § 20100 et seq.), which requires 
competitive bidding for such contracts where the expenditure exceeds $5,000. 
(Id. § 20162.)  

A “public project” subject to this law means building or repairing public 
buildings and works; street or sewer work (except maintenance/repair); and 
supplies and materials for such projects (including maintenance/repair of 
streets, sewers). (Id. § 20161.) 

Cudahy must follow state law bidding procedures for public projects. The City’s 
Purchasing Ordinance does not reproduce these procedures, and specifically 
refers to compliance with the Public Contract Code for emergency purchases, 
and certain design-build contracts for public works projects. 

2. Purchasing Systems of Cudahy, Downey, Santa Monica, Pasadena, and Calabasas. 

We prepared the attached table to summarize and compare key provisions of the 
purchasing systems of Cudahy and four other cities: Downey, Santa Monica, 
Pasadena, and Calabasas.  

The CMC Purchasing Ordinance appears to be in line with the systems used in other 
cities. No CMC purchasing provision appears to stand out as lacking in transparency.  

Cudahy’s $25,000 threshold for requiring City Council approval of contracts matches 
Calabasas. Santa Monica and Pasadena have higher thresholds.  

Both Cudahy and Pasadena require formal noticed bidding for contracts over 
$25,000.  

                                                                                                                                                                                
financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal, or administrative matters if such persons are 
specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required….” 
(Gov. Code § 53060.) 

Page 295 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

 
Staff Report 
10/26/2015  Page 4 of 6 

In the case of professional services, none of these cities requires formal bidding, 
although nothing prohibits it. Santa Monica’s provision is the most detailed by listing 
factors to consider, such as price, the firm’s credentials and reputation, etc.  

The City of Downey has relatively few procedures and gives the Finance Director 
great discretion over when to employ formal bid procedures. In the interest of 
transparency, we do not recommend following this model. 

3. Committee to Advise on Purchasing. 

The Council requested that we specifically address the potential use of ad hoc 
committees to review contract proposals from vendors and make recommendations 
to the City Council.  

We found no example codified into a city’s purchasing procedures of the use of such 
advisory committees. Nonetheless, city councils have the ability to create 
committees, and it is not necessary to describe this power in the municipal code. 
For example, although the use of an advisory committee is not required by its 
procurement policy, the Central Basin Municipal Water District relied on a “legal ad 
hoc” committee to review proposals and make recommendations for its selection of 
general counsel. 

CMC section 2.04.030 provides for committee reports to be presented at City 
Council meetings.  

4. Brown Act Considerations. 

If it creates an advisory committee, the City must take into account the open 
meeting requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act. The general rule is that 
committees appointed by the City Council—“whether permanent or temporary, 
decision making or advisory”—are subject to open meeting laws, including agenda 
posting and adherence to public hearing procedures. (Gov. Code § 54952(b).)  

Certain temporary committees, however, are exempt from the Brown Act. It is 
sometimes a challenge to determine whether an advisory committee meeting is a 
Brown Act public “meeting” or not. The conservative approach is to comply even if 
not required. 

Clearly, any meeting of a committee comprising three or more City Council 
members would constitute a Brown Act public meeting. Also subject to the Brown 
Act, regardless of its composition, is a “standing” committee that has either: (i) 

Page 296 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

 
Staff Report 
10/26/2015  Page 5 of 6 

“continuing subject matter jurisdiction,” or (ii) a meeting schedule fixed by council 
action. (Gov. Code § 54952(b).) 

The Brown Act does not use the term “ad hoc.” But if such a temporary advisory 
committee was created for a specific task and for a limited time, and it will be 
dissolved once that task is completed, it will likely be regarded as not subject to the 
Brown Act.3 

The particular facts of the situation must be considered in any Brown Act 
analysis. But in short, if the Council creates a standing advisory committee on 
contracts—even if it includes only two or less councilmembers—that committee 
would likely be subject to Brown Act public meeting requirements because of its 
continuing subject matter jurisdiction. In contrast, if the Council creates a 
committee to advise it on a single contract, after which the committee will be 
disbanded, it would likely not be subject to the Brown Act. 

 
 

CONCLUSION 

The CMC Purchasing Ordinance appears to be in line with the systems used in other cities. 

Cudahy exceeds state law by requiring formal bid procedures for contracts for goods and 
supplies, equipment, and nonprofessional services above $25,000. The CMC also states 
that staff should “attempt to obtain [pricing] from different sources” of professional 
services, although this is not required by state law. 

We do not recommend adopting Downey’s procedure of giving the Finance Director broad 
discretion to decide when to require formal bidding procedures.  

We found no example of a city’s purchasing procedures requiring the use of an advisory 
committee. But cities are always able to create committees, and it is not necessary to 
describe this power in the CMC. An ad hoc committee formed to advise on a single 
contract would likely not be subject to the Brown Act, while a standing committee on 
contracts probably would.  
 
 

                                                           
3 See League of California Cities, Open & Public IV: A Guide to the Ralph M. Brown Act, p. 10 (2nd 
ed., 2010). 

Page 297 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

 
Staff Report 
10/26/2015  Page 6 of 6 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

Financial impact cannot be determined until a proposed change or reform to the 
purchasing procedures has been identified. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT 

A. Table comparing the purchasing procedures of the Cities of Cudahy, Downey, Santa 
Monica, Pasadena, and Calabasas. 

 

Page 298 of 385



  Attachment A 
 

 
Procedure 

 
Cudahy 

 
Downey 

 
Santa Monica 

 
Pasadena 

 
Calabasas 

 

 

Award 
Authority 

Council approval for $25K or 
more. 

Purchasing Officer (CM or 
designee) authority for 
contracts under $25K. 

Purchasing Agent (appointed by 
Finance Dir.) responsible for 
adherence to procedures and 
adopting administrative 
regulations. 

Council awards those contracts 
subject to formal bids, and 
otherwise directed by Finance 
Director. 

City Council awards 
professional services contracts 
over $80K, and G&S contracts 
over $175K. 

Council approval for $75K 
or more. Council has 
power to exempt contracts 
from purchasing 
requirements by resolution. 

Council approval for $25K 
or more. 

CM together with 
department head authority 
for contracts under $50K. 

Department head 
authority for contracts 
under $10K. 

Formal 
Noticed Bid 
Procedures 

G&S contracts over 

$25K. 

No dollar value distinctions. 
Formal bid procedures apply 
“when so directed by the Finance 
Director.” 

G&S contracts over $175K. G&S contracts of 

$25K or more. 

G&S contracts of $50K or 
more. 

 

 

Informal 
Procedures 
(no bid, 
“open 
market”) 

G&S contracts: 

$5K-$25K: based on 3 
informal quotes, where 
possible.   

Under $5K: no required 
procedure 

City Manager or his 
designee can authorize 
purchases provided that 
purchases authorized by 
designee must be included 
as part of an approved and 
adopted City budget. 

Finance Director has authority 
to issue directive to use “open 
market” procedure (solicitation 
of bids from certain vendors) 
instead of formal bids. 

Unique goods or services. 

Maintenance-related 
purchases under $10K. 

G&S contracts under 

$175K to be based on 
three solicited bids. 

Contracts under $25K. 
(Above $3,000 requires 
three vendor quotes.) 

CM has authority to 
exempt contracts under 
$75K from formal bid 
procedures. 

G&S contracts under $50K; 
requires informal bids from 
three providers. 

 

Professional 
Services 

Selection may be through 
negotiation or request for 
proposals, and staff should 
“attempt to obtain [pricing] 
from different sources.” 

Without distinguishing 
“professional services,” it 
allows “open market” 
procedures when state law 
does not require formal 
procedures, or by directive of 
Finance Director. 

Over $80K: requests for 
proposal; City Council 
decision based on specified 
factors. 

$10K-$80K: requests for 
proposal; CM decision based 
on specified factors. 

$10K or less: CM authority. 

Selection based on 
demonstrated 
competence and 
professional 
qualifications 

Above $10K must comply 
with either formal or 
informal bid procedures. 

 
G&S = contracts for goods and supplies, equipment, and nonprofessional services. 
Public works projects are not included in this table because such contracting procedures are governed by state law. 

Page 299 of 385



 
 

Blank Page 

Page 300 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/09/2015  Page 1 of 3 
    

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  November 9, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director 

Subject: Authorization to Apply for Grant Funds through the Rivers and Mountains 
Conservancy (RMC), Call for Projects and Approve Professional Services 
Agreement (PSA) with Avant Garde, Inc. in an Amount Not-to-Exceed $8,795 
for the Preparation and Submittal of One Grant Application  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to: 
 
1. Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Avant Garde, Inc. (Avant Garde) in 

an amount not-to-exceed $8,795 for the submittal of one application; and 
 
2. Authorize the City Manager to submit a grant application in response to the Rivers and 

Mountains Conservancy (RMC) Call for Projects, Proposition 1 Funding due by December 
16, 2015. 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. In November, 2014, California voters approved the Water Quality, Supply, and 

Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014 (Proposition 1). 
 

2. On October 15, 2015, the RMC announced the Call for Projects for the Proposition 1 
Funding. 

 
3. On October 28, 2015, the Acting Community Development Director met with 

representatives from Avant Garde (i.e., Company Principal Ana Marie LeNoue), to discuss 
this exciting one-time grant opportunity. 

 

Item Number 

12C 

Page 301 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/09/2015  Page 2 of 3 
    

4. On October 29, 2015, Avant Garde submitted a proposal to prepare one grant application 
for the RMC Prop 1 Funds. 

 
5. On October 29, 2015, City Manager and Acting Community Development Director 

reviewed Avant Garde’s grant writing proposal for the RMC Prop 1 Funds. 
 
6. On October 29, 2015, both the City Manager and Acting Community Development 

Director agreed that the City should pursue one grant application through RMC Prop 1 
Funds. 

 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The voters of California approved the Water Quality, Supply, and Infrastructure Act of 2014 in 
November 2014 also known as Proposition 1, authorizing $7.545 billion dollars in general 
obligation bonds for State water project, including surface and groundwater storage, 
ecosystem and watershed protection and restoration, and drinking water protection.  As part 
of the available funding, $30 million is allocated to the RMC for competitive grants for multi-
benefit ecosystem, watershed protection, and restoration projects. 
 
More specifically, Proposition 1 funds will be awarded for the acquisition, development, 
rehabilitation, restoration, and protection of land and water resources. Additionally, funds 
will be made available for project planning purposes.  
 
In order to better prepare the City to competitively seek funding sources towards projects 
that address the water related needs throughout the City, the City seeks to apply for a 
planning grant. A planning grant will identify the City’s needs, demand, and proposed 
improvements to be aligned with RMC goals and objectives, in order to qualify for future 
rounds of funding. 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
City Council authorization for the City Manager to submit application for grant funds through 
the RMC Call for Projects by retaining the services of Avant Garde through a PSA for grant 
writing and submittal ensures that the City remains consistent in its pursuit of grant funding 
to improve the community’s quality of life. 
 
 

Page 302 of 385



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
11/09/2015  Page 3 of 3 
    

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The PSA in the amount of $8,795 for grant writing services will be charged to the Engineering 
Department, Contractual Services (Fund 001-4216-6720) in the FY 2015-16 City Budget set 
aside for contractual services necessary in order to plan, create, and manage the City’s 
infrastructure. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Avant Garde, Inc. fee proposal for preparation of one grant application for the HSIP Cycle 7 

Call for Projects 
B. Avant Garde, Inc. Professional Services Agreement 
C. RMC Press Release 
D. RMC Grant Guidelines 

Page 303 of 385



 Request for Services 

City of Cudahy 
 

 

TO:  Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director  

 

DATE:    October 29, 2015 

 

FROM:  Ana Marie LeNoue, President 

 

SUBJECT: Request funding from RMC Prop 1 for Water Conservation and P arks Plan 

 

 
Description of Request:   Submit RMC Prop 1 grant application for City of Cudahy’s Water Conservation 

and Parks Plan.  Review City plans/documents and pertinent data to develop and complete project 

form, project narrative, community outreach strategy, task and timeline, operation and maintenance 

plan, budget and all necessary project components. Coordination with the Rivers and Mountains 

Conservancy. Conduct research and coordinate with City to obtain necessary information to 

demonstrate need for proposed plan and gather any supplemental data to highlight benefits of the 

proposed water conservation and parks plan. Coordinate necessary data, attachments and signatures 

(and resolution, if necessary) with City to ascertain timely delivery of application. Consultation and 

coordination with Transtech to identify appropriate technical deliverables and studies related to the 

Planning Grant. Collect letters of support to strengthen application. It is estimated that the total cost to 

prepare the application will be approx. $8,795.  

 

To be completed by Avant-Garde, Inc: 

Project Number:      

Project Manager: _______________   

Completion Date:    December 16, 2015       

Fee: ____$8,795.00_ _______________________________  

Consultation with Engineer   

APPROVED TO PROCEED: 

  

 

             

City Representative      Date 

Attachment A

Page 304 of 385



Attachment B 
 

 
Page 1 

 

 
2015 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(Engagement: Professional Consultant Services and Grant Writing) 

(Parties: City of Cudahy and Avant Garde) 
     

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and 
entered into this 9th of __November  2015_  (hereinafter, the “Effective Date”), by and 
between the CITY OF CUDAHY, a municipal corporation (“CITY”) and AVANT GARDE 
(hereinafter, “CONSULTANT”).  For the purposes of this Agreement CITY and 
CONSULTANT may be referred to collectively by the capitalized term “Parties.”  The 
capitalized term “Party” may refer to CITY or CONSULTANT interchangeably.  
 

WHEREAS, CITY wishes to engage CONSULTANT to provide the following 
specialized services: Professional consultant services and grant writing for the 
preparation and submittal of one grant application for water conservation and parks 
planning through the Rivers and Mountains Conservancy Call For Projects; and 
  

WHEREAS, CITY’s in-house personnel is presently unable to perform the 
specialized services and tasks contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT possesses the specialized training, skill, expertise and 
experience required to perform the services contemplated under this Agreement; and 
  

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT agrees to perform the various services and tasks set 
forth under this Agreement subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein, and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby  
acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

I. 
ENGAGEMENT TERMS 

 
1.1 SCOPE OF SERVICES:  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this 

Agreement and all exhibits attached and incorporated hereto, CONSULTANT 
agrees to perform the services and tasks set forth in Exhibit “A” (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Scope of Services”) by the Expiration Date identified in the 
Scope of Services.  CONSULTANT further agrees to furnish to CITY all labor, 
materials, tools, supplies, equipment, services, tasks and incidental and customary 
work necessary to competently perform and timely complete the services and 

Page 305 of 385



Attachment B 
 

 
Page 2 

 

tasks set forth in the Scope of Services.  For the purposes of this Agreement the 
aforementioned services and tasks set forth in the Scope of Services shall 
hereinafter be referred to generally by the capitalized term “Work.”    
 

1.2 TERM:  This Agreement shall automatically terminate by the Expiration Date 
identified in the Scope of Services, unless CITY agrees to grant CONSULTANT 
additional time consistent with Section 1.3 of this Agreement.   Nothing in this 
Section shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict the CITY’s ability to terminate 
this Agreement at any time for convenience or for cause. 

 
1.3 PROSECUTION OF WORK:  The Parties agree as follows:   
  

Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each and every provision contained 
herein.  CONSULTANT shall perform the Work continuously and with due diligence 
so as to complete the Work by the Expiration Date.  CONSULTANT shall 
cooperate with City and in no manner interfere with the work of City, its employees 
or other consultants, contractors or agents;   
 
City, in its reasonable discretion, may grant Consultant additional time to complete 
the Work, provided (i) no grant of additional time shall be in conflict with the 
deadline to submit a complete grant application to the Rivers and Mountains 
Conservancy; (ii) no grant of additional time shall exceed a period of thirty (30) 
calendar days from the original Expiration Date; and (ii) Consultant shall have 
provided City with a written request for additional time no less than fifteen (15) 
calendar days prior to the original Expiration Date, which notice shall specify the 
reason(s) why additional time is needed, how much additional time is needed and 
what measures Consultant has taken to mitigate the need for additional time.  The 
granting of such additional time by the City shall in no way entitle Consultant to 
compensation in excess of the Contract Price, defined below, in so far as the need 
of additional time is not reasonably attributable to City. 
 
 
CONSULTANT shall not claim or be entitled to receive any compensation or 
damage because of the failure of CONSULTANT or its subconsultants, to have 
related services or tasks completed in a timely manner. 
 
 

1.4 COMPENSATION:    
 

A. CONSULTANT shall perform the various services and tasks set forth in the 
Scope of Services.  CONSULTANT’s total compensation during the Term of 
this Agreement or any extension term shall not exceed the budgeted aggregate 
sum of Eight Thousand Seven Hundred Ninety Five Dollars ($8,795.00) 
(hereinafter, the “Not-to-Exceed Sum”), unless such added expenditure is first 
approved by the CITY acting in consultation with the City Manager and Acting 

Page 306 of 385



Attachment B 
 

 
Page 3 

 

Community Development Director.  In the event CONSULTANT’s charges are 
projected to exceed the Not-to-Exceed Sum prior to the expiration of the Term 
or any single extension term, CITY may suspend CONSULTANT’s performance 
pending CITY approval of any anticipated expenditures in excess of the Not-to-
Exceed Sum or any other CITY-approved amendment to the compensation 
terms of this Agreement.  

 
1.5 PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION: Following the conclusion of each calendar 

month, CONSULTANT shall submit to CITY an itemized invoice indicating the 
services and tasks performed during the recently concluded calendar month, 
including services and tasks performed and the reimbursable out-of-pocket 
expenses incurred.  If the amount of CONSULTANT’s monthly compensation is a 
function of hours worked by CONSULTANT’s personnel, the invoice shall indicate 
the number of hours worked in the recently concluded calendar month, the persons 
responsible for performing the Work, the rate of compensation at which such 
services and tasks were performed, the subtotal for each task and service 
performed and a grand total for all services performed. Within thirty (30) calendar 
days of receipt the invoice for the completed grant application as identified in the 
Scope of Services, CITY shall notify CONSULTANT in writing of any disputed 
amounts included in the invoice.  Within forty-five (45) calendar day of receipt of 
the invoice for the completed grant application as identified in the Scope of 
Services, CITY shall pay all undisputed amounts included on the invoice.  CITY 
shall not withhold applicable taxes or other authorized deductions from payments 
made to CONSULTANT.  
 

1.6 EXTRA WORK; COMPENSATION FOR EXTRA WORK: 
 

 
A. At any time during the term of this Agreement, City may request that 

Consultant perform Extra Work.  For the purposes of this Agreement, the 
term “Extra Work” means any additional work, services or tasks not set forth 
in the Scope of Services but later determined by City to be necessary.  
Consultant shall not undertake nor shall Consultant be entitled to 
compensation for Extra Work without the prior written authorization of the 
City.  Extra Work does not include any labor, materials, tools, supplies, 
equipment, services, tasks or incidental and customary work undertaken to 
competently perform and timely complete the Work and related tasks set 
forth in the Scope of Work.    

 

B. Payments for any Extra Work shall be made to Consultant on a time-and-
materials basis using Consultant’s standard fee schedule.  

 
1.7 ACCOUNTING RECORDS: CONSULTANT shall maintain complete and accurate 

records with respect to all matters covered under this Agreement for a period of 

Page 307 of 385



Attachment B 
 

 
Page 4 

 

five (5) years after the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  CITY shall have 
the right to access and examine such records, without charge, during normal 
business hours.  CITY shall further have the right to audit such records, to make 
transcripts therefrom and to inspect all program data, documents, proceedings, 
and activities.  

 
1.8 ABANDONMENT BY CONSULTANT:  In the event CONSULTANT ceases to 

perform the Work agreed to under this Agreement or otherwise abandons the 
undertaking contemplated herein prior to the expiration of this Agreement or prior 
to completion of any or all tasks set forth in the Scope of Services, CONSULTANT 
shall deliver to CITY immediately and without delay, all materials, records and 
other work product prepared or obtained by CONSULTANT in the performance of 
this Agreement.  Furthermore, CONSULTANT shall only be compensated for a 
timely completed grant application as identified in the Scope of Services. 

 
II. 

PERFORMANCE OF AGREEMENT 
 

2.1 CITY’S REPRESENTATIVES:  The CITY hereby designates the City Manager and 
Michael Allen (hereinafter, the “CITY Representatives”) to act as its 
representatives for the performance of this Agreement.  The City Manager shall be 
the chief CITY Representative.  The CITY Representatives or their designee shall 
act on behalf of the CITY for all purposes under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT 
shall not accept directions or orders from any person other than the CITY 
Representatives or their designee. 
 

2.2 CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE: CONSULTANT hereby designates 
LISSETTE CALLEROS, Company Principal/Project Manager to act as its 
representative for the performance of this Agreement (hereinafter, “CONSULTANT 
Representative”).  CONSULTANT Representative shall have full authority to 
represent and act on behalf of the CONSULTANT for all purposes under this 
Agreement.  CONSULTANT Representative or his designee shall supervise and 
direct the performance of the Work, using his best skill and attention, and shall be 
responsible for all means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and 
for the satisfactory coordination of all portions of the Work under this Agreement.  
Notice to the CONSULTANT Representative shall constitute notice to 
CONSULTANT.  
 

2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:  
CONSULTANT agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the 
Work and this Agreement and shall be available to CITY staff and the CITY 
Representatives at all reasonable times. All work prepared by CONSULTANT shall 
be subject to inspection and approval by CITY Representatives or their designees. 
 

Page 308 of 385



Attachment B 
 

 
Page 5 

 

2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:  CONSULTANT 
represents, acknowledges and agrees to the following: 

 
A. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work skillfully, competently and to the 

highest standards of CONSULTANT’s profession; 
 

B. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work in a manner reasonably satisfactory 
to the CITY; 
 

C. CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws 
and regulations, including the conflict of interest provisions of Government 
Code Section 1090 and the Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 
81000 et seq.); 

 
D. CONSULTANT understands the nature and scope of the Work to be 

performed under this Agreement as well as any and all schedules of 
performance;  
 

E. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents possess sufficient skill, 
knowledge, training and experience to perform those services and tasks 
assigned to them by CONSULTANT; and 

 
F. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents (including but not limited 

subcontractors and subconsultants) possess all licenses, permits, 
certificates, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally 
required to perform the tasks and services contemplated under this 
Agreement and all such licenses, permits, certificates, qualifications and 
approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this Agreement and 
made available to CITY for copying and inspection. 
 
The Parties acknowledge and agree that CONSULTANT shall perform, at 
CONSULTANT’s own cost and expense and without any reimbursement 
from CITY, any services necessary to correct any errors or omissions in 
connection with the grant application identified in the Scope of Services 
caused by CONSULTANT’s failure to comply with the standard of care set 
forth under this Section or by any like failure on the part of CONSULTANT’s 
employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants.   Such 
effort by CONSULTANT to correct any errors or omissions shall be 
commenced immediately upon their discovery by either Party and shall be 
completed within three (3) calendars days from the date of discovery or 
such other extended period of time authorized by the CITY Representatives 
in writing and in their sole and absolute discretion. The Parties acknowledge 
and agree that CITY’s acceptance of any work performed by CONSULTANT 
or on CONSULTANT’s behalf shall not constitute a release of any deficiency 
or delay in performance. The Parties further acknowledge, understand and 

Page 309 of 385



Attachment B 
 

 
Page 6 

 

agree that CITY has relied upon the foregoing representations of 
CONSULTANT, including but not limited to the representation that 
CONSULTANT possesses the skills, training, knowledge and experience 
necessary to perform the Work skillfully, competently and to the highest 
standards of CONSULTANT’s profession. 

 
2.5 ASSIGNMENT: The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT 

are material to CITY’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  Accordingly, CITY 
has an interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who will 
perform the services and tasks to be undertaken by CONSULTANT or on behalf of 
CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  In recognition of this 
interest, CONSULTANT agrees that it shall not assign or transfer, either directly or 
indirectly or by operation of law, this Agreement or the performance of any of 
CONSULTANT’s duties or obligations under this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of the CITY.  In the absence of CITY’s prior written consent, any 
attempted assignment or transfer shall be ineffective, null and void and shall 
constitute a material breach of this Agreement.  
 

2.6 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT 
CONTRACTOR: The Work shall be performed by CONSULTANT or under 
CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  CONSULTANT will determine the means, 
methods and details of performing the Work subject to the requirements of this 
Agreement.  CITY retains CONSULTANT on an independent contractor basis and 
not as an employee.  CONSULTANT reserves the right to perform similar or 
different services for other principals during the term of this Agreement, provided 
such work does not unduly interfere with CONSULTANT’s competent and timely 
performance of the Work contemplated under this Agreement and provided the 
performance of such services does not result in the unauthorized disclosure of 
CITY’s confidential or proprietary information.  Any additional personnel performing 
the Work under this Agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT are not employees of 
CITY and shall at all times be under CONSULTANT’s exclusive direction and 
control.  CONSULTANT shall pay all wages, salaries and other amounts due such 
personnel and shall assume responsibility for all benefits, payroll taxes, Social 
Security and Medicare payments and the like.  CONSULTANT shall be responsible 
for all reports and obligations respecting such additional personnel, including, but 
not limited to: Social Security taxes, income tax withholding, unemployment 
insurance, disability insurance, workers’ compensation insurance and the like. 
 

2.7 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:  If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, 
employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined by 
the CITY Representatives to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the 
adequate or timely performance of the tasks assigned to CONSULTANT, a threat 
to persons or property, or if any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, 
contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants fail or refuse to perform the Work in 
a manner acceptable to the CITY, such officer, employee, agent, contractor, 

Page 310 of 385



Attachment B 
 

 
Page 7 

 

subcontractor or subconsultant shall be promptly removed by CONSULTANT and 
shall not be re-assigned to perform any of the Work. 
   

2.8 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and in 
compliance with all applicable federal, State or local laws to the extent such laws 
control or otherwise govern the performance of the Work. CONSULTANT’s 
compliance with applicable laws shall include without limitation compliance with all 
applicable Cal/OSHA requirements.   

 
2.9 NON-DISCRIMINATION:  In the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT 

shall not discriminate against any employee, subcontractor, subconsultant, or 
applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital 
status, sexual orientation, national origin, ancestry, age, physical or mental 
disability or medical condition. 
 

2.10 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  The Parties acknowledge, understand 
and agree that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by 
CONSULTANT are, and shall at all times remain, wholly independent contractors 
and are not officials, officers, employees, departments or subdivisions of CITY.  
CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for the negligent acts and/or omissions 
of its employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants. 
CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by CONSULTANT shall have 
no authority, express or implied, to bind CITY in any manner, nor to incur any 
obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of, or against, CITY, whether by 
contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly conferred to 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred by CITY 
in writing. 

 
III. 

INSURANCE 
 

3.1 DUTY TO PROCURE AND MAINTAIN INSURANCE: Prior to the beginning of and 
throughout the duration of the Work, CONSULTANT will procure and maintain 
polices of insurance that meet the requirements and specifications set forth under 
this Article. CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain the following insurance 
coverage, at its own expense: 
 
A. Commercial General Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and 

maintain Commercial General Liability Insurance (“CGL Coverage”) as broad 
as Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage 
(occurrence Form CG 0001) or its equivalent.  Such CGL Coverage shall have 
minimum limits of no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per 
occurrence and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) in the general aggregate 
for bodily injury, personal injury, property damage, operations, products and 
completed operations, and contractual liability. 

Page 311 of 385



Attachment B 
 

 
Page 8 

 

 
B. Automobile Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 

Automobile Liability Insurance as broad as Insurance Services Office Form 
Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 (any auto).  Such 
Automobile Liability Insurance shall have minimum limits of no less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident for bodily injury and property 
damage.  
 

C. Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance:   A policy of 
workers’ compensation insurance in such amount as will fully comply with the 
laws of the State of California and which shall indemnify, insure and provide 
legal defense for both CONSULTANT and CITY against any loss, claim or 
damage arising from any injuries or occupational diseases occurring to any 
worker employed by or any persons retained by CONSULTANT in the course of 
carrying out the Work contemplated in this Agreement. 
 

D. Errors & Omissions Insurance:  For the full term of this Agreement and for a 
period of three (3) years thereafter, CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance appropriate to CONSULTANT’s 
profession.  Such coverage shall have minimum limits of no less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and shall be endorsed to include 
contractual liability.   

   
3.2 ADDITIONAL INSURED REQUIREMENTS: The CGL Coverage and the 

Automobile Liability Insurance shall contain an endorsement naming the CITY and 
CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers 
as additional insureds.  
 

3.3 REQUIRED CARRIER RATING:  All varieties of insurance required under this 
Agreement shall be procured from insurers admitted in the State of California and 
authorized to issue policies directly to California insureds.  Except as otherwise 
provided elsewhere under this Article, all required insurance shall be procured from 
insurers who, according to the latest edition of the Best’s Insurance Guide, have an 
A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII.   CITY may also accept policies procured 
by insurance carriers with a Standard & Poor’s rating of no less than BBB 
according to the latest published edition the Standard & Poor’s rating guide.  As to 
Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance, the CITY 
Representatives are authorized to authorize lower ratings than those set forth in 
this Section.   
 

3.4 PRIMACY OF CONSULTANT’S INSURANCE: All polices of insurance provided by 
CONSULTANT shall be primary to any coverage available to CITY or CITY’s 
elected or appointed officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers.  Any 
insurance or self-insurance maintained by CITY or CITY’s elected or appointed 

Page 312 of 385



Attachment B 
 

 
Page 9 

 

officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers shall be in excess of 
CONSULTANT’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.  
 

3.5 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION:  All insurance coverage provided pursuant to this 
Agreement shall not prohibit CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s officers, 
employees, agents, subcontractors or subconsultants from waiving the right of 
subrogation prior to a loss.  CONSULTANT hereby waives all rights of subrogation 
against CITY.  

 
3.6 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  CONSULTANT acknowledges, understands 

and agrees, that CITY’s ability to verify the procurement and maintenance of the 
insurance required under this Article is critical to safeguarding CITY’s financial 
well-being and, indirectly, the collective well-being of the residents of the CITY.  
Accordingly, CONSULTANT warrants, represents and agrees that its shall furnish 
CITY with original certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing the 
coverage required under this Article on forms satisfactory to CITY in its sole and 
absolute discretion.  The certificates of insurance and endorsements for each 
insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to 
bind coverage on its behalf, and shall be on forms provided by the CITY if 
requested.  All certificates of insurance and endorsements shall be received and 
approved by CITY as a condition precedent to CONSULTANT’s commencement of 
any work or any of the Work.  Upon CITY’s written request, CONSULTANT shall 
also provide CITY with certified copies of all required insurance policies and 
endorsements.   

 
IV. 

INDEMNIFICATION 
 
4.1 The Parties agree that CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, 

employees, agents and volunteers (hereinafter, the “CITY Indemnitees”) should, to 
the fullest extent permitted by law, be protected from any and all loss, injury, 
damage, claim, lawsuit, cost, expense, attorneys’ fees, litigation costs, or any other 
cost arising out of or in any way related to the performance of this Agreement. 
Accordingly, the provisions of this indemnity provision are intended by the Parties 
to be interpreted and construed to provide the CITY Indemnitees with the fullest 
protection possible under the law. CONSULTANT acknowledges that CITY would 
not enter into this Agreement in the absence of CONSULTANT’s commitment to 
indemnify, defend and protect CITY as set forth herein. 

 
4.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the CITY Indemnitees from and against all liability, loss, 
damage, expense, cost (including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, 
expert fees and all other costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of 
or in connection with CONSULTANT’s performance of work hereunder or its failure 
to comply with any of its obligations contained in this Agreement, except such loss 

Page 313 of 385



Attachment B 
 

 
Page 10 

 

or damage which is caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 
CITY.  

 
4.3 CITY shall have the right to offset against the amount of any compensation due 

CONSULTANT under this Agreement any amount due CITY from CONSULTANT 
as a result of CONSULTANT’s failure to pay CITY promptly any indemnification 
arising under this Article and related to CONSULTANT’s failure to either (i) pay 
taxes on amounts received pursuant to this Agreement or (ii) comply with 
applicable workers’ compensation laws.  

 
4.4 The obligations of CONSULTANT under this Article will not be limited by the 

provisions of any workers’ compensation act or similar act. CONSULTANT 
expressly waives its statutory immunity under such statutes or laws as to CITY and 
CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.  

  
4.5 CONSULTANT agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions 

identical to those set forth here in this Article from each and every subcontractor or 
any other person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in 
the performance of this Agreement.  In the event CONSULTANT fails to obtain 
such indemnity obligations from others as required herein, CONSULTANT agrees 
to be fully responsible and indemnify, hold harmless and defend CITY and CITY’s 
elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers from 
and against any and all claims and losses, costs or expenses for any damage due 
to death or injury to any person and injury to any property resulting from any 
alleged intentional, reckless, negligent, or otherwise wrongful acts, errors or 
omissions of CONSULTANT’s subcontractors or any other person or entity 
involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this 
Agreement. Such costs and expenses shall include reasonable attorneys’ fees 
incurred by counsel of CITY’s choice.  
 

4.6 CITY does not, and shall not, waive any rights that it may possess against 
CONSULTANT because of the acceptance by CITY, or the deposit with CITY, of 
any insurance policy or certificate required pursuant to this Agreement. This hold 
harmless and indemnification provision shall apply regardless of whether or not 
any insurance policies are determined to be applicable to the claim, demand, 
damage, liability, loss, cost or expense. 

 
4.7 This Article and all provisions contained herein (including but not limited to the duty 

to indemnify, defend and hold free and harmless) shall survive the termination or 
normal expiration of this Agreement and is in addition to any other rights or 
remedies which the CITY may have at law or in equity.   

 
V. 

TERMINATION 
 

Page 314 of 385



Attachment B 
 

 
Page 11 

 

5.1 TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE: CITY may terminate this Agreement at any 
time for convenience and without cause by giving CONSULTANT a minimum of 
three (3) calendar days prior written notice of CITY’s intent to terminate this 
Agreement.   Upon such termination for convenience, CONSULTANT shall be 
compensated only for those services and tasks which have been performed by 
CONSULTANT up to the effective date of the termination provided that 
CONSULTANT identified the tasks that were performed as required by Section 1.5 
of this Agreement.   CONSULTANT may not terminate this Agreement except for 
cause as provided under Section 5.2, below.  If this Agreement is terminated as 
provided herein, CITY may require CONSULTANT to provide all finished or 
unfinished Documents and Data, as defined in Section 6.1 below, and other 
information of any kind prepared by CONSULTANT in connection with the 
performance of the Work.  CONSULTANT shall be required to provide such 
Documents and Data within three  (3) calendar days of CITY’s written request.  No 
actual or asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY pursuant to 
Section 5.2, below, shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to 
terminate this Agreement for convenience as provided under this Section. 

 
5.2 EVENTS OF DEFAULT; BREACH OF AGREEMENT:  
 

A. In the event either Party fails to perform any duty, obligation, service or task 
set forth under this Agreement (or fails to timely perform or properly perform 
any such duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement), an 
event of default (hereinafter, “Event of Default”) shall occur.  For all Events 
of Default, the Party alleging an Event of Default shall give written notice to 
the defaulting Party (hereinafter referred to as a “Default Notice”) which 
shall specify: (i)  the nature of the Event of Default; (ii) the action required to 
cure the Event of Default; (iii) a date by which the Event of Default shall be 
cured, which shall not be less than the applicable cure period set forth under 
Sections 5.2.B and 5.2C below or if a cure is not reasonably possible within 
the applicable cure period, to begin such cure and diligently prosecute such 
cure to completion.   The Event of Default shall constitute a breach of this 
Agreement if the defaulting Party fails to cure the Event of Default within the 
applicable cure period or any extended cure period allowed under this 
Agreement.   

 
B. CONSULTANT shall cure the following Events of Defaults within the 

following time periods: 
 

i. Within three (3) business days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice 
for any failure of CONSULTANT to timely provide CITY or CITY’s 
employees or agents with any information and/or written reports, 
documentation or work product which CONSULTANT is obligated to 
provide to CITY or CITY’s employees or agents under this 
Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of the 3-day cure period, 

Page 315 of 385



Attachment B 
 

 
Page 12 

 

CONSULTANT may submit a written request for additional time to 
cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT has 
commenced efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of 
Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 3-day cure period.  
The foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall be under no obligation to 
grant additional time for the cure of an Event of Default under this 
Section 5.2 B.i. that exceeds seven (7) calendar days from the end of 
the initial 3-day cure period; or 

 
ii. Within five (5) calendar days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice 

for any other Event of Default under this Agreement.  Prior to the 
expiration of the five-day cure period, CONSULTANT may submit a 
written request for additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a 
showing that CONSULTANT has commenced efforts to cure the 
Event of Default and that the Event of Default cannot be reasonably 
cured within the five-day cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, 
CITY shall be under no obligation to grant additional time for the cure 
of an Event of Default under this Section 5.2B.ii that exceeds seven 
(7) calendar days from the end of the initial five-day cure period. 

 
In addition to any other failure on the part of CONSULTANT to perform any 
duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement (or the failure 
to timely perform or properly perform any such duty, obligation, service or 
task), an Event of Default on the part of CONSULTANT shall include, but 
shall not be limited to the following:  (i) CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to 
perform any of the services or tasks called for under the Scope of Services;  
(ii) CONSULTANT’s failure to fulfill or perform its obligations under this 
Agreement within the specified time or if no time is specified, within a 
reasonable time;  (iii) CONSULTANT’s and/or its employees’ disregard  or 
violation of any federal, state, local law, rule, procedure or regulation;  (iv) 
the initiation of proceedings under any bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, 
reorganization, or similar legislation as relates to CONSULTANT, whether 
voluntary of involuntary; (v) CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to perform or 
observe any covenant, condition, obligation or provision of this Agreement;  
and/or (vii) CITY’s discovery that a statement representation or warranty by 
CONSULTANT relating to this Agreement  is false, misleading or erroneous 
in any material respect. 

 
C. CITY shall cure any Event of Default asserted by CONSULTANT within 

seven (7) calendar days of CONSULTANT’s issuance of a Default Notice, 
unless the Event of Default cannot reasonably be cured within the seven-
day cure period.   Prior to the expiration of the seven-day cure period, CITY 
may submit a written request for additional time to cure the Event of Default 
upon a showing that CITY has commenced its efforts to cure the Event of 
Default and that the Event of Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 

Page 316 of 385



Attachment B 
 

 
Page 13 

 

seven-day cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, an Event of Default 
dealing with CITY’s failure to timely pay any undisputed sums to 
CONSULTANT as provided under Section 1.4, above, shall be cured by 
CITY within five (5) calendar days from the date of CONSULTANT’s Default 
Notice to CITY. 

 
D. CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also immediately suspend 

CONSULTANT’s performance under this Agreement pending 
CONSULTANT’s cure of any Event of Default by giving CONSULTANT 
written notice of CITY’s intent to suspend CONSULTANT’s performance 
(hereinafter, a “Suspension Notice”).  CITY may issue the Suspension 
Notice at any time upon the occurrence of an Event of Default. Upon such 
suspension, CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for those services 
and tasks which have been rendered by CONSULTANT to the reasonable 
satisfaction of CITY up to the effective date of the suspension.   No actual or 
asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY shall operate to 
prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to suspend this Agreement as 
provided herein. 

 
E. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement shall 

constitute a waiver of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach.  
No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a 
Party shall give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, 
or otherwise.  

 
F. The duties and obligations imposed under this Agreement and the rights 

and remedies available hereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation 
of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or 
available by law. In addition to any other remedies available to CITY at law 
or under this Agreement in the event of any breach of this Agreement, CITY, 
in its sole and absolute discretion, may also pursue any one or more of the 
following remedies: 

 
i. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may immediately 

terminate this Agreement in whole or in part; 
 

ii. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may extend the time 
of performance; 

 
iii. The CITY may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the 

terms of the Agreement to recover damages for CONSULTANT’s 
breach of the Agreement  or to terminate the Agreement; or 

 
iv. The CITY may exercise any other available and lawful right or 

remedy.  

Page 317 of 385



Attachment B 
 

 
Page 14 

 

 
CONSULTANT shall be liable for all legal fees plus other costs and 
expenses that CITY incurs upon a breach of this Agreement or in the CITY’s 
exercise of its remedies under this Agreement.  

 
G. In the event CITY is in breach of this Agreement, CONSULTANT’s sole 

remedy shall be the suspension or termination of this Agreement and/or the 
recovery of any unpaid sums lawfully owed to CONSULTANT under this 
Agreement for completed services and tasks.   

 
5.3 SCOPE OF WAIVER:  No waiver of any default or breach under this Agreement 

shall constitute a waiver of any other default or breach, whether of the same or 
other covenant, warranty, agreement, term, condition, duty or requirement 
contained in this Agreement.  No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily 
given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any contractual rights by 
custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  
 

5.4 SURVIVING ARTICLES, SECTIONS AND PROVISIONS:  The termination of this 
Agreement pursuant to any provision of this Article or by normal expiration of its 
term or any extension thereto shall not operate to terminate any Article, Section or 
provision contained herein which provides that it shall survive the termination or 
normal expiration of this Agreement. 

 
VI. 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
6.1 DOCUMENTS & DATA; LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY:  All 

Documents and Data shall be and remain the property of CITY without restriction 
or limitation upon their use or dissemination by CITY.  For purposes of this 
Agreement, the term “Documents and Data” means and includes all reports, 
analyses, correspondence, plans, drawings, designs, renderings, specifications, 
notes, summaries, strategies, charts, schedules, spreadsheets, calculations, lists, 
data compilations, documents or other materials developed and/or assembled by 
or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement and fixed in 
any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to Documents and 
Data stored digitally, magnetically and/or electronically.  This Agreement creates, 
at no cost to CITY, a perpetual license for CITY to copy, use, reuse, disseminate 
and/or retain any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property 
embodied in all Documents and Data.  CONSULTANT shall require all 
subcontractors and subconsultants working on behalf of CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement to agree in writing that CITY shall be granted the 
same right to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and retain Documents and Data 
prepared or assembled by any subcontractor or subconsultant as applies to 
Documents and Data prepared by CONSULTANT in the performance of this 
Agreement.  

Page 318 of 385



Attachment B 
 

 
Page 15 

 

 
6.2 CONFIDENTIALITY:  All data, documents, discussion, or other information 

developed or received by CONSULTANT or provided for performance of this 
Agreement are deemed confidential and shall not be disclosed by CONSULTANT 
without prior written consent by CITY. CITY shall grant such consent if disclosure 
is legally required. Upon request, all CITY data shall be returned to CITY upon the 
termination or expiration of this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall not use CITY’s 
name or insignia, photographs, or any publicity pertaining to the Work in any 
magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio production or other similar 
medium without the prior written consent of CITY. 

 
6.3 FALSE CLAIMS ACT:  CONSULTANT warrants and represents that neither 

CONSULTANT nor any person who is an officer of, in a managing position with, or 
has an ownership interest in CONSULTANT has been determined by a court or 
tribunal of competent jurisdiction to have violated the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C., 
Section 3789 et seq. and the California False Claims Act, Government Code 
Section 12650 et seq.  

 
6.4 NOTICES: All notices permitted or required under this Agreement shall be given to 

the respective Parties at the following addresses, or at such other address as the 
respective Parties may provide in writing for this purpose:   

 
CONSULTANT:  CITY:  
AVANT-GARDE 
3670 W. Temple Ave. #278 
Pomona,  CA  91768 
Attn: Lissett Calleros 
Phone: (909) 979-6586 
Fax:  (909) 979-6580 
Email: lcalleros@agi.com.co 

 City of Cudahy 
Community Development Division 
5220 Santa Ana Street 
Cudahy, CA 90201 
Attn:  Michael Allen 
Phone:  (323) 773-5143 
Fax:  (323) 771-2072 

 
Such notices shall be deemed effective when personally delivered or successfully 
transmitted by facsimile as evidenced by a fax confirmation slip or when mailed, 
forty-eight (48) hours after deposit with the United States Postal Service, first class 
postage prepaid and addressed to the Party at its applicable address.   

 
6.5 COOPERATION; FURTHER ACTS:  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 

another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as is 
reasonably necessary, appropriate or convenient to achieve the purposes of this 
Agreement. 

 
6.6 SUBCONTRACTING: CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the 

Work required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without the 
prior written approval of CITY.  Subcontracts (including without limitation 
subcontracts with subconsultants), if any, shall contain a provision making them 

Page 319 of 385



Attachment B 
 

 
Page 16 

 

subject to all provisions stipulated in this Agreement, including provisions relating 
to insurance requirements and indemnification. 
 

6.7 CITY’S RIGHT TO EMPLOY OTHER CONSULTANTS:  CITY reserves the right to 
employ other contractors in connection with the various projects worked upon by 
CONSULTANT. 
 

6.8 PROHIBITED INTERESTS:  CONSULTANT warrants, represents and maintains 
that it has not employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona 
fide employee working solely for CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this 
Agreement.  Further, CONSULTANT warrants and represents that it has not paid 
nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee 
working solely for CONSULTANT, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage 
fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or 
making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation of this warranty, CITY shall 
have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  For the term of this 
Agreement, no member, officer or employee of CITY, during the term of his or her 
service with CITY, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain any 
present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 
 

6.9 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE:  Time is of the essence for each and every provision 
of this Agreement. 
 

6.10 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE:  This Agreement shall be interpreted and 
governed according to the laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation 
between the Parties, venue, without exception, shall be in the Los Angeles County 
Superior Court of the State of California.  If, and only if, applicable law requires that 
all or part of any such litigation be tried exclusively in federal court, venue, without 
exception, shall be in the Central District of California located in the City of Los 
Angeles, California. 
 

6.11 ATTORNEYS’ FEES:  If either Party commences an action against the other Party, 
either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this 
Agreement, the prevailing Party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and 
recover from the losing Party reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other costs of such 
action. 
 

6.12 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  This Agreement shall be binding on the 
successors and assigns of the Parties. 
 

6.13 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFIT: There are no intended third party beneficiaries of 
any right or obligation assumed by the Parties.  All rights and benefits under this 
Agreement inure exclusively to the Parties. 
 

Page 320 of 385



Attachment B 
 

 
Page 17 

 

6.14 CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement shall not be construed in 
favor of, or against, either Party but shall be construed as if the Parties prepared 
this Agreement together through a process of negotiation and with the advice of 
their respective attorneys. 

 
6.15 SEVERABILITY: If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or 

otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 
provisions shall continue in full force and effect.  
 

6.16 AMENDMENT; MODIFICATION:  No amendment, modification or supplement of 
this Agreement shall be valid or binding unless executed in writing and signed by 
both Parties, subject to CITY approval.  The requirement for written amendments, 
modifications or supplements cannot be waived and any attempted waiver shall be 
void and invalid. 
 

6.17 CAPTIONS:  The captions of the various articles, sections and paragraphs are for 
convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limits, augment, or 
describe the scope, content, or intent of this Agreement. 
 

6.18 INCONSISTENCIES OR CONFLICTS:  In the event of any conflict or 
inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and any of the exhibits 
attached hereto, the provisions of this Agreement shall control.   
 

6.19 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement including all attached exhibits is the 
entire, complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the 
matters addressed herein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, 
whether oral or written, or entered into between CITY and CONSULTANT prior to 
the execution of this Agreement.  No statements, representations or other 
agreements, whether oral or written, made by any Party which are not embodied 
herein shall be valid or binding.  No amendment, modification or supplement to this 
Agreement shall be valid and binding unless in writing and duly executed by the 
Parties pursuant to Section 6.15, above. 
 

6.20 COUNTERPARTS:  .This Agreement shall be executed in three (3) original 
counterparts each of which shall be of equal force and effect.  No handwritten or 
typewritten amendment, modification or supplement to any one counterparts shall 
be valid or binding unless made to all three counterparts in conformity with Section 
6.16, above.  One fully executed original counterpart shall be delivered to 
CONSULTANT and the remaining two original counterparts shall be retained by 
CITY.  

 
[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

 
 
 

Page 321 of 385



Attachment B 
 

 
Page 18 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
the day and year first appearing in this Agreement, above. 
 
CITY OF CUDAHY: 
 
By:______________________________ 
       Jose E. Pulido, City Manager 
 
Date:_____________________________ 
 
      
 
 

 AVANT-GARDE 
 
By:______________________________ 
 
Name:____________________________ 
 
Title:_____________________________ 
 
Date:_____________________________ 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
By:______________________________  
        
Date:_____________________________ 
 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 322 of 385



Attachment B 
 

 
Page 19 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
(SCOPE OF SERVICES) 

Page 323 of 385



 
Page 1 

 

 
2015 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(Engagement: Professional Consultant Services and Grant Writing) 

(Parties: City of Cudahy and Avant Garde) 
     

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and 
entered into this 9th of __November  2015_  (hereinafter, the “Effective Date”), by and 
between the CITY OF CUDAHY, a municipal corporation (“CITY”) and AVANT GARDE 
(hereinafter, “CONSULTANT”).  For the purposes of this Agreement CITY and 
CONSULTANT may be referred to collectively by the capitalized term “Parties.”  The 
capitalized term “Party” may refer to CITY or CONSULTANT interchangeably.  
 

WHEREAS, CITY wishes to engage CONSULTANT to provide the following 
specialized services: Professional consultant services and grant writing for the 
preparation and submittal of one grant application for water conservation and parks 
planning through the Rivers and Mountains Conservancy Call For Projects; and 
  

WHEREAS, CITY’s in-house personnel is presently unable to perform the 
specialized services and tasks contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT possesses the specialized training, skill, expertise and 
experience required to perform the services contemplated under this Agreement; and 
  

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT agrees to perform the various services and tasks set 
forth under this Agreement subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein, and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby  
acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

I. 
ENGAGEMENT TERMS 

 
1.1 SCOPE OF SERVICES:  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this 

Agreement and all exhibits attached and incorporated hereto, CONSULTANT 
agrees to perform the services and tasks set forth in Exhibit “A” (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Scope of Services”) by the Expiration Date identified in the 
Scope of Services.  CONSULTANT further agrees to furnish to CITY all labor, 
materials, tools, supplies, equipment, services, tasks and incidental and customary 
work necessary to competently perform and timely complete the services and 
tasks set forth in the Scope of Services.  For the purposes of this Agreement the 

Attachment B.1

Page 324 of 385



 
Page 2 

 

aforementioned services and tasks set forth in the Scope of Services shall 
hereinafter be referred to generally by the capitalized term “Work.”    
 

1.2 TERM:  This Agreement shall automatically terminate by the Expiration Date 
identified in the Scope of Services, unless CITY agrees to grant CONSULTANT 
additional time consistent with Section 1.3 of this Agreement.   Nothing in this 
Section shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict the CITY’s ability to terminate 
this Agreement at any time for convenience or for cause. 

 
1.3 PROSECUTION OF WORK:  The Parties agree as follows:   
  

Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each and every provision contained 
herein.  CONSULTANT shall perform the Work continuously and with due diligence 
so as to complete the Work by the Expiration Date.  CONSULTANT shall 
cooperate with City and in no manner interfere with the work of City, its employees 
or other consultants, contractors or agents;   
 
City, in its reasonable discretion, may grant Consultant additional time to complete 
the Work, provided (i) no grant of additional time shall be in conflict with the 
deadline to submit a complete grant application to the Rivers and Mountains 
Conservancy; (ii) no grant of additional time shall exceed a period of thirty (30) 
calendar days from the original Expiration Date; and (ii) Consultant shall have 
provided City with a written request for additional time no less than fifteen (15) 
calendar days prior to the original Expiration Date, which notice shall specify the 
reason(s) why additional time is needed, how much additional time is needed and 
what measures Consultant has taken to mitigate the need for additional time.  The 
granting of such additional time by the City shall in no way entitle Consultant to 
compensation in excess of the Contract Price, defined below, in so far as the need 
of additional time is not reasonably attributable to City. 
 
 
CONSULTANT shall not claim or be entitled to receive any compensation or 
damage because of the failure of CONSULTANT or its subconsultants, to have 
related services or tasks completed in a timely manner. 
 
 

1.4 COMPENSATION:    
 

A. CONSULTANT shall perform the various services and tasks set forth in the 
Scope of Services.  CONSULTANT’s total compensation during the Term of 
this Agreement or any extension term shall not exceed the budgeted aggregate 
sum of Eight Thousand Seven Hundred Ninety Five Dollars ($8,795.00) 
(hereinafter, the “Not-to-Exceed Sum”), unless such added expenditure is first 
approved by the CITY acting in consultation with the City Manager and Acting 
Community Development Director.  In the event CONSULTANT’s charges are 
projected to exceed the Not-to-Exceed Sum prior to the expiration of the Term 

Attachment B.1

Page 325 of 385



 
Page 3 

 

or any single extension term, CITY may suspend CONSULTANT’s performance 
pending CITY approval of any anticipated expenditures in excess of the Not-to-
Exceed Sum or any other CITY-approved amendment to the compensation 
terms of this Agreement.  

 
1.5 PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION: Following the conclusion of each calendar 

month, CONSULTANT shall submit to CITY an itemized invoice indicating the 
services and tasks performed during the recently concluded calendar month, 
including services and tasks performed and the reimbursable out-of-pocket 
expenses incurred.  If the amount of CONSULTANT’s monthly compensation is a 
function of hours worked by CONSULTANT’s personnel, the invoice shall indicate 
the number of hours worked in the recently concluded calendar month, the persons 
responsible for performing the Work, the rate of compensation at which such 
services and tasks were performed, the subtotal for each task and service 
performed and a grand total for all services performed. Within thirty (30) calendar 
days of receipt the invoice for the completed grant application as identified in the 
Scope of Services, CITY shall notify CONSULTANT in writing of any disputed 
amounts included in the invoice.  Within forty-five (45) calendar day of receipt of 
the invoice for the completed grant application as identified in the Scope of 
Services, CITY shall pay all undisputed amounts included on the invoice.  CITY 
shall not withhold applicable taxes or other authorized deductions from payments 
made to CONSULTANT.  
 

1.6 EXTRA WORK; COMPENSATION FOR EXTRA WORK: 
 

 
A. At any time during the term of this Agreement, City may request that 

Consultant perform Extra Work.  For the purposes of this Agreement, the 
term “Extra Work” means any additional work, services or tasks not set forth 
in the Scope of Services but later determined by City to be necessary.  
Consultant shall not undertake nor shall Consultant be entitled to 
compensation for Extra Work without the prior written authorization of the 
City.  Extra Work does not include any labor, materials, tools, supplies, 
equipment, services, tasks or incidental and customary work undertaken to 
competently perform and timely complete the Work and related tasks set 
forth in the Scope of Work.    

 

B. Payments for any Extra Work shall be made to Consultant on a time-and-
materials basis using Consultant’s standard fee schedule.  

 
1.7 ACCOUNTING RECORDS: CONSULTANT shall maintain complete and accurate 

records with respect to all matters covered under this Agreement for a period of 
five (5) years after the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  CITY shall have 
the right to access and examine such records, without charge, during normal 
business hours.  CITY shall further have the right to audit such records, to make 

Attachment B.1

Page 326 of 385



 
Page 4 

 

transcripts therefrom and to inspect all program data, documents, proceedings, 
and activities.  

 
1.8 ABANDONMENT BY CONSULTANT:  In the event CONSULTANT ceases to 

perform the Work agreed to under this Agreement or otherwise abandons the 
undertaking contemplated herein prior to the expiration of this Agreement or prior 
to completion of any or all tasks set forth in the Scope of Services, CONSULTANT 
shall deliver to CITY immediately and without delay, all materials, records and 
other work product prepared or obtained by CONSULTANT in the performance of 
this Agreement.  Furthermore, CONSULTANT shall only be compensated for a 
timely completed grant application as identified in the Scope of Services. 

 
II. 

PERFORMANCE OF AGREEMENT 
 

2.1 CITY’S REPRESENTATIVES:  The CITY hereby designates the City Manager and 
Michael Allen (hereinafter, the “CITY Representatives”) to act as its 
representatives for the performance of this Agreement.  The City Manager shall be 
the chief CITY Representative.  The CITY Representatives or their designee shall 
act on behalf of the CITY for all purposes under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT 
shall not accept directions or orders from any person other than the CITY 
Representatives or their designee. 
 

2.2 CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE: CONSULTANT hereby designates 
LISSETTE CALLEROS, Company Principal/Project Manager to act as its 
representative for the performance of this Agreement (hereinafter, “CONSULTANT 
Representative”).  CONSULTANT Representative shall have full authority to 
represent and act on behalf of the CONSULTANT for all purposes under this 
Agreement.  CONSULTANT Representative or his designee shall supervise and 
direct the performance of the Work, using his best skill and attention, and shall be 
responsible for all means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and 
for the satisfactory coordination of all portions of the Work under this Agreement.  
Notice to the CONSULTANT Representative shall constitute notice to 
CONSULTANT.  
 

2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:  
CONSULTANT agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the 
Work and this Agreement and shall be available to CITY staff and the CITY 
Representatives at all reasonable times. All work prepared by CONSULTANT shall 
be subject to inspection and approval by CITY Representatives or their designees. 
 

2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:  CONSULTANT 
represents, acknowledges and agrees to the following: 

 
A. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work skillfully, competently and to the 

highest standards of CONSULTANT’s profession; 

Attachment B.1

Page 327 of 385



 
Page 5 

 

 
B. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work in a manner reasonably satisfactory 

to the CITY; 
 

C. CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws 
and regulations, including the conflict of interest provisions of Government 
Code Section 1090 and the Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 
81000 et seq.); 

 
D. CONSULTANT understands the nature and scope of the Work to be 

performed under this Agreement as well as any and all schedules of 
performance;  
 

E. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents possess sufficient skill, 
knowledge, training and experience to perform those services and tasks 
assigned to them by CONSULTANT; and 

 
F. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents (including but not limited 

subcontractors and subconsultants) possess all licenses, permits, 
certificates, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally 
required to perform the tasks and services contemplated under this 
Agreement and all such licenses, permits, certificates, qualifications and 
approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this Agreement and 
made available to CITY for copying and inspection. 
 
The Parties acknowledge and agree that CONSULTANT shall perform, at 
CONSULTANT’s own cost and expense and without any reimbursement 
from CITY, any services necessary to correct any errors or omissions in 
connection with the grant application identified in the Scope of Services 
caused by CONSULTANT’s failure to comply with the standard of care set 
forth under this Section or by any like failure on the part of CONSULTANT’s 
employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants.   Such 
effort by CONSULTANT to correct any errors or omissions shall be 
commenced immediately upon their discovery by either Party and shall be 
completed within three (3) calendars days from the date of discovery or 
such other extended period of time authorized by the CITY Representatives 
in writing and in their sole and absolute discretion. The Parties acknowledge 
and agree that CITY’s acceptance of any work performed by CONSULTANT 
or on CONSULTANT’s behalf shall not constitute a release of any deficiency 
or delay in performance. The Parties further acknowledge, understand and 
agree that CITY has relied upon the foregoing representations of 
CONSULTANT, including but not limited to the representation that 
CONSULTANT possesses the skills, training, knowledge and experience 
necessary to perform the Work skillfully, competently and to the highest 
standards of CONSULTANT’s profession. 

 

Attachment B.1

Page 328 of 385



 
Page 6 

 

2.5 ASSIGNMENT: The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT 
are material to CITY’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  Accordingly, CITY 
has an interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who will 
perform the services and tasks to be undertaken by CONSULTANT or on behalf of 
CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  In recognition of this 
interest, CONSULTANT agrees that it shall not assign or transfer, either directly or 
indirectly or by operation of law, this Agreement or the performance of any of 
CONSULTANT’s duties or obligations under this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of the CITY.  In the absence of CITY’s prior written consent, any 
attempted assignment or transfer shall be ineffective, null and void and shall 
constitute a material breach of this Agreement.  
 

2.6 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT 
CONTRACTOR: The Work shall be performed by CONSULTANT or under 
CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  CONSULTANT will determine the means, 
methods and details of performing the Work subject to the requirements of this 
Agreement.  CITY retains CONSULTANT on an independent contractor basis and 
not as an employee.  CONSULTANT reserves the right to perform similar or 
different services for other principals during the term of this Agreement, provided 
such work does not unduly interfere with CONSULTANT’s competent and timely 
performance of the Work contemplated under this Agreement and provided the 
performance of such services does not result in the unauthorized disclosure of 
CITY’s confidential or proprietary information.  Any additional personnel performing 
the Work under this Agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT are not employees of 
CITY and shall at all times be under CONSULTANT’s exclusive direction and 
control.  CONSULTANT shall pay all wages, salaries and other amounts due such 
personnel and shall assume responsibility for all benefits, payroll taxes, Social 
Security and Medicare payments and the like.  CONSULTANT shall be responsible 
for all reports and obligations respecting such additional personnel, including, but 
not limited to: Social Security taxes, income tax withholding, unemployment 
insurance, disability insurance, workers’ compensation insurance and the like. 
 

2.7 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:  If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, 
employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined by 
the CITY Representatives to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the 
adequate or timely performance of the tasks assigned to CONSULTANT, a threat 
to persons or property, or if any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, 
contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants fail or refuse to perform the Work in 
a manner acceptable to the CITY, such officer, employee, agent, contractor, 
subcontractor or subconsultant shall be promptly removed by CONSULTANT and 
shall not be re-assigned to perform any of the Work. 
   

2.8 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and in 
compliance with all applicable federal, State or local laws to the extent such laws 
control or otherwise govern the performance of the Work. CONSULTANT’s 

Attachment B.1

Page 329 of 385



 
Page 7 

 

compliance with applicable laws shall include without limitation compliance with all 
applicable Cal/OSHA requirements.   

 
2.9 NON-DISCRIMINATION:  In the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT 

shall not discriminate against any employee, subcontractor, subconsultant, or 
applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital 
status, sexual orientation, national origin, ancestry, age, physical or mental 
disability or medical condition. 
 

2.10 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  The Parties acknowledge, understand 
and agree that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by 
CONSULTANT are, and shall at all times remain, wholly independent contractors 
and are not officials, officers, employees, departments or subdivisions of CITY.  
CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for the negligent acts and/or omissions 
of its employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants. 
CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by CONSULTANT shall have 
no authority, express or implied, to bind CITY in any manner, nor to incur any 
obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of, or against, CITY, whether by 
contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly conferred to 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred by CITY 
in writing. 

 

III. 
INSURANCE 

 
3.1 DUTY TO PROCURE AND MAINTAIN INSURANCE: Prior to the beginning of and 

throughout the duration of the Work, CONSULTANT will procure and maintain 
polices of insurance that meet the requirements and specifications set forth under 
this Article. CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain the following insurance 
coverage, at its own expense: 
 
A. Commercial General Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and 

maintain Commercial General Liability Insurance (“CGL Coverage”) as broad 
as Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage 
(occurrence Form CG 0001) or its equivalent.  Such CGL Coverage shall have 
minimum limits of no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per 
occurrence and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) in the general aggregate 
for bodily injury, personal injury, property damage, operations, products and 
completed operations, and contractual liability. 
 

B. Automobile Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Automobile Liability Insurance as broad as Insurance Services Office Form 
Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 (any auto).  Such 
Automobile Liability Insurance shall have minimum limits of no less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident for bodily injury and property 
damage.  

Attachment B.1

Page 330 of 385



 
Page 8 

 

 
C. Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance:   A policy of 

workers’ compensation insurance in such amount as will fully comply with the 
laws of the State of California and which shall indemnify, insure and provide 
legal defense for both CONSULTANT and CITY against any loss, claim or 
damage arising from any injuries or occupational diseases occurring to any 
worker employed by or any persons retained by CONSULTANT in the course of 
carrying out the Work contemplated in this Agreement. 
 

D. Errors & Omissions Insurance:  For the full term of this Agreement and for a 
period of three (3) years thereafter, CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance appropriate to CONSULTANT’s 
profession.  Such coverage shall have minimum limits of no less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and shall be endorsed to include 
contractual liability.   

   
3.2 ADDITIONAL INSURED REQUIREMENTS: The CGL Coverage and the 

Automobile Liability Insurance shall contain an endorsement naming the CITY and 
CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers 
as additional insureds.  
 

3.3 REQUIRED CARRIER RATING:  All varieties of insurance required under this 
Agreement shall be procured from insurers admitted in the State of California and 
authorized to issue policies directly to California insureds.  Except as otherwise 
provided elsewhere under this Article, all required insurance shall be procured from 
insurers who, according to the latest edition of the Best’s Insurance Guide, have an 
A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII.   CITY may also accept policies procured 
by insurance carriers with a Standard & Poor’s rating of no less than BBB 
according to the latest published edition the Standard & Poor’s rating guide.  As to 
Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance, the CITY 
Representatives are authorized to authorize lower ratings than those set forth in 
this Section.   
 

3.4 PRIMACY OF CONSULTANT’S INSURANCE: All polices of insurance provided by 
CONSULTANT shall be primary to any coverage available to CITY or CITY’s 
elected or appointed officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers.  Any 
insurance or self-insurance maintained by CITY or CITY’s elected or appointed 
officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers shall be in excess of 
CONSULTANT’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.  
 

3.5 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION:  All insurance coverage provided pursuant to this 
Agreement shall not prohibit CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s officers, 
employees, agents, subcontractors or subconsultants from waiving the right of 
subrogation prior to a loss.  CONSULTANT hereby waives all rights of subrogation 
against CITY.  

 

Attachment B.1

Page 331 of 385



 
Page 9 

 

3.6 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  CONSULTANT acknowledges, understands 
and agrees, that CITY’s ability to verify the procurement and maintenance of the 
insurance required under this Article is critical to safeguarding CITY’s financial 
well-being and, indirectly, the collective well-being of the residents of the CITY.  
Accordingly, CONSULTANT warrants, represents and agrees that its shall furnish 
CITY with original certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing the 
coverage required under this Article on forms satisfactory to CITY in its sole and 
absolute discretion.  The certificates of insurance and endorsements for each 
insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to 
bind coverage on its behalf, and shall be on forms provided by the CITY if 
requested.  All certificates of insurance and endorsements shall be received and 
approved by CITY as a condition precedent to CONSULTANT’s commencement of 
any work or any of the Work.  Upon CITY’s written request, CONSULTANT shall 
also provide CITY with certified copies of all required insurance policies and 
endorsements.   

 
IV. 

INDEMNIFICATION 
 

Attachment B.1

Page 332 of 385



 
Page 10 

 

4.1 The Parties agree that CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers (hereinafter, the “CITY Indemnitees”) should, to 
the fullest extent permitted by law, be protected from any and all loss, injury, 
damage, claim, lawsuit, cost, expense, attorneys’ fees, litigation costs, or any other 
cost arising out of or in any way related to the performance of this Agreement. 
Accordingly, the provisions of this indemnity provision are intended by the Parties 
to be interpreted and construed to provide the CITY Indemnitees with the fullest 
protection possible under the law. CONSULTANT acknowledges that CITY would 
not enter into this Agreement in the absence of CONSULTANT’s commitment to 
indemnify, defend and protect CITY as set forth herein. 

 
4.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the CITY Indemnitees from and against all liability, loss, 
damage, expense, cost (including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, 
expert fees and all other costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of 
or in connection with CONSULTANT’s performance of work hereunder or its failure 
to comply with any of its obligations contained in this Agreement, except such loss 
or damage which is caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 
CITY.  

 
4.3 CITY shall have the right to offset against the amount of any compensation due 

CONSULTANT under this Agreement any amount due CITY from CONSULTANT 
as a result of CONSULTANT’s failure to pay CITY promptly any indemnification 
arising under this Article and related to CONSULTANT’s failure to either (i) pay 
taxes on amounts received pursuant to this Agreement or (ii) comply with 
applicable workers’ compensation laws.  

 
4.4 The obligations of CONSULTANT under this Article will not be limited by the 

provisions of any workers’ compensation act or similar act. CONSULTANT 
expressly waives its statutory immunity under such statutes or laws as to CITY and 
CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.  

  

4.5 CONSULTANT agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions 
identical to those set forth here in this Article from each and every subcontractor or 
any other person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in 
the performance of this Agreement.  In the event CONSULTANT fails to obtain 
such indemnity obligations from others as required herein, CONSULTANT agrees 
to be fully responsible and indemnify, hold harmless and defend CITY and CITY’s 
elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers from 
and against any and all claims and losses, costs or expenses for any damage due 
to death or injury to any person and injury to any property resulting from any 
alleged intentional, reckless, negligent, or otherwise wrongful acts, errors or 
omissions of CONSULTANT’s subcontractors or any other person or entity 
involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this 
Agreement. Such costs and expenses shall include reasonable attorneys’ fees 
incurred by counsel of CITY’s choice.  

Attachment B.1

Page 333 of 385



 
Page 11 

 

 
4.6 CITY does not, and shall not, waive any rights that it may possess against 

CONSULTANT because of the acceptance by CITY, or the deposit with CITY, of 
any insurance policy or certificate required pursuant to this Agreement. This hold 
harmless and indemnification provision shall apply regardless of whether or not 
any insurance policies are determined to be applicable to the claim, demand, 
damage, liability, loss, cost or expense. 

 
4.7 This Article and all provisions contained herein (including but not limited to the duty 

to indemnify, defend and hold free and harmless) shall survive the termination or 
normal expiration of this Agreement and is in addition to any other rights or 
remedies which the CITY may have at law or in equity.   

 
V. 

TERMINATION 
 
5.1 TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE: CITY may terminate this Agreement at any 

time for convenience and without cause by giving CONSULTANT a minimum of 
three (3) calendar days prior written notice of CITY’s intent to terminate this 
Agreement.   Upon such termination for convenience, CONSULTANT shall be 
compensated only for those services and tasks which have been performed by 
CONSULTANT up to the effective date of the termination provided that 
CONSULTANT identified the tasks that were performed as required by Section 1.5 
of this Agreement.   CONSULTANT may not terminate this Agreement except for 
cause as provided under Section 5.2, below.  If this Agreement is terminated as 
provided herein, CITY may require CONSULTANT to provide all finished or 
unfinished Documents and Data, as defined in Section 6.1 below, and other 
information of any kind prepared by CONSULTANT in connection with the 
performance of the Work.  CONSULTANT shall be required to provide such 
Documents and Data within three  (3) calendar days of CITY’s written request.  No 
actual or asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY pursuant to 
Section 5.2, below, shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to 
terminate this Agreement for convenience as provided under this Section. 

 
5.2 EVENTS OF DEFAULT; BREACH OF AGREEMENT:  
 

A. In the event either Party fails to perform any duty, obligation, service or task 
set forth under this Agreement (or fails to timely perform or properly perform 
any such duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement), an 
event of default (hereinafter, “Event of Default”) shall occur.  For all Events 
of Default, the Party alleging an Event of Default shall give written notice to 
the defaulting Party (hereinafter referred to as a “Default Notice”) which 
shall specify: (i)  the nature of the Event of Default; (ii) the action required to 
cure the Event of Default; (iii) a date by which the Event of Default shall be 
cured, which shall not be less than the applicable cure period set forth under 
Sections 5.2.B and 5.2C below or if a cure is not reasonably possible within 

Attachment B.1

Page 334 of 385



 
Page 12 

 

the applicable cure period, to begin such cure and diligently prosecute such 
cure to completion.   The Event of Default shall constitute a breach of this 
Agreement if the defaulting Party fails to cure the Event of Default within the 
applicable cure period or any extended cure period allowed under this 
Agreement.   

 
B. CONSULTANT shall cure the following Events of Defaults within the 

following time periods: 
 

i. Within three (3) business days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice 
for any failure of CONSULTANT to timely provide CITY or CITY’s 
employees or agents with any information and/or written reports, 
documentation or work product which CONSULTANT is obligated to 
provide to CITY or CITY’s employees or agents under this 
Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of the 3-day cure period, 
CONSULTANT may submit a written request for additional time to 
cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT has 
commenced efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of 
Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 3-day cure period.  
The foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall be under no obligation to 
grant additional time for the cure of an Event of Default under this 
Section 5.2 B.i. that exceeds seven (7) calendar days from the end of 
the initial 3-day cure period; or 

 
ii. Within five (5) calendar days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice 

for any other Event of Default under this Agreement.  Prior to the 
expiration of the five-day cure period, CONSULTANT may submit a 
written request for additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a 
showing that CONSULTANT has commenced efforts to cure the 
Event of Default and that the Event of Default cannot be reasonably 
cured within the five-day cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, 
CITY shall be under no obligation to grant additional time for the cure 
of an Event of Default under this Section 5.2B.ii that exceeds seven 
(7) calendar days from the end of the initial five-day cure period. 

 
In addition to any other failure on the part of CONSULTANT to perform any 
duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement (or the failure 
to timely perform or properly perform any such duty, obligation, service or 
task), an Event of Default on the part of CONSULTANT shall include, but 
shall not be limited to the following:  (i) CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to 
perform any of the services or tasks called for under the Scope of Services;  
(ii) CONSULTANT’s failure to fulfill or perform its obligations under this 
Agreement within the specified time or if no time is specified, within a 
reasonable time;  (iii) CONSULTANT’s and/or its employees’ disregard  or 
violation of any federal, state, local law, rule, procedure or regulation;  (iv) 
the initiation of proceedings under any bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, 

Attachment B.1

Page 335 of 385



 
Page 13 

 

reorganization, or similar legislation as relates to CONSULTANT, whether 
voluntary of involuntary; (v) CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to perform or 
observe any covenant, condition, obligation or provision of this Agreement;  
and/or (vii) CITY’s discovery that a statement representation or warranty by 
CONSULTANT relating to this Agreement  is false, misleading or erroneous 
in any material respect. 

 
C. CITY shall cure any Event of Default asserted by CONSULTANT within 

seven (7) calendar days of CONSULTANT’s issuance of a Default Notice, 
unless the Event of Default cannot reasonably be cured within the seven-
day cure period.   Prior to the expiration of the seven-day cure period, CITY 
may submit a written request for additional time to cure the Event of Default 
upon a showing that CITY has commenced its efforts to cure the Event of 
Default and that the Event of Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 
seven-day cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, an Event of Default 
dealing with CITY’s failure to timely pay any undisputed sums to 
CONSULTANT as provided under Section 1.4, above, shall be cured by 
CITY within five (5) calendar days from the date of CONSULTANT’s Default 
Notice to CITY. 

 
D. CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also immediately suspend 

CONSULTANT’s performance under this Agreement pending 
CONSULTANT’s cure of any Event of Default by giving CONSULTANT 
written notice of CITY’s intent to suspend CONSULTANT’s performance 
(hereinafter, a “Suspension Notice”).  CITY may issue the Suspension 
Notice at any time upon the occurrence of an Event of Default. Upon such 
suspension, CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for those services 
and tasks which have been rendered by CONSULTANT to the reasonable 
satisfaction of CITY up to the effective date of the suspension.   No actual or 
asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY shall operate to 
prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to suspend this Agreement as 
provided herein. 

 
E. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement shall 

constitute a waiver of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach.  
No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a 
Party shall give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, 
or otherwise.  

 
F. The duties and obligations imposed under this Agreement and the rights 

and remedies available hereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation 
of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or 
available by law. In addition to any other remedies available to CITY at law 
or under this Agreement in the event of any breach of this Agreement, CITY, 
in its sole and absolute discretion, may also pursue any one or more of the 
following remedies: 

Attachment B.1

Page 336 of 385



 
Page 14 

 

 
i. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may immediately 

terminate this Agreement in whole or in part; 
 

ii. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may extend the time 
of performance; 

 
iii. The CITY may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the 

terms of the Agreement to recover damages for CONSULTANT’s 
breach of the Agreement  or to terminate the Agreement; or 

 
iv. The CITY may exercise any other available and lawful right or 

remedy.  
 

CONSULTANT shall be liable for all legal fees plus other costs and 
expenses that CITY incurs upon a breach of this Agreement or in the CITY’s 
exercise of its remedies under this Agreement.  

 
G. In the event CITY is in breach of this Agreement, CONSULTANT’s sole 

remedy shall be the suspension or termination of this Agreement and/or the 
recovery of any unpaid sums lawfully owed to CONSULTANT under this 
Agreement for completed services and tasks.   

 
5.3 SCOPE OF WAIVER:  No waiver of any default or breach under this Agreement 

shall constitute a waiver of any other default or breach, whether of the same or 
other covenant, warranty, agreement, term, condition, duty or requirement 
contained in this Agreement.  No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily 
given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any contractual rights by 
custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  
 

5.4 SURVIVING ARTICLES, SECTIONS AND PROVISIONS:  The termination of this 
Agreement pursuant to any provision of this Article or by normal expiration of its 
term or any extension thereto shall not operate to terminate any Article, Section or 
provision contained herein which provides that it shall survive the termination or 
normal expiration of this Agreement. 

 
VI. 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
6.1 DOCUMENTS & DATA; LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY:  All 

Documents and Data shall be and remain the property of CITY without restriction 
or limitation upon their use or dissemination by CITY.  For purposes of this 
Agreement, the term “Documents and Data” means and includes all reports, 
analyses, correspondence, plans, drawings, designs, renderings, specifications, 
notes, summaries, strategies, charts, schedules, spreadsheets, calculations, lists, 
data compilations, documents or other materials developed and/or assembled by 

Attachment B.1

Page 337 of 385



 
Page 15 

 

or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement and fixed in 
any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to Documents and 
Data stored digitally, magnetically and/or electronically.  This Agreement creates, 
at no cost to CITY, a perpetual license for CITY to copy, use, reuse, disseminate 
and/or retain any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property 
embodied in all Documents and Data.  CONSULTANT shall require all 
subcontractors and subconsultants working on behalf of CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement to agree in writing that CITY shall be granted the 
same right to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and retain Documents and Data 
prepared or assembled by any subcontractor or subconsultant as applies to 
Documents and Data prepared by CONSULTANT in the performance of this 
Agreement.  

 
6.2 CONFIDENTIALITY:  All data, documents, discussion, or other information 

developed or received by CONSULTANT or provided for performance of this 
Agreement are deemed confidential and shall not be disclosed by CONSULTANT 
without prior written consent by CITY. CITY shall grant such consent if disclosure 
is legally required. Upon request, all CITY data shall be returned to CITY upon the 
termination or expiration of this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall not use CITY’s 
name or insignia, photographs, or any publicity pertaining to the Work in any 
magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio production or other similar 
medium without the prior written consent of CITY. 

 
6.3 FALSE CLAIMS ACT:  CONSULTANT warrants and represents that neither 

CONSULTANT nor any person who is an officer of, in a managing position with, or 
has an ownership interest in CONSULTANT has been determined by a court or 
tribunal of competent jurisdiction to have violated the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C., 
Section 3789 et seq. and the California False Claims Act, Government Code 
Section 12650 et seq.  

 
6.4 NOTICES: All notices permitted or required under this Agreement shall be given to 

the respective Parties at the following addresses, or at such other address as the 
respective Parties may provide in writing for this purpose:   

 
CONSULTANT:  CITY:  
AVANT-GARDE 
3670 W. Temple Ave. #278 
Pomona,  CA  91768 
Attn: Lissett Calleros 
Phone: (909) 979-6586 
Fax:  (909) 979-6580 
Email: lcalleros@agi.com.co 

 City of Cudahy 
Community Development Division 
5220 Santa Ana Street 
Cudahy, CA 90201 
Attn:  Michael Allen 
Phone:  (323) 773-5143 
Fax:  (323) 771-2072 

 
Such notices shall be deemed effective when personally delivered or successfully 
transmitted by facsimile as evidenced by a fax confirmation slip or when mailed, 

Attachment B.1

Page 338 of 385



 
Page 16 

 

forty-eight (48) hours after deposit with the United States Postal Service, first class 
postage prepaid and addressed to the Party at its applicable address.   

 
6.5 COOPERATION; FURTHER ACTS:  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 

another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as is 
reasonably necessary, appropriate or convenient to achieve the purposes of this 
Agreement. 

 
6.6 SUBCONTRACTING: CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the 

Work required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without the 
prior written approval of CITY.  Subcontracts (including without limitation 
subcontracts with subconsultants), if any, shall contain a provision making them 
subject to all provisions stipulated in this Agreement, including provisions relating 
to insurance requirements and indemnification. 
 

6.7 CITY’S RIGHT TO EMPLOY OTHER CONSULTANTS:  CITY reserves the right to 
employ other contractors in connection with the various projects worked upon by 
CONSULTANT. 
 

6.8 PROHIBITED INTERESTS:  CONSULTANT warrants, represents and maintains 
that it has not employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona 
fide employee working solely for CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this 
Agreement.  Further, CONSULTANT warrants and represents that it has not paid 
nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee 
working solely for CONSULTANT, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage 
fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or 
making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation of this warranty, CITY shall 
have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  For the term of this 
Agreement, no member, officer or employee of CITY, during the term of his or her 
service with CITY, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain any 
present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 
 

6.9 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE:  Time is of the essence for each and every provision 
of this Agreement. 
 

6.10 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE:  This Agreement shall be interpreted and 
governed according to the laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation 
between the Parties, venue, without exception, shall be in the Los Angeles County 
Superior Court of the State of California.  If, and only if, applicable law requires that 
all or part of any such litigation be tried exclusively in federal court, venue, without 
exception, shall be in the Central District of California located in the City of Los 
Angeles, California. 
 

6.11 ATTORNEYS’ FEES:  If either Party commences an action against the other Party, 
either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this 
Agreement, the prevailing Party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and 

Attachment B.1

Page 339 of 385



 
Page 17 

 

recover from the losing Party reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other costs of such 
action. 
 

6.12 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  This Agreement shall be binding on the 
successors and assigns of the Parties. 
 

6.13 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFIT: There are no intended third party beneficiaries of 
any right or obligation assumed by the Parties.  All rights and benefits under this 
Agreement inure exclusively to the Parties. 
 

6.14 CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement shall not be construed in 
favor of, or against, either Party but shall be construed as if the Parties prepared 
this Agreement together through a process of negotiation and with the advice of 
their respective attorneys. 

 
6.15 SEVERABILITY: If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or 

otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 
provisions shall continue in full force and effect.  
 

6.16 AMENDMENT; MODIFICATION:  No amendment, modification or supplement of 
this Agreement shall be valid or binding unless executed in writing and signed by 
both Parties, subject to CITY approval.  The requirement for written amendments, 
modifications or supplements cannot be waived and any attempted waiver shall be 
void and invalid. 
 

6.17 CAPTIONS:  The captions of the various articles, sections and paragraphs are for 
convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limits, augment, or 
describe the scope, content, or intent of this Agreement. 
 

6.18 INCONSISTENCIES OR CONFLICTS:  In the event of any conflict or 
inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and any of the exhibits 
attached hereto, the provisions of this Agreement shall control.   
 

6.19 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement including all attached exhibits is the 
entire, complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the 
matters addressed herein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, 
whether oral or written, or entered into between CITY and CONSULTANT prior to 
the execution of this Agreement.  No statements, representations or other 
agreements, whether oral or written, made by any Party which are not embodied 
herein shall be valid or binding.  No amendment, modification or supplement to this 
Agreement shall be valid and binding unless in writing and duly executed by the 
Parties pursuant to Section 6.15, above. 
 

6.20 COUNTERPARTS:  .This Agreement shall be executed in three (3) original 
counterparts each of which shall be of equal force and effect.  No handwritten or 
typewritten amendment, modification or supplement to any one counterparts shall 

Attachment B.1

Page 340 of 385



 
Page 18 

 

be valid or binding unless made to all three counterparts in conformity with Section 
6.16, above.  One fully executed original counterpart shall be delivered to 
CONSULTANT and the remaining two original counterparts shall be retained by 
CITY.  

 
[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
the day and year first appearing in this Agreement, above. 
 
CITY OF CUDAHY: 
 
By:______________________________ 
       Jose E. Pulido, City Manager 
 
Date:_____________________________ 
 
      
 
 

 AVANT-GARDE 
 
By:______________________________ 
 
Name:____________________________ 
 
Title:_____________________________ 
 
Date:_____________________________ 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
By:______________________________  
        
Date:_____________________________ 
 
 

  
 

Attachment B.1

Page 341 of 385



 
Page 19 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
(SCOPE OF SERVICES) 

Attachment B.1

Page 342 of 385



Attachment B.2

Page 343 of 385



 
 
 
 
 
 
For Immediate Release: 
Thursday October 15, 2015 
Contact: Marybeth Vergara-Garcia 626-815-1019 x111 
Jose Gardea 323-559-1762 
 
PRESS RELEASE: RIVERS AND MOUNTAINS CONSERVANCY 
ANNOUNCES THE CALL FOR PROJECTS PHASE IS OPEN FOR 
UPCOMING PROPOSITION 1 FUNDING 

The Rivers and Mountains Conservancy (RMC), as part of the Proposition 
1 competitive grant roll-out, announces the Call for Projects phase with a 
submission deadline for funding applications set for December 16, 2015.   
The application guidelines are now available and posted at 
www.rmc.ca.gov    

Through this Call for Projects, the RMC seeks to support projects that 
increase water supply and quality and enhance the health of our regional 
watersheds.  Grant funding amounts will vary from $250,000 to $1,000,000.  
Special consideration will be given to projects that are implementation 
ready.   Limited funds will also be made available for project planning 
purposes.  Mark Stanley, executive officer of the RMC, in announcing the 
funding that will be available during this first phase, stated that “the RMC 
looks to continue to provide funds for projects that will address the water-
related needs throughout the RMC’s catchment area where the need is 
great and where we anticipate a highly competitive grant round.” 

Earlier this year, over 100 members of the public participated in workshops, 
which were held in Newhall, West Covina, Fullerton, and Downey between 
July 23 and July 30, 2015. At the workshops, participants learned about the 
RMC, its previous funding programs, and reviewed the RMC’s Proposition 
1 draft guidelines. Participants also engaged RMC staff in a question and 
answer session.  

The RMC incorporated into the recently approved guidelines public 
comments that were gathered at these workshops and subsequent 
suggestions submitted via their website. The RMC board unanimously 
approved the final guidelines on September 28th, 2015.  In supporting the 
action, RMC Board Chair Frank Colonna said the following:  “We are proud 
and excited about bringing this resource opportunity to the communities 
within the RMC area, an area that I believe is at the forefront of water 
management policy and program implementation.” 

The voters of California approved the Water Quality, Supply, and 
Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014 (“Proposition 1” or “Water Bond”) in 

Attachment C

Page 344 of 385

http://www.rmc.ca.gov/


November 2014 codified as Division 26.7 of the Water Code which authorized $7.545 billion 
dollars in general obligation bonds for State water projects, including surface and 
groundwater storage, ecosystem and watershed protection and restoration, and drinking 
water protection. The purpose of Proposition 1 is to provide funding for projects that 
implement the three objectives of the California Water Action Plan which are more reliable 
water supplies, restoration of important species and habitat and a more resilient and 
sustainably managed water infrastructure (Proposition 1, Chapter 2, Section 79701 (e)). 
Chapter 6 of Proposition 1 allocates $30 million to the RMC for competitive grants for multi-
benefit ecosystem, watershed protection and restoration projects in accordance with 
statewide priorities (79731(f)). 

### 

The San Gabriel and Lower Los Angeles Rivers and Mountains Conservancy (RMC) is one 
of 10 conservancies across the state. Their territory spans portions of the Antelope Valley, 
the San Gabriel Mountains, a majority of Los Angeles County and Northern Orange County. 
Additional information about the Conservancy can be found on the website: www.rmc.ca.gov 

 

Attachment C

Page 345 of 385



San Gabriel and Lower Los Angeles Rivers and 
Mountains Conservancy 

Grant Program Guidelines 

 

 

 

Water Quality, Supply and Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014  

(Proposition 1) 

 

 

The State Resources Agency 
State of California 

 

September 2015

Attachment D

Page 346 of 385



 
 

Inquiries and Contact Information 

 

All inquiries, correspondence, and grant applications should be addressed to: 

Proposition 1 Grant Program 
Rivers and Mountains Conservancy 
100 N. Old San Gabriel Canyon Road 
Azusa, CA 91702 
626-815-1019  
RMCProp1@rmc.ca.gov 
 

For further information please log on to our website at www.rmc.ca.gov 

The deadline for receipt of applications is December 16, 2015 by 5pm. 

All applications must be received on or before the deadline. The RMC is not 

responsible for applications which are delayed by the US Postal Service. 

Hand delivered applications will be accepted. 

Late applications will NOT be accepted. 

Successful applicants will be notified by RMC on or before March 30, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment D

Page 347 of 385



 

2 
 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION 1 Background          

1.1 RMC Authority........................................................................................... 3 

1.2 Grant Funding Sources—Proposition 1 ................................................. 3 
SECTION 2 Purpose and Eligibility Requirements 

2.1 Proposition 1 Grant Program Guidelines and Eligibility ...................... 4 

2.2 RMC Objectives and Proposition 1 Consistency .................................. 4 

2.3      Proposition 1, Chapter 6 Objectives ....................................................... 5 

2.4      Promotion and Implementation of State Plans and the RMC   

     Environmental Justice Policy ................................................................. 6 

2.5 RMC Proposition 1 Priorities ................................................................... 7 

2.6 Eligible Applicants ................................................................................... 7 

2.7 Project Eligibility ...................................................................................... 8 

2.8 Project Ineligibility .................................................................................... 8 

2.9 Additional Considerations ....................................................................... 9 
SECTION 3 Grant Application Process 

3.1 Geographic Program Areas ................................................................... 10 

3.2 Project Evaluation Criteria ..................................................................... 10 

3.3 Notice of Funding Availability ............................................................... 11 

3.4 Grant Application ................................................................................... 11 

3.5 Completeness and Selection Criteria ................................................... 13 

3.6 Scoring .................................................................................................... 13 

3.7 Conflict of Interest and Confidentiality ................................................ 13 

3.8 Typical Grant Process ............................................................................ 14 
SECTION 4  Grant Agreement 

4.1 Grant Award ............................................................................................ 15 

4.2 Board Meetings ....................................................................................... 15 

4.3 Grant Agreement .................................................................................... 15 

4.4 Environmental Documents .................................................................... 15 

4.5 Project Monitoring and Reporting ........................................................ 15 

4.6 Leveraging Funds ................................................................................... 15 

4.7 Project Withdrawal ................................................................................. 16 

4.8 Changes to the Project Scope............................................................... 16 

4.9 Time Extensions ..................................................................................... 16 

4.10 Payment of Grant Funds ........................................................................ 16 

4.11 Advance Payment Requests ................................................................. 16 

4.12 Final Payment Request .......................................................................... 16 

4.13 Site Visits ................................................................................................. 16 

4.14 Loss of Funding ...................................................................................... 17 

4.15 Accounting Requirements ..................................................................... 17 

SECTION 5 Appendices 

Appendix A: Definitions................................................................................. 18 

Appendix B: Chapter 6 of Proposition 1  ..................................................... 24 

Appendix C: Project Evaluation Criteria .................. …………………………27 

Appendix D: Grant Application Form ....................... …………………………33 

Appendix E: California Conservation Corps and Certified Community    

  Conservation Corps Consultation……………………………..36 

SECTION 6      FIGURES 

Figure 1 RMC Territory Map ................................................................... 39 

Attachment D

Page 348 of 385



 

3 
 

SECTION 1: Background 

1.1 RMC AUTHORITY 

The San Gabriel and Lower Los Angeles Rivers and Mountains Conservancy (RMC) is one of ten 

conservancies within the Natural Resources Agency established in 1999 (Chapters 788 and 789, Statutes 

of 1999). The RMC’s mission is to preserve open space and habitat in order to provide for low-impact 

recreation and educational uses, wildlife habitat restoration and protection, and watershed improvements 

within our jurisdictions. RMC’s jurisdiction includes eastern Los Angeles County and western Orange 

County, comprised of the San Gabriel River Watershed and its tributaries, the Lower Los Angeles River 

Watershed and its tributaries, Upper Santa Clara River and its tributaries, north slope of the Angeles 

National Forest, the San Gabriel Mountains National Monument, Puente Hills and the San Jose Hills 

(Division 22.8. of the Public Resources Code California 32600-32621), please see Figure 1, RMC Territory 

Map. Additionally, the RMC recently adopted an Environmental Justice Policy with three key environmental 

justice principles: (1) community driven empowerment/organizing campaigns, 2) identification of 

incompatible land uses, and 3) recognize opportunities to create green infrastructure such as community 

open space and alternative transportation modes including bicycling and walking (RMC Resolution 2014-

19).  

The RMC was established to preserve open space and habitats in order to: 

■ Improve watersheds within its jurisdiction 

■ Provide for low-impact recreation, educational uses and water conservation 

■ Restore and protect wildlife and habitat 

■ Provides the public's enjoyment and enhancement of recreational and educational experiences on 

public lands in the RMC Territory in a manner consistent with the protection of lands and resources 

in those watersheds   

1.2 Grant Funding Sources—Proposition 1  

The voters of California approved the Water Quality, Supply, and Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014 

(“Proposition 1”) in November 2014 codified as Division 26.7 of the Water Code which authorized $7.545 

billion dollars in general obligation bonds for State water projects, including surface and groundwater 

storage, ecosystem and watershed protection and restoration, and drinking water protection. Purposes of 

Proposition 1 include implement[ing] the three objectives of the California Water Action Plan which are more 

reliable water supplies, the restoration of important species and habitat and a more resilient and sustainably 

managed water infrastructure (Proposition 1, Chapter 2, Section 79701 (e)). Chapter 6 of Proposition 1 

allocates $30 million to the RMC for competitive grants for multi-benefit ecosystem, watershed protection 

and restoration projects in accordance with statewide priorities (Section 79731(f)). In addition, pursuant to 

Section 79735(a) and upon appropriation by the Legislature $100 million may be allocated to the RMC or 

the Santa Monica Mountains Conservancy, or a combination of both, for competitive grants to protect and 

enhance urban creeks and its tributaries as defined in subdivision (e) of Section 7048 and pursuant to 

Division 22.8.  

 

Proposition 1 funds will be awarded for the acquisition, development, rehabilitation, restoration, and 

protection of land and water resources consistent with the RMC statues, the Proposition 1 goals identified 

in the California Water Action Plan and statewide plans and priorities. The RMC Board may administer one 

or more competitive grant cycles during the fiscal year through the issuance of a notice of funding availability 

and may fund certain phases of a project in order to maximize the distribution of grant funds to multiple 

recipients and throughout the RMC territory.  

 

 

Attachment D

Page 349 of 385



 

4 
 

The amount of funding available for each grant cycle will depend upon the amount appropriated to the RMC 

by the State Legislature each year. In addition, the amount awarded will also depend on the quality of 

submittals, leverage of matching funds, and multi-beneficial and multi-jurisdictional ecosystem and 

watershed protection projects in accordance with statewide priorities. 

 

SECTION 2: Purpose and Eligibility Requirements 

2.1 Proposition 1 Grant Program Guidelines and Eligibility  

RMC Proposition 1 Grant Program Guidelines establish the process and criteria that the RMC will utilize to 

solicit applications, evaluate proposals and award grants, pursuant to Proposition 1 and RMC guiding 

principles. All projects funded by the RMC with Proposition 1 grant funds must be consistent with the RMC’s 

enabling legislation Common Ground from the Mountains to the Sea (Common Ground), Open Space Plan 

Phase II Final Report, and the watershed and open space plans for the Los Angeles and San Gabriel River 

watersheds which was adopted by the RMC in 2001 (http://www.rmc.ca.gov) for the distribution of grant 

funds. In addition, the purposes defined in Proposition 1 specify that projects must carry out at least one of 

the three objectives of the California Water Action Plan (Water Code 79706(a)) in order create a sustainable 

strategy for managing its water resources and supply. Concurrently with these efforts to conserve and 

manage its water supply, the State passed the Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006 (AB32) and 

subsequent policy and program implementation, therefore the RMC’s Proposition 1 Guidelines and project 

scoring criteria are designed to fund projects that achieve the State’s foremost goals of conserving water 

resources, water supply and adhering to the State’s policies for reaching greenhouse gas reduction targets. 

These guidelines will apply to both sections of Proposition 1, Chapter 6, Sections 79731(f) and 79735(a) 

which allocates the following funding to the RMC: Section 79731(f) of the funds authorized by Section 

79730, the sum of three hundred twenty-seven million five hundred thousand dollars ($327,500,000) shall 

be allocated for multibenefit water quality, water supply, and watershed protection and restoration projects 

for the watersheds of the state in accordance with the following schedule:..(f) San Gabriel and Lower Los 

Angeles Rivers and Mountains Conservancy, thirty million dollars ($30,000,000). And Section 79735(a) of 

the funds authorized by Section 79730, one hundred million dollars ($100,000,000) shall be available, upon 

appropriation by the Legislature, for projects to protect and enhance an urban creek, as defined in 

subdivision (e) of Section 7048, and its tributaries, pursuant to Division 22.8 (commencing with Section 

32600) of, and Division 23 (commencing with Section 33000) of, the Public Resources Code and Section 

79508. Further, the RMC Proposition 1 Guidelines adopted by the RMC Board and pursuant to Water Code 

Section 79706(a) may be updated periodically. 

2.2 RMC Objectives and Proposition 1 Consistency 

The RMC Board will adopt the Proposition 1 Guidelines which set forth the evaluation criteria for its 

competitive grant programs and may be updated accordingly if necessary (See Appendix C for the Project 

Evaluation Criteria). The project evaluation criteria are set by the RMC objectives which are articulated in 

Common Ground and the Open Space Plan Phase II Final Report. The types of projects proposed to be 

supported by this grant program are also consistent with Proposition 1 for purposes of prioritizing and for 

improvements to the waters of state. The RMC’s Common Ground objectives and the types of projects 

supported by this grant program are as follow* 

■ Projects must promote the RMC’s statutory programs and purposes as stated in Division 22.8. of the 

Public Resources Code 32600-32621 

■ Projects must be consistent with the purposes of the funding source (Proposition 1)* 

■ Projects must promote and implement the State’s Water Plans and Policies 

Attachment D

Page 350 of 385



 

5 
 

■ Create, expand, and/or improve public open space throughout the region by improving water quality 
supply, create, enhance or improve a reliable water supply and/or restore an important species and 
habitat 

■ Improve access to open space and low impact recreation for all communities and promote healthy 
lifestyles 

■ Improve habitat quality, quantity, and connectivity through creation, enhancement, preservation, and 
restoration 

■ Connect open space with a network of trails, accessible as appropriate to the site 

■ Promote stewardship of the landscape via stakeholder involvement and long-term maintenance 

■ Encourage sustainable growth that balances environmental, social, and economic benefits 

■ Maintain and improve flood protection through natural and non-structural systems and ecosystem 
restoration 

■ Establish riverfront greenways to cleanse water, hold floodwaters and extend open space 

■ Optimize water resources by improving the quality of surface and ground water and enhance ground 
water recharge, to reduce dependence on imported water 

■ Coordinate watershed planning across jurisdictions and boundaries 

■ Encourage multi-jurisdictional and multi-beneficial planning and implementation projects 

■ Involve the public through education and outreach programs 

■ Projects will utilize the best available science to inform decisions regarding, state and local water 
resource. In addition, special consideration will be given to projects that employ new or innovative 
technology or practices, including decision support tools that support the integration of multiple 
jurisdictions, including, but not limited to, water supply, flood control, land use, and sanitation. 

*Please note, all grant applications must have a water-related benefit in order for consistency with 
Proposition 1 and all proposed project must improve water quality supply, create, enhance and improve a 
reliable water supply and/or restore an important species and habitat.  

2.3 Proposition 1, Chapter 6 Objectives 

 

Proposition 1 allocation to the RMC is pursuant to Chapter 6 Protecting Rivers, Lakes, Streams, Coastal 

Waters and Watersheds and sets forth thirteen specific purposes and all grant funds must achieve at least 

four or more of the following objectives in order to receive funds. 

1. Protect and increase the economic benefits arising from healthy watersheds, fishery resources and 

instream flow. 

2. Implement watershed adaptation projects in order to reduce the impacts of climate change on 

communities and ecosystems. 

3. Restore river parkways throughout the state, including but not limited to projects pursuant to the 

California River Parkways Act of 2004, in the Urban Streams Restoration Program established 

pursuant to Section 7048 and urban river greenways. 

4. Protect and restore aquatic, wetland and migratory bird ecosystems including fish and wildlife 

corridors and the acquisition of water rights for instream flow. 

5. Fulfill the obligations of the State of California in complying with the terms of multiparty settlement 

agreements related to water resources. 

6. Remove barriers to fish passage. 

7. Implement fuel treatment projects to reduce wildfire risks, protect watersheds tributary to water 

storage facilities and promote watershed health. 

8. Protect and restore rural and urban watershed health to improve watershed storage capacity, forest 

health, protection of life and property, stormwater resource management, and greenhouse gas 

reduction. 

9. Protect and restore coastal watershed including but not limited to, bays, marine estuaries, and 

nearshore ecosystems. 

Attachment D

Page 351 of 385



 

6 
 

10. Reduce pollution or contamination of rivers, lakes, streams, or coastal waters, prevent and 

remediate mercury contamination from legacy mines, and protect or restore natural system 

functions that contribute to water supply, water quality, or flood management. 

11. Assist in the recovery of endangered, threatened, or migratory species by improving watershed 

health, instream flows, fish passage, coastal or inland wetland restoration, or other means, such 

as natural community conservation plan and habitat conservation plan implementation. 

12. Protect and enhance an urban creek as defined in subdivision (e) of Section 7048 and its tributaries 

pursuant to Division 22.8 and Division 23 of the Public Resources Code and Section 79508. 

13. Assist in water-related agricultural sustainability projects that promote water conservation. 

 

2.4   Promotion and Implementation of State Plans and RMC Environmental Justice Policy 

The RMC Proposition 1 Guidelines require that projects be consistent with statewide plans and priorities 

and that projects be consistent with the goals identified in the California Water Action Plan, links to key 

plans can be found at http://resources.ca.gov/california_water_action_plan/. 

Additionally, the RMC adopted an environmental justice policy at the November 24, 2014 Board Meeting, 
although it may be amended as necessary. It is the policy of the RMC that the fair treatment of people of 
all races, cultures and income shall be fully considered during the planning, decision-making, development 
and implementation of all RMC programs, policies, and activities. The intent of this policy is to ensure that 
the public within the RMC catchment area including minority and low-income populations are not 
discriminated against; treated unfairly, or caused to experience disproportionately high and adverse human 
health or environmental effects from environmental and land-use decisions, and children and their families 
have access to safe open space and healthy neighborhoods.  
 
The RMC adopted the following key principles: 
 

1. Make environmental justice considerations a standard in the way we do business. We will keep 
an environmental justice perspective in our programs, activities, and training, as we set priorities, 
identify program gaps, and assess the benefits and adverse impacts our programs have on 
communities in our catchment area.  

 
2. Work with local elected officials, staff of cities, and community groups, to address concerns about 
lack of access to safe open space, especially in low-income and minority communities.  

 
3. Review and evaluate RMC programs and activities to ensure that the environmental justice 
perspective through its programs does not contain any substantive gaps.  

 
4. Develop and incorporate an environmental justice program element into our employee-training 
curriculum.  

 
5. Annually provide a staff briefing to the Board at a public meeting regarding ongoing and planned 
activities. Issue a written annual status report identifying action items accomplished and a proposed 
work plan outlining the action items for the next year. The work plan shall include quantitative goals 
for working in disadvantaged communities and populations adversely impacted by industrial and 
transportation proximities.  

 
6. Strengthen our public outreach, education, and organizing efforts in all communities, especially 
low-income communities and where we see a need for the implementation.  

 
7. Identify partners within land-use and transportation agencies that are responsible for the 
environmental benefits or adverse impacts in our neighborhoods and address potential mitigation 
activities.  
 

Attachment D

Page 352 of 385



 

7 
 

8. Work with cities, County of Los Angeles, and community groups in identifying relevant 
populations living in close proximity to industrial and transportation locations that may benefit from 
RMC programs and activities.  
 
9. Taking a proactive role in working with cities in adopting and/or updating their General Plans to 
implement environmental justice policies.  

 
10. Work in conjunction with other federal, state, regional, and local agencies to ensure 
consideration of disproportionate impacts on relevant populations and create action oriented 
mitigation plans.  
 
11. Fostering broad access to existing and proposed data sets and technology to better identify, 
analyze, and respond to environmental justice issues (database bank).  

RMC commits to integrating environmental justice principles into its programs and plans and will 

continue to improve our outreach efforts in all communities of our catchment area, ensuring that 

everyone has an opportunity to participate fully in the development and implementation of our 

programs. As an oversight agency we will work closely with local cities and County of Los Angeles, 

and other stakeholders to jointly develop environmental justice awareness so that it is in line with 

our funding grant programs for project design and development. Our commitment is to take 

consideration of neighborhoods where people encounter environmental pressures given their close 

proximity to industrial and transportation zones, as well as incompatible land uses. The RMC’s goal 

is to ensure that the populations in our area especially children and families are empowered to play 

a role in creating a healthful environment. 

2.5 RMC Proposition 1 Priorities 

The RMC will seek to prioritize multi-beneficial and multi-jurisdictional ecosystem and watershed protection 

projects in accordance with statewide priorities. A proposed project must be consistent with Proposition 1 

bond language, RMC Common Ground and the California Water Action Plan. Further, the proposed project 

must be evaluated under the RMC priority areas in order to be considered for funding. The RMC will set 

priority areas for evaluating and funding projects within the RMC jurisdiction, which will include review of 

existing state plans, screening for projects that achieve multi benefits, serves disadvantaged communities 

and result in a quantifiable outcome in the following priority areas: 

■ Water Sustainability and Resiliency  

■ Serves disadvantaged communities 

■ Preservation, restoration enhancement and adaptive management of coastal wetland habitat of 

regional and statewide importance  

■ Urban Greening along the San Gabriel and Lower Los Angeles Rivers 

■ Climate Change Adaptation and Greenhouse Gas Reductions 

■ Create, expand, and/or improve public open space throughout the region by improving water quality 
supply, create, enhance or improve a reliable water supply and/or restore an important species and 
habitat 

2.6 Eligible Applicants 

All proposed projects must be located within the boundaries of the RMC and eligible applicants include 

(Proposition 1, Chapter 4, Section 79712):   

■ Public Agencies  

■ Public Utilities that is regulated by the Public Utilities Commission 

■ Federally recognized Indian tribes, state Indian tribes listed on the Native American Heritage 
Commission’s California Tribal Consultation List 

■ Mutual Water Companies shall have a clear and definite public purpose and shall benefit the 
customers of a water system and not the investors 

Attachment D

Page 353 of 385



 

8 
 

■ Cities 

■ Counties 

■ Joint Powers Agencies 

■ Nonprofit organizations (existing under Section 501(c) (3) of the IRS Code) and whose purposes are 
consistent the RMC’s enabling legislation 

Individuals and corporations are not eligible for this grant program; however RMC encourages multiple 

partners or joint projects. As long as the applicant is a listed eligible applicants, applications will be accepted 

from joint projects with non-eligible agencies. 

2.7 Project Eligibility   

RMC Proposition 1 Guidelines will fund projects which are consistent with the RMC’s enabling legislation, 

meet the RMC’s required project selection criteria, support the RMC’s Common Ground Objectives and 

advance the objectives of Proposition 1.  

 

In addition, Proposition 1 funds must be spent consistent with the General Obligation Bond Law, 

Government Code Section 16727; and in order to provide for a competitive grant application the RMC 

encourages applicants to develop complete and comprehensive projects which may include, trails access 

improvements, educational, natural based play infrastructure, interpretive programming and public outreach 

that will further the mission of the RMC and advance the objectives of Proposition 1. The RMC is committed 

to funding well-formed projects that provide multiple benefits but applicants must ensure these elements 

are funded through matching funds, since Proposition 1 funds only water related projects. Additionally, 

these supplementary elements may earn applicants additional points in the scoring criteria and provide for 

a competitive grant.  

The following costs are eligible for RMC grant funds: 

■ Grant funds may be used for the acquisition, development, rehabilitation, restoration, and protection 

of land and water resources. 

■ Land acquisition costs may include appraisals, land, improvements, relocation costs, title reports, 

surveying, and escrow. Land must be acquired from willing sellers and at fair market value. 

■ Direct expenses include project-specific management costs such as CEQA/NEPA compliance, 

permitting, direct project administration and management.  

■ Projects that have lower overhead or no overhead costs will be deemed more competitive. The RMC 

may cap indirect and overhead costs at 10-15% of the total project cost. 

■ Proposition 1 funding has limited funding available for preparation of planning documents, such as 

watershed plan updates, CEQA compliance documents and other planning documents (79735(d): 

Up to 10 percent of the funds available pursuant to this section may be allocated for project planning) 

2.8 Project Ineligibility  

The following uses are not eligible for RMC grant funds: 

■ Operations and Maintenance related costs for the lifetime of project.  

■ Playground equipment and/or infrastructure such as swing sets and skate parks. 

■ Facilities that do not have an environmental education focus or theme, such as basketball courts, 

hockey courts, etc. Multi-use projects may include these elements, but this program will not fund 

planning or development of such facilities. 

■ Projects that cause erosion or contribute to flooding. 

■ Projects on land or improved property acquired by condemnation from an unwilling seller. 

■ Project has no water related benefits, lack an improved habitat or species restoration, has a low 

impact public recreation access and it is not consistent with Proposition 1 objectives. 

Attachment D

Page 354 of 385



 

9 
 

■ Projects traditionally provided by the private, non-government sector or by concessionaires, such as 

gift shops, equipment rentals, concession stands, etc., unless it can be shown that no private 

entrepreneur is willing to provide services, and there is demonstrated need for the Project. 

■ Projects that exclusively fulfill other mitigation requirements. 

 

2.9 Additional Considerations 

The following are additional considerations for evaluating project eligibility: 

■ Each project must include information that addresses RMC Project Evaluation Criteria. 

■ Applicants shall submit an individual application for each eligible project within their jurisdiction. 

■ Project applicants are required to consult with the California Conservation Corps (CCC) and Local 

Certified Conservation Corps or look to hire youth through certified Youth Employment Program in 

coordination with the State/County or qualified non-governmental organization (NGO). See Appendix 

E.  

■ Projects that utilize Youth Employment Program, please include the organization’s capacity to 

develop, manage and implement the youth employment program. 

■ All projects funded by Proposition 1 must be consistent with the Porter-Cologne Water Quality 

Control Act (Division 7 of the Water Code) and the State’s five-year infrastructure plan prepared 

pursuant to Government Code section 13100. 

■ Facilities development projects must demonstrate a strong relationship and value to natural resource 

stewardship or environmental education. 

■ Rehabilitation and restoration projects of natural habitats must be biologically and technically 

feasible. 

■ Agencies acquiring land may use the Natural Heritage Preservation Tax Credit Act of 2000 (Division 

28 of the Public Resources Code. Water Code Section 79711(h)).  

■ Where appropriate, grantees will be required to provide signage informing the public that the project 

received Proposition 1 funding. This requirement will be addressed in the grant agreement. 

■ Applicants must complete the project and submit all documentation within five years of grant award. 

■ Grants shall be paid on a reimbursement basis unless otherwise requested and approved by the 

RMC board. 

■ Applicants shall provide for public access and low-impact recreation, unless it is specifically 

prohibited or not ecologically or biologically feasible. 

■ Projects that have multiple benefits will be considered more competitive. 

■ Projects which have a clearly articulated monitoring and assessment plan will be considered more 

competitive. 

■ All real property shall be acquired from a willing seller and in compliance with current State laws 

governing Relocation and Acquisition of real property by public agencies. Appraisals will be subject 

to prior approval of fair market value by the State Department of General Services. 

■ All projects must comply with CEQA and/or NEPA as appropriate. These costs may be funded under 

this program as part of planning dollars. Status will be carefully evaluated and projects that have 

completed CEQA/NEPA and/or are advanced in the environmental process prior to the application 

will be considered more competitive. 

■ Applicants shall comply with all applicable laws, regulations and permitting requirements. 

■ All information contained in the grant applications is confidential until the grant awards are 

announced. After that time, all applications will become public information. 

■ Applicants awarded grants (Grantees) must enter into a grant agreement with the RMC before funds 

can be disbursed. 

Attachment D

Page 355 of 385



 

10 
 

■ Grantees will be required to submit reports to the RMC, including progress, financial, and monitoring 

and assessment reports. Under usual circumstances, reports shall not be required more frequently 

than on a quarterly basis. 

■ Projects need to meet and exceed the criteria set forth in Common Ground and Chapter 6 of 

Proposition 1, as well as any planning criteria approved by agencies within the project jurisdiction, 

such as master plans or watershed management plans. 

■ Matching funds or in-kind services are not required. Matching funds include project planning, 

operations and maintenance, volunteer support, and ongoing monitoring and assessment for the 

lifetime of the project. Contributions may be in the form of cash contributions, property, or in-kind 

services and must be verifiable. 

■ All applicants must adhere to the RMC Environment Justice Policy.  

■ Special consideration will be given to projects that employ new or innovative technology or practices, 

including decision support tools that support the integration of multiple jurisdictions, including but not 

limited to, water supply, flood control, land use and sanitation (Section 79707(e). 

 

Section 3 Grant Application Process 

3.1 Geographic Program Areas 

To facilitate the comparison and aggregation of similar projects and assure that funds are available for a 

wide range of projects, these grant funds will be applied to three program areas that can be described in 

geographic terms. Project applicants will be asked to identify their program area. Projects cannot qualify for 

inclusion in more than one program area: 

■ Urban Lands—All land within the developed, urban core of the RMC territory that is NOT within the 

area identified for River/Tributary Parkways, or within the Mountains, Hills, and Foothills. 

■ River/Tributary Parkways—Land falling within one-quarter mile on either side of the centerline of a 

river or tributary within the RMC territory, but NOT within the Mountains, Hills and Foothills or Urban 

Land areas. 

■ Mountains, Hills, and Foothills—Land lying within the area of a named system of mountains, hills 

and foothills. More specifically, land lying within the geographic area of the San Gabriel Mountains, 

the San Jose, San Rafael, Montebello, Puente, Chino, Coyote, or Signal Hills, the San Gabriel 

foothills, and within the territory of the RMC but NOT within the Urban Lands or River/Tributary 

Parkways. To determine the specific area in which your project might fall, please refer to the RMC 

website: http://www.rmc.ca.gov/about/territory.html. 

3.2 Project Evaluation Criteria 

The RMC Board will adopt the following project evaluation criteria with the major elements of the project 

evaluation criteria are as follows: 

■ Restore River Parkways 

■ Educational/Interpretive* 

■ Habitat and Restoration Resource Values 

■ Matching Funds 

■ Environmental Justice and Disadvantaged Communities 

■ Multi-beneficial and multi-jurisdictional ecosystem and watershed protection projects in accordance 

with statewide priorities 

■ Stakeholders/Partners 

Attachment D

Page 356 of 385



 

11 
 

■ Stewardship and Organizational Capacity 

■ Water Sustainability, Water Storage and Water Infrastructure   

■ Urban Land 

■ Water Resource and Water Quality 

*These project elements may provide additional information for evaluating the project but these elements 

are not eligible costs under Proposition 1. 

3.3 Notice of Funding Availability 

The RMC Board may administer one or more competitive cycles each fiscal year through the issuance of a 

notice of funding availability and may fund certain phases of a project in order to maximize the distribution 

of grant funds to multiple recipients and throughout the RMC territory. Grants will be awarded in a manner 

which supports and advances the RMC’s objectives and meets and exceeds the purposes of Chapter 6 of 

Proposition 1. 

 

3.4 Grant Application 

 

Completed grant applications will be evaluated to determine the final funding recommendations. Applicants 

will be required to submit one original (1) and three (3) copies of the application and attachments as well 

as a digital copy. The following materials are required for a complete application: 

1. Grant Application Form (Refer to Appendix D) 

2. Project Description includes: (Sections 2a-2f should not exceed 7 pages, single-spaced, 11 point 
font minimum). 

a. Complete Project Description: for acquisition projects include APN, acreage and purpose for 
acquisition; for planning and implementation include specific tasks and deliverables. 
 

b. Statement of Need for the Proposed Project: a summary of the needs for the project and how 
the project meets the RMC’s policies and project evaluation criteria, and exceeds Proposition 1, 
Chapter 6 objectives of the water bond legislation (RMC Grant Guidelines Section 2.3). 

 
c. Description of audience and geographic area served: provide a summary of the communities, 
cities, and populations that will be served once the project is completed. 
 
d. Description of Goals and Objectives: the goals and objectives should clearly define 
measurable and outcome-oriented goals and objectives for the project, performance measures to 
track progress toward objectives, and a reporting system to present the analysis of performance 
measures against the deliverables and tasks. 
 
e. Community Outreach: how will the community be involved in the project design and 
implementation, include how the project is consistent with the RMC Environmental Justice Policy 
(RMC Grant Guidelines Section 2.4, include specific plans for community outreach, education, 
community involvement).  

f. Monitoring and Assessment Plan: The monitoring and assessment plan should include the 

tracking of the progress of the measurable goals and objectives of the project during as well as 

after the project is completed. Outline of a monitoring and assessment plan should include 

measurable and quantifiable targets for a planning and implementation project. And, for acquisition 

projects include the long-term management and maintenance plan. The RMC is interested in 

measuring the progress of each of its activities in achieving results or outcomes. Hence, the focus 

of each project evaluation must be on outcomes, defined as the project results or impact on users 

and society. Output and other measures are important, but the focus should be on results.  

g. Organizational capacity, include a brief history of your organization and the ability to fully 

complete and maintain the project long-term. 

Attachment D

Page 357 of 385



 

12 
 

3. California Conservation Corps: Applicants applying for funds to complete restoration and 

ecosystem protection projects are required to consult with representatives of the California 

Conservation Corp (CCC) and the California Association of Local Conservation Corps (CALCC), the 

entity representing the certified CCC, to determine the feasibility of the CCC in completing the 

proposed project (Sec. 79734). Unless otherwise exempted, all applicants that fail to engage in such 

consultation will not be eligible to receive Proposition 1. CCC and CALCC have developed the 

consultation process for inclusion in Proposition 1 funding, please complete Exhibit B and for more 

information, visit http://www.ccc.ca.gov/work/programs/prop1/Pages/default.aspx. 

Note, the Corps already has determined that it is not feasible to use their services on projects that 

solely involve either planning or acquisition. Therefore applicants seeking funds for such projects are 

exempt from consultation requirement and should check the appropriate box on the Consultation 

Review Document, please complete Exhibit E.  

 

4. Certified Youth Employment Plan: please include the organization’s capacity to develop, manage 
and implement a training program for young adults in the environmental discipline that leads to 
permanent employment in the green industry (maximum one page).  

 

5. Tasklist and Timeline: The tasklist should include a detailed description of each task and should 

include tasks for evaluation, monitoring, and assessment. An example of a tasklist can be found on 

the RMC website at http://www.rmc.ca.gov/. 

 

6. Budget: The budget will include any matching funds that may be used for the project. Please also 
identify any other grants for which you have applied for this project (include amount, potential funding 
agency, and contact). See the RMC website for an example of a project budget at 
http://www.rmc.ca.gov/. Applicants should endeavor to submit a budget in the format presented in 
the example on the RMC website. 

 

7. Resolution: The applicant’s governing body certifies that their governing board gives the authorized 
signatory the authority to apply, receive and manage the project. 

 
8. Environmental Compliance: Identify the status of the environmental assessment. This information 

may include a notice of exemption filed with the county clerk, an initial study, or a brief description of 
how the applicant will comply with CEQA/NEPA once the grants are awarded. 

 

9. Permits, Easements, or Certifications: The applicant is required to obtain all permits related to the 
proposed project before implementation of the project.  

 

10. Operation and Maintenance: The applicant must demonstrate, specifically for development 
projects an outline of how the project will address future operations and maintenance needs (no 
more than one page). 

 

11. Agreements: The applicant must include proof of ownership and compliance with Land Tenure 
Requirements or the applicant must demonstrate movement to secure land tenure through a willing 
seller letter, memorandum of agreement, or other binding agreements in place 

 

12. Non-profit: If applicable, provide proof of non-profit status (Copy of IRS Determination Letter) 

Attachment D

Page 358 of 385



 

13 
 

 
13. Design/Construction Documents and/or Project Site Photographs: Digital format is preferred, 

on CD, and each photograph should be saved as a separate file (no more than six (6) photographs, 
not larger than 8 ½” by 11”). 

 
14. Project location map: the applicant must submit a map of the project location. 

 

15. Letters of Support: The applicant is required a minimum of three support letters to fulfill this 
requirement, but additional support letters may be included. 

 

3.5 Project Completeness and Selection Criteria  

 

RMC staff will review grant applications for completeness and incomplete grant applications will be returned 

to the applicant. Following is the initial selection criteria which all grant applications must adhere to: 

■ The applicant is an eligible entity; 

■ The applicant has submitted a complete grant application, as previously stated in Section 3.4, 
Items 1-14; 

■ The project meets the RMC’s required grant selection criteria per the RMC Proposition 1 
Guidelines; 

■ The project meets the RMC’s Common Ground and the Proposition 1, Chapter 6 objectives; 

■ The project consists of work that is eligible for bond funds under the General Obligation Bond 
Law; 

Applications that do not pass the initial selection criteria will not proceed to the scoring process. The RMC 
has the discretion to either return the application or assist the applicant with gathering additional information 
and modifying the proposal to enable the application to pass the screening process.  
 

3.6 Scoring 

Complete applications that have passed the initial selection will be reviewed and scored by a minimum of 
three professionals with relevant expertise. Reviewers may include local, state and federal agency staff and 
others with relevant expertise, including consultants and academics. All reviewers other than the RMC staff 
will be required to document that they do not have a conflict of interest in reviewing any proposals. The total 
score of the three reviewers will be averaged and each grant application will be placed in their appropriate 
RMC’s programming area which includes, Urban Lands, Rivers/Tributaries Parkways and 
Mountains/Hills/Foothills. Grant applications will be scored according to their program area and weighted 
against each grant proposal in their appropriate RMC Programing Area. All reviewers will score each grant 
application in accordance with the Project Evaluation Criteria and grant applications with an average 
percentile of 85 percent or better may qualify for recommendation of grant funds. Although a grant 
application receives a high score it may not be recommended for funding, given funding availability and 
project readiness. Staff will determine if funding is available and if the project is ready for recommendation 
to the RMC Board.  

3.7 Conflict of Interest and Confidentiality 

All participants are subject to federal and State conflict of interest laws. Failure to comply with these laws, 

including business and financial disclosure provisions, will result in the application being rejected and any 

subsequent contract being declared void. Other legal action may also be taken. Accordingly, before 

submitting an application, applicants are urged to seek legal counsel regarding potential conflict of interest 

concerns that they may have and requirements for disclosure. Applicable statutes include, but are not 

limited to, Government Code Section 1090, and Public Contract Code Sections 10410 and 10411 for State 

conflict of interest requirements.  

Attachment D

Page 359 of 385



 

14 
 

 

Applicants should note that by submitting an application, they waive their rights to the confidentiality of that 

application. RMC staff will review each application. Once the application is signed and submitted to RMC 

any privacy rights as well as other confidentiality protections afforded by law will be waived. 

 

3.8 Typical Grant Process 
 
The following table outlines the typical grant process for successful applicants. 
 

Responsible 
Entity 

Task 

RMC Announces draft guidelines and holds public meetings for submittal of comments 

RMC Approval of Grant Guidelines at the RMC Board Meeting 

RMC Announces Grant Funding Cycle and deadline for grant applications 

Applicant Submits grant application and supporting documents to the RMC  

RMC and  

Grant Selection 
Committee 

Staff determines if grant application is complete and submits to the Grant Selection 
Committee for evaluation and scoring 

RMC Staff notify project applicants of their status, either complete or incomplete 

Grant Selection 
Committee 

Grant Selection Committee evaluates grant applications, may perform site visits on semi-
finalists, and recommends projects for funding to the RMC Board. 

RMC Board Board approves funding recommendations 

RMC Staff sends a Grant Agreement to the Grantee. 

Grantee Returns the signed Agreement to RMC. 

RMC Staff sends a fully executed Grant Agreement to the Grantee. 

Grantee Completes environmental documentation and permitting as needed. 

Grantee Commences work on the Project. 

Grantee Submits required reports, plans, and documents, as required, to RMC.  

Grantee Grantee posts signs during construction per attached Sign Guidelines. 

Responsible 
Entity 

Task 

Grantee Requests progress payments. 

Grantee Upon completion of the Project, posts signs acknowledging source of funds. 

Grantee Submits Project completion packet. 

RMC 
Staff checks final documentation for completeness and accuracy and makes final 
inspection of Project. 

RMC Staff processes the final payment. 

Grantee Submits documents for audit, if requested. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment D

Page 360 of 385



 

15 
 

Section 4 Grant Agreement 

 
4.1 Grant Award  
RMC staff will determine which qualified applications to recommend to the RMC Board for funding and the 
amount of funding, taking into account the project’s score relative to other eligible projects, the total amount 
of funding available for Prop 1 projects, the urgency of the project relative to other eligible projects, the 
RMC’s Common Ground, and the application of the RMC’s Project Evaluation Criteria. The RMC expects 
that it will take an average of six to eight months from application submittal, through evaluation and 
recommendation to the RMC Board for action and if approved an additional month for execution of the grant 
agreement.  
 
 
4.2 Board Meetings  
 
No grant shall be awarded unless the RMC Board has approved the grant at a public meeting. The RMC 
typically holds seven public meetings per calendar year. The meeting schedule is published on the RMC’s 
website. The agenda for each public meeting is published on the RMC’s website at least five days in 
advance of the meeting. RMC staff will prepare a report for each proposed grants presented to the RMC 
Board at a public meeting. The staff report will describe the project and explain how the project is consistent 
with the RMC’s enabling legislation, the RMC Program Guidelines, and the evaluation criteria in these 
Proposition 1 Grant Program Guidelines.  
 
4.3 Grant Agreement  
 
Once the RMC has approved a grant at a public meeting, RMC staff will prepare a grant agreement setting 
forth the terms and conditions of the grant. The grantee must sign the grant agreement and comply with 
conditions in order to receive funds. Please note the grant agreement is being developed and will become 
final within the next few months. 
 
4.4 Environmental Documents  
 
The RMC is required to comply with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Grant applicants 
should consider whether their proposed project will trigger the need for an environmental impact report or 
negative declaration or whether a CEQA exemption applies. How CEQA applies and the status of CEQA 
compliance must be addressed in the grant application.  
 
4.5 Project Monitoring and Reporting  
 
All grant applications must include a monitoring and reporting component that explains how the 
effectiveness of the project will be measured and reported. The monitoring and reporting component will 
vary depending on the nature of the project. The grant application evaluation will assess the robustness of 
the proposed monitoring program. In addition, RMC staff will work with grantees to develop appropriate 
monitoring and reporting templates and procedures.  
 
4.6 Leveraging Funds  

The RMC will award additional points to applicants with significant matching funds. The amount of 
leveraged funding will be specifically identified in every staff recommendation for potential approval by the 
RMC Board. The RMC will provide a summary of the total leverage of RMC funds from all its grant programs 
in an annual financial report to the RMC Board. 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment D

Page 361 of 385



 

16 
 

 
4.7 Project Withdrawal 
 
If a Grantee wishes to withdraw a Project, Grantee shall notify RMC in writing. In the event an approved 
project cannot be completed, and if grant funds were advanced, those funds, plus any accrued interest, 
must be returned to the State. If the CEQA/NEPA work is done after the grant has been awarded, and the 
determination is an impediment to completing the project, RMC will reimburse the applicant for costs 
expended up to 20 percent of the total grant as outlined above. 
 

4.8 Changes to Project Scope 

 

A Grantee wishing to change the scope of an approved project shall submit the proposed change in writing 

to RMC for approval. Any change must be consistent with the authorizing legislation and Common Ground 

and Proposition 1, Chapter 6 objectives. 

4.9 Time Extensions 

The Grantee is expected to complete the project according to the time identified in their project timeline. 

However each contract will have a project performance period of three years to allow for unexpected events. 

An extension of the three-year performance period is unlikely. 

4.10 Payment of Grant Funds 

■ Disbursements of grant funds will be made incrementally, as separate components of the Project are 

satisfactorily completed. 

■ Payments shall be on the basis of costs incurred, less 10 percent to be withheld from all invoiced 

amounts. 

■ Requests for reimbursement are preferred on a quarterly basis. Requests must include 

documentation that demonstrates that costs have been incurred and an itemized description of all 

work done for which reimbursement is requested. Payment requests should clearly identify the 

specific elements of the work plan to which they pertain. 

■ Grantees should allow four to six weeks to receive payment after submitting a complete payment 

request package. 

■ Any request that is submitted without supporting documents will not be approved for payment. 

4.11 Advance Payment Requests 

■ Advance payments for Project costs are not allowed. RMC, at its sole discretion, may honor 

advance payment requests, if warranted by a documented compelling need. 

■ For Acquisition Projects, advances are made after the property is in escrow, directly into an interest 

bearing escrow account and any remaining amounts with interest incurred must be returned to the 

RMC. 

4.12 Final Payment Request 

 

The funds withheld from Project payments are referred to as the Final Payment Request. The Project 

Completion procedures will be specified in the Grant Agreement. 

4.13 Site Visits 

The Grantee shall permit and arrange periodic site visits including a final inspection by RMC to determine 

if the work performed is in accordance with the approved Project Scope. 

 

 

 

Attachment D

Page 362 of 385



 

17 
 

 

4.14 Loss of Funding 

The following actions may result in a loss of part or all of the funding allocation to the Grantee: 

A Grantee fails to return a signed agreement with the RMC within 60 days of receipt of the grant agreement. 

A Grantee withdraws from the Program in writing. 

A Grantee fails to complete all funded project scope and/or fails to submit all documentation no later than 

five years from grant award unless otherwise approved for extension by the RMC. 

4.15 Accounting Requirements 

Grantees shall maintain an accounting system that does all of the following: 

■ Accurately reflects fiscal transactions, with the necessary controls and safeguards 

■ Provides good audit trails, especially the source documents (purchase orders, receipts, progress 

payments, invoices, time cards, cancelled warrants, warrant numbers, etc.). 

■ Provides accounting data so the total cost of each individual Project can be readily determined 

■ Projects are subject to audit by the State for three years following the final payment of grant funds. 

The purpose of the audit is to verify that project expenditures were properly documented. If your 

project is selected for audit, you will be contacted at least 30 days in advance. The audit will include 

all books, papers, accounts, documents, or other records of the Grantee, as they related to the project 

for which RMC funds were granted. The Grantee shall have the Project records, including the source 

documents and cancelled warrants, readily available to the State. The Grantee must also provide an 

employee having knowledge of the Project and the accounting procedure or system to assist the 

State’s auditor. The Grantee shall provide a copy of any document, paper, record, or the like 

requested by the State. All Project records must be retained for at least one year following an audit 

or final disputed audit findings. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment D

Page 363 of 385



 

18 
 

APPENDICES 

 

APPENDIX A: DEFINITIONS 

 

"Acquisition" means to obtain from a willing seller fee interest or any other interest, including easements 

and development rights, in real property.  

"Allocation" means a distribution of funds or an expenditure limit established for a Grantee for one or more 

projects. 

"Applicant" means the local, state, nonprofit organization, or Federally Recognized California Indian Tribe, 

requesting funding from a program administered by RMC. 

"Application" means the individual Application Form and its required attachments and supporting 

documentation for grants pursuant to the enabling legislation and/or program. 

"Appraisal" means a written statement independently and impartially prepared by a qualified appraiser 

setting forth an opinion of defined value of an adequately described property as of a specific date, supported 

by the presentation and analysis of relevant market information.  

"Appropriation" means a budget authorization from a specific fund to a specific agency/or program to 

make expenditures or incur obligations for a specific purpose and/or period of time. 

"Brownfields" means abandoned or underutilized land and buildings in already-developed urban, 

suburban, or rural locations that have actual or perceived contamination from previous or adjoining uses.  

"CEQA/NEPA" means the California Environmental Quality Act, Public Resources Code Section 21000, et 

seq.; Title 14 California Code of Regulations Section 15000, et seq. (For more information, please see 

http://ceres.ca.gov/CEQA/NEPA/) Applicants must assess the possible environmental consequences of 

projects, which they propose to undertake. 

"Competitive" means the allocation of moneys for one or more projects for the acquisition, development, 

or interpretation of recreational lands and facilities, and historical or archeological resources on a project-

by-project basis, based upon stated criteria, through the competitive process.  

"Common Ground" refers to the San Gabriel and Los Angeles Rivers Watershed and Open Space Plan 

prepared by RMC and approved by a majority of the cities representing a majority of the population, the 

Board of Supervisors of Los Angeles County, and by the Central Basin Water Association and the San 

Gabriel Valley Water Association. 

“Commission” means the California Water Commission.  
“Committee” means the Water Quality, Supply, and Infrastructure Improvement Finance Committee 
created by Section 79787. 

"Connectivity" means continuity in open space enabling linkages between open space, and wildlife habitat 

areas and typically including trails and passive or active recreation nodes.  

"Contract" means the agreement between the RMC, grantee, property owner, and/or mortgage lender, 

specifying the payment of funds for the performance of a project scope within the project performance 

period by the grantee.  

Attachment D

Page 364 of 385



 

19 
 

"Contractor" means the prime person or firm that has been selected by the grantee to perform the project 

work. 

"Development" means improvements to real property by construction of new facilities or rehabilitation, 

restoration, renovation or additions to existing sites, property, or facilities. 

“Disadvantaged community” has the meaning set forth in subdivision (a) of Section 79505.5, as it may 

be amended. Low-Income means a person whose median household income is at or below the Office of 

Environmental Health Hazard Assessment poverty guidelines, please visit http://oehha.ca.gov/ej/ces2.html. 

"District" means an agency of the state, formed pursuant to general law or special act, for the local 

performance of governmental or proprietary functions within limited boundaries, such as a regional park 

district, regional open space district, water district, conservation district, or flood control district.  

"Ecological Value" means the project will support the relationships between living organisms and their 

environment. 

“Economically distressed area” means a municipality with a population of 20,000 persons or less, a rural 
county, or a reasonably isolated and divisible segment of a larger municipality where the segment of the 
population is 20,000 persons or less, with an annual median household income that is less than 85 percent 
of the statewide median household income, and with one or more of the following conditions as determined 
by the Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment:  
(1) Financial hardship.  
(2) Unemployment rate at least 2 percent higher than the statewide average.  
(3) Low population density.  

"Ecosystem" means a balanced natural system of living organisms and their environment. 

"Enhancement" means to modify current conditions and may be used to describe a project that would 

result in a natural resource, habitat, cultural or historic site, recreational area, or existing facility achieving 

a desired level of improvements while considering the protection of the natural environment. It is 

distinguishable from "restoration" in that it does not imply merely a return to historic natural conditions but 

may include the provision of recreation or other aspects that were not original features. 

"Environmental Education" means programs and related facilities and processes that increase knowledge 

and awareness about the environment and help develop skills that enable responsible decisions and 

actions that impact the environment. 

"Environmental Justice" is the fair treatment and meaningful involvement of all people –regardless of 

race, ethnicity, and income or education level – in environmental decision-making. Environmental justice 

programs promote the protection of human health and the environment, empowerment via public 

participation, and the dissemination of relevant information to inform and educate affected communities. 

"Exotic species" means any non-indigenous plant or animal species. 

"Federally Recognized California Indian Tribe" means any California Indian tribe, band, nation, or other 

organized group or community certified by the Secretary of the Interior as eligible for special programs and 

services provided by the Secretary of the Interior.  

“Fund” means the Water Quality, Supply, and Infrastructure Improvement Fund of 2014 created by Section 
79715. 

"Grantee" means an Applicant who has a contract for grant funds. 

“Green Building” means a building which is designed, constructed, and operated consistent with the rating 

system for Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design rating system developed by the US Green 

Building Council. 

Attachment D

Page 365 of 385



 

20 
 

"Habitat linkage" means connections between otherwise isolated areas of habitat that may (1) provide for 

daily and seasonal movements of animals; (2) facilitate dispersal, gene flow, and rescue effects (for animals 

or plants); (3) allow for range shifts of species; and (4) maintain flows of ecological processes (e.g., fire, 

wind, sediments, water). 

“Habitat creation” means the formation or increase of at least one of the following: terrestrial, avian, or 

aquatic habitats or creates new linkages or corridors. 

“Habitat preservation” means keeping threatened natural habitat and protects native floral and faunal 

biodiversity that may be lost to a planned urban development. 

"Habitat restoration" means to return the site’s hydrology, topography and natural vegetative communities 

to historic predisturbance conditions so that the site provides food and shelter for wildlife, and performs 

natural processes including reducing the volume and velocity of runoff, and increasing the water infiltration 

rates.  

"Historical Resource" includes, but is not limited to, any building, structure, site area, place, artifact, or 

collection of artifacts that is historically or archaeologically significant in the cultural annals of California. 

"Indirect Costs" means expenses of doing business that are of a general nature and are incurred to benefit 

at least two or more functions within an organization. These costs are not usually identified specifically with 

a grant, contract, project, or activity, but are necessary for the general operation of the organization. 

Examples include salaries and benefits of employees not directly assigned to the project; functions such as 

personnel, accounting, and salaries of supervisors and managers; and overhead such as rent, utilities, 

supplies, etc. 

"In-Kind" means applicant's land, materials and/or services provided as matching funds for a project in lieu 

of monetary type funding. 

"Interpretation" means an intelligent and meaningful presentation and explanation of the significance and 

value of natural resources or historical or archeological resources. 

“Instream flows” means a specific streamflow, measured in cubic feet per second, at a particular location 

for a defined time, and typically follows seasonal variations.  

“Integrated regional water management plan” has the meaning set forth in Part 2.2 (commencing with 

Section 10530) of Division 6, as that part may be amended. 

"Jurisdiction" means the legal boundary of the grant Applicant, i.e. the city, county, or district. 

“Large or multi sub watershed project” means a project intended to: 1) address water quality, habitat, or 

other watershed restoration issues identified in more than one watershed plan; 2) address more than one 

habitat issue identified by the Green Visions planning tools; 3) provide substantive water quality benefits to 

more than one designated impaired water body; or 4) provide open space or passive recreational benefits 

in a location that is regionally accessible. 

"Local Conservation Corps" is a community conservation corps that is certified by the California 

Conservation Corps. 

"Local Agencies" means a city, county, or district entity formed for purposes pursuant to a joint powers 

agreement between two or more local entities that are eligible for Grant Programs administered by RMC. 

“Long-term” means for a period of not less than 20 years. 

 

 

Attachment D

Page 366 of 385



 

21 
 

"Low Impact Recreation" means any development, rehabilitation, or enhancement of resource-based 

facilities and the associated visitor activities that result in minimized impacts on natural areas and natural 

systems. Low impact activities are generally human powered and may include walking, picnicking, hiking, 

cycling, non-motorized boating or equestrian use, bird watching, fishing, star-gazing or photography; and 

organized events such as interpretive tours, nature walks or educational programs.  

"Management Plan" means a plan that identifies responsibility for future management of a given area to 

preserve, protect, and enhance natural resource values, and where appropriate, provides for multiple 

objectives, and identifies funds for that management. 

"Match" means funds or equivalent in-kind contributions in addition to RMC Grant Funds. Increased 

consideration will be given to projects that provide matching funds or equivalent in-kind contributions.  

“Medium sub watershed project” means a project intended to: 1) address water quality, habitat, or other 

watershed restoration issues identified in an applicable watershed plan or by the Green Visions planning 

tools; 2) provide substantive water quality benefits to a designated impaired water body; or 3) provide open 

space or passive recreational benefits in a location that is generally accessible to multiple local 

communities. 

"Monitoring and Assessment" means an assessment process to evaluate the success of the proposed 

action or improvement, and monitoring progress towards meeting project goals. The standards for 

monitoring each project approved for funding will be developed in concert with RMC. 

"Multiple Benefit" projects that provide multiple benefits such as water quality, water supply, flood control, 

or open space. Funds shall be allocated to multibenefit projects that achieve public safety and include fish 

and wildlife habitat enhancement. Projects that involve more than one public benefit objective including 

habitat enhancement or protection, water quality improvement, historic resource protection or improvement, 

public access development, environmental education or any combination of such objectives. 

 
“Multi-jurisdictional” projects that provide shared solutions for multiple communities, for example a 
community that lacks safe, affordable drinking water and is served by a small community water system, 
state small water system, or a private well when improved can service more than one community. Projects 
that create, preserve, restore open space that will benefit a regional territory. As an another example, a 
watershed management plan update that serves an entire watershed. 

"Natural habitat" means relatively undisturbed lands and vegetation communities that provide food and 

shelter for wildlife and also perform natural functions such as, reducing the volume and velocity of storm 

runoff, and enabling water infiltration. 

"NEPA" means the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, as amended Public Law 91-190, Title 42 

United States Code Sections 4321-433347, January 1, 1970, as amended by Public Law 94-52, July 3, 

1975, Public Law 94-83, August 9, 1975, and Public Law 97-258, Section 4 (b), September 13, 1982). 

NEPA requires federal agencies to assess the possible environmental consequences of projects, which 

they propose to undertake, fund or approve.  

"Nonprofit Organization" means any private, nonprofit organization, existing under Section 501(c)(3) of 

the United States Internal Revenue Code and has among its principal charitable purposes the preservation 

or enhancement of land for scientific, historic, educational, recreational, scenic or open-space values, the 

protection of the natural environment, or the preservation and enhancement of fisheries and wildlife or their 

habitat. 

"Notice of Completion and Acceptance of Work" means the notice completed by the grantee and filed 

with the county recorder in the county where the property is located, upon completion and acceptance of 

any and all construction work related to a project. 

Attachment D

Page 367 of 385



 

22 
 

"Open Space" means any area that can potentially serve as wildlife habitat, facilitate natural processes, or 

allow for public access for passive forms of recreation. 

"Plans" means the detailed drawings or exact reproductions that show location, character, layout, 

dimensions, and details of the work to be constructed under the contract for a historical resource Project. 

"Planning" means specific preparations necessary to execute eligible projects. Planning includes 

conceptual designs, pre-schematic work, such as initial architectural or engineering plans prepared during 

the preliminary project phase; schematic documents; technical consulting; construction design; 

CEQA/NEPA documentation; preparation of construction bidding documents; permits or appraisals. 

Planning costs are distinct from hard project costs of actual construction or land acquisition. 

"Project" means the acquisition, development, (rehabilitation and restoration), or interpretation activities to 

be accomplished with grant funds. 

"Project Manager" means an employee of RMC, who acts as a liaison with Grantees and administers 

grants. 

"Project Management Plan” means the overall plan used to describe how the completed project would be 

operated and maintained on a long term basis. This document could include habitat, landscape, park, and 

other facility/resource long term management plans. 

"Project Performance Period" means the period of time that the grant funds are available, and the time in 

which the project must be completed, billed, and paid. 

"Project Scope" means the description or activity of work to be accomplished on the project. 

"Property" means the land, including all structures attached to such land, upon which the project is located. 

"Property Owner" means the person or entity that holds the fee simple interest of the Property. 

"Public access" refers to public access generally with full right of way from a public thoroughfare or public 

transportation. It could also mean the provision for visitor support facilities, including public parking, trails, 

bikeways, restrooms, picnic areas and campgrounds and other recreational facilities.  

“Public agency” means a state agency or department, special district, joint powers authority, city, county, 

city and county, or other political subdivision of the state.  

“Rainwater” has the meaning set forth in subdivision (c) of Section 10573. 

"Restoration" means the process of reproducing, re-establishing, or rehabilitating a natural area or a 

cultural or historical site or feature that has otherwise deteriorated so that it emulates the site’s historic 

condition before degradation. 

"Riparian" means locations and associated vegetative communities related to or on the banks of rivers, 

streams, wetlands, marshes or other fresh water bodies. 

“Secretary” means the Secretary of the Natural Resources Agency. 

“Severely disadvantaged community” has the meaning set forth in subdivision (a) of Section 116760.20 

of the Health and Safety Code.  

“Small community water system” means a community water system that serves no more than 3,300 

service connections or a yearlong population of no more than 10,000 persons.  

“State board” means the State Water Resources Control Board.  

Attachment D

Page 368 of 385



 

23 
 

“State General Obligation Bond Law” means the State General Obligation Bond Law (Chapter 4 

(commencing with Section 16720) of Part 3 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the Government Code). 

“State small water system” has the meaning set forth in subdivision of Section 116275 of the Health and 

Safety Code.  

“Stormwater” has the meaning set forth in subdivision (e) of Section 10573.  

"Scenic Value" means any historic, open space or other natural resource features with significant visual 

aesthetic values. 

“Significant” 1: having meaning; especially: <a significant glance> 

2a: having or likely to have influence or effect : <a significant piece of legislation>; also: of a noticeably or 

measurably large amount <a significant number of layoffs> <producing significant profits> 2b: probably 

caused by something other than mere chance <statistically significant correlation between vitamin 

deficiency and disease> 

“Small or neighborhood project” means a project intended to address site-specific, or neighborhood-

scale, water quality or habitat issues, or that is intended to provide open space or passive recreational 

amenities intended for local community.  

"Specifications" means all written directions, provisions, and requirements governing the methods and 

procedures to be followed in connection with bidding and awarding of contract and performance and 

execution of the work, the quantities and qualities of materials to be used, the method of measurement of 

the quantities of work, and the nature of the contractual relationships that will exist during the course of the 

work. 

"Stewardship" means the development, implementation, and long-term management of important 

resources and typically involving the protection, preservation, rehabilitation, restoration, improvement of 

natural systems and/or outstanding features, and historical and cultural resources. 

“Sustainable/Sustainability” means the ability to meet current needs without compromising the ability of 

future generations to do the same. Also, the goal of life, liberty, and social well-being within the means of 

nature.  

"Threatened or Endangered Species" means species listed as defined by the Federal Endangered 

Species Act passed in 1973. 

“Threatened Natural Habitats” include any areas that contain natural habitat that will be destroyed or 

degraded by a proposed urban development plan which, at the least, has already been submitted to the 

governing jurisdiction or planning commission. 

"Trailhead and Trailside Facilities" include, but are not limited to parking, utilities, restrooms, benches, 

bridges, draining structures, fencing, and interpretive and informational signs, exhibit and brochure shelters 

and related facilities. 

“Urban Greening” per the adopted guidelines by the Los Angeles and San Gabriel Rivers Master plans. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Attachment D

Page 369 of 385



 

24 
 

 
APPENDIX B: CHAPTER 6 OF PROPOSITION 1  

 
Protecting Rivers, Lakes, Streams, Coastal Waters, and Watersheds  
79730.  
The sum of one billion four hundred ninety-five million dollars ($1,495,000,000) shall be available, upon 
appropriation by the Legislature from the fund, in accordance with this chapter, for competitive grants for 
multibenefit ecosystem and watershed protection and restoration projects in accordance with statewide 
priorities.  
 
79731.  
Of the funds authorized by Section 79730, the sum of three hundred twenty-seven million five hundred 
thousand dollars ($327,500,000) shall be allocated for multibenefit water quality, water supply, and 
watershed protection and restoration projects for the watersheds of the state in accordance with the 
following schedule:  
(a) Baldwin Hills Conservancy, ten million dollars ($10,000,000).  
(b) California Tahoe Conservancy, fifteen million dollars ($15,000,000).  
(c) Coachella Valley Mountains Conservancy, ten million dollars ($10,000,000).  
(d) Ocean Protection Council, thirty million dollars ($30,000,000).  
(e) San Diego River Conservancy, seventeen million dollars ($17,000,000).  
(f) San Gabriel and Lower Los Angeles Rivers and Mountains Conservancy, thirty million dollars 
($30,000,000).  
(g) San Joaquin River Conservancy, ten million dollars ($10,000,000).  
(h) Santa Monica Mountains Conservancy, thirty million dollars ($30,000,000).  
(i) Sierra Nevada Conservancy, twenty-five million dollars ($25,000,000).  
(j) State Coastal Conservancy, one hundred million five hundred thousand dollars ($100,500,000). Eligible 
watersheds for the funds allocated pursuant to this subdivision include, but are not limited to, those that are 
in the San Francisco Bay Conservancy region, the Santa Ana River watershed, the Tijuana River 
watershed, the Otay River watershed, Catalina Island, and the central coast region.  
(k) Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta Conservancy, fifty million dollars ($50,000,000).  
 
79732.  
(a) In protecting and restoring California rivers, lakes, streams, and watersheds, the purposes of this 
chapter are to:  
(1) Protect and increase the economic benefits arising from healthy watersheds, fishery resources, and 
instream flow.  
(2) Implement watershed adaptation projects in order to reduce the impacts of climate change on 
California’s communities and ecosystems.  
(3) Restore river parkways throughout the state, including, but not limited to, projects pursuant to the 

California River Parkways Act of 2004 (Chapter 3.8 (commencing with Section 5750) of Division 5 of the 

Public Resources Code), in the Urban Streams Restoration Program established pursuant to Section 7048, 

and urban river greenways.  

(4) Protect and restore aquatic, wetland, and migratory bird ecosystems, including fish and wildlife corridors 
and the acquisition of water rights for instream flow.  
(5) Fulfill the obligations of the State of California in complying with the terms of multiparty settlement 
agreements related to water resources.  
(6) Remove barriers to fish passage.  
(7) Collaborate with federal agencies in the protection of fish native to California and wetlands in the central 
valley of California.  
(8) Implement fuel treatment projects to reduce wildfire risks, protect watersheds tributary to water storage 
facilities, and promote watershed health.  
(9) Protect and restore rural and urban watershed health to improve watershed storage capacity, forest 
health, protection of life and property, stormwater resource management, and greenhouse gas reduction.  
(10) Protect and restore coastal watersheds, including, but not limited to, bays, marine estuaries, and 
nearshore ecosystems.  

Attachment D

Page 370 of 385



 

25 
 

(11) Reduce pollution or contamination of rivers, lakes, streams, or coastal waters, prevent and remediate 
mercury contamination from legacy mines, and protect or restore natural system functions that contribute 
to water supply, water quality, or flood management.  
(12) Assist in the recovery of endangered, threatened, or migratory species by improving watershed health, 
instream flows, fish passage, coastal or inland wetland restoration, or other means, such as natural 
community conservation plan and habitat conservation plan implementation.  
(13) Assist in water-related agricultural sustainability projects.  
(b) Funds provided by this chapter shall only be used for projects that will provide fisheries or ecosystem 
benefits or improvements that are greater than required applicable environmental mitigation measures or 
compliance obligations.  
 
79733.  
Of the funds made available by Section 79730, the sum of two hundred million dollars ($200,000,000) shall 
be administered by the Wildlife Conservation Board for projects that result in enhanced stream flows.  
 
79734.  
For restoration and ecosystem protection projects under this chapter, the services of the California 
Conservation Corps or a local conservation corps certified by the California Conservation Corps shall be 
used whenever feasible.  
 
79735.  
(a) Of the funds authorized by Section 79730, one hundred million dollars ($100,000,000) shall be available, 
upon appropriation by the Legislature, for projects to protect and enhance an urban creek, as defined in 
subdivision (e) of Section 7048, and its tributaries, pursuant to Division 22.8 (commencing with Section 
32600) of, and Division 23 (commencing with Section 33000) of, the Public Resources Code and Section 
79508.  
(b)  (1) Of the funds authorized by Section 79730, twenty million dollars ($20,000,000) shall be made 
available to the secretary for a competitive program to fund multibenefit watershed and urban rivers 
enhancement projects in urban watersheds that increase regional and local water self-sufficiency and that 
meet at least two of the following objectives:  
(A) Promote groundwater recharge and water reuse.  
(B) Reduce energy consumption.  
(C) Use soils, plants, and natural processes to treat runoff.  
(D) Create or restore native habitat.  
(E) Increase regional and local resiliency and adaptability to climate change.  

(2) The program under this subdivision shall be implemented by state conservancies, the Wildlife 
Conservation Board, the state board, or other entities whose jurisdiction includes urban watersheds, as 
designated by the secretary. Projects funded under the program shall be a part of a plan developed jointly 
by the conservancies, the Wildlife Conservation Board, the state board, or other designated entities in 
consultation with the secretary.  
(c) At least 25 percent of the funds available pursuant to this section shall be allocated for projects that 
benefit disadvantaged communities.  
(d) Up to 10 percent of the funds available pursuant to this section may be allocated for project planning.  
 
79736.  
Of the funds authorized by Section 79730, four hundred seventy-five million dollars ($475,000,000) shall 
be available to the Natural Resources Agency to support projects that fulfill the obligations of the State of 
California in complying with the terms of any of the following:  
(a) Subsection (d) of Section 3406 of the Central Valley Project Improvement Act (Title 34 of Public Law 
102-575).  
(b) Interstate compacts set forth in Section 66801 of the Government Code pursuant to Title 7.42 
(commencing with Section 66905) of the Government Code.  
(c) Intrastate or multiparty water quantification settlement agreement provisions, including ecosystem 
restoration projects, as set forth in Chapters 611, 612, 613, and 614 of the Statutes of 2003.  
(d) The settlement agreement referenced in Section 2080.2 of the Fish and Game Code.  
(e) Any intrastate or multiparty settlement agreement related to water acted upon or before December 31, 
2013. Priority shall be given to projects that meet one or more of the following criteria:  

Attachment D

Page 371 of 385



 

26 
 

(1) The project is of statewide significance.  
(2) The project restores natural aquatic or riparian functions, or wetlands habitat for birds and aquatic 
species.  
(3) The project protects or promotes the restoration of endangered or threatened species. 

(4) The project enhances the reliability of water supplies on a regional or interregional basis.  
(5) The project provides significant regional or statewide economic benefits.  
 
79737.  
(a) Of the funds authorized by Section 79730, two hundred eighty-five million dollars ($285,000,000) shall 
be available to the Department of Fish and Wildlife for watershed restoration projects statewide in 
accordance with this chapter.  
(b) For the purposes of this section, watershed restoration includes activities to fund coastal wetland habitat, 
improve forest health, restore mountain meadows, modernize stream crossings, culverts, and bridges, 
reconnect historical flood plains, install or improve fish screens, provide fish passages, restore river 
channels, restore or enhance riparian, aquatic, and terrestrial habitat, improve ecological functions, acquire 
from willing sellers conservation easements for riparian buffer strips, improve local watershed management, 
and remove sediment or trash.  
(c) For any funds available pursuant to this section that are used to provide grants under the Fisheries 
Restoration Grant Program, a priority shall be given to coastal waters.  
(d) In allocating funds for projects pursuant to this section, the Department of Fish and Wildlife shall only 
make funds available for water quality, river, and watershed protection and restoration projects of statewide 
importance outside of the Delta.  
(e) Funds provided by this section shall not be expended to pay the costs of the design, construction, 
operation, mitigation, or maintenance of Delta conveyance facilities.  
(f) Funds provided by this section shall only be used for projects that will provide fisheries or ecosystem 
benefits or improvements that are greater than required applicable environmental mitigation measures or 
compliance obligations, except for any water transfers for the benefit of subsection (d) of Section 3406 of 
the Central Valley Project Improvement Act (Title 34 of Public Law 102-575).  
 
79738.  
(a) Of the funds authorized by Section 79730, eighty-seven million five hundred thousand dollars 
($87,500,000) shall be available to the Department of Fish and Wildlife for water quality, ecosystem 
restoration, and fish protection facilities that benefit the Delta, including, but not limited to, the following:  
(1) Projects to improve water quality or that contribute to the improvement of water quality in the Delta, 
including projects in Delta counties that provide multiple public benefits and improve drinking and 
agricultural water quality or water supplies.  
(2) Habitat restoration, conservation, and enhancement projects to improve the condition of special status, 
at risk, endangered, or threatened species in the Delta and the Delta counties, including projects to 
eradicate invasive species, and projects that support the beneficial reuse of dredged material for habitat 
restoration and levee improvements.  
(3) Scientific studies and assessments that support the Delta Science Program, as described in Section 
85280, or projects under this section.  
(b) In implementing this section, the department shall coordinate and consult with the Delta city or Delta 
county in which a grant is proposed to be expended or an interest in real property is proposed to be 
acquired.  
(c) Acquisitions pursuant to this section shall be from willing sellers only.  
(d) In implementing this section state agencies shall prioritize wildlife conservation objectives through 
projects on public lands or voluntary projects on private lands, to the extent feasible.  
(e) Funds available pursuant to this section shall not be used to acquire land via eminent domain.  
(f) Funds available pursuant to this section shall not be expended to pay the costs of the design, 

construction, operation, mitigation, or maintenance of Delta conveyance facilities. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Attachment D

Page 372 of 385



 

27 
 

 

APPENDIX C: PROJECT EVALUATION CRITERIA* 
 

 
Staff will deem a grant application complete when it has passed the initial selection process. Staff will 
recommend the grant application to the Grant Selection Committee for evaluation and scoring by utilizing 
the evaluation criteria set forth below. An application must achieve an average score of 85 percent or higher 
in order to qualify for recommendation of grant funds to the RMC Board. 
 
*Criterion that are marked with an asterisk are not eligible for funding, however these elements will 
contribute to an applicant’s overall score. Applicants must demonstrate that supplemental funding is 
available for non-eligible costs. 
 

Project Evaluation Criteria 

Program Relevance 

Urban 
Land 

Rivers / 
Tributaries 

Mountains / 
Hills 

 

1.0     Restore River Parkways 
   

1.1       The Project is identified in an existing or proposed trail plan           

            (e.g. Master Bikeway Path Plan) or connects communities to     

            major existing or planned trails or open space. 
5 5 5 

1.2        Restore River Parkway, Section 79732 (a) (3) California River  

            Parkways Act of 2004 
1 1 1 

1.3       *Project is on land that is an underutilized public or private                

            holding. Underutilized properties include blighted vacant lots  

            or inaccessible public lands 
1 1 1 

1.4      The project is within ¼ mile or 10 minutes walking distance of     

            a residential area and/or public transportation and includes     

            multilingual wayfinding signage. 
1 1 1 

1.5      The project includes improvements to a pedestrian,  
      equestrian and/or bicycle connection to an existing trail, trail 
      system, community facility, recreation area or school.  

1 1 1 

1.6       The project would accommodate a new trail into an        
      inaccessible area. 

1 1 1 

 
Subtotal 

 

10 

 

10 

 

10 

 

*2.0    Educational/Interpretive Signage 
   

2.1      *Educational/Interpretive and/or informational elements are    

            included. 
1 1 1 

2.2      *Signage or educational/interpretive message includes the      

           natural history, cultural history, and watershed         

          stewardship. (not include in criteria) 
1 1 1 

  

 Subtotal 

 

2 

 

2 

 

2 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

Attachment D

Page 373 of 385



 

28 
 

Project Evaluation Criteria 

Program Relevance 

Urban 
Land 

Rivers / 
Tributaries 

Mountains / 
Hills 

 
3.0    Habitat and Restoration Resource Values 
 
3.1 The project results in new habitat and increases at least one of 

the following: terrestrial, avian, or aquatic habitats or creates 
new linkages or corridors. – OR – 

3.2 The project preserves threatened natural habitat and protects 
native flora and fauna biodiversity that may be lost to a planned 
development. – OR – 

3.3 The project preserves project preserves and/or enhances 
existing natural habitat and protects native flora and fauna 
biodiversity. 

 

5 5 

 
 
 
 

 
5 

3.4 The project includes an evaluation of the suitability, strategy, and 
success measures for the site’s habitat preservation, creation, 
and/or enhancement. 

1 2 

 
1 

3.5 The project supports substantial in-stream or native riparian 
habitat and/or supports substantial upland native vegetative 
cover. 

1 

 
2 

 
1 

3.6 The project supports unique and/or irreplaceable ecological 
systems, i.e., coastal salt marsh, vernal pool, monarch breeding, 
migratory watering area. 

1 

 
2 

 
1 

3.7 The project is located within a county-designated ecologically 
sensitive watershed area, i.e., Significant Ecological Area, 
Conceptual Area Protection Plan (CAPP), or other agency 
reviewed plan area. 

1 

 
 
2 

 
 
1 

3.8 The project provides for contiguous open space and is adjacent 
to publicly owned open space or private land protected under a 
conservation easement or similar perpetual restriction. The 
project includes habitat that provides a buffer between protected 
or proposed protected areas and incompatible uses. 

 

 

1 

 
 
 
 
2 

 
 
 
 
1 

3.9 The project will be managed in such a manner as to provide 
maximum long term habitat protection and has an established 
long-term maintenance plan. 

1 2 1 

3.10 The project enhances wetland and subtidal habitats to restore 
ecosystem function and provide multi-beneficial flood protection 
and resilient shorelines. 

1 2 1 

3.11 The project is on the Southern California Wetlands Recovery 
Project Regional Strategy project list. 

1 2 1 

3.12 The project design is resilient and adaptable to climate change. 
In addition, the project is compliant with the Global Warming 
Solutions Act of 2006 (AB32) and subsequent policy and 
program implementation in order to meet the State’s Climate 
Change Adaptation and Greenhouse Gas Reductions. 

1 2 1 

3.13 The scope of habitat restoration does not negatively impact the 
health of already existing natural habitat on site or adjacent to 
the site. 

1 2 1 

 
 
 

Subtotal 

15 25 15 

Attachment D

Page 374 of 385



 

29 
 

Project Evaluation Criteria 

Program Relevance 

Urban 
Land 

Rivers / 
Tributaries 

Mountains / 
Hills 

4.0    Matching Funds 

4.1     Project sponsor will contribute 100% or more matching  

          funds (does not include in-kind services; can be other                

          grants/gifts or private and local funding) 
7 7 7 

4.2   Project sponsor will contribute 50% or more matching  

           funds (does not include in-kind services; can be other  

           grants/gifts or private and local funding) 

 

5 

 

5 5 

4.3     Contribution of matching funds will count towards  
         completion of the entire project being submitted for funding 

3 3 3 

Subtotal 15 15 15 

5.0     Environmental Justice and Disadvantaged Communities 

5.1     Cal-Enviro Sreen standards - http://oehha.ca.gov/ej/ces2.html 

Up to 15 bonus points will be awarded to proposed projects that primarily benefit communities with high 
pollution burdens and/or high population characteristic scores, based on CalEnviroScreen maps. If your 
project area is not included in the Cal-Enviro maps, then include in the project narrative, the data and analysis 
utilized for evaluating the pollution burden and it is also the best available science.  
5 points = CalEnviroScreen score of 61% - 70%  (on any of the 3 maps) 
10 points = CalEnviroScreen score of 71%- 80% (on any of the 3 maps) 
15 points = CalEnviroScreen score of 81% or higher (on any of the 3 maps) 

 15 15 15 

5.2 The project creates a sense of community through educational 
outreach, community activities, and programs. 

2 1 1 

5.3 The project concept and designs are a result of direct community 
input held through community meetings within the vicinity of 
where project is located, and occurred no earlier than January 
2013.  

3 3 3 

5.4 The project will serve an area that has a significant percentage of 
residents living with chronic diseases (examples:  diabetes, 
obesity, asthma) please visit http://oehha.ca.gov/ej/ces2.html. 

2 1 1 

5.5 The project contains signage elements that promote physical 
activity and “healthy living” practices such as mileage makers, 
walking trails and other physical activities. 

2 1 1 

5.6 Creates new park space in a disadvantaged or park poor 
community defined as a census track with a population that has 
more than 30% youth and less than 80% of the state’s annual 
median income and/or having less than 2 acres/0.8 hectares of 
open space per 1,000 residents. As defined by subdivision (a) of 
Section 79505.5, please visit http://oehha.ca.gov/ej/ces2.html. 

 

 

 

 

5 

 

 

 

 

5 

 

 

 

 

5 

5.7 The project design and/or location provides relief from the 
negative impacts of urban density such as incompatible land uses 
and unregulated industrial impacts.  

2 1 1 

5.8 The project provides physical linkages to open space (passive 
and recreational) from a disadvantaged and/or park-poor 
neighborhood. 

2 1 1 

5.9 The project conforms to the RMC Environmental Justice Policy 
per Section 2.4. 

 
5 5 5 

Subtotal 38 33 33 

Attachment D

Page 375 of 385



 

30 
 

Project Evaluation Criteria 

Program Relevance 

Urban 
Land 

Rivers / 
Tributaries 

Mountains / 
Hills 

 

6.0   Multi-benefit and multi-jurisdictional    

6.1 This project is a multi-benefit and multi-jurisdictional ecosystem 
and watershed protection project in accordance with statewide 
priorities. 

    Multi-benefit = Achieves more than one water related element. 
Ex: water recycling AND trail use, water infrastructure AND 
sustainability, etc.,  

   Multi-jurisdictional= Partnership with more than one city, or 
includes more than one watershed, or is a partnership between 
one or more counties.  

3 3 3 

Subtotal 3 3 3 

 

7.0  Stakeholders/Partners Resource Value 
   

7.1 The project is clearly defined and includes an objective, mission 
and purpose.  

1 1 1 

7.2 The project is significant to one or more local citizen groups or 
non-governmental organizations as evidenced by a letter of 
support from the organization's governing body. 

1 1 1 

7.3 The project promotes and implements the California Water            
Action Plan objectives which include reliable water supplies, the 
restoration of important species and habitat and a more resilient 
and sustainably managed water infrastructure. 

1 1 1 

7.4 Projects will use the California Conservation Corps for project  
implementation (whole or partial) or look to hire youth through 
certified Youth Employment Program in coordination with the 
State/County or qualified non-governmental organization (NGO).  

5 5 5 

Subtotal 8 8 8 

 

8.0   Stewardship and Management Plan Value 
   

8.1 The project includes an adopted guidelines, strategic plan, etc. 
for active stakeholder/partner participation that includes the 20-
25 year period of the project after completion (includes 
identification of stakeholder/partner groups). 

1 1 1 

8.2 The project includes a landscape maintenance manual containing 
details regarding logistics of weed management, trail 
maintenance, trash management, unauthorized uses, and a 
habitat establishment monitoring program. 

1 1 1 

8.3 The project identifies funding for a specified list of activities that 
an organization (i.e. professional contractor, local non-profit, or 
community volunteer group) with relevant expertise, that will 
provide appropriate future stewardship and adaptive 
management to ensure the sustainability of the project.  

1 1 1 

8.4 Applicant has organizational capacity and has 10+ years of 
maintaining and operating projects of similar size and scope 

1 1 1 

 
 
 

Subtotal 

 

 

4 

 

 

4 

 

 

4 

Attachment D

Page 376 of 385



 

31 
 

Project Evaluation Criteria 

Program Relevance 

Urban 
Land 

Rivers / 
Tributaries 

Mountains / 
Hills 

9.0    Water Sustainability/Water Storage/Water Infrastructure  

9.1 The project includes 3 or more of the following elements to 
address climate change: 

1) Sustainable site planning and land use compatibility 

2) Safeguarding water and water efficiency, 

3) Energy efficiency and renewable energy, 

4) Conservation of materials and resources, and 

5) Indoor environmental quality. 

5 5 5 

9.2 The project incorporates more than 50% recycled content 
product hardscape elements (benches, signage, light 
fixtures, gates, fences, etc). 

1 1 1 

9.3 The project contains a more than a 75% native plant palette. 1 1 1 

9.4 Maintain and improve flood protection through natural and 
non-structural systems and ecosystem restoration. 

1 1 1 

9.5 Establish riverfront greenways to cleanse water, hold 
floodwaters and extend open space. 

1 1 1 

9.6 Optimize water resources by improving the quality of surface 
and ground water and enhance ground water recharge, to 
reduce dependence on imported water. 

1 1 1 

Subtotal 10 10 10 

 

 

10.0  Urban Land Value 

   

10.1 The project contributes to the removal of a nuisance 
property/use from the community. 

2 1 1 

10.2 The project provides relief from high urban density defined 
as 150% or more of county median population density. 

2 1 1 

10.3 The project contributes to an existing or proposed park, 
natural area, corridor, or greenway in an urbanized area. 

2 1 1 

10.4 The project involves joint-use of a site (e.g. a school yard, is 
a public park during off-school hours). 

2 1 1 

10.5 The project is sited in an area with more than 120% of the 
median county percent under age 18. 

2 1 1 

Subtotal 10 5 5 

 
 

11.0  Water Resource and Quality Value 
   

11.1 The project provides a new opportunity for substantial water   
   conservation and/or water quality improvements 

5 5 5 

11.2 The project contains or improves groundwater supply and/or  
         recharge capabilities. 

5 5 5 

11.3 Project includes treatment of storm water runoff. 4 4 4 

11.4 The project includes a groundwater improvement element 
that exceeds the recommended elements of the 
Comprehensive Groundwater Quality Monitoring Act of 2001. 

1 1 1 

11.5 The project utilizes recycled water.  1 1 1 

Attachment D

Page 377 of 385



 

32 
 

Project Evaluation Criteria 

Program Relevance 

Urban 
Land 

Rivers / 
Tributaries 

Mountains / 
Hills 

11.6 The project utilizes cisterns or similar devices to collect and 
recycle rainwater on site. Project includes water 
conservation measures. 

1 1 1 

11.7 The project includes a water quality element consistent with 
the description of a “small or neighborhood project” as 
described in the Greater Los Angeles Region IRWM Plan. 

3 3 3 

11.8 The project includes a water quality element consistent with 
the description of a “medium or sub watershed project” as 
described in the Greater Los Angeles Region IRWM Plan. 

2 2 2 

11.9 The project includes a water quality element   consistent 
with the description of a “large or multi sub watershed 
project” as described in the Greater Los Angeles Region 
IRWM Plan. 

1 1 1 

11.10 The project is part of a Watershed Management Plan  or  
       Enhanced Watershed Management Plan within Greater LA    
       County 

2 2 2 

Subtotal 25 25 25 

TOTAL POINTS 140 140 130 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment D

Page 378 of 385



 

33 
 

 

APPENDIX D: GRANT APPLICATION FORM 
 

RMC PROPOSITION 1 GRANT PROGRAM                                                    

GRANT APPLICATION FORM 

 

1. APPLICANT: __________________________________________________________________ 

2. AGENCY:_____________________________________________________________________ 

3. CONTACT: ___________________________________________________________________ 

4. EMAIL/PHONE: _______________________________________________________________ 

5. ADDRESS: __________________________________________________________________ 

6. NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE AGREEEMENTS (if different from agency 

contact):____________________________________________________________________ 

 

7. PROJECT NAME (it is recommended that you include one or more of the following terms in the 

project name: Acquisition, Restoration, Development, Water Quality Improvement (maximum 50 

characters): 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

8. PROJECT DESCRIPTION (150 words or less and you may utilize the same project description as 

your project narrative):__________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

9. PROGRAM TYPE: (check ONLY ONE) 

___ Urban Lands 

___ Rivers/Tributary Parkways 

___ Mountains, Hills and Foothills 

 

10. PROJECT TYPE: (check all that apply) 

___ Planning        

___ Acquisition        

___ Development    

___ Open Space  

___ Watershed Improvement-Water Quality    

___ Watershed Improvement-Water Conservation 

___ Watershed Improvement-Water Supply  

___ Watershed Improvement-Water Storage 

___ Wildlife Corridor    

___ Wetland Habitat Restoration 

 

11. PROJECT LOCATION: 

Address: __________________________________ County: _____________________________ 

City Council District: ________________________            County Supervisor District: _____________ 

State Senate District: ________________________ Parcel No(s): ________________________ 

State Assembly District: _____________________            Lat/Long: ____________________________ 

Congressional District: _______________________  

 

 

Attachment D

Page 379 of 385



 

34 
 

  

12. COMPLETE THE CALIFORNIA CONSERVATION CORPS AND CERTIFIED COMMUNITY 

CONSERVATION CORPS CONSULTATION PROCESS (EXHIBIT E). CHECK ONLY ONE 

___ EXCEMPT, this project is a planning or acquisition project 

___ YES, state the CCC that your agency is proposing to hire to complete your project, state which 

conservation corp your agency will be hiring: _________________________________________________ 

___ NO, explain why the CCC cannot provide the services for your project (maximum of one page): 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

___ OTHER, explain the Youth Employment Program (maximum of one page):______________________ 

 

 

13. WILL THIS PROJECT RESULT IN NEW PARK/OPEN SPACE? 

___ YES, then how many Total Acres_______________; Trail Miles________________ 

___ NO 

 

14. WILL THIS PROJECT RESULT IN NEW AREAS OF RESTORED HABITAT? 

___ YES, then how many Total Acres:__________; Trail miles:__________;  

Riparian Linear Miles:__________;   Acres of Wetlands:__________ 

 ___ NO 

 

 

15. WILL THIS PROJECT RESULT IN NEW PARK DEVELOPMENT? 

___ YES, then how many Total Acres:_______________; Trail Miles________________ 

___ NO 

 

 

16. WILL THIS PROJECT INVOLVE AN ACQUISITION? (check all that are included in this grant 

application): 

___ YES, then how many Total Acres:_______________;  

___ Willing Seller Letter 

___ Appraisal 

___ Current Title Report 

___ Environmental Assessments 

___ NO 

 

17. DOES YOUR PROJECT INVOLVE DEVELOPMENT/RESTORATION? (check all that apply) 

___ Site Control (does your agency own the property for the proposed project) 

___ Zoning Type (does your agency have the appropriate approved zoning for the proposed project) 

AGENCY  

identify permits necessary for project implementation 

YES NO DATE OF APPROVAL/PENDING 

California Fish and Wildlife    

State Water Control Resources Board    

US Army Corp of Engineers    

US Fish and Wildlife    

Los Angeles County Flood Control District    

City/County Construction Permits    

Coastal Commission    

Other    

Attachment D

Page 380 of 385



 

35 
 

 

 

18. DESIGN 

What is the status of your project design, check the most appropriate box? 

___ General project concept with no professional design work 

___ Professional drafted concept design 

___ Professional drafted concept design with defined task and budget line items 

___ 30% construction drawings with task and budget line items 

___ 60% construction drawings with task and budget line items 

___ Approved construction drawings with all permits 

 

What is the status of the environmental documentation for this project, check the most appropriate box? 

___ No CEQA/NEPA work initiated  

___ Initial Study Completed, date of completion ____________________________ 

___ Negative Declaration, date of certification  _____________________________ 

___ Categorically Exempt, date of certification  _____________________________ 

___ CEQA/NEPA in process, expected date of completion _____________________ 

___ CEQA/NEPA completed, date of completion ____________________________ 

 

19. BUDGET/FUNDING INFORMATION 

Amount requested:______________________ 

Is your funding request for the full amount necessary to complete this project?  ___YES        ____NO 

Matching Funds: ___YES, total amounts and funding agency______________________         ____NO 

 

Agency* Matching Funds 

  

  

  

TOTAL MATCHING FUNDS  

*include additional lines for matching funds if needed  

 

20. TIMELINE 

Assuming that the RMC grant funds may be awarded in the summer 2016 what is the expected timeline 

for this project.  

Start Date: _______________________________________________________________ 

Completion Date: _________________________________________________________ 

 

 

21. SIGNATURES 

Signature of Applicant:______________________________________________________________ 

Name and Title:____________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Signature of Authorized Official:______________________________________________________ 

Name and Title:____________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

Attachment D

Page 381 of 385



 

36 
 

 

APPENDIX E: CALIFORNIA CONSERVATION CORPS AND 
CERTIFIED COMMUNITY CONSERVATION CORPS 

CONSULTATION 

 
 

California Conservation Corps and Certified Community Conservation Corps 
Proposition 1 - Water Bond Guidelines – Chapter 6 

Corps Consultation Process 
June 2015 

 
This process has been developed to ensure compliance with Division 26.7 of the Water Code, Chapter 6, 
Section 79734 that specifies the involvement of the CCC and the certified community conservation corps 
(as represented by the California Association of Local Conservation Corps-CALCC).  
  
Section 79734 states “For restoration and ecosystem protection projects funded pursuant to this chapter, 
the services of the California Conservation Corps or a local conservation corps certified by the California 
Conservation Corps will be used whenever feasible.” 
 
Applicants applying for funds to complete restoration and ecosystem protection projects will consult with 
representatives of the California Conservation Corps (CCC) AND the California Association of Local 
Conservation Corps (CALCC), the entity representing the certified community conservation corps, to 
determine the feasibility of the Corps participation.  Unless otherwise exempted (see notes below), 
applicants that fail to engage in such consultation should not be eligible to receive Chapter 6 funds. CCC 
and CALCC have developed the following consultation process for inclusion in Prop 1 – Chapter 6 project 
and/or grant program guidelines: 

 
Step 1: Prior to submittal of an application or project plan to the Funder, Applicant prepares 

the following information for submission to both the California Conservation Corps 
(CCC) and CALCC (who represents the certified community conservation corps): 

�  Project Title  

�  Project Description (identifying key project activities and deliverables) 

�  Project Map (showing project location) 

�  Project Implementation estimated start and end dates 

 

Step 2: Applicant submits the forgoing information via email concurrently to the CCC and 
CALCC representatives:   
 
California Conservation Corps representative:  
Name: CCC Prop 1 Coordinator Email: Prop1@ccc.ca.gov  
Phone: (916) 341-3100 

 
California Association of Local Conservation Corps representative: 
Name: Crystal Muhlenkamp 

 Email:inquiry@prop1communitycorps.org 
Phone: 916-426-9170 ext. 0 

Step 3: Within five (5) business days of receiving the project information, the CCC and 
CALCC representatives will review the submitted information, contact the applicant 
if necessary, and respond to the applicant with a Corps Consultation Review 
Document (template attached) informing them: 

 
(1) It is NOT feasible for CCC and/or certified community conservation corps 

services to be used on the project;  or  

 

Attachment D

Page 382 of 385



 

37 
 

(2) It is feasible for the CCC and/or certified community conservation corps 

services to be used on the project and identifying the aspects of the project 

that can be accomplished with Corps services. 

 

Note:  While the Corps will take up to 5 days to review projects, applicants are 
encouraged to contact the CCC/CALCC representatives to discuss feasibility early 
in the project development process. 
 
The Corps cannot guarantee a compliant review process for applicants who submit 
project information fewer than 5 business days before a deadline.  

 
Step 4: Applicant submits application to Funder that includes Corps Consultation Review 

Document.  
 

Step 5: Funder reviews applications.   Applications that do not include documentation 
demonstrating that the Corps have been consulted will be deemed “noncompliant” 
and will not be considered for funding. 

 
NOTES:  

 
1. The Corps already have determined that it is not feasible to use their services on restoration 

and ecosystem protection projects that solely involve either planning or acquisition.  Therefore, 

applicants seeking funds for such projects are exempt from the consultation requirement and 

should check the appropriate box on the Consultation Review Document. 

 
2. An applicant that has been awarded funds to undertake a project where it has been 

determined that Corps services can be used must thereafter work with either the CCC or 

CALCC to develop a scope of work and enter into a contract with the appropriate Corps.  

Unless otherwise excused, failure to utilize a Corps on such a project will result in Funding 

Entities assessing a scoring penalty on the applicant’s future applications for Chapter 6 

Funds. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment D

Page 383 of 385



 

38 
 

 

APPENDIX E:  

CONSERVATION CORPS CONSULTATION REVIEW DOCUMENT 
 

Unless an exempted project, this Corps Consultation Review Document must be completed by California 

Conservation Corps and Community Conservation Corps staff and accompany applications for projects or 

grants seeking funds through Proposition 1, Chapter 6, Protecting Rivers, Lakes, Streams, Coastal Waters 

and Watersheds.  Non-exempt applications that do not include this document demonstrating that the Corps 

have been consulted will be deemed “noncompliant” and will not be considered for funding. 

 
1. Name of Applicant:      Project Title: 
 
Department/Conservancy to which you are applying for funding:  
 
To be completed by Applicant: 
Is this application solely for planning or acquisition? 

�  Yes (application is exempt from the requirement to consult with the Corps) 

�  No (proceed to #2) 

 
To be completed by Corps: 
This Consultation Review Document is being prepared by: 

�  The California Conservation Corps (CCC) 

�  California Association of Local Conservation Corps (CALCC) 

 
2.  Applicant has submitted the required information by mail, hand-delivered or email to the California 
Conservation Corps (CCC) and California Association of Local Conservation Corps (CALCC): 

 
�  Yes (applicant has submitted all necessary information to CCC and CALCC) 

  
�  No (applicant has not submitted all information or did not submit information to both Corps – 

application is deemed non-compliant) 

  
3.  After consulting with the project applicant, the CCC and CALCC has determined the following:   

    
�  It is NOT feasible for CCC and/or certified community conservation corps services to be used 

on the project (deemed compliant) 

 
�   It is feasible for the CCC and/or certified community conservation corps services to be used 

on the project and the following aspects of the project can be accomplished with Corps 

services (deemed compliant). 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
CCC AND CALCC REPRESENTATIVES WILL RETURN THIS FORM AS DOCUMENTION OF 
CONSULTATION BY MAIL, HAND-DELIVERED OR EMAIL TO APPLICANT WITHIN FIVE (5) BUSINESS 
DAYS OF RECEIPT AS VERIFICATION OF CONSULTATION. APPLICANT WILL INCLUDE COPY OF 
THIS DOCUMENT AS PART OF THE PROJECT APPLICATION.  
 
 

 

 

 
 

Attachment D

Page 384 of 385



RANCHO
SANTA

MARGARITA

MISSION
VIEJO

TRABUCO
HIGHLANDS

EL TORO

EL TORO STATIONCOSTA MESA

PORTOLA
HILLSIRVINE

FOUNTAIN
VALLEY

HUNTINGTON
BEACH

WESTMINSTERROLLING
HILLS

TUSTINSANTA
ANA

SEAL BEACH
RANCHO

PALOS VERDES

ROLLING HILLS
ESTATES TUSTIN

FOOTHILLS

ROSSMOORLOMITA

GARDEN GROVE

SIGNAL HILL STANTON
LOS ALAMITOS

VILLA PARK

HAWAIIAN
GARDENS

WEST
CARSON

CYPRESS

ORANGE

LA PALMALAKEWOOD
HERMOSA

BEACH

ARTESIA

TORRANCE CARSON

LONG BEACH

ANAHEIM

CERRITOS

REDONDO
BEACH

BUENA
PARK

ALONDRA
PARK

LAWNDALE WEST
COMPTONMANHATTAN

BEACH BELLFLOWER

GARDENA

PLACENTIA

YORBA LINDA

DEL AIRE

CORONA

EL
SEGUNDO

FULLERTON

WILLOWBROOK
WEST

ATHENS
LA MIRADAHAWTHORNE

EAST
LA MIRADA

LENNOX LA HABRA
BREA

SOUTH
WHITTIERWESTMONT

WALNUT
PARK

DOWNEY NORCO

INGLEWOOD

BELL
GARDENS LA HABRA

HEIGHTS

MARINA
DEL REY

FLORENCE-
GRAHAM

HUNTINGTON
PARK

MAYWOOD
LOS

SERRANOS

VIEW PARK-
WINDSOR HILLS

ROWLAND
HEIGHTS

WHITTIER

LADERA
HEIGHTS

VERNON COMMERCE PICO
RIVERA

CHINO
HILLS

CULVER CITY

HACIENDA
HEIGHTS

SANTA
MONICA

MONTEBELLO

DIAMOND BAR

SOUTH
SAN GABRIEL

CHINO

EAST
LOS ANGELES

SOUTH
EL MONTE

WALNUT

MONTEREY
PARK

WEST
HOLLYWOOD

ROSEMEAD
ONTARIO

EL MONTE MONTCLAIRBEVERLY
HILLS

COVINA
ALHAMBRA

CHARTER OAK
SAN

GABRIEL

POMONA

CLAREMONT UPLANDLA VERNE

SAN ANTONIO
HEIGHTS

SAN DIMAS

RANCHO
CUCAMONGA

GLENDORA

WRIGHTWOOD

SANTA CLARITA

LAKE LOS ANGELES

INDUSTRY

SOUTH
SAN JOSE

HILLS

AVOCADO
HEIGHTS LA PUENTE

VALINDA

WEST
PUENTE
VALLEY

BALDWIN
PARK

WEST COVINA

NORTH
EL MONTE

VINCENT

CITRUS

TEMPLE
CITY

SOUTH
PASADENA

IRWINDALE

EAST
SAN

GABRIEL
MAYFLOWER

VILLAGE

EAST
PASADENA

SAN
MARINO

BURBANK

BRADBURY

AZUSA

DUARTE

SIERRA MADRE

ARCADIA

MONROVIA

ALTADENA

PASADENA

LA CANADA
FLINTRIDGE

LA CRESCENTA-
MONTROSE

GLENDALE

SAN FERNANDO

ACTON

LITTLEROCK

PALMDALE EAST

DESERT VIEW HIGHLANDS

PALMDALE

QUARTZ HILL

PALOS
VERDES
ESTATES

EAST
COMPTON

PARAMOUNT
COMPTON

NORWALK

LYNWOOD

SOUTH GATE

CUDAHY
SANTA FE
SPRINGS

WEST WHITTIER-
LOS NIETOSBELL

LOS ANGELES

LOS ANGELES

Los Angeles R iver

S an
G

abrie
l R iv

er

S an

G abriel

Mountains

Angeles

National

Forest

San Andreas
Fault

ZoneHwy 14

I - 5

I - 10

I - 210

I - 405
I - 5

I - 10 I
-

110

I - 605

I - 405
Los Angeles

Orange San Bernardino

Riverside

S an G abriel & Lower Los Angeles

R ivers & Mountains C ons ervancy

The Mis sion of the R ivers and Mountains
C ons ervancy is to pres erve urban open
space and habitats in order to provide for
low-impact recreation and educational us es ,
wildlife habitat res toration and protection,
and waters hed improvements
within its juris diction.

Mark Stanely, Executive Officer
Rivers & Mountains Conservancy
100 O l d  S a n  G a b r i e l  R d
Azusa, California 91702
(626) 815-1 0 1 9
www.rmc.ca.gov

10 Mi

P
a c i f i c

O
c e a n

County Boundaries

S an G abriel & L ower L os Angeles

Rivers & Mountains Conservancy
(RMC) Jurisdictional Boundary

Attachment D

Page 385 of 385

ltorres
Rectangle

ltorres
Oval


	10A. Staff Report - Demands and Payroll Reports.pdf
	The City Council is requested to approve the Demands and Payroll in the amount of $706,264.59 including Cash and Investment Report by Fund for the month of September 2015.
	BACKGROUND
	1. On September 13, 1993, Ordinance 476 was adopted and codified as Cudahy Municipal Code Section 3.04.080 indicating, "Except as otherwise provided, no warrant shall be drawn or evidence of indebtedness issued unless there shall be at the time suffic...
	2. On September 2015, the following demands and payroll have been audited by the Finance Department:
	10A. Attachment C - 2015 Nov (Sept) Investment Report.pdf
	sheet 1


	10B. Staff Report - LAIF 2015 09 30.pdf
	RECOMMENDATION
	The City Council is requested to approve the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Report for the month of September 2015 in the amount of $5,275,618.75.

	10F. Successor Agency - Staff Report LRPMP 11-3-15.pdf
	10F. Attach B - Final Draft Cudahy LRPMP 10-28-2015.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	#1
	#2
	#3
	#4
	#5



	11A. Cudahy Staff Report Repeal of Resolution No 99-34.pdf
	11A. Attachment A. Cudahy Ordinance_Amending Setion 15.040.030 - 10-15.pdf
	ATTEST:
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSTAIN:
	ABSENT:

	11A. Attachment B. Cudahy resolution repeaing Resolution No  99-34.pdf
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:


	12C. Staff Report_Avant Garde RMC Grant.pdf
	12C. Attachment B. Avant Garde-RMC Grant Contract 2015.pdf
	NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein, and
	other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
	acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the Parties agree as follows:
	I.
	ENGAGEMENT TERMS





